
AGENDA

Closed session begins at 6:00 pm; Open session begins at 7 pm. All documents relating to the following agenda
items are available for public review in the Administrative Office of the Harmony Union School District during
office hours at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled Board meeting. The Harmony District Board of Education
meetings are open to the public, except for certain subjects that are addressed in closed session in accordance
with the Ralph M. Brown Act. If anyone wishes to attend and requires special accommodations due to a
handicapping condition, as outlined in the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the superintendent at
least two working days prior to the meeting.

1. Call to Order 6

2. Pledge of Allegiance 7

3. Approval of the Agenda
 That the board approve the meeting agenda.

8

4. Public Comment
 For Closed Session: Members of the public may address the Board briefly on matters not on the

agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Please state your name and
address. In accordance with Board Policy 9323, speakers are to keep comments concise and
limited to three minutes. The Public Comment item will be limited to a total of 20 minutes, absent
approval to extend by the Board President. If there are several people who share the same issue,
please chose one as your representative, and that person may be given additional time, if
necessary. The Board values public comment, but by the Brown Act the Board shall not act upon,
respond to, or comment on the merits of any item presented. The Board may ask clarifying
questions of the presenter or refer the presenter to the District procedures.

Members of the public may address the Board regarding items on the agenda at the time the item
appears on the agenda. The Board President may move any agenda item to a different place on
the agenda in order to accommodate the public or improve the flow of the meeting.

9

5. Closed Session 10

A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code
Section 54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency
Negotiator: Matthew Morgan Name of organization representing employees: CSEA 11

B. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code
Section 54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency
Negotiator: Matthew Morgan Name of organization representing employees: HUTA 12

C. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov.
Code Section 54957.6: Update on Anticipated Litigation items 13

D. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov.

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

1



Code Section 54957: Superintendent Review 14

E. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov.
Code Section 54957: Student Discipline 15

6. Reconvene to Open Session 16

A. Report out on any action taken during closed session 17

7. Communication 18

A. Reports 19

i. HUTA Report 20

ii. Shark Report 21

iii. Student Report 22

iv. Board Member Reports 23

v. Superintendent/Principal's Report 24

vi. Pathways Director Report 25

B. Public Comment
 For Open Session: Members of the public may address the Board briefly on matters not on the

agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Please state your name and
address. In accordance with Board Policy 9323, speakers are to keep comments concise and
limited to three minutes. The Public Comment item will be limited to a total of 20 minutes,
absent approval to extend by the Board President. If there are several people who share the
same issue, please chose one as your representative, and that person may be given additional
time, if necessary. The Board values public comment, but by the Brown Act the Board shall not
act upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of any item presented. The Board may ask
clarifying questions of the presenter or refer the presenter to the District procedures.

Members of the public may address the Board regarding items on the agenda at the time the
item appears on the agenda. The Board President may move any agenda item to a different
place on the agenda in order to accommodate the public or improve the flow of the meeting.

26

C. Correspondence 27

i. Letter to Superintendent from HUTA 28

8. Consent Agenda 31

A. Vendor Warrants 32

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

2



B. Approve the minutes from regular meeting held 02/13/2025
 Approve through consent agenda

38

C. 4th Grade Field Trip: Malakoff Diggins/ California Gold Rush 04/28/-04/30 2025
 Approve through the consent agenda

48

D. 2nd Grade Rotary Learn to Swim Program- 4/29-5/22
 Approve through consent agenda

50

E. 5th Grade Overnight to Chabot Space and Science Center 4/16-4/17
 approve through consent agenda

52

F. Family Campout in Dragon Playground with Ms Fig and Crew (auction item)
 approve through the consent agenda

54

G. 8th Grade Field Trip to Tomales Bay 4/30-5/2 2025
 Approve through consent agenda

56

H. Approve the Consent Agenda
 That the board approve the consent agenda

58

9. Information / Correspondence / Discussion 59

A. Enrollment Report 60

B. Discussion re: District Special Education Services 63

C. Board Member Development 64

D. Examination of layoffs for 25-26 school year
 Examination of layoffs for the 2025-26 school year:

Certificated:

1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Certificated
Position

2. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Temporary Certificated
Position

3. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.43 (.43 F.T.E. – Layoff) Music Teacher Position
4. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.23 (.23 F.T.E. – Layoff) School Psychologist

Position

Classified:

1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.7 F.T.E. (2 - .85 positions)(1.7 F.T.E. –
Layoffs) Permanent Paraeducator Special Education Temporary Assistant
Classified Positions

65

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

3



2. Eliminate the equivalent of 3.4 F.T.E. (4 - .85 positions)(3.4 F.T.E. – Layoffs)
Permanent Paraeducator Instructional Assistant Classified Positions

3. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 F.T.E. (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Custodial
and Maintenance Technician Position

4. Eliminate the equivalent of .6 F.T.E (.6 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent ELOP
Coordinator Position 

5. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.44125 F.T.E (1.44125 F.T.E. – Layoffs) ELOP
(Aftercare) Paraeducator Positions

E. Legal Implications of Charter Non Renewal
 TBD

66

10. Action Items 67

A. Consideration of District's 2nd Interim Report of Budget and Financial Progress for the
2024-25 school year

 That the board approve the  District's 2nd Interim Report of Budget and Financial
Progress for the 2024-25 school year

68

B. Consideration and Possible Action on Resolution 2024/25-9 Regarding Certificated
Reductions in Force

 
1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Certificated

Position
2. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.42 (1.42 F.T.E. – Layoffs) Temporary Certificated

Positions
3. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.40 (.40 F.T.E. – Layoff) Music Teacher Position
4. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.23 (.23 F.T.E. – Layoff) School Psychologist

Position

 
 That the board approve Resolution  2024/25-9 and 2024/25-11 Regarding Certificated

Reductions in Force 

205

C. Consideration of and Possible Action on Resolution 2024/25-10 Regarding Classified
Reductions in Force

 
1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.7 F.T.E. (2 - .85 positions)(1.7 F.T.E. –

Layoffs) Permanent Paraeducator Special Education Temporary Assistant
Classified Positions

2. Eliminate the equivalent of 3.4 F.T.E. (4 - .85 positions)(3.4 F.T.E. – Layoffs)
Permanent Paraeducator Instructional Assistant Classified Positions

212

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

4



3. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 F.T.E. (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Custodial
and Maintenance Technician Position

4. Eliminate the equivalent of .6 F.T.E (.6 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent ELOP
Coordinator Position 

5. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.44125 F.T.E (1.44125 F.T.E. – Layoffs) ELOP
(Aftercare) Paraeducator Positions

 

 

 That the board approve Resolution 2024/25-10 Regarding

Classified Reductions in Force 

D. Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding with West Sonoma County Consortium
for Classroom Space on HUSD Campus

 That the board approve the Memorandum of Understanding with West Sonoma County
Consortium for Classroom Space on HUSD Campus

216

E. Board Policy Updates- First Reading 217

11. Next Board Meeting
 Next regular meeting is April 10, 2025.

1249

12. Adjournment 1250

 

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

5



1. Call to Order

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

6



2. Pledge of Allegiance

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

7



Recommendation

That the board approve the meeting agenda.

3. Approval of the Agenda

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

8



Quick Summary / Abstract

For Closed Session: Members of the public may address the Board briefly on matters not on the agenda and are
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Please state your name and address. In accordance with
Board Policy 9323, speakers are to keep comments concise and limited to three minutes. The Public Comment
item will be limited to a total of 20 minutes, absent approval to extend by the Board President. If there are
several people who share the same issue, please chose one as your representative, and that person may be
given additional time, if necessary. The Board values public comment, but by the Brown Act the Board shall not
act upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of any item presented. The Board may ask clarifying questions
of the presenter or refer the presenter to the District procedures.

Members of the public may address the Board regarding items on the agenda at the time the item appears on
the agenda. The Board President may move any agenda item to a different place on the agenda in order to
accommodate the public or improve the flow of the meeting.

4. Public Comment

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

9



5. Closed Session

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

10



5. A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code Section
54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency Negotiator: Matthew Morgan
Name of organization representing employees: CSEA

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

11



5. B. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code Section
54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency Negotiator: Matthew Morgan
Name of organization representing employees: HUTA

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

12



5. C. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code
Section 54957.6: Update on Anticipated Litigation items

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

13



5. D. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code
Section 54957: Superintendent Review

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

14



5. E. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code
Section 54957: Student Discipline

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

15



6. Reconvene to Open Session

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

16



6. A. Report out on any action taken during closed session

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

17



7. Communication

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

18



7. A. Reports

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

19



7. A. i. HUTA Report

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

20



7. A. ii. Shark Report

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

21



7. A. iii. Student Report

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

22



7. A. iv. Board Member Reports

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

23



7. A. v. Superintendent/Principal's Report

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

24



7. A. vi. Pathways Director Report

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

25



Quick Summary / Abstract

For Open Session: Members of the public may address the Board briefly on matters not on the agenda and are
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Please state your name and address. In accordance with
Board Policy 9323, speakers are to keep comments concise and limited to three minutes. The Public Comment
item will be limited to a total of 20 minutes, absent approval to extend by the Board President. If there are
several people who share the same issue, please chose one as your representative, and that person may be
given additional time, if necessary. The Board values public comment, but by the Brown Act the Board shall not
act upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of any item presented. The Board may ask clarifying questions
of the presenter or refer the presenter to the District procedures.

Members of the public may address the Board regarding items on the agenda at the time the item appears on
the agenda. The Board President may move any agenda item to a different place on the agenda in order to
accommodate the public or improve the flow of the meeting.

7. B. Public Comment

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

26



7. C. Correspondence

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

27



Supporting Documents

 Letter to Superintendent_Board Consortium (1)

7. C. i. Letter to Superintendent from HUTA

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

28



March 10, 2025 

Dear Superintendent and Members of the Harmony Union School Board, 

Thank you for taking the time to consider HUTA’s perspective as you consider the partnership 
with the West County Consortium. This important decision will directly impact our students, 
families, teachers, and staff. We appreciate your dedication to the Harmony Union community. 

HUTA strongly supports inclusion and educational equity for all students. We understand and 
are moved by the ethical duty to increase the capacity of the West County Consortium to serve 
all West County students. We strongly support the goal of including students with disabilities in 
general education as much as possible.  

In taking a look at our current capacity, we have concerns about our district’s ability to provide a 
sustainable consortium classroom that will not overwhelm our staff. In the past several years, 
most of our members have experienced increased job stress or even burnout as a result of 
increased student needs and intense behaviors, and family expectations. Adding more students, 
staff, responsibilities, logistical demands, and expectations to our campus will almost certainly 
increase the demands and pressure on our members and other district staff. However, we 
aspire to be a school district where all stakeholders commit to fully integrating a consortium 
classroom; we want to support the partnership between HUSD and the West County 
Consortium and bring a Consortium classroom to HUSD. 

We want to create a highly successful and sustainable program that we can be proud of. In the 
spirit of problem-solving, here are some of our more specific concerns and questions: 

Impacts on Unit Members: We have concerns about changes of working conditions for at least 
6 of our unit members (Grades 1-4, Music and PE teachers). Before enthusiastically supporting 
a plan to bring a Consortium classroom to HUSD, we want to negotiate compensation for the 
tangible impacts on their jobs, as well as the “invisible labor” full inclusion would entail. We want 
to negotiate this plan before the end of the 2024-2025 school year. Some issues for further 
discussion include:  

a. Increased duties with fewer resources - We believe it is untenable for 3rd and 4th grade 
teachers to take on additional inclusion-students while aide support in these classrooms 
are being cut.   

b. Per pupil extra duty pay - Creating a sense of belonging and a classroom culture that is 
inviting for all students takes time to plan, coach, and create.  Teachers already invest 
significant  time, energy and dedication to create a welcoming and supportive classroom 
environment, and with the addition of new full inclusion students, these demands will 
only increase.  

c. Increase in IEP meetings - The growing demands on teachers’ time is becoming 
unsustainable. More meetings to plan for and to attend impacts teachers.  

29



d. Common planning time for HUSD teachers to work with Consortium teachers and aides. 
We would like to see a transparent and feasible plan for common planning time between 
Consortium staff and Harmony staff well before the start of the school year. 

Space: Adding a full-time consortium class could cause a lack of meeting space for other 
consortium teachers, such as our speech therapist, occupational therapist, and adaptive PE 
teacher who currently serve district students. Also, an unexpected surge of a bubble class 
would displace current staff and spaces that support students and are needed for work spaces. 
We would like to see contingency plans drafted to cover all possibilities before the end of the 
school year.  

Administrative Focus: With increasing student incidents on campus, and with the bond 
projects beginning soon, we are concerned that our administration will be pulled in even more 
directions with the development of this program, making them less accessible for the day-to-day 
needs we already have. We would appreciate assurances that student and teacher needs won’t 
be compromised because of the addition of a Consortium class, and openness to regular 
check-ins and evaluations throughout the coming year with regard to these concerns.  

In closing, this proposal comes at a time when classroom aide time is already being cut. Our 
members are already struggling to meet our present current workload given our current level of 
resources and support. Adding more work, logistics, and commitments to a staff that already 
feels maxed out while at the same time cutting existing classroom supports feels like a 
significant challenge. However, HUTA deeply believes in the ethical duty for West County school 
districts to serve all of our students. We look forward to working with all stakeholders to address 
potential issues in advance and make the partnership with West County Consortium a success.  
Thanks again for your work and dedication to our school community.  

 

In partnership, 

Harmony Union Teachers Association 

 

 

30



8. Consent Agenda

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

31



Supporting Documents

 Board Report of Checks 02102025 through 03122025

8. A. Vendor Warrants

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

32



33



34



35



36



37



Recommendation

Approve through consent agenda

Supporting Documents

 Board Meeting Minutes, 2_13_25—regular, unapproved

8. B. Approve the minutes from regular meeting held 02/13/2025

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

38



Harmony Union School District 
Regular School Board Meeting  
February 13, 2025 
Minutes (draft/unapproved) 
 
Board Members present: 
Amanda Solter (AS), Yuri Koslen (YK) (left early), Mariah Lander (ML), Charlie Laird (CL) 
 
Also present: 
Suzi Heron, Stacy Kalember, Matthew Morgan  
 
Meeting opened: at 6:09 pm 
Entered into closed session:  at 6:11 pm 
Entered into open session at 7:07 pm 
 
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 
Stacy is changing “Certification of Corrective Action” from correspondence (item 9.K) action item 
(item 10.F) 
 

Motion: ML 
Second: AS 
All in favor—motion carried 

 
4. Public Comment  
For Closed Session: Members of the public may address the Board brief on matters not on the 
agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Please state your name and 
address. In accordance with Board Policy 9323, speakers are to keep comments concise and 
limited to three minutes. The Public Comment item will be limited to a total of 20 minutes, absent 
approval to extend by the Board President. If there are several people who share the same 
issue, please choose one as your representative, and that person may be given additional time, 
if necessary. The Board values public comment, but by the Brown Act the Board shall not act 
upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of any item presented. The Board may ask 
clarifying questions of the presenter or refer the presenter to the District procedures. Members 
of the public may address the Board regarding items on the agenda at the time the item appears 
on the agenda. The Board President may move any agenda item to a different place on the 
agenda in order to accommodate the public or improve the flow of the meeting. 
No public comments at this time 
 
5. Closed Session  

39



 
A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code 
Section 54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency 
Negotiator: Matthew Morgan Name of organization representing employees: CSEA  
 
B. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code 
Section 54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency 
Negotiator: Matthew Morgan Name of organization representing employees: HUTA  
 
C. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to 
Gov. Code Section 54957.6: Update on Anticipated Litigation items  
 
D. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to 
Gov. Code Section 54957: Superintendent Review 2/10/25, 6:14 PM Print Item 
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Meetings/PrintItem.aspx?S=36030644&MID=36326&
AB=true&RC=true&Con=true&t=a 1/4 E. With respect to every item of business to be 
discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: Student Discipline 

 
6. Reconvene to Open Session  
 

A. Report out on any action taken during closed session 
Nothing to report from closed session 

 
7. Communication  
 

A. Reports  
 

i. HUTA Report  
Erica gave a HUTA report. 
 
ii. Shark Report  
Sarah shared the Shark Report. More community building and fundraising (Amys 
and CalSkate). More information about the Gala is coming. 
 
iii. Student Report 
Sadie, student body president, gave the student report. Assemblies and the 
student store are going well. It has been a good opportunity to develop student 
leadership, and they have more plans for involvement in the future. 
Yuri asked who is responsible for the morning announcement and said he 
enjoyed them.  
 
iv. Board Member Reports 
Amanda appreciated the Performance Showcase and said the CalSkate 
fundraiser was amazing. 

40



Yuri echoed the Performance Showcase being amazing and his son is enjoying 
basketball. 
  
v. Superintendent/Principal’s Report  

● Congrats to kids in the showcase and thank you to Sadie Sonntag. 
● Basketball is going well.  
● Field trips for 5th and 6th coming up.  
● Updates from the County regarding funding changes happening at the 

federal level. We don’t know much at this point about what’s going to 
happen. The place loss of federal funding would impact the most is 
special ed (10–15%). The other part is Title 1. The last area is 
reimbursement for free and reduced lunch. There may be more impacts at 
the state level, because some state programs have federal origins. They 
may not be able to afford programs because they need funds to backfill 
programs that have been gutted.  

● Immigration: Instructions about how to respond to actions regarding 
immigration on our site.  

● Need adopted screening for reading. (We’ve been using DIBELS, but 
there are others.) Pairs with a multi-tiered student support dashboard. It’s 
a very expensive tool, so SCOE may do their own version of it. We may 
be able to pilot the SCOE version next year. Help us get more data re 
academic progress for next year’s LCAP. Per question, the academic 
support team has already been doing this work, but the program would 
help us track progress. This is for reading issues within general ed. 

 
vi. Pathways Director Report 

● Pathways already has literacy screener for lower grade students 
● Attended immigration and law enforcement on campus workshop 
● Don’t take federal money for food program 
● Will have significant impact for sped ed program due to federal cuts 
● At capacity with enrollment, will take siblings in the spring, open 

enrollment for fall; good enrollment numbers; ADA is challenging (through 
work production) 

● New onboarding program for students and families 
● 2 teachers retiring 
● At will employer, but teachers typically do the same job year after year 
● Preparing for WASK visit 
● Updating policies (revisions and additions) 

 
B. Public Comment 
For Open Session: Members of the public may address the Board brief on matters not 
on the agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Please state 
your name and address. In accordance with Board Policy 9323, speakers are to keep 
comments concise and limited to three minutes. The Public Comment item will be limited 

41



to a total of 20 minutes, absent approval to extend by the Board President. If there are 
several people who share the same issue, please choose one as your representative, 
and that person may be given additional time, if necessary. The Board values public 
comment, but by the Brown Act the Board shall not act upon, respond to, or comment on 
the merits of any item presented. The Board may ask clarifying questions of the 
presenter or refer the presenter to the District procedures. Members of the public may 
address the Board regarding items on the agenda at the time the item appears on the 
agenda. The Board President may move any agenda item to a different place on the 
agenda in order to accommodate the public or improve the flow of the meeting. 
No public comment at this time.  

 
C. Correspondence 
  

 
8. Consent Agenda, Action  
 

A. Vendor Warrants  
 
B. Approve the minutes from regular meeting held 01/09/2025  
Approve through consent agenda 
 
C. Approve the Consent Agenda  
That the board approve the consent agenda 

 
Motion: AS 
Second: ML 
All in favor—motion carried 

 
9. Information/Correspondence/Discussion  
 

A. Enrollment Report 
ADA report had slight dip because of a lot of illness and long-term illness (severe flu); 
averaged about 25–30 kids out per day 
 
B.  Discussion re: District Special Education Services 
Matthew reminded the Board of recent discussions regarding the consortium. The 
consortium will move from being an MOU with the high school district to being a JPA 
over the next few years. The JPA will require facilities from the districts. There was 
discussion regarding LEA responsibilities and clarification of responsibilities. The district 
needs the MOU/JPA because it can’t serve all students without the west county-wide 
support. 
Yuri asked if there are efficiencies in broadening services within the MOU/JPA. Matthew 
answered yes, since students will be moved from private institutions into the county 
programs. It’s also better for students not to be bussed so far. Current off-campus sped 

42



costs and on-campus specialists are about $500,000. Sped costs are at least 20% of 
total cost. Sped costs have been growing immensely over the past 5 years.  
No public comment on this matter. 

 
C. Board Member Development 
Talking about updating governance handbook 
Improve onboarding resources—coffee talks in Feb 
Board members would like to go to faculty meetings 
Started visioning conversations 
Goal to improve writing and math curriculum—reading screenings happening 
Superintendent eval will be happening 
 
D. Letter from Emily Golden Re: Maternity and Family Leave  
Letter from Emily Golden Re: Maternity and Family Leave 
Hired temporary long-term sub for kindergarten who had two weeks with Emily and sat in 
on parent conferences; Emily will take the rest of the year 
 
E. Employee Resignation Resignation of employee  
Idalia Pagan effective January 31, 2025. 
3rd, TK, 4th aide took leave of absence and will resign 
Yuri thanked her for her service 
 
F. Employee Resignation Resignation of employee  
Erica Ferguson effective June 6, 2025 
Erica has been a teacher for many years—Matthew and Yuri said thank you, 
congratulations, and best of luck 
 
G. Retirement Announcement—Susan McGovern  
Retirement announcement for Susan McGovern 
Susan is the most tenured person on staff—significant loss of institutional 
knowledge—Matthew gave much appreciation and Yuri said congratulations 
 
H. Examination of layoffs for 25-26 school year  
Examination of layoffs for the 25-26 school year 
School is in negative spending this year, and if we don’t make changes, will be in 
negative spending next year too. This is due to expanded staff after COVID and rising. 
SPED costs. There is also a loss of one-time funding. 
Many districts are facing this issue. 
Need to downsize to protect student programs. This involves a loss of staff. Some 
programmatic changes may be necessary, such as a possible shorter instructional day 
for lower grades. May include reduction in music teacher and aide staff time. Lower 
grades would not have music instruction. 
Next year we can be more efficient about TK class coverage—am/pm program if 
numbers exceed one class. 

43



Will only have one teacher in the intervention program (vs. two), with aide support. 
Reduction in custodial support—evening position is reduced. 
ELOP afterschool care can have more efficient staffing 
Summer school will have a reduction of pm teacher time. 
School psych from .73 to .5. 
Per Mariah’s question, employees need to be notified by March 15, and the budget will 
be determined by the June adoption. 
The way things are going (LA fires, stock market, and federal changes), Matthew doesn’t 
see things going well regarding improvements in the budget. 
The Board will make a final decision regarding layoffs at the March Board meeting. They 
can pull the layoffs back later in the school year, if necessary. 
Some staff, with reductions, will lose some health care (but not all) benefits. 
Matthew said that it’s a possibility that some of the people could be brought back, or their 
hours could be increased, if there were to be more revenue than expected. 
Student impact involves loss of in-class aide support and loss of music in lower grades. 
Various parties have discussed the impending cuts. 
We can’t count on reserves to preserve positions 
Public Comment: 
Public comment from Sarah: question about how shortened day runs—students need to 
leave classroom to make prep time for teachers. Where would they go? Question about 
if one day of music per week would work for younger students. 
Andrew made a public comment: Thank Matthew and Stacy for putting this together. 
Mariah made a public comment: Not having prep time in classroom at end of the day 
needs to be discussed—needs classroom accessible. Also, shorter music classes have 
been used in the past—could this happen again. 
Susie—question: What are student advisor and interventionalist? Student advisor floats 
assisting students in crisis. (Interventionist roles have been filled by 2 teachers; in the 
past was a classified position. Support with targeted small groups.) Also hopes to have 
more music. 
 
I. SCOE approval letter for District's 2024-25  
First Interim Report SCOE approval letter for District's 2024-25 First Interim Report 
Yearly letter from SCOE re approval of first interim report: County approved the budget. 
They recognized deficit spending and encourage moving toward a more stable budget. 
 
J. Harmony Union School District Measure C Bond Audit Report.  
Harmony Union School District Measure C Bond Audit Report 
Auditors didn’t have any findings from Fund 21. 2018 Bond project is wrapped up and 
zeroed the fund out. 2024 new bond money will fill fund. 
 
K. Certification of Corrective Action for the 2023-24 Audit Findings and 
Recommendations Certification of Corrective Action for the 2023-24  
Audit Findings and Recommendations That the Board accepts and certifies the 
Corrective Action for the 2023-24 Audit Findings and Recommendations 

44



This item was moved to Section 10 (Action Item F) 
 

 
10. Action Items 
 

A. Memorandum of Understanding with West County Consortium re Facilities 
Matthew talked about current situation: MOU rider has been used on top of this MOU. 
Guerneville and Harmony have been asked to provide space for consortium classes. 
Matthew believes that Harmony will have a classroom available (corner classroom by 
library) for 1–3 or 1–4 class with some of our students remaining onsite. Additional space 
may be required for special services. District would get lease money. There is an option 
to not continue with the class on campus, although this may change with the change to a 
JPA. Bringing students back to consortium from private programs would save money.  
Charlie talked about space challenges on campus and not being able to serve the kids 
we have on campus, and it may take a long time to remove ourselves from providing 
space. Building more classroom space in future with bond money feels better. 
Matthew: Consortium needs info so they can hire positions for potential classrooms. Our 
students need to go to nps’s next year, and having them on campus would save us 
money. 8 kids, 1 teacher, and 3 aides in classroom—consortium hires.  
Yuri: $15,000 rental income plus cheaper on-site placements would help our budget. 
Matthew agreed. He also said it’s more educationally appropriate to have a program on 
site, and one or more students may be able to attend a classroom on campus. This 
would also save us money. District has to make the most appropriate offer for the child, 
and the parent can agree or reject the offer. 
Charlie worried about not having enough space for a bubble class right before the start 
of the year. Matthew said there are two rooms that the school could use, if necessary. 
Some discussion about parking with an additional classroom. 
Charlie is frustrated that he wasn’t part of more discussions around this ask prior to 
seeing an MOU. Mariah said that there was discussion at the previous meeting. 
Matthew talked about the District’s job is to find an appropriate place for students. We 
can’t do it on our own, so we rely on a shared service model, which offers placements 
and saves money. We can’t ask for help and not participate in the responsibility. 
Amanda has found the conversations helpful. 
Yuri is supportive but also willing to delay the decision for a month and getting more 
financial info, and also realizes that facilities and teachers are Matthew’s job. 
Public comment: 
Mariah: Appreciates visits from consortium director and ability to ask questions. Haven’t 
had an avenue to process info or think about impact on teachers. What are the logistics 
of collaborating with consortium teachers? Will there be more IEP meetings? This might 
be a good opportunity for a board member to sit in on a staff discussion. 

  
Mariah proposed tabling a vote on the MOU until March and to give teachers a chance to 
process: 

Motion:  ML 

45



Second: AS 
All in favor—motion carried 

 
B. Consideration of Multi-District 5-Year Interdistrict Attendance Agreement Education 
Code provides that "the governing boards of two or more school districts may enter into 
an agreement for a term not to exceed five school years, for the interdistrict attendance 
of pupils who are residents of the district."  
The current agreement is set to expire at the end of this school year. Attached, you will 
find the new agreement which will be effective July 1, 2025 through the 2029-2030 
school year. That the board approves the Multi-District 5-Year Interdistrict Attendance 
Agreement 
No questions on this item 

 
Motion:  ML 
Second: CL 
All in favor—motion carried 

 
C.  Consideration of School Safety Plan  
Consideration of the School Safety Plan That the Board approves the School Safety 
Plan 
Stefanie spoke to the updated school safety plan and reviewed some highlights, i.e., 
difference between lockdown or shelter in place. Classes have practiced various drills for 
all the situations. There are protocols for various emergency situations. Added a piece 
regarding communication to families regarding the status of an emergency. Staff all have 
roles and procedures. Each team has a team description page that they’ve been trained 
on. More training in the spring. 
Is looking to see if there are any questions and a vote to adopt. 
Mariah was wondering if there is a procedure to notify parents. Stefanie responded that 
yes, Suzi and Matthew are in charge of this. However, first and foremost, it’s important to 
make sure that everyone is safe. And yes, messages are sent out to parents regarding 
incidents that happen.  
The document will be published on the school website. 
No comments or questions from the public. 
 

Motion: AS 
Second: CL 
All in favor—motion carried 

 
D.  Board Policy Updates—Second Reading and Adoption  
Board Policy Updates—Second Reading and Adoption That the Board approves the 
attached board policy updates. 
Matthew suggested that this become the first reading. 
 
 

46



Motion tabled  
 

E.  Consideration of new temporary hire—Kindergarten  
Consideration of new temporary hire in the Kindergarten position, Heidi Leontie. That the 
Board approves the new temporary hire to the Kindergarten position. 
Stacy spoke about the new hire for kindergarten 
 

Motion: CL 
Second: AS 
All in favor—motion carried 

 
F. Certification of Corrective Action for the 2023-24 Audit Findings and 
Recommendations Certification of Corrective Action for the 2023-24  
Audit Findings and Recommendations That the Board accepts and certifies the 
Corrective Action for the 2023-24 Audit Findings and Recommendations 
Stacy talked about audit discussed at previous meeting, along with corrective actions. 1) 
A transportation code was off, so the they are making sure the code is correct on POs 
going forward. 2) One K student not in compliance with immunizations, so they couldn’t 
be included in the ADA, which is a financial loss. The nurse worked with the family, and 
the student is up to date. 3) Didn’t have software that tracked ELOP students, and now 
we have it. 4) Middle school student exceeded 15-day independent study agreement. 
Devise administrative protocols to make sure IS signatures are in compliance. 

 
Motion: AS 
Second: CL 
All in favor—motion carried 

 
 
11. Next Board Meeting 
March 13, 2025 @7pm 
 
12. Adjournment 10:01 pm 
 

47



Recommendation

Approve through the consent agenda

Supporting Documents

 Gold Rush for Board 2025

8. C. 4th Grade Field Trip: Malakoff Diggins/ California Gold Rush 04/28/-04/30 2025

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

48



49



Recommendation

Approve through consent agenda

Supporting Documents

 2nd Grade Learn to Swim for Board

8. D. 2nd Grade Rotary Learn to Swim Program- 4/29-5/22

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

50



51



Recommendation

approve through consent agenda

Supporting Documents

 5th grade Chabot FT

8. E. 5th Grade Overnight to Chabot Space and Science Center 4/16-4/17

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

52



53



Recommendation

approve through the consent agenda

Supporting Documents

 3031_001 (1)

8. F. Family Campout in Dragon Playground with Ms Fig and Crew (auction item)

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

54



55



Recommendation

Approve through consent agenda

Supporting Documents

 8th Grade Field Trip 4302025-5022025

8. G. 8th Grade Field Trip to Tomales Bay 4/30-5/2 2025

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

56



57



Recommendation

That the board approve the consent agenda

8. H. Approve the Consent Agenda

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

58



9. Information / Correspondence / Discussion

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

59



Supporting Documents

 SC ADA YTD 3132025

 HE ADA YTD 03132025

Information

Total district enrollment:    223

Monthly ADA included 

 

9. A. Enrollment Report

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

60



Salmon Creek Charter 92.11%21.43 19.74 1.68

91.46%20.13 18.41 1.72

93.09%23.30 21.69 1.61

90.09%18.47 16.64 1.82

91.62%29.58 27.10 2.48

93.61%24.25 22.70 1.55

94.05%20.00 18.81 1.19

92.33%157.16 145.10 12.05School Totals:

Salmon Creek Charter

Average Daily Attendance (ADA) Summary

3/13/2025

2024-2025 Page 1

GrdSchool
Average Daily

Enrollment ADA %
Average Daily

Attendance
Average Daily

Absences

8/15/2024 - 3/13/2025

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Note: Detail may not add up to the totals due to truncation of detail numbers

61



Harmony Elementary 89.26%23.66 21.12 2.53

91.66%26.02 23.85 2.17

91.53%20.89 19.12 1.77

90.83%70.57 64.10 6.47School Totals:

Harmony Elementary

Average Daily Attendance (ADA) Summary

3/13/2025

2024-2025 Page 1

GrdSchool
Average Daily

Enrollment ADA %
Average Daily

Attendance
Average Daily

Absences

8/15/2024 - 3/13/2025

TK

K

1

Note: Detail may not add up to the totals due to truncation of detail numbers

62



9. B. Discussion re: District Special Education Services

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

63



9. C. Board Member Development

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

64



Quick Summary / Abstract

Examination of layoffs for the 2025-26 school year:
Certificated:

1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Certificated Position
2. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Temporary Certificated Position
3. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.43 (.43 F.T.E. – Layoff) Music Teacher Position
4. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.23 (.23 F.T.E. – Layoff) School Psychologist Position

Classified:

1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.7 F.T.E. (2 - .85 positions)(1.7 F.T.E. – Layoffs) Permanent
Paraeducator Special Education Temporary Assistant Classified Positions

2. Eliminate the equivalent of 3.4 F.T.E. (4 - .85 positions)(3.4 F.T.E. – Layoffs) Permanent
Paraeducator Instructional Assistant Classified Positions

3. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 F.T.E. (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Custodial and
Maintenance Technician Position

4. Eliminate the equivalent of .6 F.T.E (.6 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent ELOP Coordinator Position 
5. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.44125 F.T.E (1.44125 F.T.E. – Layoffs) ELOP

(Aftercare) Paraeducator Positions

9. D. Examination of layoffs for 25-26 school year

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

65



Recommendation

TBD

9. E. Legal Implications of Charter Non Renewal

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

66



10. Action Items

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

67



Recommendation

That the board approve the  District's 2nd Interim Report of Budget and Financial Progress for the 2024-
25 school year

Supporting Documents

 Board Cliff Notes

 2024-25 2nd Interim Board Packet

 2nd Interim AB 2756 Reporting Requirements

10. A. Consideration of District's 2nd Interim Report of Budget and Financial Progress for the 2024-25
school year

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

68



1st Interim Projected Projected
Actuals Budget Budget Budget
2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

ADA (Projected in out years) 211.19 204.00 213.00 211.36
COLA (Cost of Living Adj. on the Revenue Limit) 8.22% 1.07% 2.43% 3.52%

BEGINNING BALANCE $2,804,185 $1,699,162 $1,378,760 $1,183,044

LCFF Revenue $2,683,546 $2,535,160 $2,597,288 $2,722,422
Basic Aid Supplemental $2,171,863 $2,402,609 $2,390,386 $2,450,146
Special Ed In-Lieu Property Tax $27,010 $38,276 $39,233 $40,214
Federal Revenues $310,890 $304,338 $132,248 $134,293
State Revenues $480,268 $519,039 $522,110 $529,659
Local Revenues $499,312 $402,294 $378,700 $340,514

TOTAL REVENUE: $6,172,889 $6,201,716 $6,059,965 $6,217,247

EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries (years 2&3 include a 3% increase) $2,242,474 $2,420,137 $2,117,052 $2,001,868
Classified Salaries (years 2&3 include a 3% increase) $1,214,315 $1,357,844 $1,128,324 $1,148,209
Employee Benefits (years 2&3 include a 2.5% increase) $1,789,469 $1,873,727 $1,803,728 $1,810,788
STRS included in employee benefits (19.10%) $596,503 $648,746 $571,604 $540,504
PERS included in employee benefits  (27.05%, 27.4%, 27.5%) $281,664 $312,418 $259,515 $264,088
Retiree Health Benefits $15,000 $0 $0 $0

Books, Supplies & Equipment $436,923 $219,084 $123,661 $125,477
Services & Operating Expenses (including transportation) $1,219,844 $1,181,326 $1,047,916 $1,050,212
Capital Outlay and Land Improvements $146,308 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENSE: $7,049,332 $7,052,118 $6,220,681 $6,136,554

BALANCE BEFORE TRANSFERS: ($876,443) ($850,401) ($160,716) $80,694
 
Transfer In from Fund 17 (Security) and Fund 20 (Retiree) $270,000 $80,000 $15,000 $0
Transfer Into Salmon Creek Charter $1,368,085 $2,090,280 $2,030,000 $2,030,000
Transfer Out to Salmon Creek Charter ($1,360,000) ($2,055,000) ($2,000,000) ($2,000,000)
Transfer Out to SC Advisory Board (site council) ($8,085) ($35,280) ($30,000) ($30,000)
Transfers to Fund 13 and from Fund 40 ($498,580) $450,000 ($50,000) ($50,000)

BALANCE AFTER TRANSFERS: ($1,105,023) ($320,401) ($195,716) $30,694

GENERAL FUND ENDING BALANCE: $1,699,162 $1,378,760 $1,183,044 $1,213,738
Components of General Fund Ending Balance 
     Economic Uncertainties (5% of Exp.) Board Designated $352,467 $352,606 $311,034 $306,828
     Budget Stabilization $1,000,000 $850,000 $650,000 $650,000
     1) Revolving Fund $500 $500 $500 $500
     2) Restricted Ending Balance $164,168 $129,614 $81,400 $3,753
     3) Assigned Ending Balance $37,341 $5,069 $5,000 $5,000
     4) Unassigned Ending Balance $144,686 $40,971 $135,110 $247,656

HARMONY  UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2024-25 through 2026-27

2024-25 @ 2nd Interim
 

69



   

206.89 203.97 204.15  

$1,699,162 $1,699,162 $1,699,162

REVENUE 2024-25  Budget 2024-25 1st Interim 2024-25 2nd Interim Difference Comments

LCFF Revenue $2,542,297 $2,633,525 $2,535,160 ($7,137) Property tax true-up from 2023-24.

Basic Aid Charter Supplemental $2,335,000 $2,276,160 $2,402,609 $67,609 $2,332,084 BAS Budget; $70,525 CDE PY Recalculation

Sp. Ed. In Lieu Property Tax $25,250 $27,500 $38,276 $13,026 SELPA True-up 2/21/2025

Federal Revenues  $337,386 $313,849 $304,338 ($33,048) Recalc of Funds re change in ADA (Title I, II & IV)(SpEd Rev)(SRSA & CSI Grants)

State Revenues  $535,956 $535,703 $519,039 ($16,917) Recalculation of Funds re change in ADA (ELOP, Lottery, Block Grant, Prop 28)

Local Revenues $441,300 $489,753 $402,294 ($39,006) Decrease in SELPA funding. Other funds include Local Grants & Aftercare Revenue

Total Revenue $6,217,189 $6,276,490 $6,201,716 ($15,473) Increase (Decrease) in Revenue ($15,473 is a 0.2% change)

EXPENDITURES 2024-25  Budget 2024-25 1st Interim 2024-25 2nd Interim Difference Comments

Certificated Salaries $2,205,762 $2,347,834 $2,420,137 $214,375
Addition of TK Teacher, True-up of 4 salary placements (including 3 new-hires), plus 
the new addition of maternity leave teacher

Classified Salaries $1,215,223 $1,299,500 $1,357,844 $142,621
Increase due to salary true up of CBO, CBO Asst, Classroom Para new hire and 
additional hours, SpEd 1:1 new hire, and Aftercare Coordinator

Employee Benefits $1,792,036 $1,841,881 $1,873,727 $81,691 Benefits increased due to additional staff

Books and Supplies $120,800 $191,175 $219,084 $98,284
$55k increase in curriculum, textbooks and curriculum materials; $15k in Afterschool 
Sports Uniforms; $15k in iPads and Chromebooks; $15k new Freezer

Services and other Operating Expenditures $1,074,940 $1,194,686 $1,181,326 $106,386 $82k Increase due to Special Education, $15k in legal fees, $15k in Service Contracts

Capital Outlay $2,500 $0 $0 ($2,500) Land Improvement Budget Removed. All Land Improvements budgted in Bond Fund.

Total Expenditures $6,411,261 $6,875,076 $7,052,118 ($640,857) Increase (Decrease) in Expenses ($640,857 is a 10% increase in Exps)

Change

$450,000 $530,000 $530,000 $80,000

$255,929 ($68,586) ($320,401) ($576,330)

$320,563 $343,754 $352,606 $32,043 5% of General Fund Expenses

$152,182 $127,881 $129,614 ($22,568) Federal and State One-Time Funds and SpEd Funding

$500 $500 $500 $0

$1,000,000 $850,000 $850,000 ($150,000)

$481,846 $308,441 $46,041 ($435,805) Property Taxes, BAS, and funds without restrictions

Revolving Fund

Budget Stabilization

          Unassigned Ending Balance

Difference of transfer in/out of Gen Fund

ENDING BALANCE

Economic Uncertainties

Restricted Ending Balance

HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
2024-25 2nd Interim Comparison to Budget Projections

FUNDS 01 and 03 
Analysis of Changes

Totals for the following Balances:

BEGINNING BALANCE

ADA

Page 1 70



FUND: 14 Restricted Maintenance
 Previous 

Year 
 Current 

Year 
 Projection 

Year 
 Projection 

Year 

Object Codes 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
Revenue      
Transfer from General Fund 8091 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Transfer from Fund 40 8919
Fair Value Investment 8662 $1,794
Interest 8660 $505 $350 $250 $1,000
Total Revenue $27,299 $25,350 $25,250 $26,000

Expenditures
Equipment/Maintenance 4400 $30,946 $4,000 $5,000 $5,000
Repairs/Maintenance 5630 $36,352 $9,388 $5,000 $5,000
Professional Services - Prop Mngt/Contracted 5830 $7,795 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
Professional Services - Tree work/Poison Oak 5830 $2,650 $11,400 $10,000 $10,000

Total Expenditures $77,744 $25,788 $21,000 $21,000

Net Increase (Decrease) ($50,444) ($438) $4,250 $5,000
Fund Balance
Beginning Balance $50,883 $438 $0 $4,250
Audit Adjustment(s)
Net Ending Balance $438 $0 $4,250 $9,250

2023-24
Equipment is a new lawn mower.
Maintenance and repairs are to repair HVAC Units.

2024-25
Maintenance and repairs are towards HVAC Units.

71



FUND: 17 Special Reserve Fund for 
Instructional Programs

 Previous 
Year 

 Current 
Year 

 Projection 
Year 

 Projection 
Year 

Object Codes 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
Revenue      
Interest 8660 $11,299 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000
Fair Value Investment 8662 $13,249
Total Revenue $24,548 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000

Expenditures
Curriculum 4100 $0 $0 $0 $0
Hand Radios 4400 $175,000 $0 $0 $0
SpEd Settlement - 2 years only 5810 $80,000 $80,000
Total Expenditures $255,000 $80,000 $0 $0

Net Increase (Decrease) ($230,452) ($73,000) $7,000 $7,000
Fund Balance
Beginning Balance $480,479 $250,027 $177,027 $184,027
Audit Adjustment(s)
Net Ending Balance $250,027 $177,027 $184,027 $191,027

2023-24
New Hand Radios (walkie-talkies) for all Staff
Special Ed Settlement of $80,000.

2024-25
Special Ed Settlement of $80,000.

72



FUND: 20 Postemployment Benefits Fund
 Previous 

Year 
 Current 

Year 
 Projection 

Year 
 Projection 

Year 

Object Codes 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
Revenue     
Interest 8660 $7,876 $9,000 $9,500 $10,000
Fair Value Investment 8662 $5,228
Total Revenue $13,104 $9,000 $9,500 $10,000

Expenditures
2019-20 5-year Settlement 7619 $15,000 $0 $0
2025-26 Retiree Benefits for 1-year only 7619 $15,000

Repairs/Maintenance
Total Expenditures $15,000 $0 $15,000 $0

Net Increase (Decrease) ($1,896) $9,000 $9,500 $10,000
Fund Balance
Beginning Balance $250,659 $248,763 $257,763 $252,263
Audit Adjustment(s)
Net Ending Balance $248,763 $257,763 $252,263 $262,263

73



FUND: 40 Capital Outlay
 Previous 

Year 
 Current 

Year 
 Projection 

Year 
 Projection 

Year 

Object Codes 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
Revenue      
Lawsuit Settlement 8699 $500,000
HUSD Board Resolution to cover Bond Exp 8919 $550,672
Gold Ridge Grant 8699 $72,499
Fair Value Investment 8662 $5,060
Interest 8660 $9,263 $7,000
Total Revenue $637,494 $507,000 $0 $0

Expenditures
Repairs/Maintenance 5830 $16,582
Repairs/Maintenance (HVAC Maintenance) 5630 $0
Bond Expense: FRC 6200 $379,566
Bond Expense: Architects/Engineers/Inspectors 6210 $38,444
Transfer to General Fund 7619 $100,000 $500,000

Total Expenditures $534,592 $500,000 $0 $0

Net Increase (Decrease) $102,901 $7,000 $0 $0
Fund Balance
Beginning Balance ($5,356) $97,545 $104,545 $104,545
Audit Adjustment(s)
Net Ending Balance $97,545 $104,545 $104,545 $104,545

2024-25
Maintenance and repairs are towards HVAC Units.

74



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
Harmony USD’s 2024-25 2nd Interim was developed using the Governor’s January 2025-26 
Budget, version 25.2b of the LCFF Calculator, the 2025-26 Dartboard, along with Federal and 
State Funds determined by the California Department of Education (CDE). Harmony’s 2024-25 
2nd Interim was developed using the Sonoma County Property Tax Estimates for 2024-25, for an 
increase of 1.7%, which is less than the 20-year property tax average of 4.8%. Real Estate 
transactions and property assessments were above average in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024. 
With the County Assessor’s Office 18-24 months behind in property tax assessments, assuming a 
1.7% increase may be conservative for the 2024-25 school year. Should property taxes come in 
at the 20-year average; Harmony USD will receive an additional $99,281 in property taxes. 
 
The Governor’s January 2025-26 Budget has been updated to calculate the 2024-25 COLA of 
1.07%, 2025-26 COLA at 2.43% and the 2026-27 COLA at 3.52%.  
 
Sonoma County Office of Education’s 2022-23 Statistical Report concisely explains the Local 
Control Funding Formula, and how it applies to Harmony Union School District. Beginning with 
the 2013-14 school year, school districts and charter schools were funded under the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). LCFF removed most spending restrictions with the 
elimination of most state categorical programs and established grade-specific base rate targets, 
which are adjusted for cost of living annually. In addition, districts and charter schools receive 
supplemental and concentration funding for English learner, low-income and foster youth 
students. The count of English learner, low-income and foster youth as compared to the entire 
school population generates an Unduplicated Pupil Count Percentage. Now, district and charter 
schools serving the same number of students in the same grade spans with the same 
characteristics receive the same amount of funding. At the 2024-25 2nd Interim, the District’s 
unduplicated count is 18 and the Supplemental/Concentration Grant percentage for the District is 
27.69%. The District does not qualify for concentration grant funding, as the unduplicated count 
percentage would have to exceed 55%. 
 
The LCFF model also determines funding using Average Daily Attendance or ADA. ADA is 
generated by pupils in attendance and engaged in educational activities under the immediate 
supervision of an employee who possesses a valid credential. ADA funding means that all 
funding school districts and charter schools receive is based on how often students attend school, 
not on how many students are enrolled in school. ADA at 90% means the school districts and 
charter schools are funded at 90% of their enrollment numbers. At 2024-25 2nd Interim Budget, 
Harmony Elementary is projecting to receive 92.4% of their allotted funding (excluding the 7 TK 
students that are withheld in the enrollment count); Salmon Creek Charter is projected to receive 
92.45% of allotted funding.  
 
The 2024-25 2nd Interim includes one-time Comprehensive Support and Improvement funds to 
assist our District students improve their ADA. CSI funds cover Building capacity, collaborating 
with educational partners, conducting needs assessments and root cause analysis, selecting and 
implementing evidence-based interventions, strategies, and activities, using data and outcomes to 
monitor and evaluate improvement efforts, reviewing, identifying and  
 

75



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
addressing, through implementation of the CSI plan. The District is allocating funds to cover 
certificated and classified salaries connected to allowable areas. CSI Funds are not expected to 
continue in the 2025-26 school year. 
 
The 2024-25 2nd Interim also includes funding to expand our Transition Kindergarten program. 
TK students who turn 5 by June 2, 2025, are included in the ADA calculations. The 2025-26 
Budget includes TK students who turn 5 by September 1, 2026, in the ADA calculation, which 
means every student enrolled I TK will count towards ADA. This is why ADA in TK has 
increased each year. Harmony USD expects the TK enrollment to hover around 20 in future 
years. 
 
Special Ed student enrollment has increased raising the cost of special education services for the 
District. The revenue for these students does increase, but the contribution from the General 
Fund for this program stays significant at $868,500 for 2024-25, $770,000 for 2025-26 and 
$800,000 for 2026-27. 
 
Property taxes per ADA x Charter ADA is reflected below: 
 
             2024-25                       2025-26                       2026-27 
Local Property Taxes        $3,217,857                    $3,300,000                  $3,382,500 
 
District LCFF  ADA   60.06   69.97   66.30 
            $356,024           $419,514        $423,324  
 
S.C. Charter LCFF ADA   145.87   140.43   144.15 
            $843,483             $841,968         $872,054 
 
Pathways Charter ADA    336.91   340   345 
            $2,018,350                $2,038,518                    $2,087,122 
 
 
Deferred Maintenance Program Fund 14: With the implementation of LCFF, the annual State’s 
deferred maintenance apportionment was eliminated. The state required contribution to the 
Deferred Maintenance Program Fund 14 from the General Fund is $25,000 for 2024-25, 2025-26 
and 2026-27.        
 
Measure C, a school improvement obligation (G.O.) bond measure ballot to modernize and 
renovate our campus was passed on the June 5, 2018.  The Bond is in the amount of $9.6 million. 
The third and final phase of the 2018 Bond is now complete. The Notice of Completion was filed 
with Sonoma County on October 16, 2023. The Certification of Compliance letter to Harmony 
Elementary School from the Department of General Services, Division of the State Architect, 
DSA File 49-47, was filed on December 11, 2023. The 2018 Bond went considerably over 

76



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

budget, due to inadequate architectural plans. The District has contracted with legal counsel to 
seek damages. All funds awarded will reimburse the General Fund. 

 
Proposition 51 effects the required minimum contribution a District must deposit to the 
Restricted Routine Repair and Maintenance account from their General Fund.  The rate is 3% of 
the total General Fund expenditures within the General Fund for ongoing and major 
maintenance.  Currently the District is not required to meet that requirement due to the fact that 
District’s with ADA under 300 are exempt.   
 
Projections for 2024-25 through 2026-27 reflect a 3% increase in salaries plus step in column 
increases. The Administrative configuration for 2024-25 will be a full time 
Superintendent/Principal, a full time Assistant Principal, a full time Chief Business Official, a 
full time Assistant CBO and a full time Office Manager. 2025-26 reflects 2.43 FTE certificated 
position layoffs; .23 FTE confidential position layoffs; and 4.0 FTE classified position layoffs. 
 
In summary: 
 
With great uncertainty of the California State Budget, it is highly recommended that the District 
monitor the budget closely. With an ending balance of $1,378,759.40, we are well within the 
State's "Criteria and Standards" which state that our District should have an ending balance for 
Economic Uncertainties of 5%, $352,606 respectively.  With the District assigning funds in a 
Budget Stabilization account in the amount of $850,000, and restricted funds in the amount of 
$129,614, the district’s unassigned ending balance at 2nd Interim is $46,040.   
 
A fluctuation in revenue is reflected based on the changes in ADA and COLA (see below): 

 
 *LCFF Revenue EPA Revenue State Aid Revenue 
2024-25 $2,535,160 $254,573 $1,106,080 
2025-26 $2,597,288 $260,661 $1,100,145 
2026-27 $2,722,422 $307,816 $1,144,228 

*EPA and State Aid Revenues are included within the LCFF Revenue.     
 
ADA used for LCFF calculations are:  

 
@Budget Development 
2024-25    206.89 
2025-26    216.4 
2026-27    218.3 
 

@2nd Interim 
2024-25    204.2 
2025-26    207 
2026-27    206.71

2025-26 and 2026-27 estimated health and welfare benefit increases 5% for 2025-26 and 2.5% 
for 2026-27 as well as increases in STRS & PERS costs per the most recent Dartboard.   
 
 

77



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

The Adopted 2024-25 reflects a positive certification for Harmony Union School District.  It will 
be able to meet its financial obligations for the 2024-25 through 2026-27 fiscal years. 
 
At this time, it is expected that all other funds (Cafeteria, Deferred Maintenance, Capital 
Facilities, Bond, Special Reserves and Retiree Benefits) will have a positive ending balance for 
the 2024-25 school year. Projected Ending Balance spreadsheet is attached.  
 
The LCFF Calculator Universal Assumptions for Harmony Union Elementary and Salmon Creek 
Charter used for the 2024-25 2nd Interim is also included. 
 

78



 2024-25 2nd Interim
General Fund Assumptions

REVENUE
The 2024-25 2nd Interim is based on LCFF funding for 2024-25 through 2026-27

The 2nd Interim includes Education Protection Act funding for all three years:

2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
Harmony USD - FUND 01 $70,899 $89,750 $103,561

Salmon Creek Charter - FUND 03 $183,674 $170,911 $204,255

TOTAL EPA @ 2nd Interim $254,573 $260,661 $307,816

ENROLLMENT AND UNDUPLICATED COUNTS
               for Harmony Union School District  TK - 1 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Enrollment 65 76 72
Unduplicated Counts 18 18 16

Pupil Percentage 0.2769 0.2368 0.2222
               for Salmon Creek Charter  2 - 8 

Enrollment 162 151 155
Unduplicated Counts 40 39 40

Pupil Percentage 0.2469 0.2583 0.2581
 

ADA Calculation (HUSD 92%; SCC 93%:)
2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

District TK - 1 60.06 69.97 66.3
Charter 2 - 8 145.87 140.43 144.15

205.93 210.40 210.45

The District configuration for 2024-25 is two classrooms per Transitional Kindergarten; one classroom for Kindergarten and one classroom for 2nd Grade.
16 of the 23 students in TK will turn 5 by June 2, 2024, and are included in the District's ADA Calculation. 
All TK students will be included in ADA in SY 2025-26, naturally increasing ADA.
The Charter School configuration for 2024-25 is one (1) classroom per grades 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th & 8th.
Enrollment for the District is actually 69, less the non-ADA 7 TK students, making ADA down to 62.0
Enrollment for the Charter School, grades 2nd through 8th, is 152. 

Pathways Charter School ADA YEAR 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
2nd Interim 336.91 340.00 345.00

 
COLA  
COLA and BRL based on projections from School Services of California and SCOE
2024-25 1.07%
2025-26 2.43%
2026-27 3.52%

STRS and PERS
STRS and PERS rates were updated to reflect the increased rates.
Rates for 2024-25 are STRS 19.10% and PERS 27.05%
Rates for 2025-26 are STRS 19.10% and PERS 27.4%
Rates for 2026-27 are STRS 19.10% and PERS 27.5%

1  

79



 2024-25 2nd Interim
General Fund Assumptions

TRANSPORTATION    
In the past, transportation revenue was going straight to the JPA, West County Transportation, however now the dollars are coming directly to the District via state aid.
In 2015-16, West County Transportation provided the State with amounts they received in 2012-13 for each member District which became the basis for funding. 
For the District, this amount is considered as a pass-through since the JPA will charge the District the same amount that the District receives in revenue.  
The $115,000 cost is reflected as a "Services and Operating" expense and the revenue is reflected in the LCFF calculator.  
Starting in 2022-23, districts are awarded 60% of the prior year's cost. So for 2024-25, HUSD is projected to receive approximately $40,400. Revenue is reflected.
The District's transportation costs at 2nd Interim for 2024-25 is estimated at $263,910 for Home to School transportation and $40,077 for Special Education pupil transportation.
1.)  Bond for facilities expansion:  The JPA issued a bond to pay for Phase III of the facilities expansion in order to provide parking for buses.
The increased cost to HUSD for the bond is $10,000.  This may fluctuate incrementally depending on the sale price of the bonds.
2.)  Additional Membership in the JPA:  The JPA voted to include the largest school district in Sonoma County as a member.  This expansion doubled the JPA expenses.  
The new district was brought in using a "phase-in" rate which will increase their use over time.  As such, the other member districts will see a significant increase in expenses.  

NEGOTIATIONS   
The District and Bargaining Units have agreed to a 3-year salary agreement of 3% per year. The 3% increase has been included in each school year budget. 

HEALTH BENEFITS
For 2024-25, the CAP, which is based on the Kaiser Single High rate plus Dental, is set at $1,157 per month.
2024-25 Kaiser rates increased an average of 8.8% from 2023-24; Blue Shield increased 5.4% from 2023-24. The out years include a 5% increase for 2025-26 and 2.5% for 2026-27.
Doubles are covered at 95% of the Kaiser Double MID option, plus dental and families are covered at 90% of the Kaiser Family MID option, plus dental. 
All employees have the option to opt for cash-in-lieu by selecting a lower costing health plan (if they are double covered).
All employees also have the option to opt for their out-of-pocket portion of health benefits to be deducted at pretax.

SALARY PROJECTIONS
There are 2.43 FTE tentative certificated layoffs for the 2025-26 school year and .23 FTE confidential position layoffs. 
Currently there is one (1) temporary certificated employee in the 2024-25 budget. There are 4.0 FTE tentative classified layoffs for the 2025-26 school year. 

RETIREES 
The District will continue to cover Health and Welfare Benefits for the Certificated Retirees for 5 years, or until they reach the age of 65, whichever faster.

TRANSFERS
Transfers in are projected at $2,665,280 for the 2024-25 school year, $2,045,000 for the 2025-26 school year and $2,030,000 for the 2026-27 school year. 
The District transfers a cap of $40,000 to the School Advisory Site Council Board to spend on student activity grants that fall under the goals of the LCAP.  
The transfer from the District to the Cafeteria is budgeted for $50,000 to cover Cafeteria salaries and expenditures to maintain the program.
The District transferred $551,285 in 2022-23 and $448,580 in 2023-24 from the General Fund to Fund 40 to cover construction costs connected to the 2018 Bond. 
The District is in contract with legal counsel to seek reimbursement of funds.

ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES   
The 5% required level for Economic Uncertainties reserves is reflected in the 2nd Interim for 2024-25 through 2026-27. The State establishes the minimum recommended 
reserve based on the district's average daily attendance (ADA) . Per EC Section 42127, districts are required to hold a public hearing for the 2024-25 2nd Interim 
to provide public review and discussion of the reserve. SB 858, the education budget trailer bill, includes reserve caps or limits if certain State revenue conditions are met.  
A statement of reasons that substantiate the need for the combined assigned and unassigned ending fund balances that are in excess of the minimum recommended 
reserve for economic uncertainties for each fiscal year identified in the 2nd Interim must be provided.   

BUDGET STABILIZATION    
The HUSD Board recognizes that the Budget Stabilization is a one-lump sum of money and therefore 
cannot be connected to any ongoing expenses. Budget Stabilization now holds $850,000.

Administration salaries reflect the current configuration of Superintendent/Principal, Assistant Principal, Chief Business Official, Office Manager and Asst CBO.  

2  

80



Prop taxes Basic Aid Supplemental

29-30 $3,670,771 102.50% 29-30 $2,638,539 102.50%
28-29 $3,581,240 102.50% 28-29 $2,574,184 102.50%
27-28 $3,493,892 102.50% 27-28 $2,511,399 102.50%
26-27 $3,408,675 102.50% 26-27 $2,450,146 102.50%
25-26 $3,325,537 102.50% 25-26 $2,390,386 102.50%
24-25 $3,244,426 102.50% 24-25 $2,332,084 104.00%
23-24 $3,165,294 105.83% Actual 23-24 $2,242,388 105.89% Actual
22-23 $2,990,955 106.59% Actual 22-23 $2,117,654 109.27% Actual
21-22 $2,805,980 105.65% Actual 21-22 $1,938,063 102.75% Actual
20-21 $2,655,987 104.20% Actual 20-21 $1,886,259 104.03% Actual
19-20 $2,548,851 106.08% Actual 19-20 $1,813,215 107.81% Actual
18-19 $2,402,756 106.42% Actual 18-19 $1,681,790 108.40% Actual
17-18 $2,257,851 104.03% Actual 17-18 $1,551,430 100.83% Actual
16-17 $2,170,394 105.80% Actual 16-17 $1,538,697 108.36% Actual
15-16 $2,051,480 108.59% Actual 15-16 $1,420,000 99.79% Actual
14-15 $1,889,222 106.56% Actual 14-15 $1,422,935 114.55% Actual
13-14 $1,772,936 102.45% Actual 13-14 $1,242,220 123.86% Actual
12-13 $1,730,590 102.17% Actual 12-13 $1,002,896 96.76% Actual
11-12 $1,693,899 101.43% Actual 11-12 $1,036,489 87.89% Actual
10-11 $1,670,043 95.90% Actual 10-11 $1,179,325 115.59% Actual
09-10 $1,741,424 101.39% Actual 09-10 $1,020,279 91.46% Actual
08-09 $1,717,508 105.21% Actual 08-09 $1,115,566 Actual
07-08 $1,632,489 108.98% Actual 07-08
06-07 $1,497,995 109.08% Actual 06-07
05-06 $1,373,247 Actual 05-06

Conservative estimate 2.5% 102.50%
Average since 2005-06 104.80% Average since 2008-09 105.15%

last 5 year average 105.67% last 5 year average 105.95%
last 10 year average 105.97% last 10 year average 106.17%
last 15 year average 104.27% last 15 year average 105.15%

25-26 thru 29-30 
based on 

conservative 
estimate

24-25 thru 29-30 
based on 

conservative 
estimate

81



MULTI-YEAR BUDGETS: ACTUAL AND PROJECTED

Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals 1st Interim Budget Budget
2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Projected Budgeted ADA 236.16 214.7 214.7 185.47 173.05 211.19 204 213 211.36
COLA  (Cost of Living Adj. on the Revenue Limit) 3.00% 3.24% 2.31% 1.70% 6.56% 8.22% 1.07% 2.43% 3.49%
Funded/Planning COLA 3.00% 3.24% 0.00% 5.07% 6.70% 8.22% 1.07% 2.43% 3.49%

BEGINNING BALANCE $3,533,559 $3,834,393 $3,627,815 $3,647,247 $3,591,626 $2,804,185 $1,699,162 $1,378,760 $1,183,042
REVENUE

   LCFF Revenue $2,298,483 $2,118,374 $2,171,407 $2,002,103 $2,235,094 $2,683,546 $2,535,160 $2,597,288 $2,722,422
   Basic Aid Supplemental $1,653,618 $1,813,215 $1,886,260 $1,938,063 $2,117,654 $2,171,863 $2,402,609 $2,390,386 $2,450,146
   Special Ed In-Lieu Property Tax $24,366 $34,485 $34,121 $22,350 $25,899 $27,010 $38,276 $39,233 $40,214
   Federal Revenues $104,179 $110,463 $275,597 $391,505 $102,851 $310,890 $304,338 $132,248 $134,293
   State Revenues $413,864 $241,897 $418,511 $626,086 $1,031,343 $480,268 $519,039 $522,110 $529,659
   Local Revenues $221,768 $292,516 $224,633 $240,026 $232,038 $499,312 $402,294 $378,700 $340,514

   TOTAL REVENUE: $4,716,278 $4,610,950 $5,010,529 $5,220,133 $5,744,879 $6,172,889 $6,201,716 $6,059,965 $6,217,247

EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries $1,488,487 $1,735,646 $1,635,794 $1,752,385 $1,982,919 $2,242,474 $2,420,137 $2,117,052 $2,001,868
Classified Salaries $638,323 $683,848 $807,308 $1,011,288 $1,192,725 $1,214,315 $1,357,844 $1,128,324 $1,148,209
Employee Benefits (2% increase 2021-22) $1,198,022 $1,191,387 $1,256,250 $1,415,550 $1,528,512 $1,789,469 $1,873,727 $1,803,728 $1,810,788
STRS included in employee benefits $469,094 $491,212 $452,757 $504,397 $543,569 $596,503 $648,746 $571,604 $540,504
PERS included in employee benefits $143,980 $125,449 $142,102 $195,594 $223,472 $281,664 $312,418 $259,515 $264,088
Retiree Health Benefits $55,824 $45,405 $35,170 $27,130 $15,000 $15,000 $0 $0 $0
Books, Supplies & Equipment $129,591 $159,394 $329,679 $211,593 $219,800 $436,923 $219,084 $123,661 $125,477
Services and other Operating Expenses (including 
transportation)

$955,466 $990,764 $778,932 $854,704 $896,990 $1,219,844 $1,181,326 $1,047,916 $1,050,212

Capital Outlay and Land Improvements $1,380 $9,613 $102,359 $8,080 $62,924 $146,308 $0 $0 $0

   TOTAL EXPENSE: $4,411,267 $4,770,652 $4,910,322 $5,253,600 $5,883,870 $7,049,332 $7,052,119 $6,220,682 $6,136,555

EXCESS (DEFICIT) BEFORE TRANSFERS: $305,010 ($159,701) $100,207 ($33,467) ($138,991) ($876,443) ($850,402) ($160,717) $80,693
 

Transfer In from Retiree Benefits Fund $55,824 $45,405 $35,170 $27,130 $15,000 $15,000 $0 $15,000 $0
Transfers In from Fund 17 $0 $34,718 $20,000 $20,000 $0 $255,000 $80,000 $0
Transfer In to Salmon Creek Charter (from Fund 01) $740,000 $2,340,000 $2,103,105 $1,717,549 $1,753,245 $1,368,085 $2,090,280 $2,030,000 $2,030,000
Transfer Out to Salmon Creek Charter ($700,000) ($2,300,000) ($2,148,510) ($1,700,000) ($1,730,000) ($1,360,000) ($2,055,000) ($2,000,000) ($2,000,000)
Transfer Out to SC Advisory Board (site council) ($40,000) ($40,000) $0 ($17,549) ($22,631) ($8,085) ($35,280) ($30,000) ($30,000)
Transfer Out to Cafeteria  ($60,000) ($127,000) ($90,540) ($69,284) ($74,387) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000) ($50,000)
Transfer out to Fund 40 ($551,285) ($448,580) $500,000

EXCESS (DEFICIT) AFTER TRANSFERS: $300,834 ($206,578) $19,432 ($55,621) ($749,049) ($1,105,023) ($320,402) ($195,717) $30,693

ENDING BALANCE: $3,834,393 $3,627,815 $3,647,247 $3,591,626 $2,804,185 $1,699,162 $1,378,760 $1,183,042 $1,213,735
Components of Above Ending Balance 
Economic Uncertainties Board Designated 5% $220,563 $238,533 $245,516 $262,680 $294,193 $352,467 $352,606 $311,034 $306,828
Budget Stabilization $2,400,000 $2,400,000 $2,400,000 $2,400,000 $1,850,000 $1,000,000 $850,000 $650,000 $650,000
1)  Revolving Fund $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500
2)  Restricted Ending Balance $200,284 $203,682 $191,576 $280,685 $277,830 $164,168 $129,614 $81,400 $3,753
3)  Assigned Ending Balance (Lottery & EPA) $271,109 $224,996 $313,446 $54,043 $9,350 $37,341 $5,069 $5,000 $5,000
4)  Unassigned Ending Balance $741,937 $560,105 $496,209 $593,718 $410,704 $144,687 $40,971 $135,109 $247,654

2024-25 2nd Interim Budget

82



REVENUE

LCFF Revenue
HUSD
K - 2 District Property Tax $3,217,857 v25.2b LCFF CALC

EPA (Education Protection Account) $70,899 v25.2b LCFF CALC

State Aid $523,123 v25.2b LCFF CALC

Basic Aid Charter Supplemental $2,332,084 revised re 2023-24 Revise

Basic Aid Charter Supplemental PY ADJ $70,525 CDE PY Recomputations

In-Lieu of Property Tax ($2,861,833) v25.2b LCFF CALC

Transfer out to FD 14 - Deferred Maint ($25,000)
Sp. Ed. In Lieu Property Tax $38,276 SELPA 2/21/25

Salmon Creek
S. C. Charter in Lieu Property Taxes $843,483 v25.2b LCFF CALC

EPA (Education Protection Account) $183,674 v25.2b LCFF CALC

State Aid $582,957 v25.2b LCFF CALC

$2,535,160
Federal Revenues  
Title I  RS3010 $57,631 2025-26 DartBoard

Title II RS4035 $7,592 2025-26 DartBoard

Title IV RS4127 $10,000 2025-26 DartBoard

Mental Health Federal REV $2,500
Sp. Ed. Federal Revenues RS3310 $29,468 SELPA 2/21/25

Comprehensive Support and Improvement Plan (CSI Grant) $174,382
REAP Grant (SRSA) RS5810 $22,765

$304,338

State Revenues  
ELOP - RS2600 $103,249 P1 App 2/2025

Lottery RS1100 - Dartboard $38,993 ADA*191

Lottery Prop 20 RS6300 - May 2023 Dartboard $16,740 ADA*82

Mandated Block Grant HUSD - May 2023 Dartboard $2,228 Paid 12/4/2024

Mandated Block Grant SCC - May 2023 Dartboard $2,926 Paid 12/4/2024

CDE Preschool Grant REV $21,557 P1 App 2/2025

CDE Mental Health REV $17,338 P1 App 2/2025

Transportation REV $40,400 60% 2023-24 Exp

CSESAP Program REV (Est) $56,117

STRS - On-Behalf RS7690 $189,762 per SCOE

Proposition 28 - Arts and Music Funding Guarantee (HUSD) $7,385 CDE Report 1/10/25

Proposition 28 - Arts and Music Funding Guarantee (SCC) $22,344 CDE Report 1/10/25

$519,039

Local Revenues
Aftercare Revenue $55,000
ARK Donation RS0242 $50,000
Local Grants $12,500
Rent/Misc $32,500
RESIG Safety Credit RS9090 $1,971
RESIG W/C Equity $9,093
State Special Education (AB602 REV) $161,230 SELPA 2/21/25

Analy Pass Thru re SpEd $35,000
Interest Income $45,000

$402,294

TOTAL REVENUE $6,201,716

HARMONY  UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2024-25 through 2026-27

83



EXPENDITURES

Classroom Teachers, Intervention, Counselor, Music and Drama $1,852,966
Substitutes $70,000
Teacher Stipends, Class Overages, Over contracted hours $68,146
ELOP Salaries $31,800

$2,022,912
Administrative/Confidential Salaries
Superintendent, Vice Principal & School Psychologist (.73) $397,225
Chief Business Official, Asst. CBO, Administrative Assistant $307,530

$704,755
Classified Salaries (budget includes step and column and 3% increase each year)

Classified Salaries Additional Pay / Stipends $12,500
CSESAP Match (Est) $56,117
Custodial and Maintenance $144,401
Head of and Assistant to Farm and Garden $110,925
Library and Media Services Technician $40,194
Paraeducators and Instructional Assistants (7 Para, 1IAs, 1 Bilingual) $394,798
CSI/RINT/Homework Club Paraeducators $62,388
Special Education (3 - 1:1s & RSP) $150,099
ELOP/Afterschool Coordinator, Paras and Summer Boost $78,892

$1,050,314

Employee Benefits
Payroll costs (Medicare, FICA, Workers Comp., Unemp Ins.) $157,720
CERT STRS (19.1%) $383,112
ADMIN STRS (19.1%) $75,870
PERS (27.05%, 27.4%, 27.5%) $312,418
STRS - On-Behalf (RS 7690) $189,762

Health Benefits (Medical, Dental, Vision, Cash in Lieu) $754,845
$1,873,727

Books/Materials/Supplies
Curriculum/Curriculum Materials $19,146
Textbooks $34,226
Books other than textbooks (Library included here) $4,700
Electronic Curriculum (Lexia/TCI/LCAP/TPT) $1,635
Drama Materials, Supplies, Set $1,750
Garden Maintenance Supplies & custodial maintenance of garden (8200) $4,500
Site Council (Grants, Assemblies, Authors, Library, Positive Behavior Incentives) $31,000
Teacher Classroom Allocations (RS6300) $12,500
Special Education Classroom Materials (RS6500) $5,075
Front Office, Bsn Office and Staff Room Supplies $7,350
Basic Order (Paper, etc.) $2,735
Custodial Supplies/Fuel $18,835
First Aid Supplies (RS9090 Obj616) $3,530
Food for Events/Meetings $10,500
Athletics - new uniforms $15,000
Equipment - technology (iPads, Chromebooks, etc) $22,000
Equipment - KITFunds $15,115
Furniture (Front Office/Staff Room/Desks) $3,737
Music (instrument replacements/repair)(Site Council) $1,750
ELOP Food Purchases $4,000

$219,084
 
Travel/Workshops/Conferences
Board & Superintendent Workshops $1,300
School Admin Conference $600
Mileage and Reimbursement $500
Professional Development - Certificated $3,500
Professional Development - Parent Participation $1,250
School Sponsored Field Trips $24,030

$31,180

Certificated Salaries (budget includes step and column and 3% increase each year)

84



Dues/Memberships
Electronic School Board Membership $6,650
School Admin Memberships $4,700
Superintendent Memberships $2,750
Instructional Subscriptions $2,975

$17,075

Insurance
Food Service $750
Property and Liability Insurance Premium - HUSD $53,329
Property and Liability Insurance Premium - OCC $4,143
Pupil Insurance $2,200

$60,422

Utilities
Waste Disposal $6,250
Building Security/Fire Alarm Monitoring - Major Alarm $550
Water $1,050
Propane $6,274
Electric $48,000

$62,124

Leases/Rentals
Other Equipment - rentals $9,375
Routine Repair and Maintenance (including well) $20,812
Repairs - Technology/music instruments $1,520

$31,707

Services and Operations
Athletics/Coaching/Referee Fees $8,950
Audit $10,750
Communication Services - TT $15,000
Copier Lease (term date 9/2027) $27,182
Data Processing $1,250
Drama - Choreographer $1,000
Employment Advertising (Obj5865) and all other Advertising (Obj5825) $1,350
Fees $1,500
Fingerprinting Costs $4,000
Frontline $4,432
Jody Tuck - CALPADS Consultant $5,000
Legal Retainer $32,750
Library Software Fees (Site Council Cost) $1,500
Campus Maintenance/Living Roofs $11,350
North Coast Teacher Induction Service Fee $1,750
OPEB Actuarial - (2024-25 is the roll-over) $1,305
Other Services, Admin $2,500  
Other Services, Operations $4,851
Sex Education Class (West County Health) - funding covered by Site Council $1,500
Shredding Costs $1,500
Aeries - Student Information System $9,000
Youth Survey for LCAP $750
Water/Well Testing $8,000
Website $4,528

$161,698

Communications
Telephone (AT&T/PYS Communications) $10,169
Cellular hot spots (10)(Verizon) $2,325
SCOE - School Connect Fees $2,650
Postage $1,135

$16,279

85



Repairs/Land Improvements
Facility/Land Improvements $0

$0

Transportation Costs
Home to school transportation (revenue added in LCFF Calc) $115,000
SPED Bus Service Cost $40,077
Home to school transportation (Adjusted excess (NOT included in LCFF Calc)) $148,910

$303,987
Special Education - estimated costs and students
Consortium SDC - 2 students (Ages out 2032 and 2034) $126,454
Consortium SDC - 1 preschool student $26,650
Consortium - Speech $35,899
Consortium - APE $18,004
Consortium - Nurse $37,626
Consortium - Admin/Indirect costs $18,930
Consortium - OT $10,261
SCOE - SDC Fee for Service (no students this year) $0
Dragonfly OT $22,500
Non Public School - 4 students $118,900
Special Education Settlement - 1 student (Ages out 2025) $80,700
SpEd Conferences $380
SpEd Software $550
     $496,854

1st Interim Consortium 
Revised Budget

86



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 
 

Certification

87



88



89



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 
 

Narrative 
 
 
 

90



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
Harmony USD’s 2024-25 2nd Interim was developed using the Governor’s January 2025-26 
Budget, version 25.2b of the LCFF Calculator, the 2025-26 Dartboard, along with Federal and 
State Funds determined by the California Department of Education (CDE). Harmony’s 2024-25 
2nd Interim was developed using the Sonoma County Property Tax Estimates for 2024-25, for an 
increase of 1.7%, which is less than the 20-year property tax average of 4.8%. Real Estate 
transactions and property assessments were above average in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024. 
With the County Assessor’s Office 18-24 months behind in property tax assessments, assuming a 
1.7% increase may be conservative for the 2024-25 school year. Should property taxes come in 
at the 20-year average; Harmony USD will receive an additional $99,281 in property taxes. 
 
The Governor’s January 2025-26 Budget has been updated to calculate the 2024-25 COLA of 
1.07%, 2025-26 COLA at 2.43% and the 2026-27 COLA at 3.52%.  
 
Sonoma County Office of Education’s 2022-23 Statistical Report concisely explains the Local 
Control Funding Formula, and how it applies to Harmony Union School District. Beginning with 
the 2013-14 school year, school districts and charter schools were funded under the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF). LCFF removed most spending restrictions with the 
elimination of most state categorical programs and established grade-specific base rate targets, 
which are adjusted for cost of living annually. In addition, districts and charter schools receive 
supplemental and concentration funding for English learner, low-income and foster youth 
students. The count of English learner, low-income and foster youth as compared to the entire 
school population generates an Unduplicated Pupil Count Percentage. Now, district and charter 
schools serving the same number of students in the same grade spans with the same 
characteristics receive the same amount of funding. At the 2024-25 2nd Interim, the District’s 
unduplicated count is 18 and the Supplemental/Concentration Grant percentage for the District is 
27.69%. The District does not qualify for concentration grant funding, as the unduplicated count 
percentage would have to exceed 55%. 
 
The LCFF model also determines funding using Average Daily Attendance or ADA. ADA is 
generated by pupils in attendance and engaged in educational activities under the immediate 
supervision of an employee who possesses a valid credential. ADA funding means that all 
funding school districts and charter schools receive is based on how often students attend school, 
not on how many students are enrolled in school. ADA at 90% means the school districts and 
charter schools are funded at 90% of their enrollment numbers. At 2024-25 2nd Interim Budget, 
Harmony Elementary is projecting to receive 92.4% of their allotted funding (excluding the 7 TK 
students that are withheld in the enrollment count); Salmon Creek Charter is projected to receive 
92.45% of allotted funding.  
 
The 2024-25 2nd Interim includes one-time Comprehensive Support and Improvement funds to 
assist our District students improve their ADA. CSI funds cover Building capacity, collaborating 
with educational partners, conducting needs assessments and root cause analysis, selecting and 
implementing evidence-based interventions, strategies, and activities, using data and outcomes to 
monitor and evaluate improvement efforts, reviewing, identifying and  
 

91



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
addressing, through implementation of the CSI plan. The District is allocating funds to cover 
certificated and classified salaries connected to allowable areas. CSI Funds are not expected to 
continue in the 2025-26 school year. 
 
The 2024-25 2nd Interim also includes funding to expand our Transition Kindergarten program. 
TK students who turn 5 by June 2, 2025, are included in the ADA calculations. The 2025-26 
Budget includes TK students who turn 5 by September 1, 2026, in the ADA calculation, which 
means every student enrolled I TK will count towards ADA. This is why ADA in TK has 
increased each year. Harmony USD expects the TK enrollment to hover around 20 in future 
years. 
 
Special Ed student enrollment has increased raising the cost of special education services for the 
District. The revenue for these students does increase, but the contribution from the General 
Fund for this program stays significant at $868,500 for 2024-25, $770,000 for 2025-26 and 
$800,000 for 2026-27. 
 
Property taxes per ADA x Charter ADA is reflected below: 
 
             2024-25                       2025-26                       2026-27 
Local Property Taxes        $3,217,857                    $3,300,000                  $3,382,500 
 
District LCFF  ADA   60.06   69.97   66.30 
            $356,024           $419,514        $423,324  
 
S.C. Charter LCFF ADA   145.87   140.43   144.15 
            $843,483             $841,968         $872,054 
 
Pathways Charter ADA    336.91   340   345 
            $2,018,350                $2,038,518                    $2,087,122 
 
 
Deferred Maintenance Program Fund 14: With the implementation of LCFF, the annual State’s 
deferred maintenance apportionment was eliminated. The state required contribution to the 
Deferred Maintenance Program Fund 14 from the General Fund is $25,000 for 2024-25, 2025-26 
and 2026-27.        
 
Measure C, a school improvement obligation (G.O.) bond measure ballot to modernize and 
renovate our campus was passed on the June 5, 2018.  The Bond is in the amount of $9.6 million. 
The third and final phase of the 2018 Bond is now complete. The Notice of Completion was filed 
with Sonoma County on October 16, 2023. The Certification of Compliance letter to Harmony 
Elementary School from the Department of General Services, Division of the State Architect, 
DSA File 49-47, was filed on December 11, 2023. The 2018 Bond went considerably over 

92



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

budget, due to inadequate architectural plans. The District has contracted with legal counsel to 
seek damages. All funds awarded will reimburse the General Fund. 

 
Proposition 51 effects the required minimum contribution a District must deposit to the 
Restricted Routine Repair and Maintenance account from their General Fund.  The rate is 3% of 
the total General Fund expenditures within the General Fund for ongoing and major 
maintenance.  Currently the District is not required to meet that requirement due to the fact that 
District’s with ADA under 300 are exempt.   
 
Projections for 2024-25 through 2026-27 reflect a 3% increase in salaries plus step in column 
increases. The Administrative configuration for 2024-25 will be a full time 
Superintendent/Principal, a full time Assistant Principal, a full time Chief Business Official, a 
full time Assistant CBO and a full time Office Manager. 2025-26 reflects 2.43 FTE certificated 
position layoffs; .23 FTE confidential position layoffs; and 4.0 FTE classified position layoffs. 
 
In summary: 
 
With great uncertainty of the California State Budget, it is highly recommended that the District 
monitor the budget closely. With an ending balance of $1,378,759.40, we are well within the 
State's "Criteria and Standards" which state that our District should have an ending balance for 
Economic Uncertainties of 5%, $352,606 respectively.  With the District assigning funds in a 
Budget Stabilization account in the amount of $850,000, and restricted funds in the amount of 
$129,614, the district’s unassigned ending balance at 2nd Interim is $46,040.   
 
A fluctuation in revenue is reflected based on the changes in ADA and COLA (see below): 

 
 *LCFF Revenue EPA Revenue State Aid Revenue 
2024-25 $2,535,160 $254,573 $1,106,080 
2025-26 $2,597,288 $260,661 $1,100,145 
2026-27 $2,722,422 $307,816 $1,144,228 

*EPA and State Aid Revenues are included within the LCFF Revenue.     
 
ADA used for LCFF calculations are:  

 
@Budget Development 
2024-25    206.89 
2025-26    216.4 
2026-27    218.3 
 

@2nd Interim 
2024-25    204.2 
2025-26    207 
2026-27    206.71

2025-26 and 2026-27 estimated health and welfare benefit increases 5% for 2025-26 and 2.5% 
for 2026-27 as well as increases in STRS & PERS costs per the most recent Dartboard.   
 
 

93



HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2024-25 2nd Interim 

March 13, 2025 Board Meeting 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

The Adopted 2024-25 reflects a positive certification for Harmony Union School District.  It will 
be able to meet its financial obligations for the 2024-25 through 2026-27 fiscal years. 
 
At this time, it is expected that all other funds (Cafeteria, Deferred Maintenance, Capital 
Facilities, Bond, Special Reserves and Retiree Benefits) will have a positive ending balance for 
the 2024-25 school year. Projected Ending Balance spreadsheet is attached.  
 
The LCFF Calculator Universal Assumptions for Harmony Union Elementary and Salmon Creek 
Charter used for the 2024-25 2nd Interim is also included. 
 

94



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 
 

LCFF Calculator 
 
 
 

95



Summary Tab

Harmony Union Elementary (70730)  - 2024-25 2nd Interim Budget 3/13/2025

 2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27 
General Assumptions

COLA & Augmentation 8.22% 1.07% 2.43% 3.52%

Base Grant Proration Factor 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Add-on, ERT & MSA Proration Factor 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Student Assumptions:

Enrollment Count 51 65 76 72 
Unduplicated Pupil Count (UPC) 11                                18                                18                                16                                
Unduplicated Pupil Percentage (UPP) 18.57% 21.74% 24.48% 24.41%
Current Year LCFF Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 47.08 60.06 69.97 66.30 
Funded LCFF ADA 48.51                          60.06                          69.97                          69.98                          

LCFF ADA Funding Method 3PY Average Current Year Current Year Prior Year
Current Year Necessary Small School (NSS) ADA - - - - 
Funded NSS ADA - - - - 

NSS ADA Funding Method(s)

 

LCFF Entitlement Summary
Base Grant 481,964$ 602,151$ 718,953$ 744,579$ 
Grade Span Adjustment 48,236 62,299 71,759 74,312 
Adjusted Base Grant 530,200$ 664,450$ 790,712$ 818,891$ 
Supplemental Grant 19,692 28,890 38,713 39,979 
Concentration Grant - - - - 

Total Base, Supplemental and Concentration Grant 549,892$ 693,340$ 829,425$ 858,870$ 
Allowance: Necessary Small School - - - - 
Add-on: Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant - - - - 
Add-on: Home-to-School Transportation 124,453 125,785 128,842 133,377 
Add-on: Small School District Bus Replacement Program - - - - 
Add-on: Economic Recovery Target - - - - 
Add-on: Transitional Kindergarten 19,999 43,970 62,410 64,607 

Total Allowance and Add-On Amounts 144,452$ 169,755$ 191,252$ 197,984$ 
Total LCFF Entitlement Before Adjustments (excludes Additional State Aid) 694,344$ 863,095$ 1,020,677$ 1,056,854$ 

Miscellaneous Adjustments - - - - 
Total LCFF Entitlement (excludes Additional State Aid)  $             694,344  $             863,095  $          1,020,677  $          1,056,854 
LCFF Entitlement Per ADA (excludes Categorical MSA)  $               14,313  $               14,371  $               14,587  $               15,103 
Additional State Aid 169,950 86,951 11,710 - 
Total LCFF Entitlement with Additional State Aid                 864,294                 950,046              1,032,387              1,056,854 

LCFF Sources Summary
Funding Source Summary

Local Revenue and In-Lieu of Property Taxes (net for school districts) 288,861$ 356,024$ 419,514$ 423,324$ 
Education Protection Account Entitlement (includes $200/minimum per ADA) 52,310$ 70,899$ 89,750$ 103,561$ 
Net State Aid (excludes Additional State Aid) 353,173$ 436,172$ 511,413$ 529,969$ 
Additional State Aid 169,950$ 86,951$ 11,710$ -$ 

Total Funding Sources  $             864,294  $             950,046  $          1,032,387  $          1,056,854 

Funding Source by Resource-Object
State Aid (Resource Code 0000, Object Code 8011) 523,123$ 523,123$ 523,123$ 529,969$ 
EPA, Current Year (Resource 1400, Object Code 8012)
       (P-2 plus Current Year Accrual)

52,310$ 70,899$ 89,750$ 103,561$ 

EPA, Prior Year Adjustment (Resource 1400, Object Code 8019)
          (P-A less Prior Year Accrual)

(9,140)$ (8,383)$ -$ -$ 

Property Taxes (Object 8021 to 8089) 3,165,294$ 3,217,857$ 3,300,000$ 3,382,500$ 
In-Lieu of Property Taxes (Object Code 8096) (2,876,433) (2,861,833) (2,880,486) (2,959,176) 

Entitlement and Source Reconciliation
Basic Aid/Excess Tax District Status Basic Aid Basic Aid Non-Basic Aid Non-Basic Aid
Total LCFF Entitlement 694,344$ 863,095$ 1,020,677$ 1,056,854$ 
Additional State Aid 169,950$ 86,951$ 11,710$ -$ 
Additional EPA Minimum Entitlement (excess to LCFF Entitlement) -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Excess Taxes before Minimum State Aid -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Total Funding Sources 864,294$ 950,046$ 1,032,387$ 1,056,854$ 

LCAP Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Calculation

Base Grant (Excludes add-ons for TIIG & Transportation) 720,149$                 795,371$                 864,832$                 883,498$                 
Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding in the LCAP year 19,692$                   28,890$                   38,713$                   39,979$                   
Projected Additional 15% Concentration Grant funding in the LCAP year -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 2.73% 3.63% 4.48% 4.53%

PER-ADA FUNDING LEVELS
Base, Supplemental and Concentration Rate per ADA

Grades TK-3 11,357.72$             11,549.24$             11,892.06$             12,308.95$             
Grades 4-6 10,442.96$             10,619.50$             10,934.36$             11,317.82$             
Grades 7-8 10,752.03$             10,933.58$             11,258.49$             11,653.44$             
Grades 9-12 12,784.82$             13,001.76$             13,386.83$             13,857.01$             

Base Grants
Grades TK-3 9,919$                     10,025$                   10,269$                   10,630$                   
Grades 4-6 10,069$                   10,177$                   10,424$                   10,791$                   
Grades 7-8 10,367$                   10,478$                   10,733$                   11,111$                   
Grades 9-12 12,015$                   12,144$                   12,439$                   12,877$                   

Grade Span Adjustment
Grades TK-3 1,032$                     1,043$                     1,068$                     1,106$                     
Grades 9-12 312$                        316$                        323$                        335$                        

Supplemental Grant 20% 20% 20% 20%
  Maximum - 1.00 ADA, 100% UPP

Grades TK-3 2,190$                     2,214$                     2,267$                     2,347$                     
Grades 4-6 2,014$                     2,035$                     2,085$                     2,158$                     
Grades 7-8 2,073$                     2,096$                     2,147$                     2,222$                     
Grades 9-12 2,465$                     2,492$                     2,552$                     2,642$                     

Actual - 1.00 ADA, Local UPP as follows: 18.57% 21.74% 24.48% 24.41%
Grades TK-3 407$                        481$                        555$                        573$                        
Grades 4-6 374$                        442$                        510$                        527$                        
Grades 7-8 385$                        456$                        525$                        542$                        
Grades 9-12 458$                        542$                        625$                        645$                        

Concentration Grant (>55% population) 65% 65% 65% 65%
  Maximum - 1.00 ADA, 100% UPP

Grades TK-3 7,118$                     7,194$                     7,369$                     7,628$                     
Grades 4-6 6,545$                     6,615$                     6,776$                     7,014$                     

2/27/20256:07 PM HUSD LCFF 02262025.xlsx / Summary - page 1 of 2

96



Summary Tab

Harmony Union Elementary (70730)  - 2024-25 2nd Interim Budget 3/13/2025

 2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27 
Grades 7-8 6,739$                     6,811$                     6,976$                     7,222$                     
Grades 9-12 8,013$                     8,099$                     8,295$                     8,588$                     

Actual - 1.00 ADA, Local UPP >55% as follows: 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000%
Grades TK-3 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Grades 4-6 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Grades 7-8 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Grades 9-12 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

2/27/20256:07 PM HUSD LCFF 02262025.xlsx / Summary - page 2 of 2

97



Summary Tab

Salmon Creek School - A Charter (6110639)  - 2024-25 2nd Interim Budget 3/13/2025

 2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27 
General Assumptions

COLA & Augmentation 8.22% 1.07% 2.43% 3.52%

Base Grant Proration Factor 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Add-on, ERT & MSA Proration Factor 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Student Assumptions:

Enrollment Count 179 162 151 155 
Unduplicated Pupil Count (UPC) 46                                40                                39                                40                                
Unduplicated Pupil Percentage (UPP) 27.71% 25.77% 25.41% 25.43%
Current Year LCFF Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 165.92 145.87 140.43 144.15 
Funded LCFF ADA 165.92                        145.87                        140.43                        144.15                        

LCFF ADA Funding Method Current Year Current Year Current Year Current Year
Current Year Necessary Small School (NSS) ADA - - - - 
Funded NSS ADA - - - - 

NSS ADA Funding Method(s)

 

LCFF Entitlement Summary
Base Grant 1,677,126$ 1,491,259$ 1,471,294$ 1,561,432$ 
Grade Span Adjustment 44,170 39,937 41,716 47,315 
Adjusted Base Grant 1,721,296$ 1,531,196$ 1,513,010$ 1,608,747$ 
Supplemental Grant 95,395 78,918 76,891 81,821 
Concentration Grant - - - - 

Total Base, Supplemental and Concentration Grant 1,816,691$ 1,610,114$ 1,589,901$ 1,690,568$ 
Allowance: Necessary Small School - - - - 
Add-on: Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant - - - - 
Add-on: Home-to-School Transportation - - - - 
Add-on: Small School District Bus Replacement Program - - - - 
Add-on: Economic Recovery Target - - - - 
Add-on: Transitional Kindergarten - - - - 

Total Allowance and Add-On Amounts -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Total LCFF Entitlement Before Adjustments (excludes Additional State Aid) 1,816,691$ 1,610,114$ 1,589,901$ 1,690,568$ 

Miscellaneous Adjustments - - - - 
Total LCFF Entitlement (excludes Additional State Aid)  $          1,816,691  $          1,610,114  $          1,589,901  $          1,690,568 
LCFF Entitlement Per ADA (excludes Categorical MSA)  $               10,949  $               11,038  $               11,322  $               11,728 
Additional State Aid - - - - 
Total LCFF Entitlement with Additional State Aid              1,816,691              1,610,114              1,589,901              1,690,568 

LCFF Sources Summary
Funding Source Summary

Local Revenue and In-Lieu of Property Taxes (net for school districts) 956,553$ 843,483$ 841,968$ 872,054$ 
Education Protection Account Entitlement (includes $200/minimum per ADA) 199,418$ 183,674$ 170,911$ 204,255$ 
Net State Aid (excludes Additional State Aid) 660,720$ 582,957$ 577,022$ 614,259$ 
Additional State Aid -$ -$ -$ -$ 

Total Funding Sources  $          1,816,691  $          1,610,114  $          1,589,901  $          1,690,568 

Funding Source by Resource-Object
State Aid (Resource Code 0000, Object Code 8011) 660,720$ 582,957$ 577,022$ 614,259$ 
EPA, Current Year (Resource 1400, Object Code 8012)
       (P-2 plus Current Year Accrual)

199,418$ 183,674$ 170,911$ 204,255$ 

EPA, Prior Year Adjustment (Resource 1400, Object Code 8019)
          (P-A less Prior Year Accrual)

(23,135)$ 3,344$ -$ -$ 

Property Taxes (Object 8021 to 8089) -$ -$ -$ -$ 
In-Lieu of Property Taxes (Object Code 8096) 956,553 843,483 841,968 872,054 

Entitlement and Source Reconciliation
Basic Aid/Excess Tax District Status -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Total LCFF Entitlement 1,816,691$ 1,610,114$ 1,589,901$ 1,690,568$ 
Additional State Aid -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Additional EPA Minimum Entitlement (excess to LCFF Entitlement) -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Excess Taxes before Minimum State Aid -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Total Funding Sources 1,816,691$ 1,610,114$ 1,589,901$ 1,690,568$ 

LCAP Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Calculation

Base Grant (Excludes add-ons for TIIG & Transportation) 1,721,296$             1,531,196$             1,513,010$             1,608,747$             
Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding in the LCAP year 95,395$                   78,918$                   76,891$                   81,821$                   
Projected Additional 15% Concentration Grant funding in the LCAP year -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 5.54% 5.15% 5.08% 5.09%

PER-ADA FUNDING LEVELS
Base, Supplemental and Concentration Rate per ADA

Grades TK-3 11,557.90$             11,638.44$             11,913.15$             12,332.89$             
Grades 4-6 10,627.02$             10,701.52$             10,953.75$             11,339.83$             
Grades 7-8 10,941.54$             11,018.04$             11,278.45$             11,676.11$             
Grades 9-12 13,010.16$             13,102.19$             13,410.56$             13,883.96$             

Base Grants
Grades TK-3 9,919$                     10,025$                   10,269$                   10,630$                   
Grades 4-6 10,069$                   10,177$                   10,424$                   10,791$                   
Grades 7-8 10,367$                   10,478$                   10,733$                   11,111$                   
Grades 9-12 12,015$                   12,144$                   12,439$                   12,877$                   

Grade Span Adjustment
Grades TK-3 1,032$                     1,043$                     1,068$                     1,106$                     
Grades 9-12 312$                        316$                        323$                        335$                        

Supplemental Grant 20% 20% 20% 20%
  Maximum - 1.00 ADA, 100% UPP

Grades TK-3 2,190$                     2,214$                     2,267$                     2,347$                     
Grades 4-6 2,014$                     2,035$                     2,085$                     2,158$                     
Grades 7-8 2,073$                     2,096$                     2,147$                     2,222$                     
Grades 9-12 2,465$                     2,492$                     2,552$                     2,642$                     

Actual - 1.00 ADA, Local UPP as follows: 27.71% 25.77% 25.41% 25.43%
Grades TK-3 607$                        570$                        576$                        597$                        
Grades 4-6 558$                        525$                        530$                        549$                        
Grades 7-8 575$                        540$                        545$                        565$                        
Grades 9-12 683$                        642$                        649$                        672$                        

Concentration Grant (>55% population) 65% 65% 65% 65%
  Maximum - 1.00 ADA, 100% UPP

Grades TK-3 7,118$                     7,194$                     7,369$                     7,628$                     
Grades 4-6 6,545$                     6,615$                     6,776$                     7,014$                     

2/27/20255:58 PM SCC LCFF 02262025.xlsx / Summary - page 1 of 2

98



Summary Tab

Salmon Creek School - A Charter (6110639)  - 2024-25 2nd Interim Budget 3/13/2025

 2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27 
Grades 7-8 6,739$                     6,811$                     6,976$                     7,222$                     
Grades 9-12 8,013$                     8,099$                     8,295$                     8,588$                     

Actual - 1.00 ADA, Local UPP >55% as follows: 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000%
Grades TK-3 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Grades 4-6 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Grades 7-8 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Grades 9-12 -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

2/27/20255:58 PM SCC LCFF 02262025.xlsx / Summary - page 2 of 2

99



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 
 

Multi – Year 
and 

Assumptions 
 

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



 2024-25 2nd Interim
General Fund Assumptions

REVENUE
The 2024-25 2nd Interim is based on LCFF funding for 2024-25 through 2026-27

The 2nd Interim includes Education Protection Act funding for all three years:

2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
Harmony USD - FUND 01 $70,899 $89,750 $103,561

Salmon Creek Charter - FUND 03 $183,674 $170,911 $204,255

TOTAL EPA @ 2nd Interim $254,573 $260,661 $307,816

ENROLLMENT AND UNDUPLICATED COUNTS
               for Harmony Union School District  TK - 1 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Enrollment 65 76 72
Unduplicated Counts 18 18 16

Pupil Percentage 0.2769 0.2368 0.2222
               for Salmon Creek Charter  2 - 8 

Enrollment 162 151 155
Unduplicated Counts 40 39 40

Pupil Percentage 0.2469 0.2583 0.2581
 

ADA Calculation (HUSD 92%; SCC 93%:)
2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

District TK - 1 60.06 69.97 66.3
Charter 2 - 8 145.87 140.43 144.15

205.93 210.40 210.45

The District configuration for 2024-25 is two classrooms per Transitional Kindergarten; one classroom for Kindergarten and one classroom for 2nd Grade.
16 of the 23 students in TK will turn 5 by June 2, 2024, and are included in the District's ADA Calculation. 
All TK students will be included in ADA in SY 2025-26, naturally increasing ADA.
The Charter School configuration for 2024-25 is one (1) classroom per grades 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th & 8th.
Enrollment for the District is actually 69, less the non-ADA 7 TK students, making ADA down to 62.0
Enrollment for the Charter School, grades 2nd through 8th, is 152. 

Pathways Charter School ADA YEAR 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
2nd Interim 336.91 340.00 345.00

 
COLA  
COLA and BRL based on projections from School Services of California and SCOE
2024-25 1.07%
2025-26 2.43%
2026-27 3.52%

STRS and PERS
STRS and PERS rates were updated to reflect the increased rates.
Rates for 2024-25 are STRS 19.10% and PERS 27.05%
Rates for 2025-26 are STRS 19.10% and PERS 27.4%
Rates for 2026-27 are STRS 19.10% and PERS 27.5%

1  

107



 2024-25 2nd Interim
General Fund Assumptions

TRANSPORTATION    
In the past, transportation revenue was going straight to the JPA, West County Transportation, however now the dollars are coming directly to the District via state aid.
In 2015-16, West County Transportation provided the State with amounts they received in 2012-13 for each member District which became the basis for funding. 
For the District, this amount is considered as a pass-through since the JPA will charge the District the same amount that the District receives in revenue.  
The $115,000 cost is reflected as a "Services and Operating" expense and the revenue is reflected in the LCFF calculator.  
Starting in 2022-23, districts are awarded 60% of the prior year's cost. So for 2024-25, HUSD is projected to receive approximately $40,400. Revenue is reflected.
The District's transportation costs at 2nd Interim for 2024-25 is estimated at $263,910 for Home to School transportation and $40,077 for Special Education pupil transportation.
1.)  Bond for facilities expansion:  The JPA issued a bond to pay for Phase III of the facilities expansion in order to provide parking for buses.
The increased cost to HUSD for the bond is $10,000.  This may fluctuate incrementally depending on the sale price of the bonds.
2.)  Additional Membership in the JPA:  The JPA voted to include the largest school district in Sonoma County as a member.  This expansion doubled the JPA expenses.  
The new district was brought in using a "phase-in" rate which will increase their use over time.  As such, the other member districts will see a significant increase in expenses.  

NEGOTIATIONS   
The District and Bargaining Units have agreed to a 3-year salary agreement of 3% per year. The 3% increase has been included in each school year budget. 

HEALTH BENEFITS
For 2024-25, the CAP, which is based on the Kaiser Single High rate plus Dental, is set at $1,157 per month.
2024-25 Kaiser rates increased an average of 8.8% from 2023-24; Blue Shield increased 5.4% from 2023-24. The out years include a 5% increase for 2025-26 and 2.5% for 2026-27.
Doubles are covered at 95% of the Kaiser Double MID option, plus dental and families are covered at 90% of the Kaiser Family MID option, plus dental. 
All employees have the option to opt for cash-in-lieu by selecting a lower costing health plan (if they are double covered).
All employees also have the option to opt for their out-of-pocket portion of health benefits to be deducted at pretax.

SALARY PROJECTIONS
There are 2.43 FTE tentative certificated layoffs for the 2025-26 school year and .23 FTE confidential position layoffs. 
Currently there is one (1) temporary certificated employee in the 2024-25 budget. There are 4.0 FTE tentative classified layoffs for the 2025-26 school year. 

RETIREES 
The District will continue to cover Health and Welfare Benefits for the Certificated Retirees for 5 years, or until they reach the age of 65, whichever faster.

TRANSFERS
Transfers in are projected at $2,665,280 for the 2024-25 school year, $2,045,000 for the 2025-26 school year and $2,030,000 for the 2026-27 school year. 
The District transfers a cap of $40,000 to the School Advisory Site Council Board to spend on student activity grants that fall under the goals of the LCAP.  
The transfer from the District to the Cafeteria is budgeted for $50,000 to cover Cafeteria salaries and expenditures to maintain the program.
The District transferred $551,285 in 2022-23 and $448,580 in 2023-24 from the General Fund to Fund 40 to cover construction costs connected to the 2018 Bond. 
The District is in contract with legal counsel to seek reimbursement of funds.

ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES   
The 5% required level for Economic Uncertainties reserves is reflected in the 2nd Interim for 2024-25 through 2026-27. The State establishes the minimum recommended 
reserve based on the district's average daily attendance (ADA) . Per EC Section 42127, districts are required to hold a public hearing for the 2024-25 2nd Interim 
to provide public review and discussion of the reserve. SB 858, the education budget trailer bill, includes reserve caps or limits if certain State revenue conditions are met.  
A statement of reasons that substantiate the need for the combined assigned and unassigned ending fund balances that are in excess of the minimum recommended 
reserve for economic uncertainties for each fiscal year identified in the 2nd Interim must be provided.   

BUDGET STABILIZATION    
The HUSD Board recognizes that the Budget Stabilization is a one-lump sum of money and therefore 
cannot be connected to any ongoing expenses. Budget Stabilization now holds $850,000.

Administration salaries reflect the current configuration of Superintendent/Principal, Assistant Principal, Chief Business Official, Office Manager and Asst CBO.  

2  

108



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 
 

Enrollment Projections 
 
 
 

109



Grade Level Grade Level Grade Level

TK - thru June 2, 2025 16 (23 total) TK 22 All paid TK 22

K 26 K 24 K 22

1st 20 1st 26 1st 24

2nd 22 2nd 20 2nd 26

3rd 19 3rd 22 3rd 20

4th 24 4th 20 4th 22

5th 14 5th 24 5th 20

6th 30 6th 18 6th 24

7th 23 7th 25 7th 18

8th 20 8th 22 8th 25

214 223 223

Enrollment Enrollment Enrollment

HUSD 62 HUSD 72 HUSD 68

SC 152 SC 151 SC 155

HUSD ADA@.9175 58.3 HUSD ADA@.92 66.24 HUSD ADA@.92 62.56

SCC ADA@.9245 145.87 SCC ADA@.93 140 SCC ADA@.93 144.15

Pathways 336.91 Pathways 340 Pathways 345

Total HUSD ADA Calc 204.2 Total HUSD ADA Calc 207 Total HUSD ADA Calc 206.71

LCFF CALCULATOR ADA

Class Configurations 2026-27

Grade Level Grade Level Grade Level
TK-1st 58.3 TK-1st 66.24 TK-1st 62.56

2-3 38.29 2-3 39.06 2-3 42.78

4-6 65.85 4-6 57.66 4-6 61.38

7&8 41.73 7&8 43.71 7&8 39.99

HUSD 58.28 HUSD 66.24 HUSD 62.56

SSC 145.87 SSC 140.43 SSC 144.15

Total ADA 204.15 Total ADA 206.67 Total ADA 206.71

Class Configurations 2024-25 Class Configurations 2025-26

Class Configurations 2024-25 Class Configurations 2025-26 Class Configurations 2026-27

Class Configurations 2024-25 Class Configurations 2025-26 Class Configurations 2026-27

ADA @ 2nd Interim

110



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM A 
 

Average Daily Attendance 
 

111



112



113



114



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 01 CS 
 

Criteria and Standards Review 

 

115



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 1 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Prov ide methodology  and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, rev enues, expenditures, reserv es and f und balance, and multiy ear

commitments (including cost-of -liv ing adjustments).

Dev iations f rom the standards must be explained and may  af f ect the interim certif ication.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Projected f unded av erage daily  attendance (ADA) f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more than two percent since f irst
interim projections.

District's ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the District's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted into the f irst column, otherwise, enter data f or all f iscal y ears. Second Interim Projected Year Totals data that exist f or the current y ear will
be extracted; otherwise, enter data f or all f iscal y ears. Enter district regular ADA and charter school ADA corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all f iscal y ears.

Estimated Funded ADA

First Interim Second Interim

Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals

Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 1A) (Form AI, Lines A4 and C4) Percent Change Status

Current Year (2024-25)

District Regular 58.00 58.30

Charter School 146.01 145.87

Total ADA 204.01 204.17 .1% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26)

District Regular 66.24 66.24

Charter School 147.00 140.43

Total ADA 213.24 206.67 (3.1%) Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27)

District Regular 62.56 62.56

Charter School 148.80 144.15

Total ADA 211.36 206.71 (2.2%) Not Met

1B. Comparison of District ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - The projected change since f irst interim projections f or f unded ADA exceeds two percent in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide
reasons why  the change(s) exceed the standard, a description of  the methods and assumptions used in projecting f unded ADA, and what changes will be made to improv e the accuracy  of
projections in this area.

Explanation: ADA decrease in out y ears due to drop in 2024-25 Charter School enrollment.

(required if  NOT met)

116



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 2 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

2. CRITERION: Enrollment

STANDARD: Projected enrollment f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more than two percent since f irst interim projections

District's Enrollment Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the District's Enrollment Variances

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column f or all f iscal y ears. Enter data in the second column f or all f iscal y ears. Enter district regular
enrollment and charter school enrollment corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all f iscal y ears.

Enrollment

First Interim Second Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 2A) CALPADS/Projected Percent Change Status

Current Year (2024-25)

District Regular 63.00 62.00

Charter School 157.00 152.00

Total Enrollment 220.00 214.00 (2.7%) Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26)

District Regular 72.00 72.00

Charter School 158.00 151.00

Total Enrollment 230.00 223.00 (3.0%) Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27)

District Regular 68.00 68.00

Charter School 160.00 155.00

Total Enrollment 228.00 223.00 (2.2%) Not Met

2B. Comparison of District Enrollment to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Enrollment projections hav e changed since f irst interim projections by  more than two percent in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide
reasons why  the change(s) exceed the standard, a description of  the methods and assumptions used in projecting enrollment, and what changes will be made to improv e the accuracy  of
projections in this area.

Explanation: Enrollment decrease in out y ears due to drop in 2024-25 Charter School enrollment.

(required if  NOT met)

117



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 3 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

3. CRITERION: ADA to Enrollment

STANDARD: Projected second period (P-2) av erage daily  attendance (ADA) to enrollment ratio f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not increased f rom the
historical av erage ratio f rom the three prior f iscal y ears by  more than one half  of  one percent (0.5%).

3A. Calculating the District's ADA to Enrollment Standard

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist will be extracted into the P-2 ADA column f or the First Prior Year; otherwise, enter First Prior Year data. P-2 ADA f or the second and third prior y ears
are preloaded. First Interim data that exist will be extracted into the Enrollment column; otherwise, enter Enrollment data f or all f iscal y ears. Data should ref lect district regular and charter school
ADA/enrollment corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all f iscal y ears.

P-2 ADA Enrollment

Unaudited Actuals CALPADS Actual Historical Ratio

Fiscal Year (Form A, Lines A4 and C4) (Form 01CSI,
Item 3A) of  ADA to Enrollment

Third Prior Year (2021-22)

District Regular 40 45

Charter School 126 139

Total ADA/Enrollment 166 184 90.2%

Second Prior Year (2022-23)

District Regular 40 45

Charter School 134 144

Total ADA/Enrollment 174 189 92.1%

First Prior Year (2023-24)

District Regular 46 51

Charter School 165 179

Total ADA/Enrollment 211 230 91.7%

Historical Av erage Ratio: 91.3%

District's ADA to Enrollment Standard (historical average ratio plus 0.5%): 91.8%

3B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of ADA to Enrollment

DATA ENTRY: Estimated P-2 ADA will be extracted into the f irst column f or the Current Year; enter data in the f irst column f or the subsequent f iscal y ears. Data should ref lect district regular and
charter school ADA/enrollment corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all f iscal y ears. All other data are extracted.

Estimated P-2 ADA Enrollment

CALPADS/Projected

Fiscal Year (Form AI, Lines A4 and C4) (Criterion 2, Item 2A) Ratio of  ADA to Enrollment Status

Current Year (2024-25)

District Regular 58 62

Charter School 146 152

Total ADA/Enrollment 204 214 95.3% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26)

District Regular 66 72

Charter School 140 151

Total ADA/Enrollment 206 223 92.4% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27)

District Regular 63 68

Charter School 144 155

Total ADA/Enrollment 207 223 92.8% Not Met

3C. Comparison of District ADA to Enrollment Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected P-2 ADA to enrollment ratio exceeds the standard in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide reasons why  the projected ratio
exceeds the district's historical av erage ratio by  more than 0.5%.

Explanation: ADA projections calculate a 92% and 93% av erage of f  of  enrollment. ADA is slowly  increasing f rom PY av erages of  91.8%.

(required if  NOT met)

118



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 4 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

119



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 5 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

4. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD: Projected LCFF rev enue f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more than two percent since f irst interim projections.

District's LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

4A. Calculating the District's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data f or the two
subsequent y ears.

LCFF Rev enue

(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)

First Interim Second Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 4A) Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Current Year (2024-25) 6,830,274.00 6,910,594.00 1.2% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 7,115,710.00 7,051,192.00 (.9%) Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 7,345,710.00 7,284,690.00 (.8%) Met

4B. Comparison of District LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - LCFF rev enue has not changed since f irst interim projections by  more than two percent f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

120



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 6 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

5. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected ratio of  total unrestricted salaries and benef its to total unrestricted general f und expenditures f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has
not changed f rom the historical av erage ratio f rom the three prior f iscal y ears by  more than the greater of  three percent or the district's required reserv es percentage.

5A. Calculating the District's Historical Average Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist f or the First Prior Year will be extracted; otherwise, enter data f or the First Prior Year. Unaudited Actuals data f or the second and third prior y ears are
preloaded.

Unaudited Actuals - Unrestricted

(Resources 0000-1999) Ratio

Salaries and Benef its Total Expenditures of  Unrestricted Salaries and
Benef its

Fiscal Year (Form 01, Objects 1000-
3999)

(Form 01, Objects 1000-
7499)

to Total Unrestricted
Expenditures

Third Prior Year (2021-22) 3,213,663.28 3,846,056.15 83.6%

Second Prior Year (2022-23) 3,728,949.97 4,393,213.65 84.9%

First Prior Year (2023-24) 4,100,149.66 5,233,294.84 78.3%

Historical Av erage Ratio: 82.3%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

District's Reserv e Standard Percentage
5% 5% 5%

(Criterion 10B, Line 4)

District's Salaries and Benefits Standard

77.3% to 87.3% 77.3% to 87.3% 77.3% to 87.3%
(historical average ratio, plus/minus the

greater of 3% or the district's reserve

standard percentage):

5B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYPI exists, Projected Year Totals data f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter Projected Year Totals data. Projected Year Totals data f or Current Year
are extracted.

Projected Year Totals - Unrestricted

(Resources 0000-1999)

Salaries and Benef its Total Expenditures Ratio

(Form 01I, Objects 1000-
3999)

(Form 01I, Objects 1000-
7499)

of  Unrestricted Salaries and
Benef its

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B8,
B10)

to Total Unrestricted
Expenditures Status

Current Year (2024-25) 4,470,561.52 5,202,545.47 85.9% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 4,040,125.91 4,601,552.91 87.8% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 3,916,224.91 4,465,763.91 87.7% Not Met

5C. Comparison of District Salaries and Benefits Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ratio of  unrestricted salary  and benef it costs to total unrestricted expenditures has changed by  more than the standard in any  of  the current y ear or two
subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide reasons why  the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of  the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benef its.

Explanation: The District is projecting a decrease in restricted f unding, thus a greater percentage of  expenses will be paid by  unrestricted f unds.

(required if  NOT met)

121



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 7 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

6. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating rev enues (including f ederal, other state and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and serv ices and other operating), f or any  of  the
current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears, hav e not changed by  more than f iv e percent since f irst interim projections. Changes that exceed f iv e percent in any  major object
category  must be explained.

District's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

District's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

6A. Calculating the District's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column. Second Interim data f or the Current Year are extracted. If  Second Interim Form MYPI exists,
data f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears into the second column. Explanations must be entered f or each category  if  the percent change f or
any  y ear exceeds the district's explanation percentage range.

First Interim Second Interim

Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals Change Is Outside

Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 6A) (Fund 01) (Form MYPI) Percent Change Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (Form MYPI, Line A2)

Current Year (2024-25) 313,849.00 304,338.00 -3.0% No

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 141,306.00 132,248.00 -6.4% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 143,432.00 134,293.00 -6.4% Yes

Explanation: CSI f unding of  $174,382 will end in CY. Out y ears were recalculated based on ADA projections and the January  2025 Dartboard.

(required if  Yes)

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)

Current Year (2024-25) 535,768.00 519,039.00 -3.1% No

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 556,086.00 522,110.00 -6.1% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 566,614.00 529,659.00 -6.5% Yes

Explanation: Out y ears were recalculated based on ADA projections and the January  2025 Dartboard.

(required if  Yes)

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)

Current Year (2024-25) 489,688.00 402,294.00 -17.8% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 468,443.00 378,700.00 -19.2% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 473,695.00 340,514.00 -28.1% Yes

Explanation: Funding decreased due to SELPA restructuring of  f unds; and the expectation that the f ederal interest rate will drop, thus af f ecting interest
earned.(required if  Yes)

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)

Current Year (2024-25) 191,175.42 219,084.39 14.6% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 131,311.00 123,661.00 -5.8% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 134,307.00 125,477.00 -6.6% Yes

Explanation: CY increase is due to unexpected curriculum, textbooks and technology  purchases. A decrease in materials and supplies in out y ears is to
create a solv ent budget.(required if  Yes)

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)

Current Year (2024-25) 1,194,685.90 1,181,325.90 -1.1% No

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 1,226,538.00 1,047,916.00 -14.6% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 1,234,592.00 1,050,212.00 -14.9% Yes

Explanation: Out y ears show a decrease in expenses based on an $81k SpEd Settlement ending CY, a decrease in projected Consortium costs due to
an onsite student aging out, plus a decrease in noncrucial contractors serv ices.(required if  Yes)

122



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 8 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

6B. Calculating the District's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

First Interim Second Interim

Object Range / Fiscal Year Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenue (Section 6A)

Current Year (2024-25) 1,339,305.00 1,225,671.00 -8.5% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 1,165,835.00 1,033,058.00 -11.4% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 1,183,741.00 1,004,466.00 -15.1% Not Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 6A)

Current Year (2024-25) 1,385,861.32 1,400,410.29 1.0% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 1,357,849.00 1,171,577.00 -13.7% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 1,368,899.00 1,175,689.00 -14.1% Not Met

6C. Comparison of District Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked f rom Section 6A if  the status in Section 6B is Not Met; no entry  is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - One or more projected operating rev enue hav e changed since f irst interim projections by  more than the standard in one or more of  the current y ear or two
subsequent f iscal y ears. Reasons f or the projected change, descriptions of  the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if  any , will be made to bring the
projected operating rev enues within the standard must be entered in Section 6A abov e and will also display  in the explanation box below.

Explanation: CSI f unding of  $174,382 will end in CY. Out y ears were recalculated based on ADA projections and the January  2025 Dartboard.

Federal Rev enue

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

Explanation: Out y ears were recalculated based on ADA projections and the January  2025 Dartboard.

Other State Rev enue

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

Explanation: Funding decreased due to SELPA restructuring of  f unds; and the expectation that the f ederal interest rate will drop, thus af f ecting interest
earned.Other Local Rev enue

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - One or more total operating expenditures hav e changed since f irst interim projections by  more than the standard in one or more of  the current y ear or two
subsequent f iscal y ears. Reasons f or the projected change, descriptions of  the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if  any , will be made to bring the
projected operating rev enues within the standard must be entered in Section 6A abov e and will also display  in the explanation box below.

Explanation: CY increase is due to unexpected curriculum, textbooks and technology  purchases. A decrease in materials and supplies in out y ears is to
create a solv ent budget.Books and Supplies

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

Explanation: Out y ears show a decrease in expenses based on an $81k SpEd Settlement ending CY, a decrease in projected Consortium costs due to
an onsite student aging out, plus a decrease in noncrucial contractors serv ices.Serv ices and Other Exps

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

123



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 9 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

7. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identif y  changes that hav e occurred since f irst interim projections in the projected contributions f or f acilities maintenance f unding as required pursuant to Education Code
Section 17070.75, or in how the district is prov iding adequately  to preserv e the f unctionality  of  its f acilities f or their normal lif e in accordance with Education Code sections 52060(d)(1) and
17002(d)(1).

Determining the District's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the district to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of  the total general f und expenditures and other f inancing
uses f or that f iscal y ear. Statute exclude the f ollowing resource codes f rom the total general f und expenditures calculation: 3212, 3213, 3214, 3216, 3218, 3219, 3225, 3226, 3227, 3228,
5316, 5632, 5633, 5634, 7027, and 7690.

DATA ENTRY: Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if  First Interim data does not exist. First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim data into lines 1, if  applicable,
and 2. All other data are extracted.

Second Interim Contribution

Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,

Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status

75,000.00
75,000.00 Met

1. OMMA/RMA Contribution

2. First Interim Contribution (inf ormation only ) 75,000.00

(Form 01CSI, First Interim, Criterion 7, Line 1)

If  status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why  the minimum required contribution was not made:

Not applicable (district does not participate in the Leroy  F. Greene School Facilities Act of  1998)

X Exempt (due to district's small size [EC Section 17070.75 (b)(2)(E)])

Other (explanation must be prov ided)

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met

and Other is marked)

124



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 10 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

8. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted def icit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other f inancing uses is greater than total unrestricted rev enues and other f inancing sources) as a percentage
of  total unrestricted expenditures and other f inancing uses, has not exceeded one-third of  the district's av ailable reserv es¹ as a percentage of  total expenditures and other f inancing uses²
in any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears.

¹Av ailable reserv es are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund and
the Special Reserv e Fund f or Other Than Capital Outlay  Projects. Av ailable reserv es will be reduced by  any  negativ e ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

²A school district that is the Administrativ e Unit of  a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may  exclude f rom its expenditures the distribution of  f unds to its participating members.

8A. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

13.6% 13.2% 14.7%
District's Av ailable Reserv e Percentages (Criterion 10C, Line 9)

District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels
4.5% 4.4% 4.9%

(one-third of available reserve percentage):

8B. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, data f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears into the f irst and second
columns.

Projected Year Totals

Net Change in Total Unrestricted
Expenditures

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses Def icit Spending Lev el

(Form 01I, Section E) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-
7999)

(If  Net Change in
Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) Balance is negativ e, else
N/A) Status

Current Year (2024-25) (314,636.47) 7,337,825.57 4.3% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) (147,501.91) 6,681,552.91 2.2% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 108,340.09 6,545,763.91 N/A Met

8C. Comparison of District Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Unrestricted def icit spending, if  any , has not exceeded the standard percentage lev el in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

125



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 11 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

9. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general f und balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

9A-1. Determining if the District's General Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, data f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears.

Ending Fund Balance

General Fund

Projected Year Totals

Fiscal Year (Form 01I, Line F2 ) (Form MYPI, Line D2) Status

Current Year (2024-25) 1,378,759.40 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 1,183,043.40 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 1,213,737.40 Met

9A-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general f und ending balance is positiv e f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear.

9B-1. Determining if the District's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If  Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if  not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance

General Fund

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status

Current Year (2024-25) 584,304.03 Met

9B-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

126



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 12 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

10. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Av ailable reserv es¹ f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears are not less than the f ollowing percentages or amounts² as applied to total expenditures
and other f inancing uses³:

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data will be extracted. If  not, enter district regular ADA and charter school ADA
corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or the two subsequent y ears.

Percentage Lev el District ADA

5% or $87,000 (greater of ) 0 to 300

4% or $87,000 (greater of ) 301 to 1,000

3% 1,001 to 30,000

2% 30,001 to 250,000

1% 250,001 and ov er

¹ Av ailable reserv es are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserv e
f or Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund
and Special Reserv e Fund f or Other Than Capital Outlay  Projects. Av ailable reserv es will be
reduced by  any  negativ e ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

² Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually  by  the prior y ear statutory  cost-of -liv ing adjustment
(Education Code Section 42238), rounded to the nearest thousand.

³ A school district that is the Administrativ e Unit (AU) of  a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may  exclude f rom its expenditures the distribution of  f unds to its participating
members.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

204
207 207District Estimated P-2 ADA (Current Year, Form AI, Lines A4 and C4.

Subsequent Years, Form MYPI, Line F2, if  av ailable.)

District's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 5% 5% 5%

10A. Calculating the District's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for districts that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if  Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If  not, click the appropriate Yes or No button f or item 1. If  Yes, enter data f or item
2a. If  No, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted.

For districts that serv e as the AU of  a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):

1. Do y ou choose to exclude f rom the reserv e calculation the pass-through f unds distributed to SELPA members? Yes

2. If  y ou are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through f unds:

a. Enter the name(s) of  the SELPA(s): Sonoma SELPA

Current Year

Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

b. Special Education Pass-through Funds

0.00(Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546,

objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223)

10B. Calculating the District's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted or calculated. If  not, enter data f or line 1 f or the two subsequent y ears; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year

Projected
Year Totals

1st
Subsequent
Year

2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Form 01I, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 9,187,398.33 8,300,681.00 8,216,554.00

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through

(Criterion 10A, Line 2b, if  Criterion 10A, Line 1 is No)

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line B1 plus Line B2) 9,187,398.33 8,300,681.00 8,216,554.00

127



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 13 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

4. Reserv e Standard Percentage Lev el 5% 5% 5%

5. Reserv e Standard - by  Percent

(Line B3 times Line B4) 459,369.92 415,034.05 410,827.70

6. Reserv e Standard - by  Amount

($87,000 f or districts with 0 to 1,000 ADA, else 0) 87,000.00 87,000.00 87,000.00

7. District's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line B5 or Line B6) 459,369.92 415,034.05 410,827.70

10C. Calculating the District's Available Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted f rom f und data and Form MYPI. If  Form MYPI does not exist, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears.

Current Year

Reserv e Amounts Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except Line 4) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. General Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 850,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00

2. General Fund - Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 352,606.00 311,034.00 306,828.00

3. General Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c) 46,039.74 135,609.83 248,155.92

4. General Fund - Negativ e Ending Balances in Restricted Resources

(Fund 01, Object 979Z, if  negativ e, f or each of  resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00 0.00

5. Special Reserv e Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 0.00

6. Special Reserv e Fund - Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserv e Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 0.00

8. District's Av ailable Reserv e Amount

(Lines C1 thru C7) 1,248,645.74 1,096,643.83 1,204,983.92

9. District's Av ailable Reserv e Percentage (Inf ormation only )

(Line 8 div ided by  Section 10B, Line 3) 13.59% 13.21% 14.67%

District's Reserve Standard

(Section 10B, Line 7): 459,369.92 415,034.05 410,827.70

Status: Met Met Met

10D. Comparison of District Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Av ailable reserv es hav e met the standard f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

128



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 14 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation f or each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does y our district hav e any  known or contingent liabilities (e.g., f inancial or program audits, litigation,

state compliance rev iews) that hav e occurred since f irst interim projections that may  impact the budget? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the liabilities and how they  may  impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does y our district hav e ongoing general f und expenditures f unded with one-time rev enues that hav e

changed since f irst interim projections by  more than f iv e percent? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue f unding the ongoing expenditures in the f ollowing f iscal y ears:

S3. Temporary Interfund Borrowings

1a. Does y our district hav e projected temporary  borrowings between f unds?

(Ref er to Education Code Section 42603) No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the interf und borrowings:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does y our district hav e projected rev enues f or the current f iscal y ear or either of  the two subsequent f iscal y ears

contingent on reauthorization by  the local gov ernment, special legislation, or other def initiv e act

(e.g., parcel taxes, f orest reserv es)? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  any  of  these rev enues that are dedicated f or ongoing expenses and explain how the rev enues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

129



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 15 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S5. Contributions

Identif y  projected contributions f rom unrestricted resources in the general f und to restricted resources in the general f und f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.
Prov ide an explanation if  contributions hav e changed by  more than $20,000 and more than f iv e percent since f irst interim projections.

Identif y  projected transf ers to or f rom the general f und to cov er operating def icits in either the general f und or any  other f und f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.
Prov ide an explanation if  transf ers hav e changed by  more than $20,000 and more than f iv e percent since f irst interim projections.

Identif y  capital project cost ov erruns that hav e occurred since f irst interim projections that may  impact the general f und budget.

District's Contributions and Transfers Standard: -5.0% to +5.0% or -$20,000
to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the General Fund

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column. For Contributions, the Second Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter Second
Interim Contributions f or the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transf ers In and Transf ers Out, the Second Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, the data will be
extracted into the Second Interim column f or the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If  Form MYPI does not exist, enter data f or 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the appropriate button f or Item
1d; all other data will be calculated.

First Interim Second Interim Percent

Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item S5A) Projected Year Totals Change Amount of
Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted General Fund

(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)

Current Year (2024-25) (820,000.00) (868,500.00) 5.9% 48,500.00 Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) (780,000.00) (770,000.00) -1.3% (10,000.00) Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) (950,000.00) (800,000.00) -15.8% (150,000.00) Not Met

1b. Transfers In, General Fund *

Current Year (2024-25) 2,620,280.10 2,665,280.10 1.7% 45,000.00 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 2,030,000.00 2,045,000.00 .7% 15,000.00 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 2,030,000.00 2,030,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1c. Transfers Out, General Fund *

Current Year (2024-25) 2,090,280.10 2,135,280.10 2.2% 45,000.00 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 2,080,000.00 2,080,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 2,080,000.00 2,080,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns

Hav e capital project cost ov erruns occurred since f irst interim projections that may  impact the general f und
operational budget? No

* Include transf ers used to cov er operating def icits in either the general f und or any  other f und.

S5B. Status of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  Not Met f or items 1a-1c or if  Yes f or Item 1d.

1a. NOT MET - The projected contributions f rom the unrestricted general f und to restricted general f und programs hav e changed since f irst interim projections by  more than the standard f or
any  of  the current y ear or subsequent two f iscal y ears. Identif y  restricted programs and contribution amount f or each program and whether contributions are ongoing or one-time in nature.
Explain the district's plan, with timef rames, f or reducing or eliminating the contribution.

Explanation: CY shows an increase in costs based on additional NPS expenses. Out y ear shows a decrease in contribution due to a decrease in SpEd
salaries and benef its.(required if  NOT met)

1b. MET - Projected transf ers in hav e not changed since f irst interim projections by  more than the standard f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

130



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 16 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

1c. MET - Projected transf ers out hav e not changed since f irst interim projections by  more than the standard f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

1d. NO - There hav e been no capital project cost ov erruns occurring since f irst interim projections that may  impact the general f und operational budget.

Project Information:

(required if  YES)

131



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 17 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identif y  all existing and new multiy ear commitments¹ and their annual required pay ment f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears. Explain how any  increase in annual
pay ments will be f unded. Also, explain how any  decrease to f unding sources used to pay  long-term commitments will be replaced.

¹ Include multiy ear commitments, multiy ear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the District's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: If  First Interim data exist (Form 01CSI, Item S6A), long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only  be necessary  to click the appropriate button f or Item 1b. Extracted data
may  be ov erwritten to update long-term commitment data in Item 2, as applicable. If  no First Interim data exist, click the appropriate buttons f or items 1a and 1b, and enter all other data, as
applicable.

1. a. Does y our district hav e long-term (multiy ear) commitments?

(If  No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes

b. If  Yes to Item 1a, hav e new long-term (multiy ear) commitments been incurred

since f irst interim projections? No

2. If  Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiy ear commitments and required annual debt serv ice amounts. Do not include long-term commitments f or postemploy ment
benef its other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7A.

# of  Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance

Ty pe of  Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Rev enues) Debt Serv ice (Expenditures) as of  July  1, 2024-25

Capital Leases

Certif icates of  Participation

General Obligation Bonds 28 General Obligation Bond Fund 51 8,469,025

Supp Early  Retirement Program

State School Building Loans

Compensated Absences

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):

TOTAL: 8,469,025

Prior Year Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment

Ty pe of  Commitment (continued) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Capital Leases

Certif icates of  Participation

General Obligation Bonds 350,975 349,975 353,875 367,375

Supp Early  Retirement Program

State School Building Loans

Compensated Absences

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

132



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 18 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Total Annual
Pay ments: 350,975 349,975 353,875 367,375

Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2023-24)? No Yes Yes

133



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 19 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S6B. Comparison of the District's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  Yes.

1a. Yes - Annual pay ments f or long-term commitments hav e increased in one or more of  the current or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Explain how the increase in annual pay ments will be
f unded.

Explanation: Pay ments will be f unded by  Fund 51.

(Required if  Yes

to increase in total

annual pay ments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if  Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will f unding sources used to pay  long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of  the commitment period, or are they  one-time sources?

No

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of  the commitment period, and one-time f unds are not being used f or long-term commitment.

Explanation:

(Required if  Yes)

134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 20 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Identif y  any  changes in estimates f or unf unded liabilities since f irst interim projections, and indicate whether the changes are the result of  a new actuarial v aluation.

S7A. Identification of the District's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) f or items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and Second Interim
data in items 2-4.

1 a. Does y our district prov ide postemploy ment benef its

other than pensions (OPEB)? (If  No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b. If  Yes to Item 1a, hav e there been changes since f irst interim in OPEB
liabilities?

No

c. If  Yes to Item 1a, hav e there been changes since

f irst interim in OPEB contributions?

First Interim

2 OPEB Liabilities (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) Second Interim

a. Total OPEB liability 291,437.00 291,437.00

b. OPEB plan(s) f iduciary  net position (if  applicable) 0.00 0.00

c. Total/Net OPEB liability  (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 291,437.00 291,437.00

d. Is total OPEB liability  based on the district's estimate

or an actuarial v aluation? Actuarial Data must be entered.

e. If  based on an actuarial v aluation, indicate the measurement date

of  the OPEB v aluation. Jun 30, 2024 Jun 30, 2024

3 OPEB Contributions

a. OPEB actuarially  determined contribution (ADC) if  av ailable, per First Interim

actuarial v aluation or Alternativ e Measurement Method (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) Second Interim

Current Year (2024-25) 0.00 0.00

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 0.00 15,000.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.00

b. OPEB amount contributed (f or this purpose, include premiums paid to a self -insurance f und)

(Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)

Current Year (2024-25) 0.00 0.00

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 0.00 0.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.00

c. Cost of  OPEB benef its (equiv alent of  "pay -as-y ou-go" amount)

Current Year (2024-25) 0.00 0.00

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 0.00 0.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.00

d. Number of  retirees receiv ing OPEB benef its

Current Year (2024-25) 0 0

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 0 0

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0 0

4. Comments:

The District will hav e one (1) Retiree on the books f or 2025-26. Retiree will turn 65 during 2025-26, so there won't be retiree costs pulled
f rom Fund 20 f or 2026-27.

135



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 21 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

136



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 22 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S7B. Identification of the District's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) f or items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and Second Interim
data in items 2-4.

1 a. Does y our district operate any  self -insurance programs such as

workers' compensation, employ ee health and welf are, or property  and liability ? (Do not
include OPEB; which is cov ered in Section S7A) (If  No, skip items 1b-4) No

b. If  Yes to item 1a, hav e there been changes since f irst interim in self -
insurance liabilities? n/a

c. If  Yes to item 1a, hav e there been changes since f irst interim in self -
insurance contributions? n/a

First Interim

2 Self -Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) Second Interim

a. Accrued liability  f or self -insurance programs 0.00 0.00

b. Unf unded liability  f or self -insurance programs 0.00 0.00

3 Self -Insurance Contributions First Interim

a. Required contribution (f unding) f or self -insurance programs (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) Second Interim

Current Year (2024-25) 0.00 0.00

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 0.00 0.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.00

b. Amount contributed (f unded) f or self -insurance programs

Current Year (2024-25) 0.00 0.00

1st Subsequent Year (2025-26) 0.00 0.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.00

4 Comments:

137



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 23 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analy ze the status of  all employ ee labor agreements. Identif y  new labor agreements that hav e been ratif ied since f irst interim projections, as well as new commitments prov ided as part of
prev iously  ratif ied multiy ear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of  the
required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing rev enues, and explain how these commitments will be f unded in f uture f iscal y ears.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The school district must determine the cost of  the settlement, including salaries, benef its, and any  other agreements that change costs, and prov ide the county  of f ice of  education (COE)
with an analy sis of  the cost of  the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The county  superintendent shall rev iew the analy sis relativ e to the criteria and standards and may  prov ide written comments to the president of  the district gov erning board and
superintendent.

S8A. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or "Status of  Certif icated Labor Agreements as of  the Prev ious Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Yes

Were all certif icated labor negotiations settled as of  f irst interim projections?

If  Yes, complete number of  FTEs, then skip to section S8B.

If  No, continue with section S8A.

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

Number of  certif icated (non-management) f ull-time-equiv alent (FTE)
positions 18.2 17.7 14.8 14.3

1a. Hav e any  salary  and benef it negotiations been settled since f irst interim projections? n/a

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e not been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2-5.

If  No, complete questions 6 and 7.

1b. Are any  salary  and benef it negotiations still unsettled?
No

If  Yes, complete questions 6 and 7.

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim

2a. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(a), date of  public disclosure board meeting:

2b. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collectiv e bargaining agreement

certif ied by  the district superintendent and chief  business of f icial?

If  Yes, date of  Superintendent and CBO certif ication:

3. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget rev ision adopted

to meet the costs of  the collectiv e bargaining agreement? n/a

If  Yes, date of  budget rev ision board adoption:

4. Period cov ered by  the agreement: Begin Date: End Date:

5. Salary  settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the interim and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear
(may  enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identif y  the source of  f unding that will be used to support multiy ear salary  commitments:

138



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 24 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

139



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 25 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Negotiations Not Settled

6. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

7. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated Since First Interim Projections

Are any  new costs negotiated since f irst interim projections f or prior y ear settlements included in the
interim?

If  Yes, amount of  new costs included in the interim and MYPs

If  Yes, explain the nature of  the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column ov er prior y ear

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are sav ings f rom attrition included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benef its f or those laid-of f  or retired employ ees included in the interim
and MYPs?

Certificated (Non-management) - Other

List other signif icant contract changes that hav e occurred since f irst interim projections and the cost impact of  each change (i.e., class size, hours of  employ ment, leav e of  absence, bonuses, etc.):

140



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 26 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S8B. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or "Status of  Classif ied Labor Agreements as of  the Prev ious Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all classif ied labor negotiations settled as of  f irst interim projections?
Yes

If  Yes, complete number of  FTEs, then skip to section S8C.

If  No, continue with section S8B.

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

Number of  classif ied (non-management) FTE positions 20.3 19.2 15.2 14.4

1a. Hav e any  salary  and benef it negotiations been settled since f irst interim projections? n/a

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e not been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2-5.

If  No, complete questions 6 and 7.

1b. Are any  salary  and benef it negotiations still unsettled?

If  Yes, complete questions 6 and 7. No

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections

2a. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(a), date of  public disclosure board meeting:

2b. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collectiv e bargaining agreement

certif ied by  the district superintendent and chief  business of f icial?

If  Yes, date of  Superintendent and CBO certif ication:

3. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget rev ision adopted

to meet the costs of  the collectiv e bargaining agreement? n/a

If  Yes, date of  budget rev ision board adoption:

4. Period cov ered by  the agreement: Begin Date: End
Date:

5. Salary  settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the interim and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear
(may  enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identif y  the source of  f unding that will be used to support multiy ear salary  commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

6. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

141



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 27 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

7. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases

142



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 28 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated Since First Interim

Are any  new costs negotiated since f irst interim projections f or prior y ear settlements included in the
interim?

If  Yes, amount of  new costs included in the interim and MYPs

If  Yes, explain the nature of  the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column ov er prior y ear

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are sav ings f rom attrition included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benef its f or those laid-of f  or retired employ ees included in the interim
and MYPs?

Classified (Non-management) - Other

List other signif icant contract changes that hav e occurred since f irst interim and the cost impact of  each (i.e., hours of  employ ment, leav e of  absence, bonuses, etc.):

143



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 29 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S8C. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or "Status of  Management/Superv isor/Conf idential Labor Agreements as of  the Prev ious Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this
section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all managerial/conf idential labor negotiations settled as of  f irst interim projections? Yes

If  Yes or n/a, complete number of  FTEs, then skip to S9.

If  No, continue with section S8C.

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

Number of  management, superv isor, and conf idential FTE positions 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

1a. Hav e any  salary  and benef it negotiations been settled since f irst interim projections?
n/a

If  Yes, complete question 2.

If  No, complete questions 3 and 4.

No
1b. Are any  salary  and benef it negotiations still unsettled?

If  Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections

2. Salary  settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the interim and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

Total cost of  salary  settlement

Change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear
(may  enter text, such as "Reopener")

Negotiations Not Settled

3. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

4. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Step and Column Adjustments (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step and column ov er prior y ear

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27)

1. Are costs of  other benef its included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  other benef its

144



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 30 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

3. Percent change in cost of  other benef its ov er prior y ear

145



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 31 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

S9. Status of Other Funds

Analy ze the status of  other f unds that may  hav e negativ e f und balances at the end of  the current f iscal y ear. If  any  other f und has a projected
negativ e f und balance, prepare an interim report and multiy ear projection f or that f und. Explain plans f or how and when the negativ e f und balance will be
addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If  Yes, enter data in Item 2 and prov ide the reports ref erenced in Item 1.

1. Are any  f unds other than the general f und
projected to hav e a negativ e f und

balance at the end of  the current f iscal y ear? No

If  Yes, prepare and submit to the rev iewing agency  a report of  rev enues, expenditures, and changes in f und balance (e.g., an interim f und report) and a
multiy ear projection report f or each f und.

2. If  Yes, identif y  each f und, by  name and number, that is projected to hav e a negativ e ending f und balance f or the current f iscal y ear. Prov ide reasons
f or the negativ e balance(s) and explain the plan f or how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.

146



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 32 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The f ollowing f iscal indicators are designed to prov ide additional data f or rev iewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any  single indicator does not necessarily  suggest a cause f or concern, but may  alert
the rev iewing agency  to the need f or additional rev iew. DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or items A2 through A9; Item A1 is automatically  completed based on data f rom
Criterion 9.

A1. Do cash f low projections show that the district will end the current f iscal y ear with a

negativ e cash balance in the general f und? (Data f rom Criterion 9B-1, Cash Balance, No

are used to determine Yes or No)

A2. Is the sy stem of  personnel position control independent f rom the pay roll sy stem?

No

A3. Is enrollment decreasing in both the prior and current f iscal y ears?

No

A4. Are new charter schools operating in district boundaries that impact the district's

enrollment, either in the prior or current f iscal y ear? No

A5. Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any  of  the current

or subsequent f iscal y ears of  the agreement would result in salary  increases that No

are expected to exceed the projected state f unded cost-of -liv ing adjustment?

A6. Does the district prov ide uncapped (100% employ er paid) health benef its f or current or

retired employ ees? No

A7. Is the district's f inancial sy stem independent of  the county  of f ice sy stem?

No

A8. Does the district hav e any  reports that indicate f iscal distress pursuant to Education

Code Section 42127.6(a)? (If  Yes, prov ide copies to the county  of f ice of  education.) No

A9. Hav e there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief  business

of f icial positions within the last 12 months? No

When prov iding comments f or additional f iscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:

(optional)

147



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: CSI_District, Version 8 Page 33 Printed: 3/11/2025 5:09 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01CSI
Sonoma County School District Criteria and Standards Review F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

End of School District Second Interim Criteria and Standards Review

148



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

CASHFLOW  

149



150



151



152



153



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 01 
 

General Fund Summary 

  

154



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 4,877,297.00 4,909,685.00 2,875,882.90 4,937,769.00 28,084.00 0.6%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 128,394.00 114,112.00 35,404.55 84,547.00 (29,565.00) -25.9%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 157,600.00 192,600.00 97,872.14 204,093.00 11,493.00 6.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 5,163,291.00 5,216,397.00 3,009,159.59 5,226,409.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 1,786,961.80 1,919,973.30 1,107,433.39 2,024,315.72 (104,342.42) -5.4%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 854,731.29 899,074.24 552,474.30 954,556.76 (55,482.52) -6.2%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 1,379,066.46 1,461,658.67 779,109.34 1,491,689.04 (30,030.37) -2.1%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 77,375.00 125,855.83 110,120.14 141,750.83 (15,895.00) -12.6%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 572,392.00 581,073.12 472,672.86 590,383.12 (9,310.00) -1.6%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs 7300-7399 (150.00) (150.00) (150.00) (150.00) 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 4,670,376.55 4,987,485.16 3,021,660.03 5,202,545.47

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -
B9) 492,914.45 228,911.84 (12,500.44) 23,863.53

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 2,530,500.00 2,620,280.10 965,280.10 2,665,280.10 45,000.00 1.7%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 2,080,500.00 2,090,280.10 935,280.10 2,135,280.10 (45,000.00) -2.2%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 (675,000.00) (820,000.00) (820,000.00) (868,500.00) (48,500.00) 5.9%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (225,000.00) (290,000.00) (790,000.00) (338,500.00)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 267,914.45 (61,088.16) (802,500.44) (314,636.47)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 1,416,081.25 1,563,782.21 1,563,782.21 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,416,081.25 1,563,782.21 1,563,782.21

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +
F1d) 1,416,081.25 1,563,782.21 1,563,782.21

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 1,683,995.70 1,502,694.05 1,249,145.74

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 500.00 500.00 500.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

155



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 850,000.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 320,563.00 320,563.00 352,606.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 362,932.70 181,631.05 46,039.74

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 3,441,445.00 3,382,824.00 1,750,403.00 3,438,164.00 55,340.00 1.6%

Education Protection Account State Aid -
Current Year 8012 195,888.00 203,024.00 136,376.00 254,573.00 51,549.00 25.4%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 32,336.00 70,525.00 70,525.00 New

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 12,383.00 15,000.00 6,695.51 15,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Timber Yield Tax 8022 2,332.00 3,500.00 1,828.92 3,500.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 3,118,385.00 3,131,926.00 1,729,246.90 3,105,357.00 (26,569.00) -0.8%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 96,900.00 94,000.00 94,689.57 94,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund
(ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 6,867,333.00 6,830,274.00 3,751,575.90 6,981,119.00 150,845.00 2.2%

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091 (25,000.00) (25,000.00) (25,000.00) (25,000.00) 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of
Property  Taxes 8096 (1,965,036.00) (1,895,589.00) (850,693.00) (2,018,350.00) (122,761.00) 6.5%

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior
Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 4,877,297.00 4,909,685.00 2,875,882.90 4,937,769.00 28,084.00 0.6%

156



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Forest Reserv e Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal
Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e
Instruction 4035 8290

Title III, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290

Title III, English Learner Program 4203 8290

Public Charter Schools Grant Program
(PCSGP) 4610 8290

Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,
3061, 3110,
3150, 3155,
3182, 4037,
4123, 4124,
4126, 4127,
4128, 5630

8290

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311

Prior Years 6500 8319

All Other State Apportionments - Current
Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior
Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 5,229.00 5,146.00 5,081.00 5,154.00 8.00 0.2%

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional
Materials 8560 42,500.00 38,966.00 10,344.55 38,993.00 27.00 0.1%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

157



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 4 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State
Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690,
6695 8590

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 80,665.00 70,000.00 19,979.00 40,400.00 (29,600.00) -42.3%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 128,394.00 114,112.00 35,404.55 84,547.00 (29,565.00) -25.9%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not
Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 35,000.00 45,000.00 18,000.72 45,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value
of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)
Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues From Local
Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

158



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 5 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 122,600.00 147,600.00 79,871.42 159,093.00 11,493.00 7.8%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers Of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792

From JPAs 6500 8793

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792

From JPAs 6360 8793

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 157,600.00 192,600.00 97,872.14 204,093.00 11,493.00 6.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 5,163,291.00 5,216,397.00 3,009,159.59 5,226,409.00 10,012.00 0.2%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,430,167.89 1,577,919.89 901,708.92 1,671,287.69 (93,367.80) -5.9%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 86,343.62 86,343.62 47,658.96 86,343.62 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 270,450.29 255,709.79 158,065.51 266,684.41 (10,974.62) -4.3%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,786,961.80 1,919,973.30 1,107,433.39 2,024,315.72 (104,342.42) -5.4%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 423,039.11 438,715.97 280,334.00 491,015.77 (52,299.80) -11.9%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 140,190.60 140,190.60 84,233.52 144,400.32 (4,209.72) -3.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 131,091.08 148,464.24 86,604.14 148,464.24 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 160,410.50 160,410.50 90,009.71 159,155.36 1,255.14 0.8%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 11,292.93 11,292.93 11,521.07 (228.14) -2.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 854,731.29 899,074.24 552,474.30 954,556.76 (55,482.52) -6.2%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 371,292.17 407,194.52 215,105.51 417,255.93 (10,061.41) -2.5%

PERS 3201-3202 242,048.27 266,071.85 138,627.30 265,360.68 711.17 0.3%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 99,712.90 105,482.70 55,194.69 105,691.56 (208.86) -0.2%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 626,470.08 646,539.21 351,105.45 664,857.77 (18,318.56) -2.8%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 1,531.09 1,600.27 831.93 1,618.97 (18.70) -1.2%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 24,209.95 26,154.12 13,778.46 26,628.13 (474.01) -1.8%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 13,802.00 8,616.00 4,466.00 10,276.00 (1,660.00) -19.3%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,379,066.46 1,461,658.67 779,109.34 1,491,689.04 (30,030.37) -2.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

159



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 6 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 0.00 21,245.17 23,946.92 26,745.17 (5,500.00) -25.9%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 14,500.00 14,500.00 5,380.17 10,060.00 4,440.00 30.6%

Materials and Supplies 4300 52,375.00 51,110.66 40,732.13 58,345.66 (7,235.00) -14.2%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 10,500.00 39,000.00 40,060.92 46,600.00 (7,600.00) -19.5%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 77,375.00 125,855.83 110,120.14 141,750.83 (15,895.00) -12.6%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 274,630.00 263,909.52 263,909.52 263,909.52 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 27,150.00 31,180.00 17,387.75 31,180.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 17,075.00 17,075.00 14,927.04 17,075.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 60,422.00 60,422.00 4,606.94 60,422.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 50,250.00 61,250.00 34,032.54 61,250.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 7,350.00 12,342.60 7,737.17 12,342.60 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and
Operating Expenditures 5800 118,615.00 118,615.00 120,960.71 127,925.00 (9,310.00) -7.8%

Communications 5900 16,900.00 16,279.00 9,111.19 16,279.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 572,392.00 581,073.12 472,672.86 590,383.12 (9,310.00) -1.6%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit
Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

160



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 7 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222

To JPAs 6500 7223

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222

To JPAs 6360 7223

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 (150.00) (150.00) (150.00) (150.00) 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS (150.00) (150.00) (150.00) (150.00) 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 4,670,376.55 4,987,485.16 3,021,660.03 5,202,545.47 (215,060.31) -4.3%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 500,000.00 580,000.00 80,000.00 580,000.00 0.00 0.0%

From: Bond Interest and

Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 2,030,500.00 2,040,280.10 885,280.10 2,085,280.10 45,000.00 2.2%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 2,530,500.00 2,620,280.10 965,280.10 2,665,280.10 45,000.00 1.7%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County
School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 2,030,500.00 2,040,280.10 885,280.10 2,085,280.10 (45,000.00) -2.2%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 2,080,500.00 2,090,280.10 935,280.10 2,135,280.10 (45,000.00) -2.2%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital
Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

161



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 8 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of
Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 (675,000.00) (820,000.00) (820,000.00) (868,500.00) (48,500.00) 5.9%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (675,000.00) (820,000.00) (820,000.00) (868,500.00) (48,500.00) 5.9%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) (225,000.00) (290,000.00) (790,000.00) (338,500.00) (48,500.00) 16.7%

162



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 9 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 25,250.00 27,500.00 0.00 38,276.00 10,776.00 39.2%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 337,386.00 313,849.00 45,269.00 304,338.00 (9,511.00) -3.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 407,562.00 421,656.00 90,986.63 434,492.00 12,836.00 3.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 283,700.00 297,088.00 119,757.00 198,201.00 (98,887.00) -33.3%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,053,898.00 1,060,093.00 256,012.63 975,307.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 418,800.20 427,861.46 219,502.89 395,821.41 32,040.05 7.5%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 360,490.71 400,425.85 173,241.07 403,286.81 (2,860.96) -0.7%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 412,969.54 380,222.24 146,007.61 382,038.20 (1,815.96) -0.5%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 43,425.00 65,319.59 58,919.63 77,333.56 (12,013.97) -18.4%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 502,548.00 613,612.78 420,038.49 590,942.78 22,670.00 3.7%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs 7300-7399 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,740,883.45 1,887,591.92 1,017,859.69 1,849,572.76

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -
B9) (686,985.45) (827,498.92) (761,847.06) (874,265.76)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 675,000.00 820,000.00 820,000.00 868,500.00 48,500.00 5.9%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 675,000.00 820,000.00 820,000.00 868,500.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (11,985.45) (7,498.92) 58,152.94 (5,765.76)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 164,167.87 135,379.42 135,379.42 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 164,167.87 135,379.42 135,379.42

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +
F1d) 164,167.87 135,379.42 135,379.42

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 152,182.42 127,880.50 129,613.66

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

163



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 10 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 152,182.42 127,880.50 129,613.66

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Education Protection Account State Aid -
Current Year 8012 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Timber Y ield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund
(ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of
Property  Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 25,250.00 27,500.00 0.00 38,276.00 10,776.00 39.2%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior
Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 25,250.00 27,500.00 0.00 38,276.00 10,776.00 39.2%

FEDERAL REVENUE

164



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 11 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 28,000.00 35,000.00 (29,695.00) 29,468.00 (5,532.00) -15.8%

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 2,200.00 2,500.00 (5,791.00) 2,500.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Forest Reserv e Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal
Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 65,000.00 55,967.00 28,400.00 57,631.00 1,664.00 3.0%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e
Instruction 4035 8290 9,500.00 9,500.00 3,759.00 7,592.00 (1,908.00) -20.1%

Title III, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, English Learner Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program
(PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,
3061, 3110,
3150, 3155,
3182, 4037,
4123, 4124,
4126, 4127,
4128, 5630

8290

206,186.00 184,382.00 48,596.00 184,382.00 0.00 0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 26,500.00 26,500.00 0.00 22,765.00 (3,735.00) -14.1%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 337,386.00 313,849.00 45,269.00 304,338.00 (9,511.00) -3.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current
Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior
Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional
Materials 8560 15,850.00 16,729.00 3,552.64 16,740.00 11.00 0.1%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

165



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 12 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State
Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690,
6695 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 391,712.00 404,927.00 87,433.99 417,752.00 12,825.00 3.2%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 407,562.00 421,656.00 90,986.63 434,492.00 12,836.00 3.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not
Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value
of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 30,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)
Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

166



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 13 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Pass-Through Rev enues From Local
Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 1,700.00 1,971.00 1,971.00 1,971.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers Of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 252,000.00 260,117.00 117,786.00 161,230.00 (98,887.00) -38.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 283,700.00 297,088.00 119,757.00 198,201.00 (98,887.00) -33.3%

TOTAL, REVENUES 1,053,898.00 1,060,093.00 256,012.63 975,307.00 (84,786.00) -8.0%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 297,819.12 272,802.61 131,551.51 263,812.63 8,989.98 3.3%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 120,981.08 121,638.85 70,625.30 100,620.10 21,018.75 17.3%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 0.00 33,420.00 17,326.08 31,388.68 2,031.32 6.1%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 418,800.20 427,861.46 219,502.89 395,821.41 32,040.05 7.5%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 328,653.52 355,263.93 157,613.41 368,424.39 (13,160.46) -3.7%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 31,837.19 45,161.92 15,627.66 34,862.42 10,299.50 22.8%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 360,490.71 400,425.85 173,241.07 403,286.81 (2,860.96) -0.7%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 242,213.98 231,489.62 35,543.88 231,489.62 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 50,938.12 47,057.30 40,750.19 47,057.30 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 19,762.86 18,167.67 16,125.04 19,973.14 (1,805.47) -9.9%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 95,619.19 79,710.45 50,311.74 79,710.45 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 240.23 196.17 187.01 206.66 (10.49) -5.3%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 4,195.16 3,601.03 3,089.75 3,601.03 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

167



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 14 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 412,969.54 380,222.24 146,007.61 382,038.20 (1,815.96) -0.5%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 10,350.00 30,850.00 29,382.24 27,798.97 3,051.03 9.9%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 23,075.00 24,469.59 25,912.37 29,219.59 (4,750.00) -19.4%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,101.77 16,315.00 (6,315.00) -63.2%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 2,523.25 4,000.00 (4,000.00) New

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 43,425.00 65,319.59 58,919.63 77,333.56 (12,013.97) -18.4%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 325,548.00 325,548.00 158,767.73 325,548.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 116.57 380.00 (380.00) New

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 7,650.00 7,650.00 2,035.87 7,650.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 2,500.00 19,364.78 16,195.34 19,364.78 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and
Operating Expenditures 5800 166,850.00 261,050.00 242,922.98 238,000.00 23,050.00 8.8%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 502,548.00 613,612.78 420,038.49 590,942.78 22,670.00 3.7%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit
Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

168



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 15 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,740,883.45 1,887,591.92 1,017,859.69 1,849,572.76 38,019.16 2.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From: Bond Interest and

Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County
School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Proceeds

169



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 16 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital
Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of
Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 675,000.00 820,000.00 820,000.00 868,500.00 48,500.00 5.9%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 675,000.00 820,000.00 820,000.00 868,500.00 48,500.00 5.9%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 675,000.00 820,000.00 820,000.00 868,500.00 (48,500.00) -5.9%

170



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 17 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 4,902,547.00 4,937,185.00 2,875,882.90 4,976,045.00 38,860.00 0.8%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 337,386.00 313,849.00 45,269.00 304,338.00 (9,511.00) -3.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 535,956.00 535,768.00 126,391.18 519,039.00 (16,729.00) -3.1%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 441,300.00 489,688.00 217,629.14 402,294.00 (87,394.00) -17.8%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 6,217,189.00 6,276,490.00 3,265,172.22 6,201,716.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 2,205,762.00 2,347,834.76 1,326,936.28 2,420,137.13 (72,302.37) -3.1%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 1,215,222.00 1,299,500.09 725,715.37 1,357,843.57 (58,343.48) -4.5%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 1,792,036.00 1,841,880.91 925,116.95 1,873,727.24 (31,846.33) -1.7%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 120,800.00 191,175.42 169,039.77 219,084.39 (27,908.97) -14.6%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 1,074,940.00 1,194,685.90 892,711.35 1,181,325.90 13,360.00 1.1%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 6,411,260.00 6,875,077.08 4,039,519.72 7,052,118.23

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -
B9) (194,071.00) (598,587.08) (774,347.50) (850,402.23)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 2,530,500.00 2,620,280.10 965,280.10 2,665,280.10 45,000.00 1.7%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 2,080,500.00 2,090,280.10 935,280.10 2,135,280.10 (45,000.00) -2.2%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 450,000.00 530,000.00 30,000.00 530,000.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 255,929.00 (68,587.08) (744,347.50) (320,402.23)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 1,580,249.12 1,699,161.63 1,699,161.63 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,580,249.12 1,699,161.63 1,699,161.63

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +
F1d) 1,580,249.12 1,699,161.63 1,699,161.63

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 1,836,178.12 1,630,574.55 1,378,759.40

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 500.00 500.00 500.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

171



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 18 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 152,182.42 127,880.50 129,613.66

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 850,000.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 320,563.00 320,563.00 352,606.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 362,932.70 181,631.05 46,039.74

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 3,441,445.00 3,382,824.00 1,750,403.00 3,438,164.00 55,340.00 1.6%

Education Protection Account State Aid -
Current Year 8012 195,888.00 203,024.00 136,376.00 254,573.00 51,549.00 25.4%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 32,336.00 70,525.00 70,525.00 New

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 12,383.00 15,000.00 6,695.51 15,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Timber Yield Tax 8022 2,332.00 3,500.00 1,828.92 3,500.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 3,118,385.00 3,131,926.00 1,729,246.90 3,105,357.00 (26,569.00) -0.8%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 96,900.00 94,000.00 94,689.57 94,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund
(ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 6,867,333.00 6,830,274.00 3,751,575.90 6,981,119.00 150,845.00 2.2%

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091 (25,000.00) (25,000.00) (25,000.00) (25,000.00) 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of
Property  Taxes 8096 (1,965,036.00) (1,895,589.00) (850,693.00) (2,018,350.00) (122,761.00) 6.5%

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 25,250.00 27,500.00 0.00 38,276.00 10,776.00 39.2%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior
Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 4,902,547.00 4,937,185.00 2,875,882.90 4,976,045.00 38,860.00 0.8%

FEDERAL REVENUE

172



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 19 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 28,000.00 35,000.00 (29,695.00) 29,468.00 (5,532.00) -15.8%

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 2,200.00 2,500.00 (5,791.00) 2,500.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Forest Reserv e Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal
Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 65,000.00 55,967.00 28,400.00 57,631.00 1,664.00 3.0%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e
Instruction 4035 8290 9,500.00 9,500.00 3,759.00 7,592.00 (1,908.00) -20.1%

Title III, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, English Learner Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program
(PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,
3061, 3110,
3150, 3155,
3182, 4037,
4123, 4124,
4126, 4127,
4128, 5630

8290

206,186.00 184,382.00 48,596.00 184,382.00 0.00 0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 26,500.00 26,500.00 0.00 22,765.00 (3,735.00) -14.1%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 337,386.00 313,849.00 45,269.00 304,338.00 (9,511.00) -3.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current
Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior
Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 5,229.00 5,146.00 5,081.00 5,154.00 8.00 0.2%

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional
Materials 8560 58,350.00 55,695.00 13,897.19 55,733.00 38.00 0.1%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

173



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 20 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State
Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690,
6695 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 472,377.00 474,927.00 107,412.99 458,152.00 (16,775.00) -3.5%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 535,956.00 535,768.00 126,391.18 519,039.00 (16,729.00) -3.1%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not
Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 35,000.00 45,000.00 18,000.72 45,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value
of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 30,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)
Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

174



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 21 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Pass-Through Rev enues From Local
Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 124,300.00 149,571.00 81,842.42 161,064.00 11,493.00 7.7%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers Of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 252,000.00 260,117.00 117,786.00 161,230.00 (98,887.00) -38.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 441,300.00 489,688.00 217,629.14 402,294.00 (87,394.00) -17.8%

TOTAL, REVENUES 6,217,189.00 6,276,490.00 3,265,172.22 6,201,716.00 (74,774.00) -1.2%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,727,987.01 1,850,722.50 1,033,260.43 1,935,100.32 (84,377.82) -4.6%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 207,324.70 207,982.47 118,284.26 186,963.72 21,018.75 10.1%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 270,450.29 289,129.79 175,391.59 298,073.09 (8,943.30) -3.1%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 2,205,762.00 2,347,834.76 1,326,936.28 2,420,137.13 (72,302.37) -3.1%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 751,692.63 793,979.90 437,947.41 859,440.16 (65,460.26) -8.2%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 140,190.60 140,190.60 84,233.52 144,400.32 (4,209.72) -3.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 131,091.08 148,464.24 86,604.14 148,464.24 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 160,410.50 160,410.50 90,009.71 159,155.36 1,255.14 0.8%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 31,837.19 56,454.85 26,920.59 46,383.49 10,071.36 17.8%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,215,222.00 1,299,500.09 725,715.37 1,357,843.57 (58,343.48) -4.5%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 613,506.15 638,684.14 250,649.39 648,745.55 (10,061.41) -1.6%

PERS 3201-3202 292,986.39 313,129.15 179,377.49 312,417.98 711.17 0.2%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 119,475.76 123,650.37 71,319.73 125,664.70 (2,014.33) -1.6%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 722,089.27 726,249.66 401,417.19 744,568.22 (18,318.56) -2.5%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 1,771.32 1,796.44 1,018.94 1,825.63 (29.19) -1.6%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 28,405.11 29,755.15 16,868.21 30,229.16 (474.01) -1.6%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 13,802.00 8,616.00 4,466.00 10,276.00 (1,660.00) -19.3%

175



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 22 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,792,036.00 1,841,880.91 925,116.95 1,873,727.24 (31,846.33) -1.7%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 10,350.00 52,095.17 53,329.16 54,544.14 (2,448.97) -4.7%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 14,500.00 14,500.00 5,380.17 10,060.00 4,440.00 30.6%

Materials and Supplies 4300 75,450.00 75,580.25 66,644.50 87,565.25 (11,985.00) -15.9%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 20,500.00 49,000.00 41,162.69 62,915.00 (13,915.00) -28.4%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 2,523.25 4,000.00 (4,000.00) New

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 120,800.00 191,175.42 169,039.77 219,084.39 (27,908.97) -14.6%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 600,178.00 589,457.52 422,677.25 589,457.52 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 27,150.00 31,180.00 17,504.32 31,560.00 (380.00) -1.2%

Dues and Memberships 5300 17,075.00 17,075.00 14,927.04 17,075.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 60,422.00 60,422.00 4,606.94 60,422.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 57,900.00 68,900.00 36,068.41 68,900.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 9,850.00 31,707.38 23,932.51 31,707.38 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and
Operating Expenditures 5800 285,465.00 379,665.00 363,883.69 365,925.00 13,740.00 3.6%

Communications 5900 16,900.00 16,279.00 9,111.19 16,279.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,074,940.00 1,194,685.90 892,711.35 1,181,325.90 13,360.00 1.1%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit
Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

176



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 23 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 6,411,260.00 6,875,077.08 4,039,519.72 7,052,118.23 (177,041.15) -2.6%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 500,000.00 580,000.00 80,000.00 580,000.00 0.00 0.0%

From: Bond Interest and

Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 2,030,500.00 2,040,280.10 885,280.10 2,085,280.10 45,000.00 2.2%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 2,530,500.00 2,620,280.10 965,280.10 2,665,280.10 45,000.00 1.7%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County
School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 2,030,500.00 2,040,280.10 885,280.10 2,085,280.10 (45,000.00) -2.2%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 2,080,500.00 2,090,280.10 935,280.10 2,135,280.10 (45,000.00) -2.2%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

177



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 24 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

2024-25 Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital
Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of
Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 450,000.00 530,000.00 30,000.00 530,000.00 0.00 0.0%

178



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V11
File: Fund-Ai, Version 6 Page 25 Printed: 3/11/2025 0:24 A

Second Interim 49 70730 0000000
Harmony Union Elementary General Fund Form 01I
Sonoma County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail F82S6JA4YM(2024-25)

Resource Description 2024-25
Projected Totals

2600 Expanded Learning Opportunities Program 4,496.58

6300 Lottery : Instructional Materials 472.31

6500 Special Education 849.79

6547 Special Education Early  Interv ention Preschool Grant 21,557.00

7032 Child Nutrition: Kitchen Inf rastructure and Training Funds - 2022 KIT Funds 65,035.64

7810 Other Restricted State 27.00

8150 Ongoing & Major Maintenance Account (RMA: Education Code Section 17070.75) 37,175.34

Total, Restricted Balance 129,613.66

179



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 8 
 

Student Body Account 

180



181



182



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 13 
 

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 

 

183



184



185



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 14 
 

Deferred Maintenance Fund 

 

186



187



188



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 17 
 

Special Reserve Fund 
Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 

 

189



190



191



 

 

2nd Interim 
 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 20 
 

Special Reserve Fund 
For 

Post-Employment Benefits 

 

192



193



194



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 21 
 

Building Fund 

195



196



197



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 25 
 

Capital Facilities Fund 
 

198



199



200



 

 

 
2nd Interim 

 
 

2024-25 
 
 

FORM 40 
 

Special Reserve Fund 
Capital Outlay Projects 

201



202



203



204



Quick Summary / Abstract

1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Certificated Position
2. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.42 (1.42 F.T.E. – Layoffs) Temporary Certificated Positions
3. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.40 (.40 F.T.E. – Layoff) Music Teacher Position
4. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.23 (.23 F.T.E. – Layoff) School Psychologist Position

 

Recommendation

That the board approve Resolution  2024/25-9 and 2024/25-11 Regarding Certificated Reductions in
Force 

Supporting Documents

 Layoff Letter to Board

 Cert Layoff Resolution 202425-9

 Temp Release Resolution 202425-11

10. B. Consideration and Possible Action on Resolution 2024/25-9 Regarding Certificated Reductions
in Force

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

205



206



 

BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE  
 

HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

In the Matter of the Reduction or  ) RESOLUTION NO. 2024/25-9 
Discontinuance of Certain  ) 
Particular Kinds of Services for ) 
the 2025-2026 School Year  ) 
 
 WHEREAS the Board hereby finds that it is in the best interest of the Harmony Union 

School District (“District”) that, as of the end of the 2024-2025 school year, certain particular 

kinds of services now being provided by the District be reduced or discontinued as follows: 

1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 (F.T.E.) Permanent Certificated Position, POS 118 

2. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.4 (F.T.E.) Music Teacher, POS 97 

3. Eliminate the equivalent of 0.23 (F.T.E.) School Psychologist Position, POS 111 

 WHEREAS, in the opinion of the Governing Board of this District it is necessary 

by reason of the aforementioned reduction and discontinuance of services to 

decrease the number of certificated employees by the equivalent of one and sixty-

three hundredths (1.63) full-time equivalent employees for the 2025-2026 school 

year; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of the Harmony 

Union School District that, as of the end of the 2024-2025 school year the foregoing particular 

kinds of services now being provided by said District be and hereby are reduced to the extent 

hereinabove set forth. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Superintendent or Superintendent’s 

designee, be and hereby is authorized and directed to initiate and pursue procedures necessary 

not to reemploy the equivalent of one and sixty-three hundredths (1.63) full time equivalent 

207



 

certificated employees of this District pursuant to Education Code sections 44949 and 44955 

because of said reduction and discontinuance of services. 

 The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Governing Board of the Harmony Union 

School District on the 13th day of March, 2025, by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

      ___________________________________ 
      President, Governing Board 
 
 
 I, ____________________________, Clerk of the Governing Board of the Harmony 

Union School District do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, 

passed and adopted by the Governing Board at its meeting held on March 13, 2025. 

 
      ___________________________________ 
                 Clerk, Governing Board 
 

  

208



BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024/25-11 

 
 

In the Matter of the Decision  ) RESOLUTION TO RELEASE   
To Release Temporary   ) TEMPORARY CERTIFICATED  
Certificated Employees  ) EMPLOYEES 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) is authorized under Education Code section 

44954, subdivision (a), to give, “[a]t the pleasure of the board,” notice of release to any 

temporary certificated employee who has not served during one school year seventy-five percent 

(75%) of the number of days the regular schools of the District are maintained; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is authorized under Education Code section 44954(b) 

to give, at any time before the end of the current school year, a notice of release for the 

succeeding school year to any temporary certificated employee who has served during one 

school year at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the number of days the regular schools of the 

District are maintained; 

 WHEREAS, the employees listed in Attachment “A” are temporary certificated 

employees who at the end of the current school year will be subject to release as temporary 

employees pursuant subdivision (a) or (b) of Education Code section 44954;  

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has received a recommendation from the District 

Superintendent or other appropriate District administrator(s) to release the temporary employees 

listed in Attachment “A”, effective at the end of the current school year; and 

209



 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has discussed the recommendation made by the 

administration and concurs in said recommendation; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees determines that the 

employees listed in Attachment A shall be released at the at the end of the current school year; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the District Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee is 

directed to give notice, in accordance with the requirements of Education Code section 44954, to 

such employees of the Board of Trustees’ decision to release them. The District Superintendent 

or the Superintendent’s designee is further authorized to take any other actions necessary to 

effect the intent of this Resolution. 

 This Resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Harmony 

Union School District held on March 13, 2025. 

 AYES:  _________ 
 
 NOES:  _________ 
 
 ABSENT: _________ 
      _________________________ 
      President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 I, _____________________, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of this school district, do 

hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by the 

Board of Trustees at its meeting held on March 13, 2025. 

      ____________________________ 
             Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
  

210



 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 
 

HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 

 
1. Melina Porter, POS 131 
 
2. Heidi Leontie, POS 135 
 

 
 

 
  

211



Quick Summary / Abstract

1. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.7 F.T.E. (2 - .85 positions)(1.7 F.T.E. – Layoffs) Permanent
Paraeducator Special Education Temporary Assistant Classified Positions

2. Eliminate the equivalent of 3.4 F.T.E. (4 - .85 positions)(3.4 F.T.E. – Layoffs) Permanent
Paraeducator Instructional Assistant Classified Positions

3. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.0 F.T.E. (1.0 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent Custodial and
Maintenance Technician Position

4. Eliminate the equivalent of .6 F.T.E (.6 F.T.E. – Layoff) Permanent ELOP Coordinator
Position 

5. Eliminate the equivalent of 1.44125 F.T.E (1.44125 F.T.E. – Layoffs) ELOP
(Aftercare) Paraeducator Positions

 

 

Recommendation

That the board approve Resolution 2024/25-10 Regarding

Classified Reductions in Force 

Supporting Documents

 Layoff Letter to Board

 Classified Resolution 202425-10

10. C. Consideration of and Possible Action on Resolution 2024/25-10 Regarding Classified Reductions
in Force

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

212



213



 
 

RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
 

HARMONY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

In the Matter of the Elimination of Certain ) 
Positions in the Permanent Classified  ) RESOLUTION NO. 2024/25-10 
Service and Directing Notification of   )  
Classified Employees    ) 
 

WHEREAS, the Harmony Union School District (“District”) maintains the 

following positions within the classified/management service: 

1. Paraeducator Special Education Temporary Assistant  
2. Paraeducator Instructional Assistant  
3. Custodial Position 
4. Aftercare Coordinator Position  
5. Paraeducator Instructional Assistant and Paraeducator Bilingual 

Services Instructional Assistant who are associated with Aftercare  

WHEREAS, due to cause, including lack of work and/or lack of funds and/or for 

compliance with the seniority requirements of the Education Code, the Board of Trustees 

hereby finds that it will be necessary to eliminate or reduce certain services to the 

following extent: 

1. Paraeducator Special Education Temporary Assistant Positions – 
Two positions for a total of 1.70 FTE 

2. Paraeducator Instructional Assistant – Four positions for a total of 3.4 
FTE 

3. Custodial Position – One position for a total of 1.0 FTE 
4. Aftercare Coordinator Position – One position for a total of 0.6 FTE 
5. Paraeducator Instructional Assistant and Paraeducator Bilingual 

Services Instructional Assistant who are associated with Aftercare – 
Six Positions for a total of 1.44125 FTE 
 

214



 
 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees that as of the 

end of the 2024-2025 school year the above-referenced classified positions shall be 

eliminated by the District be to the extent set forth herein.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, pursuant to Education Code sections 45117, 

45298, and 45308, the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee is authorized and 

directed to initiate and pursue procedures necessary terminate the employment of 

classified employees due to the elimination of the above-referenced classified positions. 

The foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of the 

Harmony Union School District on March 13, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:      __________ 

NOES:      __________ 

ABSENT: __________ 

    __________________________________ 
               President, Board of Trustees 
       

 

 

 I, _____________________, Secretary/Clerk of the Board of Trustees, do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by the 

Board of Trustees of the District at its meeting on March 13, 2025.  

 
     ____________________________ 
     Clerk/Secretary, Board of Trustees 
 

 
 

215



Recommendation

That the board approve the Memorandum of Understanding with West Sonoma County Consortium for
Classroom Space on HUSD Campus

10. D. Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding with West Sonoma County Consortium for
Classroom Space on HUSD Campus

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

216



Supporting Documents

 All section Policy

 Guide Sheet

Policies

 [DRAFT] Policy 0420.41: Charter School Oversight

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 0420.41-E(1): Charter School Oversight

 [DRAFT] Policy 0450: Comprehensive Safety Plan

 [DRAFT] Regulation 0450: Comprehensive Safety Plan

 [DRAFT] Policy 1113: District And School Websites

 [DRAFT] Regulation 1113: District And School Websites

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 1113-E(1): District And School Websites

 [DRAFT] Policy 1260: Educational Foundation

 [DRAFT] Regulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures

 [DRAFT] Regulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures

 [DRAFT] Policy 2121: Superintendent's Contract

 [DRAFT] Policy 3516: Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

 [DRAFT] Regulation 3516: Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

10. E. Board Policy Updates- First Reading 

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

217



 [DRAFT] Policy 3550: Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

 [DRAFT] Regulation 3550: Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

 [DRAFT] Policy 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

 [DRAFT] Regulation 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

 [DRAFT] Policy 3553: Free And Reduced Price Meals

 [DRAFT] Regulation 3553: Free And Reduced Price Meals

 [DRAFT] Policy 4111: Recruitment And Selection

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4112.5: Criminal Record Check

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 4112.5-E(1): Criminal Record Check

 [DRAFT] Policy 4112.9: Employee Notifications

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 4112.9-E(1): Employee Notifications

 [DRAFT] Policy 4118: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4118: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4119.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Pro…

 [DRAFT] Policy 4121: Temporary/Substitute Personnel

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4121: Temporary/Substitute Personnel

 [DRAFT] Policy 4127: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4127: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

218



 [DRAFT] Policy 4140: Bargaining Units

 [DRAFT] Policy 4157: Employee Safety

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4157: Employee Safety

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4157.1: Work-Related Injuries

 [DRAFT] Policy 4161: Leaves

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4161: Leaves

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4161.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4161.2: Personal Leaves

 [DRAFT] Policy 4211: Recruitment And Selection

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4212.5: Criminal Record Check

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 4212.5-E(1): Criminal Record Check

 [DRAFT] Policy 4212.9: Employee Notifications

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 4212.9-E(1): Employee Notifications

 [DRAFT] Policy 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

 [DRAFT] Policy 4218.1: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4219.11: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

 [DRAFT] Policy 4227: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

219



 [DRAFT] Regulation 4227: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

 [DRAFT] Policy 4240: Bargaining Units

 [DRAFT] Policy 4257: Employee Safety

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4257: Employee Safety

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4257.1: Work-Related Injuries

 [DRAFT] Policy 4261: Leaves

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4261: Leaves

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4261.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4261.2: Personal Leaves

 [DRAFT] Policy 4311: Recruitment And Selection

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4312.5: Criminal Record Check

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 4312.5-E(1): Criminal Record Check

 [DRAFT] Policy 4312.9: Employee Notifications

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 4312.9-E(1): Employee Notifications

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4319.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Pro…

 [DRAFT] Policy 4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

 [DRAFT] Policy 4340: Bargaining Units

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

220



 [DRAFT] Policy 4357: Employee Safety

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4357: Employee Safety

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4357.1: Work-Related Injuries

 [DRAFT] Policy 4361: Leaves

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4361: Leaves

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4361.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave

 [DRAFT] Regulation 4361.2: Personal Leaves

 [DRAFT] Policy 5113: Absences And Excuses

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5113: Absences And Excuses

 [DRAFT] Policy 5126: Awards For Achievement

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5126: Awards For Achievement

 [DRAFT] Policy 5141.21: Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

 [DRAFT] Policy 5144: Discipline

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5144: Discipline

 [DRAFT] Policy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian Notifications

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 5145.6-E(1): Parent/Guardian Notifications

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5145.7: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5145.71: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Pro…

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

221



 [DRAFT] Policy 6000: Concepts And Roles

 [DRAFT] Policy 6115: Ceremonies And Observances

 [DRAFT] Regulation 6115: Ceremonies And Observances

 [DRAFT] Policy 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

 [DRAFT] Regulation 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

 [DRAFT] Policy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling Services

 [DRAFT] Policy 6175: Migrant Education Program

 [DRAFT] Regulation 6175: Migrant Education Program

 [DRAFT] Policy 6177: Summer Learning Programs

 [DRAFT] Policy 7214: General Obligation Bonds

 [DRAFT] Regulation 7214: General Obligation Bonds

 [DRAFT] Bylaw 9220: Governing Board Elections

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 9220-E(1): Governing Board Elections

 [DRAFT] Bylaw 9223: Filling Vacancies

 [DRAFT] Bylaw 9320: Meetings And Notices

 [DRAFT] Bylaw 9323.2: Actions By The Board

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 9323.2-E(1): Actions By The Board

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

222



CSBA Policy Management Console
CSBA Sample District Policy Manual

1 223



Policy 0420.41: Charter School OversightPolicy 0420.41: Charter School Oversight Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/01/2013 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. The Governing Board is
required to oversee any charter school it authorizes. This oversight is to ensure the school's compliance with legal
requirements and the charter. Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 47604, if the district complies with all
oversight responsibilities required by law, it will not be liable for the debts or obligations of any charter school that
operates as or is operated by a nonprofit public benefit corporation pursuant to Corporations Code 5110-6910.

For guidance when determining whether to grant a renewal of the charter or whether a revocation of the charter is
warranted, see BP 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal and BP 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation.

Pursuant to Education Code 47605, if the State Board of Education (SBE) approves a petition upon appeal after the
Board and County Board of Education have denied the petition, SBE is required to designate, in consultation with
the petitioner, either the Board or the County Board as the chartering authority.
The Governing Board recognizes its ongoing responsibility to oversee that any charter school authorized by the
Board is successfully fulfilling the terms of its charter.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify at least one staff member to serve as a contact person for each charter
school authorized by the Board.  (Education Code 47604.32)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47604.32 requires the district to visit each charter school at least once every year.
CSBA's publication, "Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams," recommends more frequent visits in order to
monitor school operations more closely and develop relationships with the staff at the school.
The Superintendent or designee shall visit each charter school at least annually and may inspect or observe any part
of a charter school at any time.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47607)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 47604, if a charter school operates as or is operated by a nonprofit public
benefit corporation, the Board is entitled to appoint a single representative to the board of directors of the
nonprofit public benefit corporation. It is recommended that the Board not appoint a district employee or a Board
member to the nonprofit's board. Districts that seek to appoint a representative are advised to consult CSBA's
District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel regarding any potential conflict of
interest that may arise. Additionally, as an alternative to appointing a member to the nonprofit's board, CSBA's
Guide suggests that the district designate its charter school contact, appointed pursuant to Education Code
47604.32, to simply attend meetings of the nonprofit's board.
The Superintendent may designate someone to attend meetings of the charter school governing body whenever
possible.

Monitoring Charter School Performance

CSBA NOTE: The district has a responsibility to oversee that the charter school complies with all applicable legal
requirements. Violation of any law may subject the charter school to revocation pursuant to Education Code 47607.
See the accompanying Exhibit for a list of legal requirements pertaining to the operation of charter schools.
Any charter school authorized by the Board shall be monitored by the Superintendent or designee to determine
whether the charter school complies with all legal requirements applicable to charter schools, including all reports
required of charter schools by law, as specified in Education Code 47604.32. Any violations of law shall be reported
to the Board.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47605 requires that measurable student outcomes for all students of the charter
school, including numerically significant student subgroups as defined in Education Code 52052, be included in the
school's charter petition and that these outcomes be aligned with the state priorities for the local control and
accountability plan (LCAP) as stated in Education Code 52060; see AR 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization.
Pursuant to Education Code 52052, numerically significant subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically
disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students, when the
subgroup consists of at least 30 students (or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students) in the school.

Education Code 47605 requires that the charter petition include methods for measuring the charter school's
progress toward achieving student outcomes. Although the measures of the school's progress may vary, Education
Code 47605 requires that charter schools conduct any statewide assessments applicable to other public schools. In

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

2 224



addition, charter schools are included in the California School Dashboard, which reports the status of school
performance on multiple state and local indicators and is intended to assist schools and districts in identifying
strengths and areas in need of improvement in each priority area addressed by the LCAP. Charter schools that serve
high-risk students may qualify for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status program, which uses modified
methods of measurement for accountability indicators when appropriate.
The Board shall monitor each charter school to determine whether it is achieving the measurable student outcomes
set forth in the charter, both schoolwide and for each numerically significant student subgroup served by the school
as defined in Education Code 52052. This determination shall be based on the measures specified in the approved
charter and any applicable MOU, and on the charter school's annual review and assessment of its progress toward
the goals and actions identified in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP), as reported in the California School
Dashboard.

The Board shall monitor the fiscal condition of the charter school based on any financial report or information
obtained from the charter school, including, but not limited to, the charter school's preliminary budget, LCAP and
annual update of the charter school's LCAP, first and second interim financial reports, and final unaudited report for
the full prior year.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47604.33, 47606.5)

Waivers

CSBA NOTE: A charter school is not authorized to submit general waiver requests to SBE on its own behalf, unless
an exception applies. Rather, a charter school may submit a waiver request through the district. A general waiver
request form is available on the California Department of Education's (CDE) website. See BP 1431 - Waivers.
If the charter school wishes to request a general waiver of any state law or regulation applicable to it, it shall request
that the Board approve and the district submit a general waiver request to the State Board of Education (SBE) on its
behalf. Upon approval of the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit such a waiver request to SBE on
behalf of the charter school.

Provision of District Services

CSBA NOTE: CSBA's Guide recommends one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify any financial and
operational agreements between the district and the charter school, including any services that will be provided by
the district; see BP 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization.
Upon approval by the Board of an appropriate agreement, the charter school may contract with the district or any
other source for administrative or other services.  (Education Code 47613)

Whenever the district agrees to provide administrative or support services to a charter school, the district and the
charter school shall develop a memorandum of understanding (MOU) which clarifies the financial and operational
agreements between them.

At the request of a charter school, the Superintendent or designee shall create and submit any reports required by
the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement System on behalf of the charter school. The
district may charge the charter school for the actual costs of the reporting services, but shall not require the charter
school to purchase payroll processing services from the district as a condition for creating and submitting these
reports.  (Education Code 47611.3)

Material Revisions to Charter

Material revisions to a charter may only be made with Board approval. Material revisions shall be governed by the
same standards and criteria that apply to petitions for the authorization of charter schools as set forth in Education
Code 47605 and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably comprehensive description of any new requirement
for charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last renewed.  (Education Code
47607)

The Board shall determine whether a proposed change in charter school operations would constitute a material
revision of the approved charter.

If an approved charter school proposes to expand operations to one or more additional sites or grade levels, whether
concurrently with or unrelated to a renewal, the charter school shall request a material revision to its charter and
shall notify the Board of those additional locations or grade levels. The Board shall consider approval of the
additional locations or grade levels at an open, public meeting.  (Education Code 47605, 47607)

3 225



The Board may deny a proposed material revision if it finds that the proposed material revision would render the
charter school demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community in which the school is located or
proposes to locate. In making this finding, the Board shall consider all of the following:  (Education Code 47605)

1. The fiscal impact of the proposed expansion on the district
 

2. The extent to which the expansion would substantially undermine existing services, academic offerings, or
programmatic offerings
 

3. Whether the expansion would duplicate a program currently offered within the district that has sufficient
capacity for the students proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to where the charter school
intends to locate

Additionally, the Board may deny a proposed material revision if it finds that the district is not positioned to absorb
the fiscal impact of the proposed material revision. The Board shall make this finding if the district has a qualified
interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131 and the County Superintendent of Schools, in consultation
with the County Office Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, certifies that approving the charter school
would result in the district having a negative interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131,  the district has
a negative interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131, or the district is under state receivership.
 (Education Code 47605)

Location of Charter Schools

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47605 and 47605.1 establish geographic and site requirements for charter schools.
Pursuant to Education Code 47605, a charter school must be located within the geographic boundaries of the
authorizing district. However, Education Code 47605 permits the location of some charter schools outside of the
authorizing district's boundaries under specified conditions. For example, a charter school in operation before
October 1, 2019, on a federally recognized California reservation or rancheria or operated by a federally recognized
California Indian tribe is exempted from the geographic restrictions of Education Code 47605.1.  For information
about geographic and site requirements for new charter schools, see AR 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization.
Except when permitted to operate outside district boundaries pursuant to Education Code 47605 and 47605.1, a
charter school shall be located within district boundaries.

Fees/Charges for Supervisorial Oversight

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47613 authorizes the district to charge the charter school, within specified limits, for
the costs of supervisorial oversight of the school. Education Code 47613 provides that the costs of supervisorial
oversight include, but are not limited to, costs incurred for technical assistance or intervention pursuant to
Education Code 47607.3; see "Technical Assistance/Intervention" below. CSBA's Guide suggests that supervisorial
oversight activities also might include site visits and site visit protocols, development of memorandums of
understanding, reviews of performance data and financial reports, review of governance procedures, monitoring of
teacher credentialing and assignments, facilities compliance, and legal auditing.
The district may charge for district supervisorial oversight as follows:  (Education Code 47613; 5 CCR 11969.7)

1. Actual costs up to one percent of the charter school's revenue
 

2. Actual costs up to three percent of the charter school's revenue if the district provides the charter school
substantially rent-free facilities

If the district provides the charter school with facilities under Education Code 47614 and charges the charter
school a pro-rata share of the facilities costs calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 11969.7, the district may only
charge the charter school for the actual costs of supervisorial oversight up to one percent of the charter
school's revenue.
 

3. Actual costs if the district is assigned supervisorial oversight responsibility for the charter school by SBE when
authorized on appeal

Technical Assistance/Intervention

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47607.3 establishes criteria for the provision of technical assistance to charter
schools including, but not limited to, the option to request assistance from the California Collaborative for

4 226



Educational Excellence (CCEE). If, after providing technical assistance, the CCEE informs the Board that the charter
school has failed or is unable to implement CCEE's recommendations or continues to have persistent or acute
inadequate performance, then the Board must consider revocation of the charter; see BP 0420.43 - Charter School
Revocation.
Whenever a charter school is identified for technical assistance based on the performance of one or more
numerically significant student subgroups on SBE-established criteria, the charter school shall receive technical
assistance from the County Superintendent. Such technical assistance shall be focused on building the charter
school's capacity to develop and implement actions and services responsive to student and community needs,
including, but not limited to, any of the following:  (Education Code 47607.3)

1. Assisting the charter school to identify its strengths and weaknesses in regard to the state priorities applicable
to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 47605(c)

This shall include working collaboratively with the charter school to review performance data on the state and
local indicators included in the California School Dashboard and other relevant local data and to identify
effective, evidence-based programs or practices that address any areas of weakness.
 

2. Working collaboratively with the charter school to secure assistance from an academic, programmatic, or fiscal
expert or team of experts to identify and implement effective programs and practices that are designed to
improve performance in any areas of weakness identified by the charter school

Another service provider, including, but not limited to, a school district, county office of education, or charter
school, may be solicited to act as a partner to the charter school in need of technical assistance.
 

3. Obtaining from the charter school timely documentation demonstrating that it has completed the activities
described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, or has selected another service provider to work
with the charter school to complete the activities described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities,
and ongoing communication with the Board to assess the charter school's progress in improving student
outcomes

In addition, if, in three out of four consecutive school years, a charter school fails to improve outcomes for three or
more numerically significant student subgroups, or for all of the student subgroups if the school has fewer than three
subgroups, in regard to one or more state or school priorities identified in the charter, the County Superintendent
may request that the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), with SBE approval, assign the California
Collaborative for Educational Excellence to provide advice and assistance to the charter school pursuant to
Education Code 52074.  (Education Code 47607.3; 52072)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47607 requires the Board to consider specified criteria of academic performance
when determining whether to deny a petition for charter renewal or to revoke a charter, with achievement of all
student subgroups served by the charter school being the most important factor; see BP 0420.42 - Charter School
Renewal and BP 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation. In addition, Education Code 47607.3 requires the Board to
consider revocation of a charter whenever it finds that the charter school has failed, or is unable, to implement the
recommendations of CCEE or continues to demonstrate persistent or acute inadequate performance.
In accordance with law, the Board may deny a charter school's renewal petition or may revoke a charter based on
the charter school's poor performance, especially with regard to inadequate academic achievement of all numerically
significant subgroups of students served by the charter school.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.2)

Complaints

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52075, charter schools are required to establish policies and procedures
for addressing complaints of noncompliance with Education Code 47606.5 (annual update of school goals, actions,
and related expenditures) or 47607.3 (technical assistance or intervention based on the school's failure to improve
student outcomes). See AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for applicable procedures.
Each charter school shall establish and maintain policies and procedures in accordance with the uniform complaint
procedures as specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 to enable any person alleging the school's noncompliance with
Education Code 47606.5 or 47607.3 to file a complaint with the charter school.  (Education Code 52075)

A complaint may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to
support an allegation of noncompliance. A complainant who is not satisfied with the decision may appeal the
decision to the SPI.  (Education Code 52075)

5 227



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

If the charter school finds merit in the complaint or the SPI finds merit in an appeal, a remedy shall be provided to all
affected students and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 52075)

School Closure

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 47605, procedures to be followed in the event a charter school ceases
operation for any reason must be specified in the charter; see AR 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization. 5 CCR
11962 lists components that must be included in these procedures, including (1) designation of a responsible entity
to conduct closure-related activities, (2) notifications to specified persons and entities, (3) provision of information
about students' grade level, course completion, and district of residence, (4) transfer and maintenance of student
and personnel records, (5) completion of an independent final audit, (6) disposal of any net assets remaining after all
liabilities of the charter school have been paid or otherwise addressed, (7) completion and filing of any annual
reports required pursuant to Education Code 47604.33, and (8) identification of funding for the activities identified
in 1-7.

Depending on the terms of the charter, these duties may be performed by the charter school, the district, or
another specified entity. However, Education Code 47604.32 specifies that it is the responsibility of the district to
notify CDE when a charter school ceases operation for any reason. CSBA's Guide recommends that, in addition to
the notifications required by 5 CCR 11962, either the district or the charter school should announce the closure to
any school districts that may be responsible for providing education services to the former students of the charter
school.
In the event that the Board revokes or denies renewal of a charter or the charter school ceases operation for any
reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, when applicable in accordance with the charter school and/or an
 applicable agreement between the district and the charter school, provide assistance to facilitate the transfer of the
charter school's former students and to finalize financial reporting and close-out of the charter school.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of Education, within 10
calendar days of the Board's action, if renewal of a charter is denied, a charter is revoked, or a charter school will
cease operation for any reason. Such notification shall include, but not be limited to, a description of the
circumstances of the closure, the effective date of the closure, and the location of student and personnel records.
 (Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11700-11705 Independent study

5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Bus. And Prof. Code 7583.45 Training for security officers

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5 Public finance; school accountability report card

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5 Common school system

Corp. Code 5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members

Ed. Code 215 Suicide prevention policies

Ed. Code 215.5 Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 221.61 Posting of Title IX information on website

Ed. Code 221.9 Sex equity in competitive athletics

6 228



Ed. Code 222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students

Ed. Code 222.5 Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.4 Mandated policy on bullying prevention

Ed. Code 234.6 Bullying and harassment prevention information

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 243 Prohibition of discrimination; instructional materials

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32283.5 Bullying; online training

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation incident tracking

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35120 Student board membership

Ed. Code 35179.4-35179.6 Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool safety that is not
part of interscholastic athletic program

Ed. Code 35183.1 Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of
religious/cultural significance

Ed. Code 35292.6 Stocking of menstrual products

Ed. Code 35330 Field trips and excursions; student fees

Ed. Code 38001.5 Training for security officers

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals

Ed. Code 39831.3 Transportation safety plan

Ed. Code 39843 Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department of Motor
Vehicles

Ed. Code 41024 Report of expenditure of state facility funds

Ed. Code 42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures

Ed. Code 44030.5 Reporting change in employment status due to alleged misconduct

Ed. Code 44237 Criminal record summary

Ed. Code 44691 Information on detection of child abuse; annual training

Ed. Code 44830.1 Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125.1 Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; parental leave

Ed. Code 46390-46393 Emergency average daily attendance

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992

Ed. Code 47634.2 Nonclassroom-based instruction

Ed. Code 47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools

Ed. Code 47651 Apportionment of funds; charter schools

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional kindergarten

Ed. Code 48010 Minimum age of admission to first grade

Ed. Code 48206.3-48208 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

7 229



Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48901.1 Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48913.5 Suspended students; homework assignments

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49010 Student fees

Ed. Code 49011 Student fees

Ed. Code 49014 Public School Fair Debt Collection Act

Ed. Code 49056 Prohibition of denial of recess

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49062.5 Student records; name or gender change

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging student records

Ed. Code 49073.2 Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information; minutes of
board meeting

Ed. Code 49076.7 Student records; data privacy; social security numbers

Ed. Code 49110 Authority to issue work permits

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Ed. Code 49414.7 Administration of albuterol inhalers

Ed. Code 49428 Notification of mental health services

Ed. Code 49428.5 Employment of medical personnel

Ed. Code 49430-49434 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49431.9 Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods

Ed. Code 49475 Health and safety; concussions and head injuries

Ed. Code 49501.5 Free breakfast and lunch to all students

Ed. Code 49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017

Ed. Code 49564.3 Provision of federal universal meal service

Ed. Code 49603 On campus access to employers and military services

Ed. Code 49700-49701 Education of children of military families

Ed. Code 51224.7 Mathematics placement policy

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance of coursework

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.6 Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that require health
education for graduation

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8 Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid
and California Dream Act Application

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

8 230



Ed. Code 51413 Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit examination

Ed. Code 51744-51749.6 Independent study

Ed. Code 51925-51929 Mandatory mental health education

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 52075 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs

Ed. Code 56026 Special education

Ed. Code 56040.3 Availability of assistive technology device

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools

Ed. Code 56365-56366.12 Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools

Ed. Code 56521.1-56521.2 Emergency Interventions

Ed. Code 60600-60649 Assessment of academic achievement

Ed. Code 64000 Categorical programs included in consolidated application

Ed. Code 64001 School plan for student achievement; consolidated application programs

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils

Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and high school
graduation

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program

H&S Code 104559 Tobacco-free schools

Lab. Code 1198.5 Personnel records related to performance and grievance

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Pen. Code 1192.7 Definition of serious felony

Pen. Code 667.5 Definition of violent felony

Veh. Code 28160 Child safety alert system

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 7221-7221j Charter schools

34 CFR 200.1-200.78 Accountability

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

9 231



Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021)

Attorney General Opinion 101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018)

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)

CA Office of Administrative Hearings Decisions Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School (2012) OAH Case
No. 2011060763

California Department of Education Publication Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 20-
01, July 23, 2020

California Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg. Publication School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Court Decision Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District (2005) 130
Cal.App.4th 986

CSBA Publication Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2021

CSBA Publication Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, Governance
Brief, October 2017

CSBA Publication Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement
and Effective Governance in California's Charter Schools, September 2018

U.S. DOE Guidance Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory
Guidance, January 2014

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture

Website National Suicide Prevention Lifeline

Website National Domestic Violence Hotline

Website California State Teachers Retirement System

Website California Public Employees Retirement System

Website California Department of General Services, Office of Administrative
Hearings

Website California Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training

Website California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services

Website California Department of Pesticide Regulation

Website California State Controller

Website California Student Aid Commission

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers

Website California Charter Schools Association

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

10 232



Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.42 Charter School Renewal

0420.43 Charter School Revocation

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1431 Waivers

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

7160 Charter School Facilities

7160 Charter School Facilities

11 233



Exhibit 0420.41-E(1): Charter School OversightExhibit 0420.41-E(1): Charter School Oversight Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2017 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 47610, charter schools are exempt from Education Code provisions
governing school districts unless otherwise specified in law. However, charter schools, like other public schools, are
subject to the state and federal constitutions, applicable federal laws, state laws that apply to governmental
agencies in general, and state laws that are expressly applicable to charter schools. Violation of any law may subject
the charter school to revocation pursuant to Education Code 47607; see BP 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation.
This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of legal requirements that apply to charter schools and may be used by districts
to monitor a charter school's compliance with law. Other legal requirements may exist and may be identified in the
future.

A charter school shall be subject to the terms of its charter; any memorandum of understanding between the school
and the district Governing Board; the state and federal constitutions; applicable federal laws; state laws that apply to
governmental agencies in general; and other legal requirements that are expressly applicable to charter schools,
including, but not limited to, the following requirements.

Governance

1. Comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), California Public Records Act
(Government Code 7920.000-7930.215), conflict of interest laws (Government Code 1090-1099), and
Political Reform Act (Government Code 81000-91014), including the adoption of a conflict of interest code
pursuant to Government Code 87300  (Education Code 47604.1)
 

2. Except as otherwise authorized by Government Code 54954, hold the meetings of its governing body within
the physical boundaries of the county in which the charter school is located or, if a nonclassroom-based
charter school that does not have a facility or operates one or more resource centers, hold governing body
meetings within the physical boundaries of the county in which the greatest number of students enrolled in the
charter school reside

In addition, a two-way teleconference location shall be established at the school site and/or resource center,
as applicable.  (Education Code 47604.1)
 

3. The charter school's executive director or any of the charter school's employees shall not serve as a member of
the county board of education in the county where the charter school is located  (Education Code 1006;
Government Code 1099)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 47604.2, the governing body of a charter school attended by high
school students is required to appoint a student member to the governing body if it receives a petition for
such appointment, and, as amended by AB 275 (Ch. 321, Statutes of 2023), may award the student member
of the governing body elective course credit based on the number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for
the student member's services provided or monthly financial compensation for such service.

4. If the charter school is attended by high school students and the governing body receives student petition to
appoint a student member to the governing body, appoint one or more student members in accordance with
Education Code 47604.2

Operations
 

5. Not be operated as, or be operated by, a for-profit corporation, a for-profit educational management
organization, or a for-profit charter management organization  (Education Code 47604)
 

6. Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other operations  (Education
Code 47605)

Admission/Enrollment
 

7. Adhere to all laws establishing the minimum age for public school attendance  (Education Code 47610)
 

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

12 234



8. Serve students who are California residents and who, if over 19 years of age, are continuously enrolled in a
public school and making "satisfactory progress" toward a high school diploma as defined in 5 CCR 11965
 (Education Code 47612)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 56145 requires charter schools to serve students with disabilities in the same
manner as other public schools. Pursuant to Education Code 47646, districts must ensure that each charter
school that is deemed to be a public school of the district, and is not its own local educational agency (LEA)
for special education purposes, receives an equitable share of special education funding and services for
students with disabilities who are enrolled in the charter school.

If a charter school is operating as a public school of the district for purposes of special education, the district
retains responsibility and must determine how to ensure that students with disabilities receive a free
appropriate public education (FAPE). However, as indicated in the California Office of Administrative
Hearings ruling in Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School, a charter school operating as its
own LEA for purposes of special education, including a charter school offering an independent study program,
is the entity responsible for providing FAPE.

9. Serve students with disabilities in the same manner as such students are served in other district schools
 (Education Code 47646, 56145)
 

10. Admit all students who wish to attend the charter school, according to the following criteria and procedures:
 

a. Admission to the charter school shall not be determined according to the student's or parent/guardian's
place of residence within the state, except that any existing public school converting partially or entirely
to a charter school shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission preference to students who reside
within that school's former attendance area  (Education Code 47605)

If a charter school will be physically located in a public elementary school attendance area in which 50
percent or more of the student enrollment is eligible for free or reduced-price meals, it may also
establish an admission preference for students who are currently enrolled in that public elementary
school and for students who reside in the public school attendance area.  (Education Code 47605.3)
 

b. If the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the school's capacity,
attendance shall be determined by a public random drawing, with preference extended to students
currently attending the charter school and students who reside in the district, except as provided for in
Education Code 47614.5  (Education Code 47605)
 

c. Other admission preferences may be permitted by the Board of the district on an individual school basis
consistent with law

Preferences shall not result in limited enrollment access for students with disabilities, academically low-
achieving students, English learners, neglected or delinquent students, students experiencing
homelessness, foster youth, students who are economically disadvantaged, or on the basis of nationality,
race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation. Mandatory parental volunteer hours shall not be the basis of a
preference or a criterion for admission or continued enrollment.  (Education Code 47605)
 

11. Not discourage a student from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the charter school, nor encourage a current
student from disenrolling, for any reason, including, but not limited to, the student's academic performance,
nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation or because the student is a student with disabilities,
academically low achieving, an English learner, neglected or delinquent, experiencing homelessness,
economically disadvantaged, or a foster youth

The charter school shall not request or require a student's records to be submitted before enrollment. The
charter school shall post on its website the California Department of Education's (CDE) notice of these
requirements and shall provide the notice to parents/guardians or students age 18 and older when the
parent/guardian or student inquires about enrollment, before conducting an enrollment lottery, and before
disenrollment of a student.  (Education Code 47605)
 

12. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding enrollment, identification, and
placement of students experiencing homelessness and unaccompanied youth  (Education Code 48850, 48851,
48852.5, 48852.6; 42 USC 11431-11435)
 

13 235



13. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding the enrollment and placement of
foster youth  (Education Code 48853.5, 48859)
 

14. Allow a student who is enrolled in the charter school but receiving individual instruction at home or a hospital
due to a temporary disability to return to the charter school when well enough to do so, provided the student
returns during the school year in which the individual instruction was initiated  (Education Code 48207.3)

Nondiscrimination
 

15. Not discriminate against any student on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code 220
 (Education Code 47605)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 243, as added by AB 1078 (Ch. 229, Statutes of 2023), clarifies when it is
unlawful discrimination for the Board to (1) refuse to approve the use of any textbook, instructional material,
supplemental instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or resource in
a school library or (2) prohibit the use of any textbook, instructional material, supplemental instructional
material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or resource in a school library. The Board
may not refuse to approve such use on the basis that the material includes a study of the role and
contributions of specified individuals or groups, unless the study of the role and contributions reflects
adversely upon legally protected groups. Additionally, the Board may not prohibit such use on the basis that
the study of the role and contributions contain inclusive or diverse perspectives.

16. Not discriminate in the use, selection, or rejection of textbooks, instructional materials, library books, or similar
educational resources  (Education Code 243)
 

17. Adopt policy that is consistent with the model policy developed by the California Attorney General addressing
the charter school's response to immigration enforcement, notify parents/guardians of their children's right to
a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, prohibit the collection of
information or documents regarding the immigration status of students or their family members, and fulfill
other requirements of Education Code 234.7
 

18. Post specified information related to the prohibition against discrimination under Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972 in a prominent and conspicuous location on the school website or on the website of the
charter operator  (Education Code 221.61)
 

19. If the charter school offers competitive athletics, annually post on the school's website or on the website of
the charter operator the total enrollment of the school classified by gender, the number of students who
participate in competitive athletics classified by gender, and the number of boys' and girls' teams classified by
sport and by competition level  (Education Code 221.9)
 

20. Provide specified accommodations to pregnant and parenting students, including, but not limited to, the
provision of parental leave and reasonable accommodations on campus to a lactating student to express breast
milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding

The charter school shall notify pregnant and parenting students and parents/guardians of the rights and
options available to pregnant and parenting students.  (Education Code 222, 222.5, 46015)
 

21. If a direct-funded charter school, adopt and implement uniform complaint procedures to resolve complaints of
unlawful discrimination or alleged violation of a state or federal law or regulation governing educational
programs, in accordance with 5 CCR 4600-4670  (5 CCR 4600)

CSBA NOTE: Item #22 applies to charter schools that serve high school students and participate in the
California Interscholastic Federation (CIF). Pursuant to Education Code 33353, as amended by AB 1327 (Ch.
366, Statutes of 2023), a charter school is required to post on its website, on or before April 1, 2025, the
standardized incident form developed by the California Department of Education (CDE) to track racial
discrimination, harassment, or hazing, that occurs at high school sporting games or events.

22. If the charter school serves high school students and participates in the California Interscholastic Federation,
post the standardized incident form developed by CDE to track racial discrimination, harassment, or hazing
that occurs at high school sporting games or events on the charter school's website on or before April 1, 2025,
and, upon CDE's request, submit information related to any completed standardized incident forms received by
the charter school  (Ed. Code 33353)

14 236



Tuition and Fees
 

23. Not charge tuition  (Education Code 47605)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47605 specifically prohibits a charter school from charging tuition, but does not
mention fees or other charges. As clarified in CDE advisory, "Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges,"
because charter schools are subject to the California Constitution, the free school guarantee of the California
Constitution, Article 9, Section 5, applies to charter schools. Charter schools may only charge fees which are
explicitly authorized by law for charter schools.

24. Not charge student fees for any activity that is an integral component of the educational program, except as
authorized by those Education Code provisions that explicitly apply to charter schools  (Education Code
49010, 49011)
 

25. Not bill, nor take any negative action against, a student or former student for a debt owed to the charter
school

The school shall provide an itemized invoice for any amount owed by the parent/guardian on behalf of a
student or former student before pursuing payment of the debt and shall provide a receipt to the
parent/guardian for each payment made to the school.  (Education Code 49014)

School Plans

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52064.3, by January 31, 2025, charter schools that are identified
by CDE as needing an improvement plan pursuant to 34 CFR 300.600-300.647 are required to complete an
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Addendum adopted by SBE relating to improvements in services
for students with disabilities. See BP 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan for more information.

26. Adopt a local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and update the plan by July 1 each year, after holding a
public hearing, consulting with specified stakeholders, and using the template adopted by the State Board of
Education (SBE)
 

27. As part of the LCAP adoption and annual update to the LCAP, the governing body of the charter school shall
separately adopt a local control funding formula budget overview for parents/guardians and as appropriate, an
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Addendum, based on the templates developed by SBE  (Education
Code 47604.33, 47606.5, 52064, 52064.1, 52064.3)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 47606.5, as amended by SB 114 (Ch. 48, Statutes of 2023), charter
schools are required to present a report on the annual update to the local control and accountability plan and
the local control funding formula budget overview for parents/guardians on or before February 28 of each
year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing body.

28. Present a report on the annual update to the LCAP and the local control funding formula budget overview for
parents/guardians on or before February 28 of each year, at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing
body of the charter school  (Education Code 47606.5)
 

29. If the charter school applies for federal and/or state categorical program funding through the state's
consolidated application, establish a school site council to develop and annually review a school plan for
student achievement, unless the school chooses to use its LCAP for this purpose  (Education Code 64000-
64001, 65000-65001)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32282, as amended by SB 10 (Ch. 856, Statutes of 2023), requires schools that
serve students in any of grades 7-12 to include in their comprehensive safety plan a protocol in the event a
student is suffering or is reasonably believed to be suffering from an opioid overdose.

Additionally, Education Code 32282, as amended by SB 323 (Ch. 599, Statutes of 2023), requires that
comprehensive safety plans include adaptations for student with disabilities and that, after the first evaluation
or review is conducted and after each annual evaluation, or review,  a school employee, a student's
parent/guardian or educational rights holder, or student may bring concerns about an individual student's
ability to access the disaster safety procedures described in the comprehensive school safety plan/school
safety plan to the principal.

Education Code 32282, as amended by SB 671 (Ch. 626, Statutes of 2023), also requires a charter school's

15 237



safety plan to include procedures to assess and respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful
activity that is being conducted or threatened to be conducted at the school, an activity sponsored by the
school, or a school bus serving the school.

30. Develop a comprehensive safety plan in accordance with Education Code 32282 and review and update the
plan in accordance with law by March 1 each year  (Education Code 47605)
 

31. Develop a transportation safety plan that includes procedures to ensure that a student is not left unattended
on a school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care motor vehicle and procedures for designating an
adult chaperone, other than the driver, to accompany students on a school activity bus

In addition, ensure that each school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care motor vehicle is equipped
with a child safety alert system that requires the driver to either manually contact or scan the device, thereby
prompting the driver to inspect the entirety of the interior of the vehicle before exiting, unless the student
activity bus is exempted by law.  (Education Code 39831.3; Vehicle Code 28160

Curriculum and Instruction

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47612.5 specifies, by grade level, the minimum number of instructional minutes
that must be offered each fiscal year. Any charter school that fails to meet this requirement will have its state
apportionment reduced in proportion to the percentage of instructional minutes that the school fails to offer.
Education Code 47612.5 and 47612.6 provide that neither the State Board of Education nor the
Superintendent of Public Instruction may waive the required number of instructional minutes but may waive
the fiscal penalties under specified conditions.

32. Offer at least the number of instructional minutes required by law for the grade levels provided by the charter
school  (Education Code 47612.5)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49056, as added by SB 291 (Ch. 863, Statutes of 2023), charter
schools that maintain any of grades K-8 are required to provide at least one or more periods of recess that
total 30 minutes on regular instructional days and at least 15 minutes on early release days, except that for
any student with a disability, recess is required to be in accordance with the student's individualized education
program or Section 504 plan.

33. Provide one or more periods of recess that total 30 minutes on regular instructional days and at least 15
minutes on early release days as required by law  (Education Code 49056)
 

34. If the charter school serves students in grade 9, adopt a fair, objective, and transparent mathematics placement
policy with specified components  (Education Code 51224.7)
 

35. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 7-12, provide comprehensive sexual health education
and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention education at least once in junior high or middle school
and once in high school  (Education Code 51931, 51934)
 

36. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 6-12, identify and implement methods of informing
parents/guardians of human trafficking prevention resources  (Education Code 49381)
 

37. If the charter school serves students in middle or high school and offers one or more courses in health
education, include in those courses instruction in mental health, as specified  (Education Code 51925-51929)
 

38. If the charter school serves students in grade 12, comply with the requirements for student completion and
submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid and California Dream Act Application  (Education
Code 51225.7, 51225.8)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52770, as added by AB 1173 (Ch. 11, Statutes of 2023), requires a charter
school that serves students in any of grades 9-12 that is planning to hold a college or career fair, to notify
each community college district that has overlapping jurisdiction of the date, time, and location of the fair, and
provide an opportunity for the community college district to participate.

39. If the charter school is planning to hold a college or career fair, the charter school shall notify each
apprenticeship program in the same county as the charter school and each community college district that has
overlapping jurisdiction with the charter school with the planned date, time, and location of the fair, and give
each community college district that has overlapping jurisdiction the opportunity to participate in the college
or career fair  (Education Code 52770, Labor Code 3074.2)

16 238



CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49603, as amended by AB 1605 (Ch. 142, Statutes of 2023),
charter schools offering instruction in any of grades 9-12 that provide on-campus access to employers, shall
not prohibit access to the military services.

40. If a charter school offers instruction in any of grades 9-12, and provides on-campus access to employers, not
prohibit access to the military services  (Education Code 49603)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 47612.5 provides that charter schools offering independent study are subject
to Education Code 51745-51749.6. Education Code 51745 requires that no course included among the
courses required for graduation may be offered solely through independent study. However, pursuant to 5
CCR 11705, a charter school offering grades 9-12 shall be deemed to be an "alternative school" for purposes
of independent study and thus, according to CDE, would comply with this provision because students in such
alternative schools are enrolled voluntarily and, if they wished, could attend any other district high school in
which the courses were offered via classroom instruction.

41. If the charter school provides independent study, meet the requirements of Education Code 51745-51749.6,
except that the school may offer courses required for graduation solely through independent study as an
exception to Education Code 51745(e)  (Education Code 47612.5, 51747.3; 5 CCR 11705)
 

42. Develop a plan for offering independent study to affected students pursuant to Education Code 46393 if the
governing body of the charter school submits an affidavit pursuant to Education Code 46392 necessitated by
an emergency condition that resulted in a school closure  (Education Code 46392, 46393)
 

43. Accept and provide full or partial credit for coursework satisfactorily completed by a foster youth, student
experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, student who is
migratory, or a newcomer student while attending another school  (Education Code 51225.2)
 

44. Meet all statewide standards and conduct any statewide assessments applicable to noncharter public schools
 (Education Code 47605, 47612.5, 60605)

Special Education
 

45. Provide assistive technology devices in a student's home or other settings if the individualized education
program team determines that such access is necessary

The charter school shall also provide an assistive technology device or comparable device to a student who
enrolls in another local educational agency, for two months after the student leaves the charter school or until
alternative arrangements can be made, whichever occurs first.  (Education Code 56040.3)
 

46. If the charter school is an independent member of a special education local plan area and has a master contract
with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school:
 

a. Pay the full amount of the tuition or fees for students with disabilities enrolled in programs or services
provided pursuant to that contract  (Education Code 56365)
 

b. Conduct at least one onsite visit to the nonpublic, nonsectarian school prior to a student's placement and
at least once each school year  (Education Code 56366.1)

High School Graduation
 

47. Exempt a foster youth, student experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court school student, child of a
military family, or student who is migratory who transfers between schools after the second year of high
school, or a newcomer student for newly immigrant students in grades 11-12, from any of the charter school's
graduation requirements that exceed state requirements, unless the charter school determines that the student
is reasonably able to complete the requirements by the end of the fourth year of high school  (Education Code
51225.1, 51225.2)
 

48. In accordance with Education Code 51225.31, exempt an eligible student with disabilities from all coursework
and other requirements adopted by the charter school board that are in addition to the statewide course
requirements specified in Education Code 51225.3, and award such student a high school diploma  (Education
Code 51225.31)
 

17 239



49. Grant a high school diploma to any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 2014-15 school
year and met all applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit examination
 (Education Code 51413)
 

50. Require students to meet the state minimum course requirements for graduation as specified in Education
Code 51225.3, as well as any additional graduation requirements required by the governing body   (Education
Code 51225.3)

Student Expression
 

51. Allow a student to wear traditional tribal regalia or recognized objects of religious or cultural significance as an
adornment at school graduation ceremonies, unless the charter school determines that an item is likely to
cause a substantial disruption of, or material interference with, the ceremony  (Education Code 35183.1)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48907 requires charter schools to establish a written "publications code"
related to students' rights to freedom of speech and of the press. These written rules and regulations must
include reasonable provisions for the time, place, and manner in which free expression may take place within
the charter school's jurisdiction.

52. Provide students the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press including, but not limited to, the use
of bulletin boards; the distribution of printed materials or petitions; the wearing of buttons, badges, and other
insignia; and the right of expression in official publications  (Education Code 48907, 48950)

Staffing
 

53. Require its teachers to hold a certificate, permit, or other document issued by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing (CTC) as required for the teacher's certificated assignment

Teachers employed by the charter school during the 2019-20 school year shall have until July 1, 2025 to
obtain the required certificate required.  (Education Code 47605, 47605.4)
 

54. If the charter school offers transitional kindergarten (TK), require credentialed teachers first assigned to a TK
class to meet one of three specified criteria establishing qualification for the position by August 1, 2025, and to
maintain adult to student ratios as specified in Education Code 48000  (Education Code 48000)
 

55. Correct any misassignments if notified by the district that an assignment of a charter school employee is not
legally authorized  (Education Code 44258.9)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45125.1, as amended by SB 531 (Ch. 616, Statutes of 2023), an
employee of any entity that has a contract with a charter school who offers work experience opportunities
for students or workplace placements as part of a student's individualized education program is exempt from
the requirement to have a valid criminal records summary if specified requirements are met.

56. Not hire any person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony except as otherwise provided by
law, and, if the charter school contracts with an entity for specified services, verify that any employee of that
entity who interacts with students outside of the immediate supervision and control of the student's
parent/guardian or a school employee has a valid criminal records summary, unless an exception applies
 (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1, 45125.1)
 

57. Report to CTC any change in a certificated employee's employment status (dismissal, nonreelection,
resignation, suspension, unpaid administrative leave for more than 10 days, retirement, or other decision not to
employ or reemploy) as a result of an allegation of misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending
 (Education Code 44030.5)
 

58. If the charter school chooses to make the state teachers' retirement plan and/or the public employees
retirement system available to its employees, meet the requirements of Education Code 47611  (Education
Code 47610)
 

59. Meet the requirements of Government Code 3540-3549.3 related to collective bargaining in public education
employment  (Education Code 47611.5)
 

60. If the charter school employs security officers and/or security officers work on the charter school campus,
provide the latest course of training developed by the Bureau of Security and Investigative Services of the

18 240



Department of Consumer Affairs in consultation with the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and
Training, as specified  (Education Code 38001.5; Business and Professions Code 7583.45)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49406, as amended by SB 88 (Ch. 380, Statutes of 2023), a charter
school that provides transportation to students under contract is required to have, as a condition of the
contract, a tuberculosis risk assessment, and if indicated, the examination for infectious tuberculosis within 60
days of the initial hire, which may, until July 1, 2025, and at the discretion of the governing body, not be
required for a private contracted driver who transports students infrequently and without prolonged contact.

61. If the charter school provides transportation to students under contract, require drivers to submit and clear
tuberculosis risk assessment, unless otherwise exempt by law  (Education Code 49406)

Parent/Guardian Involvement
 

62. On a regular basis, consult with parents/guardians and teachers regarding the charter school's educational
programs  (Education Code 47605)
 

63. Notify parents/guardians of applicant students and currently enrolled students that parental involvement is not
a requirement for acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the charter school  (Education Code 47605)
 

64. If 15 percent or more of the students at the charter school speak a single primary language other than English,
provide all notices, reports, statements, or records sent to parents/guardians in English and in the primary
language  (Education Code 48985)

Nutrition

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49501.5, as amended by SB 348 (Ch. 600, Statutes of 2023),
students must be provided adequate time to eat, as determined by the charter school in consideration of the
recommendations provided by CDE on or before June 30, 2025. Additionally, pursuant to Education Code
49501.5, as amended by SB 348, if a charter school offers independent study, the charter school must make
available a nutritionally adequate breakfast and lunch on any school day that a student is scheduled for
educational activities, as defined in Education Code 49010, lasting two or more hours, at a school site,
resource center, meeting space, or other satellite facility.

65. Provide a nutritionally adequate breakfast and lunch free of charge during each school day to students
requesting a meal regardless of the student's free or reduced-price meal eligibility, including, if the charter
school offers independent study, to a student enrolled in independent study on any school day in which the
student is scheduled for in-person educational activities of two or more hours  (Education Code 49501.5)

If the charter school participates in the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and School Breakfast Program
(SBP) and is a high poverty school, as defined, the charter school shall apply to operate a federal universal meal
service provision, and upon approval, apply such service.  (Education Code 49501.5, 49564.3)
 

66. If the charter school participates in the NSLP or SBP, not promote any food or beverage during the school day
that does not comply with state nutritional standards pursuant to Education Code 49430-49434, and not
participate in a corporate incentive program that offers free or discounted non-nutritious foods or beverages
as rewards for students who reach certain academic goals  (Education Code 49431.9)

Student Health

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 215, on or before January 1, 2025, charter schools must review
and update their policy on student suicide prevention, and revise their  training materials to incorporate best
practices identified by CDE.

67. Adopt a policy on suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention for grades 7-12, and an age-appropriate
policy for grades K-6, and review the policy at least every five years  (Education Code 215)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49428.5, each school serving students in any of grades 6-12 is
required to create a poster that identifies approaches and resources about student mental health, and
prominently display such poster in public areas that are accessible to and commonly frequented by students
at each school site. See BP 5141.5 - Mental Health.

68. Each charter school that serves students in any of grades 6-12 shall create and prominently display an age
appropriate and culturally relevant poster that identifies approaches and resources about student mental

19 241



health  (Education Code 49428.5)
 

69. If the charter school serves grades 7-12 and issues student identification cards, print the telephone numbers of
the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline and the National Domestic Violence Hotline on the identification cards
 (Education Code 215.5)
 

70. Notify students and parents/guardians at least twice during the school year on how to initiate access to
available student mental health services on campus or in the community  (Education Code 49428)
 

71. Provide annual training on child abuse and neglect reporting requirements to employees and persons working
on the charter school's behalf who are mandated reporters, within the first six weeks of each school year or
within six weeks of employment  (Education Code 44691)
 

72. If the charter school offers an athletic program, annually provide information sheets about concussions/head
injuries and sudden cardiac arrest to athletes and their parents/guardians, which must be signed and returned
to the school before the athlete initiates practice or competition

In the event that an athlete is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury, passes out, or faints during
or immediately after participation in an athletic activity, the student shall be immediately removed from the
activity for the remainder of the day and shall not be permitted to return to the activity until the student is
evaluated by a licensed health care provider and receives written clearance to do so.  (Education Code 33479-
33479.5, 49475)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35179.4, as amended by AB 1653 (Ch. 589, Statutes of 2023), if a
charter school offers an interscholastic athletic program, the Board is required to have a written emergency
action plan that describes the location of emergency medical equipment and procedures to be followed in the
event of sudden cardiac arrest and other medical emergencies, including concussion and heat illness.
Additionally, as amended by AB 1653, the emergency action plan is required to include a description of the
manner and frequency at which the procedures to be followed in the event of medical emergencies will be
rehearsed.

73. If the charter school offers an interscholastic athletic program, develop and post a written emergency action
plan that describes procedures to be followed in the event of sudden cardiac arrest and other medical
emergencies, including concussion and heat illness, the location of emergency medical equipment, and the
rehearsal of such procedures; acquire at least one automated external defibrillator (AED) for the school; and
make the AED available at on-campus athletic activities or events  (Education Code 35179.4, 35179.6)
 

74. If the charter school sponsors or hosts an on-campus event in or around a swimming pool that is not part of an
interscholastic athletic program, provide for the presence of at least one adult with a valid certification of
cardiopulmonary resuscitation training throughout the duration of the event  (Education Code 35179.6)
 

75. Provide school nurses or other voluntary, trained personnel with emergency epinephrine auto-injectors of the
type required pursuant to Education Code 49414  (Education Code 49414)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49414.3 and, as added by AB 1283 (Ch. 574, Statutes of 2023),
Education Code 49414.7, the charter school is permitted to make emergency naloxone hydrochloride or
other opioid antagonist and emergency stock albuterol inhalers available for providing emergency medical aid
to any person suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from opioid overdose or respiratory distress.

76. If the charter school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available to persons suffering, or reasonably
believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose, or to make emergency stock albuterol inhalers available to
persons suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from respiratory distress, comply with the
requirements of Education Code 49414.3 and 49414.7, including, but not limited to, providing training to
personnel who volunteer to administer the opioid antagonist

Student Conduct/Discipline

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49056, as added by SB 291 (Ch. 863, Statutes of 2023), beginning
with the 2024-2025 school year, a student may not be denied recess unless the student's participation poses
an immediate threat to the physical safety of the student or to the physical safety of one or more of the
student's peers. Education Code 44807.5, which authorized the Board to permit the use of recess restriction
for disciplinary purposes, was repealed by SB 291.

20 242



77. Prohibit the denial of recess to a student unless the student's participation poses an immediate threat to the
student's physical safety or to the physical safety of one or more of the student's peers (Education Code
49056)
 

78. Adopt a policy on bullying and cyberbullying prevention, post specified information on bullying and harassment
prevention on the charter school's website, and annually make CDE's online training module on bullying
prevention available to school site certificated employees and other employees who have regular interaction
with students  (Education Code 234.4, 234.6, 32283.5)
 

79. Adopt and display a written policy on sexual harassment, include the policy as part of any orientation for new
and continuing students, and post a poster notifying students of the policy  (Education Code 231.5, 231.6)
 

80. Prohibit seclusion and behavioral restraint of students as a means of discipline, and only use such methods to
control student behavior that poses a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to a student or others
that cannot be immediately prevented by a less restrictive response  (Education Code 49005-49006.4)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48900, as amended by SB 274 (Ch. 597, Statutes of 2023), charter
schools are prohibited from suspending students enrolled in kindergarten or any of grades 1-12 for disrupting
school activities or otherwise willfully defying the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators,
school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties through July 1, 2029.
Additionally, school administrators, by the end of the fifth business day, are required to inform the referring
employee, verbally or in writing, of the actions taken and if none, the rationale for not providing timely
interventions or supports.

81. Until June 30, 2029, neither recommend for expulsion nor suspend a student in grades K-12 for disrupting
school activities or otherwise willfully defying the authority of school personnel in the performance of their
duties  (Education Code 48901.1)
 

82. Upon request, provide a student who is suspended for two or more days with the homework assigned during
the period of suspension  (Education Code 47606.2, 48913.5)

Student and Parent/Guardian Records
 

83. Not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social security numbers from students or
their parents/guardians unless otherwise required to do so by state or federal law  (Education Code 49076.7)
 

84. Upon written request, not include the directory information of a student or the personal information of a
parent/guardian, as defined, in the minutes of a meeting of the governing body  (Education Code 49073.2)
 

85. If a student subject to compulsory full-time education is expelled or leaves the charter school without
graduating or completing the school year for any reason, notify the Superintendent of the school district of the
student's last known address within 30 days and, upon request, provide that district with a copy of the
student's cumulative record, including a transcript of grades or report card, and health information  (Education
Code 47605)
 

86. If the charter school serves high school students, submit to the Student Aid Commission (CSAC), for use in the
Cal Grant program, the grade point average (GPA) of all students in grade 12 and verification of high school
graduation or its equivalent for students who graduated in the prior academic year

However, such information shall not be submitted when students opt out or are permitted by the rules of
CSAC to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA.  (Education Code 69432.9, 69432.92)
 

87. Upon receipt of government-issued documentation of a change of name or gender or, if such documentation is
not available, upon request in accordance with the procedure in Education Code 49070, update, and reissue if
requested, a former student's records to include the student's updated legal name or gender  (Education Code
49062.5, 49070)

Facilities
 

88. Comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and enforced by the local building
enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the charter school is located, unless the charter
school facility meets either of the following conditions:  (Education Code 47610, 47610.5)

21 243



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
a. The facility complies with the Field Act pursuant to Education Code 17280-17317 and 17365-17374

 
b. The facility is exclusively owned or controlled by an entity that is not subject to the California Building

Standards Code, including, but not limited to, the federal government

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35292.6, as amended by AB 230 (Ch. 421, Statutes of 2023),
the requirement to stock an adequate supply of free menstrual products extends to grades 3-12.

89. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 3-12, stock the school's restrooms at all times with an
adequate supply of menstrual products available and accessible free of cost in all women's restrooms, all-
gender restrooms, and in at least one men's restroom  (Education Code 35292.6)

Finance
 

90. Promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries from the district, the county office of education, or the
Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), including, but not limited to, inquiries regarding the charter school's
financial records  (Education Code 47604.3)
 

91. Maintain written contemporaneous records that document all student attendance and make these records
available for audit and inspection  (Education Code 47612.5)
 

92. Identify and report to the SPI any portion of the charter school's average daily attendance that is generated
through nonclassroom-based instruction, including, but not limited to, independent study, home study, work
study, and distance and computer-based education  (Education Code 47612.5, 47634.2; 5 CCR 11963.2)

93. Annually prepare and submit financial reports to the Board and the County Superintendent in accordance with
the following reporting cycle:
 

a. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year

For a charter school in its first year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter petition
pursuant to Education Code 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement.  (Education Code 47604.33)
 

b. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes through
October 31  (Education Code 47604.33)
 

c. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes through
January 31  (Education Code 47604.33)
 

d. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year

The report submitted to the Board shall include an annual statement of all the charter school's receipts
and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.  (Education Code 42100, 47604.33)
 

e. By December 15, a copy of the charter school's annual, independent financial audit report for the
preceding fiscal year, unless the charter school's audit is encompassed in the district's audit

The audit report shall also be submitted to the State Controller and CDE.  (Education Code 47605)
 

94. If the charter school receives state facilities funding pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act
(Education Code 17070.10-17079.30), annually report a detailed list of all expenditures of state funds, and of
the school's matching funds for completed projects, and submit an audit of completed facilities projects within
one year of project completion  (Education Code 41024)

Accountability
 

95. Annually adopt a school accountability report card  (Education Code 33126, 47612; California Constitution,
Article 16, Section 8.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the

22 244



policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11700-11705 Independent study

5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Bus. And Prof. Code 7583.45 Training for security officers

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5 Public finance; school accountability report card

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5 Common school system

Corp. Code 5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members

Ed. Code 215 Suicide prevention policies

Ed. Code 215.5 Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 221.61 Posting of Title IX information on website

Ed. Code 221.9 Sex equity in competitive athletics

Ed. Code 222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students

Ed. Code 222.5 Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.4 Mandated policy on bullying prevention

Ed. Code 234.6 Bullying and harassment prevention information

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 243 Prohibition of discrimination; instructional materials

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32283.5 Bullying; online training

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation incident tracking

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35120 Student board membership

Ed. Code 35179.4-35179.6 Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool safety that is not
part of interscholastic athletic program

Ed. Code 35183.1 Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of
religious/cultural significance

Ed. Code 35292.6 Stocking of menstrual products

Ed. Code 35330 Field trips and excursions; student fees

Ed. Code 38001.5 Training for security officers

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals

Ed. Code 39831.3 Transportation safety plan

Ed. Code 39843 Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department of Motor
Vehicles

Ed. Code 41024 Report of expenditure of state facility funds

23 245



Ed. Code 42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures

Ed. Code 44030.5 Reporting change in employment status due to alleged misconduct

Ed. Code 44237 Criminal record summary

Ed. Code 44691 Information on detection of child abuse; annual training

Ed. Code 44830.1 Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125.1 Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; parental leave

Ed. Code 46390-46393 Emergency average daily attendance

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992

Ed. Code 47634.2 Nonclassroom-based instruction

Ed. Code 47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools

Ed. Code 47651 Apportionment of funds; charter schools

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional kindergarten

Ed. Code 48010 Minimum age of admission to first grade

Ed. Code 48206.3-48208 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48901.1 Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48913.5 Suspended students; homework assignments

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49010 Student fees

Ed. Code 49011 Student fees

Ed. Code 49014 Public School Fair Debt Collection Act

Ed. Code 49056 Prohibition of denial of recess

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49062.5 Student records; name or gender change

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging student records

Ed. Code 49073.2 Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information; minutes of
board meeting

Ed. Code 49076.7 Student records; data privacy; social security numbers

Ed. Code 49110 Authority to issue work permits

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Ed. Code 49414.7 Administration of albuterol inhalers

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

24 246



Ed. Code 49428 Notification of mental health services

Ed. Code 49428.5 Employment of medical personnel

Ed. Code 49430-49434 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49431.9 Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods

Ed. Code 49475 Health and safety; concussions and head injuries

Ed. Code 49501.5 Free breakfast and lunch to all students

Ed. Code 49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017

Ed. Code 49564.3 Provision of federal universal meal service

Ed. Code 49603 On campus access to employers and military services

Ed. Code 49700-49701 Education of children of military families

Ed. Code 51224.7 Mathematics placement policy

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance of coursework

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.6 Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that require health
education for graduation

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8 Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid
and California Dream Act Application

Ed. Code 51413 Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit examination

Ed. Code 51744-51749.6 Independent study

Ed. Code 51925-51929 Mandatory mental health education

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 52075 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs

Ed. Code 56026 Special education

Ed. Code 56040.3 Availability of assistive technology device

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools

Ed. Code 56365-56366.12 Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools

Ed. Code 56521.1-56521.2 Emergency Interventions

Ed. Code 60600-60649 Assessment of academic achievement

Ed. Code 64000 Categorical programs included in consolidated application

Ed. Code 64001 School plan for student achievement; consolidated application programs

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils

Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and high school
graduation

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

25 247



Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program

H&S Code 104559 Tobacco-free schools

Lab. Code 1198.5 Personnel records related to performance and grievance

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Pen. Code 1192.7 Definition of serious felony

Pen. Code 667.5 Definition of violent felony

Veh. Code 28160 Child safety alert system

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 7221-7221j Charter schools

34 CFR 200.1-200.78 Accountability

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021)

Attorney General Opinion 101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018)

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)

CA Office of Administrative Hearings Decisions Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School (2012) OAH Case
No. 2011060763

California Department of Education Publication Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 20-
01, July 23, 2020

California Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg. Publication School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Court Decision Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District (2005) 130
Cal.App.4th 986

CSBA Publication Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2021

CSBA Publication Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, Governance
Brief, October 2017

CSBA Publication Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement
and Effective Governance in California's Charter Schools, September 2018

U.S. DOE Guidance Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory
Guidance, January 2014

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture

Website National Suicide Prevention Lifeline

Website National Domestic Violence Hotline

26 248



Website California State Teachers Retirement System

Website California Public Employees Retirement System

Website California Department of General Services, Office of Administrative
Hearings

Website California Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training

Website California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services

Website California Department of Pesticide Regulation

Website California State Controller

Website California Student Aid Commission

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers

Website California Charter Schools Association

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.42 Charter School Renewal

0420.43 Charter School Revocation

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1431 Waivers

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

7160 Charter School Facilities

7160 Charter School Facilities

27 249



Policy 1113: District And School WebsitesPolicy 1113: District And School Websites Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2007 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is for use by districts that maintain their own website(s) and may be
revised to reflect district practice. District strategies for effective use of websites may be incorporated into the
district's comprehensive communications plan; see BP 1100 - Communication with the Public.
To enhance communication with students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members, the Governing Board
encourages the Superintendent or designee to develop and maintain district and school websites. The use of district
and school websites shall support the district's vision and goals and shall be coordinated with other district
communications strategies.

Design Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall establish design standards for district and school websites in order to maintain
a consistent identity, professional appearance, and ease of use.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Civil Code 1798.99.28-1798.99.40, businesses that
provide online services, products, or features that are likely to be accessed by children are required to prioritize the
best interests of students in designing such products or features, to ensure that children are not exposed to harmful
or potentially harmful content, contact, or conduct. Though this law is not necessarily applicable to districts, it is
good guidance for districts seeking to create a safe online space for students.
District design standards shall require an evaluation of products, features, and content accessible to students on
district and school websites to prevent access to harmful or potentially harmful material.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (42 USC 12131-12134) and Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 705, 794; 34 CFR 104.1-104.39), districts have an obligation to
provide an equal opportunity to individuals with disabilities to participate in and receive the benefits of the
educational program, and must provide accommodations or modifications when necessary to ensure equal
treatment.

A U.S. Department of Justice technical assistance publication, "Accessibility of State and Local Government
Websites to People with Disabilities," states that an agency with a website that is otherwise inaccessible to
individuals with disabilities may meet its legal obligations by providing an alternative accessible way for them to use
the programs or services (e.g., a staffed telephone information line), but points out that these alternatives are
unlikely to provide an equal degree of access in terms of hours of operation or range of options and programs
available. See the accompanying administrative regulation for accessibility guidelines.
The district's design standards shall address the accessibility of district and school websites to individuals with
disabilities, including compatibility with commonly used assistive technologies.

Website Content

The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines for district and school websites and assign staff to
review and approve content prior to posting.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph ensures consistency of district policies regarding advertising and
may be revised to reflect district practice.
Board policy pertaining to advertising in district and school publications, as specified in Board Policy 1325 -
Advertising and Promotion, shall also apply to advertising on district and school websites.

Privacy Rights

CSBA NOTE: Business and Professions Code 22580-22582 prohibit an operator of a website from knowingly using,
disclosing, compiling, or allowing a third party to use, disclose, or compile the personal information of a minor for
the purpose of marketing or advertising specified types of products or services. Business and Professions Code
22584-22585 prohibit the operator of a website that provides services to K-12 students from selling or disclosing
specified student information or knowingly using that student information to engage in targeted advertising to
students or parents/guardians or to amass a profile about a student. Business and Professions Code 22586 provides
a similar prohibition for the operator of a website used, designed, and marketed primarily for preschool or
prekindergarten purposes from knowingly engaging in specified activities, including targeted advertising, selling, or

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

28 250



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

disclosing a student's information, and using specified information to amass a profile about a student except in
furtherance of preschool or prekindergarten purposes. See BP 5125 - Student Records for further information
regarding protection of student information.
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the privacy rights of students, parents/guardians, staff, Board
members, and other individuals are protected on district and school websites.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. The district should
carefully consider whether to place personally identifiable information on district or school websites since release of
such information may put individuals, including students, at risk and also may violate Education Code 49073, which
prohibits disclosure of student directory information to any private profit-making entity; see BP/AR/E(1) 5125.1 -
Release of Directory Information.
Telephone numbers and home and email addresses of students and/or their parents/guardians shall not be published
on district or school websites.

CSBA NOTE: The following options address the use of students' photographs on district or school websites. Option
1 is for use by districts that, pursuant to Education Code 49061 and 34 CFR 99.3, include photographs in the
definition of directory information, as specified in AR 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information, and publish
student photographs along with student names unless a parent/guardian requested in writing that no photographs
of the child be released without prior written consent. Option 2 is for use by districts that do not allow student
photographs to be published along with student names unless specific consent for such publication is received from
the parent/guardian.
OPTION 1:  The district regards photographs as a category of directory information that would not generally be
considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. Therefore, a student's photograph, together with the
student's name, may be published on district or school websites unless the student's parent/guardian has notified the
district in writing to not release the student's photograph without prior written consent, in accordance with Board
Policy and Administrative Regulation 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information.
END OF OPTION 1

OPTION 2:  Photographs of individual students shall not be published on district or school websites accompanied by
the student's name or other personally identifiable information without the prior written consent of the student's
parent/guardian.
END OF OPTION 2

CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this policy is for use by all districts.
If students' names are not included, photographs of individual students or groups of students, such as at a school
event, may be published on school or district websites.

CSBA NOTE: Posting of employees' home addresses, personal telephone numbers, or personal email addresses on
district or school websites is prohibited by law in certain circumstances in order to maintain employee privacy and
safety. See BP 1340 - Access to District Records, AR 3580 - District Records, and BB 9012 - Board Member
Electronic Communications.
Employees' home addresses, personal telephone numbers, and personal email addresses shall not be posted on
district or school websites.

The home address or telephone number of any elected or appointed official including, but not limited to, a Board
member or public safety official, shall not be posted on district or school websites without the prior written
permission of that individual.  (Government Code 3307.5, 7928.205, 7920.535)

No public safety official shall be required to consent to the posting on the Internet of the public safety official's
photograph or identity as a public safety officer for any purpose if that officer reasonably believes that the disclosure
may result in a threat, harassment, intimidation, or harm to the officer or the officer's family.  (Government Code
3307.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

29 251



Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Ed. Code 32526 Use of learning recovery funds

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation incident tracking

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 35258 Internet access to school accountability report cards

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 48852.6 Information regarding homelessness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 49006 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 5092 Filling Vacancies

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12950 California Civil Rights Department posters

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Pen. Code 14029.5 Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness
protection program

Pub. Res. Code 21082.1 California Environmental Quality Act environmental review documents

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

16 CFR 312.1-312.13 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

17 USC 101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright

17 USC 504 Penalties for copyright infringement

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

29 USC 705 Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave

CA Civil Rights Department Publication California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Transgender Rights in the Workplace

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant Employee

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

30 252



Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Race and School Programming, August 2023

U.S. DOJ, Civil Rights Division Publication Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with
Disabilities, February 2020

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website Fact Sheet: New rule on the accessibility of web content and mobile apps
provided by state and local governments

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Governor's Office of Planning and Research, The California Environmental
Quality Act

Website California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section

Website World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Civil Rights Department

World Wide Web Consortium Publication Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, June 2018

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

31 253



1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3552 Summer Meal Program

3552 Summer Meal Program

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4319.21 Professional Standards

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

32 254



4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5141.5 Mental Health

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4-E(1) Student Use Of Technology

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9223 Filling Vacancies

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

33 255



9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

34 256



Regulation 1113: District And School WebsitesRegulation 1113: District And School Websites Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2000 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional administrative regulation is for use by districts that maintain their own
website(s) and should be revised to reflect district practice.

Design Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall develop design standards for district and school websites that include, but are
not limited to, guidelines to ensure the clear organization of the material, readability of the font type and size, and
simplicity of the navigation structure linking the content on the website. Such standards shall take into consideration
the ease of use on a wide range of devices.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (42 USC 12131-12134) and Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 705, 794; 34 CFR 104.1-104.39), districts have an obligation to
provide an equal opportunity to individuals with disabilities to participate in and receive the benefits of the
educational program. The U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights June 2010 and May 2011 Dear
Colleague Letters interpret that such obligations include the requirement that district websites be accessible to
individuals with disabilities.

While there are no explicit standards detailed in law or regulations addressing accessible features, the World Wide
Web Consortium's Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.1 and Web Accessibility Initiative Accessible Rich
Internet Applications Suite are widely used tools that may serve as guidelines for district and school websites.
Additionally, examples of technical standards for accessibility are available on the California Department of
Education's website.
In accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the federal
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, district and school websites shall contain features that ensure accessibility for individuals
with disabilities, which may include, but are not limited to, captions for videos and multimedia presentations, text
alternatives to images, provision of sufficient time to use the content, avoidance of flashing images, adequate
contrast in visual presentations, and/or other features that meet applicable standards for website accessibility. The
Superintendent or designee shall regularly review district and school websites and modify them as needed to ensure
legal compliance with accessibility standards.

Website Content

CSBA NOTE: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.

Government Code 54954.2 requires the district to post a "prominent, direct link" to the current Board meeting
agenda on the primary homepage of the district's website. However, districts that use an integrated agenda
management platform (i.e., a website dedicated to providing the entirety of the agenda information for the
Governing Board) are exempt from this requirement if a direct link to the platform is posted on the homepage and
the current agenda is the first agenda available at the top of the platform. Government Code 54954.2 specifies that
agendas posted either through a direct link or through use of an integrated agenda management platform must be
(1) retrievable, downloadable, indexable, and electronically searchable by commonly used Internet search
applications, (2) platform independent and machine readable, and (3) available to the public free of charge and
without any restriction that would impede the reuse or redistribution of the agenda.
As applicable, district and school websites shall provide current information regarding the district's mission and goals,
district/school programs and operations, district/school news, agendas and minutes of Governing Board meetings,
School Accountability Report Cards, school calendars, links to educational resources.

With approval of the principal, individual teachers may create web pages linked to the district or school website to
provide information pertaining to class assignments, expectations, and activities.

CSBA NOTE: In determining whether to limit or allow the ability of certain groups or individuals to provide content
for district or school websites, districts should consult with CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel on matters pertaining to protected speech and equal access; see BP/AR 5145.2 -
Freedom of Speech/Expression and BP/AR 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access.
Student work may be published on district or school websites provided that both the student and the student's
parent/guardian provide written permission or the work is part of an existing publication such as a school
newspaper.

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

35 257



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

CSBA NOTE: Federal copyright law (17 USC 106) grants a copyright owner the exclusive rights to reproduce,
distribute, make derivative works of, publicly perform, or publicly display the copyrighted work or to authorize
others to do so. However, pursuant to 17 USC 107, "fair use" (i.e., the reproduction of limited portions of
copyrighted materials without the copyright owner's permission) is allowed for such purposes as criticism,
comment, news reporting, teaching, scholarship, or research; see BP/AR 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials.
Even if use of certain copyrighted materials in the district meets the criteria for a fair use exception, text, art, or
photos that are not clearly stated to be in the "public domain" and available for free use should not be replicated on
a district or school website without prior permission of the copyright owner.
Any copyrighted material to be posted on a district or school website shall be submitted to the Superintendent or
designee together with the permission of the copyright owner to reprint the material. Any copyrighted material
submitted without the copyright owner's permission shall only be posted on a district or school website if the
Superintendent or designee determines that the material is in the public domain or that the intended use meets the
criteria for fair use or another exception pursuant to 17 USC 107-122. When any copyrighted material is posted, the
website shall include a notice crediting the copyright owner and, as necessary, shall note that permission to reprint
the material was granted.

Whenever a district or school website includes links to external websites, it shall include a disclaimer that the district
is not responsible for the content of external websites.

Roles and Responsibilities

Any employee assigned as a district or school webmaster shall be responsible for the uploading of material to the
website(s) upon approval of the Superintendent or designee. The employee shall review district and school websites
to ensure consistency with district standards, regularly check links for accuracy and appropriateness, keep the web
server free of outdated or unused files, and provide technical assistance as needed.

The Superintendent or designee may assign additional staff members to conduct editorial reviews of all materials
submitted for publication on district or school websites and to make corrections as needed in spelling, grammar, or
accuracy of content.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development opportunities related to district content guidelines,
design standards, and accessibility laws and standards to district communications and technology staff, district and
school webmasters, and/or other appropriate staff.

Security

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 11549.3 authorizes districts, at district expense, to request the Military
Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration Center, to perform an independent
security assessment of the district or individual district schools. Districts are encouraged to consult with the
California Office of Emergency Services (OES) and utilize resources such as the State Threat Assessment System
and Regional Fusion Centers to help assess potential threats. For more information, see OES' Cybersecurity
Integration Center website.
Pursuant to Education Code 35266, districts that experience a cyberattack which impacts more than 500 students or
personnel are required to report such cyberattack to the California Cybersecurity Integration Center.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish security procedures for the district's computer network to prevent
unauthorized access and changes to district and school websites. To the extent possible, the host computer(s) shall
be in a lockable room with restricted access.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Ed. Code 32526 Use of learning recovery funds

36 258



Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation incident tracking

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 35258 Internet access to school accountability report cards

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 48852.6 Information regarding homelessness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 49006 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 5092 Filling Vacancies

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12950 California Civil Rights Department posters

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Pen. Code 14029.5 Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness
protection program

Pub. Res. Code 21082.1 California Environmental Quality Act environmental review documents

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

16 CFR 312.1-312.13 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

17 USC 101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright

17 USC 504 Penalties for copyright infringement

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

29 USC 705 Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave

CA Civil Rights Department Publication California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Transgender Rights in the Workplace

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant Employee

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Race and School Programming, August 2023

37 259



U.S. DOJ, Civil Rights Division Publication Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with
Disabilities, February 2020

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website Fact Sheet: New rule on the accessibility of web content and mobile apps
provided by state and local governments

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Governor's Office of Planning and Research, The California Environmental
Quality Act

Website California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section

Website World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Civil Rights Department

World Wide Web Consortium Publication Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, June 2018

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

38 260



3100 Budget

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3552 Summer Meal Program

3552 Summer Meal Program

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

39 261



4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5141.5 Mental Health

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4-E(1) Student Use Of Technology

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9223 Filling Vacancies

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

40 262



Exhibit 1113-E(1): District And School WebsitesExhibit 1113-E(1): District And School Websites Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/01/2020 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

MATERIALS REQUIRED TO BE POSTED ON DISTRICT WEBSITE

CSBA NOTE: The following exhibit lists material that the law explicitly requires be posted on district or school
websites. See the referenced Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about
related requirements. The exhibit does not include other postings that may be recommended throughout CSBA's
sample policy manual but are not required by law.
This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of materials which the law explicitly requires be posted on district or school
websites. Other posting requirements may exist and may be identified in the future.

Materials to Prominently Display

The following must be posted in a prominent location on the district's website, such as on the home page when
required by law:

1. The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP), any updates or revisions to the LCAP, and the local
control funding formula budget overview  (Education Code 52064.1, 52065).  See AR 0460 - Local Control and
Accountability Plan.
 

2. A direct link to the current board agenda containing the time and location of the meeting and a brief general
description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items to be
discussed in closed session, or a link to the district's agenda management platform where the current agenda
shall be the first available  (Government Code 54954.2, 54956).  Post at least 72 hours before a regular board
meeting or 24 hours before a special meeting.  See BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices and BB 9322 -
Agenda/Meeting Materials.
 

3. The district's policy on student suicide prevention including, for grades K-6, the age appropriateness of the
policy  (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention.
 

4. The district's policies and procedures prohibiting discrimination, harassment, student sexual harassment,
intimidation, bullying, and cyberbullying, including a section on social media bullying that includes all of the
references described in Education Code 234.6 as possible forums for social media  (Education Code 234.6).
 See AR 5131.2 - Bullying and AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.
 

5. The district's policy on preventing and responding to hate violence, if the district has adopted such a policy
 (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior.
 

6. The definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in Education Code 230, including
the rights set forth in Education Code 221.8  (Education Code 234.6).  See AR 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

CSBA NOTE: 34 CFR 106.10 and 106.8, as amended by 89 Fed. Reg. 33474, create additional notification
requirements related to sex based discrimination pursuant to Title IX as reflected in Item #7.

7. Information regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a student's sex, including sex
stereotypes, sex characteristics, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy, childbirth, termination
of pregnancy, or lactation, including related medical conditions or recovery, and parental, family, and marital
status; that inquiries about the application of Title IX may be referred to the Title IX Coordinator or the U.S.
Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR); the name and contact information of the Title IX
Coordinator; how to locate the district's nondiscrimination policy and grievance procedures; how to report
information about conduct that may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX; the rights of students and the
public as specified in Education Code 221.8; the responsibilities of the district under Title IX; web links to
information about those rights and responsibilities on the websites of the Office for Equal Opportunity and
OCR; a description of how to file a complaint of noncompliance under Title IX with specified components; and
a link to Title IX information posted on the California Department of Education's (CDE) website  (Education
Code 221.6, 221.61, 234.6; 34 CFR 106.2, 106.8, 106.10).  See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment
and AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment.
 

8. A link to statewide CDE-compiled resources, including community-based organizations, that provide support

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

41 263



to youth who have been subjected to school-based discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying and to
their families  (Education Code 234.5, 234.6). See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.
 

9. Posters published by the California Civil Rights Department (CRD) including, "California Law Prohibits
Workplace Discrimination and Harassment," and for districts with five or more employees, "The Rights of
Employees Who Are Transgender or Gender Nonconforming," "Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant
Employee," and "Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave"  (Government Code 12950).
 See AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment and AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical
Leave.
 

10. If the district has formed a community facilities district (Mello-Roos district) for the acquisition or improvement
of school facilities, a copy of the annual report for the fiscal year if requested pursuant to Government Code
53343.1, the report provided to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission pursuant to
Government Code 53359.5, and the report provided to the State Controller's office pursuant to Government
Code 12463.2  (Government Code 53343.2).  Post within seven months after the last day of the fiscal year.
See BP 7212 - Mello-Roos Districts.

Other Postings

The following materials are also required to be posted on the district website. However, there are no specific
requirements related to where they are posted on the website.
 

11. The Special Education Local Plan Area's approved comprehensive local plan for special education, annual
budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan and any updates or revisions to the plans
 (Education Code 56205.5).  See AR 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education.
 

12. The district's nondiscrimination policy and regulation, including the complaint procedure and the compliance
coordinator's contact information  (34 CFR 100.6, 106.8).  See BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District
Programs and Activities and AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment.
 

13. Contact information for the district's liaison(s) for homeless students and other persons as required by
Education Code 48852.6, and information regarding the educational rights and resources available to persons
experiencing homelessness  (Education Code 48852.6).  See AR 6173 - Education for Homeless Children.
 

14. For all schools offering competitive athletics, the total enrollment of the school classified by gender, the
number of students enrolled at the school who participate in competitive athletics classified by gender, and the
number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by competition level  (Education Code 221.9). The
information shall be posted at the end of the school year on the school's website or, if the school does not
have a website, on the district's website.  See AR 6145.2 - Athletic Competition.
 

15. If the district has interdistrict attendance agreement(s), the procedures and timelines for requesting an
interdistrict transfer permit, including, but not limited to, a link to the board's policy on interdistrict attendance,
the date that the district will begin accepting applications, reasons that the district may approve/deny the
request, the process for appeal, that failure to meet timelines will be deemed an abandonment of the request,
and the condition under which an existing interdistrict transfer permit may be revoked or rescinded  (Education
Code 46600.2).  See AR 5117 - Interdistrict Transfer.
 

16. If the district has elected to be a school district of choice, application information including, at a minimum, any
applicable form, the timeline for a transfer, and an explanation of the selection process  (Education Code
48301).  See AR 5117 - Interdistrict Transfer.
 

17. For districts that offer grade 9, the district's policy and protocols related to student placement in mathematics
courses  (Education Code 51224.7).  See AR 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses.
 

18. The section(s) of the district's employee code of conduct addressing interactions with students. These
section(s) or a link to them shall be posted on each school's website or, if a school does not have its own
website, on the district's website in a manner that is accessible to the public without a password.  (Education
Code 44050)  See BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards and BP 4119.24/4219.24/4319.24
- Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions.
 

19. The district's meal payment collection policy and procedures  (U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)

42 264



Memorandum SP 46-2016).  See BP/AR 3551 - Food Services Operations/Cafeteria Fund.
 

20. If the district includes information about the free and reduced-priced meal program on its website, a
nondiscrimination statement about the district's status as an equal opportunity provider and the address of the
agency with responsibility to handle complaints made against the district  (USDA FNS Instruction 113-1).  For
the required wording of the statement, see E(1) 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance.
 

21. The school's or district's integrated pest management plan, whenever a school chooses to use a pesticide not
exempted pursuant to Education Code 17610.5. The plan shall be posted on the school's website or, if the
school does not have a website, then on the district's website.  (Education Code 17611.5).  See AR 3514.2
Integrated Pest Management.
 

22. When the California Environmental Quality Act requires an environmental impact report, negative declaration,
or mitigated negative declaration, those environmental review documents, public notice of the preparation and
availability of such documents within a reasonable period of time prior to certification of the environmental
impact report, adoption of a negative declaration, or determination that a proposed subsequent project will
have no additional significant effect on the environment, and specified notices when written requests for
notices have been filed  (Public Resources Code 21082.1, 21092, 21092.2).  See BP 7150 - Site Selection And
Development.
 

23. When a citizens' oversight committee is formed after the approval of a bond under the 55 percent majority
threshold, the committee's minutes, documents received, and reports issued  (Education Code 15280).  See AR
7214 - General Obligation Bonds.
 

24. Copy of each school's school accountability report card, on or before February 1 of each year  (Education Code
35258).  See BP 0510 - School Accountability Report Card.
 

25. Results of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) or other accrediting agency's inspection of
a school, within 60 days of receiving the results. (This notification could be made in writing to
parents/guardians instead of or in addition to posting the results on the district's website.) In addition, if a
school loses its WASC or other agency's accreditation, the district and school shall post on their websites a
notice of the loss of accreditation and potential consequences  (Education Code 35178.4).  See BP 6190 -
Evaluation of the Instructional Program.
 

26. The district's COVID-19 testing plan  (Education Code 32096).

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 32526, as amended by SB 141 (Ch. 194, Statutes of 2023), a
district is required to make publicly available on its website interim expenditure reports on the use of Learning
Recovery Emergency Funds by December 1, 2024 and annually thereafter, and a final report on expenditures
no later than December 15, 2029.

27. Using the template developed by CDE, the use of Learning Recovery Emergency Funds, with interim reports
posted by December 1, 2024 and annually thereafter, and a final report by December 15, 2029  (Education
Code 32526).
 

28. An age appropriate and culturally relevant digitized poster that identifies approaches and shares resources
about student mental health, distributed to students online at the beginning of each school year  (Education
Code 49428.5). See BP 5141.5 - Mental Health

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 33353, as amended by AB 1327 (Ch. 366, Statutes of 2023),
districts that participate in the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) are required to post, on or before
April 1, 2025, the standardized incident form developed by the California Department of Education to track
racial discrimination, harassment, or hazing, that occurs at high school sporting games or events, including
information on how to submit a completed incident form.

29. The standardized incident form developed by CDE to track racial discrimination, harassment, or hazing, that
occurs at high school sporting games or events, including information on how to submit a completed incident
form  (Education Code 33353).

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5092, as amended by AB 1326 (Ch. 68, Statutes of 2023), the
Board is required to post a notice upon filling a Board vacancy by provisional appointment.

30. If a provisional appointment is made to fill a governing board vacancy, notice of both the actual vacancy or the

43 265



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

filing of a deferred resignation and the provisional appointment.  Post within 10 days of making the provisional
appointment  (Education Code 5092).  See BB 9223 - Filling Vacancies.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48985.5, as added by AB 889 (Ch. 123, Statutes of 2023), each
district that maintains a website is required to post on its website,  information about the dangers associated
with the use of synthetic drugs that are not prescribed by a physician, such as fentanyl, and of the possibility
that dangerous synthetic drugs can be found in counterfeit pills. Such districts are also required to ensure that
each district school that maintains its own website posts the information on the school's website.

31. The dangers associated with using synthetic drugs that are not prescribed by a physician, such as fentanyl, and
of the possibility that dangerous synthetic drugs can be found in counterfeit pills  (Education Code 48985.5).

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49006, as amended by AB 1466 (Ch. 582, Statutes of 2023),
districts are required to annually post on the district website their report on the use of behavioral restraints
and seclusion for students enrolled or served by the district for all or part of the prior school year.

32. The annual report to CDE on the use of behavioral restraints and seclusion  (Education Code 49006).

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Ed. Code 32526 Use of learning recovery funds

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation incident tracking

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 35258 Internet access to school accountability report cards

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 48852.6 Information regarding homelessness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 49006 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 5092 Filling Vacancies

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12950 California Civil Rights Department posters

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Pen. Code 14029.5 Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness
protection program

Pub. Res. Code 21082.1 California Environmental Quality Act environmental review documents

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

16 CFR 312.1-312.13 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

44 266



17 USC 101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright

17 USC 504 Penalties for copyright infringement

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

29 USC 705 Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave

CA Civil Rights Department Publication California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Transgender Rights in the Workplace

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant Employee

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Race and School Programming, August 2023

U.S. DOJ, Civil Rights Division Publication Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with
Disabilities, February 2020

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website Fact Sheet: New rule on the accessibility of web content and mobile apps
provided by state and local governments

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Governor's Office of Planning and Research, The California Environmental
Quality Act

Website California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section

Website World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Civil Rights Department

World Wide Web Consortium Publication Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, June 2018

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

45 267



0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3552 Summer Meal Program

3552 Summer Meal Program

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

46 268



4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5141.5 Mental Health

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

47 269



6163.4-E(1) Student Use Of Technology

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9223 Filling Vacancies

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

48 270



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 1260: Educational FoundationPolicy 1260: Educational Foundation Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/01/1991 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. See BP 1230 - School-
Connected Organizations for language regarding school-connected organizations, such as booster clubs and parent-
teacher organizations.
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of community support of district programs, including voluntary
financial contributions, to assist the district in achieving its goals for student learning.

CSBA NOTE: An educational foundation is a separate legal entity from the district and thus its activities are not
under the control of the district. Certain tax-exempt organizations may be required to register with the state
Attorney General's Registry of Charities and Fundraisers. As part of this registration, organizations may be required
to file copies of the organization's articles of incorporation and other documents governing its operations. These
documents should also define the Governing Board's relationship with the foundation and specify how foundation
directors will be chosen. The California Consortium of Education Foundations provides information on its website
regarding the creation of foundations.

Educational foundations may be created to benefit the entire district, a specific school, or to support or sustain a
variety of purposes through supplemental funding, such as the arts, music, and/or computer programs; to provide
graduating students with scholarships and/or loans; and to develop programs which meet new educational needs. It
is strongly recommended that the Board and foundation work cooperatively to identify specific needs and to
develop guidelines as to how resources will be used. For language regarding the acceptance of gifts and grants, see
BP 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests.

Because educational foundations often support arts and music in schools, questions have arisen surrounding
Education Code 8820-8822, as added by Proposition 28 (2022), which established the Arts and Music in Schools
(AMS) Funding Guarantee and Accountability Act. Proposition 28 is intended to provide a minimum source of
annual funding to supplement arts education programs. As a condition of receipt of these funds, districts must
annually certify that AMS funds will be used to supplement funding for arts education programs and that funds
received in the prior fiscal year were, in fact, used to supplement arts education programs, and not to supplant
existing funding for those programs. The Education Audit Appeals Panel's 2023-24 Audit Guide includes a multi-
step calculation that districts can use to demonstrate AMS funds were used to supplement, not supplant, arts
education funds. Additional information on Proposition 28, including accounting guidance, is available on the
California Department of Education's website, "Proposition 28- AMS Financial & Audit Requirements."

Districts with questions about how educational foundations may impact Proposition 28 funding or other programs
for which federal or state funds are required to be used to supplement rather than supplant already available
funding, should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district counsel.
The Board desires to work cooperatively with the educational foundation in determining the purposes for which
funds may be used to meet the changing needs of the district and its students. The Board recognizes that an
educational foundation is a separate legal entity, independent of the district. However, the foundation is encouraged
to provide regular reports to the Board on the status of its work and to communicate ways that the district can help
support the foundation's activities.

With the consent of the Superintendent or designee, the educational foundation, as appropriate, may use the
district's name, a school's name, a school team's name, or any logo attributable to a school or the district.

Student records or other personally identifiable student information shall not be released except with parental
consent or as required by law or district policy. Student directory information may be released when appropriate.

CSBA NOTE: In some districts, there may be concerns in the community about the equity of some schools
benefiting from the money raised by a foundation while other schools in the district may not have access to the
same resources. The following optional paragraph reflects the Board's goal that all of the schools within the district
share in the benefits provided by the foundation's work. For more information regarding the promotion of equity in
district programs and activities, see BP 0415 - Equity.
The Board supports foundation allocations that serve all district schools equitably.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

49 271



State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 300-312.1 Fundraising for charitable purposes

Bus. Code 17510-17510.95 Charitable solicitations

Bus. Code 25608 Alcohol on school property; use in connection with instruction

Ed. Code 38130-38138 Civic Center Act; use of school property for public purposes

Ed. Code 8820-8822 The Arts and Music in Schools—Funding Guarantee and Accountability Act

Gov. Code 12580-12599.10 Fundraisers for Charitable Purposes Act

Pen. Code 319-329 Lottery; raffle

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Proposition 28- AMS Financial & Audit Requirements

Court Decision Serrano v. Priest (1976) 18 Cal. 3d 728

Education Audit Appeals Panel Publication 2023-24 Audit Guide

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Consortium of Education Foundations

Website California Office of the Attorney General, Registry of Charities and
Fundraisers

Website Education Audit Appeals Panel

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

1100 Communication With The Public

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1321 Solicitation Of Funds From And By Students

1321 Solicitation Of Funds From And By Students

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

5030 Student Wellness

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5126 Awards For Achievement

5126 Awards For Achievement

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

50 272



6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6142.6 Visual And Performing Arts Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6163.1 Library Media Centers

9140 Board Representatives

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

51 273



Policy 2121: Superintendent's ContractPolicy 2121: Superintendent's Contract Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/2015 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy should be modified to reflect district practice.
The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent's employment contract should outline the framework through
which the Board and Superintendent will work together as a governance team to achieve district goals and
objectives. When approving the Superintendent's employment contract, the Board shall consider the value of
stability in district administration, the best use of district resources, and the Board's duty to ensure accountability to
the public for the performance of the district's schools.

CSBA NOTE: The following list of contract components is consistent with a template for superintendent contracts
developed by CSBA. The annotated template contract with additional context and suggestions is available through
CSBA's website. Districts are advised to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or
district legal counsel when reviewing and/or approving the Superintendent's employment contract.
The contract shall be reviewed by district legal counsel and may include the following:

1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to Education Code 35031
 

2. Length of the work year and hours of work
 

3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position, including a statement that any
subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the sole discretion of the Board
 

4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, consistent with Board policies,
regulations, and guidelines applicable to other professional administrative staff

The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the district's provision of cell
phones or other technological devices, and the use of a personal vehicle.
 

5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves
 

6. Professional development
 

7. General duties and responsibilities of the position
 

8. Criteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of the Superintendent
 

9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, although the Board may
enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the expiration of the existing contract

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35031, if the Governing Board decides not to reemploy the
Superintendent, it must provide notification at least 45 days before the contract expires. If the Board fails to
provide the required prior written notice, the Superintendent shall be deemed reemployed for a term of the
same length as the one completed, under the same terms and conditions, and with the same compensation.

10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not wish to enter into a new
contract, which shall be at least 45 calendar days in advance of the expiration of the term of the contract
pursuant to Education Code 35031, and the responsibility of the Superintendent to remind the Board in
writing and in a timely manner of the requirement to give notice

CSBA NOTE: See section on "Termination of Contract" below for limitations to maximum cash settlements.
11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash settlement that the

Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its expiration date
 

12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, actions, and legal proceedings
brought against the Superintendent in the Superintendent's official capacity in the performance of
employment-related duties

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54957, personnel matters related to the appointment or employment
of an employee may be discussed in closed session under the "personnel exception." However, Government Code

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

52 274



54957 prohibits the use of closed session for discussion or action on any proposed change in compensation other
than a reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline. In San Diego Union v. City Council,
a California Court of Appeal held that the "personnel exception" provided in Government Code 54957 does not
extend to discussions of salary and compensation.

Notwithstanding Government Code 54957, the Board is authorized pursuant to Government Code 54957.6, the
"labor exception," to hold closed sessions with the district's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits to its represented and unrepresented employees,
including the Superintendent. The Attorney General has opined in 57 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 209 (1974) that a board
may only meet in closed session for such purposes with a designated representative who is involved with the "bona
fide" negotiations with represented and/or unrepresented employees. The Attorney General's publication, "The
Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies" also states that the "labor exception" applies to meeting in
closed session to instruct its representatives concerning negotiations with prospective employees. Boards wishing
to discuss the Superintendent's salary in closed session under the "labor exception" are encouraged to consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district counsel before doing so.

In addition, pursuant to Government Code 54956, the Board is prohibited from deliberating on the salary or other
compensation of the Superintendent at a special meeting. See BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices, BB 9321 - Closed
Session, and BB 9323.2 - Actions By The Board.

The following paragraph should be revised to reflect district practice.
The Board may deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session at a regular meeting. However, discussions
regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur in the closed session of a regular meeting
only between the Board and its designated representative(s), as permitted under Government Code 54957.6. Such
deliberations shall not be held during a special meeting.  (Government Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6)

Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the approval process commences.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54953, the Board is required to, in open session, orally report a
summary of the recommendation for final action on the Superintendent's salary or benefits and must make related
records available to the public in accordance with the California Public Records Act. Thus, Government Code 54953
limits the Board's ability to approve changes to salary or benefits as part of a consent calendar and instead requires
such approval to be a separate agenda item. For identical requirements regarding final action on the salary or
benefits of other district executives, see BP 4312.1 - Contracts.
The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract during an open session of a regularly scheduled
Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. At that meeting, prior to taking action, the
Board shall orally report a summary of the recommendation for the final action on the Superintendent's salary or
compensation in the form of fringe benefits.  (Government Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953)

Copies of the contract and other public records created or received in the process of developing the
recommendation related to the Superintendent's salary, benefits, and other compensation shall be available to the
public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54953)

Termination of Contract

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 53260, every employee contract must include a provision limiting the
maximum cash settlement the employee may receive upon termination of the contract to an amount equal to the
monthly salary multiplied by the number of months left on the contract. For a Superintendent contract, Government
Code 53260 provides that the maximum cash settlement is the monthly salary multiplied by 12. Cash settlements
may be less than these maximums. The district must make contracts of employment, which include the termination
agreements, available to the public upon request. See AR 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements.
Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent's employment contract in
accordance with law and applicable contract provisions.

In such an event, the maximum cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon termination of the
contract shall not exceed the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by the number of months left on the
contract or the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12, whichever is less.  (Government Code 53260)

The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which may be continued for the
same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the Superintendent finds other employment, whichever
occurs first.  (Government Code 53260, 53261)

53 275



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

However, when the termination of the Superintendent's contract is based upon the Board's belief and subsequent
confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has engaged in fraud, misappropriation of funds,
or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or noncash settlement of any amount shall be provided.  (Government Code
53260)

In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position, the Superintendent
shall reimburse the district for payments received as paid leave salary pending investigation or as cash settlement
upon termination, and for any funds expended by the district in defending the Superintendent against a crime
involving the Superintendent's office or position.  (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education 35150, as added by SB 494 (Ch. 875, Statutes of 2023), the Board is prohibited
from taking action to terminate the Superintendent as specified in the following paragraphs. For more information
regarding restrictions and prohibitions on when the Board may take certain actions, see E(1) 9323.2 - Actions by the
Board.
The Board shall not take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause at a special or emergency meeting of
the Board.  (Education Code 35150)

Additionally, the Board shall not take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause or within 30 days after
the first convening of the Board after an election at which one or more Board members are elected or recalled. 
(Education Code 35150)

However, the Board may take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause at a regular meeting during any
month in which a regular meeting of the Board is not scheduled.  (Education Code 35150)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35150 Termination of superintendent

Ed. Code 41325-41328 Conditions of emergency apportionment

Gov. Code 3511.1-3511.2 Local agency executives

Gov. Code 53243-53243.4 Abuse of office

Gov. Code 53260-53264 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 54953 Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of superintendent

Gov. Code 54954 Time and place of regular meetings

Gov. Code 54956 Special meetings

Gov. Code 54957 Closed session personnel matters

Gov. Code 54957.1 Closed session; public report of action taken

Gov. Code 54957.6 Closed sessions regarding employee matters

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

26 CFR 1.105-11 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan

26 USC 105 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan; definition of highly compensated
individual

42 USC 300gg-16 Group health plan; nondiscrimination in favor of highly compensated
individuals

54 276



Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974)

Attorney General Publication The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003

Court Decision San Diego Union v. City Council (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947

CSBA Publication Superintendent Contract Template

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website Association of California School Administrators

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2110 Superintendent Responsibilities And Duties

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

2140 Evaluation Of The Superintendent

2210 Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy

3312 Contracts

3350 Travel Expenses

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4117.5 Termination Agreements

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4217.5 Termination Agreements

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261 Leaves

55 277



4261 Leaves

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.5 Termination Agreements

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

9000 Role Of The Board

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9124 Attorney

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E(1) Actions By The Board

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

56 278



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4112.9: Employee NotificationsPolicy 4112.9: Employee Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1994 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

The Governing Board believes that providing clear communications to staff is essential to establishing a professional,
positive work environment and enhancing their job performance. The Superintendent or designee shall provide
district employees all notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent or designee
believes will promote staff knowledge of the district's policies, programs, activities, and operations.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, district employees shall be asked to sign an
acknowledgment indicating receipt of the notification. Such acknowledgments shall be retained in each employee's
personnel file.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

57 279



Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

58 280



Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3542 School Bus Drivers

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

59 281



4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

60 282



4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4315 Evaluation/Supervision

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

61 283



4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

62 284



Exhibit 4112.9-E(1): Employee NotificationsExhibit 4112.9-E(1): Employee Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/01/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following exhibit lists notices that the law requires be provided to employees. See the referenced
Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about related program and notice
requirements.
This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to employees. Other
notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  To All Employees

When/Whom to Notify: At the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 231.5, Government Code 12950
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: The district's policy on sexual harassment, legal remedies, complaints

When/Whom to Notify: Annually and 72 hours before pesticide application
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.2
Subject: Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, Internet address to access information on pesticides

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6117
Subject: Public hearing on implementing year-round program schedule

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6112
Subject: Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 1312.3; BP 0460; BP 3260
Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student fees and
local control accountability plan

When to Notify:  Annually
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173, AR 6173.1, 6173.3, 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory, and newcomer students.

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer epinephrine auto-injectors

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer stock albuterol inhalers

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer anti-seizure medication

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.3

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

63 285



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer opioid antagonist

When to Notify: When a parent/guardian requests for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of
emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 1126
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4136/4236/4336
Subject: Prohibition of activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to duties; discipline;
appeal

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 8355; 41 USC 8102; 34 CFR 84.205, 84.210
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4020, BP 4159/4259/4359
Subject: District's drug- and alcohol-free workplace; actions that will be taken if violated; available employee
assistance programs

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 21029
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Right to purchase PERS service credit for military service performed prior to public employment

When/Whom to Notify: Upon placement of automated external defibrillator (AED) in school, annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1797.196
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141
Subject: Proper use of AED; location of all AEDs on campus, sudden cardiac arrest, school's emergency response plan

When/Whom to Notify: If the district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3513.3
Subject: District's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When/Whom to Notify: Annually, or more frequently if there is new information
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 120875, 120880
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43
Subject: AIDS and hepatitis B, methods to prevent exposure

When/Whom to Notify: To new employees upon hire and other employees upon request, in districts with 25 or
more employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2
Subject: Rights pursuant to Labor Code 230-230.1 pertaining to leaves and accommodations for victims of crime or
abuse

When/Whom to Notify: With each paycheck
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 246
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1
Subject: Amount of sick leave available

When/Whom to Notify: Upon hire, in employee handbook, and upon request for parental leave
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 1034
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4033
Subject: The district's policy on lactation accommodation

When/Whom to Notify: To covered employees and former employees

64 286



Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2800.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Availability of COBRA/Cal-COBRA continuation and conversion coverage; statement encouraging careful
examination of options before declining coverage

When/Whom to Notify: To employees participating in a flexible spending account
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2810.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Deadline to withdraw funds from account before the end of the plan year

When/Whom to Notify: To every new employee, either at the time employee is hired or by end of first pay period
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3551
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Workers' compensation benefits, how to obtain medical care, role of primary physician, form for reporting
personal physician/chiropractor

When/Whom to Notify: Within one day of receiving notice of potential exposure to COVID-19, and remain posted
for not less than 15 calendar days, to employees who were on the premises during the infectious period, the
exclusive representative, and the employer of subcontracted employees as applicable
Where: Prominently display in all places where notices to employees concerning workplace rules or regulations are
customarily posted
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 6409.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: Potential exposure to COVID-19; benefits to which employees may be entitled; available leave options;
protection against discrimination and retaliation; district's disinfection and safety plan

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to beginning employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.4
Subject: Status as a mandated reporter of child abuse, reporting obligations, confidentiality rights, copy of law

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and when leaving work due to pregnancy or nonoccupational sickness or
injury
Education or Other Legal Code: Unemployment Insurance Code 2613
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Disability insurance rights and benefits

When/Whom to Notify: To principal, counselor who directly supervises or reports on student's behavior or progress,
and teacher and other administrators who directly supervise or report on student's behavior or progress when the
superintendent or designee believes the employee needs the information for the protection of self or others when
working with the student, when Superintendent or designee receives written notification that minor student has
committed a felony or misdemeanor involving specified offenses
Education or Other Legal Code: Welfare and Institutions Code 827
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Limited exception to juvenile court record confidentiality to ensure rehabilitation of juvenile criminal
offenders and protect students and staff

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees and job applicants
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11023; 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 0410, AR 4030
Subject: District's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees via employee handbook, or to each new employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11091, 11095; 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Benefits through Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA); obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of need for leave when possible

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3203
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357

65 287



Subject: The right and procedure to access the injury and illness prevention program

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; contact information for district's Title IX Coordinator; referral of
inquiries to Title IX Coordinator and/or Office for Civil Rights

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: 40 CFR 763.84, 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514
Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6178
Subject: All career and technical education opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin,
sex, or disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100

II.  To Certificated Employees

When/Whom to Notify: To eligible certificated employees in a timely manner, and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees within 30 days of hire
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 22455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4121
Subject: Criteria for membership in retirement system; right to elect membership at any time

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment of a retired certificated individual
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 22461
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.14/4317.14
Subject: Postretirement earnings limitation or employment restriction; monthly report of compensation

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35171
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115, BP 4315
Subject: District regulations related to performance evaluations

When/Whom to Notify: 30 days before last day of school year for instructional staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated staff, in any year in which employee is evaluated
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44663
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Copy of employee's evaluation

When/Whom to Notify: To a certificated employee with unsatisfactory evaluation, once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every other year for permanent employee
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44664
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Notice and description of the unsatisfactory performance

When/Whom to Notify: By May 30, if district elects to issue reemployment notices to certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44842
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1
Subject: Request that the employee notify district of intent to remain in service next year

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary and temporary certificated employees upon employment and every July
thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1, AR 4121
Subject: Employment status and salary

66 288



When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee, by March 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23, 44948.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4116
Subject: Whether or not employee is reelected for next school year

When/Whom to Notify: When certificated employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, at any time of year
or, for charge of unsatisfactory performance, during instructional year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44934, 44934.1, 44936
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118; AR 4118
Subject: Notice of charges, procedures, and employee rights; intent to dismiss or suspend 30 days after notice

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unprofessional conduct, at least 45 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unsatisfactory performance, at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or prior to last quarter of school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with mandatory leave of absence offense, within 10 days
of entry of judgment in proceedings
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44940.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Notice of intent to dismiss 30 days from notice unless employee demands hearing

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee 30 days prior to dismissal during school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second- year probationary employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44948.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Reasons for dismissal and opportunity to appeal

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 when necessary to reduce certificated personnel, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44949, 44955
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Reasons for personnel reduction and employees' right to hearing; final notice of Board decision re:
termination

When/Whom to Notify: Before the end of the school year to temporary employee who served 75 percent of school
year but will be released
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44954
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4121
Subject: District's decision not to reelect employee for following school year

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to any
permanent or probationary certificated employee, including an employee holding a position that requires
administrative or supervisory credential, whose services are terminated
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44955.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Decrease in the number of permanent employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and hearing
adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher, when a student engages in or is reasonably suspected of specified acts
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49079
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

67 289



When/Whom to Notify: To teacher of a student who is suspended or expelled, when Superintendent or designee
receives transfer student's record regarding acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48201
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee upon change in employment status due to alleged misconduct
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 80303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.7/4317.7
Subject: Contents of state regulation re: report to Commission on Teacher Credentialing

III.  To Classified Employees

When/Whom to Notify: When a classified employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, in a nonmerit district
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45113
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4218
Subject: Notice of charges, right to hearing, timeline for requesting hearing

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15, when laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff, displacement and reemployment rights, right to hearing; final notice of Board decision
regarding termination

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: District Statement of Reduction in Force to affected employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and
hearing adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: At least 60 days prior to the effective date of layoff, if the employee's position must be
eliminated due to the expiration of a specially funded program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff date, displacement and reemployment rights

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and upon each change in classification
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45169
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4212
Subject: Employee's class specification, salary data, assignment or work location, duty hours, prescribed workweek

When/Whom to Notify: To permanent employee whose leave is exhausted
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45192, 45195
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4261.1, AR 4261.11
Subject: Exhaustion of leave, opportunity to request additional leave

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers prior to expiration of specified
documents
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 1234
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Expiration date of driver's license, driver's certificate and medical certificate; need to renew

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers upon employment and at least once per
year thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 2480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Limitations on vehicle idling; consequences of not complying

68 290



When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to district drug testing program and thereafter upon
employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.113, 382.601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Explanation of federal requirements for drug testing program and district's policy; prior to administration of
each drug or alcohol test

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to operating school bus
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Post accident information, procedures, and instruction

IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

When/Whom to Notify: To superintendent, deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent or senior manager of
classified service, at least 45 days before expiration of contract
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 2121, BP 4312.1
Subject: Decision not to reelect or reemploy upon expiration of contract or term

When/Whom to Notify: Upon request by administrative or supervisory employee transferred to teaching position
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44896
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Statement of the reasons for the reassignment

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 to employee who may be released/reassigned the following school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Notice that employee may be released or reassigned the following school year

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

When/Whom to Notify: In the event of a breach of security of district records to affected employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 3580
Subject: Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, and, as applicable, contact information for
credit reporting agencies

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to placing derogatory information in personnel file
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6
Subject: Notice of derogatory information, opportunity to review and comment

When/Whom to Notify: To employees who volunteer to administer epinephrine auto-injector
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Defense and indemnification from civil liability by the district

When/Whom to Notify: To district police officer, within 30 days of decision to impose discipline
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 3304
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3515.3
Subject: Decision to impose discipline, including the date that discipline will be imposed

When/Whom to Notify: To employee returning from military leave of absence, within 30 days of return
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 20997
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Right to receive PERS service credit for military service; application form

When/Whom to Notify: 24 hours before Board meets in closed session to hear complaints or charges against
employee

69 291



Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54957
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BB 9321
Subject: Employee's right to have complaints/charges heard in open session

When/Whom to Notify: When taking disciplinary action against employee for disclosure of confidential information
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54963
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23
Subject: Law prohibiting disclosure of confidential information obtained in closed session

When/Whom to Notify: When document identifying employee who is victim of domestic violence is disclosed
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

When/Whom to Notify: Within one working day of work-related injury or victimization of crime
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3553, 5401
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Potential eligibility for workers' compensation benefits, claim form

When/Whom to Notify: When adverse employment action is based on DOJ criminal history information or
subsequent arrest notification
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11105, 11105.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5
Subject: Copy of DOJ notification

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee with exposure to blood or potentially infectious materials, upon initial
employment and at least annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3204
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42
Subject: The existence, location, and availability of exposure and medical records; person responsible for maintaining
and providing access to records; right to access records

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee assigned to a work area in a laboratory setting where hazardous chemicals
are present, within 15 working days after receiving a monitoring result related to an employee exposure
determination
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5191
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Contents of 8 CCR 5191, including location and availability of chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits, signs
and symptoms of exposure, location of reference material

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee who may be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, upon
initial assignment and when new hazard is introduced into work area
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5194
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Requirements of 8 CCR 5194, including any presence of hazardous substances in the work area, location
and availability of hazard communication program, new material safety data sheet, employee rights

When/Whom to Notify: To employee eligible for military leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 38 USC 4334
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Notice of rights, benefits, and obligations under military leave

When/Whom to Notify: Within five days of employee's request for family care and medical leave, receipt of
supporting information, or district's knowledge that the requested leave may qualify as FMLA leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300; 2 CCR 11049, 11091
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Designation of leave as FMLA or non-FMLA; if not eligible, reason not eligible; requirement to use paid
leave; any requirement for fitness-for-duty certification; any subsequent changes in designation notice

When/Whom to Notify: Whenever notice of eligibility for FMLA is provided to employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300

70 292



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Rights and responsibilities re: use of FMLA; consequences of failure to meet obligations

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees working with families experiencing homelessness
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48851.3, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173
Subject: Duties of district liaison for homeless students and availability of training and services

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

71 293



Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

72 294



34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3542 School Bus Drivers

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

73 295



4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

74 296



4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4315 Evaluation/Supervision

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

75 297



4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

76 298



Policy 4121: Temporary/Substitute PersonnelPolicy 4121: Temporary/Substitute Personnel Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in accordance
with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this policy is inconsistent with provisions of
a collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail, so long as the applicable
provision in the collective bargaining agreement is consistent with law.
The Governing Board recognizes that substitute and temporary personnel perform an essential role in promoting
student achievement and desires to employ highly qualified, appropriately credentialed employees to fill such
positions.

Hiring

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend candidates for substitute or temporary positions for Board
approval, and shall ensure that all substitute and temporary employees are assigned in accordance with law and the
authorizations specified in their credential.

Substitute personnel may be employed on an on-call, day-to-day basis.

In addition, after September 1 of any school year, the Board may employ substitute personnel for the remainder of
the school year in positions for which no regular employee is available. The district shall first demonstrate to the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing the inability to acquire the services of a qualified regular employee. 
(Education Code 44917)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44956 and 44957 require that districts give employees who are laid off pursuant to
Education Code 44955 priority for substitute service during the period of preferred right to reemployment. The
period of preferred right to reemployment is 39 months for laid-off permanent employees and 24 months for
probationary employees; see BP 4117.3 - Personnel Reduction.

Pursuant to Education Code 44956, if a laid-off permanent employee serves as a substitute in any position requiring
certification for 21 days or more within a period of 60 school days, the compensation that the substitute employee
receives for substitute service during the entire 60-day period shall not be less than the amount the employee
would receive if the employee had been reappointed. Education Code 44957 does not contain similar provisions for
probationary employees; such employees are paid according to the salary schedule for substitute employees
adopted by the Governing Board, regardless of the number of days worked as a substitute.
Permanent or probationary certificated employees who were laid off pursuant to Education Code 44955 and who
have a preferred right of reappointment shall be given priority for substitute service in the order of their original
employment.  (Education Code 44956, 44957)

Classification

CSBA NOTE: A certificated employee's classification as a substitute, temporary, probationary, or permanent
employee governs the statutory job protections to which the employee is entitled and the procedures that apply if
the employee is not reelected; see the "Release from Employment/Dismissal" section below. Districts are
encouraged to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel when
questions arise regarding such classification.
At the time of initial employment and each July thereafter, the Board shall classify substitute and temporary
employees as such.  (Education Code 44915, 44916)

The Board may classify as substitute personnel a teacher hired to fill the position of a regularly employed person
who is absent from service.  (Education Code 44917)

CSBA NOTE: The following two paragraphs describe circumstances under which the Education Code expressly
defines a position as temporary. In both Bakersfield Elementary Teachers Association v. Bakersfield City School
District and California Teachers Association v. Vallejo City Unified School District, the courts determined that it was
inappropriate to classify certificated employees as temporary on the basis of the provisional status of their
credential (i.e., those serving under an intern credential, provisional internship permit, short-term staff permit,
emergency teaching permit, or credential waiver). According to the courts, districts may classify as temporary
employees only those persons who are specified to be temporary employees in the Education Code. All other

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

77 299



certificated employees who cannot be properly classified as substitute or permanent employees must be classified
as probationary employees.

One circumstance under which a teacher may be classified as a temporary employee is when the district needs an
additional teacher for a period of one semester to one year because of teacher absence due to leaves or long-term
illness, as authorized in Education Code 44920. As provided below, Education Code 44920 requires the Board to
determine the number of temporary employees that may be hired under these circumstances. In McIntyre v.
Sonoma Valley Unified School District, the court clarified that a district's ability to classify an employee as
temporary pursuant to Education Code 44920 is not dependent upon a one-to-one match of temporary employees
to employees on leave. Rather, all that is required is that the number of temporary teachers not exceed the total
number of employees on leave at any one time.
To address the need for additional certificated employees when regular district employees are absent due to leaves
or long-term illness, the Board may classify a teacher who is employed for at least one semester and up to one
complete school year as a temporary employee. Any person whose service begins in the second semester and before
March 15 may be classified as a temporary employee, even if employed for less than a semester. The Board shall
determine the number of persons who shall be so employed, which shall not exceed the identified need based on the
absence of regular employees.  (Education Code 44920)

Additionally, the Board shall classify as temporary employees those certificated persons, other than substitute
employees, who are employed to:

1. Serve from day to day during the first three months of any school term to teach temporary classes which shall
not exist after that time, or perform any other duties which do not last longer than the first three months of
any school term  (Education Code 44919)
 

2. Teach in special day and evening classes for adults or in schools of migratory population for not more than four
months of any school term  (Education Code 44919)
 

3. Serve in a limited assignment supervising student athletic activities provided such assignments have first been
made available to teachers presently employed in the district  (Education Code 44919)
 

4. Serve in a position for a period not to exceed 20 working days, in order to prevent the stoppage of district
business during an emergency when persons are not immediately available for probationary classification 
(Education Code 44919)

CSBA NOTE: Item #5 below applies only to high school and unified districts.
5. Serve only for the first semester, because the district expects a reduction in student enrollment during the

second semester due to mid-year graduations  (Education Code 44921)

For purposes of classifying employees pursuant to Item #1 or #2 above, the school year shall not be divided into
more than two school terms.  (Education Code 44919)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44909 authorizes districts to employ certificated employees in programs and projects
conducted under contract with public or private agencies or through categorically funded projects which are not
required by federal or state statutes and provides that such persons may be employed for periods less than a full
school year. Pursuant to Education Code 44909, the terms and conditions under which such persons are employed
must be mutually agreed upon by the employee and the Board, be in writing, and as amended by AB 897 (Ch. 548,
Statutes of 2023), include the expected end date of employment, the source of funding, and the nature of the
categorically funded program or project.

Pursuant to Education Code 44909, such persons may be terminated at the expiration of the contract or specially
funded project without regard to termination procedures required for probationary or permanent employees. In
Stockton Teachers Association v. Stockton Unified School District, the court of appeals clarified that "the expiration
of the contract" refers to the contract between the district and the agency providing categorical funds, not a
contract between the district and employee. Thus, the district may not hire a person for more or less than the term
of the contract or project and treat such a person as a temporary employee. Education Code 44909 does not apply
to a regularly credentialed employee who has been employed in the district's regular educational programs as a
probationary employee before being subsequently assigned to any one of these programs, or as amended by AB
897, to a teacher of classes for adults.

CSBA recommends that districts use a separate employment agreement tailored to employees hired pursuant to

78 300



Education Code 44909. Districts with questions regarding employment agreements or the classification or
termination of employees hired pursuant to Education Code 44909 should consult CSBA's District and County
Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.
Any employee hired to provide services in a categorically funded program or project may be employed for a period
less than a full school year. An employee may be classified as a temporary employee if the period of employment will
end at the expiration of that program or project.  (Education Code 44909)

Salary and Benefits

The Board shall adopt and make public a salary schedule setting the daily or pay period rate(s) for substitute
employees for all categories or classes of certificated employees of the district.  (Education Code 44977, 45030)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 3540.1, exclusive representatives of employees for purposes of
negotiations may include representation of all public school employees other than management and confidential
employees, as defined. Thus, substitute and temporary personnel may have the right to be represented. In cases
where substitute and temporary employees are not represented, the Board may determine whether to include such
employees in the district's health and welfare plan and other benefits. Although Options 1 and 2 below address
temporary employees only, a district may modify either option as necessary to reflect its treatment of substitute
employees. The district should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district
legal counsel regarding questions about the provision of benefits to substitute and temporary employees.
OPTION 1: (Temporary employees participate in district benefits)

Temporary employees shall participate in the health and welfare plans or other fringe benefits of the district.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Temporary employees do not participate in district benefits)

Temporary employees shall not participate in the health and welfare plans or other fringe benefits of the district.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Paid Sick Leave

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 245-249 (the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act) requires districts to grant a
minimum of one hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked to their employees who work for 30 days within
a year of their employment, including temporary and substitute employees. In implementing this requirement, Labor
Code 246 permits the district to use any of the options specified below.

Option 1 provides for paid leave accrual based on one hour for every 30 hours worked. Option 2 allows an
alternative accrual method that provides for a regular accrual basis, ensures that the employee receives 24 hours of
paid sick leave by the 120th day of employment, and, as amended by SB 616 (Ch. 309, Statutes of 2023), provides
at least 40 hours of accrued sick leave or paid time off by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar
year, or 12-month period. If a district implements Option 1 or Option 2, Labor Code 246 allows, but does not
require, the district to limit employees' use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours each year of employment, calendar
year, or 12-month period. Option 3 is for any district that credits employees with 40 hours of paid sick leave at the
beginning of each year and does not allow unused sick leave to carry over to the next year. In addition, pursuant to
Labor Code 245.5, retired annuitants who have not reinstated to the applicable public retirement system are
excluded from participation in these leave benefit provisions. The district should select the option below which
corresponds to its approach under Labor Code 246.

Additional requirements of Labor Code 245-249 include, but are not limited to, display of a poster containing
specified information at every workplace, provision of each employee's sick leave balance on the employee's wage
statements, and maintenance of leave usage documentation for three years.

The provisions of Labor Code 245-249 are very broad. However, district employees covered by a valid collective
bargaining agreement may be exempt if the collective bargaining agreement (1) expressly provides paid sick leave in
an amount equal to or exceeding the amount of leave required pursuant to Labor Code 246, (2) includes final and
binding arbitration of disputes regarding the application of the paid sick days provisions, and (3) provides premium
wage rates for all overtime hours worked and a regular hourly rate of pay of not less than 30 percent more than the
state minimum wage rate. Even for employees covered by a valid collective bargaining agreement, Labor Code

79 301



246.5, as amended by SB 616, extends procedural protections against retaliation to such employees. Since many
districts may not satisfy all the conditions for this exemption, the following optional section reflects the
requirements of Labor Code 245-249. Any district whose collective bargaining agreement meets all the conditions
for exemption may modify this section accordingly. For sick leave for full-time and part-time certificated employees
and additional requirements of Labor Code 245-249, see AR 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave. For sick
leave for classified employees, see AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave.
OPTION 1: (Paid leave accrual based on one hour for every 30 hours worked)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any temporary or substitute employee
who works for 30 or more days within a year of employment shall be entitled to one hour of paid sick leave for every
30 hours worked. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of
80 hours or ten days. However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours or five
days in each year of employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Paid leave accrual method that provides for a regular accrual basis)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any temporary or substitute employee
who works for 30 or more days within a year of  employment shall accrue, on a regular basis, paid sick leave of up to
24 hours by the 120th calendar day of employment or each calendar year or 12-month period, and at least 40 hours
of accrued sick leave by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-month period. Accrued
paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of 80 hours or ten days.
However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours or five days in each year of
employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

OPTION 3: (Paid leave that credits employees with sick leave at the beginning of each year and does not allow
unused sick leave to carry over to the next year)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any temporary or substitute employee
who works for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall be credited with 40 hours or five days of paid
sick leave for that year. Unused sick leave shall not carry over to the following year of employment.  (Labor Code
246)

OPTION 3 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph applies to Options 1, 2, and 3 above.
Any temporary or substitute employee may begin to use accrued paid sick days on the 90th day of employment,
after which the employee may use the sick days as they are accrued.  (Labor Code 246)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph applies to Options 1, 2, and 3 above and reflects the intent of Labor Code
245-249 (the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act) to enable California workers to address their own and
their family's health needs and to provide them with economic security when they need to take time off work for
reasons of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. The following paragraph may be revised to include
additional reasons for which temporary or substitute employees may use sick leave, pursuant to district policy or
practice. Pursuant to Labor Code 247.5, a district is not required to inquire into the purposes for which an
employee uses paid leave.
A temporary or substitute employee may use accrued sick leave for absences due to:  (Labor Code 246.5)

1. The employee's own need or the need of a family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the diagnosis,
care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care
 

2. Need of the employee to obtain or seek any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days and the district shall not in any manner discriminate
or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249. The Superintendent or designee shall display a

80 302



poster containing required information, provide notice to eligible employees of their sick leave rights, keep records of
employees' use of sick leave for three years, and comply with other requirements specified in Labor Code 245-249
and in Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave.

Release from Employment/Dismissal

The Board may dismiss a substitute employee at any time at its discretion.  (Education Code 44953)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44954, if a district decides not to reelect for the following year a
temporary employee who has served at least 75 percent of the days in the school year, the district must so notify
that employee by the end of the school year. In Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District, the court held
that Education Code 37200, which defines a school year as ending June 30, is applicable for determining the
deadline for this notification, not the last day that students and teachers are in their classrooms.
The Board may release a temporary employee at its discretion if the employee has served less than 75 percent of the
number of days the regular schools of the district are maintained during one school year. After serving 75 percent of
the number of days that district schools are maintained during one school year, a temporary employee may be
released as long as the employee is notified, before the last day of June, of the district's decision not to reelect the
temporary employee for the following school year.  (Education Code 37200, 44954)

Reemployment as a Probationary Employee

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44917, 44918, and 44920 provide that a substitute or temporary employee who
performs the duties of a certificated employee for a complete school year, or for at least 75 percent of the days in
the school year, shall be given credit for a complete year as a probationary employee if the employee is then
employed as a probationary employee the following school year, as provided below. However, in McIntyre v.
Sonoma Valley Unified School District, the court clarified that a district is not required to grant probationary status
to an employee based solely on the fact that the employee served as a temporary employee for more than one year
if the employee is released and reemployed as a temporary employee for the following year to fill the position of a
regularly employed person absent from service.
Reemployment provisions contained in Education Code 44918 do not apply to districts with average daily
attendance of over 250,000; such districts should modify the following section accordingly.

Unless released from employment pursuant to Education Code 44954, any person employed for one complete
school year as a temporary employee shall, if reemployed for the following school year in a vacant position requiring
certification qualifications, be classified as a probationary employee. With the exception of on-call, day-to-day
substitutes, if a temporary or substitute employee performs the duties normally required of certificated employees
for at least 75 percent of the number of days the regular schools of the district were maintained in that school year
and is then employed as a probationary employee for the following school year, the employee's previous
employment as a temporary or substitute employee shall be credited as one year's employment as a probationary
employee for purposes of acquiring permanent status.  (Education Code 44917, 44918, 44920)

Vacant position means a position in which the employee is qualified to serve and which is not filled by a permanent
or probationary employee. It shall not include a position which would be filled by a permanent or probationary
employee except for the fact that such employee is on leave.  (Education Code 44920, 44921)

A temporary employee hired pursuant to Item #1 or #2 in the section "Classification" above shall be classified as a
probationary employee if the duties continue beyond the time limits of the assignment.  (Education Code 44919)

A person employed pursuant to Item #5 in the section "Classification" above who is then continued in employment
beyond the first semester shall be classified as a probationary employee for the entire school year and shall be
reemployed to fill any vacant position in the district for which the employee is certified. Preference for available
positions shall be determined by the Board as prescribed by Education Code 44845 and 44846.  (Education Code
44921)

With the exception of on-call, day-to-day substitutes, any temporary or substitute employee who was released
pursuant to Education Code 44954 but who has nevertheless served in a certificated position in the district for at
least 75 percent of each of two consecutive school years shall receive first priority if the district fills a vacant
position for the subsequent school year at the grade level at which the employee served during either year. In the
case of a departmentalized program, the employee shall have taught the subject matter in which the vacant position
occurs.  (Education Code 44918)

81 303



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5502 Filing of notice of physical examination for employment of retired person

5 CCR 5503 Physical examination for employment of retired persons

5 CCR 5590 Temporary athletic team coach

5 CCR 80025-80025.5 Emergency substitute teaching permits

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22515 Irrevocable election to join retirement plan

Ed. Code 37200 School calendar

Ed. Code 44252.5 State basic skills assessment required for certificated personnel

Ed. Code 44300 Emergency permits

Ed. Code 44830 Employment of certificated persons

Ed. Code 44839.5 Requirements for employment of retirant

Ed. Code 44845 Date of employment

Ed. Code 44846 Criteria for reemployment preferences

Ed. Code 44909 Employees providing services through categorically funded programs

Ed. Code 44914 Substitute and probationary employment computation for classification as
permanent employee

Ed. Code 44915 Classification of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44917 Classification of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44918 Substitute or temporary employee deemed probationary employee;
reemployment rights

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44920 Employment of certain temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44921 Employment of temporary employees; reemployment rights (unified and
high school districts)

Ed. Code 44953 Dismissal of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44956 Rights of laid-off permanent employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44957 Rights of laid-off probationary employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 45030 Substitutes

Ed. Code 45041 Computation of salary

Ed. Code 45042 Alternative method of computation for less than one school year

Ed. Code 45043 Compensation for employment beginning in the second semester

Ed. Code 56060-56063 Substitute teachers in special education

Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

82 304



Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision McIntyre v. Sonoma Valley Unified School District (2012) 206 Cal.App.4th
170

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

Court Decision Stockton Teachers Association CTA/NEA v. Stockton Unified School District
(2012) 204 Cal.App.4th 446

Court Decision Bakersfield Elementary Teachers Association v. Bakersfield City School
District (2006) 145 Cal.App.4th 1260

Court Decision California Teachers Association v. Vallejo City Unified School District (2007)
149 Cal.App.4th 135

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0500 Accountability

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.1 Contracts

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4112.3-E(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

83 305



4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4212.3-E(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4251 Employee Compensation

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4312.3-E(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

84 306



4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4340 Bargaining Units

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

85 307



Regulation 4121: Temporary/Substitute PersonnelRegulation 4121: Temporary/Substitute Personnel Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1997 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be
revised in accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative
regulation is inconsistent with provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreement would prevail, so long as the provision is consistent with law.
Qualifications

Any candidate recommended by the Superintendent or designee for a substitute or temporary position requiring
certification qualifications shall possess the appropriate credential or permit authorizing employment in such position
and shall meet all other requirements of law for certificated positions.  (Education Code 44830)

The district shall not initially hire a certificated person on a substitute or temporary basis in a capacity designated in
the person's credential unless the person has demonstrated basic skills proficiency in reading, writing, and
mathematics pursuant to Education Code 44252.5, or is exempted by law.  (Education Code 44830)

A noncredentialed person shall not substitute for any special education certificated position. The Superintendent or
designee shall recruit and maintain lists of appropriately credentialed substitute teachers for special education
positions. The Superintendent or designee shall contact institutes of higher education with approved special
education programs for possible recommendations of appropriately credentialed special education personnel. 
(Education Code 56060, 56063)

Notifications

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44915 and 44916 require the Governing Board to classify substitute and temporary
employees at the time of initial employment and each July thereafter; see the accompanying Board policy. In
addition, Education Code 44916 requires the district to provide temporary employees written notice of their status
at the time of initial employment. In Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma County Union High School District, the California
Supreme Court determined that a temporary employee who received such notice three weeks after she started
work was probationary rather than temporary. Although the notice was sent immediately after the Board approved
the employee's appointment at the first available meeting, the Supreme Court found that an employee must receive
notice of temporary classification before starting work.

Temporary athletic team coaches may be an exception to the notice requirement. In Neily v. Manhattan Beach
Unified School District, a dismissed employee argued that, because the district did not provide a written statement
of classification in accordance with Education Code 44916, it had a mandatory duty to classify him as a
probationary employee. However, the court did not accept that the only path to defining a position as temporary is
through district notification of that classification and held that a second path to defining a position as temporary is
pursuant to Education Code 44919, which expressly defines the position as temporary. The court determined that a
temporary athletic team coach who holds no other position in the district is deemed a temporary employee
pursuant to Education Code 44919. See also BP/AR 4127 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches.
Before starting work, each new temporary employee shall receive a written statement indicating employment status
and salary. This statement shall clearly indicate the temporary nature of the employment and the length of time for
which the person is being employed.  (Education Code 44916)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify all substitute and part-time certificated employees, within 30 days of
their hire, of their right to elect membership in a defined benefit program under a qualified retirement plan. The
employee shall sign a form provided by the system to acknowledge receipt of this notice and to indicate whether the
employee elects or declines membership. Election of membership shall be irrevocable for all future employment to
perform creditable service.  (Education Code 22455.5, 22515)

Assignments

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 80025-80025.5 specify restrictions pertaining to the number of days that an emergency
substitute permit holder may substitute for any one teacher during the school year; see BP/AR 4112.2 -
Certification.
A person who holds an emergency 30-day substitute permit, emergency career substitute permit, emergency
substitute permit for prospective teachers, or emergency substitute permit for career technical education shall be

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

86 308



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

restricted in the number of days the employee may substitute for any one teacher in accordance with 5 CCR 80025-
80025.5.

In placing substitute teachers in special education classrooms, the district shall give first priority to substitute
teachers with the appropriate special education credential(s), second priority to substitute teachers with any other
special education credential, and third priority to substitute teachers with a regular teaching credential. An
inappropriately credentialed substitute teacher shall not serve as a substitute for a special education teacher for a
period of more than 20 cumulative school days for each special education teacher absent during each school year.
The district may apply to the Superintendent of Public Instruction for an extension of 20 school days, or for a longer
period in extraordinary circumstances.  (Education Code 56060, 56061, 56062)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5502 Filing of notice of physical examination for employment of retired person

5 CCR 5503 Physical examination for employment of retired persons

5 CCR 5590 Temporary athletic team coach

5 CCR 80025-80025.5 Emergency substitute teaching permits

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22515 Irrevocable election to join retirement plan

Ed. Code 37200 School calendar

Ed. Code 44252.5 State basic skills assessment required for certificated personnel

Ed. Code 44300 Emergency permits

Ed. Code 44830 Employment of certificated persons

Ed. Code 44839.5 Requirements for employment of retirant

Ed. Code 44845 Date of employment

Ed. Code 44846 Criteria for reemployment preferences

Ed. Code 44909 Employees providing services through categorically funded programs

Ed. Code 44914 Substitute and probationary employment computation for classification as
permanent employee

Ed. Code 44915 Classification of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44917 Classification of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44918 Substitute or temporary employee deemed probationary employee;
reemployment rights

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44920 Employment of certain temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44921 Employment of temporary employees; reemployment rights (unified and
high school districts)

Ed. Code 44953 Dismissal of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44956 Rights of laid-off permanent employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44957 Rights of laid-off probationary employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 45030 Substitutes

87 309



Ed. Code 45041 Computation of salary

Ed. Code 45042 Alternative method of computation for less than one school year

Ed. Code 45043 Compensation for employment beginning in the second semester

Ed. Code 56060-56063 Substitute teachers in special education

Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision McIntyre v. Sonoma Valley Unified School District (2012) 206 Cal.App.4th
170

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

Court Decision Stockton Teachers Association CTA/NEA v. Stockton Unified School District
(2012) 204 Cal.App.4th 446

Court Decision Bakersfield Elementary Teachers Association v. Bakersfield City School
District (2006) 145 Cal.App.4th 1260

Court Decision California Teachers Association v. Vallejo City Unified School District (2007)
149 Cal.App.4th 135

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0500 Accountability

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.1 Contracts

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4112.3-E(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

88 310



4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4212.3-E(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4251 Employee Compensation

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.3 Oath Or Affirmation

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

89 311



4312.3-E(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4340 Bargaining Units

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

90 312



Policy 4127: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesPolicy 4127: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2010 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

The Governing Board acknowledges that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of students
in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, and therefore desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the
district's interscholastic athletic activities in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and safety of
participating students.  

The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a substitute
employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary employee in a limited assignment
capacity. Interscholastic athletic activities include any activities in which student teams participate in interscholastic
competition.  (5 CCR 5590)

CSBA NOTE: When hiring a temporary athletic team coach, Education Code 44919 requires districts to first make
the position available to a credentialed teacher presently employed by the district. In CTA v. Rialto Unified School
District, the California Supreme Court held that the law is intended to grant a current certificated employee a
limited advantage in the hiring process over a noncertificated employee or a nonemployee, provided that the
applicant applies for the position and meets qualification criteria established by the district.
When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic activity team coach, the position shall first be made
available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district.  (Education Code 44919)

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5596 specifies a code of ethical conduct for athletic coaches; see the accompanying
administrative regulation. In addition, the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) has adopted a set of principles
to guide the conduct of coaches and other participants in interscholastic athletic competitions; see BP 6145.2 -
Athletic Competition.
All coaches shall be subject to applicable law, Board policies, administrative regulations, and California Interscholastic
Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct.

Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591)

Qualifications and Training

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5593 establishes the minimum qualifications for employees serving as temporary athletic team
coaches; see the accompanying administrative regulation.
The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in accordance with law
and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an appropriate level of competence,
knowledge, and skill.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with
students in a district-sponsored student activity program, such as a scholastic program, an interscholastic athletic
program, or extracurricular activities, is required to obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC) from
the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, unless the district requires the candidate to clear a Department of
Justice (DOJ) and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) criminal background check. See BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer
Assistance and AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check. Thus, the Governing Board may (1) choose to
require a temporary athletic team coach to obtain the ASCC or a DOJ/FBI criminal background check, (2) permit an
individual, at the individual's discretion, to obtain either the ASCC or DOJ/FBI check, or (3) apply different
requirements to different positions in the district (e.g., head coaches vs. assistant coaches; employees vs.
volunteers). The following paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice.

In addition, Education Code 45125.01 allows multiple districts within a county or within contiguous counties to
share criminal record information of noncertificated employees and volunteers working in a student activity
program.
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored interscholastic athletic
activity shall, prior to beginning the individual’s duties, submit to the Superintendent or designee either an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and
Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background clearance.  (Education Code 49024)

Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to the
Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that the coach meets the

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

91 313



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State
Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49032 requires that all high school coaches complete a district or CIF-developed
coaching education program that meets the guidelines of Education Code 35179.1, which, as amended by AB 245
(Ch. 422, Statutes of 2023), includes training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation, use of an automated external
defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes but is not limited to training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and
appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac arrest. Additionally, Education Code 33479.6 requires
coaches to complete a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest and to
retake such a course every two years thereafter. For more information regarding training of interscholastic athletic
activity coaches, see the accompanying administrative regulation.
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the extent to which the
district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including those required pursuant to Education Code
33479.6, 35179.1, and 49032, and by district policy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

92 314



CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

93 315



5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

94 316



Regulation 4127: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesRegulation 4127: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2010 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Qualifications

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5593 establishes minimum qualifications for certificated and noncertificated employees
assigned as temporary athletic team coaches. Pursuant to 5 CCR 5593, the Superintendent or designee is required
to certify to the Governing Board that each newly hired coach meets the requirements of 5 CCR 5593; see the
accompanying Board policy.

The district should modify the following section to reflect any additional criteria. Districts may consider developing
specific criteria for each interscholastic athletic activity coach position.
Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not necessarily limited to,
competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593)

1.  Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency procedures, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and possession of a
valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card
 

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card
 

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card
 

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' Association
(NATA/CATA)
 

e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the supervision of an
athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and conditioning
 

2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one or more of the
following:
 

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques
 

b. Completion of in-service programs arranged by a school district or county office of education
 

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being coached
 

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached
 

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in the sport being
coached
 

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the league rules, and, at
the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF)
 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport participation, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions and adolescent
or sports psychology for secondary school positions
 

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth
 

c.  Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in appropriate training
courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons serve under the direct supervision of a fully

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

95 317



qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 CCR 5593)

CSBA NOTE: The qualifications required by 5 CCR 5593 for employees serving as temporary athletic team coaches
do not apply to volunteer coaches. The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that require volunteers
who supervise or direct an athletic program to meet those same qualifications. For more information regarding
volunteer assistance in schools, see BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer Assistance.
Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria specified in 5 CCR 5593
required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. Any volunteer who does not meet such
criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic
program.

Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary
athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592)

1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated teachers from
teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from a licensed physician or other
person approved by the district
 

2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 44424, or any
offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with children

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with
students in a district-sponsored student activity program, including scholastic programs, interscholastic athletic
programs, and extracurricular activities, must obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing or clear a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal
background check prior to beginning duties. See the accompanying Board policy.
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall obtain an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code
49024)

Training

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools. Education Code 49032
requires that all high school coaches complete a coaching education program developed by the district or the
California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) that meets the guidelines listed in Education Code 35179.1, as amended
by AB 245 (Ch. 422, Statutes of 2023), and includes training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation, use of an automated
external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited to, training in recognizing the signs,
symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac arrest. Pursuant to Health and Safety
Code 124238.5, as added by AB 1467 (Ch. 24, Statutes of 2023), beginning January 1, 2027, districts are required
to provide student athletes with access to an AED during any official practice or match that, when medical
circumstances warrant its use, is administered by a medical professional, coach, or other designated person who
holds AED certification and complies with any other qualifications pursuant to law.

Pursuant to Education Code 35179.8, as amended by AB 1653 (Ch. 589, Statutes of 2023), CIF, in consultation with
the California Department of Education (CDE), is required to develop guidelines, procedures, and safety standards
for the prevention and management of exertional heat illness.

Districts that wish to set their own standards for the coaching education program instead of using the standards
developed by the CIF should modify the following paragraph accordingly.
Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at the individual's expense, a coaching
education program that meets the standards developed by CIF and includes, but is not limited to, training in regard to
sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport management, statewide and school regulations, CPR,
including certification, use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited
to, training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac
arrest. A high school coach who has completed the education program in another California school district shall be
deemed to have met the requirement for this district. An individual who has not completed the education program
may be assigned as a coach for no longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1,
49032)

96 318



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 33479.6 requires the coach of an athletic activity to complete, and retake every two
years thereafter, a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, including the
risks associated with continuing to play or practice after experiencing fainting or seizures during exercise,
unexplained shortness of breath, chest pain, dizziness, racing heart rate, or extreme fatigue. Pursuant to Education
Code 33479.7 a coach who does not complete the required sudden cardiac arrest training is subject to suspension
from coaching any athletic activity until the required training is completed.

Online training fulfilling this requirement is available on the CIF's website. Additionally, Education Code 33479.2
requires CDE to post related information on its website.
In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches shall complete an
approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2,
33479.6, 33479.7)

Code of Ethical Conduct

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596)

1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches
 

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials
 

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct
 

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority
 

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times
 

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players
 

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and standards of the game
 

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment
 

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at any public or private
postsecondary educational institution
 

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to be eligible to
participate in athletics
 

11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, anabolic steroids, or any
substance to increase physical development or performance that is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American Medical Association
 

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools
 

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the district and the league
in which the district participates

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

97 319



Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

98 320



4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

99 321



Policy 4161: LeavesPolicy 4161: Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in accordance
with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this policy is inconsistent with provisions of
the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail, so long as the provision is
consistent with law.
The Governing Board shall provide for paid and unpaid leaves of absence for employees in accordance with law,
Board policy, administrative regulation, collective bargaining agreements, and merit system rules, as applicable.

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-10 below reflect categories of leave which are described in more detail in the cross-
referenced leave policies or administrative regulations cited below in the Policy Reference section. In addition,
Education Codes 44963, applicable to certificated staff, and 45198, applicable to classified staff, allow the
Governing Board to grant leaves with or without pay to certificated and classified staff for any purpose or period of
time, as long as no employee is deprived of any leave to which the employee is legally entitled. Education Code
45190, as amended by AB 472 (Ch. 331, Statutes of 2023), clarifies that, as to classified staff, including in a district
that has adopted the merit system, the Board's authority to grant leaves of absence and vacations with or without
pay includes voluntary leaves of absence. Any additional types of leaves so granted by the Board may be added to
the following list.
Employees have the right to take leaves as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreements, including, but
not limited to:

1. Personal illness or injury
 

2. Industrial accident or illness
 

3. Family care and medical leave
 

4. Military service
 

5. Personal necessity and personal emergencies

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44986, the Board may grant to any certificated employee who has
applied for disability benefits a leave of absence, not to exceed 30 days beyond final determination of the
employee's eligibility for disability benefits by the State Teachers' Retirement System. If the employee is
determined to be eligible, that leave must be extended for the term of the disability, up to 39 months.

6. Disability leave for certificated employees in accordance with Education Code 44986
 

7. Vacations for classified staff and certificated management staff, as applicable
 

8. Sabbaticals for purposes of study or training related to the employee's job duties
 

9. Attendance at work-related meetings and staff development opportunities

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45190, as amended by AB 472 (Ch. 331, Statutes of 2023), if a
district, including a district that has adopted the merit system, places an employee on an involuntary leave of
absence during the period the employee is charged with a criminal offense, is under a criminal investigation,
or is waiting due to administrative delay for necessary job-related administrative determinations, then, upon
the conclusion of the proceedings in favor of the employee, the district is required to pay to the employee the
employee's full compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of absence upon the employee's return
to service in the district. "Involuntary leave of absence" includes, but is not limited to, a compulsory leave of
absence or a suspension.

10. Compulsory leave
 

11. Maternity, parental leave, and reproductive loss leave for both certificated and classified staff, as applicable
under state law
 

12. Bereavement

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

100 322



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Long-Term Leaves

With Board approval, an employee may receive a leave of absence, without pay and without accruing seniority or
service credit, for a period of up to one school year. Applications for long-term leave shall be made in writing and
shall state the purpose for which leave is requested. All long-term leave agreements shall be in writing and shall state
the terms and conditions of the leave, including the conditions governing the employee's return.

At the end of a long-term leave, the employee shall be reinstated to a similar position as that employee held at the
time leave was granted, unless otherwise agreed upon.

The Board shall consider any written request by an employee to return to work prior to the expiration date of the
leave.

Administrative and Supervisory Personnel

CSBA NOTE: Leave provisions for administrative and supervisory personnel who are not subject to collective
bargaining agreements may be detailed in an individual contract, memorandum of understanding, or Board policy.
The following optional section is for use by districts that, through policy, grant the same leave provisions to
administrative and supervisory employees as are granted to other certificated or classified employees.
Certificated administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
certificated employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other certificated employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memorandums of understanding,
Board policy, administrative regulation, or law.

Classified administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
classified employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other classified employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memoranda of understanding, Board
policy, administrative regulation, or law.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

101 323



Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

102 324



4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

103 325



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4161: LeavesRegulation 4161: Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Failure to Return to Service After Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following optional regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in
accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative regulation is
inconsistent with provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would
prevail, so long as the provision is consistent with law.

Education Code 44842 addresses the return to service of a certificated employee at the beginning of the school
year following a leave of absence after April 30 of the previous school year and authorizes termination of the
employee if specified circumstances exist. As described in Item #1 below, one of the circumstances is the
employee's failure to report for duty, without good cause, after having notified the Governing Board of the intent to
remain in service. See AR 4112.1 - Contracts for provisions of Education Code 44842 pertaining to the duty of all
certificated employees to notify the district of their intention to remain in service if the district has issued a written
re-employment notice requesting employees to provide such notice.
The district may terminate the employment of a certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more
consecutive working days after April 30 of the previous school year if all of the following circumstances exist: 
(Education Code 44842)

1. The employee fails to report for duty, without good cause, at the beginning of the school year after having
notified the Governing Board of the intention to remain in service with the district in accordance with
Education Code 44842
 

2. The district had specifically notified the employee, at least five days in advance, of the time and place at which
the employee was to report to work
 

3. The employee continues to be absent from work for 20 consecutive working days, beginning from the date the
employee was to report to work.
 

4. The employee did not request or was not granted a leave of absence authorized by the Board

Use of Leaves by Classified Employees

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45200 authorizes the Board to allow classified employees to switch from vacation
leave to another type of leave as provided below. The following optional section is for use by districts that choose
to offer such an option to classified employees and may be used by districts that have adopted the merit system.
A classified employee may interrupt or terminate vacation leave in order to begin another type of paid leave without
a return to active service, as long as the employee provides adequate notice and relevant supporting information
regarding the basis for such interruption or termination.  (Education Code 45200)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

104 326



Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

105 327



4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

106 328



Regulation 4161.1: Personal Illness/Injury LeaveRegulation 4161.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2017 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following administrative regulation applies to certificated employees, including certificated
management. For classified employees, including classified management, see AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury
Leave.

The following administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in accordance with
any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative regulation is inconsistent with
provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail, so long as the
provision is consistent with law. Certain portions of this administrative regulation are mandated or conditionally
mandated; see "Verification Requirements" and "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is
Exhausted/Differential Pay" sections below.

Education Code 44978 provides a minimum of 10 days of personal illness or injury leave (sick leave) per year for
certificated employees working five days a week. The Governing Board may allow additional days at its discretion; if
it does so, the following paragraph should be revised accordingly.

Labor Code 245-249 (the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act) require districts to grant a minimum of one
hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked to their employees who work for 30 days or more within a year
of their employment, including temporary and substitute employees. Pursuant to Labor Code 246, as amended by
SB 616 (Ch. 309, Statutes of 2023), a district may use a different sick leave accrual method which provides for the
accrual to be on a regular basis so that employees accrue at least 24 hours of sick leave or paid time off by the
120th calendar day of their employment or each calendar year or 12-month period, and at least 40 hours or five
days of paid sick leave by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-month period.

The provisions of Labor Code 245-249 are very broad and only district employees covered by a valid collective
bargaining agreement may be exempted from them, if the collective bargaining agreement expressly provides paid
sick leave in an amount equal to or exceeding the amount of leave required pursuant to Labor Code 246, includes
final and binding arbitration of disputes regarding the application of the paid sick days provisions, and provides
premium wage rates for all overtime hours worked and a regular hourly rate of pay of not less than 30 percent more
than the state minimum wage rate. However, even for employees covered by a valid collective bargaining
agreement, Labor Code 246.5, as amended by SB 616, extends procedural protections regarding retaliation to such
employees. Since many districts may not satisfy all of the conditions for this exemption, this administrative
regulation has been drafted to include the requirements of Labor Code 245-249. Any district which has a collective
bargaining agreement that meets all of the conditions for exemption may modify this administrative regulation
accordingly.

For additional requirements of Labor Code 245-249, see the section titled "Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families
Act Requirements" below. For paid sick leave for temporary and substitute certificated employees, see BP/AR 4121
- Temporary/Substitute Personnel. For sick leave for classified employees, see AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury
Leave.
The following administrative regulation applies to classified employees, including classified management. For
certificated employees, including certificated management, see Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 – Personal
Illness/Injury Leave.

Certificated employees employed five school days per week are entitled to 10 days leave of absence with full pay for
personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of service. Employees who work less than five school days per
week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, any part-time
employees who are entitled to less than three days of paid sick leave per year due to the amount of time worked
shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if they are eligible.  (Education Code 44978; Labor Code
245-249)

Use of Sick Leave

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-8 below reflect allowable uses of sick leave specified in law. The district may expand this list
to include any additional purposes authorized by law, authorized by the district, or included in a bargaining
agreement.
A certificated employee may use sick leave for absences as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining
agreement, including, but not limited to:

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

107 329



1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of and in the course of employment; quarantine
which results from contact in the course of employment with other persons having a contagious disease; or
temporary inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or quarantine  (Education Code
44964)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848 (Ch. 724, Statutes of 2023), the
district is prohibited from refusing to grant a request by an employee to take up to five days of reproductive
loss leave following a reproductive loss event. See AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves.

Additionally, pursuant to Title IX (20 USC 1681-1688) and implementing regulation 34 CFR 106.57, as
amended by 89 Fed. Reg. 33474, the district is required to treat pregnancy, childbirth, termination of
pregnancy, or lactation, including any related medical condition or recovery, as it would any other temporary
medical condition for job-related purposes, including leaves.

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery, as well as reproductive loss  (Education Code 44965,
44978; Government Code 12945.6)
 

3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 44981)

CSBA NOTE: Optional Item #4 below may be revised to specify a different minimum increment for sick leave.
4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour

 
5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been exhausted 

(Education Code 44984)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) (29 USC 2612) and California Family
Rights Act (CFRA) (Government Code 12945.2), a district is required to grant leave to an eligible employee to
bond with a child after the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the child. For this purpose, employees
may, but are not required to, use sick leave for any otherwise unpaid FMLA or CFRA leave.

Government Code 12945.21, as amended by AB 1756 (Ch. 478, Statutes of 2023), establishes a small
employer family leave mediation pilot program, until January 1, 2025, for very small districts that employ
between 5-19 employees to mediate disputes about the employee's right to medical or family care leave
under CFRA and/or bereavement leave.

For further information regarding parental leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical
Leave.

6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster care
placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR
825.112)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 233, any district that provides sick leave to its employees is required to
permit an employee to use sick leave, in an amount not less than the sick leave that would be accrued during
six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement, for the purposes specified in Items #7-8
below. Pursuant to Labor Code 233, designation of sick leave taken under this provision is at the sole
discretion of the employee. Labor Code 233 does not extend the maximum period of leave to which an
employee is entitled under CFRA or FMLA, regardless of whether the employee receives sick leave
compensation during that leave.

For the purpose of using sick leave to attend to the health care needs of a family member, as specified in Item
#7 below, Labor Code 245.5 includes a designated person in the definition of a "family member," in addition
to an employee's spouse, registered domestic partner, child (biological, adopted, or foster child; stepchild;
legal ward; or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis), parent (biological, adoptive, or foster
parent; stepparent; legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner;
or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child), grandparent, grandchild, or
sibling. Pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 and Labor Code 245.5, a "designated person" means any
individual related by blood or whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship.
The designated person may be identified by the employee at the time the employee requests the leave, and
the district may limit the employee to one designated person per 12-month period for family care and
medical leave. For further information regarding medical leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care
and Medical Leave.

108 330



For additional information about leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking granted in
accordance with Item #8 below, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves.

7. Need of the employee or employee's family member, including a designated person, as defined in Labor Code
245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care  (Government
Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)
 

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.7, districts are required to provide up to five days of
bereavement leave for the death of an employee's "family member," as defined, if the employee was
employed by the district for at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the bereavement leave. The
bereavement leave days do not need to be taken consecutively, but must be taken within three months of the
family member's date of death. Districts with existing policies that provide employees less than five days of
paid bereavement leave must continue to give employees the number of paid days specified in the policy, but
may provide the remainder of the five days as unpaid bereavement leave. Districts must allow employees to
use any paid vacation, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off for the balance of the unpaid
bereavement leave. For more information on bereavement leave, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal
Leaves. Districts with questions about the application of their bereavement leave policies should consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

9. Bereavement leave, as specified in Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves 
(Education Code 44985; Government Code 12945.7)

For the purposes specified in Items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of sick leave that
would be accrued during six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 233)

An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick leave has not yet been
accrued.  (Education Code 44978)

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 44978)

CSBA NOTE: The following two paragraphs are recommended and may be revised to reflect district practice. For
more information regarding wage overpayment, see BP 4151/4251/4351 - Employee Compensation.
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of termination, in
accordance with Education Code 44042.5.

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave they have accumulated.

The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous district.  (Education Code
44979, 44980)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44979-44980, certificated employees are entitled to have their
accumulated sick leave transferred with them in the circumstances specified in the following optional paragraph.
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the district after at least one
school year of employment that if the employee accepts a certificated position in another district, county office of
education, or community college district within one year, the employee may request that the district transfer any
accumulated sick leave to the new employer.  (Education Code 44979, 44980)

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a certificated employee who is a former active duty
member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the California National Guard or a federal
reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical
treatment, including mental health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more
by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days per week shall be
entitled to such leave in proportion to the time worked.  (Education Code 44978.2)

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee receives confirmation of the
submission of the disability application to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee

109 331



begins or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives the disability
rating decision, the employee shall report that information to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating
decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the
10-day maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may
change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  (Education Code
44978.2)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44978.2, the district may require proof that a leave granted under this
law is used for treatment of a military service-connected disability. The following paragraph may be revised to
reflect district practice.
The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification Requirements"
below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date that the leave
was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education
Code 44978.2)

Notification of Absence

CSBA NOTE: The following section is recommended and may be revised to reflect district practice.
An employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the need to be absent as soon as such need is known, so
that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate of the expected duration of
absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of
absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the
afternoon of the day preceding the day on which the employee intends to return to work. If the employee fails to
notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted
from the employee's pay.

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44977, employees who are absent due to illness for up to five months
after exhausting all available sick leave must receive their regular salary minus the cost of a substitute. Alternatively,
Education Code 44983 allows districts to adopt a rule that gives certificated employees 50 percent or more of their
regular salary during the period of absence. When an employee is absent for a cause other than illness, Education
Code 44977 and 44983 provide that the amount deducted from the employee's salary shall be determined
according to the rules and regulations adopted by the Board as long as such rules are not in conflict with State
Board of Education regulations.

Option 1 below is for use by districts that subtract the cost of a substitute from the absent employee's salary
pursuant to Education Code 44977. Option 2 is mandated pursuant to Education Code 44983 for districts that
choose to give certificated employees 50 percent or more of their regular salary during the period of absence, and
may be revised to specify a percentage higher than 50 percent in accordance with district practice.

If not covered in the district's bargaining agreement, the district may add provisions to this section reflecting salary
deductions for employees absent longer than five months.
OPTION 1:  (Differential pay: regular salary minus cost of substitute)

During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all
accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five
school months, the district shall deduct from the employee's regular salary for that period the actual cost of a
substitute to fill the position. If the district has made every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute
and has been unable to do so, the amount that would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from the
employee's salary.  (Education Code 44977)

An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. However, if the school
year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of the five-month period in
a subsequent school year.  (Education Code 44977)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

110 332



OPTION 2:  (50 percent of employee's regular salary)

After a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to
illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five months, the employee shall receive at
least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary during the additional period of absence.  (Education Code 44983)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is required for districts that select Option 1 (i.e., differential pay) in the
section "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay" above and should be carefully
considered by districts that select Option 2 (i.e., 50 percent pay). Education Code 44978.1 requires the
establishment of a reemployment list for employees who are unable to resume their duties after the five-month
period provided pursuant to Education Code 44977.

Although Education Code 44978.1 does not explicitly require a reemployment list for districts selecting Option 2,
such districts should be aware that failure to establish a reemployment list may subject employees to termination
following a five-month absence. Therefore, any district that selects Option 2 and currently maintains a
reemployment list for employees who are absent beyond the five-month period, or that wishes to establish such a
list, should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel before
changing its policy or practices.
If a certificated employee is not medically able to return to work after the five-month period provided pursuant to
Education Code 44977, the employee shall be placed either in another position or on a reemployment list.
Placement on the reemployment list shall be for 24 months for probationary employees or 39 months for permanent
employees and shall begin at the expiration of the five-month period. If during this time the employee becomes
medically able, the employee shall be returned to employment in a position for which the employee is credentialed
and qualified.  (Education Code 44978.1)

Parental Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following section is subject to any conflicting provision in a collective bargaining agreement that
provides greater parental leave rights.
During each school year, a certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave,
for the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any
period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code
44977.5)

CSBA NOTE: Unlike leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2, leave taken pursuant to Education Code
44977.5 does not require an employee to have at least 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous
12-month period in order to be eligible for parental leave. See AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and
Medical Leave for further information on requirements related to the California Family Rights Act.
Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 months. 
(Education Code 44977.5)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44977.5, the district is required to provide differential pay to a
certificated employee for up to 12 work weeks when the employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent due to parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.2.
Such an employee is entitled to receive differential pay, calculated in the same manner described in Option 1 or 2 in
the section "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay" above. Education Code
44977.5 requires that, regardless of the type of differential pay system used by the district, employees must receive
at least 50 percent of their regular salary for any portion of the 12-week parental leave that remains following the
exhaustion of sick leave. The following paragraph may be revised to specify a percentage higher than 50 percent in
accordance with district practice.

Since Education Code 44977.5 does not expressly require districts to provide differential pay to employees who are
eligible for parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, it is unclear whether such employees would be
entitled to differential pay. Districts should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services
or district legal counsel if they have questions regarding differential pay for such employees.
An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent

111 333



on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for
the remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 44977.5)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the parental leave taken
pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12
work weeks in a 12-month period.  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

Verification Requirements

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44978 mandates the Board to adopt regulations requiring proof of illness or injury
and prescribing the means of verification. However, Education Code 44978 provides that these regulations shall not
discriminate against evidence of treatment and the need for treatment by the practice of a well-recognized religion.
For verification requirements for employees on leave pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act, see AR
4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. The following section should be modified to reflect
district practice and any procedures which have been specified in bargaining agreements.

Labor Code 233 requires districts to allow their employees to use sick leave for the purposes specified in Labor
Code 246.5. Because Labor Code 246.5 is silent on requests for verification, and requires an employer to provide
an employee with paid sick days upon oral or written request, districts should be cautious in requiring verification
for sick leave used for the purposes specified in Labor Code 246.5 (Items #7-8 in the section "Use of Sick Leave"
above). Although a district is permitted to require verification from an employee who is a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, pursuant to Labor Code 230 and 230.1, a general insistence on verification
could be deemed a violation of Labor Code 246.5. Any district with questions regarding its authority related to
verification should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows chronic
absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or whenever available
evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the district, at
district expense, in order to receive a report on the employee's need for further leave of absence and a prognosis as
to when the employee will be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not
warrant continued absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny further
leave.

CSBA NOTE: 42 USC 2000ff-1, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, and its implementing regulations,
29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12, specify that it is unlawful for a district to request, require, or purchase employees' or their
family member's individual genetic information except in complying with the medical certification requirements for
family care and medical leave purposes or with the employee's prior written authorization. See AR
4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1635.9, any such information
received by the district must be kept confidential as specified below.
Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician shall be in
writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the employee's genetic
information. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a
confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and not be disclosed
except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended medical
treatment may be asked to submit a letter from a physician stating that the employee is able to return to duty and
stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations.

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 245-249, all employers, including those that provide paid time off to their
employees under existing policy or other law, must comply with the requirements specified in the following section.
Pursuant to Labor Code 248.5, noncompliance with the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act could result in an
enforcement action against the employer, including the imposition of civil and monetary penalties. Any district with
questions regarding the applicability of this law should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel.

112 334



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in any manner discriminate
or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the following
information:
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
 

b. The number of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick leave is prohibited
by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district
discriminates or retaliates against the employee

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 246, as amended by SB 616, districts are required to provide 40
hours or five days of paid sick leave to eligible employees.

2. Provide at least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per year and allow
eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their pay check, of
the amount of paid sick leave they have available
 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each eligible employee
for three years

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5601 Transfer of accumulated sick leave

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 44964 Power to grant leaves of absence for accident, illness, or quarantine

Ed. Code 44965 Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth

Ed. Code 44976 Transfer of leave rights when school is transferred to another district

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 44977.5 Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is
exhausted

Ed. Code 44978 Sick leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44978.1 Inability to return to duty; placement in another position or on
reemployment list

Ed. Code 44978.2 Leave for military service-connected disability

Ed. Code 44979 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to another district

Ed. Code 44980 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to a county office of education

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44983 Compensation during leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

113 335



Ed. Code 44986 Leave of absence; state disability benefits

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

29 CFR 825.100-825.702 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Discrimination on the basis of sex; effectuating Title IX

42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Veguez v. Governing Board of Long Beach Unified School District (2005)
127 Cal.App.4th 406

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4113.5 Working Remotely

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

114 336



4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4213.5 Working Remotely

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

115 337



4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4313.5 Working Remotely

4317.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

116 338



Regulation 4161.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4161.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following mandated administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be
revised in accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative
regulation is inconsistent with provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreement would prevail, so long as the provision is consistent with law.
Personal leaves granted to district employees shall be used as permitted in law, this administrative regulation, other
Governing Board-approved policy or district regulation, or applicable collective bargaining agreement, or as
otherwise required by law.

CSBA NOTE: Family Code 297.5 extends to registered domestic partners the same rights that are available under
state law to spouses. Thus, any reference to an employee's spouse throughout this administrative regulation also
applies to a registered domestic partner, even if not expressly stated in the applicable state statute (e.g., Education
Code, Military and Veterans Code). Districts should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel if a question arises as to leave provisions relative to an employee's domestic
partner.
For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner.  (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

Bereavement

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.7, districts are required to provide up to five days of
bereavement leave for the death of an employee's "family member," as defined, if the employee was employed by
the district for at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the bereavement leave. Education Code 44985 and
45194 grant three days, or five days if out-of-state travel is required, of paid bereavement leave for certificated and
classified employees upon the death of a member of the employee's "immediate family." Government Code
12945.7 potentially expands the length of this leave, but not necessarily the requirement to pay for this leave.
Education Code 44985 and 45194 grant bereavement leave for a member of the employee's "immediate family,"
the definition of which is more expansive than a "family member," pursuant to Government Code 12945.7. Any
bereavement leave taken under the Education Code and/or Government Code runs concurrently and not
consecutively.

The bereavement leave days do not need to be taken consecutively, but must be taken within three months of the
family member's date of death. Districts with existing policies that provide employees less than five days of paid
bereavement leave must continue to give employees the number of paid days specified in the policy, but may
provide the remainder of the five days as unpaid bereavement leave. Districts must allow employees to use any
paid vacation, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off for the balance of the unpaid bereavement leave.
Additionally, Government Code 12945.7 makes it unlawful to retaliate or discriminate against an employee for
using bereavement leave or to interfere with an employee's right to use bereavement leave.

Education Code 44985 and 45194 allow the Governing Board to expand the class of relatives listed below as
"immediate family" and enlarge the benefits provided by law. Additionally, Government Code 12945.2 includes
parent-in-law in the definition of "family member" for purposes of bereavement leave. Thus, to ensure consistency,
the definition of "immediate family" includes "parent-in-law" as permitted by law.

Districts with questions about bereavement leave should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or district legal counsel.

The following paragraphs may be revised to reflect district practice.
Employees are entitled to a leave of up to five days upon the death of any member of the employee's immediate
family, as defined in Education Code 44985 and 45194.

"Immediate family" means a parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse of
the employee, and the spouse, domestic partner, child, child-in-law, sibling, or sibling-in-law of the employee, or any

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

117 339



relative living in the immediate household of the employee.  (Education Code 44985, 45194; Government Code
12945.7)

No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary for any authorized paid bereavement leave as specified in
the collective bargaining agreement or as otherwise established by this policy, nor shall such leave be deducted from
any other leave to which the employee is entitled unless requested by the employee.  (Education Code 44985,
45194; Government Code 12945.7)

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Reproductive Loss

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848 (Ch. 724, Statutes of 2023), the district
is prohibited from refusing to grant a request by an employee who has worked at least 30 days for the district to
take up to five days of reproductive loss leave following a reproductive loss event. The district is not required to
grant more than 20 days for multiple reproductive loss events during a 12-month period.

Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848, prohibits the district from retaliating or discriminating against an
employee for taking reproductive loss leave or giving information or testimony related to such right, or to interfere
with, restrain, or deny the exercise or attempted exercise of this right.
Upon request by any employee who has experienced a reproductive loss event, defined as the day or, for a multiple-
day event, the final day of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or an unsuccessful assisted
reproduction, the district shall grant the employee up to five days of reproductive loss leave, to be taken
consecutively or non-consecutively. The employee shall take the leave within three months following the event. If
the employee is on another type of leave at the time of the reproductive loss event, or chooses to take another type
of leave immediately following a reproductive loss event, then the reproductive loss leave shall be completed within
three months of the end date of the other leave.  (Government Code 12945.6)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848, reproductive loss leave is required to be
taken pursuant to any existing applicable leave policy of the district. However, if the district's leave policy does not
so specify, the reproductive loss leave will be unpaid, but the employee may use vacation, personal leave, accrued
and available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee. Districts that provide
paid reproductive loss leave should revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice.
Reproductive loss leave will be unpaid unless the employee chooses to use vacation, personal leave, accrued and
available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Government Code
12945.6)

Any request or inquiry or information provided by an employee related to reproductive loss leave and/or a
reproductive loss shall remain confidential, except to internal personnel or counsel as necessary or as required by
law.

Personal Necessity

CSBA NOTE: Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accumulated personal illness/injury leave (sick leave)
for reasons of personal necessity pursuant to Education Code 44981 (certificated employees) and 45207 (classified
employees). Pursuant to Education Code 44981 and 45207, a higher maximum may be set for certificated and/or
classified employees in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, or by Board resolution for classified
employees who are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Districts that have established a maximum
that is higher than seven days should modify the following paragraph accordingly.

Education Code 45207 clarifies that provisions pertaining to personal necessity leave also apply to districts that
have adopted the merit system for classified employees in accordance with Education Code 45240-45320.
Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during each school
year for reasons of personal necessity.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the
limits set by bereavement leave provisions  (Education Code 44981, 45207; Government Code 12945.7)
 

118 340



2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44981, a certificated employee may use personal necessity leave
for the serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family. The Board may extend these
provisions to classified employees under the authority granted to the Board by Education Code 45207.
Districts are cautioned to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district
legal counsel regarding any interaction of Education Code provisions with Labor Code 233, 245.5, and 246.5,
which allow the use of sick leave for the need of the employee or family member for the diagnosis, care, or
treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care and which include in the definition of "family
member" a registered domestic partner, grandparent, and sibling. See AR 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal
Illness/Injury Leave and AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave.

Pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 and Labor Code 245.5, the California Family Rights Act (CFRA)
provides an eligible employee with up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to care for a designated
person who has a serious health condition, in addition to caring for a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild,
sibling, spouse, or domestic partner. A "designated person" is defined as any individual related by blood or
whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. The employee may identify
the designated person at the time the employee requests the leave. The district may limit the employee to
taking CFRA leave to care for one designated person per 12-month period. For further information regarding
medical leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave.

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5 
(Education Code 44981; Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 246.5)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45207 provides that classified employees may use sick leave for required court
appearances, as provided in Item #4 below. Circumstances under which employees may take time off, with
pay, for court appearances are described in the section on "Leave to Perform Legal Duties" below.

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or
witness under subpoena or other order  (Education Code 45207)

CSBA NOTE: Items #5 and #6 are optional and may be deleted or modified to reflect district practice.
5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee

 
6. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. The district is prohibited from requiring employees to obtain
advance permission prior to taking leaves in certain situations. Pursuant to Education Code 44981 and 45207, the
district may not require advance permission for leaves taken by classified employees for the reasons specified in
Items #1-2 above and by certificated employees for the reasons specified in Items #1-3 above. In addition, Labor
Code 246.5 requires an employer to grant paid sick leave "upon the oral or written request of an employee."
According to the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), employers may not require advance notice when the
need for the leave was unforeseeable, as in the case of unanticipated illness or a medical emergency.

Also see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave for requirements pertaining to requests for
leaves that qualify under the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (29 USC 2601-2654) or CFRA (Government
Code 12945.1-12945.2), including provisions that allow employees to provide notice as soon as practicable when
30-day advance notice is not practicable due to lack of knowledge of the date the leave will be needed, a change in
circumstances, or a medical emergency.
Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or for which the need is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the

119 341



need for the leave as soon as practicable.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44981 and 45207 mandate the adoption of regulations requiring proof of personal
necessity and prescribing the manner of the required proof. The following paragraph may be revised to specify the
manner of proof required by the district.
After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230 prohibits the discharge of or discrimination or retaliation against an employee for
taking time off for the activities specified in Items #1-2 below.

Pursuant to Education Code 44037, it is unlawful for the district, or personnel commission for merit districts, to (1)
adopt any rule, regulation, or policy that encourages classified employees to seek exemption from jury duty; (2)
directly or indirectly solicit or suggest to any employee that the employee seek exemption from jury duty; or (3)
discriminate against any employee with respect to assignment, employment, promotion, or in any other manner
because of the employee's service on a jury panel. However, the Board or personnel commission may establish a
rule providing that only a percentage of district staff, which shall not be less than two percent, shall be granted such
leave with pay at any one time. The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.
An employee may take time off work in order to:  (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury
 

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the district office when requesting
leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees.  (Education Code 44037)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to provide leave of absence with
pay for certificated employees called for jury duty, as authorized by Education Code 44036. Districts that do not
grant such leave should delete this paragraph.
A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional and applies only to certificated employees. Education Code
44036 allows the Board, at its discretion, to provide paid leaves for employees to appear in court as witnesses
other than as litigants or to respond to orders from another governmental jurisdiction.

The Board may grant the leave with or without pay. Districts that do not grant such leave should delete this
paragraph, or revise it to reflect district practice.
A certificated employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than as a litigant or to
respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the
connivance or misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's
regular earnings and any witness fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.2 prohibits a district from taking adverse employment action against an employee
who takes leave as described below.
An employee who is a victim of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of such victim may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial proceedings, if
the crime is any of the following:  (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)
 

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)

120 342



 
3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.2, employees may use any of the types of leave listed in the following
paragraph, unless otherwise provided by a collective bargaining agreement, although a collective bargaining
agreement cannot diminish the entitlement of an employee.
For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the district attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is advocating on
behalf of the victim.  (Labor Code 230.2)

The district shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of this
leave.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230 and 230.1 allow employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or mental injury with a threat of physical injury, and employees
whose immediate family member is deceased as the direct result of a crime to use any available vacation, personal
leave, or compensatory time off for the purposes described in Items #1-5 below, and prohibit a district from taking
adverse employment action against an employee for taking leave for any of those purposes. Pursuant to Labor Code
230.1, Items #2-5 apply to districts with 25 or more employees.
An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or
mental injury with a threat of physical injury or an employee whose immediate family member, as defined, is
deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or compensatory time off that is
otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230, the following certification may include documentation from a victim
advocate (defined as an individual, whether paid or serving as a volunteer, who provides services to victims under
the auspices or supervision of an agency or organization that has a documented record of providing services to
victims, a court, or a law enforcement or prosecution agency) or any other form of documentation that reasonably
verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not limited to, a written statement signed by the employee
or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf.
Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

121 343



3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee
was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The district shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor Code 230,
230.1)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.1, districts with 25 or more employees are required to notify district
employees of employee rights under Labor Code 230 and 230.1. The district may use a form developed by the
Labor Commissioner for this purpose, when available on DIR's website, or may develop its own form that is
substantially similar in content and clarity to the Labor Commissioner's form.
The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor Code
230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by the
district. Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon request. 
(Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.8, the following section applies to any district employing 25 or more
employees at the same location. A district with fewer than 25 employees at the same location may use or delete
this section at its discretion.

Pursuant to Labor Code 230.8, an employee who is discharged, threatened with discharge, demoted, suspended, or
otherwise discriminated against for using leave for child-related activities is entitled to reinstatement and
reimbursement for lost wages and benefits, and an employer who willfully refuses to rehire, promote, or otherwise
reinstate such an employee is subject to a civil penalty equal to three times the amount of the lost wages and
benefits.
Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to:  (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

2. Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.8 provides that the employee may use time off without pay to the extent the district
makes it available. The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
In lieu of using vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off, eligible employees may take unpaid leave for this
purpose.

122 344



If two or more parents/guardians of a child are employed at the same work site, this leave shall be allowed for the
parent/guardian who first gives notice to the district. Simultaneous absence by another parent/guardian of the child
may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Upon request by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall provide documentation from the school or
licensed child care provider that the employee engaged in permitted child-related activities on a specific date and at
a particular time.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Service on Education Boards and Committees

Upon request, a certificated employee shall be granted up to 20 school days of paid leave per school year for service
performed within the state on any education board, commission, committee, or group authorized by Education Code
44987.3 provided that all of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 44987.3)

1. The service is performed within the state
 

2. The board, commission, organization, or group informs the district in writing of the service
 

3. The board, commission, organization, or group agrees, prior to the service, to reimburse the district, upon the
district's written request, for compensation paid to the employee's substitute and for actual related
administrative costs

Employee Organization Activities

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be deleted by any district whose collective bargaining agreements
expressly provide for a paid leave of absence for participation in the activities described in this section.

Education Code 44987 and 45210 provide that any certificated or classified employee may take time off without
loss of compensation to serve as an elected officer of any local, statewide, or national employee organization of
which the employee is a member. Following the district's payment to the employee for the leave of absence, the
employee organization must reimburse the district within 10 days after receiving the district's certification of
payment of compensation to the employee. This leave of absence is in addition to the release time granted to
representatives of an employee organization pursuant to Government Code 3543.1.

Pursuant to Education Code 44987 and 45210, an employee's leave of absence to serve as an elected officer of an
employee organization is additional to any other leave available for the employee's use by law or in agreement with
the district.
Upon request, any certificated or classified employee shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of
compensation, to serve as an elected officer of a district employee organization or any statewide or national
employee organization with which the employee organization is affiliated. Such leave shall be in addition to any other
leave to which the employee may be entitled by other laws or a memorandum of understanding or collective
bargaining agreement.  (Education Code 44987, 45210)

The leave shall include, but is not limited to, absence for purposes of attending periodic, stated, special, or regular
meetings of the body of the organization on which the employee serves as an officer.  (Education Code 44987,
45210)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45210 requires districts to grant a paid leave of absence to a reasonable number of
classified employees serving as unelected members of the employee organization or a statewide or national public
employee organization when the employee attends "important organizational activities authorized by the public
employee organization." Compensation must include the required retirement fund contributions. The employee will
continue to earn full service credit during the leave and must pay member contributions as specified. Education
Code 45210 also requires that an employee organization provide reasonable notification to the district when
requesting a leave of absence without loss of compensation for an employee.
Upon request of an employee organization in the district or its state or national affiliate, a reasonable number of
unelected classified employees shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of compensation for the purpose of
attending important organizational activities authorized by the employee organization. The employee organization
shall provide reasonable notification to the Superintendent or designee when requesting a leave of absence for
employees for this purpose.  (Education Code 45210)

123 345



When leave is granted for any of the above purposes, the employee organization shall reimburse the district within
10 days after receiving the district's certification of payment of compensation to the employee.  (Education Code
44987, 45210)

Religious Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by any district that chooses to grant religious leave and may
be revised to reflect district practice. A district that does not grant such leave should delete this section. However,
the district should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel
before denying a request for religious leave since the Constitution requires districts to provide "reasonable
accommodation" to employee religious practices.
The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three days of leave per year for religious purposes,
provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures, the
neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship on the district.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph reflects the California Supreme Court's interpretation of Article 1,
Section 8 of the California Constitution as stated in Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence.
The Superintendent or designee shall deduct the cost of hiring a substitute, when required, from the wages of the
employee who takes religious leave.

No employee shall be discriminated against for using this leave or any additional days of unpaid leave granted for
religious observances at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

CSBA NOTE: Military and Veterans Code 395.10 requires any district with 25 or more employees to allow up to 10
days of unpaid leave to an employee whose spouse is on leave from military deployment. A district with fewer than
25 employees may use the following section at its discretion. In addition, 29 USC 2612 authorizes an employee to
take up to 26 work weeks of unpaid military caregiver leave or up to 12 weeks of "exigency" leave during a single
12-month period, as determined by the district; see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave.
An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.3 prohibits a district from discharging or discriminating against an employee who
takes time off to perform emergency duty as specified below. Labor Code 230.3 defines emergency rescue
personnel as a member of a federal, state, local, or private fire department or agency, as well as a sheriff or police
department.
An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.4, a district with 50 or more employees must grant an employee who is a
volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel a leave of absence for up to 14 days per
calendar year for training purposes. A district with fewer than 50 employees may use or delete this paragraph at its
discretion.
Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 1500-1507 require a district with more than 15 employees to provide at least 10 days of

124 346



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

unpaid leave per year, beyond any leave otherwise available to employees, to employees who volunteer with the
Civil Air Patrol and are directed to respond to an emergency operational mission, as provided below. Labor Code
1503 specifies that a district may not require an employee to first exhaust all accrued vacation, personal, sick, or
any other available leave in order to use Civil Air Patrol leave.

If the district chooses to offer more than 10 days of such leave per year or to provide paid leave, it should modify
the following paragraph accordingly. A district with 15 or fewer employees may use or delete this section at its
discretion.
An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the district for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave. Such
leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental entity
authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the district as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave. The
Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the eligibility
of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required certification. 
(Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

125 347



Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

126 348



4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4340 Bargaining Units

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

127 349



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4212.9: Employee NotificationsPolicy 4212.9: Employee Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1994 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

The Governing Board believes that providing clear communications to staff is essential to establishing a professional,
positive work environment and enhancing their job performance. The Superintendent or designee shall provide
district employees all notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent or designee
believes will promote staff knowledge of the district's policies, programs, activities, and operations.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, district employees shall be asked to sign an
acknowledgment indicating receipt of the notification. Such acknowledgments shall be retained in each employee's
personnel file.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

128 350



Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

129 351



Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3542 School Bus Drivers

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

130 352



4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

131 353



4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

132 354



4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

133 355



Exhibit 4212.9-E(1): Employee NotificationsExhibit 4212.9-E(1): Employee Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/01/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following exhibit lists notices that the law requires be provided to employees. See the referenced
Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about related program and notice
requirements.
This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to employees. Other
notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  To All Employees

When/Whom to Notify: At the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 231.5, Government Code 12950
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: The district’s policy on sexual harassment, legal remedies, complaints

When/Whom to Notify: Annually and 72 hours before pesticide application
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.2
Subject: Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, Internet address to access information on pesticides

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6117
Subject: Public hearing on implementing year-round program schedule

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6112
Subject: Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 1312.3; BP 0460; BP 3260
Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student fees and
local control accountability plan

When to Notify:  Annually
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173, AR 6173.1, 6173.3, 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory, and newcomer students.

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer epinephrine auto-injectors

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer stock albuterol inhalers

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer anti-seizure medication

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.3

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

134 356



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer opioid antagonist

When to Notify: When a parent/guardian requests for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of
emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 1126
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4136/4236/4336
Subject: Prohibition of activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to duties; discipline;
appeal

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 8355; 41 USC 8102; 34 CFR 84.205, 84.210
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4020, BP 4159/4259/4359
Subject: District's drug- and alcohol-free workplace; actions that will be taken if violated; available employee
assistance programs

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 21029
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Right to purchase PERS service credit for military service performed prior to public employment

When/Whom to Notify: Upon placement of automated external defibrillator (AED) in school, annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1797.196
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141
Subject: Proper use of AED; location of all AEDs on campus, sudden cardiac arrest, school's emergency response plan

When/Whom to Notify: If the district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3513.3
Subject: District's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When/Whom to Notify: Annually, or more frequently if there is new information
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 120875, 120880
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43
Subject: AIDS and hepatitis B, methods to prevent exposure

When/Whom to Notify: To new employees upon hire and other employees upon request, in districts with 25 or
more employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2
Subject: Rights pursuant to Labor Code 230-230.1 pertaining to leaves and accommodations for victims of crime or
abuse

When/Whom to Notify: With each paycheck
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 246
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1
Subject: Amount of sick leave available

When/Whom to Notify: Upon hire, in employee handbook, and upon request for parental leave
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 1034
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4033
Subject: The district's policy on lactation accommodation

When/Whom to Notify: To covered employees and former employees

135 357



Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2800.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Availability of COBRA/Cal-COBRA continuation and conversion coverage; statement encouraging careful
examination of options before declining coverage

When/Whom to Notify: To employees participating in a flexible spending account
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2810.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Deadline to withdraw funds from account before the end of the plan year

When/Whom to Notify: To every new employee, either at the time employee is hired or by end of first pay period
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3551
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Workers' compensation benefits, how to obtain medical care, role of primary physician, form for reporting
personal physician/chiropractor

When/Whom to Notify: Within one day of receiving notice of potential exposure to COVID-19, and remain posted
for not less than 15 calendar days, to employees who were on the premises during the infectious period, the
exclusive representative, and the employer of subcontracted employees as applicable
Where: Prominently display in all places where notices to employees concerning workplace rules or regulations are
customarily posted
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 6409.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: Potential exposure to COVID-19; benefits to which employees may be entitled; available leave options;
protection against discrimination and retaliation; district's disinfection and safety plan

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to beginning employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.4
Subject: Status as a mandated reporter of child abuse, reporting obligations, confidentiality rights, copy of law

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and when leaving work due to pregnancy or nonoccupational sickness or
injury
Education or Other Legal Code: Unemployment Insurance Code 2613
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Disability insurance rights and benefits

When/Whom to Notify: To principal, counselor who directly supervises or reports on student's behavior or progress,
and teacher and other administrators who directly supervise or report on student's behavior or progress when the
superintendent or designee believes the employee needs the information for the protection of self or others when
working with the student, when Superintendent or designee receives written notification that minor student has
committed a felony or misdemeanor involving specified offenses
Education or Other Legal Code: Welfare and Institutions Code 827
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Limited exception to juvenile court record confidentiality to ensure rehabilitation of juvenile criminal
offenders and protect students and staff

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees and job applicants
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11023; 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 0410, AR 4030
Subject: District's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees via employee handbook, or to each new employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11091, 11095; 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Benefits through Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA); obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of need for leave when possible

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3203
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357

136 358



Subject: The right and procedure to access the injury and illness prevention program

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; contact information for district's Title IX Coordinator; referral of
inquiries to Title IX Coordinator and/or Office for Civil Rights

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: 40 CFR 763.84, 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514
Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6178
Subject: All career and technical education opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin,
sex, or disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100

II.  To Certificated Employees

When/Whom to Notify: To eligible certificated employees in a timely manner, and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees within 30 days of hire
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 22455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4121
Subject: Criteria for membership in retirement system; right to elect membership at any time

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment of a retired certificated individual
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 22461
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.14/4317.14
Subject: Postretirement earnings limitation or employment restriction; monthly report of compensation

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35171
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115, BP 4315
Subject: District regulations related to performance evaluations

When/Whom to Notify: 30 days before last day of school year for instructional staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated staff, in any year in which employee is evaluated
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44663
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Copy of employee's evaluation

When/Whom to Notify: To a certificated employee with unsatisfactory evaluation, once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every other year for permanent employee
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44664
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Notice and description of the unsatisfactory performance

When/Whom to Notify: By May 30, if district elects to issue reemployment notices to certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44842
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1
Subject: Request that the employee notify district of intent to remain in service next year

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary and temporary certificated employees upon employment and every July
thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1, AR 4121
Subject: Employment status and salary

137 359



When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee, by March 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23, 44948.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4116
Subject: Whether or not employee is reelected for next school year

When/Whom to Notify: When certificated employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, at any time of year
or, for charge of unsatisfactory performance, during instructional year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44934, 44934.1, 44936
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118; AR 4118
Subject: Notice of charges, procedures, and employee rights; intent to dismiss or suspend 30 days after notice

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unprofessional conduct, at least 45 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unsatisfactory performance, at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or prior to last quarter of school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with mandatory leave of absence offense, within 10 days
of entry of judgment in proceedings
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44940.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Notice of intent to dismiss 30 days from notice unless employee demands hearing

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee 30 days prior to dismissal during school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second- year probationary employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44948.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Reasons for dismissal and opportunity to appeal

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 when necessary to reduce certificated personnel, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44949, 44955
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Reasons for personnel reduction and employees' right to hearing; final notice of Board decision re:
termination

When/Whom to Notify: Before the end of the school year to temporary employee who served 75 percent of school
year but will be released
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44954
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4121
Subject: District's decision not to reelect employee for following school year

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to any
permanent or probationary certificated employee, including an employee holding a position that requires
administrative or supervisory credential, whose services are terminated
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44955.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Decrease in the number of permanent employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and hearing
adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher, when a student engages in or is reasonably suspected of specified acts
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49079
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

138 360



When/Whom to Notify: To teacher of a student who is suspended or expelled, when Superintendent or designee
receives transfer student's record regarding acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48201
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee upon change in employment status due to alleged misconduct
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 80303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.7/4317.7
Subject: Contents of state regulation re: report to Commission on Teacher Credentialing

III.  To Classified Employees

When/Whom to Notify: When a classified employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, in a nonmerit district
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45113
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4218
Subject: Notice of charges, right to hearing, timeline for requesting hearing

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15, when laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff, displacement and reemployment rights, right to hearing; final notice of Board decision
regarding termination

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: District Statement of Reduction in Force to affected employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and
hearing adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: At least 60 days prior to the effective date of layoff, if the employee's position must be
eliminated due to the expiration of a specially funded program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff date, displacement and reemployment rights

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and upon each change in classification
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45169
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4212
Subject: Employee's class specification, salary data, assignment or work location, duty hours, prescribed workweek

When/Whom to Notify: To permanent employee whose leave is exhausted
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45192, 45195
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4261.1, AR 4261.11
Subject: Exhaustion of leave, opportunity to request additional leave

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers prior to expiration of specified
documents
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 1234
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Expiration date of driver's license, driver's certificate and medical certificate; need to renew

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers upon employment and at least once per
year thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 2480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Limitations on vehicle idling; consequences of not complying

139 361



When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to district drug testing program and thereafter upon
employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.113, 382.601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Explanation of federal requirements for drug testing program and district's policy; prior to administration of
each drug or alcohol test

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to operating school bus
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Post accident information, procedures, and instruction

IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

When/Whom to Notify: To superintendent, deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent or senior manager of
classified service, at least 45 days before expiration of contract
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 2121, BP 4312.1
Subject: Decision not to reelect or reemploy upon expiration of contract or term

When/Whom to Notify: Upon request by administrative or supervisory employee transferred to teaching position
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44896
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Statement of the reasons for the reassignment

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 to employee who may be released/reassigned the following school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Notice that employee may be released or reassigned the following school year

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

When/Whom to Notify: In the event of a breach of security of district records to affected employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 3580
Subject: Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, and, as applicable, contact information for
credit reporting agencies

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to placing derogatory information in personnel file
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6
Subject: Notice of derogatory information, opportunity to review and comment

When/Whom to Notify: To employees who volunteer to administer epinephrine auto-injector
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Defense and indemnification from civil liability by the district

When/Whom to Notify: To district police officer, within 30 days of decision to impose discipline
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 3304
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3515.3
Subject: Decision to impose discipline, including the date that discipline will be imposed

When/Whom to Notify: To employee returning from military leave of absence, within 30 days of return
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 20997
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Right to receive PERS service credit for military service; application form

When/Whom to Notify: 24 hours before Board meets in closed session to hear complaints or charges against
employee

140 362



Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54957
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BB 9321
Subject: Employee's right to have complaints/charges heard in open session

When/Whom to Notify: When taking disciplinary action against employee for disclosure of confidential information
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54963
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23
Subject: Law prohibiting disclosure of confidential information obtained in closed session

When/Whom to Notify: When document identifying employee who is victim of domestic violence is disclosed
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

When/Whom to Notify: Within one working day of work-related injury or victimization of crime
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3553, 5401
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Potential eligibility for workers' compensation benefits, claim form

When/Whom to Notify: When adverse employment action is based on DOJ criminal history information or
subsequent arrest notification
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11105, 11105.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5
Subject: Copy of DOJ notification

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee with exposure to blood or potentially infectious materials, upon initial
employment and at least annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3204
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42
Subject: The existence, location, and availability of exposure and medical records; person responsible for maintaining
and providing access to records; right to access records

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee assigned to a work area in a laboratory setting where hazardous chemicals
are present, within 15 working days after receiving a monitoring result related to an employee exposure
determination
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5191
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Contents of 8 CCR 5191, including location and availability of chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits, signs
and symptoms of exposure, location of reference material

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee who may be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, upon
initial assignment and when new hazard is introduced into work area
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5194
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Requirements of 8 CCR 5194, including any presence of hazardous substances in the work area, location
and availability of hazard communication program, new material safety data sheet, employee rights

When/Whom to Notify: To employee eligible for military leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 38 USC 4334
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Notice of rights, benefits, and obligations under military leave

When/Whom to Notify: Within five days of employee's request for family care and medical leave, receipt of
supporting information, or district's knowledge that the requested leave may qualify as FMLA leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300; 2 CCR 11049, 11091
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Designation of leave as FMLA or non-FMLA; if not eligible, reason not eligible; requirement to use paid
leave; any requirement for fitness-for-duty certification; any subsequent changes in designation notice

When/Whom to Notify: Whenever notice of eligibility for FMLA is provided to employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300

141 363



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Rights and responsibilities re: use of FMLA; consequences of failure to meet obligations

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees working with families experiencing homelessness
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48851.3, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173
Subject: Duties of district liaison for homeless students and availability of training and services

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

142 364



Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

143 365



34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3542 School Bus Drivers

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

144 366



4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

145 367



4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

146 368



4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

147 369



Policy 4218.1: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)Policy 4218.1: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System) Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is for use by districts that have incorporated the merit system for
classified employees pursuant to Education Code 45240-45320. For procedures applicable to districts that have
not incorporated the merit system, see BP/AR 4218 -Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action.

Pursuant to Education Code 45260-45261, in a merit system district, the personnel commission has authority to
prescribe rules for the efficiency of the classified service, including rules pertaining to demotions, transfers, and
dismissals of classified employees. The following policy may be replaced by and/or supplemented with the
personnel commission rules.
The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their jobs satisfactorily and exhibit professional and
appropriate conduct, and serve as positive role models both at school and in the community. A classified employee
may be disciplined for unprofessional conduct or unsatisfactory performance in accordance with law, any applicable
collective bargaining agreement, and the rules of the personnel commission.

CSBA NOTE: When disciplining an employee, the district must ensure that all the surrounding facts and
circumstances are considered and analyzed within the parameters of any applicable constitutional or legal
framework. Employee discipline, especially with respect to suspension and dismissal, involves complex legal
considerations and districts are advised to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or
district legal counsel, accordingly.
Disciplinary actions shall be based on the particular facts and circumstances involved and the severity of the
employee's conduct or performance.

CSBA NOTE: In Kennedy v. Bremerton School District, the U.S. Supreme Court held that the district could not
discipline an employee for non-coercive religious conduct while the employee was acting as a private citizen. For
more information, see the U.S. Department of Education's May 2023, "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected
Prayer and Religious Expression in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools." Also see BP/AR 4030 -
Nondiscrimination in Employment and BP 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 - Civil and Legal Rights.

In Visalia Unified School District v. Public Employment Relations Board (PERB), the Fifth District Court of Appeal
upheld PERB's determination that service as a union officer constitutes protected activity under the Educational
Employment Relations Act for purposes of the employee's complaint of retaliation for union activities and that the
district retaliated against the employee. However, the court ultimately held in favor of the district, finding that the
district proved it would have terminated the employee for poor performance regardless of the protected union
activity. Districts with questions about terminating an officer of an employee organization are encouraged to
consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that disciplinary actions are taken in a consistent nondiscriminatory
manner. In addition, an employee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, dismissed, or otherwise
retaliated against solely for engaging in protected activities, or for acting to protect a student engaged in exercising
any free speech or press right authorized by, or for refusing to infringe upon a student's conduct protected pursuant
to, Education Code 48907 or 48950.

Disciplinary actions may include, but are not limited to, verbal and written warnings, involuntary reassignment,
demotion, suspension or leave without pay, reduction of wages, or  dismissal.

A probationary classified employee may be dismissed without cause at any time prior to the expiration of the
probationary period.

A permanent classified employee shall be subject to suspension, demotion, or dismissal only for one or more of the
causes designated by rule of the personnel commission.  (Education Code 45302, 45304)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph should be revised to reflect district practice. In Skelly v. State Personnel
Board, the California Supreme Court held that permanent public employees have a right to certain due process
protection prior to any punitive disciplinary action, such as termination, suspension, or demotion. These procedural
rights include notice of the proposed materials upon which the action is based and the right to respond, either orally
or in writing, to the individual recommending that discipline be imposed. These procedural rights are designed to
protect an employee against wrongful discipline without necessitating a full evidentiary hearing before the
Governing Board. Because personnel commission rules may already touch upon these procedures, CSBA

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

148 370



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

recommends that the district consult with CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district
legal counsel to determine the need for a Skelly meeting prior to a termination hearing.

In addition, pursuant to Education Code 45306, an employee for whom disciplinary action is recommended may
request a hearing before the personnel commission. The personnel commission may modify the disciplinary action,
but may not make the action more stringent than was approved by the Board. If the personnel commission sustains
the employee's appeal, it may order all or part of the full compensation from the time of suspension, demotion, or
dismissal and may establish other terms and conditions for the employee's reinstatement (e.g., compensation of the
employee's expenses in pursuit of the appeal, transfer of the employee, and/or expungement of the disciplinary
action from the employee's personnel file).
When such serious disciplinary action is being contemplated against an employee, the district shall adhere to
disciplinary procedures developed by the personnel commission. Due process shall be afforded to the employee,
including proper notice, an opportunity for the employee to meet with a designated district official ("Skelly officer")
or to respond in writing to the charges, and an opportunity to appeal the district's decision with the personnel
commission in accordance with Education Code 45305-45307. If the matter is addressed in a hearing before the
personnel commission, the decision of the personnel commission shall be final.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45312 requires the personnel commission to delegate its authority to an
administrative law judge in cases involving allegations of egregious misconduct with a minor. Egregious misconduct
is defined as immoral conduct leading to an allegation of a sex offense pursuant to Education Code 44010, a
controlled substance offense pursuant to Education Code 44011, or child abuse or neglect pursuant to Penal Code
11165.2-11165.6.
However, if the matter involves an allegation of egregious misconduct as defined in Education Code 44932 and
involves a witness who is a minor, the matter shall be referred to an administrative law judge to determine whether
sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action against the employee. The ruling of the administrative law judge shall be
binding on the district and the employee.  (Education Code 45312)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45190, as amended by AB 472 (Ch. 331, Statutes of 2023), if a district,
including a district that has adopted the merit system, places an employee on an involuntary leave of absence
during the period the employee is charged with a criminal offense, is under a criminal investigation, or is waiting due
to administrative delay for necessary job-related administrative determinations, then, upon the conclusion of the
proceedings in favor of the employee, the district is required to pay to the employee the employee's full
compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of absence upon the employee's return to service in the
district. "Involuntary leave of absence" includes, but is not limited to, a compulsory leave of absence or a
suspension.
If the district places an employee on a compulsory leave of absence or suspension during the period the employee is
charged with a criminal offense, is under a criminal investigation, or is waiting due to administrative delay for
necessary job-related administrative determinations, and the proceedings are resolved in favor of the employee, the
district shall pay to the employee the employee's full compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of
absence upon the employee's return to service in the school district.  (Education Code 45190)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Civ. Code 1286.2 Grounds for vacating decision of arbitrator

Ed. Code 11500-11506 Programs to encourage parent involvement

Ed. Code 35161 Board delegation of any powers or duties

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44031 Personnel file contents and inspection

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave of absence

149 371



Ed. Code 44990-44994 Testimony of minor witnesses at dismissal or suspension hearings

Ed. Code 45101 Definitions; disciplinary action and cause

Ed. Code 45109 Fixing of duties

Ed. Code 45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 45124 Dismissal of sexual psychopath

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45202 Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Ed. Code 45302-45307 Suspension, dismissal, or other disciplinary action; classified employees

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

H&S Code 11054 Schedule I; substances included

H&S Code 11055 Schedule II; substances included

H&S Code 11056 Schedule III; substances included

H&S Code 11357-11361 Marijuana

H&S Code 11363 Peyote

H&S Code 11364 Opium

H&S Code 11370.1 Possession of controlled substances with a firearm

Pen. Code 11165.2-11165.6 Child abuse or neglect; definitions

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 187 Murder

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

Pen. Code 830.32 School district and community college police

Veh. Code 1808.8 School bus drivers; dismissal for safety-related cause

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

U.S. Constitution Amendment 1; Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA School Personnel Comm Association
Publication

Merit Rules and Regulations: CSPCA Recommended Personnel Policies and
Procedures Manual for California School Merit Systems, 2014

Court Decision Visalia Unified School District v. Public Employment Relations Board (2024)
98 Cal.App.5th 844

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Personnel Commission (1970) 3
Cal.3d 139

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Bonita Unified School District
(2008) No. B200141

Court Decision California School Employees v. Livingston Union School District (2007) 149
Cal. App. 4th 391

Court Decision CSEA v. Foothill Community College District (1975) 52 Cal. App. 3rd 150

Court Decision Skelly v. California Personnel Board (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194

150 372



U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website Office of the Attorney General

Website Office of Administrative Hearings

Website Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal Case Type

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California School Personnel Commissioners Association

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

151 373



4312.6 Personnel Files

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

152 374



Policy 4227: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesPolicy 4227: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2010 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

The Governing Board acknowledges that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of students
in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, and therefore desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the
district's interscholastic athletic activities in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and safety of
participating students.  

The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a substitute
employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary employee in a limited assignment
capacity. Interscholastic athletic activities include any activities in which student teams participate in interscholastic
competition.  (5 CCR 5590)

CSBA NOTE: When hiring a temporary athletic team coach, Education Code 44919 requires districts to first make
the position available to a credentialed teacher presently employed by the district. In CTA v. Rialto Unified School
District, the California Supreme Court held that the law is intended to grant a current certificated employee a
limited advantage in the hiring process over a noncertificated employee or a nonemployee, provided that the
applicant applies for the position and meets qualification criteria established by the district.
When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic activity team coach, the position shall first be made
available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district.  (Education Code 44919)

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5596 specifies a code of ethical conduct for athletic coaches; see the accompanying
administrative regulation. In addition, the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) has adopted a set of principles
to guide the conduct of coaches and other participants in interscholastic athletic competitions; see BP 6145.2 -
Athletic Competition.
All coaches shall be subject to applicable law, Board policies, administrative regulations, and California Interscholastic
Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct.

Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591)

Qualifications and Training

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5593 establishes the minimum qualifications for employees serving as temporary athletic team
coaches; see the accompanying administrative regulation.
The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in accordance with law
and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an appropriate level of competence,
knowledge, and skill.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with
students in a district-sponsored student activity program, such as a scholastic program, an interscholastic athletic
program, or extracurricular activities, is required to obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC) from
the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, unless the district requires the candidate to clear a Department of
Justice (DOJ) and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) criminal background check. See BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer
Assistance and AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check. Thus, the Governing Board may (1) choose to
require a temporary athletic team coach to obtain the ASCC or a DOJ/FBI criminal background check, (2) permit an
individual, at the individual's discretion, to obtain either the ASCC or DOJ/FBI check, or (3) apply different
requirements to different positions in the district (e.g., head coaches vs. assistant coaches; employees vs.
volunteers). The following paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice.

In addition, Education Code 45125.01 allows multiple districts within a county or within contiguous counties to
share criminal record information of noncertificated employees and volunteers working in a student activity
program.
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored interscholastic athletic
activity shall, prior to beginning the individual’s duties, submit to the Superintendent or designee either an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and
Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background clearance.  (Education Code 49024)

Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to the
Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that the coach meets the

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

153 375



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State
Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49032 requires that all high school coaches complete a district or CIF-developed
coaching education program that meets the guidelines of Education Code 35179.1, which, as amended by AB 245
(Ch. 422, Statutes of 2023), includes training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation, use of an automated external
defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes but is not limited to training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and
appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac arrest. Additionally, Education Code 33479.6 requires
coaches to complete a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest and to
retake such a course every two years thereafter. For more information regarding training of interscholastic athletic
activity coaches, see the accompanying administrative regulation.
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the extent to which the
district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including those required pursuant to Education Code
33479.6, 35179.1, and 49032, and by district policy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

154 376



CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

155 377



5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

156 378



Regulation 4227: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesRegulation 4227: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2010 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Qualifications

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5593 establishes minimum qualifications for certificated and noncertificated employees
assigned as temporary athletic team coaches. Pursuant to 5 CCR 5593, the Superintendent or designee is required
to certify to the Governing Board that each newly hired coach meets the requirements of 5 CCR 5593; see the
accompanying Board policy.

The district should modify the following section to reflect any additional criteria. Districts may consider developing
specific criteria for each interscholastic athletic activity coach position.
Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not necessarily limited to,
competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593)

1.  Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency procedures, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and possession of a
valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card
 

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card
 

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card
 

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' Association
(NATA/CATA)
 

e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the supervision of an
athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and conditioning
 

2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one or more of the
following:
 

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques
 

b. Completion of in-service programs arranged by a school district or county office of education
 

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being coached
 

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached
 

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in the sport being
coached
 

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the league rules, and, at
the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF)
 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport participation, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions and adolescent
or sports psychology for secondary school positions
 

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth
 

c.  Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in appropriate training
courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons serve under the direct supervision of a fully

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

157 379



qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 CCR 5593)

CSBA NOTE: The qualifications required by 5 CCR 5593 for employees serving as temporary athletic team coaches
do not apply to volunteer coaches. The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that require volunteers
who supervise or direct an athletic program to meet those same qualifications. For more information regarding
volunteer assistance in schools, see BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer Assistance.
Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria specified in 5 CCR 5593
required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. Any volunteer who does not meet such
criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic
program.

Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary
athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592)

1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated teachers from
teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from a licensed physician or other
person approved by the district
 

2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 44424, or any
offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with children

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with
students in a district-sponsored student activity program, including scholastic programs, interscholastic athletic
programs, and extracurricular activities, must obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing or clear a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal
background check prior to beginning duties. See the accompanying Board policy.
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall obtain an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code
49024)

Training

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools. Education Code 49032
requires that all high school coaches complete a coaching education program developed by the district or the
California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) that meets the guidelines listed in Education Code 35179.1, as amended
by AB 245 (Ch. 422, Statutes of 2023), and includes training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation, use of an automated
external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited to, training in recognizing the signs,
symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac arrest. Pursuant to Health and Safety
Code 124238.5, as added by AB 1467 (Ch. 24, Statutes of 2023), beginning January 1, 2027, districts are required
to provide student athletes with access to an AED during any official practice or match that, when medical
circumstances warrant its use, is administered by a medical professional, coach, or other designated person who
holds AED certification and complies with any other qualifications pursuant to law.

Pursuant to Education Code 35179.8, as amended by AB 1653 (Ch. 589, Statutes of 2023), CIF, in consultation with
the California Department of Education (CDE), is required to develop guidelines, procedures, and safety standards
for the prevention and management of exertional heat illness.

Districts that wish to set their own standards for the coaching education program instead of using the standards
developed by the CIF should modify the following paragraph accordingly.
Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at the individual's expense, a coaching
education program that meets the standards developed by CIF and includes, but is not limited to, training in regard to
sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport management, statewide and school regulations, CPR,
including certification, use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited
to, training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac
arrest. A high school coach who has completed the education program in another California school district shall be
deemed to have met the requirement for this district. An individual who has not completed the education program
may be assigned as a coach for no longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1,
49032)

158 380



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 33479.6 requires the coach of an athletic activity to complete, and retake every two
years thereafter, a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, including the
risks associated with continuing to play or practice after experiencing fainting or seizures during exercise,
unexplained shortness of breath, chest pain, dizziness, racing heart rate, or extreme fatigue. Pursuant to Education
Code 33479.7 a coach who does not complete the required sudden cardiac arrest training is subject to suspension
from coaching any athletic activity until the required training is completed.

Online training fulfilling this requirement is available on the CIF's website. Additionally, Education Code 33479.2
requires CDE to post related information on its website.
In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches shall complete an
approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2,
33479.6, 33479.7)

Code of Ethical Conduct

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596)

1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches
 

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials
 

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct
 

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority
 

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times
 

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players
 

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and standards of the game
 

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment
 

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at any public or private
postsecondary educational institution
 

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to be eligible to
participate in athletics
 

11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, anabolic steroids, or any
substance to increase physical development or performance that is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American Medical Association
 

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools
 

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the district and the league
in which the district participates

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

159 381



Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

160 382



4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

161 383



Policy 4261: LeavesPolicy 4261: Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in accordance
with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this policy is inconsistent with provisions of
the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail, so long as the provision is
consistent with law.
The Governing Board shall provide for paid and unpaid leaves of absence for employees in accordance with law,
Board policy, administrative regulation, collective bargaining agreements, and merit system rules, as applicable.

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-10 below reflect categories of leave which are described in more detail in the cross-
referenced leave policies or administrative regulations cited below in the Policy Reference section. In addition,
Education Codes 44963, applicable to certificated staff, and 45198, applicable to classified staff, allow the
Governing Board to grant leaves with or without pay to certificated and classified staff for any purpose or period of
time, as long as no employee is deprived of any leave to which the employee is legally entitled. Education Code
45190, as amended by AB 472 (Ch. 331, Statutes of 2023), clarifies that, as to classified staff, including in a district
that has adopted the merit system, the Board's authority to grant leaves of absence and vacations with or without
pay includes voluntary leaves of absence. Any additional types of leaves so granted by the Board may be added to
the following list.
Employees have the right to take leaves as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreements, including, but
not limited to:

1. Personal illness or injury
 

2. Industrial accident or illness
 

3. Family care and medical leave
 

4. Military service
 

5. Personal necessity and personal emergencies

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44986, the Board may grant to any certificated employee who has
applied for disability benefits a leave of absence, not to exceed 30 days beyond final determination of the
employee's eligibility for disability benefits by the State Teachers' Retirement System. If the employee is
determined to be eligible, that leave must be extended for the term of the disability, up to 39 months.

6. Disability leave for certificated employees in accordance with Education Code 44986
 

7. Vacations for classified staff and certificated management staff, as applicable
 

8. Sabbaticals for purposes of study or training related to the employee's job duties
 

9. Attendance at work-related meetings and staff development opportunities

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45190, as amended by AB 472 (Ch. 331, Statutes of 2023), if a
district, including a district that has adopted the merit system, places an employee on an involuntary leave of
absence during the period the employee is charged with a criminal offense, is under a criminal investigation,
or is waiting due to administrative delay for necessary job-related administrative determinations, then, upon
the conclusion of the proceedings in favor of the employee, the district is required to pay to the employee the
employee's full compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of absence upon the employee's return
to service in the district. "Involuntary leave of absence" includes, but is not limited to, a compulsory leave of
absence or a suspension.

10. Compulsory leave
 

11. Maternity, parental leave, and reproductive loss leave for both certificated and classified staff, as applicable
under state law
 

12. Bereavement

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

162 384



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Long-Term Leaves

With Board approval, an employee may receive a leave of absence, without pay and without accruing seniority or
service credit, for a period of up to one school year. Applications for long-term leave shall be made in writing and
shall state the purpose for which leave is requested. All long-term leave agreements shall be in writing and shall state
the terms and conditions of the leave, including the conditions governing the employee's return.

At the end of a long-term leave, the employee shall be reinstated to a similar position as that employee held at the
time leave was granted, unless otherwise agreed upon.

The Board shall consider any written request by an employee to return to work prior to the expiration date of the
leave.

Administrative and Supervisory Personnel

CSBA NOTE: Leave provisions for administrative and supervisory personnel who are not subject to collective
bargaining agreements may be detailed in an individual contract, memorandum of understanding, or Board policy.
The following optional section is for use by districts that, through policy, grant the same leave provisions to
administrative and supervisory employees as are granted to other certificated or classified employees.
Certificated administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
certificated employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other certificated employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memorandums of understanding,
Board policy, administrative regulation, or law.

Classified administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
classified employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other classified employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memoranda of understanding, Board
policy, administrative regulation, or law.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

163 385



Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

164 386



4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

165 387



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4261: LeavesRegulation 4261: Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Failure to Return to Service After Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following optional regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in
accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative regulation is
inconsistent with provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would
prevail, so long as the provision is consistent with law.

Education Code 44842 addresses the return to service of a certificated employee at the beginning of the school
year following a leave of absence after April 30 of the previous school year and authorizes termination of the
employee if specified circumstances exist. As described in Item #1 below, one of the circumstances is the
employee's failure to report for duty, without good cause, after having notified the Governing Board of the intent to
remain in service. See AR 4112.1 - Contracts for provisions of Education Code 44842 pertaining to the duty of all
certificated employees to notify the district of their intention to remain in service if the district has issued a written
re-employment notice requesting employees to provide such notice.
The district may terminate the employment of a certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more
consecutive working days after April 30 of the previous school year if all of the following circumstances exist: 
(Education Code 44842)

1. The employee fails to report for duty, without good cause, at the beginning of the school year after having
notified the Governing Board of the intention to remain in service with the district in accordance with
Education Code 44842
 

2. The district had specifically notified the employee, at least five days in advance, of the time and place at which
the employee was to report to work
 

3. The employee continues to be absent from work for 20 consecutive working days, beginning from the date the
employee was to report to work.
 

4. The employee did not request or was not granted a leave of absence authorized by the Board

Use of Leaves by Classified Employees

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45200 authorizes the Board to allow classified employees to switch from vacation
leave to another type of leave as provided below. The following optional section is for use by districts that choose
to offer such an option to classified employees and may be used by districts that have adopted the merit system.
A classified employee may interrupt or terminate vacation leave in order to begin another type of paid leave without
a return to active service, as long as the employee provides adequate notice and relevant supporting information
regarding the basis for such interruption or termination.  (Education Code 45200)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

166 388



Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

167 389



4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

168 390



Regulation 4261.1: Personal Illness/Injury LeaveRegulation 4261.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2017 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following administrative regulation applies to classified employees, including classified
management. For certificated employees, including certificated management, see AR 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal
Illness/Injury Leave.

The following administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in accordance with
any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative regulation is inconsistent with
provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail, so long as the
provision is consistent with law. Certain portions of this administrative regulation are mandated or conditionally
mandated; see "Verification Requirements" and "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is
Exhausted/Differential Pay" sections below.

Education Code 45191 provides a minimum of 12 days of personal illness or injury leave (sick leave) per year for
classified employees working five days a week, in both merit and non-merit system districts. The Governing Board
may allow more sick leave at its discretion; if it does so, the following paragraph should be revised accordingly.
Employees who work less than a full fiscal year, or fewer than five days a week, are entitled to the number of days
of sick leave proportionate to the time they work, and to any additional sick leave that may be approved by the
Board in the same proportion.

Labor Code 245-249 (the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act) require districts to grant a minimum of one
hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked to their employees who work for 30 days within a year of
employment, including classified employees. Pursuant to Labor Code 246, a district may use a different sick leave
accrual method which provides for the accrual to be on a regular basis so that employees accrue at least 24 hours
of sick leave or paid time off by the 120th calendar day of employment or each calendar year or 12-month period,
and, as amended by SB 616 (Ch. 309, Statutes of 2023), at least 40 hours or five days of accrued sick leave or paid
time off by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-month period.

The provisions of Labor Code 245-249 are very broad and only district employees covered by a valid collective
bargaining agreement may be exempted from them, if the collective bargaining agreement expressly provides paid
sick leave in an amount equal to or exceeding the amount of leave required pursuant to Labor Code 246, includes
final and binding arbitration of disputes regarding the application of the paid sick days provisions, and provides
premium wage rates for all overtime hours worked and a regular hourly rate of pay of not less than 30 percent more
than the state minimum wage rate. However, even for employees covered by a valid collective bargaining
agreement, Labor Code 246.5, as amended by SB 616, extends procedural protections regarding retaliation to such
employees. Since many districts may not satisfy all of the conditions for this exemption, this administrative
regulation reflects the requirements of Labor Code 245-249. Any district which has a collective bargaining
agreement that meets all of the conditions for exemption may modify this administrative regulation accordingly.

For additional requirements of Labor Code 245-249, see sections titled "Short-Term and Substitute Employees" and
"Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements" below. For sick leave for certificated employees, see AR
4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave.
The following administrative regulation applies to classified employees, including classified management. For
certificated employees, including certificated management, see Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal
Illness/Injury Leave.

Classified employees employed five days a week are entitled to 12 days leave of absence with full pay for personal
illness or injury (sick leave) per fiscal year. Employees who work less than a full fiscal year or fewer than five days a
week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, part-time
employees who are entitled to less than 24 hours of paid sick leave per fiscal year due to the amount of time worked
shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if they are eligible.  (Education Code 45191; Labor Code
245-249)

Use of Sick Leave

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-8 below reflect allowable uses of sick leave specified in law. The district may expand this list
to include any additional purposes authorized by law, authorized by the district, or included in a bargaining
agreement.
A classified employee may use sick leave for absences as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreement,

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

169 391



including, but not limited to:

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of employment, or by quarantine
which results from contact in the course of employment with other persons having a contagious disease
 (Education Code 45199)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848 (Ch. 724, Statutes of 2023), the
district is prohibited from refusing to grant a request by an employee to take up to five days of reproductive
loss leave following a reproductive loss event; see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves.

Additionally, pursuant to Title IX (20 USC 1681-1688) and implementing regulation 34 CFR 106.57, as
amended by 89 Fed. Reg. 33474, the district is required to treat pregnancy, childbirth, termination of
pregnancy, or lactation, including any related medical condition or recovery, as it would any other temporary
medical condition for job-related purposes, including leaves.

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery, as well as reproductive loss  (Education Code 45193;
Government Code 12945.6)
 

3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 45207)

CSBA NOTE: Optional Item #4 below may be revised to specify a different minimum increment.
4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour

 
5. Industrial accident or illness when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been exhausted  (Education

Code 45192)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) (29 USC 2612) and California Family
Rights Act (CFRA) (Government Code 12945.2), a district is required to grant leave to an eligible employee to
bond with a child after the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the child. For this purpose, employees
may, but are not required to, use sick leave for any otherwise unpaid FMLA or CFRA leave.

Government Code 12945.21, as amended by AB 1756 (Ch. 478, Statutes of 2023), establishes a small
employer family leave mediation pilot program, until January 1, 2025, for very small districts that employ
between 5-19 employees to mediate disputes about the employee's right to medical or family care leave
under CFRA and/or bereavement leave.

For further information regarding parental leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical
Leave.

6. Need of an employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster care
placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR
825.112)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 233, any district that provides sick leave to its employees is required to
permit an employee to use sick leave, in an amount not less than the sick leave that would be accrued during
six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement, for the purposes specified in Items #7-8
below. Pursuant to Labor Code 233, designation of sick leave taken under this provision is at the sole
discretion of the employee. Labor Code 233 does not extend the maximum period of leave to which an
employee is entitled under CFRA or FMLA, regardless of whether the employee receives sick leave
compensation during that leave.

For the purpose of using sick leave to attend to the health care needs of a family member, as specified in Item
#7 below, Labor Code 245.5 includes a designated person in the definition of a "family member," in addition
to an employee's spouse, registered domestic partner, child (biological, adopted, or foster child; stepchild;
legal ward; or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis), parent (biological, adoptive, or foster
parent; stepparent; legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner;
or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child), grandparent, grandchild, or
sibling. Government Code 12945.2 defines a "designated person" as any individual related by blood or whose
association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. The designated person may be
identified by the employee at the time the employee requests the leave, and the district may limit the
employee to one designated person per 12-month period for family care and medical leave. For further
information regarding medical leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave.

170 392



For additional information about leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking granted in
accordance with Item #8 below, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves.

7. Need of the employee or the employee's family member, including a designated person, as defined in Labor
Code 245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care
 (Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)
 

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.7, districts are required to provide up to five days of
bereavement leave for the death of an employee's "family member," as defined, if the employee was
employed by the district for at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the bereavement leave. The
bereavement leave days do not need to be taken consecutively, but must be taken within three months of the
family member's date of death. Districts with existing policies that provide employees less than five days of
paid bereavement leave must continue to give employees the number of paid days specified in the policy, but
may provide the remainder of the five days as unpaid bereavement leave. Districts must allow employees to
use any paid vacation, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off for the balance of the unpaid
bereavement leave. For more information on bereavement leave, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal
Leaves. Districts with questions about the application of their bereavement leave policies should consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

9. Bereavement leave, as specified in Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves
 (Education Code 45194; Government Code 12945.7)

For the purposes specified in Items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of sick leave that
would be accrued during six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 233)

An employee may take leave for personal illness or injury at any time during the year, even if credit for such leave
has not yet been accrued. However, a new full-time classified employee shall not be entitled to more than six days of
sick leave, or the proportionate amount to which the employee may be entitled, until the first day of the month after
the employee has completed six months of active service with the district.  (Education Code 45191)

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 45191)

CSBA NOTE: The following two paragraphs are recommended and may be revised to reflect district practice. For
more information regarding wage overpayment, see BP 4151/4251/4351 - Employee Compensation.
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of termination, in
accordance with Education Code 44042.5.

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave they have accumulated.

The district shall not require newly employed classified employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous district.
However, if the employee's previous employment was terminated for cause, the transfer of the accumulated leave
shall be made only if approved by the Governing Board.  (Education Code 45202)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45202, classified employees who are terminated after at least one year
of employment for any reason unrelated to discipline are entitled to have their accumulated sick leave transferred
with them in certain circumstances. The following paragraph, which provides for the notification of employees as a
way to implement this provision, is optional and may revised to reflect district practice.
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any classified employee whose employment with the district is
terminated after at least one calendar year for reasons other than for cause that, if the employee accepts
employment in another district, county office of education, or community college district within one year of the
termination of employment, the employee may request that the district transfer any accumulated sick leave to the
new employer.  (Education Code 45202)

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a classified employee who is a former active duty
member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the California National Guard or a federal
reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical

171 393



treatment, including mental health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or higher
by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days per week shall be
entitled to such leave in proportion to the time worked.  (Education Code 45191.5)

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee receives confirmation of the
submission of the disability application to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee
begins or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives the disability
rating decision, the employee shall report that information to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating
decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the
12-day maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may
change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  (Education Code
45191.5)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45191.5, the district may require proof that a leave granted under this
law is used for treatment of a military service-connected disability. The following paragraph may be revised to
reflect district practice.
The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification Requirements"
below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date that the leave
was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education
Code 45191.5)

Notification of Absence

CSBA NOTE: The following section is recommended and may be revised to reflect district practice.
An employee shall notify the Superintendent or the designated manager or supervisor of the need to be absent as
soon as such need is known so that the services of a substitute may be secured as necessary. This notification shall
include an estimate of the expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the
employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall
notify the district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon of the day preceding the day on which the employee
intends to return to work. If the employee fails to notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being
secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted from the employee's pay.

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45196, districts may choose one of two methods for compensating
classified employees who have exhausted their paid leaves and continue to be absent due to illness or injury.

Option 1 below is for use by districts that subtract the actual cost of a substitute from the absent employee's salary
for up to five months. Pursuant to Education Code 45196, the amount paid to a substitute must be less than the
absent employee's salary unless the Board has adopted a salary schedule for substitutes. In California School
Employees Association v. Tustin Unified School District, the court ruled that a district could deduct from the absent
employee's salary only the cost of an outside substitute employee, not the cost of existing classified employee(s)
working additional hours to fill the position during the absence.

Option 2 is mandated pursuant to Education Code 45196 for districts that annually credit regular classified
employees with at least 100 working days of paid sick leave and, after they have exhausted all fully paid leaves,
compensate them at 50 percent or more of their regular salary for the remainder of the 100 working days. Option 2
may be revised to specify more than 100 working days and/or the level of compensation the district will pay an
employee, if it chooses to pay more than 50 percent of the employee's salary.

Districts that maintain a catastrophic leave program for their classified employees should specify how the program
will affect the differential leave pay to which the employee may be entitled.
OPTION 1:  (Differential pay: employee's salary minus actual cost of substitute)

When a classified employee has exhausted all paid leaves, including sick leave, and continues to be absent on
account of illness or injury for a period of five months or less, the district shall deduct from the employee's regular
salary for that period an amount that does not exceed the actual cost of a substitute to fill the position.  (Education
Code 45196)

172 394



The five-month period shall commence on the first day of absence and shall run concurrently with any other paid
leave.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Annual credit of 100 working days of paid sick leave; once fully paid leaves exhausted, 50 percent or
more of regular salary for remainder of the 100 days)

Each year, each regular classified employee shall be credited with no fewer than 100 working days of paid leave for
personal illness or injury, including current year and accumulated days of leave. When the current year and
accumulated days at full pay are exhausted, the remainder of the 100 days shall be compensated at least 50 percent
of the employee's regular salary. Any of the 100 days of leave not used during the year in which they are credited
shall be forfeited and shall not accumulate from year to year. This paid leave shall be exclusive of any other paid
leave, holidays, vacation, or compensatory time to which the employee may be entitled.  (Education Code 45196)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Parental Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following section is subject to any conflicting provision in a collective bargaining agreement that
provides greater parental leave rights.
During each school year, a classified employee may use all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, for
the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any
period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code
45196.1)

CSBA NOTE: Unlike leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2, leave taken pursuant to Education Code
45196.1 does not require an employee to have at least 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous
12-month period in order to be eligible for parental leave. See AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and
Medical Leave for further information on requirements related to the California Family Rights Act.
Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 months.
 (Education Code 45196.1)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45196.1, the district is required to provide differential pay to a classified
employee for up to 12 work weeks when the employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent due to parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.2.
Such an employee is entitled to receive differential pay, calculated in the same manner described in Option 1 or 2 in
the section "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay" above. Education Code
45196.1 requires that, regardless of the type of differential pay system used by the district, employees must receive
at least 50 percent of their regular salary for any portion of the 12-week parental leave that remains following the
exhaustion of sick leave. The following paragraph may be revised to specify a percentage higher than 50 percent in
accordance with district practice.

Since Education Code 45196.1 does not expressly require districts to provide differential pay to employees who are
eligible for parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, it is unclear whether such employees would be
entitled to differential pay. Districts should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services
or district legal counsel if they have questions regarding differential pay for such employees.
An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent
on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for
the remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 45196.1)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall run concurrently with the parental leave taken
pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12
work weeks in a 12-month period.  (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

Extension of Leave

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45195, the following extension of leave may be either paid or unpaid,
and the Board may grant full pay for the full 18 months' allowable absence, if desired.

173 395



A permanent employee who is absent because of a personal illness or injury and who has exhausted all available sick
leave, vacation, compensatory overtime, and any other paid leave shall be so notified, in writing, and offered an
opportunity to request additional leave. The Board may grant the employee additional leave, paid or unpaid, for a
period not to exceed six months and may renew this leave for two additional six-month periods or for lesser periods.
The total additional leave granted shall not exceed 18 months.  (Education Code 45195)

If the employee is still unable to return to work after all available paid and unpaid leaves have been exhausted, the
employee shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period of 39 months. If during this time the employee
becomes medically able, the employee shall be offered reemployment in the first vacancy in the classification of the
employee's previous assignment. During the 39 months, the employee's reemployment shall take preference over all
other applicants except those laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, in which case the employee shall be ranked
according to seniority.  (Education Code 45195)

Verification Requirements

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45191 mandates the Board to adopt regulations that require proof of illness or injury
and prescribe the means of verification. However, Education Code 45191 provides that these regulations shall not
discriminate against evidence of treatment and the need for treatment by the practice of a well-recognized religion.
The following section should be modified to reflect district practice and any procedures that have been specified in
bargaining agreements.

Labor Code 233 requires districts to allow their employees to use sick leave for the purposes specified in Labor
Code 246.5. Because Labor Code 246.5 is silent on requests for verification, and requires an employer to provide
an employee with paid sick days upon oral or written request, districts should be cautious in requiring verification
for sick leave used for the purposes specified in Labor Code 246.5 (Items #7-8 in the section "Use of Sick Leave"
above). Although a district is permitted to require verification from an employee who is a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, pursuant to Labor Code 230 and 230.1, a general insistence on verification
could be deemed a violation of Labor Code 246.5. Any district with questions regarding its authority related to
verification should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall submit a completed and signed district absence form to
the employee's immediate supervisor.

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows chronic
absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or whenever available
evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the district, at
district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical condition of the employee. The report shall include a
statement as to the employee's need for additional leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will
be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant continued absence,
the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny the request for additional leave.

CSBA NOTE: 42 USC 2000ff-1, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, and its implementing regulations,
29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12, specify that it is unlawful for a district to request, require, or purchase an employee's or
family member's individual genetic information except in complying with the medical certification requirements for
family care and medical leave purposes or with the employee's prior written authorization. See AR
4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1635.9, any such information
received by the district must be kept confidential as specified below.
Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician shall be in
writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the employee's genetic
information. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a
confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and shall not be
disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended medical
treatment may be asked to submit a letter from a physician stating that the employee is able to return to work and
stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations.

Short-Term and Substitute Employees

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 245-249, the district is required to grant a minimum of one hour of paid sick

174 396



leave for every 30 hours worked by an employee who works for 30 days within a year of employment. In
implementing this requirement, Labor Code 246, as amended by SB 616, permits the district to use any of the
options specified below. Option 1 provides for paid leave accrual based on one hour for every 30 hours worked.
Option 2 allows an accrual method that provides for a regular accrual basis and ensures that the employee receives
24 hours of paid sick leave by the 120th calendar day of employment or each calendar year or 12-month period,
and at least 40 hours of paid sick leave by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-month
period. Option 3 is for any district that credits employees with 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave at the
beginning of each year and does not allow unused sick leave to carry over to the next year. In addition, pursuant to
Labor Code 245.5, retired annuitants who have not reinstated to the applicable public retirement system are
excluded from participation in these leave benefit provisions.

If a district implements Option 1 or Option 2, Labor Code 246 allows, but does not require, the district to limit
employees' use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours or five days each year of employment, calendar year, or 12-
month period. The district should select the option below which corresponds to its approach under Labor Code
246.

See section below titled "Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements" for additional requirements.
OPTION 1:  (Paid leave accrual based on one hour for every 30 hours worked)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, short-term or substitute employees
who work for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall be entitled to one hour of paid sick leave for
every 30 hours worked. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a
maximum of 80 hours or ten days. However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40
hours or five days in each year of employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Paid leave accrual method that provides for a regular accrual basis)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, short-term or substitute employees
who work for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall accrue, on a regular basis, paid sick leave of
up to 24 hours by the 120th calendar day of their employment or each calendar year or 12-month period, and at
least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-
month period. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of 80
hours or ten days. However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours or five
days in each year of employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

OPTION 3:  (Paid leave that credits employees with sick leave at the beginning of each year and does not allow
unused sick leave to carry over to the next year)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, short-term or substitute employees
who work for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall be credited with 40 hours or five days of paid
sick leave for that year. Unused sick leave shall not carry over to the following year of employment.  (Labor Code
246)

OPTION 3 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph applies to all the above options.
Short-term or substitute employees may begin to use accrued paid sick days on the 90th day of their employment,
after which they may use the sick days as they are accrued.  (Labor Code 246)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph applies to all of the above options and reflects the intent of the Healthy
Workplaces, Healthy Families Act to enable California workers to address their own and their family's health needs
and to provide them with economic security when they need to take time off work for reasons of domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. The following paragraph may be revised to include additional reasons for which
short-term or substitute employees may use sick leave, pursuant to district policy or practice. Pursuant to Labor
Code 247.5, a district is not required to inquire into the purposes for which an employee uses paid leave.
A short-term or substitute employee may use accrued sick leave for absences due to:  (Labor Code 246.5)

175 397



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

1. The employee's own need or the need of a family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the diagnosis,
care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care
 

2. Need of the employee to obtain or seek any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 245-249, all employers, including those that provide paid time off to their
employees under existing policy or other law, must comply with the requirements specified in the following section.
Pursuant to Labor Code 248.5, noncompliance with the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act could result in an
enforcement action against the employer, including the imposition of civil and monetary penalties. Any district with
questions regarding the applicability of this law should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel.
No employee, including a short-term or substitute employee, shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days and
the district shall not in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick
leave, filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the following
information:
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
 

b. The number of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick leave is prohibited
by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district
discriminates or retaliates against the employee

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 246, as amended by SB 616, districts are required to provide 40
hours or five days of paid sick leave to eligible employees.

2. Provide at least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per year and allow
eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their pay check, of
the amount of paid sick leave they have available
 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each eligible employee
for three years

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 45103 Classified service in districts not incorporating the merit system

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45191 Personal illness and injury leave; classified employees

Ed. Code 45191.5 Leave for military service-connected disability

Ed. Code 45193 Leave of absence for pregnancy; use of sick leave under certain
circumstance

176 398



Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 45196 Salary deductions during sick leave; classified employees

Ed. Code 45196.1 Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is
exhausted

Ed. Code 45202 Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

29 CFR 825.100-825.702 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Discrimination on the basis of sex; effectuating Title IX

42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Colton Joint Unified School
District (2009) 170 Cal.App.4th 957

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Tustin Unified School District
(2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 510

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4113.5 Working Remotely

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

177 399



4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4213.5 Working Remotely

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4313.5 Working Remotely

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

178 400



4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

179 401



Regulation 4261.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4261.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following mandated administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be
revised in accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative
regulation is inconsistent with provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreement would prevail, so long as the provision is consistent with law.
Personal leaves granted to district employees shall be used as permitted in law, this administrative regulation, other
Governing Board-approved policy or district regulation, or applicable collective bargaining agreement, or as
otherwise required by law.

CSBA NOTE: Family Code 297.5 extends to registered domestic partners the same rights that are available under
state law to spouses. Thus, any reference to an employee's spouse throughout this administrative regulation also
applies to a registered domestic partner, even if not expressly stated in the applicable state statute (e.g., Education
Code, Military and Veterans Code). Districts should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel if a question arises as to leave provisions relative to an employee's domestic
partner.
For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner.  (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

Bereavement

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.7, districts are required to provide up to five days of
bereavement leave for the death of an employee's "family member," as defined, if the employee was employed by
the district for at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the bereavement leave. Education Code 44985 and
45194 grant three days, or five days if out-of-state travel is required, of paid bereavement leave for certificated and
classified employees upon the death of a member of the employee's "immediate family." Government Code
12945.7 potentially expands the length of this leave, but not necessarily the requirement to pay for this leave.
Education Code 44985 and 45194 grant bereavement leave for a member of the employee's "immediate family,"
the definition of which is more expansive than a "family member," pursuant to Government Code 12945.7. Any
bereavement leave taken under the Education Code and/or Government Code runs concurrently and not
consecutively.

The bereavement leave days do not need to be taken consecutively, but must be taken within three months of the
family member's date of death. Districts with existing policies that provide employees less than five days of paid
bereavement leave must continue to give employees the number of paid days specified in the policy, but may
provide the remainder of the five days as unpaid bereavement leave. Districts must allow employees to use any
paid vacation, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off for the balance of the unpaid bereavement leave.
Additionally, Government Code 12945.7 makes it unlawful to retaliate or discriminate against an employee for
using bereavement leave or to interfere with an employee's right to use bereavement leave.

Education Code 44985 and 45194 allow the Governing Board to expand the class of relatives listed below as
"immediate family" and enlarge the benefits provided by law. Additionally, Government Code 12945.2 includes
parent-in-law in the definition of "family member" for purposes of bereavement leave. Thus, to ensure consistency,
the definition of "immediate family" includes "parent-in-law" as permitted by law.

Districts with questions about bereavement leave should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or district legal counsel.

The following paragraphs may be revised to reflect district practice.
Employees are entitled to a leave of up to five days upon the death of any member of the employee's immediate
family, as defined in Education Code 44985 and 45194.

"Immediate family" means a parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse of
the employee, and the spouse, domestic partner, child, child-in-law, sibling, or sibling-in-law of the employee, or any

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

180 402



relative living in the immediate household of the employee.  (Education Code 44985, 45194; Government Code
12945.7)

No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary for any authorized paid bereavement leave as specified in
the collective bargaining agreement or as otherwise established by this policy, nor shall such leave be deducted from
any other leave to which the employee is entitled unless requested by the employee.  (Education Code 44985,
45194; Government Code 12945.7)

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Reproductive Loss

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848 (Ch. 724, Statutes of 2023), the district
is prohibited from refusing to grant a request by an employee who has worked at least 30 days for the district to
take up to five days of reproductive loss leave following a reproductive loss event. The district is not required to
grant more than 20 days for multiple reproductive loss events during a 12-month period.

Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848, prohibits the district from retaliating or discriminating against an
employee for taking reproductive loss leave or giving information or testimony related to such right, or to interfere
with, restrain, or deny the exercise or attempted exercise of this right.
Upon request by any employee who has experienced a reproductive loss event, defined as the day or, for a multiple-
day event, the final day of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or an unsuccessful assisted
reproduction, the district shall grant the employee up to five days of reproductive loss leave, to be taken
consecutively or non-consecutively. The employee shall take the leave within three months following the event. If
the employee is on another type of leave at the time of the reproductive loss event, or chooses to take another type
of leave immediately following a reproductive loss event, then the reproductive loss leave shall be completed within
three months of the end date of the other leave.  (Government Code 12945.6)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848, reproductive loss leave is required to be
taken pursuant to any existing applicable leave policy of the district. However, if the district's leave policy does not
so specify, the reproductive loss leave will be unpaid, but the employee may use vacation, personal leave, accrued
and available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee. Districts that provide
paid reproductive loss leave should revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice.
Reproductive loss leave will be unpaid unless the employee chooses to use vacation, personal leave, accrued and
available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Government Code
12945.6)

Any request or inquiry or information provided by an employee related to reproductive loss leave and/or a
reproductive loss shall remain confidential, except to internal personnel or counsel as necessary or as required by
law.

Personal Necessity

CSBA NOTE: Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accumulated personal illness/injury leave (sick leave)
for reasons of personal necessity pursuant to Education Code 44981 (certificated employees) and 45207 (classified
employees). Pursuant to Education Code 44981 and 45207, a higher maximum may be set for certificated and/or
classified employees in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, or by Board resolution for classified
employees who are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Districts that have established a maximum
that is higher than seven days should modify the following paragraph accordingly.

Education Code 45207 clarifies that provisions pertaining to personal necessity leave also apply to districts that
have adopted the merit system for classified employees in accordance with Education Code 45240-45320.
Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during each school
year for reasons of personal necessity.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the
limits set by bereavement leave provisions  (Education Code 44981, 45207; Government Code 12945.7)
 

181 403



2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44981, a certificated employee may use personal necessity leave
for the serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family. The Board may extend these
provisions to classified employees under the authority granted to the Board by Education Code 45207.
Districts are cautioned to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district
legal counsel regarding any interaction of Education Code provisions with Labor Code 233, 245.5, and 246.5,
which allow the use of sick leave for the need of the employee or family member for the diagnosis, care, or
treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care and which include in the definition of "family
member" a registered domestic partner, grandparent, and sibling. See AR 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal
Illness/Injury Leave and AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave.

Pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 and Labor Code 245.5, the California Family Rights Act (CFRA)
provides an eligible employee with up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to care for a designated
person who has a serious health condition, in addition to caring for a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild,
sibling, spouse, or domestic partner. A "designated person" is defined as any individual related by blood or
whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. The employee may identify
the designated person at the time the employee requests the leave. The district may limit the employee to
taking CFRA leave to care for one designated person per 12-month period. For further information regarding
medical leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave.

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5 
(Education Code 44981; Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 246.5)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45207 provides that classified employees may use sick leave for required court
appearances, as provided in Item #4 below. Circumstances under which employees may take time off, with
pay, for court appearances are described in the section on "Leave to Perform Legal Duties" below.

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or
witness under subpoena or other order  (Education Code 45207)

CSBA NOTE: Items #5 and #6 are optional and may be deleted or modified to reflect district practice.
5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee

 
6. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. The district is prohibited from requiring employees to obtain
advance permission prior to taking leaves in certain situations. Pursuant to Education Code 44981 and 45207, the
district may not require advance permission for leaves taken by classified employees for the reasons specified in
Items #1-2 above and by certificated employees for the reasons specified in Items #1-3 above. In addition, Labor
Code 246.5 requires an employer to grant paid sick leave "upon the oral or written request of an employee."
According to the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), employers may not require advance notice when the
need for the leave was unforeseeable, as in the case of unanticipated illness or a medical emergency.

Also see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave for requirements pertaining to requests for
leaves that qualify under the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (29 USC 2601-2654) or CFRA (Government
Code 12945.1-12945.2), including provisions that allow employees to provide notice as soon as practicable when
30-day advance notice is not practicable due to lack of knowledge of the date the leave will be needed, a change in
circumstances, or a medical emergency.
Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or for which the need is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the

182 404



need for the leave as soon as practicable.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44981 and 45207 mandate the adoption of regulations requiring proof of personal
necessity and prescribing the manner of the required proof. The following paragraph may be revised to specify the
manner of proof required by the district.
After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230 prohibits the discharge of or discrimination or retaliation against an employee for
taking time off for the activities specified in Items #1-2 below.

Pursuant to Education Code 44037, it is unlawful for the district, or personnel commission for merit districts, to (1)
adopt any rule, regulation, or policy that encourages classified employees to seek exemption from jury duty; (2)
directly or indirectly solicit or suggest to any employee that the employee seek exemption from jury duty; or (3)
discriminate against any employee with respect to assignment, employment, promotion, or in any other manner
because of the employee's service on a jury panel. However, the Board or personnel commission may establish a
rule providing that only a percentage of district staff, which shall not be less than two percent, shall be granted such
leave with pay at any one time. The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.
An employee may take time off work in order to:  (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury
 

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the district office when requesting
leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees.  (Education Code 44037)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to provide leave of absence with
pay for certificated employees called for jury duty, as authorized by Education Code 44036. Districts that do not
grant such leave should delete this paragraph.
A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional and applies only to certificated employees. Education Code
44036 allows the Board, at its discretion, to provide paid leaves for employees to appear in court as witnesses
other than as litigants or to respond to orders from another governmental jurisdiction.

The Board may grant the leave with or without pay. Districts that do not grant such leave should delete this
paragraph, or revise it to reflect district practice.
A certificated employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than as a litigant or to
respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the
connivance or misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's
regular earnings and any witness fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.2 prohibits a district from taking adverse employment action against an employee
who takes leave as described below.
An employee who is a victim of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of such victim may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial proceedings, if
the crime is any of the following:  (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)
 

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)

183 405



 
3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.2, employees may use any of the types of leave listed in the following
paragraph, unless otherwise provided by a collective bargaining agreement, although a collective bargaining
agreement cannot diminish the entitlement of an employee.
For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the district attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is advocating on
behalf of the victim.  (Labor Code 230.2)

The district shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of this
leave.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230 and 230.1 allow employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or mental injury with a threat of physical injury, and employees
whose immediate family member is deceased as the direct result of a crime to use any available vacation, personal
leave, or compensatory time off for the purposes described in Items #1-5 below, and prohibit a district from taking
adverse employment action against an employee for taking leave for any of those purposes. Pursuant to Labor Code
230.1, Items #2-5 apply to districts with 25 or more employees.
An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or
mental injury with a threat of physical injury or an employee whose immediate family member, as defined, is
deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or compensatory time off that is
otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230, the following certification may include documentation from a victim
advocate (defined as an individual, whether paid or serving as a volunteer, who provides services to victims under
the auspices or supervision of an agency or organization that has a documented record of providing services to
victims, a court, or a law enforcement or prosecution agency) or any other form of documentation that reasonably
verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not limited to, a written statement signed by the employee
or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf.
Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

184 406



3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee
was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The district shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor Code 230,
230.1)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.1, districts with 25 or more employees are required to notify district
employees of employee rights under Labor Code 230 and 230.1. The district may use a form developed by the
Labor Commissioner for this purpose, when available on DIR's website, or may develop its own form that is
substantially similar in content and clarity to the Labor Commissioner's form.
The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor Code
230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by the
district. Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon request. 
(Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.8, the following section applies to any district employing 25 or more
employees at the same location. A district with fewer than 25 employees at the same location may use or delete
this section at its discretion.

Pursuant to Labor Code 230.8, an employee who is discharged, threatened with discharge, demoted, suspended, or
otherwise discriminated against for using leave for child-related activities is entitled to reinstatement and
reimbursement for lost wages and benefits, and an employer who willfully refuses to rehire, promote, or otherwise
reinstate such an employee is subject to a civil penalty equal to three times the amount of the lost wages and
benefits.
Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to:  (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

2. Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.8 provides that the employee may use time off without pay to the extent the district
makes it available. The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
In lieu of using vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off, eligible employees may take unpaid leave for this
purpose.

185 407



If two or more parents/guardians of a child are employed at the same work site, this leave shall be allowed for the
parent/guardian who first gives notice to the district. Simultaneous absence by another parent/guardian of the child
may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Upon request by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall provide documentation from the school or
licensed child care provider that the employee engaged in permitted child-related activities on a specific date and at
a particular time.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Service on Education Boards and Committees

Upon request, a certificated employee shall be granted up to 20 school days of paid leave per school year for service
performed within the state on any education board, commission, committee, or group authorized by Education Code
44987.3 provided that all of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 44987.3)

1. The service is performed within the state
 

2. The board, commission, organization, or group informs the district in writing of the service
 

3. The board, commission, organization, or group agrees, prior to the service, to reimburse the district, upon the
district's written request, for compensation paid to the employee's substitute and for actual related
administrative costs

Employee Organization Activities

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be deleted by any district whose collective bargaining agreements
expressly provide for a paid leave of absence for participation in the activities described in this section.

Education Code 44987 and 45210 provide that any certificated or classified employee may take time off without
loss of compensation to serve as an elected officer of any local, statewide, or national employee organization of
which the employee is a member. Following the district's payment to the employee for the leave of absence, the
employee organization must reimburse the district within 10 days after receiving the district's certification of
payment of compensation to the employee. This leave of absence is in addition to the release time granted to
representatives of an employee organization pursuant to Government Code 3543.1.

Pursuant to Education Code 44987 and 45210, an employee's leave of absence to serve as an elected officer of an
employee organization is additional to any other leave available for the employee's use by law or in agreement with
the district.
Upon request, any certificated or classified employee shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of
compensation, to serve as an elected officer of a district employee organization or any statewide or national
employee organization with which the employee organization is affiliated. Such leave shall be in addition to any other
leave to which the employee may be entitled by other laws or a memorandum of understanding or collective
bargaining agreement.  (Education Code 44987, 45210)

The leave shall include, but is not limited to, absence for purposes of attending periodic, stated, special, or regular
meetings of the body of the organization on which the employee serves as an officer.  (Education Code 44987,
45210)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45210 requires districts to grant a paid leave of absence to a reasonable number of
classified employees serving as unelected members of the employee organization or a statewide or national public
employee organization when the employee attends "important organizational activities authorized by the public
employee organization." Compensation must include the required retirement fund contributions. The employee will
continue to earn full service credit during the leave and must pay member contributions as specified. Education
Code 45210 also requires that an employee organization provide reasonable notification to the district when
requesting a leave of absence without loss of compensation for an employee.
Upon request of an employee organization in the district or its state or national affiliate, a reasonable number of
unelected classified employees shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of compensation for the purpose of
attending important organizational activities authorized by the employee organization. The employee organization
shall provide reasonable notification to the Superintendent or designee when requesting a leave of absence for
employees for this purpose.  (Education Code 45210)

186 408



When leave is granted for any of the above purposes, the employee organization shall reimburse the district within
10 days after receiving the district's certification of payment of compensation to the employee.  (Education Code
44987, 45210)

Religious Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by any district that chooses to grant religious leave and may
be revised to reflect district practice. A district that does not grant such leave should delete this section. However,
the district should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel
before denying a request for religious leave since the Constitution requires districts to provide "reasonable
accommodation" to employee religious practices.
The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three days of leave per year for religious purposes,
provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures, the
neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship on the district.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph reflects the California Supreme Court's interpretation of Article 1,
Section 8 of the California Constitution as stated in Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence.
The Superintendent or designee shall deduct the cost of hiring a substitute, when required, from the wages of the
employee who takes religious leave.

No employee shall be discriminated against for using this leave or any additional days of unpaid leave granted for
religious observances at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

CSBA NOTE: Military and Veterans Code 395.10 requires any district with 25 or more employees to allow up to 10
days of unpaid leave to an employee whose spouse is on leave from military deployment. A district with fewer than
25 employees may use the following section at its discretion. In addition, 29 USC 2612 authorizes an employee to
take up to 26 work weeks of unpaid military caregiver leave or up to 12 weeks of "exigency" leave during a single
12-month period, as determined by the district; see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave.
An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.3 prohibits a district from discharging or discriminating against an employee who
takes time off to perform emergency duty as specified below. Labor Code 230.3 defines emergency rescue
personnel as a member of a federal, state, local, or private fire department or agency, as well as a sheriff or police
department.
An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.4, a district with 50 or more employees must grant an employee who is a
volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel a leave of absence for up to 14 days per
calendar year for training purposes. A district with fewer than 50 employees may use or delete this paragraph at its
discretion.
Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 1500-1507 require a district with more than 15 employees to provide at least 10 days of

187 409



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

unpaid leave per year, beyond any leave otherwise available to employees, to employees who volunteer with the
Civil Air Patrol and are directed to respond to an emergency operational mission, as provided below. Labor Code
1503 specifies that a district may not require an employee to first exhaust all accrued vacation, personal, sick, or
any other available leave in order to use Civil Air Patrol leave.

If the district chooses to offer more than 10 days of such leave per year or to provide paid leave, it should modify
the following paragraph accordingly. A district with 15 or fewer employees may use or delete this section at its
discretion.
An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the district for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave. Such
leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental entity
authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the district as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave. The
Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the eligibility
of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required certification. 
(Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

188 410



Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

189 411



4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4340 Bargaining Units

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

190 412



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4312.9: Employee NotificationsPolicy 4312.9: Employee Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1994 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

The Governing Board believes that providing clear communications to staff is essential to establishing a professional,
positive work environment and enhancing their job performance. The Superintendent or designee shall provide
district employees all notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent or designee
believes will promote staff knowledge of the district's policies, programs, activities, and operations.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, district employees shall be asked to sign an
acknowledgment indicating receipt of the notification. Such acknowledgments shall be retained in each employee's
personnel file.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

191 413



Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

192 414



Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3542 School Bus Drivers

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

193 415



4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

194 416



4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

195 417



4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

196 418



Exhibit 4312.9-E(1): Employee NotificationsExhibit 4312.9-E(1): Employee Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/01/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following exhibit lists notices that the law requires be provided to employees. See the referenced
Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about related program and notice
requirements.
This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to employees. Other
notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  To All Employees

When/Whom to Notify: At the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 231.5, Government Code 12950
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: The district’s policy on sexual harassment, legal remedies, complaints

When/Whom to Notify: Annually and 72 hours before pesticide application
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.2
Subject: Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, Internet address to access information on pesticides

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6117
Subject: Public hearing on implementing year-round program schedule

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6112
Subject: Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 1312.3; BP 0460; BP 3260
Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student fees and
local control accountability plan

When to Notify:  Annually
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173, AR 6173.1, 6173.3, 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory, and newcomer students.

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer epinephrine auto-injectors

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer stock albuterol inhalers

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer anti-seizure medication

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.3

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

197 419



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer opioid antagonist

When to Notify: When a parent/guardian requests for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of
emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 1126
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4136/4236/4336
Subject: Prohibition of activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to duties; discipline;
appeal

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 8355; 41 USC 8102; 34 CFR 84.205, 84.210
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4020, BP 4159/4259/4359
Subject: District's drug- and alcohol-free workplace; actions that will be taken if violated; available employee
assistance programs

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 21029
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Right to purchase PERS service credit for military service performed prior to public employment

When/Whom to Notify: Upon placement of automated external defibrillator (AED) in school, annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1797.196
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141
Subject: Proper use of AED; location of all AEDs on campus, sudden cardiac arrest, school's emergency response plan

When/Whom to Notify: If the district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3513.3
Subject: District's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When/Whom to Notify: Annually, or more frequently if there is new information
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 120875, 120880
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43
Subject: AIDS and hepatitis B, methods to prevent exposure

When/Whom to Notify: To new employees upon hire and other employees upon request, in districts with 25 or
more employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2
Subject: Rights pursuant to Labor Code 230-230.1 pertaining to leaves and accommodations for victims of crime or
abuse

When/Whom to Notify: With each paycheck
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 246
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1
Subject: Amount of sick leave available

When/Whom to Notify: Upon hire, in employee handbook, and upon request for parental leave
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 1034
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4033
Subject: The district's policy on lactation accommodation

When/Whom to Notify: To covered employees and former employees

198 420



Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2800.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Availability of COBRA/Cal-COBRA continuation and conversion coverage; statement encouraging careful
examination of options before declining coverage

When/Whom to Notify: To employees participating in a flexible spending account
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2810.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Deadline to withdraw funds from account before the end of the plan year

When/Whom to Notify: To every new employee, either at the time employee is hired or by end of first pay period
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3551
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Workers' compensation benefits, how to obtain medical care, role of primary physician, form for reporting
personal physician/chiropractor

When/Whom to Notify: Within one day of receiving notice of potential exposure to COVID-19, and remain posted
for not less than 15 calendar days, to employees who were on the premises during the infectious period, the
exclusive representative, and the employer of subcontracted employees as applicable
Where: Prominently display in all places where notices to employees concerning workplace rules or regulations are
customarily posted
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 6409.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: Potential exposure to COVID-19; benefits to which employees may be entitled; available leave options;
protection against discrimination and retaliation; district's disinfection and safety plan

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to beginning employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.4
Subject: Status as a mandated reporter of child abuse, reporting obligations, confidentiality rights, copy of law

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and when leaving work due to pregnancy or nonoccupational sickness or
injury
Education or Other Legal Code: Unemployment Insurance Code 2613
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Disability insurance rights and benefits

When/Whom to Notify: To principal, counselor who directly supervises or reports on student's behavior or progress,
and teacher and other administrators who directly supervise or report on student's behavior or progress when the
superintendent or designee believes the employee needs the information for the protection of self or others when
working with the student, when Superintendent or designee receives written notification that minor student has
committed a felony or misdemeanor involving specified offenses
Education or Other Legal Code: Welfare and Institutions Code 827
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Limited exception to juvenile court record confidentiality to ensure rehabilitation of juvenile criminal
offenders and protect students and staff

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees and job applicants
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11023; 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 0410, AR 4030
Subject: District's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees via employee handbook, or to each new employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11091, 11095; 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Benefits through Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA); obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of need for leave when possible

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3203
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357

199 421



Subject: The right and procedure to access the injury and illness prevention program

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; contact information for district's Title IX Coordinator; referral of
inquiries to Title IX Coordinator and/or Office for Civil Rights

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: 40 CFR 763.84, 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514
Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6178
Subject: All career and technical education opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin,
sex, or disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100

II.  To Certificated Employees

When/Whom to Notify: To eligible certificated employees in a timely manner, and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees within 30 days of hire
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 22455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4121
Subject: Criteria for membership in retirement system; right to elect membership at any time

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment of a retired certificated individual
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 22461
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.14/4317.14
Subject: Postretirement earnings limitation or employment restriction; monthly report of compensation

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35171
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115, BP 4315
Subject: District regulations related to performance evaluations

When/Whom to Notify: 30 days before last day of school year for instructional staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated staff, in any year in which employee is evaluated
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44663
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Copy of employee's evaluation

When/Whom to Notify: To a certificated employee with unsatisfactory evaluation, once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every other year for permanent employee
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44664
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Notice and description of the unsatisfactory performance

When/Whom to Notify: By May 30, if district elects to issue reemployment notices to certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44842
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1
Subject: Request that the employee notify district of intent to remain in service next year

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary and temporary certificated employees upon employment and every July
thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1, AR 4121
Subject: Employment status and salary

200 422



When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee, by March 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23, 44948.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4116
Subject: Whether or not employee is reelected for next school year

When/Whom to Notify: When certificated employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, at any time of year
or, for charge of unsatisfactory performance, during instructional year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44934, 44934.1, 44936
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118; AR 4118
Subject: Notice of charges, procedures, and employee rights; intent to dismiss or suspend 30 days after notice

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unprofessional conduct, at least 45 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unsatisfactory performance, at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or prior to last quarter of school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with mandatory leave of absence offense, within 10 days
of entry of judgment in proceedings
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44940.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Notice of intent to dismiss 30 days from notice unless employee demands hearing

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee 30 days prior to dismissal during school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second- year probationary employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44948.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Reasons for dismissal and opportunity to appeal

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 when necessary to reduce certificated personnel, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44949, 44955
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Reasons for personnel reduction and employees' right to hearing; final notice of Board decision re:
termination

When/Whom to Notify: Before the end of the school year to temporary employee who served 75 percent of school
year but will be released
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44954
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4121
Subject: District's decision not to reelect employee for following school year

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to any
permanent or probationary certificated employee, including an employee holding a position that requires
administrative or supervisory credential, whose services are terminated
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44955.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Decrease in the number of permanent employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and hearing
adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher, when a student engages in or is reasonably suspected of specified acts
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49079
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

201 423



When/Whom to Notify: To teacher of a student who is suspended or expelled, when Superintendent or designee
receives transfer student's record regarding acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48201
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee upon change in employment status due to alleged misconduct
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 80303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.7/4317.7
Subject: Contents of state regulation re: report to Commission on Teacher Credentialing

III.  To Classified Employees

When/Whom to Notify: When a classified employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, in a nonmerit district
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45113
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4218
Subject: Notice of charges, right to hearing, timeline for requesting hearing

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15, when laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff, displacement and reemployment rights, right to hearing; final notice of Board decision
regarding termination

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: District Statement of Reduction in Force to affected employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and
hearing adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: At least 60 days prior to the effective date of layoff, if the employee's position must be
eliminated due to the expiration of a specially funded program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff date, displacement and reemployment rights

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and upon each change in classification
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45169
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4212
Subject: Employee's class specification, salary data, assignment or work location, duty hours, prescribed workweek

When/Whom to Notify: To permanent employee whose leave is exhausted
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45192, 45195
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4261.1, AR 4261.11
Subject: Exhaustion of leave, opportunity to request additional leave

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers prior to expiration of specified
documents
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 1234
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Expiration date of driver's license, driver's certificate and medical certificate; need to renew

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers upon employment and at least once per
year thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 2480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Limitations on vehicle idling; consequences of not complying

202 424



When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to district drug testing program and thereafter upon
employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.113, 382.601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Explanation of federal requirements for drug testing program and district's policy; prior to administration of
each drug or alcohol test

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to operating school bus
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Post accident information, procedures, and instruction

IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

When/Whom to Notify: To superintendent, deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent or senior manager of
classified service, at least 45 days before expiration of contract
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 2121, BP 4312.1
Subject: Decision not to reelect or reemploy upon expiration of contract or term

When/Whom to Notify: Upon request by administrative or supervisory employee transferred to teaching position
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44896
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Statement of the reasons for the reassignment

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 to employee who may be released/reassigned the following school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Notice that employee may be released or reassigned the following school year

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

When/Whom to Notify: In the event of a breach of security of district records to affected employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 3580
Subject: Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, and, as applicable, contact information for
credit reporting agencies

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to placing derogatory information in personnel file
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6
Subject: Notice of derogatory information, opportunity to review and comment

When/Whom to Notify: To employees who volunteer to administer epinephrine auto-injector
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Defense and indemnification from civil liability by the district

When/Whom to Notify: To district police officer, within 30 days of decision to impose discipline
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 3304
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3515.3
Subject: Decision to impose discipline, including the date that discipline will be imposed

When/Whom to Notify: To employee returning from military leave of absence, within 30 days of return
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 20997
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Right to receive PERS service credit for military service; application form

When/Whom to Notify: 24 hours before Board meets in closed session to hear complaints or charges against
employee

203 425



Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54957
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BB 9321
Subject: Employee's right to have complaints/charges heard in open session

When/Whom to Notify: When taking disciplinary action against employee for disclosure of confidential information
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54963
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23
Subject: Law prohibiting disclosure of confidential information obtained in closed session

When/Whom to Notify: When document identifying employee who is victim of domestic violence is disclosed
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

When/Whom to Notify: Within one working day of work-related injury or victimization of crime
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3553, 5401
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Potential eligibility for workers' compensation benefits, claim form

When/Whom to Notify: When adverse employment action is based on DOJ criminal history information or
subsequent arrest notification
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11105, 11105.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5
Subject: Copy of DOJ notification

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee with exposure to blood or potentially infectious materials, upon initial
employment and at least annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3204
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42
Subject: The existence, location, and availability of exposure and medical records; person responsible for maintaining
and providing access to records; right to access records

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee assigned to a work area in a laboratory setting where hazardous chemicals
are present, within 15 working days after receiving a monitoring result related to an employee exposure
determination
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5191
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Contents of 8 CCR 5191, including location and availability of chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits, signs
and symptoms of exposure, location of reference material

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee who may be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, upon
initial assignment and when new hazard is introduced into work area
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5194
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Requirements of 8 CCR 5194, including any presence of hazardous substances in the work area, location
and availability of hazard communication program, new material safety data sheet, employee rights

When/Whom to Notify: To employee eligible for military leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 38 USC 4334
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Notice of rights, benefits, and obligations under military leave

When/Whom to Notify: Within five days of employee's request for family care and medical leave, receipt of
supporting information, or district's knowledge that the requested leave may qualify as FMLA leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300; 2 CCR 11049, 11091
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Designation of leave as FMLA or non-FMLA; if not eligible, reason not eligible; requirement to use paid
leave; any requirement for fitness-for-duty certification; any subsequent changes in designation notice

When/Whom to Notify: Whenever notice of eligibility for FMLA is provided to employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300

204 426



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Rights and responsibilities re: use of FMLA; consequences of failure to meet obligations

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees working with families experiencing homelessness
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48851.3, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173
Subject: Duties of district liaison for homeless students and availability of training and services

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

205 427



Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

206 428



34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3542 School Bus Drivers

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

207 429



4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.11 Sexual Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

208 430



4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.11 Sexual Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.11 Sexual Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

209 431



4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

210 432



Policy 4327: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesPolicy 4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2010 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

The Governing Board acknowledges that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of students
in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, and therefore desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the
district's interscholastic athletic activities in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and safety of
participating students.  

The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a substitute
employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary employee in a limited assignment
capacity. Interscholastic athletic activities include any activities in which student teams participate in interscholastic
competition.  (5 CCR 5590)

CSBA NOTE: When hiring a temporary athletic team coach, Education Code 44919 requires districts to first make
the position available to a credentialed teacher presently employed by the district. In CTA v. Rialto Unified School
District, the California Supreme Court held that the law is intended to grant a current certificated employee a
limited advantage in the hiring process over a noncertificated employee or a nonemployee, provided that the
applicant applies for the position and meets qualification criteria established by the district.
When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic activity team coach, the position shall first be made
available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district.  (Education Code 44919)

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5596 specifies a code of ethical conduct for athletic coaches; see the accompanying
administrative regulation. In addition, the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) has adopted a set of principles
to guide the conduct of coaches and other participants in interscholastic athletic competitions; see BP 6145.2 -
Athletic Competition.
All coaches shall be subject to applicable law, Board policies, administrative regulations, and California Interscholastic
Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct.

Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591)

Qualifications and Training

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5593 establishes the minimum qualifications for employees serving as temporary athletic team
coaches; see the accompanying administrative regulation.
The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in accordance with law
and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an appropriate level of competence,
knowledge, and skill.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with
students in a district-sponsored student activity program, such as a scholastic program, an interscholastic athletic
program, or extracurricular activities, is required to obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC) from
the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, unless the district requires the candidate to clear a Department of
Justice (DOJ) and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) criminal background check. See BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer
Assistance and AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check. Thus, the Governing Board may (1) choose to
require a temporary athletic team coach to obtain the ASCC or a DOJ/FBI criminal background check, (2) permit an
individual, at the individual's discretion, to obtain either the ASCC or DOJ/FBI check, or (3) apply different
requirements to different positions in the district (e.g., head coaches vs. assistant coaches; employees vs.
volunteers). The following paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice.

In addition, Education Code 45125.01 allows multiple districts within a county or within contiguous counties to
share criminal record information of noncertificated employees and volunteers working in a student activity
program.
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored interscholastic athletic
activity shall, prior to beginning the individual’s duties, submit to the Superintendent or designee either an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and
Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background clearance.  (Education Code 49024)

Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to the
Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that the coach meets the

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

211 433



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State
Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49032 requires that all high school coaches complete a district or CIF-developed
coaching education program that meets the guidelines of Education Code 35179.1, which, as amended by AB 245
(Ch. 422, Statutes of 2023), includes training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation, use of an automated external
defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes but is not limited to training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and
appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac arrest. Additionally, Education Code 33479.6 requires
coaches to complete a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest and to
retake such a course every two years thereafter. For more information regarding training of interscholastic athletic
activity coaches, see the accompanying administrative regulation.
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the extent to which the
district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including those required pursuant to Education Code
33479.6, 35179.1, and 49032, and by district policy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

212 434



CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

213 435



5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

214 436



Regulation 4327: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesRegulation 4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2010 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Qualifications

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 5593 establishes minimum qualifications for certificated and noncertificated employees
assigned as temporary athletic team coaches. Pursuant to 5 CCR 5593, the Superintendent or designee is required
to certify to the Governing Board that each newly hired coach meets the requirements of 5 CCR 5593; see the
accompanying Board policy.

The district should modify the following section to reflect any additional criteria. Districts may consider developing
specific criteria for each interscholastic athletic activity coach position.
Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not necessarily limited to,
competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593)

1.  Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency procedures, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and possession of a
valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card
 

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card
 

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card
 

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' Association
(NATA/CATA)
 

e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the supervision of an
athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and conditioning
 

2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one or more of the
following:
 

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques
 

b. Completion of in-service programs arranged by a school district or county office of education
 

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being coached
 

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached
 

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in the sport being
coached
 

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the league rules, and, at
the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF)
 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport participation, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions and adolescent
or sports psychology for secondary school positions
 

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth
 

c.  Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in appropriate training
courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons serve under the direct supervision of a fully

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

215 437



qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 CCR 5593)

CSBA NOTE: The qualifications required by 5 CCR 5593 for employees serving as temporary athletic team coaches
do not apply to volunteer coaches. The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that require volunteers
who supervise or direct an athletic program to meet those same qualifications. For more information regarding
volunteer assistance in schools, see BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer Assistance.
Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria specified in 5 CCR 5593
required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. Any volunteer who does not meet such
criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic
program.

Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary
athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592)

1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated teachers from
teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from a licensed physician or other
person approved by the district
 

2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 44424, or any
offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with children

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with
students in a district-sponsored student activity program, including scholastic programs, interscholastic athletic
programs, and extracurricular activities, must obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing or clear a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal
background check prior to beginning duties. See the accompanying Board policy.
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall obtain an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code
49024)

Training

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools. Education Code 49032
requires that all high school coaches complete a coaching education program developed by the district or the
California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) that meets the guidelines listed in Education Code 35179.1, as amended
by AB 245 (Ch. 422, Statutes of 2023), and includes training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation, use of an automated
external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited to, training in recognizing the signs,
symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac arrest. Pursuant to Health and Safety
Code 124238.5, as added by AB 1467 (Ch. 24, Statutes of 2023), beginning January 1, 2027, districts are required
to provide student athletes with access to an AED during any official practice or match that, when medical
circumstances warrant its use, is administered by a medical professional, coach, or other designated person who
holds AED certification and complies with any other qualifications pursuant to law.

Pursuant to Education Code 35179.8, as amended by AB 1653 (Ch. 589, Statutes of 2023), CIF, in consultation with
the California Department of Education (CDE), is required to develop guidelines, procedures, and safety standards
for the prevention and management of exertional heat illness.

Districts that wish to set their own standards for the coaching education program instead of using the standards
developed by the CIF should modify the following paragraph accordingly.
Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at the individual's expense, a coaching
education program that meets the standards developed by CIF and includes, but is not limited to, training in regard to
sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport management, statewide and school regulations, CPR,
including certification, use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited
to, training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac
arrest. A high school coach who has completed the education program in another California school district shall be
deemed to have met the requirement for this district. An individual who has not completed the education program
may be assigned as a coach for no longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1,
49032)

216 438



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 33479.6 requires the coach of an athletic activity to complete, and retake every two
years thereafter, a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, including the
risks associated with continuing to play or practice after experiencing fainting or seizures during exercise,
unexplained shortness of breath, chest pain, dizziness, racing heart rate, or extreme fatigue. Pursuant to Education
Code 33479.7 a coach who does not complete the required sudden cardiac arrest training is subject to suspension
from coaching any athletic activity until the required training is completed.

Online training fulfilling this requirement is available on the CIF's website. Additionally, Education Code 33479.2
requires CDE to post related information on its website.
In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches shall complete an
approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2,
33479.6, 33479.7)

Code of Ethical Conduct

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596)

1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches
 

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials
 

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct
 

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority
 

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times
 

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players
 

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and standards of the game
 

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment
 

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at any public or private
postsecondary educational institution
 

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to be eligible to
participate in athletics
 

11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, anabolic steroids, or any
substance to increase physical development or performance that is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American Medical Association
 

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools
 

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the district and the league
in which the district participates

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

217 439



Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

218 440



4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

219 441



Policy 4361: LeavesPolicy 4361: Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in accordance
with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this policy is inconsistent with provisions of
the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail, so long as the provision is
consistent with law.
The Governing Board shall provide for paid and unpaid leaves of absence for employees in accordance with law,
Board policy, administrative regulation, collective bargaining agreements, and merit system rules, as applicable.

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-10 below reflect categories of leave which are described in more detail in the cross-
referenced leave policies or administrative regulations cited below in the Policy Reference section. In addition,
Education Codes 44963, applicable to certificated staff, and 45198, applicable to classified staff, allow the
Governing Board to grant leaves with or without pay to certificated and classified staff for any purpose or period of
time, as long as no employee is deprived of any leave to which the employee is legally entitled. Education Code
45190, as amended by AB 472 (Ch. 331, Statutes of 2023), clarifies that, as to classified staff, including in a district
that has adopted the merit system, the Board's authority to grant leaves of absence and vacations with or without
pay includes voluntary leaves of absence. Any additional types of leaves so granted by the Board may be added to
the following list.
Employees have the right to take leaves as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreements, including, but
not limited to:

1. Personal illness or injury
 

2. Industrial accident or illness
 

3. Family care and medical leave
 

4. Military service
 

5. Personal necessity and personal emergencies

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44986, the Board may grant to any certificated employee who has
applied for disability benefits a leave of absence, not to exceed 30 days beyond final determination of the
employee's eligibility for disability benefits by the State Teachers' Retirement System. If the employee is
determined to be eligible, that leave must be extended for the term of the disability, up to 39 months.

6. Disability leave for certificated employees in accordance with Education Code 44986
 

7. Vacations for classified staff and certificated management staff, as applicable
 

8. Sabbaticals for purposes of study or training related to the employee's job duties
 

9. Attendance at work-related meetings and staff development opportunities

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45190, as amended by AB 472 (Ch. 331, Statutes of 2023), if a
district, including a district that has adopted the merit system, places an employee on an involuntary leave of
absence during the period the employee is charged with a criminal offense, is under a criminal investigation,
or is waiting due to administrative delay for necessary job-related administrative determinations, then, upon
the conclusion of the proceedings in favor of the employee, the district is required to pay to the employee the
employee's full compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of absence upon the employee's return
to service in the district. "Involuntary leave of absence" includes, but is not limited to, a compulsory leave of
absence or a suspension.

10. Compulsory leave
 

11. Maternity, parental leave, and reproductive loss leave for both certificated and classified staff, as applicable
under state law
 

12. Bereavement

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

220 442



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Long-Term Leaves

With Board approval, an employee may receive a leave of absence, without pay and without accruing seniority or
service credit, for a period of up to one school year. Applications for long-term leave shall be made in writing and
shall state the purpose for which leave is requested. All long-term leave agreements shall be in writing and shall state
the terms and conditions of the leave, including the conditions governing the employee's return.

At the end of a long-term leave, the employee shall be reinstated to a similar position as that employee held at the
time leave was granted, unless otherwise agreed upon.

The Board shall consider any written request by an employee to return to work prior to the expiration date of the
leave.

Administrative and Supervisory Personnel

CSBA NOTE: Leave provisions for administrative and supervisory personnel who are not subject to collective
bargaining agreements may be detailed in an individual contract, memorandum of understanding, or Board policy.
The following optional section is for use by districts that, through policy, grant the same leave provisions to
administrative and supervisory employees as are granted to other certificated or classified employees.
Certificated administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
certificated employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other certificated employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memorandums of understanding,
Board policy, administrative regulation, or law.

Classified administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
classified employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other classified employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memoranda of understanding, Board
policy, administrative regulation, or law.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

221 443



Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

222 444



4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

223 445



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4361: LeavesRegulation 4361: Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Failure to Return to Service After Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following optional regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in
accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative regulation is
inconsistent with provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would
prevail, so long as the provision is consistent with law.

Education Code 44842 addresses the return to service of a certificated employee at the beginning of the school
year following a leave of absence after April 30 of the previous school year and authorizes termination of the
employee if specified circumstances exist. As described in Item #1 below, one of the circumstances is the
employee's failure to report for duty, without good cause, after having notified the Governing Board of the intent to
remain in service. See AR 4112.1 - Contracts for provisions of Education Code 44842 pertaining to the duty of all
certificated employees to notify the district of their intention to remain in service if the district has issued a written
re-employment notice requesting employees to provide such notice.
The district may terminate the employment of a certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more
consecutive working days after April 30 of the previous school year if all of the following circumstances exist: 
(Education Code 44842)

1. The employee fails to report for duty, without good cause, at the beginning of the school year after having
notified the Governing Board of the intention to remain in service with the district in accordance with
Education Code 44842
 

2. The district had specifically notified the employee, at least five days in advance, of the time and place at which
the employee was to report to work
 

3. The employee continues to be absent from work for 20 consecutive working days, beginning from the date the
employee was to report to work.
 

4. The employee did not request or was not granted a leave of absence authorized by the Board

Use of Leaves by Classified Employees

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45200 authorizes the Board to allow classified employees to switch from vacation
leave to another type of leave as provided below. The following optional section is for use by districts that choose
to offer such an option to classified employees and may be used by districts that have adopted the merit system.
A classified employee may interrupt or terminate vacation leave in order to begin another type of paid leave without
a return to active service, as long as the employee provides adequate notice and relevant supporting information
regarding the basis for such interruption or termination.  (Education Code 45200)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

224 446



Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

225 447



4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

226 448



Regulation 4361.1: Personal Illness/Injury LeaveRegulation 4361.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2017 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following administrative regulation applies to certificated employees, including certificated
management. For classified employees, including classified management, see AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury
Leave.

The following administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be revised in accordance with
any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative regulation is inconsistent with
provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail, so long as the
provision is consistent with law. Certain portions of this administrative regulation are mandated or conditionally
mandated; see "Verification Requirements" and "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is
Exhausted/Differential Pay" sections below.

Education Code 44978 provides a minimum of 10 days of personal illness or injury leave (sick leave) per year for
certificated employees working five days a week. The Governing Board may allow additional days at its discretion; if
it does so, the following paragraph should be revised accordingly.

Labor Code 245-249 (the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act) require districts to grant a minimum of one
hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked to their employees who work for 30 days or more within a year
of their employment, including temporary and substitute employees. Pursuant to Labor Code 246, as amended by
SB 616 (Ch. 309, Statutes of 2023), a district may use a different sick leave accrual method which provides for the
accrual to be on a regular basis so that employees accrue at least 24 hours of sick leave or paid time off by the
120th calendar day of their employment or each calendar year or 12-month period, and at least 40 hours or five
days of paid sick leave by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-month period.

The provisions of Labor Code 245-249 are very broad and only district employees covered by a valid collective
bargaining agreement may be exempted from them, if the collective bargaining agreement expressly provides paid
sick leave in an amount equal to or exceeding the amount of leave required pursuant to Labor Code 246, includes
final and binding arbitration of disputes regarding the application of the paid sick days provisions, and provides
premium wage rates for all overtime hours worked and a regular hourly rate of pay of not less than 30 percent more
than the state minimum wage rate. However, even for employees covered by a valid collective bargaining
agreement, Labor Code 246.5, as amended by SB 616, extends procedural protections regarding retaliation to such
employees. Since many districts may not satisfy all of the conditions for this exemption, this administrative
regulation has been drafted to include the requirements of Labor Code 245-249. Any district which has a collective
bargaining agreement that meets all of the conditions for exemption may modify this administrative regulation
accordingly.

For additional requirements of Labor Code 245-249, see the section titled "Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families
Act Requirements" below. For paid sick leave for temporary and substitute certificated employees, see BP/AR 4121
- Temporary/Substitute Personnel. For sick leave for classified employees, see AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury
Leave.
The following administrative regulation applies to classified employees, including classified management. For
certificated employees, including certificated management, see Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 – Personal
Illness/Injury Leave.

Certificated employees employed five school days per week are entitled to 10 days leave of absence with full pay for
personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of service. Employees who work less than five school days per
week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, any part-time
employees who are entitled to less than three days of paid sick leave per year due to the amount of time worked
shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if they are eligible.  (Education Code 44978; Labor Code
245-249)

Use of Sick Leave

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-8 below reflect allowable uses of sick leave specified in law. The district may expand this list
to include any additional purposes authorized by law, authorized by the district, or included in a bargaining
agreement.
A certificated employee may use sick leave for absences as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining
agreement, including, but not limited to:

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

227 449



1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of and in the course of employment; quarantine
which results from contact in the course of employment with other persons having a contagious disease; or
temporary inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or quarantine  (Education Code
44964)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848 (Ch. 724, Statutes of 2023), the
district is prohibited from refusing to grant a request by an employee to take up to five days of reproductive
loss leave following a reproductive loss event. See AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves.

Additionally, pursuant to Title IX (20 USC 1681-1688) and implementing regulation 34 CFR 106.57, as
amended by 89 Fed. Reg. 33474, the district is required to treat pregnancy, childbirth, termination of
pregnancy, or lactation, including any related medical condition or recovery, as it would any other temporary
medical condition for job-related purposes, including leaves.

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery, as well as reproductive loss  (Education Code 44965,
44978; Government Code 12945.6)
 

3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 44981)

CSBA NOTE: Optional Item #4 below may be revised to specify a different minimum increment for sick leave.
4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour

 
5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been exhausted 

(Education Code 44984)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) (29 USC 2612) and California Family
Rights Act (CFRA) (Government Code 12945.2), a district is required to grant leave to an eligible employee to
bond with a child after the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the child. For this purpose, employees
may, but are not required to, use sick leave for any otherwise unpaid FMLA or CFRA leave.

Government Code 12945.21, as amended by AB 1756 (Ch. 478, Statutes of 2023), establishes a small
employer family leave mediation pilot program, until January 1, 2025, for very small districts that employ
between 5-19 employees to mediate disputes about the employee's right to medical or family care leave
under CFRA and/or bereavement leave.

For further information regarding parental leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical
Leave.

6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster care
placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR
825.112)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 233, any district that provides sick leave to its employees is required to
permit an employee to use sick leave, in an amount not less than the sick leave that would be accrued during
six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement, for the purposes specified in Items #7-8
below. Pursuant to Labor Code 233, designation of sick leave taken under this provision is at the sole
discretion of the employee. Labor Code 233 does not extend the maximum period of leave to which an
employee is entitled under CFRA or FMLA, regardless of whether the employee receives sick leave
compensation during that leave.

For the purpose of using sick leave to attend to the health care needs of a family member, as specified in Item
#7 below, Labor Code 245.5 includes a designated person in the definition of a "family member," in addition
to an employee's spouse, registered domestic partner, child (biological, adopted, or foster child; stepchild;
legal ward; or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis), parent (biological, adoptive, or foster
parent; stepparent; legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner;
or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child), grandparent, grandchild, or
sibling. Pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 and Labor Code 245.5, a "designated person" means any
individual related by blood or whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship.
The designated person may be identified by the employee at the time the employee requests the leave, and
the district may limit the employee to one designated person per 12-month period for family care and
medical leave. For further information regarding medical leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care
and Medical Leave.

228 450



For additional information about leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking granted in
accordance with Item #8 below, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves.

7. Need of the employee or employee's family member, including a designated person, as defined in Labor Code
245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care  (Government
Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)
 

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.7, districts are required to provide up to five days of
bereavement leave for the death of an employee's "family member," as defined, if the employee was
employed by the district for at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the bereavement leave. The
bereavement leave days do not need to be taken consecutively, but must be taken within three months of the
family member's date of death. Districts with existing policies that provide employees less than five days of
paid bereavement leave must continue to give employees the number of paid days specified in the policy, but
may provide the remainder of the five days as unpaid bereavement leave. Districts must allow employees to
use any paid vacation, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off for the balance of the unpaid
bereavement leave. For more information on bereavement leave, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal
Leaves. Districts with questions about the application of their bereavement leave policies should consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

9. Bereavement leave, as specified in Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves 
(Education Code 44985; Government Code 12945.7)

For the purposes specified in Items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of sick leave that
would be accrued during six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 233)

An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick leave has not yet been
accrued.  (Education Code 44978)

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 44978)

CSBA NOTE: The following two paragraphs are recommended and may be revised to reflect district practice. For
more information regarding wage overpayment, see BP 4151/4251/4351 - Employee Compensation.
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of termination, in
accordance with Education Code 44042.5.

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave they have accumulated.

The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous district.  (Education Code
44979, 44980)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44979-44980, certificated employees are entitled to have their
accumulated sick leave transferred with them in the circumstances specified in the following optional paragraph.
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the district after at least one
school year of employment that if the employee accepts a certificated position in another district, county office of
education, or community college district within one year, the employee may request that the district transfer any
accumulated sick leave to the new employer.  (Education Code 44979, 44980)

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a certificated employee who is a former active duty
member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the California National Guard or a federal
reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical
treatment, including mental health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more
by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days per week shall be
entitled to such leave in proportion to the time worked.  (Education Code 44978.2)

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee receives confirmation of the
submission of the disability application to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee

229 451



begins or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives the disability
rating decision, the employee shall report that information to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating
decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the
10-day maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may
change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  (Education Code
44978.2)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44978.2, the district may require proof that a leave granted under this
law is used for treatment of a military service-connected disability. The following paragraph may be revised to
reflect district practice.
The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification Requirements"
below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date that the leave
was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education
Code 44978.2)

Notification of Absence

CSBA NOTE: The following section is recommended and may be revised to reflect district practice.
An employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the need to be absent as soon as such need is known, so
that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate of the expected duration of
absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of
absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the
afternoon of the day preceding the day on which the employee intends to return to work. If the employee fails to
notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted
from the employee's pay.

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44977, employees who are absent due to illness for up to five months
after exhausting all available sick leave must receive their regular salary minus the cost of a substitute. Alternatively,
Education Code 44983 allows districts to adopt a rule that gives certificated employees 50 percent or more of their
regular salary during the period of absence. When an employee is absent for a cause other than illness, Education
Code 44977 and 44983 provide that the amount deducted from the employee's salary shall be determined
according to the rules and regulations adopted by the Board as long as such rules are not in conflict with State
Board of Education regulations.

Option 1 below is for use by districts that subtract the cost of a substitute from the absent employee's salary
pursuant to Education Code 44977. Option 2 is mandated pursuant to Education Code 44983 for districts that
choose to give certificated employees 50 percent or more of their regular salary during the period of absence, and
may be revised to specify a percentage higher than 50 percent in accordance with district practice.

If not covered in the district's bargaining agreement, the district may add provisions to this section reflecting salary
deductions for employees absent longer than five months.
OPTION 1:  (Differential pay: regular salary minus cost of substitute)

During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all
accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five
school months, the district shall deduct from the employee's regular salary for that period the actual cost of a
substitute to fill the position. If the district has made every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute
and has been unable to do so, the amount that would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from the
employee's salary.  (Education Code 44977)

An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. However, if the school
year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of the five-month period in
a subsequent school year.  (Education Code 44977)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

230 452



OPTION 2:  (50 percent of employee's regular salary)

After a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to
illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five months, the employee shall receive at
least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary during the additional period of absence.  (Education Code 44983)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is required for districts that select Option 1 (i.e., differential pay) in the
section "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay" above and should be carefully
considered by districts that select Option 2 (i.e., 50 percent pay). Education Code 44978.1 requires the
establishment of a reemployment list for employees who are unable to resume their duties after the five-month
period provided pursuant to Education Code 44977.

Although Education Code 44978.1 does not explicitly require a reemployment list for districts selecting Option 2,
such districts should be aware that failure to establish a reemployment list may subject employees to termination
following a five-month absence. Therefore, any district that selects Option 2 and currently maintains a
reemployment list for employees who are absent beyond the five-month period, or that wishes to establish such a
list, should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel before
changing its policy or practices.
If a certificated employee is not medically able to return to work after the five-month period provided pursuant to
Education Code 44977, the employee shall be placed either in another position or on a reemployment list.
Placement on the reemployment list shall be for 24 months for probationary employees or 39 months for permanent
employees and shall begin at the expiration of the five-month period. If during this time the employee becomes
medically able, the employee shall be returned to employment in a position for which the employee is credentialed
and qualified.  (Education Code 44978.1)

Parental Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following section is subject to any conflicting provision in a collective bargaining agreement that
provides greater parental leave rights.
During each school year, a certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave,
for the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any
period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code
44977.5)

CSBA NOTE: Unlike leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2, leave taken pursuant to Education Code
44977.5 does not require an employee to have at least 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous
12-month period in order to be eligible for parental leave. See AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and
Medical Leave for further information on requirements related to the California Family Rights Act.
Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 months. 
(Education Code 44977.5)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44977.5, the district is required to provide differential pay to a
certificated employee for up to 12 work weeks when the employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent due to parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.2.
Such an employee is entitled to receive differential pay, calculated in the same manner described in Option 1 or 2 in
the section "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay" above. Education Code
44977.5 requires that, regardless of the type of differential pay system used by the district, employees must receive
at least 50 percent of their regular salary for any portion of the 12-week parental leave that remains following the
exhaustion of sick leave. The following paragraph may be revised to specify a percentage higher than 50 percent in
accordance with district practice.

Since Education Code 44977.5 does not expressly require districts to provide differential pay to employees who are
eligible for parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, it is unclear whether such employees would be
entitled to differential pay. Districts should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services
or district legal counsel if they have questions regarding differential pay for such employees.
An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent

231 453



on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for
the remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 44977.5)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the parental leave taken
pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12
work weeks in a 12-month period.  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

Verification Requirements

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44978 mandates the Board to adopt regulations requiring proof of illness or injury
and prescribing the means of verification. However, Education Code 44978 provides that these regulations shall not
discriminate against evidence of treatment and the need for treatment by the practice of a well-recognized religion.
For verification requirements for employees on leave pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act, see AR
4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. The following section should be modified to reflect
district practice and any procedures which have been specified in bargaining agreements.

Labor Code 233 requires districts to allow their employees to use sick leave for the purposes specified in Labor
Code 246.5. Because Labor Code 246.5 is silent on requests for verification, and requires an employer to provide
an employee with paid sick days upon oral or written request, districts should be cautious in requiring verification
for sick leave used for the purposes specified in Labor Code 246.5 (Items #7-8 in the section "Use of Sick Leave"
above). Although a district is permitted to require verification from an employee who is a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, pursuant to Labor Code 230 and 230.1, a general insistence on verification
could be deemed a violation of Labor Code 246.5. Any district with questions regarding its authority related to
verification should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows chronic
absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or whenever available
evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the district, at
district expense, in order to receive a report on the employee's need for further leave of absence and a prognosis as
to when the employee will be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not
warrant continued absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny further
leave.

CSBA NOTE: 42 USC 2000ff-1, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, and its implementing regulations,
29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12, specify that it is unlawful for a district to request, require, or purchase employees' or their
family member's individual genetic information except in complying with the medical certification requirements for
family care and medical leave purposes or with the employee's prior written authorization. See AR
4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1635.9, any such information
received by the district must be kept confidential as specified below.
Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician shall be in
writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the employee's genetic
information. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a
confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and not be disclosed
except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended medical
treatment may be asked to submit a letter from a physician stating that the employee is able to return to duty and
stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations.

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 245-249, all employers, including those that provide paid time off to their
employees under existing policy or other law, must comply with the requirements specified in the following section.
Pursuant to Labor Code 248.5, noncompliance with the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act could result in an
enforcement action against the employer, including the imposition of civil and monetary penalties. Any district with
questions regarding the applicability of this law should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel.

232 454



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in any manner discriminate
or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the following
information:
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
 

b. The number of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick leave is prohibited
by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district
discriminates or retaliates against the employee

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 246, as amended by SB 616, districts are required to provide 40
hours or five days of paid sick leave to eligible employees.

2. Provide at least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per year and allow
eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their pay check, of
the amount of paid sick leave they have available
 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each eligible employee
for three years

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5601 Transfer of accumulated sick leave

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 44964 Power to grant leaves of absence for accident, illness, or quarantine

Ed. Code 44965 Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth

Ed. Code 44976 Transfer of leave rights when school is transferred to another district

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 44977.5 Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is
exhausted

Ed. Code 44978 Sick leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44978.1 Inability to return to duty; placement in another position or on
reemployment list

Ed. Code 44978.2 Leave for military service-connected disability

Ed. Code 44979 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to another district

Ed. Code 44980 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to a county office of education

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44983 Compensation during leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

233 455



Ed. Code 44986 Leave of absence; state disability benefits

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

29 CFR 825.100-825.702 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Discrimination on the basis of sex; effectuating Title IX

42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Veguez v. Governing Board of Long Beach Unified School District (2005)
127 Cal.App.4th 406

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4113.5 Working Remotely

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

234 456



4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4213.5 Working Remotely

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

235 457



4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4313.5 Working Remotely

4317.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

236 458



Regulation 4361.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4361.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following mandated administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining and should be
revised in accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreement. To the extent that this administrative
regulation is inconsistent with provisions of the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreement would prevail, so long as the provision is consistent with law.
Personal leaves granted to district employees shall be used as permitted in law, this administrative regulation, other
Governing Board-approved policy or district regulation, or applicable collective bargaining agreement, or as
otherwise required by law.

CSBA NOTE: Family Code 297.5 extends to registered domestic partners the same rights that are available under
state law to spouses. Thus, any reference to an employee's spouse throughout this administrative regulation also
applies to a registered domestic partner, even if not expressly stated in the applicable state statute (e.g., Education
Code, Military and Veterans Code). Districts should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel if a question arises as to leave provisions relative to an employee's domestic
partner.
For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner.  (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

Bereavement

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.7, districts are required to provide up to five days of
bereavement leave for the death of an employee's "family member," as defined, if the employee was employed by
the district for at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the bereavement leave. Education Code 44985 and
45194 grant three days, or five days if out-of-state travel is required, of paid bereavement leave for certificated and
classified employees upon the death of a member of the employee's "immediate family." Government Code
12945.7 potentially expands the length of this leave, but not necessarily the requirement to pay for this leave.
Education Code 44985 and 45194 grant bereavement leave for a member of the employee's "immediate family,"
the definition of which is more expansive than a "family member," pursuant to Government Code 12945.7. Any
bereavement leave taken under the Education Code and/or Government Code runs concurrently and not
consecutively.

The bereavement leave days do not need to be taken consecutively, but must be taken within three months of the
family member's date of death. Districts with existing policies that provide employees less than five days of paid
bereavement leave must continue to give employees the number of paid days specified in the policy, but may
provide the remainder of the five days as unpaid bereavement leave. Districts must allow employees to use any
paid vacation, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off for the balance of the unpaid bereavement leave.
Additionally, Government Code 12945.7 makes it unlawful to retaliate or discriminate against an employee for
using bereavement leave or to interfere with an employee's right to use bereavement leave.

Education Code 44985 and 45194 allow the Governing Board to expand the class of relatives listed below as
"immediate family" and enlarge the benefits provided by law. Additionally, Government Code 12945.2 includes
parent-in-law in the definition of "family member" for purposes of bereavement leave. Thus, to ensure consistency,
the definition of "immediate family" includes "parent-in-law" as permitted by law.

Districts with questions about bereavement leave should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or district legal counsel.

The following paragraphs may be revised to reflect district practice.
Employees are entitled to a leave of up to five days upon the death of any member of the employee's immediate
family, as defined in Education Code 44985 and 45194.

"Immediate family" means a parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse of
the employee, and the spouse, domestic partner, child, child-in-law, sibling, or sibling-in-law of the employee, or any

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

237 459



relative living in the immediate household of the employee.  (Education Code 44985, 45194; Government Code
12945.7)

No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary for any authorized paid bereavement leave as specified in
the collective bargaining agreement or as otherwise established by this policy, nor shall such leave be deducted from
any other leave to which the employee is entitled unless requested by the employee.  (Education Code 44985,
45194; Government Code 12945.7)

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Reproductive Loss

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848 (Ch. 724, Statutes of 2023), the district
is prohibited from refusing to grant a request by an employee who has worked at least 30 days for the district to
take up to five days of reproductive loss leave following a reproductive loss event. The district is not required to
grant more than 20 days for multiple reproductive loss events during a 12-month period.

Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848, prohibits the district from retaliating or discriminating against an
employee for taking reproductive loss leave or giving information or testimony related to such right, or to interfere
with, restrain, or deny the exercise or attempted exercise of this right.
Upon request by any employee who has experienced a reproductive loss event, defined as the day or, for a multiple-
day event, the final day of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or an unsuccessful assisted
reproduction, the district shall grant the employee up to five days of reproductive loss leave, to be taken
consecutively or non-consecutively. The employee shall take the leave within three months following the event. If
the employee is on another type of leave at the time of the reproductive loss event, or chooses to take another type
of leave immediately following a reproductive loss event, then the reproductive loss leave shall be completed within
three months of the end date of the other leave.  (Government Code 12945.6)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 848, reproductive loss leave is required to be
taken pursuant to any existing applicable leave policy of the district. However, if the district's leave policy does not
so specify, the reproductive loss leave will be unpaid, but the employee may use vacation, personal leave, accrued
and available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee. Districts that provide
paid reproductive loss leave should revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice.
Reproductive loss leave will be unpaid unless the employee chooses to use vacation, personal leave, accrued and
available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Government Code
12945.6)

Any request or inquiry or information provided by an employee related to reproductive loss leave and/or a
reproductive loss shall remain confidential, except to internal personnel or counsel as necessary or as required by
law.

Personal Necessity

CSBA NOTE: Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accumulated personal illness/injury leave (sick leave)
for reasons of personal necessity pursuant to Education Code 44981 (certificated employees) and 45207 (classified
employees). Pursuant to Education Code 44981 and 45207, a higher maximum may be set for certificated and/or
classified employees in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, or by Board resolution for classified
employees who are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Districts that have established a maximum
that is higher than seven days should modify the following paragraph accordingly.

Education Code 45207 clarifies that provisions pertaining to personal necessity leave also apply to districts that
have adopted the merit system for classified employees in accordance with Education Code 45240-45320.
Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during each school
year for reasons of personal necessity.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the
limits set by bereavement leave provisions  (Education Code 44981, 45207; Government Code 12945.7)
 

238 460



2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44981, a certificated employee may use personal necessity leave
for the serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family. The Board may extend these
provisions to classified employees under the authority granted to the Board by Education Code 45207.
Districts are cautioned to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district
legal counsel regarding any interaction of Education Code provisions with Labor Code 233, 245.5, and 246.5,
which allow the use of sick leave for the need of the employee or family member for the diagnosis, care, or
treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care and which include in the definition of "family
member" a registered domestic partner, grandparent, and sibling. See AR 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal
Illness/Injury Leave and AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave.

Pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 and Labor Code 245.5, the California Family Rights Act (CFRA)
provides an eligible employee with up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to care for a designated
person who has a serious health condition, in addition to caring for a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild,
sibling, spouse, or domestic partner. A "designated person" is defined as any individual related by blood or
whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. The employee may identify
the designated person at the time the employee requests the leave. The district may limit the employee to
taking CFRA leave to care for one designated person per 12-month period. For further information regarding
medical leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave.

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5 
(Education Code 44981; Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 246.5)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45207 provides that classified employees may use sick leave for required court
appearances, as provided in Item #4 below. Circumstances under which employees may take time off, with
pay, for court appearances are described in the section on "Leave to Perform Legal Duties" below.

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or
witness under subpoena or other order  (Education Code 45207)

CSBA NOTE: Items #5 and #6 are optional and may be deleted or modified to reflect district practice.
5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee

 
6. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. The district is prohibited from requiring employees to obtain
advance permission prior to taking leaves in certain situations. Pursuant to Education Code 44981 and 45207, the
district may not require advance permission for leaves taken by classified employees for the reasons specified in
Items #1-2 above and by certificated employees for the reasons specified in Items #1-3 above. In addition, Labor
Code 246.5 requires an employer to grant paid sick leave "upon the oral or written request of an employee."
According to the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), employers may not require advance notice when the
need for the leave was unforeseeable, as in the case of unanticipated illness or a medical emergency.

Also see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave for requirements pertaining to requests for
leaves that qualify under the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (29 USC 2601-2654) or CFRA (Government
Code 12945.1-12945.2), including provisions that allow employees to provide notice as soon as practicable when
30-day advance notice is not practicable due to lack of knowledge of the date the leave will be needed, a change in
circumstances, or a medical emergency.
Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or for which the need is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the

239 461



need for the leave as soon as practicable.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 44981 and 45207 mandate the adoption of regulations requiring proof of personal
necessity and prescribing the manner of the required proof. The following paragraph may be revised to specify the
manner of proof required by the district.
After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230 prohibits the discharge of or discrimination or retaliation against an employee for
taking time off for the activities specified in Items #1-2 below.

Pursuant to Education Code 44037, it is unlawful for the district, or personnel commission for merit districts, to (1)
adopt any rule, regulation, or policy that encourages classified employees to seek exemption from jury duty; (2)
directly or indirectly solicit or suggest to any employee that the employee seek exemption from jury duty; or (3)
discriminate against any employee with respect to assignment, employment, promotion, or in any other manner
because of the employee's service on a jury panel. However, the Board or personnel commission may establish a
rule providing that only a percentage of district staff, which shall not be less than two percent, shall be granted such
leave with pay at any one time. The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.
An employee may take time off work in order to:  (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury
 

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the district office when requesting
leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees.  (Education Code 44037)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to provide leave of absence with
pay for certificated employees called for jury duty, as authorized by Education Code 44036. Districts that do not
grant such leave should delete this paragraph.
A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional and applies only to certificated employees. Education Code
44036 allows the Board, at its discretion, to provide paid leaves for employees to appear in court as witnesses
other than as litigants or to respond to orders from another governmental jurisdiction.

The Board may grant the leave with or without pay. Districts that do not grant such leave should delete this
paragraph, or revise it to reflect district practice.
A certificated employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than as a litigant or to
respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the
connivance or misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's
regular earnings and any witness fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.2 prohibits a district from taking adverse employment action against an employee
who takes leave as described below.
An employee who is a victim of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of such victim may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial proceedings, if
the crime is any of the following:  (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)
 

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)

240 462



 
3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.2, employees may use any of the types of leave listed in the following
paragraph, unless otherwise provided by a collective bargaining agreement, although a collective bargaining
agreement cannot diminish the entitlement of an employee.
For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the district attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is advocating on
behalf of the victim.  (Labor Code 230.2)

The district shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of this
leave.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230 and 230.1 allow employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or mental injury with a threat of physical injury, and employees
whose immediate family member is deceased as the direct result of a crime to use any available vacation, personal
leave, or compensatory time off for the purposes described in Items #1-5 below, and prohibit a district from taking
adverse employment action against an employee for taking leave for any of those purposes. Pursuant to Labor Code
230.1, Items #2-5 apply to districts with 25 or more employees.
An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or
mental injury with a threat of physical injury or an employee whose immediate family member, as defined, is
deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or compensatory time off that is
otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230, the following certification may include documentation from a victim
advocate (defined as an individual, whether paid or serving as a volunteer, who provides services to victims under
the auspices or supervision of an agency or organization that has a documented record of providing services to
victims, a court, or a law enforcement or prosecution agency) or any other form of documentation that reasonably
verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not limited to, a written statement signed by the employee
or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf.
Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

241 463



3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee
was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The district shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor Code 230,
230.1)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.1, districts with 25 or more employees are required to notify district
employees of employee rights under Labor Code 230 and 230.1. The district may use a form developed by the
Labor Commissioner for this purpose, when available on DIR's website, or may develop its own form that is
substantially similar in content and clarity to the Labor Commissioner's form.
The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor Code
230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by the
district. Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon request. 
(Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.8, the following section applies to any district employing 25 or more
employees at the same location. A district with fewer than 25 employees at the same location may use or delete
this section at its discretion.

Pursuant to Labor Code 230.8, an employee who is discharged, threatened with discharge, demoted, suspended, or
otherwise discriminated against for using leave for child-related activities is entitled to reinstatement and
reimbursement for lost wages and benefits, and an employer who willfully refuses to rehire, promote, or otherwise
reinstate such an employee is subject to a civil penalty equal to three times the amount of the lost wages and
benefits.
Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to:  (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

2. Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.8 provides that the employee may use time off without pay to the extent the district
makes it available. The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
In lieu of using vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off, eligible employees may take unpaid leave for this
purpose.

242 464



If two or more parents/guardians of a child are employed at the same work site, this leave shall be allowed for the
parent/guardian who first gives notice to the district. Simultaneous absence by another parent/guardian of the child
may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Upon request by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall provide documentation from the school or
licensed child care provider that the employee engaged in permitted child-related activities on a specific date and at
a particular time.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Service on Education Boards and Committees

Upon request, a certificated employee shall be granted up to 20 school days of paid leave per school year for service
performed within the state on any education board, commission, committee, or group authorized by Education Code
44987.3 provided that all of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 44987.3)

1. The service is performed within the state
 

2. The board, commission, organization, or group informs the district in writing of the service
 

3. The board, commission, organization, or group agrees, prior to the service, to reimburse the district, upon the
district's written request, for compensation paid to the employee's substitute and for actual related
administrative costs

Employee Organization Activities

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be deleted by any district whose collective bargaining agreements
expressly provide for a paid leave of absence for participation in the activities described in this section.

Education Code 44987 and 45210 provide that any certificated or classified employee may take time off without
loss of compensation to serve as an elected officer of any local, statewide, or national employee organization of
which the employee is a member. Following the district's payment to the employee for the leave of absence, the
employee organization must reimburse the district within 10 days after receiving the district's certification of
payment of compensation to the employee. This leave of absence is in addition to the release time granted to
representatives of an employee organization pursuant to Government Code 3543.1.

Pursuant to Education Code 44987 and 45210, an employee's leave of absence to serve as an elected officer of an
employee organization is additional to any other leave available for the employee's use by law or in agreement with
the district.
Upon request, any certificated or classified employee shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of
compensation, to serve as an elected officer of a district employee organization or any statewide or national
employee organization with which the employee organization is affiliated. Such leave shall be in addition to any other
leave to which the employee may be entitled by other laws or a memorandum of understanding or collective
bargaining agreement.  (Education Code 44987, 45210)

The leave shall include, but is not limited to, absence for purposes of attending periodic, stated, special, or regular
meetings of the body of the organization on which the employee serves as an officer.  (Education Code 44987,
45210)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45210 requires districts to grant a paid leave of absence to a reasonable number of
classified employees serving as unelected members of the employee organization or a statewide or national public
employee organization when the employee attends "important organizational activities authorized by the public
employee organization." Compensation must include the required retirement fund contributions. The employee will
continue to earn full service credit during the leave and must pay member contributions as specified. Education
Code 45210 also requires that an employee organization provide reasonable notification to the district when
requesting a leave of absence without loss of compensation for an employee.
Upon request of an employee organization in the district or its state or national affiliate, a reasonable number of
unelected classified employees shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of compensation for the purpose of
attending important organizational activities authorized by the employee organization. The employee organization
shall provide reasonable notification to the Superintendent or designee when requesting a leave of absence for
employees for this purpose.  (Education Code 45210)

243 465



When leave is granted for any of the above purposes, the employee organization shall reimburse the district within
10 days after receiving the district's certification of payment of compensation to the employee.  (Education Code
44987, 45210)

Religious Leave

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by any district that chooses to grant religious leave and may
be revised to reflect district practice. A district that does not grant such leave should delete this section. However,
the district should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel
before denying a request for religious leave since the Constitution requires districts to provide "reasonable
accommodation" to employee religious practices.
The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three days of leave per year for religious purposes,
provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures, the
neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship on the district.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph reflects the California Supreme Court's interpretation of Article 1,
Section 8 of the California Constitution as stated in Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence.
The Superintendent or designee shall deduct the cost of hiring a substitute, when required, from the wages of the
employee who takes religious leave.

No employee shall be discriminated against for using this leave or any additional days of unpaid leave granted for
religious observances at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

CSBA NOTE: Military and Veterans Code 395.10 requires any district with 25 or more employees to allow up to 10
days of unpaid leave to an employee whose spouse is on leave from military deployment. A district with fewer than
25 employees may use the following section at its discretion. In addition, 29 USC 2612 authorizes an employee to
take up to 26 work weeks of unpaid military caregiver leave or up to 12 weeks of "exigency" leave during a single
12-month period, as determined by the district; see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave.
An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 230.3 prohibits a district from discharging or discriminating against an employee who
takes time off to perform emergency duty as specified below. Labor Code 230.3 defines emergency rescue
personnel as a member of a federal, state, local, or private fire department or agency, as well as a sheriff or police
department.
An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 230.4, a district with 50 or more employees must grant an employee who is a
volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel a leave of absence for up to 14 days per
calendar year for training purposes. A district with fewer than 50 employees may use or delete this paragraph at its
discretion.
Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 1500-1507 require a district with more than 15 employees to provide at least 10 days of

244 466



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

unpaid leave per year, beyond any leave otherwise available to employees, to employees who volunteer with the
Civil Air Patrol and are directed to respond to an emergency operational mission, as provided below. Labor Code
1503 specifies that a district may not require an employee to first exhaust all accrued vacation, personal, sick, or
any other available leave in order to use Civil Air Patrol leave.

If the district chooses to offer more than 10 days of such leave per year or to provide paid leave, it should modify
the following paragraph accordingly. A district with 15 or fewer employees may use or delete this section at its
discretion.
An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the district for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave. Such
leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental entity
authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the district as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave. The
Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the eligibility
of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required certification. 
(Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

245 467



Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

246 468



4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4340 Bargaining Units

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

247 469



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5113: Absences And ExcusesPolicy 5113: Absences And Excuses Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/1999 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code
48200, children ages 6-18 years are subject to compulsory, full-time education, except when otherwise exempted.

Verification of absences is necessary for purposes of enforcement of compulsory education laws and for the
determination of whether a student is truant. Pursuant to Education Code 48260, students with a valid excused
absence are not truant.

For strategies to reduce chronic absences, see BP/AR 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy and CSBA's
governance brief, "Seize the Data: Using Chronic Absence Data to Drive Student Engagement." For information
about the impact of absences on a student's grades, see BP 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement.
The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays an important role in student achievement. The Board
shall work with parents/guardians and students to ensure their compliance with all state attendance laws and may
use appropriate legal means to correct problems of chronic absence or truancy.

In accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation, absence from school shall be excused only for
health reasons, family emergencies, and justifiable personal reasons as specified in Education Code 48205, and work
in the entertainment or allied industry as permitted pursuant to Education Code 48225.5.

CSBA NOTE: When a student has an excused absence pursuant to Education Code 48205 or 48225.5, teachers are
required to provide equivalent assignments and tests, as described below. While teachers are not required to do so
for other excused absences, the following language extends this requirement to all excused absences for fairness,
and to maintain student engagement in the educational program. Districts may modify the following paragraph to
reflect that it only applies to excused absences pursuant to Education Code 48205 and 48225.5.
When a student's absence from school is excused, the student's teacher shall determine identical or reasonably
equivalent assignments and tests to those missed during the absence which the student shall be permitted to
complete for full credit within a reasonable amount of time as determined by the teacher.  (Education Code 48205,
48225.5)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 46014, districts, with the written
consent of the student's parent/guardian, may excuse a student from school in order to participate in religious
exercises or instruction. In order for the district to receive average daily attendance funding for such absences, the
Governing Board is required to first adopt a resolution permitting an excused absence for this purpose. The Board is
also mandated to adopt regulations governing students' attendance at such exercises or instruction and the
reporting of these absences; see the accompanying administrative regulation.
Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school property may be
considered excused subject to law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 46014)

Inasmuch as school attendance and class participation are integral to students' learning experiences,
parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical and other appointments during non-school
hours.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 46010.1 and the California Supreme Court in American Academy of
Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al., minor students do not need parent/guardian consent to obtain confidential medical
services, and schools are authorized to excuse a student from school to obtain such services.
Students shall not be absent from school without their parents/guardians' knowledge or consent, except in cases of
medical emergency or, as authorized pursuant to Education Code 46010.1, for a confidential medical appointment.

CSBA NOTE: 5 CCR 421 requires the Board to approve reasonable methods for verifying student absences due to
illness or quarantine. See the accompanying administrative regulation for examples of methods of verification.
The Board shall, by resolution entered into its minutes, approve reasonable methods that may be used to verify
student absences due to illness or quarantine.  (5 CCR 421)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

248 470



State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 306 Explanation of absence

5 CCR 420-424 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

Ed. Code 1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance

Ed. Code 37201 School month

Ed. Code 37223 Weekend classes

Ed. Code 41601 Reports of average daily attendance

Ed. Code 42238-42250.1 Apportionments

Ed. Code 46000 Attendance records

Ed. Code 46010-46015 Absences

Ed. Code 46110-46120 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools

Ed. Code 46140-46148 Attendance in junior high and high schools

Ed. Code 48200-48208 Children ages 6-18; compulsory full-time attendance

Ed. Code 48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance

Ed. Code 48225.5 Work permit; excused absence; entertainment or allied industries;
participation in not-for-profit performing arts organization

Ed. Code 48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

Ed. Code 48260-48273 Truants

Ed. Code 48292 Filing complaint against parent

Ed. Code 48320-48324 School attendance review boards

Ed. Code 48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade

Ed. Code 49701 Provisions of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunities for
Military Children

Elec. Code 12302 Student participation on precinct boards

Fam. Code 6920-6930 Consent by minor for medical treatment

W&I Code 11253.5 Compulsory school attendance; eligibility for aid

W&I Code 601-601.5 Habitually truant minors

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 244 (1983)

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 168 (2004)

Court Decision American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307

CSBA Publication Seize the Data: Using Chronic Absence Data to Drive Student Engagement,
March 2024

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

249 471



3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board

5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131 Conduct

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.33 Head Lice

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5147 Dropout Prevention

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

250 472



6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6177 Summer Learning Programs

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6185 Community Day School

6185 Community Day School

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

251 473



Regulation 5113: Absences And ExcusesRegulation 5113: Absences And Excuses Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2011 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Excused Absences

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-17 below reflect absences that are authorized by law to be considered as excused absences
for purposes of enforcing the compulsory state attendance laws. Pursuant to Education Code 48205, absences
specified in Items #1-13, although excused for purposes of enforcing compulsory state attendance laws, are
considered absences in computing average daily attendance and do not generate state apportionment payments.
Subject to any applicable limitation, condition, or other requirement specified in law, a student's absence shall be
excused for any of the following reasons:

1. Personal illness, including absence for the benefit of the student's mental or behavioral health  (Education Code
48205)
 

2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer  (Education Code 48205)
 

3. Medical, dental, optometrical, or chiropractic service or appointment  (Education Code 48205)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48205, as amended by SB 350 (Ch. 601, Statutes of 2023), the
district is required to excuse a student's absence for up to five days when the absence is for the purpose of
attending funeral services or grieving the death of the student's immediate family or of another person in
close association with the student, as specified in Item #4 below.

4. Attendance at funeral services for or grieving the death of a member of the student's immediate family or, as
determined by the student's parent/guardian, a person so closely associated with the student as to be
considered the student's immediate family  (Education Code 48205)

A student may be excused for this reason for up to five days for each incident.  (Education Code 48205)
 

5. Jury duty in the manner provided for by law  (Education Code 48205)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48205, absence due to the illness or medical appointment of a
student's child is counted as an excused absence, and the district is prohibited from requiring a physician's
note for such absences. See the section "Method of Verification" below.

6. Illness or medical appointment of a child to whom the student is the custodial parent  (Education Code 48205)
 

7. Upon advance written request by the parent/guardian and the approval of the principal or designee, justifiable
personal reasons including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 48205)
 

a. Attendance or appearance in court
 

b. Attendance at a funeral service
 

c. Observance of a religious holiday or ceremony

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48205, as amended by AB 1503 (Ch. 846, Statutes of 2023),
student attendance at a religious retreat may be excused for no more than one school day each
semester.

d. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than one school day each semester
 

e. Attendance at an employment conference
 

f. Attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process offered by a nonprofit
organization
 

8. Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12302 (Education Code
48205)
 

9. To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the uniformed services, as

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

252 474



defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for deployment to a combat zone or a combat
support position or is on leave from or has immediately returned from such deployment  (Education Code
48205)

Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the Superintendent or
designee.  (Education Code 48205)
 

10. Attendance at the student's naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen (Education Code
48205)
 

11. Participation in a cultural ceremony or event which relates to the habits, practices, beliefs, and traditions of a
certain group of people  (Education Code 48205)
 

12. For a middle school or high school student, engagement in a civic or political event, provided that the student
notifies the school ahead of the absence  (Education Code 48205)
 
Unless otherwise permitted by the Superintendent or designee, students shall be limited to one such school
day-long absence each school year  (Education Code 48205)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48205, as amended by SB 350, a student's absence is required to
be excused for up to three days when the absence is for the purpose of accessing victim or grief support
services or for participating in safety planning as it relates to the death of a student's immediate family
member, or of another person in close association with the student, as specified in Item #13 below.

13. When a student's immediate family member or, as determined by the student's parent/guardian, a person so
closely associated with the student as to be considered the student's immediate family has died:  (Education
Code 48205)
 

a.     To access services from a victim services organization or agency
 

b.     To access grief support services
 

c.    To participate in safety planning or take other actions, including, but not limited to, temporary or
permanent relocation, to increase the safety of the student, an immediate family member of the student,
or a person determined by the student's parent/guardian to be in such close association with the student
as to be considered immediate family.

Such absence shall be excused for not more than three days for each incident.  (Education Code 48205)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 46014, with the written consent of the student's
parent/guardian, districts may excuse a student from school in order to participate in religious exercises
or instruction.

In order for the district to receive average daily attendance funding for such absences, the Governing
Board must first adopt a resolution permitting an excused absence for this purpose and regulations
governing students' attendance at religious exercises or instruction and the reporting of such absences.
These regulations should include all of Item #14 below and may be expanded to reflect district practice.

The student must also attend school for at least the minimum school day and not be absent for this
purpose on more than four days per school month. Pursuant to Education Code 46112, 46113, 46117,
and 46141, unless otherwise provided by law, the minimum school day is generally 180 minutes for
kindergarten, 230 minutes for grades 1-3, and 240 minutes for grades 4-12. For further information,
see AR 6112 - School Day.

14. Participation in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at the student's place of
worship or other suitable place away from school property as designated by the religious group, church, or
denomination  (Education Code 46014)

Absence for student participation in religious exercises or instruction shall not be considered an absence for
the purpose of computing average daily attendance if the student attends at least the minimum school day as
specified in Administrative Regulation 6112 - School Day, and is not excused from school for this purpose on
more than four days each school month.  (Education Code 46014)
 

253 475



15. For a student who holds a work permit authorizing work in the entertainment or allied industries for a period
of not more than five consecutive days, work in such industry  (Education Code 48225.5)

For this purpose, student absence shall be excused for a maximum of up to five absences each school year. 
(Education Code 48225.5)"
 

16. Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public school audience 
(Education Code 48225.5)

A student may be excused for up to five such absences each school year provided that the student's
parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the school.  (Education Code 48225.5)
 

17. Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the student's specific
circumstances  (Education Code 48205, 48260)

For the purpose of the absences described above, immediate family means the student's parent/guardian, sibling,
grandparent, or any other relative living in the student's household.  (Education Code 48205)

Method of Verification

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48205 prohibits the district from requiring a physician's note for absences due to the
illness or medical appointment of the student's child. However, the district is authorized to require verification of
other absences. The following section should be revised to reflect district-adopted methods of verification and to
specify employee(s) assigned to verify absences.

5 CCR 420-421 provide guidelines for verifying absences due to illness; quarantine; medical, dental, or eye
appointments; or attendance at a funeral service of a member of a student's immediate family. 5 CCR 421
authorizes a student's absence to be verified by a school or public health nurse, attendance supervisor, physician,
principal, teacher, or any other qualified district employee assigned to make such verification.
Student absence to care for a child for whom the student is the custodial parent shall not require a physician's note. 
(Education Code 48205)

For other absences, the student shall, upon returning to school following the absence, present a satisfactory
explanation, either in person or by written note, verifying the reason for the absence. Absences shall be verified by
the student's parent/guardian, other person having charge or control of the student, or the student if age 18 or
older.  (Education Code 46012; 5 CCR 306)

When an absence is planned, the principal or designee shall be notified prior to the date of the absence when
possible.

The following methods may be used to verify student absences:

1. Written, digital, or audio message from parent/guardian or parent representative
 

2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's parent/guardian or
parent representative

The employee shall subsequently record the following:
 

a. Name of student
 

b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative
 

c. Name of verifying employee
 

d. Date(s) of absence
 

e. Reason for absence
 

3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method which establishes the
fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated

254 476



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

The employee shall document the verification and include the information specified in Item #2 above.
 

4. Physician's verification

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph provides a means of verifying an excuse for confidential
medical services without inquiring into the nature of the medical services.

a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such appointments, district staff
shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may request a note from the medical office to
confirm the time of the appointment

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph provides that, after absences for illness on multiple
occasions, the student may be required to bring a note from a physician to verify the illness. If a student
does not have access to medical services in order to obtain such verification, the district may assist the
student in obtaining the medical consultation if it is required.

b. If a student shows a pattern of chronic absenteeism due to illness, district staff may require physician
verification of any further student absences

Parental Notifications

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall:

CSBA NOTE: The requirement in Item #1 below is for use by any district whose board has adopted a resolution
permitting an excused absence for religious instruction or exercises. See the accompanying Board policy and Item
#14 in the section "Excused Absences" above.

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to participate in religious
exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places of worship, or at other suitable places
away from school property designated by a religious group, church, or denomination  (Education Code 46014,
48980)

CSBA NOTE: The requirement in Item #2 applies to all districts. Districts that maintain only elementary
grades should delete the reference to students in grades 7-12.

2. Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students enrolled in the district that school
authorities may excuse any student from school to obtain confidential medical services without the consent of
the student's parent/guardian  (Education Code 46010.1)
 

3. Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have a grade reduced or lose academic credit for any excused
absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be provided are satisfactorily completed within a
reasonable period of time  (Education Code 48980)

Such notice shall include the full text of Education Code 48205.  (Education Code 48980)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 306 Explanation of absence

5 CCR 420-424 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

Ed. Code 1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance

Ed. Code 37201 School month

Ed. Code 37223 Weekend classes

Ed. Code 41601 Reports of average daily attendance

Ed. Code 42238-42250.1 Apportionments

Ed. Code 46000 Attendance records

255 477



Ed. Code 46010-46015 Absences

Ed. Code 46110-46120 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools

Ed. Code 46140-46148 Attendance in junior high and high schools

Ed. Code 48200-48208 Children ages 6-18; compulsory full-time attendance

Ed. Code 48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance

Ed. Code 48225.5 Work permit; excused absence; entertainment or allied industries;
participation in not-for-profit performing arts organization

Ed. Code 48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

Ed. Code 48260-48273 Truants

Ed. Code 48292 Filing complaint against parent

Ed. Code 48320-48324 School attendance review boards

Ed. Code 48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade

Ed. Code 49701 Provisions of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunities for
Military Children

Elec. Code 12302 Student participation on precinct boards

Fam. Code 6920-6930 Consent by minor for medical treatment

W&I Code 11253.5 Compulsory school attendance; eligibility for aid

W&I Code 601-601.5 Habitually truant minors

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 244 (1983)

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 168 (2004)

Court Decision American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307

CSBA Publication Seize the Data: Using Chronic Absence Data to Drive Student Engagement,
March 2024

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

256 478



5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board

5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131 Conduct

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.33 Head Lice

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5147 Dropout Prevention

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

257 479



6177 Summer Learning Programs

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6185 Community Day School

6185 Community Day School

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

258 480



Policy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian NotificationsPolicy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2007 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication from the district and/or school to families to keep
families informed regarding educational programs, school operations, and the legal rights of students and
parents/guardians. The Superintendent or designee shall send parents/guardians all notifications required by law and
any other notifications the Superintendent or designee believes will promote familial understanding and involvement.

Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 48980 shall be sent at
the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular mail, in electronic form when so requested by
the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used by the district for written communication with
parents/guardians.  (Education Code 48981)

No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any particular student unless the
student's parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual notification or other separate special
notification. Such notice shall state the activity that will be undertaken and the approximate date on which the
activity will occur.  (Education Code 48983-48984)

The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return it to the school or,
if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a signed acknowledgment of receipt of
the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is not required. Any signature is an acknowledgment of
receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate in any particular program has been given
or withheld.  (Education Code 48982)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, the student's parents/guardians shall be given
all required parental notifications at that time.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph applies to notices required for certain federal programs, including, but not
necessarily limited to, Title I notices pursuant to 20 USC 6311 and 6312, notices regarding the rights of
parents/guardians of students with disabilities pursuant to 34 CFR 300.503 and 300.504, and notices of the
educational rights of students experiencing homelessness pursuant to 42 USC 11432. The following paragraph may
be revised to reflect district practice.
Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to state and federal antidiscrimination laws, including the Americans with Disabilities Act (42
USC 12101; 28 CFR 35) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794), auxiliary aides and
services must be provided to qualified individuals with disabilities to enable those individuals to effectively
communicate and participate in public programs, services, or activities. For example, for the Medi-Cal Program, the
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), the state agency that administers the program, has issued Policy and
Procedure Letters No. 21-017R and No. 23-004, which require districts to develop a plan to meet these alternative
format requirements. For more information on the Medi-Cal Program, see AR 5141.6 - School Health Services.
When necessary, the district shall provide notifications to qualified individuals with disabilities in alternative formats,
such as braille, large front, or audio recordings, to enable such individuals to effectively participate in any program,
service, or activity, as required by law.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 48985, when 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a school speak a
single primary language other than English, all notices and reports sent to the parents/guardians of these students
must also be written in the primary language and may be answered by the parent/guardian in either language.
Education Code 48985 requires the California Department of Education (CDE) to notify districts, by August 1 of
each year, of the schools and the languages for which the translation of notices is required based on census data
submitted to the CDE in the preceding fiscal year.
Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary language other than
English, as determined from the California Department of Education census data collected pursuant to Education
Code 52164, all notices sent to the parent/guardian of any such student shall, in addition to being written in English,
be written in the primary language, and may be responded to either in English or the primary language.  (Education
Code 48981, 48985)

Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the district's printed

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

259 481



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

notifications for any reason, the employee shall inform the principal or designee, who shall work with the
parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2950-2951 Hearing tests

17 CCR 6000-6075 School attendance immunization requirements

22 CCR 101218.1 Child care licensing; parent/guardian rights

5 CCR 11303 Reclassification of English learners

5 CCR 11511.5 English language proficiency assessment; test results

5 CCR 11523 Notice of proficiency examinations

5 CCR 17782 Notice of Action; application for services

5 CCR 17783 Notice of Action; recipient of services

5 CCR 18066 Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences

5 CCR 18094-18095 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 18114 Notice of delinquent fees; child care services

5 CCR 18118-18119 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 3052 Behavioral intervention

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal

5 CCR 4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy

5 CCR 852 Exemptions from state assessments

5 CCR 863 Reports of state assessment results

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17288 Building standards for university campuses

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 221.5 Equal opportunity

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 262.3 Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of
civil remedies

Ed. Code 310 Language acquisition programs

Ed. Code 313 Reclassification of English learners; parental consultation

Ed. Code 313.2 Long-term English learner; notification

Ed. Code 32221.5 Insurance for athletic team members

Ed. Code 32255-32255.6 Student's right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals

Ed. Code 32390 Voluntary program for fingerprinting students

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35160.5 Extracurricular and cocurricular activities

Ed. Code 35178.4 Notice of accreditation status

260 482



Ed. Code 35182.5 Advertising in the classroom

Ed. Code 35183 School dress code; uniforms

Ed. Code 35186 Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities

Ed. Code 35211 Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability

Ed. Code 35256 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35258 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35291 Rules for student discipline

Ed. Code 35292.6 School maintenance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 39831.5 School bus rider rules and information

Ed. Code 41329 School closures and consolidation

Ed. Code 440 English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language
development

Ed. Code 44050 Employee code of conduct; interaction with students

Ed. Code 44808.5 Permission to leave school grounds

Ed. Code 46010.1 Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services

Ed. Code 46014 Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting pupils

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission

Ed. Code 48070.5 Promotion and retention of students

Ed. Code 48204 Residency requirements

Ed. Code 48205 Absence for personal reasons

Ed. Code 48206.3 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions

Ed. Code 48207-48208 Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals

Ed. Code 48213 Prior notice of exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48216 Immunization and exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48260.5 Notice regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48262 Need for parent conference regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48263 Referral to school attendance review board or probation department

Ed. Code 48301 Interdistrict transfers

Ed. Code 48412 Certificate of proficiency

Ed. Code 48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education

Ed. Code 48432.5 Involuntary transfers of students

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

Ed. Code 48900.1 Parental attendance required after suspension

Ed. Code 48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

Ed. Code 48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts

Ed. Code 48906 Notification of release of student to peace officer

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

261 483



Ed. Code 48911 Notification in case of suspension

Ed. Code 48911.1 Assignment to supervised suspension classroom

Ed. Code 48912 Closed sessions; consideration of suspension

Ed. Code 48915.1 Expelled students; enrollment in another district

Ed. Code 48916 Readmission procedures

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 48929 Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48980.3 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 48980.4 Notice regarding full human papillomavirus (HPV) immunization

Ed. Code 48981 Time and means of notification

Ed. Code 48982 Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice

Ed. Code 48983 Contents of notice

Ed. Code 48984 Activities prohibited unless notice given

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drug use

Ed. Code 48986 Safe storage of firearms

Ed. Code 48987 Child abuse information

Ed. Code 49013 Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49063 Notification of parental rights

Ed. Code 49067 Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course

Ed. Code 49068 Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record

Ed. Code 49069.7 Absolute right to access

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging content of student record

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 49073.6 Student records; social media

Ed. Code 49076 Access to student records

Ed. Code 49077 Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order

Ed. Code 49392 Threats of homicide at school

Ed. Code 49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunizations

Ed. Code 49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student

Ed. Code 49451 Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent

Ed. Code 49452.5 Screening for scoliosis

Ed. Code 49452.6 Type 1 diabetes informational materials

Ed. Code 49452.7 Information on type 2 diabetes

Ed. Code 49452.8 Oral health assessment

Ed. Code 49455.5 Eye examination for purpose of eyeglasses

Ed. Code 49456 Results of vision or hearing test

Ed. Code 49471-49472 Insurance

Ed. Code 49475 Student athletes; concussions and head injuries

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

262 484



Ed. Code 49476 Student athletes; opioid fact sheet

Ed. Code 49480 Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970

Ed. Code 51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.2 Course credits

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.31 Graduation from high school; exemption for eligible students with special
needs

Ed. Code 51225.8 Completion and submission of FAFSA and CADAA

Ed. Code 51229 Course of study for grades 7-12

Ed. Code 51513 Personal beliefs; privacy

Ed. Code 51749.5 Independent study

Ed. Code 51938 HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction

Ed. Code 52062 Local control and accountability plans and the statewide system of support

Ed. Code 52164 Language census

Ed. Code 52164.1 Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of
language skills

Ed. Code 52164.3 Reassessment of English learners; notification of results

Ed. Code 52242 Advanced placement examination fees

Ed. Code 54444.2 Migrant education programs; parent involvement

Ed. Code 56301 Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights

Ed. Code 56321 Special education: proposed assessment plan

Ed. Code 56321.5-56321.6 Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education

Ed. Code 56329 Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment

Ed. Code 56341.1 Development of individualized education program; right to audio record
meeting

Ed. Code 56341.5 Individualized education program team meetings

Ed. Code 56343.5 Individualized education program meetings

Ed. Code 56366.45 Change in status of a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency

Ed. Code 56521.1 Behavioral intervention

Ed. Code 58501 Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment

Ed. Code 60615 Exemption from state assessment

Ed. Code 60641 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

Ed. Code 60900.5 Use of CalPADS data

Ed. Code 69432.9 Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program

Ed. Code 8212 Complaints related to preschool health and safety issues

Ed. Code 8483 Before/after school program; enrollment priorities

Ed. Code 8489 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

Ed. Code 8489.1 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco use prevention

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

263 485



H&S Code 104855 Availability of topical fluoride treatment

H&S Code 116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy

H&S Code 120365-120375 Immunizations

H&S Code 120440 Sharing immunization information

H&S Code 124100-124105 Health screening and immunizations

H&S Code 1596.8555 Administration of child day care licensing; posting license

H&S Code 1596.857 Right to enter child care facility

H&S Code 1597.16 Licensed child care centers; lead testing

Pen. Code 626.81 Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus

Pen. Code 627.5 Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration

W&I Code 10228 Child care providers; posting of rates, discounts, and scholarships

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1232h Privacy rights

20 USC 1415 Procedural safeguards

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 6312 Local educational agency plan

20 USC 6318 Parent and family engagement

20 USC 7704 Impact Aid; policies and procedures related to children residing on Indian
lands

20 USC 7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students

34 CFR 104.32 District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education

34 CFR 104.36 Procedural safeguards

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 200.48 Teacher qualifications

34 CFR 222.94 Impact Aid; district responsibilities

34 CFR 300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation

34 CFR 300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings

34 CFR 300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability

34 CFR 300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of
student with disability

34 CFR 300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities

34 CFR 300.508 Due process complaint

34 CFR 300.530 Discipline procedures

34 CFR 99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information

34 CFR 99.34 Student records; disclosure to other educational agencies

34 CFR 99.37 Disclosure of directory information

34 CFR 99.7 Student records; annual notification

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

264 486



40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

42 USC 1758 Child nutrition programs

7 CFR 245.5 Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals

7 CFR 245.6a Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and
Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3231 Impact Aid

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3312 Contracts

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

265 487



3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5030 Student Wellness

5111 Admission

5111 Admission

5111.1 District Residency

5111.1 District Residency

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment

5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment

5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5119 Students Expelled From Other Districts

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

266 488



5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5131.61 Drug Testing

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.32 Health Screening For School Entry

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5142.1 Identification And Reporting Of Missing Children

5143 Insurance

5143 Insurance

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sexual Harassment

5145.7 Sexual Harassment

5145.8 Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

267 489



5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2-E(1) Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.4 Behavioral Interventions For Special Education Students

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.8 Research

6162.8 Research

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

268 490



6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.3 Education For Juvenile Court School Students

6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

9310 Board Policies

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

269 491



Exhibit 5145.6-E(1): Parent/Guardian NotificationsExhibit 5145.6-E(1): Parent/Guardian Notifications Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Cautionary Notice: Government Code 17581.5 releases districts from the obligation to perform specified
mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year. The Budget Act
of 2023 (SB 101, Ch. 12, Statutes of 2023) extends the suspension of these requirements through the 2023-24
fiscal year. As a result, certain provisions of the following Exhibit related to scoliosis screening and bus safety
instruction may be suspended.

CSBA NOTE: The following exhibit lists notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to parents/guardians.
See the referenced Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about related
program and notice requirements. For example, see AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for the contents of
the annual notice regarding uniform complaint procedures (UCP) as mandated by 5 CCR 4622.

The exhibit does not include other notices that are recommended throughout CSBA's sample policy manual, but are
not required by law. The district may revise the exhibit to reflect additional notifications provided by the district.
This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to parents/guardians.
Other notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  Annually

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 222.5; 46015
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5146
Subject:  Rights and options for pregnant and parenting students

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 234.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0410
Subject:  Right to a free public  education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year or upon enrollment
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 310
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6142.2, AR 6174
Subject:  Information on the district's language acquisition program

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17611.5, 17612, 48980.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514.2
Subject:  Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, internet address to access information, and, if district uses
certain pesticides, integrated pest management plan

When to Notify:  Annually by February 1
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35256, 35258
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0510
Subject:  School Accountability Report Card provided

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35291, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144, AR 5144.1
Subject:  District and site discipline rules

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44050
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4119.21, BP 4219.21, BP 4319.21
Subject:  Code of conduct addressing employee interactions with students

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46010.1

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

270 492



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113
Subject:  Absence for confidential medical services

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if district has adopted policy on involuntary transfer of students
convicted of certain crimes when victim is enrolled at same school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48929, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5116.2
Subject:  District policy authorizing transfer

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6111
Subject:  Schedule of minimum days and student-free staff development days

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 231.5; 5 CCR 4917; 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5145.7
Subject:  Copy of sexual harassment policy as related to students; contact information for Title IX coordinator

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 32255-32255.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5145.8
Subject:  Right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 35160.5, 46600-46611, 48204, 48301
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5111.1, AR 5116.1, AR 5117
Subject:  All statutory attendance options, available local attendance options, options for meeting residency, form for
changing attendance, appeals process

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if Governing Board allows such absence
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 46014
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113
Subject:  Absence for religious exercise or purposes

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 48205
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113, BP 6154
Subject:  Excused absences; grade/credit cannot be reduced due to excused absence if work or test has been
completed; full text of Education Code 48205

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 48206.3, 48207, 48208
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6183
Subject:  Availability of home/hospital instruction for students with temporary disabilities

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49403
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5141.31
Subject:  School immunization program

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49423, 49480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.21
Subject:  Administration of prescribed medication

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49451; 20 USC 1232h
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject:  Right to refuse consent to physical examination

271 493



When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49471, 49472
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5143
Subject:  Availability of insurance

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year in grades 9-12, if district allows career technical education (CTE)
course to satisfy graduation requirement
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 51225.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6146.1
Subject:  How district established graduation requirements do or do not satisfy college entrance A-G course criteria;
district's CTE courses that satisfy A-G course criteria

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48985.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject: The dangers of using synthetic drugs not prescribed by a physician and possibility that such drugs can be
found in counterfeit pills

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48986, 49392
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 0450
Subject: Information and laws related to the safe storage of firearms and California's child access prevention laws

When to Notify: Annually (not otherwise specified)
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3, BP 0460, BP 3260
Subject:  Uniform complaint procedures, available appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student
fees and local control and accountability plan

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125, AR 5125.3
Subject:  Challenge, review and expunging of records

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063, 49069; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125
Subject:  Student records: inspect and review, access, types, location, persons responsible, location of log, access
criteria, cost of copies, amendment requests, criteria for defining school officials and to determine legitimate
educational interest, categories defined as directory information, disclosures, right to file complaint with U.S.
Department of Education, course prospectus availability

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063, 49073; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.37
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.1
Subject:  Release of directory information

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173, AR 6173.1, AR 6173.3, AR 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory and newcomer students

When to Notify:  Two or more times during the school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49428
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5141.5
Subject:  How to access mental health services at school and/or in the community

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year in schools serving students in grades 6-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49428.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5141.5

272 494



Subject: Distribution of digitized mental health poster online

When to Notify:  Annually or upon enrollment in elementary school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject: Availability of type 1 diabetes informational materials developed by the California Department of Education

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49520, 48980, 42 USC 1758, 7 CFR 245.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3553
Subject:  Eligibility and application process for free and reduced price meals

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51513, 20 USC 1232h
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022,  BP 6162.8
Subject:  Notice of privacy policy and dates of activities re: survey, health examination, or collection of personal
information for marketing; process to opt out of such activities; inspection rights and procedures

When to Notify:  When developing the local control and accountability plan and during the annual update of the
local control and accountability plan (LCAP)
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 52062
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0460
Subject: Opportunity to submit written comments regarding specific actions and expenditures in proposed plan or
annual update

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56301
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6164.4
Subject:  Parental rights re: special education identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning,
implementation and review, and procedures for initiating a referral for assessment

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 58501, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6181
Subject:  Alternative schools

When/Whom to Notify: Annually (not otherwise specified)
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 60615, 5 CCR 852
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6162.51
Subject: Student's participation in state assessments; option to request exemption from testing

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 60900.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject:  Use of CalPADS data as specified in Education Code 60900.5

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104855
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.6
Subject:  Availability of dental fluoride treatment; opportunity to accept or deny treatment

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if district receives Title I funds
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312; 34 CFR 200.48
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4112.2, AR 4222
Subject:  Right to request information re: professional qualifications of child's teacher and paraprofessional

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 104.8, 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0410, BP 6178
Subject:  Nondiscrimination

273 495



When to Notify: Beginning of each school year to parent, teacher, and employee organizations or, in their absence,
individuals
Education or Other Legal Code:  40 CFR 763.84, 40 CFR 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514
Subject:  Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA FNS Instructions 113-1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 3555
Subject:  Information related to the district's food service programs

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA SP-46-2016
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3551
Subject:  District policy on meal payments

II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career

When to Notify:  Beginning in grade 7, at least once prior to course selection and career counseling
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 221.5, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6164.2
Subject:  Course selection and career counseling

When to Notify:  Upon a student's enrollment
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 310
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6142.2, AR 6174
Subject:  Information on the district's language acquisition programs

When to Notify:  When child first enrolls in a public school, if the school offers a fingerprinting program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 32390, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5142.1
Subject:  Fingerprinting program

When/Whom to Notify: When participating in driver training courses under the jurisdiction of the district
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35211
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Civil liability, insurance coverage

When to Notify:  Upon registration in K-6, if students have not previously been transported
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 39831.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3543
Subject:  School bus safety rules and information, list of stops, rules of conduct, red light crossing instructions, bus
danger zones, walking to and from stops

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year for high school students, if high school is open campus
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44808.5, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5112.5
Subject:  Open campus

When to Notify:  When admitted or advancing to sixth grade
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980.4
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject:  A statement regarding the state's public policy, advising that the student adhere to current immunization
guidelines regarding full human papillomavirus (HPV) immunization before admission or advancement to the eighth
grade level

When to Notify:  Prior to providing an eye examination
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject: Upcoming eye examinations at school site, including form on which parent/guardian may indicate lack of

274 496



consent

When to Notify: When a parent/guardian request for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  To be included in AR 5141.21
Subject:  Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of
emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When to Notify: Upon a student's enrollment
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125, AR 5125.3
Subject:  Specified rights related to student records

When to Notify: When students enter grade 7
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject: Specified information on type 2 diabetes

When to Notify:  When in kindergarten, or first grade if not previously enrolled in public school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.32
Subject:  Requirement for oral health assessment, explanation of law, importance of oral health, agency contact,
privacy rights

When to Notify: Before grade 12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51225.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6143
Subject:  Completion and submission of FAFSA and CADAA

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year for students in grades 9-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51229, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6143, BP 6178
Subject:  UC and CSU College admission requirements, UC and CSU web sites that list certified courses, description
of CTE, CDE Internet address, how students may meet with counselors

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year for students in grades 7-12, or at time of enrollment if after
beginning of year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6142.1
Subject:  Sexual health and HIV prevention education; right to view A/V materials, whether taught by district staff or
outside consultants, right to request specific Education Code sections, right to excuse

When to Notify:  Within 20 working days of receiving results of standardized achievement tests or, if results not
available in school year, within 20 working days of start of next school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 60641, 5 CCR 863
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6162.51
Subject:  Results of tests; test purpose, individual score and intended use

When/Whom to Notify: By October 15 for students in grade 12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 69432.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5121, AR 5125
Subject: Forwarding of student's grade point average to Cal Grant program; timeline to opt out

When to Notify:  Upon enrollment in a California State Preschool program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8489.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148.3
Subject: Limitations on disenrollment, including expulsion and suspension and how to file an appeal in the event of
expulsion or suspension

275 497



When to Notify:  When child is enrolled or reenrolled in a licensed child care center or preschool
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.7996
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  Information on risks and effects of lead exposure, blood lead testing

When to Notify:  When child is enrolled in kindergarten
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 124100, 124105
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.32
Subject:  Health screening examination

When to Notify:  To students in grades 11-12, early enough to enable registration for fall test
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 11523
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6146.2
Subject:  Notice of proficiency examination provided under Education Code 48412

When to Notify:  To secondary students, if district receives Title I funds
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 7908
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.1
Subject:  Request that district not release student's name, address, and phone number to military recruiters without
prior written consent

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur

When to Notify:  In the event of a breach of security of district records
Education or Other Legal Code:  Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 3580
Subject:  Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, contact information for credit reporting
agencies

When to Notify:  Upon receipt of a complaint alleging discrimination
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 262.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3
Subject:  Civil law remedies available to complainants

When to Notify:  When determining whether an English learner should be reclassified as fluent English proficient
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 313, 5 CCR 11303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Description of reclassification process, opportunity for parent/guardian to participate

When to Notify:  When Student is identified as English learner and district receives Title I or Title III funds for English
learner programs, not later than 30 days after beginning of school year or within two weeks of placement if
identified during school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 313.2, 440, 20 USC 6312
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Reason for classification, level of English proficiency, identification as long-term English learner, description
of program(s), option to decline program or choose alternate, option to remove student from program at any time,
exit requirements of program

When to Notify:  For districts under financial distress, as defined, upon an affirmative action by the Board to
implement a school closure or consolidation
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 41329
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject:  The date of the closure or consolidation, student's new school assignment, district resources to support
student transition, contacts for additional information.

When to Notify:  Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6112
Subject:  Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When to Notify:  When homeless or foster youth applies for enrollment in before/after school program

276 498



Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8483
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5178.2
Subject:  Right to priority enrollment how to request priority enrollment

When to Notify:  When certification status of a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency attended by a district
student changes, within 14 days of becoming aware of the change
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56366.45
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject: A change in certification status of nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency

When to Notify:  When a child in a California State Preschool program exhibits persistent and serious challenging
behaviors
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8489.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148.3
Subject: Description of the child's behaviors and program plan for maintaining the child's safe participation in
program and expulsion/unenrollment process

When to Notify: At least 24 hours before the effective date of suspending or expelling a child from a California State
Preschool program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8489.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148.3
Subject: "Notice of Action, Recipient of Services," as described in 5 CCR 17783

When to Notify:  Before high school student attends specialized secondary program on a university campus
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17288
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject:  University campus buildings may not meet Education Code requirements for structural safety

When to Notify:  At least 72 hours before use of pesticide product not included in annual list
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514.2
Subject:  Intended use of pesticide product

When to Notify:  To members of athletic teams
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 32221.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5143
Subject:  Offer of insurance; no-cost and low-cost program options

When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before participation in competition
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 33479.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2
Subject:  Information on sudden cardiac arrest

When to Notify:  If school has lost its WASC accreditation status
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35178.4
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6190
Subject:  Loss of status, potential consequences

When/Whom to Notify: When district has contracted for electronic products or services that disseminate advertising
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35182.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3312
Subject: Advertising will be used in the classroom or learning center

When to Notify:  At least six months before implementing a schoolwide uniform policy
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35183
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5132
Subject:  Dress code policy requiring schoolwide uniform

When to Notify:  Before implementing a year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6117

277 499



Subject:  Public hearing on year-round schedule

When to Notify:  When interdistrict transfer is requested and not approved or denied within 30 days
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5117
Subject:  Appeal process

When to Notify:  Before early entry to transitional kindergarten or kindergarten, if early entry offered
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48000
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5111, AR 6170.1
Subject:  Effects, advantages and disadvantages of early entry

When to Notify:  When student identified as being at risk of retention
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48070.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5123
Subject:  Student at risk of retention

When to Notify:  When student excluded due to quarantine, contagious or infectious disease, danger to safety or
health
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48213
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5112.2
Subject:  Student has been excluded from school

When to Notify:  Before already admitted student is excluded for lack of immunization
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48216, 17 CCR 6040
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.31
Subject:  Need to submit evidence of immunization or exemption within 10 school days; referral to medical care

When to Notify:  When a student is classified as truant
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48260.5, 48262
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113.1
Subject:  Truancy, parental obligation, availability of alternative programs, student consequences, need for
conference

When to Notify:  When a truant is referred to a SARB or probation department
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48263
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113.1
Subject:  Name and address of SARB or probation department and reason for referral

When/Whom to Notify: When student requests to voluntarily transfer to continuation school
Education or Other Legal Code:   Education Code 48432.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6184
Subject: Copy of district policy and regulation on continuation education

When to Notify:  Prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48432.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6184
Subject:  Right to require meeting prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school

When/Whom to Notify: To person holding educational rights, prior to recommending placement of foster youth
outside school of origin
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48853.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173.1
Subject: Basis for the placement recommendation

When to Notify:  When a foster youth or an Indian child receives a suspension, expulsion, manifestation
determination, or involuntary transfer
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48853.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173.1, AR 6173.4
Subject:  Suspension notice, expulsion notice, manifestation determination notice, involuntary transfer notice, and
other documents and related information to a foster youth's educational rights holder, attorney, and county social

278 500



worker and an Indian child's tribal social worker and, if applicable, the child's county social worker

When to Notify:  When student is removed from class and teacher requires parental attendance at school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48900.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Parental attendance required; timeline for attendance

When to Notify:  Prior to withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48904
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.2
Subject:  Damaged school property

When to Notify:  When withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts from transferring student
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48904.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.2
Subject:  Next school will continue withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts

When to Notify:  When student is released to peace officer
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48906
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5145.11
Subject:  Release of student to peace officer for the purpose of removing minor from school, unless taken into
custody as victim of suspected child abuse

When to Notify:  At time of suspension
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5144.1, AR 5144.1
Subject:  Notice of suspension

When to Notify:  When original period of suspension is extended
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Extension of suspension

When to Notify:  At the time a student is assigned to a supervised suspension classroom
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  The student's assignment to a supervised suspension classroom

When to Notify:  Before holding a closed session re: suspension
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48912
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Intent to hold a closed session re: suspension

When to Notify:  When a student expelled from another district for certain acts seeks admission
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48915.1, 48918
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5119
Subject:  Hearing re: possible danger presented by expelled student

When to Notify:  When readmission is denied
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Reasons for denial; determination of assigned program

When to Notify:  When expulsion occurs
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Readmission procedures

When to Notify:  At least 10 calendar days before expulsion hearing
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48918
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1

279 501



Subject:  Notice of expulsion hearing

When to Notify:  When expulsion or suspension of expulsion occurs
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48918
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Decision to expel; right to appeal to county board; obligation to inform new district of status

When to Notify:  Before involuntary transfer of student convicted of certain crime when victim is enrolled at same
school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48929, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5116.2
Subject:  Right to request a meeting with principal or designee

When to Notify:  One month before the scheduled minimum day
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6111
Subject:  When minimum days are scheduled after the beginning of the school year

When to Notify:  When parents/guardians request guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48987
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.4
Subject:  Guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site with local child protective agencies

When to Notify:  When student in danger of failing a course
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49067
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5121
Subject:  Student in danger of failing a course

When to Notify:  When student transfers from another district or private school into the district
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49068
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125
Subject:  Right to receive copy of student's record and a hearing to challenge content of student's records

When/Whom to Notify: When parent/guardian's challenge of student record is denied and parent/guardian appeals
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49070
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.3
Subject: If board sustains allegations, the correction of destruction of record; if denied, right to submit written
objection

When/Whom to Notify: When district is considering program to gather safety-related information from students'
social media activity
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49073.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5125
Subject: Opportunity for input on proposed program

When/Whom to Notify: When district adopts program to gather information from students' social media activity,
and annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49073.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5125
Subject: Information is being gathered, access to records, process for removal or corrections, destruction of records

When to Notify:  Within 24 hours of release of information to a judge or probation officer
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49076
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125
Subject:  Release of student record to a judge or probation officer for conducting truancy mediation program or for
presenting evidence at a truancy petition

When to Notify:  Before release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49077
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125
Subject:  Release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena

280 502



When to Notify:  When screening results in suspicion that student has scoliosis
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject:  Scoliosis screening

When to Notify:  When test results in discovery of visual or hearing defects
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49456; 17 CCR 2951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject:  Vision or hearing test results

When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49475
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2
Subject:  Information on concussions and head injuries

When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before their first practice or competition
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49476
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2
Subject:  Opioid fact sheet

When/Whom to Notify: Within 30 days of foster youth, student experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court
school student, child of military family, or migrant student being transferred after second year of high school, or
immigrant student enrolled in newcomer program in grades 11-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Educational Code 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6146.1, AR 6173, AR 6173.1, AR 6173.3, AR 6175
Subject: Exemption from local graduation requirements, effect on college admission, option for fifth year of high
school, transfer opportunities through California Community Colleges

When to Notify: When satisfactory educational progress in one or more independent study courses is not being
made by student under 18
Education or Other Legal Code:  Educational Code 51749.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6158
Subject: Findings from evaluation to determine if it is in student's best interest to remain in independent study or
whether student should be referred to an alternative program.

When to Notify:  Before any test/survey questioning personal beliefs
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51513
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5022
Subject:  Permission for test, survey questioning personal beliefs

When to Notify:  At least 14 days before HIV prevention or sexual health instruction, if arrangement made for guest
speaker after beginning of school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6142.1
Subject:  Instruction in HIV prevention or sexual health by guest speaker or outside consultant

When to Notify:  Prior to administering survey regarding health risks and behaviors to students in 7-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022
Subject:  Notice that the survey will be administered

When to Notify:  Within 30 calendar days of receipt of results of assessment or reassessment of English proficiency
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 52164.1, 52164.3, 5 CCR 11511.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Results of state test of English proficiency

When to Notify:  When migrant education program is established
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 54444.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6175, AR 6175
Subject:  Parent advisory council membership composition

281 503



When to Notify:  When child participates in licensed child care and development program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.857, 22 CCR 101218.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  Parent/guardian right to enter and inspect facility and other rights as specified

When to Notify:  When a licensed child care center has a building constructed before January 1, 2010 and has
drinking water tested for lead
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1597.16
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  The requirement to test the facility, and the results of the test

When/Whom to Notify: When district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education Funds
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3513.3
Subject: The district's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When to Notify:  When sharing student immunization information with an immunization system
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 120440
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125
Subject:  Types of information to be shared, name and address of agency, acceptable use of the information, right to
examine, right to refuse to share

When/Whom to Notify: At least 14 days prior to sex offender coming on campus as volunteer
Education or Other Legal Code:  Penal Code 626.81
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1240, BP 1250
Subject: Dates and times permission granted; obtaining information from law enforcement

When to Notify:  When hearing is requested by person asked to leave school premises
Education or Other Legal Code:  Penal Code 627.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3515.2
Subject:  Notice of hearing

When/Whom to Notify: When responding to complaint re: discrimination, special education, or noncompliance with
law
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 4631
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1312.3
Subject: Findings, disposition of complaint, any corrective actions, appeal rights and procedures

When to Notify:  When child participates in licensed child care and development program
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18066
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148
Subject:  Policies regarding excused and unexcused absences

When to Notify:  Within 30 days of application for subsidized child care or preschool services
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 17782, 18094, 18118
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148, AR 5148.3
Subject:  Policies re: Approval or denial of services

When to Notify:  At least 14 days before change in service or other intended action, upon recertification or update
of application for child care or preschool services
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 17783, 18095, 18119
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148, AR 5148.3
Subject:  Policies re: Any change in service, such as in fees, amount of service, termination of service

When to Notify:  Upon child's enrollment in child care program
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18114
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148
Subject:  Policies re: Policy on fee collection

When to Notify:  When payment of child care fees is seven days late

282 504



Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18114
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148
Subject:  Policies re: Notice of delinquent fees

When to Notify:  When district substantively changes policy on student privacy rights
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1232h
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022
Subject:  Notice of any substantive change in policy or regulation

When to Notify:  For districts receiving Title I funds, when a child has been assigned or taught for four or more
consecutive weeks by a teacher who does not meet state certification requirements for the grade level/subject
taught
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4112.2
Subject:  Timely notice to parent/guardian of child's assignment

When to Notify:  For districts receiving Title I funds, not later than 30 days after beginning of school year, to
parents/guardians of English learners
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Reasons for placement, level of proficiency, instructional methods, how program meets child's strengths
and teaches English, exit requirements, right to choose another program

When to Notify:  For schools receiving Title I funds, upon development of parent involvement policy
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6318
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6020
Subject:  Notice of policy

When to Notify:  When district receives Impact Aid funds for students residing on Indian lands, to parents/guardians
of Indian children
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 7704; 34 CFR 222.94
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3231
Subject:  Relevant applications, evaluations, program plans, information about district's general educational program;
opportunity to submit comments

When to Notify:  When household is selected for verification of eligibility for free or reduced-price meals
Education or Other Legal Code:  42 USC 1758, 7 CFR 245.6a
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3553
Subject:  Need to submit verification information; any subsequent change in benefits; appeals

When/Whom to Notify: When student is homeless or unaccompanied minor
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48852.5, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173
Subject: Educational and related opportunities; transportation services; placement decision and right to appeal;
duties of district liaison; public notice

When to Notify:  When student transfers out of state and records are disclosed without consent pursuant to 34 CFR
99.30
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 99.34
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125
Subject: Right to receive records and an opportunity for hearing upon request

When to Notify:  When student complains of sexual harassment
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 106.44, 106.45
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5145.7
Subject: Right to file formal complaint, availability of supportive measures, notice of process, reason for dismissal of
complaint if applicable

When to Notify:  When district receives federal funding assistance for nutrition program
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA FNS Instruction 113-1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3555

283 505



Subject: Rights and responsibilities, nondiscrimination policy, complaint procedures

IV.  Special Education Notices

When to Notify: Prior to a student with disabilities beginning tenth grade
Education or Other Legal Code:  Educational Code 51225.31
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6146.1
Subject: Exemption from local graduation requirements

When to Notify:  Prior to conducting initial evaluation
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56301, 56321, 56321.5, 56321.6, 56329, 20 USC 1415 (d), 34 CFR
300.502, 300.503
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6159.1, AR 6159.1, AR 6164.4
Subject:  Proposed evaluation plan, related parental rights, prior written notice, procedural safeguards

When/Whom to Notify: Before functional behavioral assessment begins
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56321
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159
Subject: Notification and consent

When to Notify:  24 hours before IEP when district intending to record
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56341.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159
Subject:  Intention to audio-record IEP meeting

When to Notify:  Early enough to ensure opportunity for parent to attend IEP meeting
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56341.5, 34 CFR 300.322
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159
Subject:  Time, purpose, location, who will attend, participation of others with special knowledge, transition
statements if appropriate

When to Notify:  When parent/guardian orally requests review of IEP
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56343.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159
Subject:  Need for written request

When to Notify:  Within one school day of emergency intervention or serious property damage
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56521.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.4
Subject:  Emergency intervention

When to Notify:  Whenever there is a proposal or refusal to initiate or change the identification, evaluation,
placement, or FAPE, including when parent/guardian revokes consent for services
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(c), 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159, AR 6159.1
Subject:  Prior written notice

When/Whom to Notify: Upon filing of state complaint
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(d), 34 CFR 300.504
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.1
Subject: Procedural safeguards notice

When/Whom to Notify: When disciplinary measures are taken or a change in placement
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(k), 34 CFR 300.530
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.2
Subject: Decision and procedural safeguards notice

When to Notify:  Upon requesting a due process hearing
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(k), 34 CFR 300.508
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.1
Subject:  Child's name, address, school, description of problem, proposed resolution

284 506



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

When to Notify:  Eligibility for services under Section 504
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 104.32, 104.36
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6164.6
Subject:  District responsibilities, district actions, procedural safeguards

V.  Classroom Notices

Where to Post:  In all district schools and offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 234.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3
Subject:  Uniform complaint procedures board policy and administrative regulation

Where  to Post:  In each classroom used for license exempt California State Preschool Program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8212
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR/E 1312.3
Subject:  Health and safety requirements for preschool programs; where to get complaint form

Where to Post :  In each classroom in each school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35186
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR/E 1312.4
Subject:  Complaints subject to Williams uniform complaint procedures

Where to Post:  In any school serving any of grades 3-12, in a prominent and conspicuous location in every restroom
required to stock menstrual products,
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35292.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3517
Subject:   Requirement to stock and make available free of cost an adequate supply of menstrual products that
includes email address and telephone number for a designated individual responsible for maintaining requisite supply
of menstrual products

Where to Post: In a licensed child care and development center at a location accessible to parents/guardians
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.857
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  Parent/guardian right to inspect, prohibition against retaliation, right to file complaint; registered sex
offender database available to public; review licensing reports of facility visits and substantiated complaints against
facility

Where to Post:   In a prominent, publicly accessible location in the child care facility
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1596.8555
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject: Child care license

Where to Post:   In a prominent location adjacent to child care license at facility
Education or Other Legal Code:  Welfare and institutions Code 10228
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject: Rates, discounts, or scholarship policies

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2950-2951 Hearing tests

17 CCR 6000-6075 School attendance immunization requirements

22 CCR 101218.1 Child care licensing; parent/guardian rights

5 CCR 11303 Reclassification of English learners

5 CCR 11511.5 English language proficiency assessment; test results

5 CCR 11523 Notice of proficiency examinations

285 507



5 CCR 17782 Notice of Action; application for services

5 CCR 17783 Notice of Action; recipient of services

5 CCR 18066 Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences

5 CCR 18094-18095 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 18114 Notice of delinquent fees; child care services

5 CCR 18118-18119 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 3052 Behavioral intervention

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal

5 CCR 4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy

5 CCR 852 Exemptions from state assessments

5 CCR 863 Reports of state assessment results

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17288 Building standards for university campuses

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 221.5 Equal opportunity

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 262.3 Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of
civil remedies

Ed. Code 310 Language acquisition programs

Ed. Code 313 Reclassification of English learners; parental consultation

Ed. Code 313.2 Long-term English learner; notification

Ed. Code 32221.5 Insurance for athletic team members

Ed. Code 32255-32255.6 Student's right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals

Ed. Code 32390 Voluntary program for fingerprinting students

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35160.5 Extracurricular and cocurricular activities

Ed. Code 35178.4 Notice of accreditation status

Ed. Code 35182.5 Advertising in the classroom

Ed. Code 35183 School dress code; uniforms

Ed. Code 35186 Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities

Ed. Code 35211 Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability

Ed. Code 35256 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35258 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35291 Rules for student discipline

Ed. Code 35292.6 School maintenance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 39831.5 School bus rider rules and information

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

286 508



Ed. Code 41329 School closures and consolidation

Ed. Code 440 English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language
development

Ed. Code 44050 Employee code of conduct; interaction with students

Ed. Code 44808.5 Permission to leave school grounds

Ed. Code 46010.1 Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services

Ed. Code 46014 Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting pupils

Ed. Code 46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission

Ed. Code 48070.5 Promotion and retention of students

Ed. Code 48204 Residency requirements

Ed. Code 48205 Absence for personal reasons

Ed. Code 48206.3 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions

Ed. Code 48207-48208 Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals

Ed. Code 48213 Prior notice of exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48216 Immunization and exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48260.5 Notice regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48262 Need for parent conference regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48263 Referral to school attendance review board or probation department

Ed. Code 48301 Interdistrict transfers

Ed. Code 48412 Certificate of proficiency

Ed. Code 48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education

Ed. Code 48432.5 Involuntary transfers of students

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

Ed. Code 48900.1 Parental attendance required after suspension

Ed. Code 48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

Ed. Code 48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts

Ed. Code 48906 Notification of release of student to peace officer

Ed. Code 48911 Notification in case of suspension

Ed. Code 48911.1 Assignment to supervised suspension classroom

Ed. Code 48912 Closed sessions; consideration of suspension

Ed. Code 48915.1 Expelled students; enrollment in another district

Ed. Code 48916 Readmission procedures

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 48929 Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48980.3 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 48980.4 Notice regarding full human papillomavirus (HPV) immunization

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

287 509



Ed. Code 48981 Time and means of notification

Ed. Code 48982 Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice

Ed. Code 48983 Contents of notice

Ed. Code 48984 Activities prohibited unless notice given

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drug use

Ed. Code 48986 Safe storage of firearms

Ed. Code 48987 Child abuse information

Ed. Code 49013 Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49063 Notification of parental rights

Ed. Code 49067 Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course

Ed. Code 49068 Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record

Ed. Code 49069.7 Absolute right to access

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging content of student record

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 49073.6 Student records; social media

Ed. Code 49076 Access to student records

Ed. Code 49077 Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order

Ed. Code 49392 Threats of homicide at school

Ed. Code 49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunizations

Ed. Code 49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student

Ed. Code 49451 Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent

Ed. Code 49452.5 Screening for scoliosis

Ed. Code 49452.6 Type 1 diabetes informational materials

Ed. Code 49452.7 Information on type 2 diabetes

Ed. Code 49452.8 Oral health assessment

Ed. Code 49455.5 Eye examination for purpose of eyeglasses

Ed. Code 49456 Results of vision or hearing test

Ed. Code 49471-49472 Insurance

Ed. Code 49475 Student athletes; concussions and head injuries

Ed. Code 49476 Student athletes; opioid fact sheet

Ed. Code 49480 Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970

Ed. Code 51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.2 Course credits

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.31 Graduation from high school; exemption for eligible students with special
needs

Ed. Code 51225.8 Completion and submission of FAFSA and CADAA

Ed. Code 51229 Course of study for grades 7-12

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

288 510



Ed. Code 51513 Personal beliefs; privacy

Ed. Code 51749.5 Independent study

Ed. Code 51938 HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction

Ed. Code 52062 Local control and accountability plans and the statewide system of support

Ed. Code 52164 Language census

Ed. Code 52164.1 Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of
language skills

Ed. Code 52164.3 Reassessment of English learners; notification of results

Ed. Code 52242 Advanced placement examination fees

Ed. Code 54444.2 Migrant education programs; parent involvement

Ed. Code 56301 Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights

Ed. Code 56321 Special education: proposed assessment plan

Ed. Code 56321.5-56321.6 Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education

Ed. Code 56329 Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment

Ed. Code 56341.1 Development of individualized education program; right to audio record
meeting

Ed. Code 56341.5 Individualized education program team meetings

Ed. Code 56343.5 Individualized education program meetings

Ed. Code 56366.45 Change in status of a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency

Ed. Code 56521.1 Behavioral intervention

Ed. Code 58501 Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment

Ed. Code 60615 Exemption from state assessment

Ed. Code 60641 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

Ed. Code 60900.5 Use of CalPADS data

Ed. Code 69432.9 Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program

Ed. Code 8212 Complaints related to preschool health and safety issues

Ed. Code 8483 Before/after school program; enrollment priorities

Ed. Code 8489 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

Ed. Code 8489.1 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco use prevention

H&S Code 104855 Availability of topical fluoride treatment

H&S Code 116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy

H&S Code 120365-120375 Immunizations

H&S Code 120440 Sharing immunization information

H&S Code 124100-124105 Health screening and immunizations

H&S Code 1596.8555 Administration of child day care licensing; posting license

H&S Code 1596.857 Right to enter child care facility

H&S Code 1597.16 Licensed child care centers; lead testing

Pen. Code 626.81 Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus

Pen. Code 627.5 Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

289 511



W&I Code 10228 Child care providers; posting of rates, discounts, and scholarships

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1232h Privacy rights

20 USC 1415 Procedural safeguards

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 6312 Local educational agency plan

20 USC 6318 Parent and family engagement

20 USC 7704 Impact Aid; policies and procedures related to children residing on Indian
lands

20 USC 7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students

34 CFR 104.32 District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education

34 CFR 104.36 Procedural safeguards

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 200.48 Teacher qualifications

34 CFR 222.94 Impact Aid; district responsibilities

34 CFR 300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation

34 CFR 300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings

34 CFR 300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability

34 CFR 300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of
student with disability

34 CFR 300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities

34 CFR 300.508 Due process complaint

34 CFR 300.530 Discipline procedures

34 CFR 99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information

34 CFR 99.34 Student records; disclosure to other educational agencies

34 CFR 99.37 Disclosure of directory information

34 CFR 99.7 Student records; annual notification

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

42 USC 1758 Child nutrition programs

7 CFR 245.5 Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals

7 CFR 245.6a Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and
Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

290 512



Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3231 Impact Aid

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3312 Contracts

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112.2 Certification

291 513



4112.2 Certification

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5030 Student Wellness

5111 Admission

5111 Admission

5111.1 District Residency

5111.1 District Residency

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment

5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment

5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5119 Students Expelled From Other Districts

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5131.61 Drug Testing

5132 Dress And Grooming

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

292 514



5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.32 Health Screening For School Entry

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5142.1 Identification And Reporting Of Missing Children

5143 Insurance

5143 Insurance

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sexual Harassment

5145.7 Sexual Harassment

5145.8 Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6117 Year-Round Schedules

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

293 515



6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2-E(1) Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.4 Behavioral Interventions For Special Education Students

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.8 Research

6162.8 Research

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

294 516



6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.3 Education For Juvenile Court School Students

6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

9310 Board Policies

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

295 517



Policy 6000: Concepts And RolesPolicy 6000: Concepts And Roles Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/01/1992 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice.
The Governing Board desires to provide a comprehensive, research-based curriculum in a supportive, positive, and
engaging manner that motivates every student to succeed. The district's educational program shall provide students
with rigorous opportunities to attain the academic, social and emotional skills, knowledge, and abilities they need to
be successful in school, postsecondary education and/or employment, and develop to their full potential.

Strategies for improving the educational program shall take into consideration the needs of individual students and
subpopulations of students, including, but not limited to, social, emotional, and behavioral needs. Students who are
failing or at risk of failing to meet academic standards shall be provided with alternative programs and/or
supplemental assistance designed to raise achievement.

Parents/guardians are critical partners in their children's education and shall be provided with opportunities to be
meaningfully involved both in support of their children's education program at school and with learning at home.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph includes concepts from the California Department of Education's 2023
publication, "California State Plan for Career Technical Education: A Vision for Equity and Excellence in CTE."
The district's goal of student success may be achieved through regional coordination, collaboration, and alignment
between the school, parents/guardians, and the community, including district support for innovative programs and
practices that promote student engagement, growth, understanding, achievement, and career exploration.

To support the district's educational program, the Board shall:

1. Establish standards of student achievement for core subjects at each grade level that are aligned with the
district's vision for student learning, the specific needs and strengths of the students, the expectations of
parents/guardians and the community, and available resources
 

2. Establish graduation requirements
 

3. Ensure that a process is in place, involving teachers, administrators, students, and parents/guardians, for the
development and review of the district's curriculum
 

4. Adopt the district curriculum and courses of study to be offered
 

5. Adopt textbooks and other instructional materials
 

6. Support the professional staff's implementation of the curriculum by providing consistent policy direction,
allocating resources based on educational program priorities, ensuring that collective bargaining agreements do
not constrain the district's ability to achieve curricular goals, recognizing staff accomplishments, and including
reasonable annual goals related to student learning in the Superintendent evaluation process
 

7. Provide a continuing program of professional development to keep instructional staff, administrators, and
Board members updated about current issues and research pertaining to curriculum, instructional strategies,
and student assessment
 

8. Review and evaluate the educational program on the basis of state and federal accountability measures,
disaggregated student achievement data, and other indicators and ensure that evaluation results are used to
improve programs, curriculum, and/or instructional practices as necessary to enhance student achievement
 

9. Communicate clear information about district instructional goals, programs, and progress in student
achievement to the community and media

The Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Review research related to curriculum issues
 

2. Select and/or develop curricula for recommendation to the Board in accordance with the district's curriculum
development and review process

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

296 518



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
3. Ensure the articulation of the curriculum between grade levels and with postsecondary education and the

workplace
 

4. Determine the general methods of instruction to be used
 

5. Assign instructors and schedule classes for all curricular offerings
 

6. Recommend instructional materials to the Board and direct the purchase of approved materials and equipment
 

7. Evaluate and report to the Board on student achievement as demonstrated through testing and other types of
appraisal, and recommend necessary changes in curriculum, programs, and instruction as indicated by student
performance data

Comparability in Instruction

CSBA NOTE: The following section is optional. 5 CCR 4424 requires districts to demonstrate comparability of
services as a condition of receiving grants for compensatory education programs. In addition, 20 USC 6321
mandates districts receiving Title I funds to have policy on comparability in instruction; see BP/AR 6171 - Title I
Programs for language fulfilling this mandate.
The district shall provide comparable educational opportunities for all students. Instruction in the core curriculum
shall be in no way diminished when students receive supplementary services funded by special governmental
programs. Services funded by any categorical program shall supplement, not supplant, the district-provided core
curriculum and any services which may be provided by other categorical programs.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 3940 Maintenance of effort

5 CCR 4424 Comparability of services

Ed. Code 51000-51009 Legislative intent; educational program

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6321 Fiscal requirements/comparability of services

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication California State Plan for Career Technical Education: A Vision for Equity and
Excellence in CTE, March 2023

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

297 519



1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

2140 Evaluation Of The Superintendent

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3512 Equipment

3512-E(1) Equipment

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4131 Staff Development

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4331 Staff Development

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5131.9 Academic Honesty

6011 Academic Standards

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6120 Response To Instruction And Intervention

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6142.3 Civic Education

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.5 Environmental Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.5 Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

298 520



6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6162.5 Student Assessment

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6174 Education For English Learners

6174 Education For English Learners

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6177 Summer Learning Programs

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6179 Supplemental Instruction

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

9000 Role Of The Board

9240 Board Training

9310 Board Policies

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

299 521



Policy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling ServicesPolicy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling Services Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2007 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional Board policy should be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code
49600 urges districts to offer students a comprehensive educational counseling program that is implemented in a
structured and coherent manner within a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support framework (MTSS). Pursuant to
Education Code 49600, specialized services offered under such a program must be provided by appropriately
credentialed school counselors.

SB 114 (Ch. 48, Statutes of 2023) provides grant funding to eligible districts to establish safe, healthy, and
supportive learning opportunities and environments in schools, which include, implementation of high quality
integrated academic, behavioral, and social and emotional learning practices or services aligned to the MTSS.
The Governing Board recognizes that a structured, coherent, and comprehensive counseling program promotes
academic achievement and growth, and serves the diverse needs of district students. The district shall provide an
educational counseling program that offers students services and supports within a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support
(MTSS) framework, in accordance with law. Counseling staff shall be available to provide students with individualized
reviews of their educational progress toward academic and/or career and vocational goals and, as appropriate, may
discuss social, personal, or other issues that may impact student learning and well-being.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44266 and 5 CCR 80049-80049.1, persons authorized to provide
services in school counseling, school psychology, or school social work must possess a Pupil Personnel Services
(PPS) credential, with the appropriate specialization, issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC).

In order to have more qualified mental health professionals who are certified to provide child welfare and
attendance services, Education Code 44266, as amended by SB 223 (Ch. 175, Statutes of 2023), permits flexibility
for PPS credential holders to receive authorization to provide child welfare and attendance services by either
completing: (1) a CTC-approved program of supervised field experience that includes direct classroom contact,
jointly sponsored by a school district and a college or university, or (2) a CTC-approved program of professional
preparation offered by a local educational agency.
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all persons employed to provide direct school counseling, school
psychology, school social work services, child welfare and attendance services, and/or to implement equitable school
programs and services that support students' academic and social and emotional development and college and career
readiness possess the appropriate credential from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing authorizing their
employment in such positions. Responsibilities of such positions shall be clearly defined in a job description.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional list may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 49600 expresses
the Legislature's intent that school counselors fulfill the following responsibilities.
Responsibilities of school counselors include, but are not limited to:

1. Engaging with, advocating for, and providing all students with direct services, such as individual counseling,
group counseling, risk assessment, crisis response, and instructional services, including mental health and
behavioral, academic, and postsecondary educational services, and indirect services, including but not limited
to, positive school climate strategies, teacher and parent/guardian consultations, and referrals to public and
private community services
 

2. Planning, implementing, and evaluating school counseling programs
 

3. Working within a MTSS that uses multiple data sources to monitor and improve student behavior, attendance,
engagement, and achievement
 

4. Developing, coordinating, and supervising comprehensive student support systems in collaboration with
teachers, administrators, other pupil personnel services professionals, families, community partners, and
community agencies, including county mental health agencies
 

5. Promoting and maintaining a safe learning environment for all students by providing restorative practices,
positive behavior interventions, and support services and by developing and responding with a variety of
intervention strategies to meet individual, group, and school community needs before, during, and after a crisis
 

6. Intervening to ameliorate school-related problems, including problems related to chronic absences and

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

300 522



retention
 

7. Using research-based strategies to promote mental wellness, reduce mental health stigma, and to identify
characteristics, risk factors, and warning signs of students who develop, or are at risk of developing, mental
health and behavioral disorders and who experience, or are at risk of experiencing, mistreatment, including
mistreatment related to any form of conflict or bullying
 

8. Improving school climate and student well-being by addressing the mental and behavioral health needs of
students during a period of transition, separation, heightened stress, and critical changes, accessing community
programs and services to meet those needs, and providing other appropriate services
 

9. Enhancing students' social and emotional competence, character, health, civic engagement, cultural literacy,
and commitment to lifelong learning and the pursuit of high-quality educational programs

CSBA NOTE: Item #10 below may be revised to specify only English learners, students eligible for free and
reduced-price meals, and foster youth, as provided in Education Code 49600. However, a district is permitted
to provide such services to other categories of students who may be in need, such as students experiencing
homelessness

10. Providing counseling services for unduplicated students who are classified as English learners, eligible for free
and reduced-priced meals, foster youth, and/or experiencing homelessness, including interventions and
support services that enhance equity and access to appropriate education systems and public and private
services
 

11. Engaging in continued development as a professional school counselor

Educational And Career Counseling

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that maintain any of grades 7-12 and may be
revised to reflect district practice and the grade levels offered by the district.
Beginning in grade 7, parents/guardians shall receive a general notice at least once before career counseling and
course selection so that they may participate in the counseling sessions and decisions.  (Education Code 221.5)

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-5 below reflect required components of educational counseling programs specified in
Education Code 49600.
The educational counseling program shall include academic counseling and postsecondary services, in the following
areas  (Education Code 49600):

1. Development and implementation, with parent/guardian involvement, of the student's immediate and long-
range educational plans
 

2. Optimizing progress towards achievement of proficiency standards and competencies
 

3. Completion of the required curriculum in accordance with the student's needs, abilities, interests, and
aptitudes
 

4. Academic planning for access and success in higher education programs, including advisement on courses
needed for admission to colleges and universities, standardized admissions tests, and financial aid

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49600, educational counseling must include career and vocational
counseling as described in Item #5 below.

5. High-quality career programs at all grade levels in which students are assisted in doing all of the following:
 

a. Planning for the future, including, but not limited to, identifying personal interests, skills, and abilities,
career planning, course selection, and career transition
 

b. Becoming aware of personal preferences and interests that influence educational and occupational
exploration, career choice, and career success
 

c. Developing work self-efficacy for the ever-changing work environment, the changing needs of the
workforce, and the effects of work on quality of life

301 523



 
d. Understanding the relationship between academic achievement and career success, and the importance

of maximizing career options
 

e. Understanding the value of participating in career technical education pathways, programs, and
certifications, including, but not limited to, those related to regional occupational programs and centers,
the federal program administered by the U. S. Department of Labor offering free education and
vocational training to students, known as "Job Corps," the California Conservation Corps, work-based
learning, industry certifications, college preparation and credit, and employment opportunities
 

f. Understanding the need to develop essential employable skills and work habits
 

g. Understanding entrance requirements to the U.S. Armed Forces, including the benefits of the Armed
Services Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB) test

CSBA NOTE: In addition to the required components listed above, Education Code 49600 includes a list of optional
components which a district may, at its discretion, offer as part of the educational counseling program.
The  district's educational counseling program also may include, but not be limited to, identification of students who
are at risk of not graduating with their peers, development of a list of coursework and experience necessary to assist
students to satisfy the curricular requirements for college admission and successfully transition to postsecondary
education or employment, and counseling regarding available options for students who fail to meet graduation
requirements to continue with their education.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a program of guidance, placement, and follow-up for all
high school students subject to compulsory continuation education.  (Education Code 48431)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 54680-54685, as added by AB 278 (Ch. 424, Statutes of 2023), establishes the
Dream Resource Grant Program with the goal of creating Dream Resource Centers at schools that serve students in
grades 9-12. The funds may be used to create a center or to supplement, but not supplant, funding for an existing
center. The following paragraph is for districts that receive such grant funding.
To enhance the educational counseling program and assist students in reaching their educational and professional
goals, the district shall provide students in grades 9-12 with financial aid support; social services support; state-
funded immigration legal services; academic opportunities; and parent/guardian and family workshops.  (Education
Code 54680, 54683)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49600 permits districts to offer mental and behavioral health services as provided in
the following paragraph. For more information regarding staff development related to the recognition of mental
health warning signs, see BP 5141.5 - Mental Health and BP/AR 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention.
As part of the district's educational counseling program, students may be offered mental and behavioral health
services under which a student may receive prevention, intervention, short-term counseling services, and mental
health related classroom instruction to reduce stigma and increase awareness of counseling support services.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 221.5 prohibits school counselors from offering vocational or school program
guidance to a student of one sex that is different from that offered to a student of the opposite sex. Additionally, 5
CCR 4930 prohibits discrimination in counseling programs to the same extent that discrimination is prohibited in all
other district programs and activities. Prohibited bases for discrimination in district programs are specified in BP
0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities.
No counselor shall unlawfully discriminate against any student. Guidance counseling regarding school programs and
career, vocational, or higher education opportunities shall not be differentiated on the basis of any protected
category specified in law or Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities.

Additionally, counselors shall affirmatively explore with a student the possibility of careers, or courses leading to
careers, that are nontraditional for that student's sex.  (Education Code 221.5)

For assessing or counseling students, the district shall not use testing or other materials that permit or require
impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students, unless such different materials cover the same
occupations and interest areas and the use of such materials is essential to the elimination of bias and discrimination. 
(5 CCR 4931)

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 7908 requires districts receiving funds under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act

302 524



(ESEA) to provide military recruiters with the same access to students as is provided to colleges and prospective
employers. Districts that do not grant similar access may lose those funds, and, pursuant to 10 USC 503, may be
subject to specific interventions, such as notification to the Governor and Congress so that public officials can work
with the district. Districts that do not receive ESEA funds and that choose to grant access to college and
employment recruiters should do so on a nondiscriminatory basis. Education Code 49603 provides that military
service recruiters may not be denied on-campus access to students in grades 9-12 if the district provides such
access to other employers. For information regarding military recruiter access to student directory information, see
BP/AR 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information.

Option 1 below is for use by districts that choose to adopt a policy that permits college and employment recruiters,
including military recruiters, access to students. Option 2 is for districts that choose to adopt a policy that does not
permit such access.
OPTION 1:  (Districts with policy that permits college, employment, and military recruiters access to students)

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall have the same access to students for
recruiting purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503; 20 USC 7908)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Districts with policy that prohibits college, employment, and military recruiters access to students)

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall not have access to students for recruiting
purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 3074.2, districts are encouraged to provide students with opportunities to
explore, make career choices, and seek appropriate instruction and training to support those choices, by hosting
locally focused apprenticeship and/or career and technical education fair events, such as college and career fairs.
The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with businesses, government agencies, postsecondary institutions
including universities and career technical schools, community organizations, and/or other employers to provide
students with actual or simulated work-based learning opportunities through college and/or career fairs.

CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this section applies to all districts, regardless of whether Option 1 or Option 2,
above, is chosen.

Labor Code 3074.2 requires any district planning to hold a college or career fair to identify approved apprenticeship
programs in the county and notify such programs that they are hosting a college or career fair. To identify approved
programs, the district is required to rely on the database of approved apprenticeship programs published by the
Division of Apprenticeship Standards on its website.
When planning to hold a college or career fair, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each apprenticeship
program in the county. The notification shall include the planned date, time, and location of the college or career
fair.  (Labor Code 3074.2)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52770, as added by AB 1173 (Ch. 23, Statutes of 2023), requires a district that serves
students in any of grades 9-12 that is planning to hold a college or career fair to notify each community college
district that has overlapping jurisdiction of the date, time, and location of the fair, and provide an opportunity for
the community college district to participate. Districts that do not serve students in grades 9-12 should amend the
following paragraph to reflect district practice.
Additionally, the district shall provide the notification to any community college district that has overlapping
jurisdiction with the district and an opportunity for the community college district to participate in the college or
career fair.  (Education Code 52770)

Personal or Mental Health Counseling

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. A school counselor, school
psychologist, or school social worker may offer personal or family counseling in accordance with the authorizations
on their credentials. Additionally, districts may provide mental health services through school-based health centers
and/or may collaborate with community agencies, organizations, and health care providers to ensure that services
are available. For more information regarding school health centers, see BP 5141.6 - School Health Services.

303 525



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide individualized personal, mental health,
or family counseling to students in accordance with the specialization(s) authorized by their credential. Such services
may include, but are not limited to, support related to the student's social and emotional development, behavior,
substance abuse, mental health assessment, depression, or mental illness. As appropriate, students and their
parents/guardians shall be informed about community agencies, organizations, or health care providers that offer
qualified professional assistance.

CSBA NOTE: AB 665 (Ch. 338, Statutes of 2023) repealed and added Family Code 6924 to make it consistent with
Health and Safety Code 124260 which allows a minor age 12 or older to consent to outpatient mental health
counseling or treatment services without parent/guardian consent if, in the opinion of a school psychologist or
other professional person, as defined, the minor is mature enough to participate intelligently in the services, without
having to establish that the minor would present a danger of serious physical or mental harm to themself or others
without the mental counseling or treatment services or that the minor is an alleged victim of incest or child abuse.
However, pursuant to Family Code 6924, as added by AB 665, the child's parent/guardian must still be involved
unless the professional person determines, after consulting with the minor, that it would be inappropriate.
Written parent/guardian consent shall be obtained before mental health counseling or treatment services are
provided to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service pursuant to Family Code
6924, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law.

Any information of a personal nature disclosed to a school counselor by a student age 12 years or older or by the
student's parent/guardian is confidential and shall not become part of the student record without the written
consent of the person who disclosed the confidential information. The information shall not be revealed, released,
discussed, or referred to except under the limited circumstances specified in Education Code 49602.  (Education
Code 49602)

A counselor shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and, as appropriate, with the district's legal counsel
whenever there is uncertainty regarding how to respond to a student's personal problem or when questions arise
regarding the possible release of confidential information regarding a student.

Crisis Counseling

The Board recognizes the need for a prompt and effective response when students are confronted with a traumatic
incident. School counselors shall assist in the development of the emergency and disaster preparedness plan and
other prevention and intervention practices designed to assist students and parents/guardians before, during, and
after a crisis.

Early identification and intervention plans shall be developed to help identify those students who may be at risk for
violence so that support may be provided before they engage in violent or disruptive behavior.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall identify crisis counseling resources to train district staff in
effective threat assessment, appropriate response techniques, and/or methods to directly help students cope with a
crisis if it occurs.

Teacher-Based Advisory Program

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to provide a teacher-based advisory
program as authorized by Education Code 49600. The following section may be revised to reflect district practice,
including the grade levels at which the program will operate. It should be deleted by districts in which all student
counseling is provided by credentialed school counselors.
The Board recognizes that a supportive, ongoing relationship with a caring adult can provide a student with valuable
advice, enhance student-teacher relationships, and build the student's feelings of connectedness with the school. The
Board authorizes the development of a teacher-based advisory program in which teachers advise students in such
areas as academic planning, character development, conflict resolution, and self-esteem. Any teacher participating in
this program shall be under the supervision of a credentialed school counselor as appropriate, receive related
information and training, and be subject to law and this Board policy, including requirements pertaining to student
confidentiality and nondiscrimination.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

304 526



State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4930-4931 Counseling

5 CCR 80049-80049.1 Pupil Personnel Services credential

5 CCR 80632-80632.5 Preparation programs for Pupil Personnel Services

Ed. Code 221.5 Equal opportunity

Ed. Code 44266 Pupil Personnel Services credential

Ed. Code 48431 Establishing and maintaining high school guidance and placement program

Ed. Code 49600-49604 Educational counseling

Ed. Code 51250-51251 Assistance to military dependents

Ed. Code 51513 Personal beliefs

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs; community college districts

Ed. Code 54680-54685 Dream Resource Center Grant Program

Fam. Code 6920-6930 Consent by minor for medical treatment

Gov. Code 7927.700 Exemption for personnel records if invasion of personal privacy

H&S Code 124260 Mental health services; consent by minors age 12 and older

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Pen. Code 11166-11170 Reporting known or suspected cases of child abuse

W&I Code 5850-5883 Mental Health Services Act

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

10 USC 503 Military recruiter access to directory information

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students and student recruiting
information

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication California Results-Based School Counseling and Student Support Guidelines,
2007

U.S. Department of Education Publication Protecting Student Privacy: Frequently Asked Questions

Website California Division of Apprenticeship Standards

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Association of School Counselors

Website American School Counselor Association

Website U.S. Department of Education, access to military recruiters

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

305 527



0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.2 Bomb Threats

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5136 Gangs

5136 Gangs

5137 Positive School Climate

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

306 528



5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.5 Mental Health

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5147 Dropout Prevention

6120 Response To Instruction And Intervention

6141.4 International Baccalaureate Program

6141.5 Advanced Placement

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2-E(1) Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

307 529



6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

6178.2 Regional Occupational Center/Program

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6185 Community Day School

6185 Community Day School

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

308 530



Policy 6177: Summer Learning ProgramsPolicy 6177: Summer Learning Programs Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 04/01/2013 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 46120
provides for the Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Program, which includes expanded learning opportunities
beyond the regular school day, including summer, vacation, and/or intersessional programs for students in grades
transitional kindergarten (TK)-6.

Pursuant to Education Code 46120, on non-school days, intersessional programs of specified lengths of time must
include in-person before or after school programs.
Districts are required to provide an ELO program to specified students. However, student participation in an ELO
program is optional. For more information regarding ELO program requirements, see BP/AR 5148.2 - Before/After
School Programs.

Pursuant to Education Code 46120, as amended by SB 141 (Ch. 194, Statutes of 2023), a district that is temporarily
prevented from operating its ELO program because of a school site closure due to emergency conditions specified
in Education Code 41422 or Education Code 8482.8(d), will not be subject to penalties as a result of the emergency
if the Governing Board adopts a resolution and provides documentation substantiating the need for closure.
The Governing Board recognizes that an extended break from the instructional program may result in significant
learning loss, especially among disadvantaged and low-achieving students, and desires to provide opportunities
during the summer for students to practice essential skills, make academic progress, and focus on developing social,
emotional, and physical needs and interests through hands-on engaging learning experiences.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52060-52077 require districts to develop a local control and accountability plan
(LCAP) which includes goals aligned with state and local priorities, specific actions aligned to meet those goals, and
a budget aligned to fund those specific actions; see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan. The
purposes and content of the district's summer programs should be aligned with the priorities and goals as outlined
in the LCAP and other applicable district and school plans.
Summer programs offered by the district shall be aligned with the district's local control and accountability plan
(LCAP), other applicable district and school plans, and the educational program provided during the school year.
When feasible, summer programs shall blend high-quality academic instruction in core curricular and/or elective
subjects with recreation, nutrition programs, social and emotional development, and support services that encourage
attendance, student engagement in learning, and student wellness.

Summer School

CSBA NOTE: Summer school programs may be funded through a variety of sources that include, but are not limited
to, Title I funding (20 USC 6311-6322), After School Education and Safety Program supplemental funds (Education
Code 8482-8484.6), 21st Century Community Learning Center supplemental funds (Education Code 8484.7-
8484.9; 20 USC 7171-7176), and ELO programs (Education Code 46120); for more information on funding for
these programs see BP/AR 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs.

Pursuant to Education Code 46120, ELO programs must include at least nine hours of in-person expanded learning
opportunities per day for at least 30 non-school days, inclusive of extended school year days provided pursuant
Education Code 56345.

In addition, Education Code 54444.3 requires agencies receiving Title I Migrant Education funding to conduct
summer school for eligible migrant students in grades K-12; see BP/AR 6175 - Migrant Education Program.

Option 1 is for districts that are not required to offer summer school. Option 2 is for districts that are required to
offer ELO programs on at least 30 non-school days pursuant to Education Code 46120.
OPTION 1 (District is not required to offer summer school)

The Superintendent or designee, with Board approval, may establish summer school day and/or evening classes.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2 (District is required to offer summer school pursuant to Education Code 46120)

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

309 531



The Superintendent or designee shall establish summer school classes pursuant to Education Code 46120.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

The district's summer school program may be used to provide supplemental instruction to students needing
remediation and/or enrichment in core academic subjects.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 43522, until June 30, 2025, districts
that receive ELO grant funding are required to implement a learning recovery program that provides supplemental
instruction, support for social-emotional well-being, and to the maximum extent permissible as specified in U.S.
Department of Agriculture guidelines, meals and snacks, to students who are eligible for free or reduced-price
meals, English learners, foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, students with disabilities, students at risk
of abuse, neglect, or exploitation, disengaged students, and students who are below grade level, including, but not
limited to, those who did not enroll in kindergarten in the 2020-21 school year, credit-deficient students, high
school students at risk of not graduating, and other students identified by certificated staff. Pursuant to Education
Code 43522, districts may utilize ELO grant funding to provide students with extended instructional learning time
based on student learning needs through summer school.
The district shall provide students with supplemental instruction and support in a tiered framework that bases
universal, targeted, and intensive supports on students' needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated
student supports through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school climate.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional list establishes enrollment priorities for the provision of summer school
instruction and may be revised to reflect district practice. Item #1 should be deleted by districts that do not
maintain high schools.
As appropriate, priority for enrollment in summer school programs shall be given to district students who:

1. Need course credits in order to graduate from high school before the beginning of the next school year
 

2. Have been retained or are at risk of being retained at their grade level
 

3. Demonstrate academic deficiencies in core curriculum areas

CSBA NOTE: Optional Item #4 establishes priority for summer school enrollment to at-risk student groups
identified in the district's LCAP. Pursuant to Education Code 52060, the LCAP must include annual goals to
be achieved for all students and for each numerically significant subgroup, defined in Education Code 52052,
as amended by SB 114 (Ch. 48, Statutes of 2023), to include "long-term English learners." Pursuant to
Education Code 52052, as amended by SB 141 (Ch. 194, Statutes of 2023), a "long-term English learner" is
defined as a student who has not attained English language proficiency within seven years of initial
classification as an English learner. For schools or districts with 11-99 students, numerically significant
student subgroups are defined by the Superintendent of Public Instruction with approval by the State Board
of Education.

4. Are in student groups identified in the district's LCAP as needing increased or improved services to succeed in
the educational program

CSBA NOTE: A district that operates an intersession program, including summer school, is required to grant
priority access to a foster youth pursuant to Education Code 48853.5, as amended by AB 723 (Ch. 812,
Statutes of 2023), and to a student experiencing homelessness, pursuant to Education Code 48850, as
amended by AB 373 (Ch. 327, Statutes of 2023). If any such student will be moving during an intersession
period, the student's educational rights holder, or in the case of an American Indian student, Indian custodian,
is authorized to determine which school the student attends for the intersession period.

5. Are foster youth and/or are students experiencing homelessness

If during an intersession period the student will be moving, the student's educational rights holder or, in the
case of an American Indian child, Indian custodian, shall determine which school the student attends for the
intersession period, if applicable.  (Education Code 48850, 48853.5)

CSBA NOTE: Districts with a prior fiscal year local control funding formula (LCFF) unduplicated pupil
percentage (UPP) of at least 75 percent are required to offer access to ELO programs to all classroom-based
students in grades TK-6 inclusive, and to ensure that access is provided to any student whose
parent/guardian requests placement in an ELO program. Districts with a prior fiscal year LCFF UPP of less

310 532



than 75 percent are required to offer access to ELO programs to all unduplicated students in grades TK-6,
inclusive, and ensure that access is provided to any unduplicated student whose parent/guardian requests
placement in an ELO program.

6. Are transitional kindergarten or kindergarten children, or in any of grades 1-6 and are required to be offered or
provided access to Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Programs pursuant to Education Code 46120 and
BP/AR 5184.2 - Before/After School Programs

CSBA NOTE: Option 1 below is for districts that permit remaining students to enroll in summer school on a first-
come first-served basis. Option 2 is for districts that utilize a lottery to select remaining students to enroll in
summer school.
OPTION 1: (First-come first-served)

The remaining openings shall be offered to other district students on a first-come first-served basis.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Lottery)

The remaining openings shall be offered to other district students on a lottery basis.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice.
Because summer courses cover extensive instructional content in a relatively short time period, students who have
more than three excused absences or one unexcused absence may not receive credit for summer session class(es)
unless they make-up missed work in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

CSBA NOTE: State funding is not available for transportation to summer school. To accommodate students and
parents/guardians who need to provide their own transportation, some districts rotate the sites at which summer
sessions are offered, as provided in the following optional paragraph.
Sites for summer school programs may be rotated in an effort to make summer school programs more accessible to
all students, regardless of residence or regular attendance area, and to accommodate the maintenance needs of
district schools.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 46120, any student who attends a school that is not operating an ELO
program must be provided transportation to attend at a location that is providing an ELO program, and to return to
the original location or another location that is established by the district.
The district shall provide any student who attends a school that is not operating an ELO program transportation to
attend at a location that is providing an ELO program and to return to the original location or another location that is
established by the district.  (Education Code 46120)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect indicators for program evaluation that
have been agreed upon by the Board and Superintendent, as well as a timeline for reports to the Board.
The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board on summer school enrollment in the current year
and previous year for the program as a whole and disaggregated by grade level, school that the students attend
during the regular school year, and student population. In addition, the Superintendent or designee may report on the
extent to which students successfully achieved the outcomes established for the program.

Additional Summer Learning Opportunities

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice and may be adapted for use
during intersessions other than summer break. For further information about summer learning opportunities, see
BP/AR 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs and CSBA's Summer Learning and Wellness Resource Guide.

Districts are prohibited from charging a fee for summer school programs. However, it is permissible for third parties
that offer a summer school program to charge a fee for such program. CDE's, "Fiscal Management Advisory 22-01,
Summer School, Third Parties, and Tuition Fees," provides that if a third party that is affiliated with a district charges
tuition for a summer program, the district should make an individualized inquiry as to the relationship between the
district and the third party to determine whether the educational activities are being offered by the district. In
making this determination, districts may consider factors listed in "Fiscal Management Advisory 22-01." Districts

311 533



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

with questions as to whether a fee may be charged for summer school should consult CSBA's District and County
Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel. See also BP/AR 3260 - Fees and Charges.
The Superintendent or designee may collaborate with parents/guardians, city and county agencies, community
organizations, child care providers, and/or other interested persons to develop, implement, and build awareness of
organized activities that support summer learning.

Strategies to support summer learning may include, but are not limited to:

1. Providing information to students and parents/guardians about summer reading programs scheduled to be
conducted by public libraries or community organizations
 

2. Collaborating with the local parks and recreation agency and/or community organizations to provide day
camps, sports programs, or other opportunities for physical education and activity
 

3. Collaborating with workforce development agencies, businesses, and community organizations to provide
summer job training opportunities that include an academic component
 

4. Encouraging reading in the home, such as providing lists of recommended reading to students and
parents/guardians, establishing a target number of books or pages, and providing prizes for achievement of
reading goals
 

5. Assigning summer vacation homework in core curricular subject(s) for extra credit
 

6. Conducting occasional, interactive "fun days" during the summer to provide activities related to art, music,
science, technology, mathematics, environmental science, multicultural education, debate, or other subject
 

7. Arranging opportunities for community service

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11470-11472 Summer school

5 CCR 3043 Extended school year; special education students

Ed. Code 37252-37254.1 Supplemental instruction

Ed. Code 39837 Transportation to summer employment program

Ed. Code 41422 Conditions Disqualifying School Districts from Apportionments

Ed. Code 41505-41508 Pupil Retention Block Grant

Ed. Code 41976.5 Summer school programs; substantially disabled persons or graduating high
school seniors

Ed. Code 42238.01-42238.07 Local control funding formula

Ed. Code 43520-43525 In-Person Instruction and Expanded Learning Opportunities Grants

Ed. Code 46120 Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

Ed. Code 48070-48070.5 Promotion and retention

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Students in foster care and students experiencing homelessness

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6

Ed. Code 51220 Course of study for grades 7-12

Ed. Code 51730-51732 Powers of governing boards (authorization for elementary summer school
classes); admissions of adults and minors

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 54444.3 Summer program for migrant students

312 534



Ed. Code 56345 Individualized education program contents

Ed. Code 58700-58702 Credit towards summer school apportionments for tutoring and homework
assistance

Ed. Code 58806 Summer school apportionments

Ed. Code 8482-8484.6 After School Education and Safety Program

Ed. Code 8484.7-8484.9 21st Century Community Learning Centers

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6311-6322 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students

20 USC 7171-7176 21st Century Community Learning Centers

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CSBA Publication Supporting the Summer Learning Strategy to Boost Student Achievement,
Fact Sheet, December 2015

CSBA Publication Summer and STEAM Make an Ideal Match, Governance Brief, November
2016

CSBA Publication Summer Learning: As Easy as 1, 2, 3, January 2016

CSBA Publication Putting STEAM into Your District’s Summer: A Guide to Regional Partners
and Resources in California, February 2018

CSBA Publication Putting STEAM into Your District’s Summer: A Planning Guide for School
District Governance Teams, January 2018

CSBA Publication School's Out, Now What? How Summer Programs Are Improving Student
Learning and Wellness, Policy Brief, April 2013

National Summer Learning Association Publication Every Summer Counts: A Longitudinal Analysis of Outcomes from the
National Summer Learning Project, December 2020

National Summer Learning Association Publication 2021 California Summer Learning Guide: Investing in Resilience and
Relationships, March 2021

Partnership for Children & Youth Publication Summer 2022: How California schools are making the most of new
increased state investments, January 2023

Rand Corporation Publication Making Summer Count: How Summer Programs Can Boost Children's
Learning, 2011

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Summer Learning Association

Website RAND Corporation

Website Summer Matters

Website Partnership for Children and Youth

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1330.1 Joint Use Agreements

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

313 535



1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3552 Summer Meal Program

3552 Summer Meal Program

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

5030 Student Wellness

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.2 Work Permits

5113.2 Work Permits

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5147 Dropout Prevention

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6000 Concepts And Roles

6011 Academic Standards

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.91 Reading/Language Arts Instruction

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

314 536



6173-E(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6179 Supplemental Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

315 537



Policy 7214: General Obligation BondsPolicy 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to the California
Constitution, Article 16, Section 18, a school district may issue bonds for the construction of school facilities with
either a 66.67 percent or 55 percent approval by local voters. To qualify for the lower 55 percent threshold
pursuant to Proposition 39, districts are required to comply with additional accountability requirements as required
by law and as specified in this Board policy and accompanying administrative regulation.

Education Code 15100 sets forth conditions under which the Governing Board may call for a bond election.
Pursuant to Education Code 15266, these conditions must be satisfied if the Board is seeking either the 66.67
percent or 55 percent approval threshold.

In 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005), the Attorney General opined that a school district may use district funds to hire
a consultant to assess the feasibility of developing a bond measure and to assess the public's level of support, but
not to develop and implement a strategy to build a coalition to support the bond because such activities would be
an impermissible use of public funds for campaign purposes in violation of Education Code 7054. However, in 99
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016), the Attorney General, while reaffirming the 2005 opinion, clarified that costs incurred
from hiring consultants for pre-election services could not be paid from bond proceeds. For further discussion
regarding use of district funds for political purposes, see BP 1160 - Political Processes. Districts with questions
about use of bond proceeds should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district
legal counsel.

Additional information about debt financing for districts may be found in the California Debt and Investment
Advisory's (CDIAC) publication, "California Debt Financing Guide."
The Governing Board recognizes that school facilities are an essential component of the educational program and
that the Board has a responsibility to ensure that the district's facilities needs are met in the most cost-effective
manner possible. The Board may direct the Superintendent to explore the possibility of a bond measure, which may
include, but is not limited to, conducting community focus groups, surveys, and Board presentations. When the
Board determines that it is in the best interest of district students, it may order an election on the question of
whether bonds shall be issued to pay for school facilities.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 8855, the Board is required to adopt a debt management policy prior
to issuing any debt, including a general obligation bond. For sample policy language fulfilling this mandate, see BP
3470 - Debt Issuance and Management.

For bonds requiring a 55 percent majority, Education Code 15268 and 15270 set limits as to the maximum amount
of the bond and the tax rate that may be levied as a result of the bond. Limitations for bonds requiring a 66.67
percent majority are detailed in Education Code 15102-15109.
The Board's decision to order a bond election, as well as its determinations regarding the appropriate amount, timing,
and structure of the bond issuance, shall be consistent with law and the district's debt management policy.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 15100, the following requirement applies to bond elections ordered by
the Board regardless of whether the Board is seeking the 66.67 percent or 55 percent approval threshold.
Before ordering a bond election, the Board shall obtain reasonable and informed projections of assessed valuations
that take into consideration projections of assessed property valuations made by the county assessor.  (Education
Code 15100)

When any project to be funded by bonds will require state matching funds for any phase of the project, the ballot
materials for the bond measure shall include a statement as specified in Education Code 15122.5, advising voters
that, because the project is subject to approval of state matching funds, passage of the bond measure is not a
guarantee that the project will be completed.  (Education Code 15122.5)

Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 15266, upon adoption of the resolution specified below, the district must
comply with the accountability provisions required for the 55 percent threshold, even if the bond ultimately passes
by a 66.67 percent majority of the voters.
The Board, by a two-thirds vote and subject to Education Code 15100, may adopt a resolution to incur bonded

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

316 538



indebtedness and order an election. Pursuant to the California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article
16, Section 18(b), a bond election authorized pursuant to Education Code 15266 requires the approval of at least a
55 percent majority of the voters voting in the election.  (Education Code 15266)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 15266 requires bond elections to be held only during a regularly scheduled local
election at which all of the electors (voters) in the district are entitled to vote. Therefore, those school districts
whose boundaries encompass more than one city or county or whose board members are elected by trustee area
must ensure that the bond election is on a ballot in which all of the electors in the district are entitled to vote, such
as a statewide primary, general, or special election.
The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special election, or a regularly
scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the district are entitled to vote.  (Education Code 15266)

Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district pursuant to Education Code 15266 shall be used only for the following
purposes:  (California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A))

1. The construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and
equipping of school facilities
 

2. The acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities
 

3. The refunding of any outstanding debt issuance used for the purposes specified in Items #1-2 above

The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability requirements:  (California
Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3))

1. Certification that proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used only for the purposes specified in Items #1-
2 above, and not for any other purposes including teacher and administrative salaries and other school
operating expenses

CSBA NOTE: In Taxpayers for Accountable School Bond Spending v. San Diego Unified School District, the
court held that new stadium lighting was not specifically authorized by the school bond when the bond
language did not include construction of stadium lighting even though the full text of the measure authorized
projects to "renovate/replace stadium bleachers" and to "upgrade fields, track, and courts for accessibility
compliance" including "other costs incidental to and necessary for completion of the listed projects including
... field lighting." Since bond proceeds may only be spent on school facilities projects listed in the bond project
list, aspects of a project other than those that are incidental to and necessary for its completion should be
explicitly authorized. Districts with questions about project list language should consult CSBA's District and
County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.

2. A list of specific school facilities projects to be funded and certification that the Board has evaluated safety,
class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing that list

CSBA NOTE: The question of whether bond proceeds may be used to pay the costs of the audits required
pursuant to Items #3-4 below should be referred to CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal
Services or district legal counsel. However, the Attorney General opined in 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004)
that the use of bond proceeds may be used to pay the salaries of district employees to the extent they
perform administrative oversight work on bond projects. According to the opinion, because these audits are
expressly required by Proposition 39 and are directly related to the bond projects rather than routine school
operations, these project administration costs may be considered as within the purposes specified in
California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(A) and therefore are an appropriate expenditure of bond
proceeds.

The performance audit described in Item #3 may include an evaluation of the planning, financing, and
implementation of the overall facilities program.

3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to ensure that the funds
have been expended only on the specific projects listed
 

4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the proceeds from the sale of
the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for the school facilities projects

CSBA NOTE: If the district has a general obligation bond approved according to the 55 percent threshold
provisions, Education Code 15278 requires that the Board appoint a citizens' oversight committee. See the

317 539



accompanying administrative regulation for requirements related to the composition and duties of the committee.
If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, the Board shall appoint
an independent citizens' oversight committee to inform the public concerning the expenditure of bond revenues as
specified in Education Code 15278 and the accompanying administrative regulation. This committee shall be
appointed within 60 days of the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes pursuant to Education
Code 15274.  (Education Code 15278)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the annual, independent performance and financial audits required
pursuant to Items #3-4 above are issued in accordance with the U.S. Comptroller General's Government Auditing
Standards and submitted to the citizens' oversight committee at the same time they are submitted to the
Superintendent or designee and no later than March 31 of each year.  (Education Code 15286)

The Board shall provide the citizens' oversight committee with responses to all findings, recommendations, and
concerns addressed in the performance and financial audits within three months of receiving the audits.  (Education
Code 15280)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
The Board may disband the citizens' oversight committee when the committee has completed its review of the final
performance and financial audits.

Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters

The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 66.67 percent majority of
the voters pursuant to Education Code 15100 and California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(2). If a majority
of the Board agrees to such an election, or upon a petition of the majority of the qualified electors residing in the
district, the Board shall adopt a resolution ordering an election on the question of whether to incur bonded
indebtedness if approved by a 66.67 percent majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15100)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 15101, an election for a bond measure that requires 66.67 percent
approval may be held only on specified days. Districts using this option should coordinate efforts with their local
elections officials to ensure compliance with law.
The bond election may be ordered to occur on any Tuesday, except a Tuesday that is a state holiday or the day
before or after a state holiday, is within 45 days before or after a statewide election unless conducted at the same
time as the statewide election, or is an established election date pursuant to Elections Code 1000 or 1500. 
(Education Code 15101)

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-10 below reflect the purposes for which funds generated from a general obligation bond
authorized with 66.67 percent voter approval may be used, pursuant to Education Code 15100. Some of these
purposes may be inconsistent with Article 13A, Section 1 of the California Constitution, which permits a district to
raise funds in this manner only for the acquisition or improvement of real property. Districts should consult with
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel when determining whether
to order a bond election for any of the purposes specified in Education Code 15100.
Subject to limits specified in Article 13A, Section 1 of the California Constitution, bonds shall be sold to raise money
for any of the following purposes:  (Education Code 15100)

1. Purchasing school lots
 

2. Building or purchasing school buildings
 

3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary for current maintenance,
operation, or repairs
 

4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed by fire or other public
calamity
 

5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary apparatus of a permanent
nature
 

6. Permanently improving school grounds
 

7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or state school building aid
318 540



loans
 

8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577
 

9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years
 

10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another school building, whether in
the same location or in any other location

Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be united and voted upon
as a single proposition by an order of the Board entered into the minutes.  (Education Code 15100)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Although Education Code 15278 requires that the Board appoint
a citizens' oversight committee if the district has a general obligation bond approved according to the 55 percent
threshold provisions, districts that have had approval of a bond with 66.67 percent majority vote are not required
by law to appoint a citizens' oversight committee. However, such districts may, at their discretion, form an oversight
committee under requirements and guidelines adopted by the Board.
The Board may appoint a citizens' oversight committee to review and report to the Board and the public as to
whether the expenditure of bond revenues complies with the intended purposes of the bond.

Certificate of Results

CSBA NOTE: The following section applies to bond elections requiring either a 55 percent or 66.67 percent
approval by local voters. Pursuant to Elections Code 15372, following a bond election, the county elections official
must submit a certificate of the election results to the Board, which then must provide certification to the County
Board of Supervisors, as specified below.
If the certificate of election results received by the Board shows that the appropriate majority of the voters is in
favor of issuing the bonds, the Board shall record that fact in its minutes. The Board shall then certify to the County
Board of Supervisors all proceedings it had in connection with the election results.  (Education Code 15124, 15274)

Resolutions Regarding Sale of Bonds

CSBA NOTE: The following section applies to bond elections requiring either a 55 percent or 66.67 percent
approval by local voters. Pursuant to Education Code 15140, bonds may be offered for sale by either the County
Board of Supervisors or the County Superintendent of Schools. However, the County Board of Supervisors may
adopt a resolution authorizing a district to sell bonds on its own behalf when the district has not received a qualified
or negative certification in its most recent interim financial report; see BP/AR 3460 - Financial Reports and
Accountability.

In addition to districts' authority to issue bonds pursuant to Education Code 15100-15254, Government Code
53506-53509.5 provide an alternative method. However, any district that intends to issue bonds using this
alternative method is subject to stricter requirements pursuant to Government Code 53508.5.

Pursuant to Education Code 15100.3 and 15267, two or more small school districts with average daily attendance
of 2,500 or less that have voter-approved authority to issue bonds, may form a joint powers authority, in
accordance with Government Code 6500 - 6539.9, for the purpose of issuing or selling bonds for raising money for
the purposes authorized.

Districts using these alternative methods may need to further modify this policy and accompanying administrative
regulation and should consult with CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal
counsel as necessary.

Regardless of the method used to issue bonds, pursuant to Education Code 15144.1 and 15144.2, the district's
total debt service to principal ratio must not exceed four to one and, if the bond allows for the compounding of
interest, such as a capital appreciation bond (CAB), and matures more than 10 years after its issuance date, the bond
must be redeemable by the district no later than 10 years from issuance. Pursuant to Government Code 53508.6, a
current interest bond (CIB) may have a maturity of up to 40 years provided that the district complies with the
disclosure requirements specified in Education Code 15146 and makes a finding that the useful life of the facility to
be financed with the bonds is at least equal to the maturity date of the bonds.
Following passage of the bond measure by the appropriate majority of voters, the Board shall pass a resolution
directing the issuance and sale of bonds. In accordance with law, the resolution shall prescribe the total amount of

319 541



bonds to be sold and may also prescribe the maximum acceptable interest rate, not to exceed eight percent, and the
time(s) when the whole or any part of the principal of the bonds shall be payable.  (Education Code 15140;
Government Code 53508.6)

CSBA NOTE: To ensure prudence in the expenditure of district resources, the Board should carefully consider all
available funding instruments, such as CIBs, CABs, and convertible capital appreciation bonds, the manner in which
the bonds will be sold, and other related issues as specified in Education Code 15146. Districts considering the
method of bond sale and kinds of bonds to sell are encouraged to review CSBA's Governance Brief, "Bond Sales -
Questions and Considerations for Districts," and establish a bond financing team including a municipal advisor and
bond counsel.
In passing the resolution, the Board shall consider each available funding instrument, including, but not limited to, the
costs associated with each and their relative suitability for the project to be financed.

Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall place an agenda item at a public meeting and adopt as part of the bond
issuance resolution, or in a separate resolution, disclosures of the available funding instruments, the costs and
sustainability of each, and all of the following information:  (Education Code 15146)

1. Express approval of the method of sale, such as competitive or negotiated sales
 

2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected
 

3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond underwriter and the financial
adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless these individuals have not been selected at the time the
resolution is adopted, in which case the Board shall disclose their identities at the public meeting occurring
after they have been selected
 

4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance, including, but not limited to, bond counsel and
financial advisor fees, printing costs, rating agency fees, underwriting fees, and other miscellaneous costs and
expenses of issuing the bonds

When the sale involves bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, such as a capital appreciation bond (CAB),
the resolution to be adopted by the Board shall include Items #1-4 above as well as the financing term and time of
maturity, repayment ratio, and the estimated change in the assessed value of taxable property within the district
over the term of the bonds. The resolution shall be publicly noticed on at least two consecutive meeting agendas,
first as an information item and second as an action item. The agendas shall identify that bonds that allow for the
compounding of interest are proposed.  (Education Code 15146)

Prior to adopting a resolution for the sale of bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, the Board shall be
presented with the following:  (Education Code 15146)

1. An analysis containing the total overall cost of the bonds that allow for the compounding of interest
 

2. A comparison to the overall cost of current interest bonds
 

3. The reason bonds that allow for the compounding of interest are being recommended
 

4. A copy of the disclosure made by the underwriter in compliance with Rule G-17 adopted by the federal
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 8855 requires that the district report any proposed issuance of debt to CDIAC at
least 30 days prior to the sale of the debt issue. Typically, bond counsel will file the report on behalf of the district.
Government Code 8855 requires that the report include a certification that the district has adopted a debt
management policy and that the issuance is consistent with that policy. Pursuant to Government Code 8855, the
district must also annually submit, on or before January 31, a report to the CDIAC regarding all outstanding debt
and the use of the proceeds of the issued debt. See BP 3470 - Debt Issuance and Management.
At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a report of the
proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC).  (Government Code 8855)

After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual issuance cost information and shall disclose that
information at the Board's next scheduled meeting. The Board shall ensure that an itemized summary of the costs of
the bond sale and all necessary information and reports regarding the sale are submitted to the CDAIC.  (Education
Code 15146; Government Code 53509.5)

320 542



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Bond Anticipation Notes

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 15150, the district is authorized to issue a bond anticipation note when
the Board determines by resolution that it is in the best interest of the district to finance a facilities project on an
interim basis in anticipation of the sale of bonds that has been approved by voters. The note may only be issued in
accordance with law and subject to terms and conditions prescribed by the Board.
Whenever the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, it may, by resolution, issue a bond
anticipation note, on a negotiated or competitive-bid basis, to raise funds that shall be used only for a purpose
authorized by a bond that has been approved by the voters of the district in accordance with law.  (Education Code
15150)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 15150 clarifies that interest on a bond anticipation note may be paid at maturity from
the proceeds of the sale of the bond in anticipation of which it was issued or paid periodically from a property tax
levied for that purpose if certain conditions are satisfied.
Payment of principal and interest on any bond anticipation note shall be made at note maturity, not to exceed five
years, from the proceeds derived from the sale of the bond in anticipation of which that note was originally issued or
from any other source lawfully available for that purpose, including state grants. Interest payments may also be made
from such sources. However, interest payments may be made periodically and prior to note maturity from an
increased property tax if the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 15150)

1. A resolution of the Board authorizes the property tax for that purpose
 

2. The principal amount of the bond anticipation note does not exceed the remaining principal amount of the
authorized but unissued bonds

A bond anticipation note may be issued only if the tax rate levied to pay interest on the note would not cause the
district to exceed the tax rate limitation set forth in Education Code 15268 or 15270, as applicable.

Deposit of Bond Proceeds

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 15146, the proceeds of the sale of bonds, exclusive of any premium
received, must be deposited in the county treasury to the credit of the building fund of the district. Education Code
15146 prohibits districts from withdrawing proceeds from the sale of bonds at any time for purposes of making
investments outside the county treasury.
With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in the county treasury
pool as required by law.  (Education Code 15146)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit

Ed. Code 15100-15254 Bonds for school districts and community college districts

Ed. Code 15264-15288 Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000

Ed. Code 17577 Sewers and drains

Ed. Code 47614 Charter school facilities

Ed. Code 5322 Resolution calling election

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Elec. Code 1125-1129 Incompatible activities

Elec. Code 13119 Forms of Ballots; ballot order

Elec. Code 15372 Elections official certificate

321 543



Elec. Code 324 General election

Elec. Code 328 Local election

Elec. Code 341 Primary election

Elec. Code 348 Regular election

Elec. Code 356 Special election

Elec. Code 357 Statewide election

Elec. Code 53506-53509.5 General obligation bonds

Elec. Code 53580-53595.5 Bonds

Elec. Code 54952 Definition of legislative body; Brown Act

Elec. Code 9160-9170 Ballot label; support and opposition listings

Elec. Code 9400-9405 Bond issues

Gov. Code 6500-6539.9 Joint powers agreements

Gov. Code 8855 California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 240.10b-5 Prohibition against fraud or deceit

17 CFR 240.15c2-12 Municipal securities disclosure

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004)

Attorney General Opinion 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005)

Attorney General Opinion 99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016)

Court Decision Taxpayers for Accountable School Bond Spending v. San Diego Unified
School District (2013) 215 Cal.App.4th 1013

Court Decision San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San
Lorenzo Valley Unified School District (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356

CSBA Publication California's Challenge: Adequately Funding Education in the 21st Century,
December 2015

CSBA Publication Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and
Candidates, Fact Sheet, February 2011

CSBA Publication Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, Governance Brief,
December 2012

Debt & Investment Advisory Commission
Publication California Debt Financing Guide, rev. March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Types of Legal Counsel, Best Practice, September 2018

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing the Method of Sale of Bonds, Best Practice, March
2021

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, March 2020

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Investment and Management of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice,
March 2020

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Refunding Municipal Bonds, Best Practice, March 2019

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 3rd Ed., 2008

322 544



Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Government Finance Officers Association

Website Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access
(EMMA)

Website California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

Website Department of General Services, Office of Public School Construction

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1160 Political Processes

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1330.1 Joint Use Agreements

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3470 Debt Issuance And Management

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

6151 Class Size

7110 Facilities Master Plan

7210 Facilities Financing

7213 School Facilities Improvement Districts

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E(1) Actions By The Board

323 545



9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

324 546



Regulation 7214: General Obligation BondsRegulation 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Election Notice

CSBA NOTE: Notice and ballot requirements for bond elections are specified in Education Code 15120-15126.
Additional requirements for bond measures with a 55 percent (Proposition 39) threshold are contained in Education
Code 15272. Due to the complexity of bond elections, districts are advised to consult with CSBA District and
County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel.
Whenever the Governing Board orders an election on the question of whether general obligation bonds shall be
issued to pay for school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that election notice and ballot
requirements comply with Education Code 15120-15126 and 15272, as applicable, and the section "Ballot
Materials" below.

CSBA NOTE: Since certain election officials may require delivery of the bond measure more than 88 days prior to
the date of the election, districts should check with their county election officials for when the documents specified
below should be delivered to the officer conducting the election.
At least 88 days prior to the date of the election, the Superintendent or designee shall deliver to the officer
conducting the election the resolution calling the election, including the date and purpose of the election, the
authority for ordering the election and the specification of the election order, the signature of the officer or the clerk
of the Board authorized to make such designations, and all other applicable ballot materials.   (Education Code 5322)

Ballot Materials

The ballot question to appear on the ballot shall not exceed 75 words and shall appear in the form specified in
Elections Code 13119.  (Education Code 5322)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the ballot materials comply with applicable laws including a brief
statement of the measure setting forth the amount of the bonds to be voted upon, the maximum rate of interest, and
the purposes for which the proceeds of the sale of the bonds are to be used.  (Education Code 15122)

In addition to the 75 word ballot question, a separate statement shall be included with the sample ballot, which
includes the best estimate from official sources of all of the following:  (Elections Code 9401)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 9401, as amended by SB 798 (Ch. 720, Statutes of 2023), "tax rate" means
tax rate per $100,000 of assessed valuation on all property to be taxed to fund a bond issue.

1. The average annual tax rate that would be required to be levied to fund the bond issue over the entire duration
of the bond debt service, based on assessed valuations available at the time of the election or a projection
based on experience within the same jurisdiction or other demonstrable factors

The estimate shall also identify the final fiscal year in which the tax is anticipated to be collected.
 

2. The highest tax rate that would be required to be levied to fund the bond issue, and an estimate of the year in
which that rate will apply, based on assessed valuations available at the time of the election or a projection
based on experience within the same jurisdiction or other demonstrable factors
 

3. The total debt service, including the principal and interest, that would be required to be repaid if all the bonds
are issued and sold

The estimate may include information about the assumptions used to determine the estimate.

For bond measures requiring 55 percent majority of the voters, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the
text of the ballot measure includes a statement that the Board will appoint a citizens' oversight committee and that
annual independent audits will be conducted to assure that funds are spent only on school and classroom
improvements and for no other purposes.  (Education Code 15272)

For bond funded projects that require state matching funds, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure the sample
ballot contains a statement advising the voters that the project is subject to the approval of state matching funds

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

325 547



and, therefore, passage of the bond measure is not a guarantee that the project will be completed.  (Education Code
15122.5)

CSBA NOTE: Elections Code 9170 requires the ballot label or similar description of a school district measure on a
county ballot to list, either as a supporter or an opponent of the measure, the associations, nonprofit organizations,
businesses, or individuals, including current or former elected officials such as board members, who have signed the
ballot argument or are listed in the text of the argument for or against the measure, unless the county board of
supervisors elects not to list such supporters and opponents. For more information see BP 1160 - Political
Processes.
Arguments in support or in opposition of the bond measure shall be submitted in accordance with Elections Code
9160-9170.

Citizens' Oversight Committee

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that have appointed an independent citizens'
oversight committee, as required by Education Code 15278 for districts that have had a general obligation bond
approved under the 55 percent threshold. The section may also be adapted for use by districts that have had
approval of a bond with 66.67 percent majority vote that choose to appoint an oversight committee at their
discretion; see the accompanying Board policy.
If a bond is approved under the 55 percent majority threshold pursuant to Proposition 39 to the California
Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 18(b), then the district's citizens' oversight
committee shall consist of at least seven members, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 15282)

1. One member active in a business organization representing the business community located within the district
 

2. One member active in a senior citizens' organization
 

3. One member active in a bona fide taxpayers' organization
 

4. One member who is a parent/guardian of a district student
 

5. One member who is a parent/guardian of a district student and is active in a parent-teacher organization, such
as the Parent Teacher Association or school site council

Members of the citizens' oversight committee shall be subject to the conflict of interest prohibitions regarding
incompatibility of office pursuant to Government Code 1125-1129 and financial interest in contracts pursuant to
Government Code 1090-1099.  (Education Code 15282)

No employee, Board member, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the district shall be appointed to the citizens'
oversight committee.  (Education Code 15282)

Members of the citizens' oversight committee may serve for no more than three consecutive terms of two years
each. They shall serve without compensation.  (Education Code 15282)

The purpose of the citizens' oversight committee shall be to inform the public concerning the expenditure of bond
revenues. The committee shall actively review and report on the proper expenditure of taxpayers' money for school
construction and shall convene to provide oversight for, but not limited to, the following:  (Education Code 15278)

1. Ensuring that bond revenues are expended only for the purposes described in California Constitution, Article
13A, Section 1(b)(3), including the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school
facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property
for school facilities
 

2. Ensuring that, as prohibited by California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(A), no funds are used for any
teacher and administrative salaries or other school operating expenses

In furtherance of its purpose, the committee may engage in any of the following activities:  (Education Code 15278)

1. Receiving and reviewing copies of the annual, independent performance and financial audits required by
California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(C) and (D)
 

2. Inspecting school facilities and grounds to ensure that bond revenues are expended in compliance with the

326 548



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

requirements of California Constitution, Article 13(A), Section 1(b)(3)
 

3. Receiving and reviewing copies of any deferred maintenance proposals or plans developed by the district
 

4. Reviewing efforts by the district to maximize bond revenues by implementing cost-saving measures, including,
but not limited to, the following:
 

a. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of professional fees
 

b. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of site preparation
 

c. Recommendations regarding the joint use of core facilities
 

d. Mechanisms designed to reduce costs by incorporating efficiencies in school site design
 

e. Recommendations regarding the use of cost-effective and efficient reusable facility plans

The district shall, without expending bond funds, provide the citizens' oversight committee with any necessary
technical assistance and shall provide administrative assistance in furtherance of the committee's purpose and
sufficient resources to publicize the committee's conclusions. The district shall also provide the citizens' oversight
committee with responses to any and all findings, recommendations, and concerns addressed in the annual
independent financial and performance audits within three months of receiving the audits.  (Education Code 15280)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 54952, the Brown Act open meeting laws apply to any commission,
committee, board, or other body created by formal action of the Governing Board, regardless of whether that body
is permanent or temporary, decision-making or advisory.
All citizens' oversight committee proceedings shall be open to the public and noticed in the same manner as
proceedings of the Board. Committee meetings shall be subject to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
(Education Code 15280; Government Code 54952)

The citizens' oversight committee shall issue regular reports, at least once a year, on the results of its activities.
Minutes of the proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a matter of public record and shall
be made available on the district's website.  (Education Code 15280)

Reports

CSBA NOTE: The following section applies to all bond elections.
Within 30 days after the end of each fiscal year, the district shall submit to the County Superintendent of Schools a
report concerning any bond election(s) containing the following information:  (Education Code 15111)

1. The total amount of the bond issue, bonded indebtedness, or other indebtedness involved
 

2. The percentage of registered electors who voted at the election
 

3. The results of the election, with the percentage of votes cast for and against the proposition

By each January 31 following a bond issuance, the district shall submit an annual report to the California Debt
Investment and Advisory Commission in accordance with Government Code 8855 and as specified in BP 3470 -
Debt Issuance and Management.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit

Ed. Code 15100-15254 Bonds for school districts and community college districts

Ed. Code 15264-15288 Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000

327 549



Ed. Code 17577 Sewers and drains

Ed. Code 47614 Charter school facilities

Ed. Code 5322 Resolution calling election

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Elec. Code 1125-1129 Incompatible activities

Elec. Code 13119 Forms of Ballots; ballot order

Elec. Code 15372 Elections official certificate

Elec. Code 324 General election

Elec. Code 328 Local election

Elec. Code 341 Primary election

Elec. Code 348 Regular election

Elec. Code 356 Special election

Elec. Code 357 Statewide election

Elec. Code 53506-53509.5 General obligation bonds

Elec. Code 53580-53595.5 Bonds

Elec. Code 54952 Definition of legislative body; Brown Act

Elec. Code 9160-9170 Ballot label; support and opposition listings

Elec. Code 9400-9405 Bond issues

Gov. Code 6500-6539.9 Joint powers agreements

Gov. Code 8855 California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 240.10b-5 Prohibition against fraud or deceit

17 CFR 240.15c2-12 Municipal securities disclosure

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004)

Attorney General Opinion 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005)

Attorney General Opinion 99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016)

Court Decision Taxpayers for Accountable School Bond Spending v. San Diego Unified
School District (2013) 215 Cal.App.4th 1013

Court Decision San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San
Lorenzo Valley Unified School District (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356

CSBA Publication California's Challenge: Adequately Funding Education in the 21st Century,
December 2015

CSBA Publication Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and
Candidates, Fact Sheet, February 2011

CSBA Publication Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, Governance Brief,
December 2012

Debt & Investment Advisory Commission
Publication California Debt Financing Guide, rev. March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Types of Legal Counsel, Best Practice, September 2018

328 550



Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing the Method of Sale of Bonds, Best Practice, March
2021

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, March 2020

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Investment and Management of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice,
March 2020

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Refunding Municipal Bonds, Best Practice, March 2019

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 3rd Ed., 2008

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Government Finance Officers Association

Website Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access
(EMMA)

Website California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

Website Department of General Services, Office of Public School Construction

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1160 Political Processes

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1330.1 Joint Use Agreements

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3470 Debt Issuance And Management

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

6151 Class Size

329 551



7110 Facilities Master Plan

7210 Facilities Financing

7213 School Facilities Improvement Districts

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E(1) Actions By The Board

9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

330 552



Bylaw 9220: Governing Board ElectionsBylaw 9220: Governing Board Elections Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/01/2006 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

CSBA NOTE: The following bylaw is optional and should be revised to reflect district practice. While many district
elections are governed by state law, some district elections are governed by the applicable city or county charter, or
both. This bylaw is written based on state law but should be modified to the extent a city or county charter applies.

The filling of elective offices involves serious issues of constitutional and statutory concerns. Any district with
questions related to local elections should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or
district legal counsel.

Board Member Qualifications

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35107 details eligibility for Governing Board membership as specified below,
including the requirement to be registered to vote. Elections Code 2201 lists the causes for cancelling an
individual's voter registration, including, but not limited to, legally established mental incompetency, proof that the
person is presently imprisoned or on parole for conviction of a felony, or official notification that the voter is
registered to vote in another country or state.

Additionally, pursuant to certain provisions of the California Constitution and various state laws, the conviction of
certain offenses makes a person ineligible to be a Board member, except when the person has been granted a
pardon in accordance with law. For example, Article VII, Section 8 of the California Constitution prohibits anyone
from holding public office if convicted of giving or offering a bribe to procure personal election or appointment. See
the accompanying exhibit for a non-exhaustive list of such offenses.
Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if the person is: 18
years of age or older; a citizen of California; a resident of the school district or, if applicable, the trustee area; a
registered voter; and not legally disqualified from holding civil office.  (Education Code 35107)

A person is not eligible to be a member of the Board if they have been convicted of an offense(s) as specified in law
and the accompanying Exhibit, except when the person has been granted a pardon in accordance with law. A district
employee duly elected to the Board shall resign from district employment, or shall otherwise cease being a district
employee, before being sworn in. If a district employee duly elected to the Board is sworn in and remains a district
employee, then the employment shall automatically terminate upon being sworn into office.  (Education Code
35107)

CSBA NOTE: See CSBA's website for information about governing board services that may be shared with
candidates.
The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board members. The
Superintendent or designee shall provide a Board candidate, upon request by the candidate, with information that
will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board member, including information
regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a
Board candidate, upon request by the candidate, the county election official's contact information and general
information about school programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities.

Recalling a Board Member

A Board member may be recalled as permitted by Elections Code 11000-11386. To commence a recall of a Board
member, proponents shall serve, file, and publish or post a notice of intention to circulate the recall petition as
specified by law and any applicable county elections official directives. Additionally, the recall petition shall be in the
format provided by the Secretary of State and include, among other things, an estimate of the cost of conducting the
special election, as determined by the county elections official, in consultation with the district.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 11240, within 14 days after the regular Board meeting at which the Board
received a certificate of sufficiency to recall a Board member, the Board is required to order a recall election and set
a date for the recall election in accordance with law. Pursuant to Elections Code 11241, if the Board fails to do so,
the elections official of the county is required to set the date for the recall election within five days after the
expiration of the 14-day window.
Within 14 days after the regular meeting at which the Board receives a certificate of sufficiency of signatures on a
recall petition from a county elections official, the Board shall order an election to be held to determine whether the
Board member named in the petition shall be recalled. The election shall be held not less than 88, nor more than 125,

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

331 553



days after the date that the Board orders the election. However, the election may be conducted within 180 days
after the issuance of the Board's order to consolidate the election with a regularly scheduled election.  (Elections
Code 11240-11242)

A recall election of a Board member shall be conducted in accordance with Elections Code 11381-11386.

If a recall of a Board member is successful, that Board member's seat becomes vacant and shall be filled in
accordance with Education Code 5090-95 and Board Bylaw 9223 - Filling Vacancies.

Consolidation of Elections

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for districts that currently hold their Board elections at a time that is
not concurrent with municipal or statewide elections.

In general, Education Code 5000 and Elections Code 1302 require the regular election of Board members to be
held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each odd-numbered year. However, in accordance
with Elections Code 1302 and 10404.5, districts are authorized to request consolidation of their Board elections
with the local municipal or state primary or general election by adopting a Board resolution and submitting it to the
County Board of Supervisors for approval. Most districts choose to consolidate their Board elections with the local
municipal or state primary or general election.

Pursuant to Elections Code 14051-14052, districts are required to hold elections concurrent with statewide
elections if holding nonconcurrent elections has previously resulted in a "significant decrease" in voter turnout, as
defined. Districts consolidating their elections due to low voter turnout should follow the procedures specified in
Elections Code 1302, including the adoption of a Board resolution. For further analysis, see CSBA's, "Legal Alert on
the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections."
The Board may consolidate Board elections with the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in
accordance with Elections Code 1302. Additionally, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a
statewide election date results in a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the average
local turnout for the previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take action to consolidate Board
elections with statewide elections in accordance with Elections Code 14051-14052.

In order to consolidate elections, the Board shall adopt a resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors
for approval not later than 240 days prior to the date of the currently scheduled district election.  (Elections Code
10404.5)

Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, the terms of office of
incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next applicable election.  (Elections Code 10404.5)

Elections Process and Procedures

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Election Code 15400, after each election, the Board is required to declare who has been
elected to the Board.
For each election, upon certification by the County Board of Supervisors, the Board shall declare who has been
elected to the Board in accordance with law.  (Election Code 15400)

A Board member whose term has expired shall continue to discharge the duties of the office until a successor has
qualified by taking the oath of office.  (Government Code 1302, 1360)

CSBA NOTE: Any district with questions regarding the election process and procedures, particularly the California
Voting Rights Act (Elections Code 14025-14032) should consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education
Legal Services or district legal counsel.
OPTION 1:  (Election by trustee area)

Each Board member shall reside in the trustee area they represent and shall be elected by voters residing within that
trustee area. Trustee areas shall be balanced by population as required by state and federal law.

CSBA NOTE: Elections Code 21100-21180, as added by AB 764 (Ch. 343, Statutes of 2023), create the Fair And
Inclusive Redistricting for Municipalities And Political Subdivisions (FAIR MAPS) Act of 2023 which establishes a
comprehensive set of rules that local governments must follow during the redistricting process.

332 554



Following each decennial federal census the Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district's trustee areas in
accordance with Elections Code 21100-21180.  (Education Code 5019.5)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: Any district that selects Option 2 or 3 should ensure that its decision is consistent with Elections Code
14025-14032 (the California Voting Rights Act (CVRA)) which prohibits the use of the "at-large" voting method for
elections within jurisdictions with a history of "racially polarized voting" (i.e., difference between voters of a
protected class and voters in the rest of the jurisdiction in the choice of candidates preferred).
OPTION 2:  (Election using "at-large" voting method)

Board members may reside anywhere within the district's boundaries and shall be elected by all voters in the district.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: In addition to the methods described in Option 1 and Option 2, a district may use a "hybrid" method,
which requires each Board member to reside within the trustee area that the Board member represents but be
elected by all voters in the district. The extent, if any, to which a district using this "hybrid" method is required to
balance its trustee areas by population is unclear.
OPTION 3:  (Election using hybrid method)

Each Board member shall reside within the trustee area that the Board member represents but shall be elected by all
voters in the district. Trustee areas shall be balanced by population as required by state and federal law.
CSBA NOTE: Elections Code 21100-21180, as added by AB 764, create the FAIR MAPS Act of 2023 which
establishes a comprehensive set of rules that local governments must follow during the redistricting process.
Following each decennial federal census the Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district's trustee areas in
accordance with Elections Code 21100-21180.  (Education Code 5019.5)

OPTIONS 3 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Districts using Option 2 or 3
should periodically monitor the demographics within their geographical boundaries to ensure that no violation of
the CVRA occurs. Any district found in violation of the CVRA could be held liable for attorneys' fees and legal costs.
Elections Code 10010 requires that a prospective plaintiff send written notice to the district prior to filing a
complaint alleging that the method of election violates the CVRA so that the district will have the chance to cure
any potential violations before the commencement of litigation. Even if the district cures the alleged violations, it
may be required to pay reasonable costs incurred in supporting the written notice.
The Board may review the district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary.

CSBA NOTE: Converting from an "at-large" (Option 2) to a "by trustee area" (Option 1) voting method involves
complex issues of law regarding matters such as the redrawing of maps, required approvals, and transition dates.
Elections Code 10010 and 21100-21150 require the Board to follow procedural requirements and hold hearings
before and after drawing maps of the proposed district boundaries to allow for public input. If Board members will
be elected at different times for staggered terms of office, hearings held after publishing the draft map(s) are
required to include an opportunity for public input regarding the proposed sequence of elections.
If the district seeks to change its election method, the Board shall follow procedural requirements and hold public
hearings in accordance with Elections Code 10010 and 21100-21150 before adopting a resolution at an open
meeting specifying the change and obtain approval from the county committee on school district organization having
jurisdiction over the district in accordance with Education Code 5019.

CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this section is for all districts. The Attorney General opined in 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen.
182 (2022) that when the boundaries of a district's trustee areas are adjusted or the district changes from "at-large
elections" to "by-trustee area elections," and a vacancy then arises in a seat held by a Board member whose term of
office began prior to the change in boundaries or election method, the vacancy should be filled using the boundaries
or election method by which the incumbent Board member was elected. Any district that has already adopted a "by-
trustee" election method should revise the following paragraph accordingly.
The election method or trustee-area boundaries in effect at the beginning of a Board member's term shall be used
when any vacancy that occurs during that term is to be filled, even if, during the term, the district has adopted "by-
trustee area" election method or trustee area boundaries have been adjusted.

333 555



Campaign Conduct

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35177 authorizes boards, by resolution, to limit campaign expenditures and/or
contributions for candidates in board elections. Based on the First Amendment, however, courts have imposed
constraints on limitations on campaign expenditures and/or contributions limits. It is strongly recommended that,
before adopting any campaign expenditures and/or contribution limits, the Board consult CSBA's District and
County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel, in order to ensure that the district's limits satisfy
legal restrictions.
All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by local, county, state, and
federal requirements regarding campaign contributions, funding, and expenditures.

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 85300 generally prohibits the expenditure of public funds for the purpose of
seeking elective office. However, Government Code 85300 permits a candidate to expend or accept public funds
for the purpose of seeking elective office if the Board establishes a dedicated fund for that purpose, provided that
both (1) the public funds are available to all qualified, voluntarily participating candidates for the same office
without regard to incumbency or political party preference, and (2) the Board has established criteria for
determining a candidate's qualifications. For school board elections, candidate qualifications are specified in state
law (see section "Board Member Qualifications" above), and districts should not establish additional qualification
requirements.
A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the purpose of seeking
elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for those seeking election to the Board,
provided that the funds are available to all candidates who are qualified pursuant to Education Code 35107 without
regard to incumbency or political preference.  (Government Code 85300)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 20440, county election officials are required to present each candidate
running for public office with a voluntary Code of Fair Campaign Practices for the candidate to sign. However,
neither the district nor opposing candidates have authority to enforce the pledge if it is violated. The following
optional paragraph expresses the Board's desire that candidates for Board membership sign and abide by the terms
of the pledge.
In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's confidence in the Board and
district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign
Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440.

Statement of Qualifications

On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or designee shall deliver
a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the county elections official describing both of the
following:  (Elections Code 10509)

1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if any, are for the
balance of an unexpired term
 

2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of qualifications pursuant to
Elections Code 13307

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 13307, the candidate statement is limited to 200 words (Option 1 below),
unless the Board chooses to authorize a 400-word maximum (Option 2 below).
OPTION 1:  (200 Words Limit)

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the voter's
pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 words.  (Elections Code 13307)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (400 Words Limit)

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the voter's
pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 400 words.  (Elections Code 13307)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

334 556



CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 13307, a voter may receive by mail a voter's pamphlet that contains
candidate statements or, when authorized by the elections official, may opt to obtain the voter's pamphlet and
related materials electronically (i.e., from the elections official's web site or via email). When electronic distribution
is authorized by the elections official, districts may choose, pursuant to Elections Code 13307, whether to permit
Board candidates to prepare a statement for electronic distribution. If a candidate chooses to submit a statement
for electronic distribution only, it will not appear in the mailed voter's pamphlet.

The following paragraph, which may be revised to reflect district practice, is for use by any district that authorizes
electronic distribution of candidate statements in addition to or instead of the mailed voter's pamphlet.
When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a candidate for the Board
may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for inclusion in the mailed voter's pamphlet,
prepare and submit a candidate statement for electronic distribution.

CSBA NOTE: Prior to the beginning of the nominating period, Elections Code 13307 requires the Board to
determine whether to have the district assume the costs of producing candidate statements or to charge candidates
for the costs, regardless of whether the statements are for hard copy or electronic distribution. In 85
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002), the Attorney General opined that Elections Code 13307, which authorizes the district
to pay for the distribution of candidate statements for nonpartisan elective offices, does not conflict with Education
Code 7054, which prohibits the use of district resources for campaign purposes.

Option 1 below is for districts that assume the costs associated with producing candidate statements, and Option 2
is for districts that charge candidates for the costs. The following options may be revised to reflect the method of
distribution (i.e., electronic and/or hard copy) used by the district.
OPTION 1:  (Candidate Statement Paid by District)

The district shall pay the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, and/or electronically distributing candidate
statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Candidate Statement Paid by Candidate)

The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or electronically distributing
candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a condition of having candidate statements
included in the voter's pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these
costs to the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 5016 requires the Board to decide, before conducting any election, whether a
potential tie will be resolved by lot or by a runoff election. Option 1 provides for the use of lots to determine the
winner in case of a tie in every election and Option 2 provides for a runoff election in every election.

Education Code 5016 requires the County Superintendent of Schools to provide certification of a tie vote in an
election to the district Board.
OPTION 1:  (Tie Decided by Lot)
Whenever the County Superintendent of Schools certifies to the Board that there is a tie vote such that it is
impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to the Board, the Board shall
immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and place where the candidates or their
representatives should appear before the Board. The Board at that time and place shall determine the winner by lot. 
(Education Code 5016)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Tie Decided by Runoff Election)

Whenever the County Superintendent certifies to the Board that there is a tie vote such that it is impossible to

335 557



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to the Board, the Board shall schedule a runoff election
in accordance with law.  (Education Code 5016)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 2, Section 2 Voters; qualifications

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35177 Campaign expenditures or contributions

Ed. Code 35239 Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70
ADA

Ed. Code 5000-5033 Election of school district board members

Ed. Code 5091 Vacancies; petition for special election

Ed. Code 5220-5231 Elections

Ed. Code 5300-5304 General provisions; conduct of elections

Ed. Code 5320-5329 Order and call of elections

Ed. Code 5340-5345 Consolidation of elections

Ed. Code 5360-5363 Election notice

Ed. Code 5380 Compensation; election officer

Ed. Code 5390 Qualifications of voters

Ed. Code 5420-5426 Cost of elections

Ed. Code 5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 10010 District boundaries

Elec. Code 10400-10418 Consolidation of elections

Elec. Code 10509 Notice of election by secretary

Elec. Code 10600-10604 School district elections

Elec. Code 11000 Recall of officers

Elec. Code 1302 Local elections; school district election

Elec. Code 13307 Candidate's statement

Elec. Code 13308 Candidate's statement contents

Elec. Code 13309 Candidate's statement; indigence

Elec. Code 14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act

Elec. Code 14050-14057 California Voter Participation Rights Act

Elec. Code 15400 Announcement of election results

Elec. Code 18501 Election fraud

Elec. Code 20 Public office eligibility

336 558



Elec. Code 20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices

Elec. Code 21100-21180 FAIR MAPS Act

Elec. Code 2201 Grounds for cancellation

Elec. Code 4000-4008 Elections conducted wholly by mail

Gov. Code 1021 Conviction of crime

Gov. Code 1097 Illegal participation in public contract

Gov. Code 12940 Unlawful discriminatory employment practices

Gov. Code 1770 Vacancy of office

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

Gov. Code 9055 Committing crimes against legislative power

Gov. Code 9412 Refusing to appear

Pen. Code 165 Bribes to members of city council

Pen. Code 2772 Interfering with the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 2790 Interrupting the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 424 Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers

Pen. Code 661 Removal for neglect or violation of official duty

Pen. Code 67 Giving bribes

Pen. Code 68 Receiving bribes

Pen. Code 74 Acceptance of gratuity

Pen. Code 88 Crimes against legislative power

Pen. Code 98 Crimes against public justice

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

52 USC 10301-10508 Voting Rights Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 182 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 (1998)

Attorney General Opinion 83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000)

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002)

Court Decision Dusch v. Davis (1967) 387 U.S. 112

Court Decision Randall v. Sorrell (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479

Court Decision Rey v. Madera Unified School District (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223

Court Decision Sanchez v. City of Modesto (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660

CSBA Publication Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections,
January 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

Website Fair Political Practices Commission

Website California Secretary of State's Office

337 559



Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

9005 Governance Standards

9110 Terms Of Office

9223 Filling Vacancies

9224 Oath Or Affirmation

9230 Orientation

9240 Board Training

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

338 560



Exhibit 9220-E(1): Governing Board ElectionsExhibit 9220-E(1): Governing Board Elections Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of offenses the conviction of which disqualifies a person from holding public
office, including as a Governing Board member of a school district, in the State of California.

1. California Constitution, Article VII, Section 8: Giving or offering a bribe to procure personal election or
appointment
 

2. California Constitution, Article VII, Section 8: Committing bribery, perjury, forgery, malfeasance in office, or
other high crimes
 

3. Penal Code section 67: Giving or offering a bribe to any executive officer in the state to influence any decision
made by that officer in their official capacity
 

4. Penal Code section 68: While an executive or ministerial officer, employee, or appointee of the state, a county,
a city, or another political subdivision of the state, asking for, receiving, or agreeing to receive any bribe to
influence any decision made by that person in their official capacity
 

5. Penal Code section 74: As a public officer, for gratuity or reward, appointing another person to public office, or
permitting another person to exercise or discharge the duties of their office
 

6. Penal Code section 88: While a member of the Legislature or of a legislative body of a city, county, city and
county, school district, or other special district, committing any of various crimes against the Legislative power,
including bribery and logrolling
 

7. Penal Code section 98: While an officer, committing any of various bribery and corruption crimes against the
public justice as specified in Penal Code 92-100, including bribing or threatening judges or jurors
 

8. Penal Code section 165: Giving or offering a bribe to a member of a city council or a board of supervisors to
influence any decision made by that member in their official capacity
 

9. Penal Code section 424: While an officer of the state or of any county, city, town, or district of the state, or
while otherwise charged with the receipt, safekeeping, transfer, or disbursement of public moneys,
appropriating such moneys for personal use, or refusing to pay any public moneys as required by law
 

10. Penal Code section 2772: Interfering with the work of prisoners employed at a road camp, or giving or
attempting to give such prisoners any controlled substances, intoxicating liquors, firearms, weapons, or
explosives of any kind
 

11. Penal Code section 2790: Interrupting the work of prisoners employed at a public park or camp, or giving or
attempting to give such prisoners any controlled substances, intoxicating liquors, firearms, weapons, or
explosives of any kind
 

12. Government Code section 1021: Committing designated crimes as specified in the California Constitution or
state law
 

13. Government Code section 1097: While a public official, being financially interested in a contract made in their
official capacity, or by any body or board of which he or she is a member, or aiding or abetting a public official
in committing such a violation
 

14. Government Code section 9055: While a member of the Legislature or of a legislative body of a city, county,
city and county, school district, or other special district, committing any of various crimes against the
Legislative power, including bribery and logrolling
 

15. Government Code section 9412: While a member of the Legislature, refusing to appear before the Senate,
Assembly, or any committee of the Legislature after being summoned to testify, or while appearing before the
Senate, Assembly, or any committee, refusing to be sworn or to answer any material and proper question, or
refusing to produce, upon reasonable notice, any material and proper books, papers, or documents in their
possession and under their control

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

339 561



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
16. Elections Code section 20: Committing a felony involving accepting or giving, or offering to give, any bribe, the

embezzlement of public money, extortion or theft of public money, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any of
those crimes
 

17. Elections Code section 18501: While a public official, aiding the illegal casting of a vote at an election or
otherwise facilitating the perpetration of election fraud

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 2, Section 2 Voters; qualifications

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35177 Campaign expenditures or contributions

Ed. Code 35239 Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70
ADA

Ed. Code 5000-5033 Election of school district board members

Ed. Code 5091 Vacancies; petition for special election

Ed. Code 5220-5231 Elections

Ed. Code 5300-5304 General provisions; conduct of elections

Ed. Code 5320-5329 Order and call of elections

Ed. Code 5340-5345 Consolidation of elections

Ed. Code 5360-5363 Election notice

Ed. Code 5380 Compensation; election officer

Ed. Code 5390 Qualifications of voters

Ed. Code 5420-5426 Cost of elections

Ed. Code 5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 10010 District boundaries

Elec. Code 10400-10418 Consolidation of elections

Elec. Code 10509 Notice of election by secretary

Elec. Code 10600-10604 School district elections

Elec. Code 11000 Recall of officers

Elec. Code 1302 Local elections; school district election

Elec. Code 13307 Candidate's statement

Elec. Code 13308 Candidate's statement contents

Elec. Code 13309 Candidate's statement; indigence

Elec. Code 14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act

Elec. Code 14050-14057 California Voter Participation Rights Act

Elec. Code 15400 Announcement of election results

340 562



Elec. Code 18501 Election fraud

Elec. Code 20 Public office eligibility

Elec. Code 20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices

Elec. Code 21100-21180 FAIR MAPS Act

Elec. Code 2201 Grounds for cancellation

Elec. Code 4000-4008 Elections conducted wholly by mail

Gov. Code 1021 Conviction of crime

Gov. Code 1097 Illegal participation in public contract

Gov. Code 12940 Unlawful discriminatory employment practices

Gov. Code 1770 Vacancy of office

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

Gov. Code 9055 Committing crimes against legislative power

Gov. Code 9412 Refusing to appear

Pen. Code 165 Bribes to members of city council

Pen. Code 2772 Interfering with the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 2790 Interrupting the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 424 Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers

Pen. Code 661 Removal for neglect or violation of official duty

Pen. Code 67 Giving bribes

Pen. Code 68 Receiving bribes

Pen. Code 74 Acceptance of gratuity

Pen. Code 88 Crimes against legislative power

Pen. Code 98 Crimes against public justice

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

52 USC 10301-10508 Voting Rights Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 182 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 (1998)

Attorney General Opinion 83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000)

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002)

Court Decision Dusch v. Davis (1967) 387 U.S. 112

Court Decision Randall v. Sorrell (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479

Court Decision Rey v. Madera Unified School District (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223

Court Decision Sanchez v. City of Modesto (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660

CSBA Publication Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections,
January 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

341 563



Website Fair Political Practices Commission

Website California Secretary of State's Office

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

9005 Governance Standards

9110 Terms Of Office

9223 Filling Vacancies

9224 Oath Or Affirmation

9230 Orientation

9240 Board Training

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

342 564



Bylaw 9223: Filling VacanciesBylaw 9223: Filling Vacancies Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/01/1989 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/01/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2024

Events Causing a Vacancy

A vacancy on the Governing Board may arise from any of the following events:

1. The death of an incumbent  (Government Code 1770)
 

2. The adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that an incumbent is physically or mentally
incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident and that there is reasonable cause to believe that the
incumbent will not be able to perform the duties of the office for the remainder of the term  (Government
Code 1770)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5090, a vacancy resulting from a resignation occurs when the
written resignation is filed with the County Superintendent of Schools having jurisdiction over the district,
except where a deferred effective date is specified in the resignation so filed, in which case the resignation
shall become operative on that date. Upon being filed with the County Superintendent, a written resignation,
whether specifying a deferred effective date or otherwise, shall be irrevocable. Pursuant to Education Code
5091, a Board member may not defer an effective date of resignation for more than 60 days after the date
the resignation is filed with the County Superintendent.

3. A Board member's resignation in accordance with Board Bylaw 9222 - Resignation  (Government Code 1770)
 

4. A Board member's removal from office by recall  (Elections Code 11000-11386; Government Code 1770)
 

5. A Board member's ceasing to be a resident of the district  (Government Code 1770)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that have established trustee areas. In 105
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen 182 (2022), the Attorney General has opined that when the boundaries of a district's
trustee areas are adjusted or the district changes from "at-large elections" to "by-trustee area elections," and a
vacancy then arises in a seat held by a Board member whose term of office began prior to the change in
boundaries or election method, the vacancy should be filled using the boundaries or election method by
which the incumbent Board member was elected. See BB 9220 - Governing Board Elections.

6. A Board member's ceasing to inhabit the trustee area represented by the Board member   (Government Code
1770)
 

7. A Board member's absence from the state for more than 60 days, except in the following situations: 
(Government Code 1064, 1770)
 

a. Upon district business with the approval of the Board
 

b. With the consent of the Board for an additional period not to exceed a total absence of 90 days or, in
the case of illness or other urgent necessity and upon a proper showing thereof, for more than 90 days
 

c. For federal military deployment, not to exceed an absence of a total of six months, as a member of the
armed forces of the United States or the California National Guard

If the absence of the Board member for this purpose exceeds six months, the Board may approve an
additional six-month absence upon a showing that there is a reasonable expectation that the member
will return within the second six-month period, and the Board may appoint an interim member to serve
during the absence. If two or more Board members are absent by reason of these circumstances, and
those absences result in the inability to establish a quorum at a regular meeting, the Board may
immediately appoint one or more interim members as necessary to enable the Board to conduct business
and discharge its responsibilities. The term of an interim member appointed in these circumstances shall
not extend beyond the return of the absent Board member or beyond the next regularly scheduled
election for that office, whichever occurs first.
 

8. A Board member's ceasing to discharge the duties of the office for the period of three consecutive months,
except when prevented by sickness or when absent from the state with the permission required by law 
(Government Code 1770)

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

343 565



CSBA NOTE: Board members forfeit office and, in some cases, are disqualified from holding public office
upon conviction of designated crimes as specified in the Constitution and various other state laws. Examples
of crimes that result in forfeiture of office include, but are not limited to, convictions for felonies, offenses
that involve a violation of official duties, bribery, selling appointments, intoxication in the discharge of official
duties, misuse of public funds, conflict of interest violations, and a false claim of receipt of any military
decoration or medal.

9. A Board member's conviction of a felony or any offense involving a violation of official duties or conviction of a
designated crime resulting in a forfeiture of office  (Government Code 1770, 3000-3003)
 

10. A Board member's refusal or neglect to file the required oath within the time prescribed  (Government Code
1770)
 

11. The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void a Board member's election or appointment  (Government
Code 1770)
 

12. A Board member's commitment to a hospital or sanitarium as a drug addict, dipsomaniac, inebriate, or
stimulant addict by a court of competent jurisdiction, in which case the office shall not be deemed vacant until
the order of commitment has become final  (Government Code 1770)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5090, a vacancy is declared when there has been a "failure to
elect," meaning that the County Registrar of Voters has determined that an election will not be held because
either no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have filed to run for a Board seat(s). Education
Code 5328 authorizes the Board to make an appointment in such circumstances.

13. A "failure to elect" in which no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have filed to run for a Board
seat(s)  (Education Code 5090, 5326, 5328)

Timelines for Filling a Vacancy

When a vacancy occurs, the Board shall take the following action, as appropriate:

1. When a vacancy occurs within four months of the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall take no
action.  (Education Code 5093)
 

2. When a vacancy occurs between six months and 130 days before a regularly scheduled Board election at
which the vacant position is not scheduled to be filled, the vacancy shall be filled by a special election
consolidated with the regular election. The person so elected shall take office at the first regularly scheduled
Board meeting following the certification of the election and shall serve only until the end of the term of the
position which the person was elected to fill.  (Education Code 5093)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5091, when a vacancy occurs outside of the statutory time
windows identified in Items #1 or #2 above or when a deferred resignation has been filed four or more
months before the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall take action, as specified below. In the event
that the Board fails to make a provisional appointment or order an election within 60 days, the County
Superintendent must call an election to fill the vacancy.

3. When a vacancy occurs any time outside of the statutory time windows identified in Items #1 and #2 above,
the Board shall either order an election or make a provisional appointment within 60 days of the date of the
vacancy or the filing of the member's deferred resignation, whichever is sooner.  (Education Code 5091, 5093)

Eligibility for Appointment

CSBA NOTE: Persons applying or nominated to be appointed to fill a Board vacancy are required to meet the legal
qualifications for serving as elected Board members. See BB 9220 - Governing Board Elections.
In order to be appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board, a person must meet the eligibility requirements specified in
law and Board Bylaw 9220 - Governing Board Elections.

Provisional Appointments

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice. While the Board is
authorized to make a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy pursuant to Item #3 in the section "Timelines for

344 566



Filling a Vacancy" above, the law does not specify procedures for making provisional appointments for vacancies;
however, such procedures must comply with the requirements of the Brown Act. (Government Code 54950-54963)

See CSBA's publication, "Filling a Board Vacancy," for additional information about provisional appointments,
including sample questions for interviewing and evaluating candidates.
When, as authorized by law, the Board has opted to make a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy, the Board, by
resolution, may approve the procedures for selecting the person to be provisionally appointed to fill the vacancy.
These procedures may, but are not required to, include the following:

1. Advertising in the local media to solicit candidate applications
 

2. Establishing a committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board to ensure that applicants are eligible
for Board membership and announce the names of the eligible candidates
 

3. Interviewing the candidates at a public meeting

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5092, once the Board has filled a vacancy by provisional appointment,
the Board is required to post a notice. The notice is required to be posted in three public places in the district in
addition to other notice requirements. Districts with trustee areas may want to post the notice in three public
places within the trustee area of the vacant seat. Boards for districts with trustee areas are advised to consult
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel regarding the requirement to
post in three public places.

Pursuant to Education Code 5092, as amended by AB 1326 (Ch. 68, Statutes of 2023), the notice is also required to
be posted on the district's website.
Within 10 days after the Board makes a provisional appointment to fill a Board vacancy, the Superintendent or
designee, on behalf of the Board, shall post a notice of the actual vacancy, or the filing of a deferred resignation, and
the provisional appointment. The Superintendent or designee shall post the notice as follows:  (Education Code
5092)

1. In three public places in the district or, if applicable, trustee area
 

2. On the district's website
 

3. In a newspaper of general circulation published in the district, if such a newspaper exists

The notice shall contain:  (Education Code 5092)

1. The fact of the vacancy or resignation
 

2. The date of the occurrence of the vacancy or the date of the filing of, and the effective date of, the resignation
 

3. The full name of the provisional appointee to the Board and the date of the provisional appointee's
appointment
 

4. A statement notifying the voters that unless a petition calling for a special election pursuant to Education Code
5091 is filed in the office of the County Superintendent of Schools within 30 days of the provisional
appointment, the appointment shall become effective

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5091, an appointed Board member may only hold office until the next
regularly scheduled district Board election. Thus, if a person is appointed to a board with three years remaining in
their term, then it is likely that they will only serve through the second year as there typically would be a regularly
scheduled district Board election at that point. There would need to be a special election concurrent with the
regularly scheduled district Board election and final two years of the vacant term would be filed by the person
elected in the special election.
The person appointed shall only hold office until the next regularly scheduled election for district Board members. 
(Education Code 5091)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 5091, the County Superintendent is required to terminate a provisional
appointment and order a special election if, within 30 days of the appointment, a petition requesting a special
election to fill the vacancy is submitted by registered voters. Pursuant to Education Code 5091, any such petition
for a special election must contain the county elections official's estimate of the cost of conducting the special

345 567



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

election, expressed on a per-student basis. Education Code 5091 also requires any such special election to be
conducted not less than 88, nor more than 125, days following the County Superintendent's order of the election,
unless the election may be consolidated with a regularly scheduled election that is to take place within 180 days
after the issuance of the County Superintendent's order. For the conduct of Board elections, See BB 9220 -
Governing Board Elections.
If within 30 days of the Board's appointment, registered voters of the district or, where elections are by trustee
areas, of the trustee area, submit a petition for special election that the County Superintendent determines to be
legally sufficient, the provisional appointment is terminated, and a special election shall be held in accordance with
Education Code 5091 to fill the vacancy.

Appointment Due to Failure to Elect

CSBA NOTE: The following requirements apply when an appointment is being made because of a failure to elect
pursuant to Education Code 5090, 5326, and 5328 (Item #13 in section entitled "Events Causing a Vacancy" above).
When a vacancy occurs because no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have been nominated and a
district election will not be held, the Board shall appoint a qualified person to the office. This appointment shall be
made at a meeting prior to the day fixed for the election and the appointee shall be seated at the organizational
meeting as if elected at the district election.  (Education Code 5328)

When an appointment is being made because of a failure to elect, the district shall publish a notice once in a
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, in a newspaper having
general circulation within the district. This notice shall state that the Board intends to make an appointment and shall
inform persons of the procedure available for applying for the appointment.  (Education Code 5328.5)

When, as authorized by law, the Board seeks to make an appointment because of a failure to elect, the Board, by
resolution, may approve any additional the procedures for selecting the person to be appointed to fill the vacancy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35178 Resignation with deferred effective date

Ed. Code 5000-5033 Election of school district board members

Ed. Code 5090-5095 Vacancies on the board

Ed. Code 5200-5208 Districts governed by boards of education

Ed. Code 5300-5304 General provisions; conduct of elections

Ed. Code 5320-5329 Order and call of elections

Ed. Code 5340-5345 Consolidation of elections

Ed. Code 5360-5363 Election notice

Ed. Code 5420-5426 Cost of elections

Ed. Code 5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions

Elec. Code 10600-10604 School district elections

Elec. Code 11000-11386 Candidates for recall

Gov. Code 1064 Absence from state

Gov. Code 1770 Vacancy of office

Gov. Code 3000-3003 Forfeiture of office

Gov. Code 3060-3075 Removal other than by impeachment

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 6061 Manner of notice as prescribed in designated section

346 568



Pen. Code 88 Crimes against legislative power

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

18 USC 704 Military medals or decorations

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 182 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 58 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 888 (1975)

CSBA Publication Filling a Board Vacancy, rev. 2022

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California State Attorney General's Office, Quo Warranto Applications

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

9100 Organization

9110 Terms Of Office

9130 Board Committees

9220 Governing Board Elections

9220-E(1) Governing Board Elections

9222 Resignation

9224 Oath Or Affirmation

9230 Orientation

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E(1) Actions By The Board

347 569



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

June 2024 

 

 

Note:  Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 

board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 

should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 

Board Policy 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight 

Policy updated to delete language for which the Governing Board is not responsible, clarify that the 

Superintendent may designate someone to attend meetings of the charter school governing body, move the 

section "Monitoring Charter School Performance" to keep material reflecting district responsibility for 

oversight of charter schools together, and clarify that board approval is required for the charter school to 

contract for administrative or other services. Additionally, policy updated to amend the section "Material 

Revisions to Charter" to clarify which situations certain standards and criteria may be used to review a 

proposed material revision to a charter 

 

Exhibit (1) 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight 

Exhibit updated to clarify that the exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of legal requirements that apply to charter 

schools and may be used by districts to monitor a charter school's compliance with law. Additionally, exhibit 

updated to reflect charter school requirements related to (1) student membership on the governing body, (2) 

prohibitions against discrimination in the use, selection, or rejection of textbooks, instructional materials, 

library books, or similar educational resources (AB 1078, 2023), (3) the standardized incident form which 

tracks racial discrimination, harassment, or hazing at high school sporting games or events (AB 1327, 2023), 

(4) the presentation of a report of the annual update to the local control and accountability plan and budget 

overview for parents/guardians (SB 114, 2023), (5) the provision of, and prohibition against the denial of, 

recess (SB 291, 2023),  (6) notifications to community college districts regarding college or career fairs (AB 

1173, 2023), (7) providing access to military services for recruitment (AB 1605, 2023), (8) TB risk 

assessment for transportation providers under contract (SB 88, 2023), (9) the provision of meals for 

independent study students who are scheduled for in-person educational activities lasting two or more hours 

(SB 348, 2023), (10) emergency action plans in interscholastic programs (AB 1653, 2023), (11) the provision 

of emergency opioid antagonists and albuterol inhalers (AB 1283, 2023), (12) suspensions for willful 

defiance (SB 274, 2023), and (13) the provision of menstrual products (AB 230 , 2023). In addition, exhibit 

updated to reference (1) NEW LAW (SB 10, 2023), (SB 323, 2023), and (SB 671, 2023) related to new 

requirements for comprehensive safety plans, (2) NEW LAW (SB 531, 2023) related to the exemption from 

needing a valid criminal records summary for an employee of an entity that has a contract with a charter 

school to offer work experience opportunities for students or workplace placements as part of a student's 

individualized education program, and (3) the requirement to review and update the charter school's student 

suicide prevention policy and revise training materials to incorporate best practices identified by the 

California Department of Education. 

 

Board Policy 1113 - District and School Websites 

Policy reviewed in conjunction with the accompanying administrative regulation and exhibit, with references 

to outdated material deleted. 

 

Administrative Regulation 1113 - District and School Websites 

Regulation updated to add material related to reporting of cyberattacks to the Cybersecurity Integration 

Center. 

 

Exhibit(1) 1113 - District and School Websites 

Exhibit updated to clarify that the exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of materials that are required to be posted 

on district and school websites. Additionally, exhibit updated to reflect (1) NEW FEDERAL 

REGULATIONS (89 Fed. Reg. 33474) regarding additional notification requirements related to sex-based 

discrimination as well as the removal of the requirement to post specified training materials, (2) NEW LAW 

(AB 1327, 2023) which requires districts that participate in the California Interscholastic Federation to post 

the standardized incident form which tracks racial discrimination, harassment, or hazing at high school 

570



sporting games or events, (3) NEW LAW (AB 1326, 2023) related to posting requirements when a 

provisional appointment is made to fill a governing board vacancy, (4) NEW LAW (AB 889, 2023) related 

to posting requirements for specified information regarding the dangers of synthetic drugs, and (5) NEW 

LAW (AB 1466, 2023) related to posting requirements for the annual report on the use of seclusion and 

restraint. 

 

Board Policy 1260 - Educational Foundation 

Policy updated to reflect Proposition 28 Arts and Music in Schools Funding Guarantee and Accountability 

Act and corresponding California Department of Education accounting guidance regarding how districts 

can demonstrate state funds are used to supplement not supplant existing program funds. Additionally, 

policy updated to reflect that the district may not release student records or other personally identifiable 

student information except with parental consent or as required by law or district policy, and that student 

directory information may be released when appropriate. 

Board Policy 2121 - Superintendent's Contract 

Policy updated to delete a portion of the language related to limitations for discussing superintendent salary 

or other compensation in closed session as this material exists in other policy materials. Additionally, policy 

updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 494, 2023) prohibiting a governing board from taking action to terminate 

a superintendent under specified conditions. 

 

Board Policy 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications 

Policy reviewed in conjunction with the accompanying exhibit. 

 

Exhibit (1) 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications 

Exhibit updated to clarify that the exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices which the law explicitly requires 

be provided to employees. Additionally, exhibit updated to incorporate notifications related to requesting 

volunteers to be trained to administer albuterol and anti-seizure medication. 

 

Board Policy 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 897, 2023) which (1) requires an employment agreement for a 

categorically funded project to include the expected end date of employment, the source of funding, and the 

nature of the categorically funded program or project, and (2) specifies that Education Code 44909 does not 

apply to a teacher of classes for adults. Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 616, 2023) 

which  (1) requires districts that provide sick leave on an accrual basis to provide sick leave accrual at a rate 

of at least 40 hours or five days by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-month 

period, (2) for districts that credit employees with sick leave at the beginning of each year, increases paid 

sick leave to 40 hours or five days, and (3) extends procedural protections against retaliation to employees 

covered by collective bargaining agreements. In addition, policy updated to clarify that up to 80 hours or ten 

days of sick leave may be carried over annually, but the district may limit an employee's use of sick leave to 

40 hours or five days per year. Policy also updated to provide that reemployment provisions contained in 

Education Code 44918 do not apply to districts with an average daily attendance of over 250,000 (formerly 

400,000). 

 

Administrative Regulation 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel 

Regulation updated to clarify that "time of initial employment" means before the employee starts work, 

including by moving related language. 

 

Board Policy 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 

Policy updated to acknowledge that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of students 

in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, to include a definition of "interscholastic athletic activities,"  

and to reference NEW LAW (AB 245, 2023) which requires training in the use of an automated external 

defibrillator. 

 

Administrative Regulation 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 245, 2023) which requires athletic team coaches to complete 

training in the use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and the recognition of the signs of heat 

571



illness and cardiac arrest. Additionally, regulation updated to reference NEW LAW (AB 1467, 2023) which 

requires districts, beginning January 1, 2027, to provide student athletes with access to an AED during any 

official practice or match, which, when medical circumstances warrant its use, is administered by a medical 

professional, coach, or other designated person who holds AED certification. In addition, regulation updated 

to reference NEW LAW (AB 1653, 2023) which requires the California Interscholastic Federation and the 

California Department of Education to develop guidelines, procedures, and safety standards for the 

prevention and management of exertional heat illness. 

 

Board Policy 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves 

Policy updated to reference NEW LAW (AB 472, 2023) which requires a district that places an employee 

on an involuntary leave of absence during the period the employee is charged with a criminal offense, is 

under criminal investigation, or is waiting due to administrative delay for necessary job-related administrative 

determinations, to, upon the conclusion of the proceedings in favor of the employee, pay the employee the 

employee's full compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of absence upon the employee's return 

to service in the district. 

 

Administrative Regulation 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves 

Regulation updated to clarify that one of the conditions for the district to terminate the employment of a 

certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more consecutive working days after April 30 

of the previous school year, is for the employee to continue to be absent from work for 20 consecutive 

working days beginning from the date the employee was to report to work. 

 

Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 

Regulation updated to clarify that it applies to certificated employees, including certificated management, 

and that classified employees, including classified management should refer to Administrative Regulation 

4261.1 - Personnel Illness/Injury Leave. Additionally, regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 848, 

2023) which prohibits a district from refusing to grant a request from an employee to take up to five days of 

reproductive loss leave, and reference NEW FEDERAL REGULATIONS (89 Fed. Reg. 33474) which, 

for purposes of Title IX, requires the district to treat pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or 

lactation, including any related medical condition or recovery, as it would any other temporary medical 

condition for job-related purposes, including leaves. In addition, regulation updated to include that an 

employee may use sick leave days for bereavement leave. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW 

(SB 616, 2023) which extends procedural protections to employees covered by collective bargaining 

agreements and (1) requires districts that provide sick leave on an accrual basis to provide sick leave accrual 

at a rate of at least 40 hours or five days by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 

12-month period, or (2) for districts that credit employees with sick leave at the beginning of each year, 

increases paid sick leave to 40 hours or five days. 

 

Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves 

Regulation updated to include that the definition of immediate family includes siblings-in-law. Additionally, 

regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 848, 2023) which (1) allows employees to take up to five days 

of reproductive loss leave following a reproductive loss event, (2) prohibits the district from retaliating or 

discriminating against an employee related to reproductive loss leave, and (3) provides that unless the 

district's leave policy does not so specify, reproductive loss leave will be unpaid unless the employee chooses 

to use vacation, personal leave, accrued and available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise 

available to the employee. 

 

Board Policy 4218.1 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System) 

Policy updated to add that the Governing Board expects employees to serve as role positive role models both 

at school and in the community. Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (Visalia 

Unified School District v. PERB) which held that service as a union officer constitutes protected activity 

under the Educational Employment Relations Act for purposes of complaints of retaliation for union 

activities, and that retaliation solely for engaging in protected activities is prohibited. In addition, policy 

updated to amend the list of what may be considered disciplinary actions to more closely align with law. 

Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 472, 2023) which requires a district that places an employee 

on an involuntary leave of absence during the period the employee is charged with a criminal offense, is 

572



under criminal investigation, or is waiting due to administrative delay for necessary job-related administrative 

determinations, to, upon the conclusion of the proceedings in favor of the employee, pay the employee the 

employee's full compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of absence upon the employee's return 

to service in the district. 

 

Administrative Regulation 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 

Regulation updated to clarify that it applies to classified employees, including classified management, and 

that certificated employees, including certificated management should refer to Administrative Regulation 

4161.1/4361.1 - Personnel Illness/Injury Leave. Additionally, regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 

848, 2023) which prohibits a district from refusing to grant a request from an employee to take up to five 

days of reproductive loss leave, and reference NEW FEDERAL REGULATIONS (89 Fed. Reg. 33474) 

which, for purposes of Title IX, requires the district to treat pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, 

or lactation, including any related medical condition or recovery, as it would any other temporary medical 

condition for job-related purposes, including leaves. In addition, regulation updated to include that an 

employee may use sick leave days for bereavement leave, and that employees should be notified of the 

amount of sick leave they have accumulated at the beginning of each school year. Regulation also updated 

to reflect that up to 80 hours or 10 days of accrued sick leave may carry over, but the district may limit the 

use of sick leave to 40 hours or five days annually. Additionally, regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW 

(SB 616, 2023) which extends procedural protections to employees covered by collective bargaining 

agreements and (1) requires districts that provide sick leave on an accrual basis to provide sick leave accrual 

at a rate of at least 40 hours or five days by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 

12-month period, or (2) for districts that credit employees with sick leave at the beginning of each year, 

increases paid sick leave to 40 hours or five days. 

 

Board Policy 5113 - Absences and Excuses 

Policy updated to reference CSBA's new governance brief, "Seize the Data: Using Chronic Absence Data to 

Drive Student Engagement". Additionally, policy updated to clarify that absence from school is required to 

be excused when the absence is due to work in the entertainment or allied industry, as permitted by law. In 

addition, policy updated to add the requirement for teachers to provide identical or equivalent assignments 

and tests when a student has an excused absence. 

 

Administrative Regulation 5113 - Absences and Excuses 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 350, 2023) which requires that (1) a student's absence be 

excused for up to five days when the absence is for the purpose of attending funeral services or grieving the 

death of a student's immediate family, or of a person who is determined by the student's parent/guardian to 

be in such close association with the student as to be considered the student's immediate family, and (2) a 

student's absence be excused for up to three days when the absence is for the purpose of accessing victim or 

grief support services or for participating in safety planning as it relates to the death of a student's immediate 

family member, or of a person who is determined by the student's parent/guardian to be in such close 

association with the student as to be considered the student's immediate family. Additionally, regulation 

updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1503, 2023) which provides that attendance at a religious retreat may be 

excused for no more than one school day each semester. In addition, regulation updated to generalize the 

means of communication from parents/guardians to verify a student absence to keep the language more 

timeless. Policy also updated for closer alignment with law, clarity, and gender neutrality. 

 

Board Policy 5145.6 - Parent/Guardian Notifications 

Policy updated to clarify the importance of effective communication from the district and/or school to 

families, and that a parent/guardian's signature acknowledging receipt of the annual notifications is not 

required. Additionally, policy updated to delete a portion of the material related to how notifications are 

presented, due to redundancy. 

 

Exhibit (1) 5145.6 - Parent/Guardian Notifications 

Exhibit updated to clarify that the exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices which the law explicitly requires 

be provided to parents/guardians. Additionally, exhibit updated to include notifications related to (1) the 

dangers of synthetic drug use, (2) the use of CalPADS data, (3) guidelines for the full human papillomavirus 

immunization, (4) school closures, and (5) status change of a nonpublic nonsectarian school or agency. 

573



Additionally, exhibit updated to delete material related to a negative balance in a meal account as this 

notification is no longer required. 

 

Board Policy 6000 - Concepts And Roles 

Policy updated to align concepts with other sample policies and incorporate concepts of equity and inclusion. 

Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW GUIDANCE from the California Department of Education, 

including the importance of coordination, collaboration and alignment between the school, parents/guardians 

and the community, and district support for innovative programs and practices that promote student 

engagement, growth, understanding, achievement and career exploration. 

 

Board Policy 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 278, 2023) which establishes the Dream Resource Grant Program 

with the goal of creating Dream Resource Centers at schools that serve students in grades 9-12, and NEW 

LAW (SB 223, 2023) which provides flexibility for pupil personnel services holders to receive authorization 

to provide child welfare and attendance services by either completing a Commission on Teacher 

Credentialing (CTC)-approved program of supervised field experience, or a CTC-approved program of 

professional preparation offered by a local educational agency. Additionally, policy updated to clarify that 

(1) guidance counseling regarding school programs and career, vocational, or higher education opportunities 

may not be differentiated based on any protected category specified in law or board policy, and that (2) the 

district may not use testing or other materials that permit or require impermissible or unlawful differential 

treatment of students, unless such different materials cover the same occupations and interest areas and the 

use of such materials is essential to the elimination of bias and discrimination. In addition, policy updated to 

reflect NEW LAW (AB 1173, 2023) which requires a district that serves students in any of grades 9-12 that 

is planning to hold a college or career fair to notify each community college district that has overlapping 

jurisdiction of the date, time, and location of the fair, and provide an opportunity for the community college 

district to participate. Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 665, 2023) which aligns a section of 

the Family Code with a related Health and Safety Code section which allows a minor age 12 or older to 

consent to outpatient mental health counseling or treatment services without parent/guardian consent if, in 

the opinion of a school psychologist or other professional person, the minor is mature enough to participate 

intelligently in the services, without having to establish that the minor would present a danger of serious 

physical or mental harm to themself or others without the mental counseling or treatment services or that the 

minor is an alleged victim of incest or child abuse; however the child's parent/guardian is required to be 

involved unless the professional person determines after consulting with the minor that it would be 

inappropriate. Policy also updated to delete the requirement for school counselors to assist in the development 

of the comprehensive safety plan since this is not required by law, but maintained the requirement for school 

counselors to assist in the development of the disaster preparedness plan, which is part of the comprehensive 

safety plan. 

 

Board Policy 6177 - Summer Learning Programs 

Policy updated to incorporate concepts related to learning recovery, including that the district will provide 

students with supplemental instruction and support in a tiered framework that bases universal, targeted, and 

intensive supports on students' needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated student supports 

through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school climate. Policy also updated to 

reflect NEW LAW (AB 723, 2023) and NEW LAW (AB 373, 2023) which require a district to grant priority 

access for intersession programs to a foster youth and/or to a student experiencing homelessness, and that if 

during an intersession period the student will be moving, the student's educational rights holder will 

determine which school the student will attend for the intersession period. Additionally, policy updated to 

add that a district is required to provide any student who attends a school that is not operating an expanded 

learning opportunity (ELO) program transportation to attend at a location that is providing an ELO program 

and to return to the original location or another location that is established by the district. 

  

Board Policy 7214 - General Obligation Bonds 

Policy updated for clarity and organization, including that the Governing Board may direct the 

Superintendent to explore the possibility of a bond measure. 

 

 

574



 

 

Administrative Regulation 7214 - General Obligation Bonds 

Regulation updated to expand and more closely align with code language the information related to ballot 

materials, including that at least 88 days prior to the election the Superintendent must deliver applicable ballot 

materials to the officer conducting the election. Additionally, regulation updated to add new section "Ballot 

Materials" which includes (1) that the ballot question may not exceed 75 words, (2) that the ballot materials 

include a brief statement of the measure setting forth the amount of the bonds to be voted on, the maximum 

rate of interest, and the purposes for which the proceeds of the sale of the bonds are to be used, (3) for bond 

measures that require a 55 percent majority vote, a statement that the Board will appoint a citizens' oversight 

committee, (4) for projects that require state matching funds, a statement advising voters that the project is 

subject to the approval of state matching funds, and (4) that arguments in support of or in opposition to a 

bond measure are submitted in accordance with law, and to reflect NEW LAW (SB 798, 2023) which 

requires the inclusion of the tax rate per $100,000 of assessed valuation on all property to be taxed to fund a 

bond measure. In addition, regulation updated to (1) reflect that the district will provide the citizens' oversight 

committee with responses to any and all findings, recommendations, and concerns addressed in the annual 

independent financial and performance audits within three months of receiving the audits, and (2) to include 

post-issuance reporting requirements. 

 

Board Bylaw 9220 - Governing Board Elections 

Bylaw updated to reference that a city/county charter might take precedence over district policies in regard 

to school board elections. Additionally, bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 764, 2023), also known 

as the Fair And Inclusive Redistricting for Municipalities And Political Subdivisions (FAIR MAPS) Act, 

which establishes a comprehensive set of rules that local governments, including school districts, must follow 

during the redistricting process. In addition, bylaw updated to reference new Exhibit (1), which includes a 

non-exhaustive list of offenses the conviction of which makes someone ineligible to be a school board 

member. Bylaw also updated for clarity, precision, organization, and consistency. 

 

NEW - Exhibit (1) 9220 - Governing Board Elections 

Exhibit added to provide a non-exhaustive list of offenses the conviction of which makes someone ineligible 

to be a school board member. 
 

Board Bylaw 9223 - Filling Vacancies 

Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1326, 2023), which requires that the notice of a provisional 

appointment be posted on the district's website. Additionally, bylaw updated to (1) focus on filling vacancy 

by appointment rather than special election, (2) enable the Governing Board to approve, by resolution, the 

procedures for selecting the person to be provisionally appointed to fill the vacancy, and (3) explain how 

long an appointed Board member may serve. In addition, bylaw updated for clarity, precision, organization, 

and consistency. 

 

 

 

575



Policy 0420.41: Charter School OversightPolicy 0420.41: Charter School Oversight Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The Governing Board recognizes its ongoing responsibility to oversee that any charter school authorized by the
Board is successfully fulfilling the terms of its charter.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify at least one staff member to serve as a contact person for each charter
school authorized by the Board.  (Education Code 47604.32)

The Superintendent or designee shall visit each charter school at least annually and may inspect or observe any part
of a charter school at any time.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47607)

The Superintendent may designate someone to attend meetings of the charter school governing body whenever
possible.

Monitoring Charter School Performance

Any charter school authorized by the Board shall be monitored by the Superintendent or designee to determine
whether the charter school complies with all legal requirements applicable to charter schools, including all reports
required of charter schools by law, as specified in Education Code 47604.32. Any violations of law shall be reported
to the Board.

The Board shall monitor each charter school to determine whether it is achieving the measurable student outcomes
set forth in the charter, both schoolwide and for each numerically significant student subgroup served by the school
as defined in Education Code 52052. This determination shall be based on the measures specified in the approved
charter and any applicable MOU, and on the charter school's annual review and assessment of its progress toward
the goals and actions identified in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP), as reported in the California School
Dashboard.

The Board shall monitor the fiscal condition of the charter school based on any financial report or information
obtained from the charter school, including, but not limited to, the charter school's preliminary budget, LCAP and
annual update of the charter school's LCAP, first and second interim financial reports, and final unaudited report for
the full prior year.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47604.33, 47606.5)

Waivers

If the charter school wishes to request a general waiver of any state law or regulation applicable to it, it shall request
that the Board approve and the district submit a general waiver request to the State Board of Education (SBE) on its
behalf. Upon approval of the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit such a waiver request to SBE on
behalf of the charter school.

Provision of District Services

Upon approval by the Board of an appropriate agreement, the charter school may contract with the district or any
other source for administrative or other services.  (Education Code 47613)

Whenever the district agrees to provide administrative or support services to a charter school, the district and the
charter school shall develop a memorandum of understanding (MOU) which clarifies the financial and operational
agreements between them.

At the request of a charter school, the Superintendent or designee shall create and submit any reports required by
the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement System on behalf of the charter school. The
district may charge the charter school for the actual costs of the reporting services, but shall not require the charter

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

576



school to purchase payroll processing services from the district as a condition for creating and submitting these
reports.  (Education Code 47611.3)

Material Revisions to Charter

Material revisions to a charter may only be made with Board approval. Material revisions shall be governed by the
same standards and criteria that apply to petitions for the authorization of charter schools as set forth in Education
Code 47605 and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably comprehensive description of any new requirement
for charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last renewed.  (Education Code
47607)

The Board shall determine whether a proposed change in charter school operations would constitute a material
revision of the approved charter.

If an approved charter school proposes to expand operations to one or more additional sites or grade levels, whether
concurrently with or unrelated to a renewal, the charter school shall request a material revision to its charter and
shall notify the Board of those additional locations or grade levels. The Board shall consider approval of the
additional locations or grade levels at an open, public meeting.  (Education Code 47605, 47607)

The Board may deny a proposed material revision if it finds that the proposed material revision would render the
charter school demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community in which the school is located or
proposes to locate. In making this finding, the Board shall consider all of the following:  (Education Code 47605)

1. The fiscal impact of the proposed expansion on the district
 

2. The extent to which the expansion would substantially undermine existing services, academic offerings, or
programmatic offerings
 

3. Whether the expansion would duplicate a program currently offered within the district that has sufficient
capacity for the students proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to where the charter school
intends to locate

Additionally, the Board may deny a proposed material revision if it finds that the district is not positioned to absorb
the fiscal impact of the proposed material revision. The Board shall make this finding if the district has a qualified
interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131 and the County Superintendent of Schools, in consultation
with the County Office Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, certifies that approving the charter school
would result in the district having a negative interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131,  the district has
a negative interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131, or the district is under state receivership.
 (Education Code 47605)

Location of Charter Schools

Except when permitted to operate outside district boundaries pursuant to Education Code 47605 and 47605.1, a
charter school shall be located within district boundaries.

Fees/Charges for Supervisorial Oversight

The district may charge for district supervisorial oversight as follows:  (Education Code 47613; 5 CCR 11969.7)

1. Actual costs up to one percent of the charter school's revenue
 

2. Actual costs up to three percent of the charter school's revenue if the district provides the charter school
substantially rent-free facilities

If the district provides the charter school with facilities under Education Code 47614 and charges the charter
school a pro-rata share of the facilities costs calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 11969.7, the district may only
charge the charter school for the actual costs of supervisorial oversight up to one percent of the charter
school's revenue.
 

3. Actual costs if the district is assigned supervisorial oversight responsibility for the charter school by SBE when

577



authorized on appeal

Technical Assistance/Intervention

Whenever a charter school is identified for technical assistance based on the performance of one or more
numerically significant student subgroups on SBE-established criteria, the charter school shall receive technical
assistance from the County Superintendent. Such technical assistance shall be focused on building the charter
school's capacity to develop and implement actions and services responsive to student and community needs,
including, but not limited to, any of the following:  (Education Code 47607.3)

1. Assisting the charter school to identify its strengths and weaknesses in regard to the state priorities applicable
to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 47605(c)

This shall include working collaboratively with the charter school to review performance data on the state and
local indicators included in the California School Dashboard and other relevant local data and to identify
effective, evidence-based programs or practices that address any areas of weakness.
 

2. Working collaboratively with the charter school to secure assistance from an academic, programmatic, or fiscal
expert or team of experts to identify and implement effective programs and practices that are designed to
improve performance in any areas of weakness identified by the charter school

Another service provider, including, but not limited to, a school district, county office of education, or charter
school, may be solicited to act as a partner to the charter school in need of technical assistance.
 

3. Obtaining from the charter school timely documentation demonstrating that it has completed the activities
described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, or has selected another service provider to work
with the charter school to complete the activities described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities,
and ongoing communication with the Board to assess the charter school's progress in improving student
outcomes

In addition, if, in three out of four consecutive school years, a charter school fails to improve outcomes for three or
more numerically significant student subgroups, or for all of the student subgroups if the school has fewer than three
subgroups, in regard to one or more state or school priorities identified in the charter, the County Superintendent
may request that the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), with SBE approval, assign the California
Collaborative for Educational Excellence to provide advice and assistance to the charter school pursuant to
Education Code 52074.  (Education Code 47607.3; 52072)

In accordance with law, the Board may deny a charter school's renewal petition or may revoke a charter based on
the charter school's poor performance, especially with regard to inadequate academic achievement of all numerically
significant subgroups of students served by the charter school.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.2)

Complaints

Each charter school shall establish and maintain policies and procedures in accordance with the uniform complaint
procedures as specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 to enable any person alleging the school's noncompliance with
Education Code 47606.5 or 47607.3 to file a complaint with the charter school.  (Education Code 52075)

A complaint may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to
support an allegation of noncompliance. A complainant who is not satisfied with the decision may appeal the
decision to the SPI.  (Education Code 52075)

If the charter school finds merit in the complaint or the SPI finds merit in an appeal, a remedy shall be provided to all
affected students and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 52075)

School Closure

In the event that the Board revokes or denies renewal of a charter or the charter school ceases operation for any
reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, when applicable in accordance with the charter school and/or an

578



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 applicable agreement between the district and the charter school, provide assistance to facilitate the transfer of the
charter school's former students and to finalize financial reporting and close-out of the charter school.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of Education, within 10
calendar days of the Board's action, if renewal of a charter is denied, a charter is revoked, or a charter school will
cease operation for any reason. Such notification shall include, but not be limited to, a description of the
circumstances of the closure, the effective date of the closure, and the location of student and personnel records.
 (Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11700-11705 Independent study

5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Bus. And Prof. Code 7583.45 Training for security officers

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5 Public finance; school accountability report card

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5 Common school system

Corp. Code 5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members

Ed. Code 215 Suicide prevention policies

Ed. Code 215.5 Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 221.61 Posting of Title IX information on website

Ed. Code 221.9 Sex equity in competitive athletics

Ed. Code 222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students

Ed. Code 222.5 Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.4 Mandated policy on bullying prevention

Ed. Code 234.6 Bullying and harassment prevention information

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 243 Prohibition of discrimination; instructional materials

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32283.5 Bullying; online training

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation; standardized incident form

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35120 Student board membership

Ed. Code 35179.4-35179.6 Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool safety that is not
part of interscholastic athletic program

Ed. Code 35183.1 Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of
religious/cultural significance

579

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=7583.45.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 8.5.&article=XVI
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 5.&article=IX
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=CORP&division=2.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=1.&article=&goUp=Y
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=12.5.&part=10.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=3.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=215.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=215.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=221.61.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=221.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=222.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=222.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=5.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=243.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32283.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=33353.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35120.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35183.1.


Ed. Code 35292.6 Stocking of menstrual products

Ed. Code 35330 Field trips and excursions; student fees

Ed. Code 38001.5 Training for security officers

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals

Ed. Code 39831.3 Transportation safety plan

Ed. Code 39843 Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department of Motor
Vehicles

Ed. Code 41024 Report of expenditure of state facility funds

Ed. Code 42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures

Ed. Code 44030.5 Reporting change in employment status due to alleged misconduct

Ed. Code 44237 Criminal record summary

Ed. Code 44691 Information on detection of child abuse; annual training

Ed. Code 44830.1 Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125.1 Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting pupils

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; parental leave

Ed. Code 46390-46393 Emergency average daily attendance

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992

Ed. Code 47634.2 Nonclassroom-based instruction

Ed. Code 47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools

Ed. Code 47651 Apportionment of funds; charter schools

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional kindergarten

Ed. Code 48010 Minimum age of admission to first grade

Ed. Code 48206.3-48208 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Students in foster care and students experiencing homelessness

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48901.1 Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48913.5 Suspended students; homework assignments

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49010 Student fees

Ed. Code 49011 Student fees; definition

Ed. Code 49014 Public School Fair Debt Collection Act

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49062.5 Student records; name or gender change

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging student records

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

580

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35292.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35330.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=38001.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39831.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39843.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42100.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44030.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44237.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=3.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=47634.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.8.&chapter=6.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=47651.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48913.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=5.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49061.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49062.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49070.


Ed. Code 49073.2 Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information; minutes of
board meeting

Ed. Code 49076.7 Student records; data privacy; social security numbers

Ed. Code 49110 Authority to issue work permits

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Ed. Code 49428 Notification of mental health services

Ed. Code 49428.5 Employment of medical personnel

Ed. Code 49430-49434 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49431.9 Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods

Ed. Code 49475 Health and safety; concussions and head injuries

Ed. Code 49501.5 Free breakfast and lunch to all students

Ed. Code 49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017

Ed. Code 49564.3 Provision of federal universal meal service

Ed. Code 49603 On campus access to employers and military services

Ed. Code 49700-49701 Education of children of military families

Ed. Code 51224.7 Mathematics placement policy

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance of coursework

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.6 Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that require health
education for graduation

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8 Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid
and California Dream Act Application

Ed. Code 51413 Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit examination

Ed. Code 51744-51749.6 Independent study

Ed. Code 51925-51929 Mandatory mental health education

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 52075 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs; community college districts

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs

Ed. Code 56026 Special education

Ed. Code 56040.3 Availability of assistive technology device

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools

Ed. Code 56365-56366.12 Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools

Ed. Code 56521.1-56521.2 Emergency Interventions

Ed. Code 60600-60649 Assessment of academic achievement

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

581

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49076.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49110.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49381.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49428.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49428.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49431.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49475.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49501.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49557.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49564.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49603.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=11.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51224.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51413.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.&article=5.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.5.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.6.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52052.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52075.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56026.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56040.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=4.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=5.&article=


Ed. Code 64000 Categorical programs included in consolidated application

Ed. Code 64001 School plan for student achievement; consolidated application programs

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils

Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and high school
graduation

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program

H&S Code 104559 Tobacco-free schools

Lab. Code 1198.5 Personnel records related to performance and grievance

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Pen. Code 1192.7 Definition of serious felony

Pen. Code 667.5 Definition of violent felony

Veh. Code 28160 Child safety alert system

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 7221-7221j Charter schools

34 CFR 200.1-200.78 Accountability

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021)

Attorney General Opinion 101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018)

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)

CA Office of Administrative Hearings Decisions Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School (2012) OAH Case
No. 2011060763

California Department of Education Publication Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 20-
01, July 23, 2020

California Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg. Publication School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Court Decision Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District (2005) 130
Cal.App.4th 986

CSBA Publication Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2021

582

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=64000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=64001.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=38.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=5.&title=3.&part=42.&chapter=1.7.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=1.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104559.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1198.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3074.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=12.&title=&part=&chapter=5.&article=18.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6311 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6311)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lr/fm/documents/fma2001.pdf
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index


CSBA Publication Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, Governance
Brief, October 2017

CSBA Publication Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement
and Effective Governance in California's Charter Schools, September 2018

U.S. DOE Guidance Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory
Guidance, January 2014

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture

Website National Suicide Prevention Lifeline

Website National Domestic Violence Hotline

Website California State Teachers Retirement System

Website California Public Employees Retirement System

Website California Department of General Services, Office of Administrative
Hearings

Website California Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training

Website California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services

Website California Department of Pesticide Regulation

Website California State Controller

Website California Student Aid Commission

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers

Website California Charter Schools Association

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.42 Charter School Renewal

0420.43 Charter School Revocation

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1431 Waivers

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

583

https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.usda.gov/
https://suicidepreventionlifeline.org/
https://www.thehotline.org/
https://www.calstrs.com/
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/
https://post.ca.gov/
https://www.bsis.ca.gov/
http://www.cdpr.ca.gov
http://www.sco.ca.gov
http://www.csac.ca.gov
http://www.qualitycharters.org
http://www.ccsa.org
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/
http://www.cifstate.org
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OJC2FbrIydaUcplusrjZsoUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAalVNd78G0EqWWaslshnxKzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7lKcsS0plusfPfbuXweki46aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mqpluswkX5s3DzzX4o76TikSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ikwhky3RnE91hYDa7IlSuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==


6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

7160 Charter School Facilities

7160 Charter School Facilities

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

584

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6jkkHIpA8XDbIZfVGTMw7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Of7H5QETslshVUUc37uYSDwQ==


Exhibit 0420.41-E(1): Charter School OversightExhibit 0420.41-E(1): Charter School Oversight Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/09/2022

REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of legal requirements that apply to charter schools and may be used by districts
to monitor a charter school's compliance with law. Other legal requirements may exist and may be identified in the
future.

A charter school shall be subject to the terms of its charter; any memorandum of understanding between the school
and the district Governing Board; the state and federal constitutions; applicable federal laws; state laws that apply to
governmental agencies in general; and other legal requirements that are expressly applicable to charter schools,
including, but not limited to, the following requirements.

Governance

1. Comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), California Public Records Act
(Government Code 7920.000-7930.215), conflict of interest laws (Government Code 1090-1099), and
Political Reform Act (Government Code 81000-91014), including the adoption of a conflict of interest code
pursuant to Government Code 87300  (Education Code 47604.1)
 

2. Except as otherwise authorized by Government Code 54954, hold the meetings of its governing body within
the physical boundaries of the county in which the charter school is located or, if a nonclassroom-based
charter school that does not have a facility or operates one or more resource centers, hold governing body
meetings within the physical boundaries of the county in which the greatest number of students enrolled in the
charter school reside

In addition, a two-way teleconference location shall be established at the school site and/or resource center,
as applicable.  (Education Code 47604.1)
 

3. The charter school's executive director or any of the charter school's employees shall not serve as a member of
the county board of education in the county where the charter school is located  (Education Code 1006;
Government Code 1099)

4. If the charter school is attended by high school students and the governing body receives student petition to
appoint a student member to the governing body, appoint one or more student members in accordance with
Education Code 47604.2

Operations
 

5. Not be operated as, or be operated by, a for-profit corporation, a for-profit educational management
organization, or a for-profit charter management organization  (Education Code 47604)
 

6. Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other operations  (Education
Code 47605)

Admission/Enrollment
 

7. Adhere to all laws establishing the minimum age for public school attendance  (Education Code 47610)
 

8. Serve students who are California residents and who, if over 19 years of age, are continuously enrolled in a
public school and making "satisfactory progress" toward a high school diploma as defined in 5 CCR 11965
 (Education Code 47612)

9. Serve students with disabilities in the same manner as such students are served in other district schools
 (Education Code 47646, 56145)
 

10. Admit all students who wish to attend the charter school, according to the following criteria and procedures:
 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

585



a. Admission to the charter school shall not be determined according to the student's or parent/guardian's
place of residence within the state, except that any existing public school converting partially or entirely
to a charter school shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission preference to students who reside
within that school's former attendance area  (Education Code 47605)

If a charter school will be physically located in a public elementary school attendance area in which 50
percent or more of the student enrollment is eligible for free or reduced-price meals, it may also
establish an admission preference for students who are currently enrolled in that public elementary
school and for students who reside in the public school attendance area.  (Education Code 47605.3)
 

b. If the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the school's capacity,
attendance shall be determined by a public random drawing, with preference extended to students
currently attending the charter school and students who reside in the district, except as provided for in
Education Code 47614.5  (Education Code 47605)
 

c. Other admission preferences may be permitted by the Board of the district on an individual school basis
consistent with law

Preferences shall not result in limited enrollment access for students with disabilities, academically low-
achieving students, English learners, neglected or delinquent students, students experiencing
homelessness, foster youth, students who are economically disadvantaged, or on the basis of nationality,
race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation. Mandatory parental volunteer hours shall not be the basis of a
preference or a criterion for admission or continued enrollment.  (Education Code 47605)
 

11. Not discourage a student from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the charter school, nor encourage a current
student from disenrolling, for any reason, including, but not limited to, the student's academic performance,
nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation or because the student is a student with disabilities,
academically low achieving, an English learner, neglected or delinquent, experiencing homelessness,
economically disadvantaged, or a foster youth

The charter school shall not request or require a student's records to be submitted before enrollment. The
charter school shall post on its website the California Department of Education's (CDE) notice of these
requirements and shall provide the notice to parents/guardians or students age 18 and older when the
parent/guardian or student inquires about enrollment, before conducting an enrollment lottery, and before
disenrollment of a student.  (Education Code 47605)
 

12. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding enrollment, identification, and
placement of students experiencing homelessness and unaccompanied youth  (Education Code 48850, 48851,
48852.5, 48852.6; 42 USC 11431-11435)
 

13. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding the enrollment and placement of
foster youth  (Education Code 48853.5, 48859)
 

14. Allow a student who is enrolled in the charter school but receiving individual instruction at home or a hospital
due to a temporary disability to return to the charter school when well enough to do so, provided the student
returns during the school year in which the individual instruction was initiated  (Education Code 48207.3)

Nondiscrimination
 

15. Not discriminate against any student on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code 220
 (Education Code 47605)

16. Not discriminate in the use, selection, or rejection of textbooks, instructional materials, library books, or similar
educational resources  (Education Code 243)
 

17. Adopt policy that is consistent with the model policy developed by the California Attorney General addressing
the charter school's response to immigration enforcement, notify parents/guardians of their children's right to
a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, prohibit the collection of
information or documents regarding the immigration status of students or their family members, and fulfill
other requirements of Education Code 234.7
 

586



18. Post specified information related to the prohibition against discrimination under Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972 in a prominent and conspicuous location on the school website or on the website of the
charter operator  (Education Code 221.61)
 

19. If the charter school offers competitive athletics, annually post on the school's website or on the website of
the charter operator the total enrollment of the school classified by gender, the number of students who
participate in competitive athletics classified by gender, and the number of boys' and girls' teams classified by
sport and by competition level  (Education Code 221.9)
 

20. Provide specified accommodations to pregnant and parenting students, including, but not limited to, the
provision of parental leave and reasonable accommodations on campus to a lactating student to express breast
milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding

The charter school shall notify pregnant and parenting students and parents/guardians of the rights and
options available to pregnant and parenting students.  (Education Code 222, 222.5, 46015)
 

21. If a direct-funded charter school, adopt and implement uniform complaint procedures to resolve complaints of
unlawful discrimination or alleged violation of a state or federal law or regulation governing educational
programs, in accordance with 5 CCR 4600-4670  (5 CCR 4600)

22. If the charter school serves high school students and participates in the California Interscholastic Federation,
post the standardized incident form developed by CDE to track racial discrimination, harassment, or hazing
that occurs at high school sporting games or events on the charter school's website on or before April 1, 2025,
and, upon CDE's request, submit information related to any completed standardized incident forms received by
the charter school  (Ed. Code 33353)

Tuition and Fees
 

23. Not charge tuition  (Education Code 47605)

24. Not charge student fees for any activity that is an integral component of the educational program, except as
authorized by those Education Code provisions that explicitly apply to charter schools  (Education Code
49010, 49011)
 

25. Not bill, nor take any negative action against, a student or former student for a debt owed to the charter
school

The school shall provide an itemized invoice for any amount owed by the parent/guardian on behalf of a
student or former student before pursuing payment of the debt and shall provide a receipt to the
parent/guardian for each payment made to the school.  (Education Code 49014)

School Plans

26. Adopt a local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and update the plan by July 1 each year, after holding a
public hearing, consulting with specified stakeholders, and using the template adopted by the State Board of
Education (SBE)
 

27. As part of the LCAP adoption and annual update to the LCAP, the governing body of the charter school shall
separately adopt a local control funding formula budget overview for parents/guardians and as appropriate, an
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Addendum, based on the templates developed by SBE  (Education
Code 47604.33, 47606.5, 52064, 52064.1, 52064.3)

28. Present a report on the annual update to the LCAP and the local control funding formula budget overview for
parents/guardians on or before February 28 of each year, at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing
body of the charter school  (Education Code 47606.5)
 

29. If the charter school applies for federal and/or state categorical program funding through the state's
consolidated application, establish a school site council to develop and annually review a school plan for
student achievement, unless the school chooses to use its LCAP for this purpose  (Education Code 64000-
64001, 65000-65001)

587



30. Develop a comprehensive safety plan in accordance with Education Code 32282 and review and update the
plan in accordance with law by March 1 each year  (Education Code 47605)
 

31. Develop a transportation safety plan that includes procedures to ensure that a student is not left unattended
on a school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care motor vehicle and procedures for designating an
adult chaperone, other than the driver, to accompany students on a school activity bus

In addition, ensure that each school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care motor vehicle is equipped
with a child safety alert system that requires the driver to either manually contact or scan the device, thereby
prompting the driver to inspect the entirety of the interior of the vehicle before exiting, unless the student
activity bus is exempted by law.  (Education Code 39831.3; Vehicle Code 28160

Curriculum and Instruction

32. Offer at least the number of instructional minutes required by law for the grade levels provided by the charter
school  (Education Code 47612.5)

33. Provide one or more periods of recess that total 30 minutes on regular instructional days and at least 15
minutes on early release days as required by law  (Education Code 49056)
 

34. If the charter school serves students in grade 9, adopt a fair, objective, and transparent mathematics placement
policy with specified components  (Education Code 51224.7)
 

35. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 7-12, provide comprehensive sexual health education
and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention education at least once in junior high or middle school
and once in high school  (Education Code 51931, 51934)
 

36. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 6-12, identify and implement methods of informing
parents/guardians of human trafficking prevention resources  (Education Code 49381)
 

37. If the charter school serves students in middle or high school and offers one or more courses in health
education, include in those courses instruction in mental health, as specified  (Education Code 51925-51929)
 

38. If the charter school serves students in grade 12, comply with the requirements for student completion and
submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid and California Dream Act Application  (Education
Code 51225.7, 51225.8)

39. If the charter school is planning to hold a college or career fair, the charter school shall notify each
apprenticeship program in the same county as the charter school and each community college district that has
overlapping jurisdiction with the charter school with the planned date, time, and location of the fair, and give
each community college district that has overlapping jurisdiction the opportunity to participate in the college
or career fair  (Education Code 52770, Labor Code 3074.2)

40. If a charter school offers instruction in any of grades 9-12, and provides on-campus access to employers, not
prohibit access to the military services  (Education Code 49603)

41. If the charter school provides independent study, meet the requirements of Education Code 51745-51749.6,
except that the school may offer courses required for graduation solely through independent study as an
exception to Education Code 51745(e)  (Education Code 47612.5, 51747.3; 5 CCR 11705)
 

42. Develop a plan for offering independent study to affected students pursuant to Education Code 46393 if the
governing body of the charter school submits an affidavit pursuant to Education Code 46392 necessitated by
an emergency condition that resulted in a school closure  (Education Code 46392, 46393)
 

43. Accept and provide full or partial credit for coursework satisfactorily completed by a foster youth, student
experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, student who is
migratory, or a newcomer student while attending another school  (Education Code 51225.2)
 

44. Meet all statewide standards and conduct any statewide assessments applicable to noncharter public schools
 (Education Code 47605, 47612.5, 60605)

588



Special Education
 

45. Provide assistive technology devices in a student's home or other settings if the individualized education
program team determines that such access is necessary

The charter school shall also provide an assistive technology device or comparable device to a student who
enrolls in another local educational agency, for two months after the student leaves the charter school or until
alternative arrangements can be made, whichever occurs first.  (Education Code 56040.3)
 

46. If the charter school is an independent member of a special education local plan area and has a master contract
with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school:
 

a. Pay the full amount of the tuition or fees for students with disabilities enrolled in programs or services
provided pursuant to that contract  (Education Code 56365)
 

b. Conduct at least one onsite visit to the nonpublic, nonsectarian school prior to a student's placement and
at least once each school year  (Education Code 56366.1)

High School Graduation
 

47. Exempt a foster youth, student experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court school student, child of a
military family, or student who is migratory who transfers between schools after the second year of high
school, or a newcomer student for newly immigrant students in grades 11-12, from any of the charter school's
graduation requirements that exceed state requirements, unless the charter school determines that the student
is reasonably able to complete the requirements by the end of the fourth year of high school  (Education Code
51225.1, 51225.2)
 

48. In accordance with Education Code 51225.31, exempt an eligible student with disabilities from all coursework
and other requirements adopted by the charter school board that are in addition to the statewide course
requirements specified in Education Code 51225.3, and award such student a high school diploma  (Education
Code 51225.31)
 

49. Grant a high school diploma to any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 2014-15 school
year and met all applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit examination
 (Education Code 51413)
 

50. Require students to meet the state minimum course requirements for graduation as specified in Education
Code 51225.3, as well as any additional graduation requirements required by the governing body   (Education
Code 51225.3)

Student Expression
 

51. Allow a student to wear traditional tribal regalia or recognized objects of religious or cultural significance as an
adornment at school graduation ceremonies, unless the charter school determines that an item is likely to
cause a substantial disruption of, or material interference with, the ceremony  (Education Code 35183.1)

52. Provide students the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press including, but not limited to, the use
of bulletin boards; the distribution of printed materials or petitions; the wearing of buttons, badges, and other
insignia; and the right of expression in official publications  (Education Code 48907, 48950)

Staffing
 

53. Require its teachers to hold a certificate, permit, or other document issued by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing (CTC) as required for the teacher's certificated assignment

Teachers employed by the charter school during the 2019-20 school year shall have until July 1, 2025 to
obtain the required certificate required.  (Education Code 47605, 47605.4)
 

54. If the charter school offers transitional kindergarten (TK), require credentialed teachers first assigned to a TK
class to meet one of three specified criteria establishing qualification for the position by August 1, 2025, and to
maintain adult to student ratios as specified in Education Code 48000  (Education Code 48000)

589



 
55. Correct any misassignments if notified by the district that an assignment of a charter school employee is not

legally authorized  (Education Code 44258.9)

56. Not hire any person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony except as otherwise provided by
law, and, if the charter school contracts with an entity for specified services, verify that any employee of that
entity who interacts with students outside of the immediate supervision and control of the student's
parent/guardian or a school employee has a valid criminal records summary, unless an exception applies
 (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1, 45125.1)
 

57. Report to CTC any change in a certificated employee's employment status (dismissal, nonreelection,
resignation, suspension, unpaid administrative leave for more than 10 days, retirement, or other decision not to
employ or reemploy) as a result of an allegation of misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending
 (Education Code 44030.5)
 

58. If the charter school chooses to make the state teachers' retirement plan and/or the public employees
retirement system available to its employees, meet the requirements of Education Code 47611  (Education
Code 47610)
 

59. Meet the requirements of Government Code 3540-3549.3 related to collective bargaining in public education
employment  (Education Code 47611.5)
 

60. If the charter school employs security officers and/or security officers work on the charter school campus,
provide the latest course of training developed by the Bureau of Security and Investigative Services of the
Department of Consumer Affairs in consultation with the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and
Training, as specified  (Education Code 38001.5; Business and Professions Code 7583.45)

61. If the charter school provides transportation to students under contract, require drivers to submit and clear
tuberculosis risk assessment, unless otherwise exempt by law  (Education Code 49406)

Parent/Guardian Involvement
 

62. On a regular basis, consult with parents/guardians and teachers regarding the charter school's educational
programs  (Education Code 47605)
 

63. Notify parents/guardians of applicant students and currently enrolled students that parental involvement is not
a requirement for acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the charter school  (Education Code 47605)
 

64. If 15 percent or more of the students at the charter school speak a single primary language other than English,
provide all notices, reports, statements, or records sent to parents/guardians in English and in the primary
language  (Education Code 48985)

Nutrition

65. Provide a nutritionally adequate breakfast and lunch free of charge during each school day to students
requesting a meal regardless of the student's free or reduced-price meal eligibility, including, if the charter
school offers independent study, to a student enrolled in independent study on any school day in which the
student is scheduled for in-person educational activities of two or more hours  (Education Code 49501.5)

If the charter school participates in the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and School Breakfast Program
(SBP) and is a high poverty school, as defined, the charter school shall apply to operate a federal universal meal
service provision, and upon approval, apply such service.  (Education Code 49501.5, 49564.3)
 

66. If the charter school participates in the NSLP or SBP, not promote any food or beverage during the school day
that does not comply with state nutritional standards pursuant to Education Code 49430-49434, and not
participate in a corporate incentive program that offers free or discounted non-nutritious foods or beverages
as rewards for students who reach certain academic goals  (Education Code 49431.9)

Student Health

67. Adopt a policy on suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention for grades 7-12, and an age-appropriate

590



policy for grades K-6, and review the policy at least every five years  (Education Code 215)

68. Each charter school that serves students in any of grades 6-12 shall create and prominently display an age
appropriate and culturally relevant poster that identifies approaches and resources about student mental
health  (Education Code 49428.5)
 

69. If the charter school serves grades 7-12 and issues student identification cards, print the telephone numbers of
the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline and the National Domestic Violence Hotline on the identification cards
 (Education Code 215.5)
 

70. Notify students and parents/guardians at least twice during the school year on how to initiate access to
available student mental health services on campus or in the community  (Education Code 49428)
 

71. Provide annual training on child abuse and neglect reporting requirements to employees and persons working
on the charter school's behalf who are mandated reporters, within the first six weeks of each school year or
within six weeks of employment  (Education Code 44691)
 

72. If the charter school offers an athletic program, annually provide information sheets about concussions/head
injuries and sudden cardiac arrest to athletes and their parents/guardians, which must be signed and returned
to the school before the athlete initiates practice or competition

In the event that an athlete is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury, passes out, or faints during
or immediately after participation in an athletic activity, the student shall be immediately removed from the
activity for the remainder of the day and shall not be permitted to return to the activity until the student is
evaluated by a licensed health care provider and receives written clearance to do so.  (Education Code 33479-
33479.5, 49475)

73. If the charter school offers an interscholastic athletic program, develop and post a written emergency action
plan that describes procedures to be followed in the event of sudden cardiac arrest and other medical
emergencies, including concussion and heat illness, the location of emergency medical equipment, and the
rehearsal of such procedures; acquire at least one automated external defibrillator (AED) for the school; and
make the AED available at on-campus athletic activities or events  (Education Code 35179.4, 35179.6)
 

74. If the charter school sponsors or hosts an on-campus event in or around a swimming pool that is not part of an
interscholastic athletic program, provide for the presence of at least one adult with a valid certification of
cardiopulmonary resuscitation training throughout the duration of the event  (Education Code 35179.6)
 

75. Provide school nurses or other voluntary, trained personnel with emergency epinephrine auto-injectors of the
type required pursuant to Education Code 49414  (Education Code 49414)

76. If the charter school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available to persons suffering, or reasonably
believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose, or to make emergency stock albuterol inhalers available to
persons suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from respiratory distress, comply with the
requirements of Education Code 49414.3 and 49414.7, including, but not limited to, providing training to
personnel who volunteer to administer the opioid antagonist

Student Conduct/Discipline

77. Prohibit the denial of recess to a student unless the student's participation poses an immediate threat to the
student's physical safety or to the physical safety of one or more of the student's peers (Education Code
49056)
 

78. Adopt a policy on bullying and cyberbullying prevention, post specified information on bullying and harassment
prevention on the charter school's website, and annually make CDE's online training module on bullying
prevention available to school site certificated employees and other employees who have regular interaction
with students  (Education Code 234.4, 234.6, 32283.5)
 

79. Adopt and display a written policy on sexual harassment, include the policy as part of any orientation for new
and continuing students, and post a poster notifying students of the policy  (Education Code 231.5, 231.6)
 

80. Prohibit seclusion and behavioral restraint of students as a means of discipline, and only use such methods to

591



control student behavior that poses a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to a student or others
that cannot be immediately prevented by a less restrictive response  (Education Code 49005-49006.4)

81. Until June 30, 2029, neither recommend for expulsion nor suspend a student in grades K-12 for disrupting
school activities or otherwise willfully defying the authority of school personnel in the performance of their
duties  (Education Code 48901.1)
 

82. Upon request, provide a student who is suspended for two or more days with the homework assigned during
the period of suspension  (Education Code 47606.2, 48913.5)

Student and Parent/Guardian Records
 

83. Not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social security numbers from students or
their parents/guardians unless otherwise required to do so by state or federal law  (Education Code 49076.7)
 

84. Upon written request, not include the directory information of a student or the personal information of a
parent/guardian, as defined, in the minutes of a meeting of the governing body  (Education Code 49073.2)
 

85. If a student subject to compulsory full-time education is expelled or leaves the charter school without
graduating or completing the school year for any reason, notify the Superintendent of the school district of the
student's last known address within 30 days and, upon request, provide that district with a copy of the
student's cumulative record, including a transcript of grades or report card, and health information  (Education
Code 47605)
 

86. If the charter school serves high school students, submit to the Student Aid Commission (CSAC), for use in the
Cal Grant program, the grade point average (GPA) of all students in grade 12 and verification of high school
graduation or its equivalent for students who graduated in the prior academic year

However, such information shall not be submitted when students opt out or are permitted by the rules of
CSAC to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA.  (Education Code 69432.9, 69432.92)
 

87. Upon receipt of government-issued documentation of a change of name or gender or, if such documentation is
not available, upon request in accordance with the procedure in Education Code 49070, update, and reissue if
requested, a former student's records to include the student's updated legal name or gender  (Education Code
49062.5, 49070)

Facilities
 

88. Comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and enforced by the local building
enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the charter school is located, unless the charter
school facility meets either of the following conditions:  (Education Code 47610, 47610.5)
 

a. The facility complies with the Field Act pursuant to Education Code 17280-17317 and 17365-17374
 

b. The facility is exclusively owned or controlled by an entity that is not subject to the California Building
Standards Code, including, but not limited to, the federal government

89. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 3-12, stock the school's restrooms at all times with an
adequate supply of menstrual products available and accessible free of cost in all women's restrooms, all-
gender restrooms, and in at least one men's restroom  (Education Code 35292.6)

Finance
 

90. Promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries from the district, the county office of education, or the
Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), including, but not limited to, inquiries regarding the charter school's
financial records  (Education Code 47604.3)
 

91. Maintain written contemporaneous records that document all student attendance and make these records
available for audit and inspection  (Education Code 47612.5)
 

92. Identify and report to the SPI any portion of the charter school's average daily attendance that is generated

592



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

through nonclassroom-based instruction, including, but not limited to, independent study, home study, work
study, and distance and computer-based education  (Education Code 47612.5, 47634.2; 5 CCR 11963.2)

93. Annually prepare and submit financial reports to the Board and the County Superintendent in accordance with
the following reporting cycle:
 

a. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year

For a charter school in its first year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter petition
pursuant to Education Code 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement.  (Education Code 47604.33)
 

b. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes through
October 31  (Education Code 47604.33)
 

c. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes through
January 31  (Education Code 47604.33)
 

d. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year

The report submitted to the Board shall include an annual statement of all the charter school's receipts
and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.  (Education Code 42100, 47604.33)
 

e. By December 15, a copy of the charter school's annual, independent financial audit report for the
preceding fiscal year, unless the charter school's audit is encompassed in the district's audit

The audit report shall also be submitted to the State Controller and CDE.  (Education Code 47605)
 

94. If the charter school receives state facilities funding pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act
(Education Code 17070.10-17079.30), annually report a detailed list of all expenditures of state funds, and of
the school's matching funds for completed projects, and submit an audit of completed facilities projects within
one year of project completion  (Education Code 41024)

Accountability
 

95. Annually adopt a school accountability report card  (Education Code 33126, 47612; California Constitution,
Article 16, Section 8.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11700-11705 Independent study

5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Bus. And Prof. Code 7583.45 Training for security officers

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5 Public finance; school accountability report card

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5 Common school system

Corp. Code 5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members

Ed. Code 215 Suicide prevention policies

593

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=7583.45.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 8.5.&article=XVI
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 5.&article=IX
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=CORP&division=2.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=1.&article=&goUp=Y
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=12.5.&part=10.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=3.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=215.


Ed. Code 215.5 Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 221.61 Posting of Title IX information on website

Ed. Code 221.9 Sex equity in competitive athletics

Ed. Code 222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students

Ed. Code 222.5 Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.4 Mandated policy on bullying prevention

Ed. Code 234.6 Bullying and harassment prevention information

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 243 Prohibition of discrimination; instructional materials

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32283.5 Bullying; online training

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation; standardized incident form

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35120 Student board membership

Ed. Code 35179.4-35179.6 Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool safety that is not
part of interscholastic athletic program

Ed. Code 35183.1 Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of
religious/cultural significance

Ed. Code 35292.6 Stocking of menstrual products

Ed. Code 35330 Field trips and excursions; student fees

Ed. Code 38001.5 Training for security officers

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals

Ed. Code 39831.3 Transportation safety plan

Ed. Code 39843 Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department of Motor
Vehicles

Ed. Code 41024 Report of expenditure of state facility funds

Ed. Code 42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures

Ed. Code 44030.5 Reporting change in employment status due to alleged misconduct

Ed. Code 44237 Criminal record summary

Ed. Code 44691 Information on detection of child abuse; annual training

Ed. Code 44830.1 Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125.1 Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting pupils

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; parental leave

Ed. Code 46390-46393 Emergency average daily attendance

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992

Ed. Code 47634.2 Nonclassroom-based instruction

Ed. Code 47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

594

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=215.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=221.61.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=221.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=222.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=222.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=5.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=243.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32283.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=33353.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35120.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35183.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35292.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35330.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=38001.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39831.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39843.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42100.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44030.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44237.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=3.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=47634.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.8.&chapter=6.&article=4.


Ed. Code 47651 Apportionment of funds; charter schools

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional kindergarten

Ed. Code 48010 Minimum age of admission to first grade

Ed. Code 48206.3-48208 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Students in foster care and students experiencing homelessness

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48901.1 Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48913.5 Suspended students; homework assignments

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49010 Student fees

Ed. Code 49011 Student fees; definition

Ed. Code 49014 Public School Fair Debt Collection Act

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49062.5 Student records; name or gender change

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging student records

Ed. Code 49073.2 Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information; minutes of
board meeting

Ed. Code 49076.7 Student records; data privacy; social security numbers

Ed. Code 49110 Authority to issue work permits

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Ed. Code 49428 Notification of mental health services

Ed. Code 49428.5 Employment of medical personnel

Ed. Code 49430-49434 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49431.9 Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods

Ed. Code 49475 Health and safety; concussions and head injuries

Ed. Code 49501.5 Free breakfast and lunch to all students

Ed. Code 49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017

Ed. Code 49564.3 Provision of federal universal meal service

Ed. Code 49603 On campus access to employers and military services

Ed. Code 49700-49701 Education of children of military families

Ed. Code 51224.7 Mathematics placement policy

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance of coursework

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

595

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=47651.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48913.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=5.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49061.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49062.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49070.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49076.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49110.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49381.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49428.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49428.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49431.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49475.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49501.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49557.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49564.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49603.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=11.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51224.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.


Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.6 Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that require health
education for graduation

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8 Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid
and California Dream Act Application

Ed. Code 51413 Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit examination

Ed. Code 51744-51749.6 Independent study

Ed. Code 51925-51929 Mandatory mental health education

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 52075 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs; community college districts

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs

Ed. Code 56026 Special education

Ed. Code 56040.3 Availability of assistive technology device

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools

Ed. Code 56365-56366.12 Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools

Ed. Code 56521.1-56521.2 Emergency Interventions

Ed. Code 60600-60649 Assessment of academic achievement

Ed. Code 64000 Categorical programs included in consolidated application

Ed. Code 64001 School plan for student achievement; consolidated application programs

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils

Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and high school
graduation

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program

H&S Code 104559 Tobacco-free schools

Lab. Code 1198.5 Personnel records related to performance and grievance

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Pen. Code 1192.7 Definition of serious felony

Pen. Code 667.5 Definition of violent felony

Veh. Code 28160 Child safety alert system

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 6311 State plan

596

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51413.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.&article=5.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.5.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.6.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52052.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52075.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56026.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56040.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=4.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=64000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=64001.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=38.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=5.&title=3.&part=42.&chapter=1.7.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=1.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104559.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1198.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3074.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=12.&title=&part=&chapter=5.&article=18.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6311 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6311)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


20 USC 7221-7221j Charter schools

34 CFR 200.1-200.78 Accountability

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021)

Attorney General Opinion 101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018)

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)

CA Office of Administrative Hearings Decisions Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School (2012) OAH Case
No. 2011060763

California Department of Education Publication Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 20-
01, July 23, 2020

California Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg. Publication School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Court Decision Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District (2005) 130
Cal.App.4th 986

CSBA Publication Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2021

CSBA Publication Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, Governance
Brief, October 2017

CSBA Publication Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement
and Effective Governance in California's Charter Schools, September 2018

U.S. DOE Guidance Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory
Guidance, January 2014

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture

Website National Suicide Prevention Lifeline

Website National Domestic Violence Hotline

Website California State Teachers Retirement System

Website California Public Employees Retirement System

Website California Department of General Services, Office of Administrative
Hearings

Website California Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training

Website California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services

Website California Department of Pesticide Regulation

Website California State Controller

Website California Student Aid Commission

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers

Website California Charter Schools Association

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools

597

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lr/fm/documents/fma2001.pdf
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.usda.gov/
https://suicidepreventionlifeline.org/
https://www.thehotline.org/
https://www.calstrs.com/
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/
https://post.ca.gov/
https://www.bsis.ca.gov/
http://www.cdpr.ca.gov
http://www.sco.ca.gov
http://www.csac.ca.gov
http://www.qualitycharters.org
http://www.ccsa.org
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/


Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.42 Charter School Renewal

0420.43 Charter School Revocation

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1431 Waivers

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

7160 Charter School Facilities

7160 Charter School Facilities

598

http://www.cifstate.org
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OJC2FbrIydaUcplusrjZsoUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAalVNd78G0EqWWaslshnxKzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7lKcsS0plusfPfbuXweki46aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mqpluswkX5s3DzzX4o76TikSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ikwhky3RnE91hYDa7IlSuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6jkkHIpA8XDbIZfVGTMw7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Of7H5QETslshVUUc37uYSDwQ==


Policy 0450: Comprehensive Safety PlanPolicy 0450: Comprehensive Safety Plan Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/21/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/09/2023

The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus where they are
free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully committed to maximizing school safety and to creating
a positive learning environment that includes strategies for violence prevention and high expectations for student
conduct, responsible behavior, and respect for others.

OPTION 1:  (Districts with more than 2,500 ADA, and districts with 2,500 or less ADA that choose to develop school
site plans)

The school site council at each district school shall develop a comprehensive school safety plan relevant to the needs
and resources of that particular school. New school campuses shall develop a comprehensive safety plan within one
year of initiating operations.  (Education Code 32281, 32286)

The comprehensive school safety plan shall take into account the school's staffing, available resources, and building
design, as well as other factors unique to the site.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Districts with 2,500 or less ADA that choose to develop a districtwide plan)

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of a districtwide comprehensive safety plan that is
applicable to each school site.  (Education Code 32281)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

The comprehensive safety plan(s) shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 of each year and forwarded to the
Board for approval.  (Education Code 32286, 32288)

The Board shall review the comprehensive safety plan(s) in order to ensure compliance with state law, Board policy,
and administrative regulation and shall approve the plan(s) at a regularly scheduled meeting.

By October 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the California Department of Education
(CDE) of any schools that have not complied with the requirements of Education Code 32281.  (Education Code
32288)

Tactical Response Plan

Notwithstanding the process described above, any portion of a comprehensive safety plan that addresses tactical
responses to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury at the school site, including steps to
safeguard students and staff, secure affected school premises, and apprehend criminal perpetrator(s), shall be
developed by the Superintendent or designee in accordance with Education Code 32281. In developing such
strategies, the Superintendent or designee shall consult with law enforcement officials and with representative(s) of
employee bargaining unit(s), if they choose to participate.

When reviewing the tactical response plan, the Board may meet in closed session to confer with law enforcement
officials and approve the tactical response plan, provided that any vote to approve the tactical response plan is
announced in open session following the closed session.  (Education Code 32281)

Safety Plan(s) Access and Reporting

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that an updated file of all safety-related plans and materials is readily
available for inspection by the public.  (Education Code 32282)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

599



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

However, those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to criminal incidents need
not be publicly disclosed.

The Superintendent or designee shall share the comprehensive safety plans and any updates to the plans with local
law enforcement, the local fire department, and other first responder entities.  (Education Code 32281)

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide data to CDE pertaining to lockdown or multi-option response drills
conducted at district schools in accordance with Education Code 32289.5.  (Education Code 32289.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11987-11987.7 School Community Violence Prevention Program requirements

5 CCR 11992-11993 Persistently dangerous schools; definition

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 28 Right to Safe Schools

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985

Ed. Code 32270 School safety cadre

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32290 Safety devices

Ed. Code 35147 School site councils and advisory committees

Ed. Code 35183 School dress code; uniforms

Ed. Code 35266 Reporting of cyber attacks

Ed. Code 35291 Rules

Ed. Code 35291.5 School-adopted discipline rules

Ed. Code 41020 Requirement for annual audit

Ed. Code 48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher; student act constituting grounds for suspension or
expulsion

Ed. Code 49390-49395 Homicide threats

Ed. Code 67381 Availability of information regarding crimes

Gov. Code 11549.3 Independent security assessment

Gov. Code 54957 Closed session meetings for threats to security

Gov. Code 8586.5 California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Pen. Code 11164-11174.3 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act

Pen. Code 422.55 Definition of hate crime

Pen. Code 626.8 Disruptions

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

20 USC 7111-7122 Student support and academic enrichment grants

600

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I3D870A604C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I3D89F0934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I3DCCED004C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I3DCFFA434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 28.&article=I
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32290.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35147.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35183.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35266.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41020.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=8.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=67381.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8586.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.55.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.8.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim


20 USC 7912 Transfers from persistently dangerous schools

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

6 USC 665k Federal Clearinghouse on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CSBA Publication School Safety: Firearm Safety and Storage, May 2023

CSBA Publication Community Schools: Partnerships Supporting Students, Families and
Communities, Policy Brief, October 2010

CSBA Publication Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, rev. July 2010

CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender
and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

CSBA Publication Legal Guidance on Rights of Transgender and Gender Nonconforming
Students in Schools, October 2022

Federal Bureau of Investigation Publication Uniform Crime Reporting Handbook, 2004

U.S. Department of Education Publication Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and
Communities, January 2007

U.S. Secret Service & Department of Education
Pub

Threat Assessment in Schools: A Guide to Managing Threatening Situations
and to Creating Safe School Climates, 2004

Website California Department of Education, Language Services Policy and Process

Website Schoolsafety.gov

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools Planning

Website California Military Department

Website California Department of Technology, Independent Security Assessment

Website U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Fusion Centers

Website California State Threat Assessment System

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Secret Service, National Threat Assessment Center

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website Federal Bureau of Investigation

Website National Center for Crisis Management

Website National School Safety Center

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools

Website California Governor's Office of Emergency Services

Website California Healthy Kids Survey

Website U.S. Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

601

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7912 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7912)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:6 section:665k edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title6-section665k)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://rebrand.ly/lujwbpo
https://www.csba.org/~/media/E68E16A652D34EADA2BFDCD9668B1C8F.ashx
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/LegalAdvocacy/Legal-Guidance-Transgender-Legal-10-2022.ashx?la=en&rev=a3fb600ee6d640598c038dfceaef871c
https://rebrand.ly/1a963f
https://www.schoolsafety.gov/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/vp/safeschlplanning.asp
https://calguard.ca.gov/
https://cdt.ca.gov/security/independent-security-assessments-services/
https://www.dhs.gov/fusion-centers
https://calstas.org/)
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.secretservice.gov/protection/ntac
http://www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention
http://www.fbi.gov
http://www.schoolcrisisresponse.com
http://www.schoolsafety.us
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
http://www.caloes.ca.gov
http://chks.wested.org
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UVfQ2ovi67OOmlbQvAQMjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==


0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

2210 Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy

3510 Green School Operations

3511 Energy And Water Management

3511 Energy And Water Management

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

602

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KgiyCl2e9j5HAaAD8RZRJQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh23goxgT99IvsfkPmn7cLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VnfslshWdq0B3FdCiPhto850A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dLmEtnu93X37hoahscIWslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==


3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.31 School Resource Officers

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.1 Fire Drills And Fires

3516.2 Bomb Threats

3516.3 Earthquake Emergency Procedure System

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4258 Employee Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

603

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KoRdrhJNNdVhpluseUGrkchLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oPeODeNCvU9cici9pMyFbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ehmq9dbHwXplusV0W1Jdk27cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MG3YciedvmQRtTIjasRbwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusoXH3JxNjx5DyzsnfqxcZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jhHdy7tk7Jplusff53BHWkWEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H701MjUB6hgHsEplusvB74bLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vwqikrIyh1EyZNNyRxyi4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Qw55wsplusWapreuBu77rJwEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=alZhT5G6ID73IOslshCDBMSbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==


4258 Employee Security

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4340 Bargaining Units

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5131.5 Vandalism And Graffiti

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.61 Drug Testing

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.8 Mobile Communication Devices

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5136 Gangs

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

604

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aXEdBlWzo3nDtSuWv8t4plusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HJuQKpmoNTr4oeBccYQKsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HsaEmIJcZWrk7Q18AdtTEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nUpUy9jBqheu6n36kZNR4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FslshwKS842o9nZiIxwbe6Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7pshrgVfGdZMm9Kc4wgaPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1plusOKOaJVgOwqplustOfbTtRcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=deyOslshslshWxrJvIA6plusATGGJpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Rt3BPTWz2ERSB2pqbWFUYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAZA7cjtBsmbuplusVcEzF6ig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mSXd8n9TFwhwbF7ZCGs4LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RXplusyfiJwFTgt9UBLmFhWfw==


5136 Gangs

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5142 Safety

5142 Safety

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6142.3 Civic Education

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

605

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G6iFratUyvaLTnPUgP5DXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jVYr1cMfodNAUjLaAjdfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4iU90Q8AxOTW0b1K0bqs4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ixj5iNcaOIL439eH3FXyoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9cB6Mjes5go7Gu46CPWVkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ETlN1bxfF5plus2tfydsQKL2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qANB3w0WdGpm1oFrFPuJYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O4JwZL8Jiaq0yif6ir40uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SdyzaGyJoEpUuu5V9LggSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZfY4o1eLxJ2I1B7ZB1QR3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zzxb9ZpnSIiAjmNVXKfJKA==


6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153-E PDF(1) School-Sponsored Trips

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

606

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X20o6P5S3ESJpOyE2Xs6tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyGCXhWTBp3lTwg0Gfj5Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HFON60b1DWps0pVVrDslshC8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Regulation 0450: Comprehensive Safety PlanRegulation 0450: Comprehensive Safety Plan Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/21/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/09/2023

Development and Review of Comprehensive School Safety Plan

The school site council shall consult with local law enforcement, the local fire department, and other first responders
in the writing and development of the comprehensive school safety plan. When practical, the school site council shall
also consult with other school site councils and safety planning committees.  (Education Code 32281, 32282)

The school site council may delegate the responsibility for developing a comprehensive safety plan to a school safety
planning committee composed of the following members:  (Education Code 32281)

1. The principal or designee
 

2. One teacher who is a representative of the recognized certificated employee organization
 

3. One parent/guardian whose child attends the school
 

4. One classified employee who is a representative of the recognized classified employee organization

5. Other members, if desired

Before adopting the comprehensive safety plan, the school site council or school safety planning committee shall
hold a public meeting at the school in order to allow members of the public the opportunity to express an opinion
about the plan.  (Education Code 32288)

The school site council or safety planning committee shall notify, in writing, the following persons and entities of the
public meeting, if available:  (Education Code 32288)

1. The local mayor
 

2. A representative of the local school employee organization
 

3. A representative of each parent/guardian organization at the school, including the parent teacher association
and parent teacher clubs
 

4. A representative of each teacher organization at the school
 

5. A representative of the school's student body government
 

6. All persons who have indicated that they want to be notified

In addition, the school site council or safety planning committee may notify, in writing, the following entities of the
public meeting:  (Education Code 32288)

1. Representatives of local religious organizations
 

2. Local civic leaders
 

3. Local business organizations

After the first evaluation or review is conducted, and after each annual evaluation or review, a school employee, a
student's parent/guardian or educational rights holder, or a student may bring concerns about an individual student's
ability to access disaster safety procedures described in the comprehensive school safety plan to the principal.
 (Education Code 32282)

If the principal determines there is merit to a concern, the principal shall direct the school site council or school
safety planning committee, to make appropriate modifications to the comprehensive school safety plan during the

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

607



evaluation of the comprehensive safety plan. The principal may direct the school site council or the school safety
planning committee to make such modifications before the evaluation, as appropriate.  (Education Code 32282)

Content of the Comprehensive Safety Plan

Each comprehensive safety plan shall include an assessment of the current status of any crime committed on campus
and at school-related functions.  (Education Code 32282)

The assessment may include, but not be limited to, reports of crime, suspension and expulsion rates, and surveys of
students, parents/guardians, and staff regarding their perceptions of school safety.

The plan shall identify appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high level of school safety
and address the school's procedures for complying with existing laws related to school safety, including all of the
following:  (Education Code 32282)

1. Child abuse reporting procedures consistent with Penal Code 11164-11174.3
 

2. Routine and emergency disaster procedures including, but not limited to:

a. Adaptations for students with disabilities in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the
federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, and Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of
1973

b. An earthquake emergency procedure system in accordance with Education Code 32282
 

c. A procedure to allow public agencies, including the American Red Cross, to use school buildings, grounds,
and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting the
public health and welfare
 

3. Policies pursuant to Education Code 48915(d) for students who commit an act listed in Education Code
48915(c) and other school-designated serious acts that would lead to suspension, expulsion, or mandatory
expulsion recommendations
 

4. Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous students pursuant to Education Code 49079

5. A policy consistent with the prohibition against discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying pursuant
to Education Code 200-262.4
 

6. If the school has adopted a dress code prohibiting students from wearing "gang-related apparel" pursuant to
Education Code 35183, the provisions of that dress code and the definition of "gang-related apparel"
 

7. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of students, parents/guardians, and employees to and from school
 

8. A safe and orderly school environment conducive to learning
 

9. The rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Education Code 35291 and 35291.5

10. Procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents, including procedures related to individuals
with guns on campus and at school-related functions

11. Procedures to assess and respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful activity that is being
conducted or threatened to be conducted at the school, at an activity sponsored by the school, or on a school
bus serving the school.

12. For schools that serve students in any of grades 7-12, a protocol in the event a student is suffering or is
reasonably believed to be suffering from an opioid overdose

Among the strategies for providing a safe environment, the comprehensive safety plan may also include:

608



1. Development of a positive school climate that promotes respect for diversity, personal and social
responsibility, effective interpersonal and communication skills, self-esteem, anger management, and conflict
resolution

2. Disciplinary policies and procedures that contain prevention strategies, such as strategies to prevent bullying,
hazing, and cyberbullying, as well as behavioral expectations and consequences for violations

3. Strategies aimed at preventing potential incidents involving crime and violence on school campuses, including
vandalism, drug and alcohol abuse, gang membership and violence, hate crimes, bullying, including bullying
committed personally or by means of an electronic act, teen relationship violence, and discrimination and
harassment, including sexual harassment
 

4. Curriculum that emphasizes prevention and alternatives to violence, such as multicultural education and
literacy, character/values education, social and emotional learning, media analysis skills, conflict resolution,
community service learning, and education related to the prevention of dating violence
 

5. Parent/guardian involvement strategies, including strategies to help ensure parent/guardian support and
reinforcement of the school's rules and increase the number of adults on campus

6. Provision of safety materials and emergency communications in language(s) understandable to
parents/guardians

7. Annual notification to parents/guardians related to the safe storage of firearms
 

8. Prevention and intervention strategies related to the sale or use of drugs and alcohol which shall reflect
expectations for drug-free schools and support for recovering students
 

9. Collaborative relationships among the city, county, community agencies, local law enforcement, the judicial
system, and the schools that lead to the development of a set of common goals and community strategies for
violence prevention instruction
 

10. District policy prohibiting the possession of firearms and ammunition on school grounds
 

11. Measures to prevent or minimize the influence of gangs on campus

12. Procedures for receiving verification from law enforcement when a violent crime has occurred on school
grounds and for promptly notifying parents/guardians and employees of that crime
 

13. Procedures for the early identification and threat assessment of, and appropriate response to, suspicious
and/or threatening digital media content
 

14. Assessment of the school's physical environment, including a risk management analysis and development of
ground security measures such as procedures for closing campuses to outsiders, installing surveillance systems,
securing the campus perimeter, protecting buildings against vandalism, and providing for a law enforcement
presence on campus

15. Independent security assessment of the school's network infrastructure and selected web applications to
identify vulnerabilities and provide recommendations to improve cybersecurity

16. Guidelines for the roles and responsibilities of mental health professionals, athletic coaches, community
intervention professionals, school counselors, school resource officers, and police officers on school campuses.
Guidelines may include, but are not limited to, the following:
 

a. Strategies to create and maintain a positive school climate, promote school safety, and increase student
achievement
 

b. Strategies to prioritize mental health and intervention services, restorative and transformative justice
programs, and positive behavior interventions and support
 

c. Protocols to address the mental health care of students who have witnessed a violent act at any time,
including, but not limited to, while on school grounds, while coming or going from school, during a lunch

609



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

period whether on or off campus, or during or while going to or coming from a school-sponsored activity
 

17. Strategies for suicide prevention and intervention

18. District policy and/or plan related to pandemics

19. Procedures to implement when a person interferes with or disrupts a school activity, remains on campus after
having been asked to leave, or creates a disruption with the intent to threaten the immediate physical safety of
students or staff

20. Crisis prevention and intervention strategies, which may include the following:
 

a. Identification of possible crises that may occur, determination of necessary tasks that need to be
addressed, and development of procedures relative to each crisis, including the involvement of law
enforcement and other public safety agencies as appropriate
 

b. Threat assessment strategies to determine the credibility and seriousness of a threat and provide
appropriate interventions for the potential offender(s)
 

c. Assignment of staff members responsible for each identified task and procedure
 

d. Development of an evacuation plan based on an assessment of buildings and grounds and opportunities
for students and staff to practice the evacuation plan
 

e. Coordination of communication to schools, Governing Board members, parents/guardians, and the media
 

f. Communication with parents/guardians of reunification plans and the necessity of cooperating with first
responders
 

g. Development of a method for the reporting of violent incidents
 

h. Development of follow-up procedures that may be required after a crisis has occurred, such as
counseling

21. Training on assessment and reporting of potential threats, violence prevention, and intervention techniques.
Such training shall include preparation to implement the elements of the comprehensive safety plan

22. Environmental safety strategies, including, but not limited to, procedures for preventing and mitigating
exposure to toxic pesticides, lead, asbestos, vehicle emissions, and other hazardous substances and
contaminants
 

23. Continuity of operations procedures to ensure that the district's essential functions are not disrupted during an
emergency, to the extent possible

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11987-11987.7 School Community Violence Prevention Program requirements

5 CCR 11992-11993 Persistently dangerous schools; definition

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 28 Right to Safe Schools

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985

Ed. Code 32270 School safety cadre

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32290 Safety devices

610

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I3D870A604C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I3D89F0934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I3DCCED004C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I3DCFFA434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 28.&article=I
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32290.


Ed. Code 35147 School site councils and advisory committees

Ed. Code 35183 School dress code; uniforms

Ed. Code 35266 Reporting of cyber attacks

Ed. Code 35291 Rules

Ed. Code 35291.5 School-adopted discipline rules

Ed. Code 41020 Requirement for annual audit

Ed. Code 48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher; student act constituting grounds for suspension or
expulsion

Ed. Code 49390-49395 Homicide threats

Ed. Code 67381 Availability of information regarding crimes

Gov. Code 11549.3 Independent security assessment

Gov. Code 54957 Closed session meetings for threats to security

Gov. Code 8586.5 California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Pen. Code 11164-11174.3 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act

Pen. Code 422.55 Definition of hate crime

Pen. Code 626.8 Disruptions

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

20 USC 7111-7122 Student support and academic enrichment grants

20 USC 7912 Transfers from persistently dangerous schools

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

6 USC 665k Federal Clearinghouse on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CSBA Publication School Safety: Firearm Safety and Storage, May 2023

CSBA Publication Community Schools: Partnerships Supporting Students, Families and
Communities, Policy Brief, October 2010

CSBA Publication Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, rev. July 2010

CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender
and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

CSBA Publication Legal Guidance on Rights of Transgender and Gender Nonconforming
Students in Schools, October 2022

Federal Bureau of Investigation Publication Uniform Crime Reporting Handbook, 2004

U.S. Department of Education Publication Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and
Communities, January 2007

611

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35147.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35183.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35266.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41020.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=8.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=67381.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8586.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.55.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.8.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7912 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7912)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:6 section:665k edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title6-section665k)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://rebrand.ly/lujwbpo
https://www.csba.org/~/media/E68E16A652D34EADA2BFDCD9668B1C8F.ashx
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/LegalAdvocacy/Legal-Guidance-Transgender-Legal-10-2022.ashx?la=en&rev=a3fb600ee6d640598c038dfceaef871c


U.S. Secret Service & Department of Education
Pub

Threat Assessment in Schools: A Guide to Managing Threatening Situations
and to Creating Safe School Climates, 2004

Website California Department of Education, Language Services Policy and Process

Website Schoolsafety.gov

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools Planning

Website California Military Department

Website California Department of Technology, Independent Security Assessment

Website U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Fusion Centers

Website California State Threat Assessment System

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Secret Service, National Threat Assessment Center

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website Federal Bureau of Investigation

Website National Center for Crisis Management

Website National School Safety Center

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools

Website California Governor's Office of Emergency Services

Website California Healthy Kids Survey

Website U.S. Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

612

https://rebrand.ly/1a963f
https://www.schoolsafety.gov/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/vp/safeschlplanning.asp
https://calguard.ca.gov/
https://cdt.ca.gov/security/independent-security-assessments-services/
https://www.dhs.gov/fusion-centers
https://calstas.org/)
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.secretservice.gov/protection/ntac
http://www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention
http://www.fbi.gov
http://www.schoolcrisisresponse.com
http://www.schoolsafety.us
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
http://www.caloes.ca.gov
http://chks.wested.org
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UVfQ2ovi67OOmlbQvAQMjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==


1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

2210 Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy

3510 Green School Operations

3511 Energy And Water Management

3511 Energy And Water Management

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.31 School Resource Officers

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.1 Fire Drills And Fires

3516.2 Bomb Threats

3516.3 Earthquake Emergency Procedure System

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

613

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KgiyCl2e9j5HAaAD8RZRJQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh23goxgT99IvsfkPmn7cLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VnfslshWdq0B3FdCiPhto850A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dLmEtnu93X37hoahscIWslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KoRdrhJNNdVhpluseUGrkchLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oPeODeNCvU9cici9pMyFbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ehmq9dbHwXplusV0W1Jdk27cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MG3YciedvmQRtTIjasRbwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusoXH3JxNjx5DyzsnfqxcZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jhHdy7tk7Jplusff53BHWkWEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H701MjUB6hgHsEplusvB74bLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vwqikrIyh1EyZNNyRxyi4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==


3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4340 Bargaining Units

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

614

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Qw55wsplusWapreuBu77rJwEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=alZhT5G6ID73IOslshCDBMSbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aXEdBlWzo3nDtSuWv8t4plusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==


5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5131.5 Vandalism And Graffiti

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.61 Drug Testing

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.8 Mobile Communication Devices

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5136 Gangs

5136 Gangs

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5142 Safety

5142 Safety

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

615

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HJuQKpmoNTr4oeBccYQKsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HsaEmIJcZWrk7Q18AdtTEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nUpUy9jBqheu6n36kZNR4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FslshwKS842o9nZiIxwbe6Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7pshrgVfGdZMm9Kc4wgaPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1plusOKOaJVgOwqplustOfbTtRcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=deyOslshslshWxrJvIA6plusATGGJpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Rt3BPTWz2ERSB2pqbWFUYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAZA7cjtBsmbuplusVcEzF6ig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mSXd8n9TFwhwbF7ZCGs4LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RXplusyfiJwFTgt9UBLmFhWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G6iFratUyvaLTnPUgP5DXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jVYr1cMfodNAUjLaAjdfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4iU90Q8AxOTW0b1K0bqs4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ixj5iNcaOIL439eH3FXyoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9cB6Mjes5go7Gu46CPWVkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ETlN1bxfF5plus2tfydsQKL2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==


5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6142.3 Civic Education

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153-E PDF(1) School-Sponsored Trips

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

616

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qANB3w0WdGpm1oFrFPuJYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O4JwZL8Jiaq0yif6ir40uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SdyzaGyJoEpUuu5V9LggSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZfY4o1eLxJ2I1B7ZB1QR3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zzxb9ZpnSIiAjmNVXKfJKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X20o6P5S3ESJpOyE2Xs6tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyGCXhWTBp3lTwg0Gfj5Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HFON60b1DWps0pVVrDslshC8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==


9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

617

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy 1113: District And School WebsitesPolicy 1113: District And School Websites Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

To enhance communication with students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members, the Governing Board
encourages the Superintendent or designee to develop and maintain district and school websites. The use of district
and school websites shall support the district's vision and goals and shall be coordinated with other district
communications strategies.

Design Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall establish design standards for district and school websites in order to maintain
a consistent identity, professional appearance, and ease of use.

District design standards shall require an evaluation of products, features, and content accessible to students on
district and school websites to prevent access to harmful or potentially harmful material.

The district's design standards shall address the accessibility of district and school websites to individuals with
disabilities, including compatibility with commonly used assistive technologies.

Website Content

The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines for district and school websites and assign staff to
review and approve content prior to posting.

Board policy pertaining to advertising in district and school publications, as specified in Board Policy 1325 -
Advertising and Promotion, shall also apply to advertising on district and school websites.

Privacy Rights

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the privacy rights of students, parents/guardians, staff, Board
members, and other individuals are protected on district and school websites.

Telephone numbers and home and email addresses of students and/or their parents/guardians shall not be published
on district or school websites.

OPTION 1:  The district regards photographs as a category of directory information that would not generally be
considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. Therefore, a student's photograph, together with the
student's name, may be published on district or school websites unless the student's parent/guardian has notified the
district in writing to not release the student's photograph without prior written consent, in accordance with Board
Policy and Administrative Regulation 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information.
END OF OPTION 1

OPTION 2:  Photographs of individual students shall not be published on district or school websites accompanied by
the student's name or other personally identifiable information without the prior written consent of the student's
parent/guardian.
END OF OPTION 2

If students' names are not included, photographs of individual students or groups of students, such as at a school
event, may be published on school or district websites.

Employees' home addresses, personal telephone numbers, and personal email addresses shall not be posted on

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

618



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

district or school websites.

The home address or telephone number of any elected or appointed official including, but not limited to, a Board
member or public safety official, shall not be posted on district or school websites without the prior written
permission of that individual.  (Government Code 3307.5, 7928.205, 7920.535)

No public safety official shall be required to consent to the posting on the Internet of the public safety official's
photograph or identity as a public safety officer for any purpose if that officer reasonably believes that the disclosure
may result in a threat, harassment, intimidation, or harm to the officer or the officer's family.  (Government Code
3307.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Ed. Code 32526 Use of learning recovery funds

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation; standardized incident form

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 35258 Internet access to school accountability report cards

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 48852.6 Information regarding homelessness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drug use

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 49006 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 5092 Filling Vacancies

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12950 California Civil Rights Department posters

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Pen. Code 14029.5 Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness
protection program

Pub. Res. Code 21082.1 California Environmental Quality Act environmental review documents

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

16 CFR 312.1-312.13 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

17 USC 101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright

17 USC 504 Penalties for copyright infringement

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

619

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22580.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22584.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22586.&lawCode=BPC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=33353.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35258.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48852.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49006.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49061.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5092.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60048.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=11135.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3307.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=14029.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PRC&sectionNum=21082.1.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-16/chapter-I/subchapter-C/part-312?toc=1
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title17/chapter1&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:17 section:504 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title17-section504)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


29 USC 705 Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave, January
2023

CA Civil Rights Department Publication California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment, January
2024

CA Civil Rights Department Publication The Rights of Employees Who Are Transgender or Gender Nonconforming:
Fact Sheet, November 2022

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant Employee, January 2023

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Race and School Programming, August 2023

U.S. DOJ, Civil Rights Division Publication Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with
Disabilities, February 2020

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website Fact Sheet: New rule on the accessibility of web content and mobile apps
provided by state and local governments

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Governor's Office of Planning and Research, The California Environmental
Quality Act

Website California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section

Website World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Civil Rights Department

World Wide Web Consortium Publication Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, June 2018

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

620

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:705 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section705)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/CFRA-and-Pregnancy-Leave_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/Workplace-Discrimination-Poster_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2022/11/The-Rights-of-Employees-who-are-Transgender-or-Gender-Nonconforming-Fact-Sheet_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/Your-Rights-and-Obligations-as-a-Pregnant-Employee_ENG.pdf
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/unpaid-meal-charges-local-meal-charge-policies
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-20230824.pdf
https://www.ada.gov/resources/accessibility-govt-websites/
https://www.cifstate.org/sports/sportsmanship/response/Discrimination_Harassment_Complaint_Form.pdf
https://www.ada.gov/notices/2024/03/08/web-rule/
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/homeland-security/california-cybersecurity-integration-center/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://opr.ca.gov/ceqa/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/ws/webaccessstds.asp
http://www.calspra.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ada.gov
https://www.w3.org/TR/2018/REC-WCAG21-20180605/
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8WZCIZ8oG2xBqtK4ApFplus0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y0lPgUQGFYjslshDyVbAGuO8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jOl2BVpWq3W7oCJ1mBNs1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ME4b8iaEr4slsh0ahM8YNXJmg==


0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

621

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n67e5kfO6UsNa403CtI0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HI0jTdSLSPDgxNej5RvpcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jhHdy7tk7Jplusff53BHWkWEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==


4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5141.5 Mental Health

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

622

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p0Uqeecq2VowRezecdaxqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bbBbeBFwGJtNFOxbwplus3lCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lHdYI50XfJTfOia9WX8sAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k0jVpNQyElxkwTfTchUNOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IF66LY2PpkEYVWSnLKmJyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LcN9vRTlpZjVGXKPwplusUqPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HJuQKpmoNTr4oeBccYQKsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zqlm8OpJl3PNcA4plusN4wRZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zplus1zHGkEgxyU5t9lhzAkEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MTEVRngjKpU1slsh5UicOZMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fYs5v9plus5plus2cmXIXxj7bcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wmRplus5YhD8XOP97RPTcOaplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jtw0HTZSplusslshdPJ0slshDw1LPOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c5s3SEPjQLEJplusRqQAaBcOw==


6163.4-E PDF(1) Student Use Of Technology

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9223 Filling Vacancies

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

623

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u9YjgxoraAKv3jv8u0vwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UBWDuz3w1JnfecVpmbwcGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iyDBTDpNQ3S0jfpoL8u0qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eqr0lSbOOeNs1pluss0y33tZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HFON60b1DWps0pVVrDslshC8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t1lJ3p0KnHtbE3eIuPsKNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==


Regulation 1113: District And School WebsitesRegulation 1113: District And School Websites Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

Design Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall develop design standards for district and school websites that include, but are
not limited to, guidelines to ensure the clear organization of the material, readability of the font type and size, and
simplicity of the navigation structure linking the content on the website. Such standards shall take into consideration
the ease of use on a wide range of devices.

In accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the federal
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, district and school websites shall contain features that ensure accessibility for individuals
with disabilities, which may include, but are not limited to, captions for videos and multimedia presentations, text
alternatives to images, provision of sufficient time to use the content, avoidance of flashing images, adequate
contrast in visual presentations, and/or other features that meet applicable standards for website accessibility. The
Superintendent or designee shall regularly review district and school websites and modify them as needed to ensure
legal compliance with accessibility standards.

Website Content

As applicable, district and school websites shall provide current information regarding the district's mission and goals,
district/school programs and operations, district/school news, agendas and minutes of Governing Board meetings,
School Accountability Report Cards, school calendars, links to educational resources.

With approval of the principal, individual teachers may create web pages linked to the district or school website to
provide information pertaining to class assignments, expectations, and activities.

Student work may be published on district or school websites provided that both the student and the student's
parent/guardian provide written permission or the work is part of an existing publication such as a school
newspaper.

Any copyrighted material to be posted on a district or school website shall be submitted to the Superintendent or
designee together with the permission of the copyright owner to reprint the material. Any copyrighted material
submitted without the copyright owner's permission shall only be posted on a district or school website if the
Superintendent or designee determines that the material is in the public domain or that the intended use meets the
criteria for fair use or another exception pursuant to 17 USC 107-122. When any copyrighted material is posted, the
website shall include a notice crediting the copyright owner and, as necessary, shall note that permission to reprint
the material was granted.

Whenever a district or school website includes links to external websites, it shall include a disclaimer that the district
is not responsible for the content of external websites.

Roles and Responsibilities

Any employee assigned as a district or school webmaster shall be responsible for the uploading of material to the
website(s) upon approval of the Superintendent or designee. The employee shall review district and school websites
to ensure consistency with district standards, regularly check links for accuracy and appropriateness, keep the web
server free of outdated or unused files, and provide technical assistance as needed.

The Superintendent or designee may assign additional staff members to conduct editorial reviews of all materials
submitted for publication on district or school websites and to make corrections as needed in spelling, grammar, or
accuracy of content.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development opportunities related to district content guidelines,
design standards, and accessibility laws and standards to district communications and technology staff, district and

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

624



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

school webmasters, and/or other appropriate staff.

Security

Pursuant to Education Code 35266, districts that experience a cyberattack which impacts more than 500 students or
personnel are required to report such cyberattack to the California Cybersecurity Integration Center.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish security procedures for the district's computer network to prevent
unauthorized access and changes to district and school websites. To the extent possible, the host computer(s) shall
be in a lockable room with restricted access.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Ed. Code 32526 Use of learning recovery funds

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation; standardized incident form

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 35258 Internet access to school accountability report cards

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 48852.6 Information regarding homelessness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drug use

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 49006 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 5092 Filling Vacancies

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12950 California Civil Rights Department posters

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Pen. Code 14029.5 Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness
protection program

Pub. Res. Code 21082.1 California Environmental Quality Act environmental review documents

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

16 CFR 312.1-312.13 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

17 USC 101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright

17 USC 504 Penalties for copyright infringement

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

625

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22580.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22584.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22586.&lawCode=BPC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=33353.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35258.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48852.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49006.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49061.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5092.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60048.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=11135.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3307.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=14029.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PRC&sectionNum=21082.1.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-16/chapter-I/subchapter-C/part-312?toc=1
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title17/chapter1&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:17 section:504 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title17-section504)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


29 USC 705 Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave, January
2023

CA Civil Rights Department Publication California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment, January
2024

CA Civil Rights Department Publication The Rights of Employees Who Are Transgender or Gender Nonconforming:
Fact Sheet, November 2022

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant Employee, January 2023

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Race and School Programming, August 2023

U.S. DOJ, Civil Rights Division Publication Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with
Disabilities, February 2020

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website Fact Sheet: New rule on the accessibility of web content and mobile apps
provided by state and local governments

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Governor's Office of Planning and Research, The California Environmental
Quality Act

Website California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section

Website World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Civil Rights Department

World Wide Web Consortium Publication Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, June 2018

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

626

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:705 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section705)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/CFRA-and-Pregnancy-Leave_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/Workplace-Discrimination-Poster_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2022/11/The-Rights-of-Employees-who-are-Transgender-or-Gender-Nonconforming-Fact-Sheet_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/Your-Rights-and-Obligations-as-a-Pregnant-Employee_ENG.pdf
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/unpaid-meal-charges-local-meal-charge-policies
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-20230824.pdf
https://www.ada.gov/resources/accessibility-govt-websites/
https://www.cifstate.org/sports/sportsmanship/response/Discrimination_Harassment_Complaint_Form.pdf
https://www.ada.gov/notices/2024/03/08/web-rule/
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/homeland-security/california-cybersecurity-integration-center/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://opr.ca.gov/ceqa/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/ws/webaccessstds.asp
http://www.calspra.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ada.gov
https://www.w3.org/TR/2018/REC-WCAG21-20180605/
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8WZCIZ8oG2xBqtK4ApFplus0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y0lPgUQGFYjslshDyVbAGuO8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jOl2BVpWq3W7oCJ1mBNs1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ME4b8iaEr4slsh0ahM8YNXJmg==


0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

627

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n67e5kfO6UsNa403CtI0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HI0jTdSLSPDgxNej5RvpcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jhHdy7tk7Jplusff53BHWkWEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==


4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5141.5 Mental Health

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

628

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p0Uqeecq2VowRezecdaxqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bbBbeBFwGJtNFOxbwplus3lCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lHdYI50XfJTfOia9WX8sAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k0jVpNQyElxkwTfTchUNOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IF66LY2PpkEYVWSnLKmJyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LcN9vRTlpZjVGXKPwplusUqPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HJuQKpmoNTr4oeBccYQKsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zqlm8OpJl3PNcA4plusN4wRZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zplus1zHGkEgxyU5t9lhzAkEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MTEVRngjKpU1slsh5UicOZMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fYs5v9plus5plus2cmXIXxj7bcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wmRplus5YhD8XOP97RPTcOaplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jtw0HTZSplusslshdPJ0slshDw1LPOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c5s3SEPjQLEJplusRqQAaBcOw==


6163.4-E PDF(1) Student Use Of Technology

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9223 Filling Vacancies

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

629

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u9YjgxoraAKv3jv8u0vwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UBWDuz3w1JnfecVpmbwcGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iyDBTDpNQ3S0jfpoL8u0qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eqr0lSbOOeNs1pluss0y33tZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HFON60b1DWps0pVVrDslshC8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t1lJ3p0KnHtbE3eIuPsKNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==


Exhibit 1113-E(1): District And School WebsitesExhibit 1113-E(1): District And School Websites Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/09/2022

MATERIALS REQUIRED TO BE POSTED ON DISTRICT WEBSITE

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of materials which the law explicitly requires be posted on district or school
websites. Other posting requirements may exist and may be identified in the future.

Materials to Prominently Display

The following must be posted in a prominent location on the district's website, such as on the home page when
required by law:

1. The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP), any updates or revisions to the LCAP, and the local
control funding formula budget overview  (Education Code 52064.1, 52065).  See AR 0460 - Local Control and
Accountability Plan.
 

2. A direct link to the current board agenda containing the time and location of the meeting and a brief general
description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items to be
discussed in closed session, or a link to the district's agenda management platform where the current agenda
shall be the first available  (Government Code 54954.2, 54956).  Post at least 72 hours before a regular board
meeting or 24 hours before a special meeting.  See BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices and BB 9322 -
Agenda/Meeting Materials.
 

3. The district's policy on student suicide prevention including, for grades K-6, the age appropriateness of the
policy  (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention.
 

4. The district's policies and procedures prohibiting discrimination, harassment, student sexual harassment,
intimidation, bullying, and cyberbullying, including a section on social media bullying that includes all of the
references described in Education Code 234.6 as possible forums for social media  (Education Code 234.6).
 See AR 5131.2 - Bullying and AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.
 

5. The district's policy on preventing and responding to hate violence, if the district has adopted such a policy
 (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior.
 

6. The definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in Education Code 230, including
the rights set forth in Education Code 221.8  (Education Code 234.6).  See AR 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

7. Information regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a student's sex, including sex
stereotypes, sex characteristics, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy, childbirth, termination
of pregnancy, or lactation, including related medical conditions or recovery, and parental, family, and marital
status; that inquiries about the application of Title IX may be referred to the Title IX Coordinator or the U.S.
Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR); the name and contact information of the Title IX
Coordinator; how to locate the district's nondiscrimination policy and grievance procedures; how to report
information about conduct that may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX; the rights of students and the
public as specified in Education Code 221.8; the responsibilities of the district under Title IX; web links to
information about those rights and responsibilities on the websites of the Office for Equal Opportunity and
OCR; a description of how to file a complaint of noncompliance under Title IX with specified components; and
a link to Title IX information posted on the California Department of Education's (CDE) website  (Education
Code 221.6, 221.61, 234.6; 34 CFR 106.2, 106.8, 106.10).  See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment
and AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment.
 

8. A link to statewide CDE-compiled resources, including community-based organizations, that provide support
to youth who have been subjected to school-based discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying and to
their families  (Education Code 234.5, 234.6). See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.
 

9. Posters published by the California Civil Rights Department (CRD) including, "California Law Prohibits
Workplace Discrimination and Harassment," and for districts with five or more employees, "The Rights of

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

630



Employees Who Are Transgender or Gender Nonconforming," "Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant
Employee," and "Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave"  (Government Code 12950).
 See AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment and AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical
Leave.
 

10. If the district has formed a community facilities district (Mello-Roos district) for the acquisition or improvement
of school facilities, a copy of the annual report for the fiscal year if requested pursuant to Government Code
53343.1, the report provided to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission pursuant to
Government Code 53359.5, and the report provided to the State Controller's office pursuant to Government
Code 12463.2  (Government Code 53343.2).  Post within seven months after the last day of the fiscal year.
See BP 7212 - Mello-Roos Districts.

Other Postings

The following materials are also required to be posted on the district website. However, there are no specific
requirements related to where they are posted on the website.
 

11. The Special Education Local Plan Area's approved comprehensive local plan for special education, annual
budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan and any updates or revisions to the plans
 (Education Code 56205.5).  See AR 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education.
 

12. The district's nondiscrimination policy and regulation, including the complaint procedure and the compliance
coordinator's contact information  (34 CFR 100.6, 106.8).  See BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District
Programs and Activities and AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment.
 

13. Contact information for the district's liaison(s) for homeless students and other persons as required by
Education Code 48852.6, and information regarding the educational rights and resources available to persons
experiencing homelessness  (Education Code 48852.6).  See AR 6173 - Education for Homeless Children.
 

14. For all schools offering competitive athletics, the total enrollment of the school classified by gender, the
number of students enrolled at the school who participate in competitive athletics classified by gender, and the
number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by competition level  (Education Code 221.9). The
information shall be posted at the end of the school year on the school's website or, if the school does not
have a website, on the district's website.  See AR 6145.2 - Athletic Competition.
 

15. If the district has interdistrict attendance agreement(s), the procedures and timelines for requesting an
interdistrict transfer permit, including, but not limited to, a link to the board's policy on interdistrict attendance,
the date that the district will begin accepting applications, reasons that the district may approve/deny the
request, the process for appeal, that failure to meet timelines will be deemed an abandonment of the request,
and the condition under which an existing interdistrict transfer permit may be revoked or rescinded  (Education
Code 46600.2).  See AR 5117 - Interdistrict Transfer.
 

16. If the district has elected to be a school district of choice, application information including, at a minimum, any
applicable form, the timeline for a transfer, and an explanation of the selection process  (Education Code
48301).  See AR 5117 - Interdistrict Transfer.
 

17. For districts that offer grade 9, the district's policy and protocols related to student placement in mathematics
courses  (Education Code 51224.7).  See AR 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses.
 

18. The section(s) of the district's employee code of conduct addressing interactions with students. These
section(s) or a link to them shall be posted on each school's website or, if a school does not have its own
website, on the district's website in a manner that is accessible to the public without a password.  (Education
Code 44050)  See BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards and BP 4119.24/4219.24/4319.24
- Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions.
 

19. The district's meal payment collection policy and procedures  (U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)
Memorandum SP 46-2016).  See BP/AR 3551 - Food Services Operations/Cafeteria Fund.
 

20. If the district includes information about the free and reduced-priced meal program on its website, a
nondiscrimination statement about the district's status as an equal opportunity provider and the address of the
agency with responsibility to handle complaints made against the district  (USDA FNS Instruction 113-1).  For

631



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

the required wording of the statement, see E(1) 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance.
 

21. The school's or district's integrated pest management plan, whenever a school chooses to use a pesticide not
exempted pursuant to Education Code 17610.5. The plan shall be posted on the school's website or, if the
school does not have a website, then on the district's website.  (Education Code 17611.5).  See AR 3514.2
Integrated Pest Management.
 

22. When the California Environmental Quality Act requires an environmental impact report, negative declaration,
or mitigated negative declaration, those environmental review documents, public notice of the preparation and
availability of such documents within a reasonable period of time prior to certification of the environmental
impact report, adoption of a negative declaration, or determination that a proposed subsequent project will
have no additional significant effect on the environment, and specified notices when written requests for
notices have been filed  (Public Resources Code 21082.1, 21092, 21092.2).  See BP 7150 - Site Selection And
Development.
 

23. When a citizens' oversight committee is formed after the approval of a bond under the 55 percent majority
threshold, the committee's minutes, documents received, and reports issued  (Education Code 15280).  See AR
7214 - General Obligation Bonds.
 

24. Copy of each school's school accountability report card, on or before February 1 of each year  (Education Code
35258).  See BP 0510 - School Accountability Report Card.
 

25. Results of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) or other accrediting agency's inspection of
a school, within 60 days of receiving the results. (This notification could be made in writing to
parents/guardians instead of or in addition to posting the results on the district's website.) In addition, if a
school loses its WASC or other agency's accreditation, the district and school shall post on their websites a
notice of the loss of accreditation and potential consequences  (Education Code 35178.4).  See BP 6190 -
Evaluation of the Instructional Program.
 

26. The district's COVID-19 testing plan  (Education Code 32096).

27. Using the template developed by CDE, the use of Learning Recovery Emergency Funds, with interim reports
posted by December 1, 2024 and annually thereafter, and a final report by December 15, 2029  (Education
Code 32526).
 

28. An age appropriate and culturally relevant digitized poster that identifies approaches and shares resources
about student mental health, distributed to students online at the beginning of each school year  (Education
Code 49428.5). See BP 5141.5 - Mental Health

29. The standardized incident form developed by CDE to track racial discrimination, harassment, or hazing, that
occurs at high school sporting games or events, including information on how to submit a completed incident
form  (Education Code 33353).

30. If a provisional appointment is made to fill a governing board vacancy, notice of both the actual vacancy or the
filing of a deferred resignation and the provisional appointment.  Post within 10 days of making the provisional
appointment  (Education Code 5092).  See BB 9223 - Filling Vacancies.

31. The dangers associated with using synthetic drugs that are not prescribed by a physician, such as fentanyl, and
of the possibility that dangerous synthetic drugs can be found in counterfeit pills  (Education Code 48985.5).

32. The annual report to CDE on the use of behavioral restraints and seclusion  (Education Code 49006).

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

632

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22580.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22584.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22586.&lawCode=BPC


Ed. Code 32526 Use of learning recovery funds

Ed. Code 33353 California Interscholastic Federation; standardized incident form

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 35258 Internet access to school accountability report cards

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 48852.6 Information regarding homelessness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drug use

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 49006 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 5092 Filling Vacancies

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12950 California Civil Rights Department posters

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Pen. Code 14029.5 Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness
protection program

Pub. Res. Code 21082.1 California Environmental Quality Act environmental review documents

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

16 CFR 312.1-312.13 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

17 USC 101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright

17 USC 504 Penalties for copyright infringement

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

29 USC 705 Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave, January
2023

CA Civil Rights Department Publication California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment, January
2024

CA Civil Rights Department Publication The Rights of Employees Who Are Transgender or Gender Nonconforming:
Fact Sheet, November 2022

CA Civil Rights Department Publication Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant Employee, January 2023

633

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=32526.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=33353.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35258.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48852.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49006.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49061.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5092.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60048.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=11135.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3307.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=14029.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PRC&sectionNum=21082.1.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-16/chapter-I/subchapter-C/part-312?toc=1
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title17/chapter1&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:17 section:504 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title17-section504)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:705 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section705)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/CFRA-and-Pregnancy-Leave_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/Workplace-Discrimination-Poster_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2022/11/The-Rights-of-Employees-who-are-Transgender-or-Gender-Nonconforming-Fact-Sheet_ENG.pdf
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/32/2023/01/Your-Rights-and-Obligations-as-a-Pregnant-Employee_ENG.pdf


Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Race and School Programming, August 2023

U.S. DOJ, Civil Rights Division Publication Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with
Disabilities, February 2020

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website Fact Sheet: New rule on the accessibility of web content and mobile apps
provided by state and local governments

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Governor's Office of Planning and Research, The California Environmental
Quality Act

Website California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section

Website World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Civil Rights Department

World Wide Web Consortium Publication Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, June 2018

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

634

https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/unpaid-meal-charges-local-meal-charge-policies
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-20230824.pdf
https://www.ada.gov/resources/accessibility-govt-websites/
https://www.cifstate.org/sports/sportsmanship/response/Discrimination_Harassment_Complaint_Form.pdf
https://www.ada.gov/notices/2024/03/08/web-rule/
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/homeland-security/california-cybersecurity-integration-center/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://opr.ca.gov/ceqa/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/ws/webaccessstds.asp
http://www.calspra.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ada.gov
https://www.w3.org/TR/2018/REC-WCAG21-20180605/
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8WZCIZ8oG2xBqtK4ApFplus0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y0lPgUQGFYjslshDyVbAGuO8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jOl2BVpWq3W7oCJ1mBNs1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ME4b8iaEr4slsh0ahM8YNXJmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==


1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

635

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n67e5kfO6UsNa403CtI0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HI0jTdSLSPDgxNej5RvpcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jhHdy7tk7Jplusff53BHWkWEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p0Uqeecq2VowRezecdaxqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bbBbeBFwGJtNFOxbwplus3lCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==


4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5141.5 Mental Health

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6152.1 Placement In Mathematics Courses

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4-E PDF(1) Student Use Of Technology

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9223 Filling Vacancies

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

636

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lHdYI50XfJTfOia9WX8sAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k0jVpNQyElxkwTfTchUNOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IF66LY2PpkEYVWSnLKmJyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LcN9vRTlpZjVGXKPwplusUqPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HJuQKpmoNTr4oeBccYQKsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zqlm8OpJl3PNcA4plusN4wRZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zplus1zHGkEgxyU5t9lhzAkEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MTEVRngjKpU1slsh5UicOZMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fYs5v9plus5plus2cmXIXxj7bcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wmRplus5YhD8XOP97RPTcOaplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jtw0HTZSplusslshdPJ0slshDw1LPOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c5s3SEPjQLEJplusRqQAaBcOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u9YjgxoraAKv3jv8u0vwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UBWDuz3w1JnfecVpmbwcGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iyDBTDpNQ3S0jfpoL8u0qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eqr0lSbOOeNs1pluss0y33tZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HFON60b1DWps0pVVrDslshC8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t1lJ3p0KnHtbE3eIuPsKNg==


9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

637

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 1260: Educational FoundationPolicy 1260: Educational Foundation Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of community support of district programs, including voluntary
financial contributions, to assist the district in achieving its goals for student learning.

The Board desires to work cooperatively with the educational foundation in determining the purposes for which
funds may be used to meet the changing needs of the district and its students. The Board recognizes that an
educational foundation is a separate legal entity, independent of the district. However, the foundation is encouraged
to provide regular reports to the Board on the status of its work and to communicate ways that the district can help
support the foundation's activities.

With the consent of the Superintendent or designee, the educational foundation, as appropriate, may use the
district's name, a school's name, a school team's name, or any logo attributable to a school or the district.

Student records or other personally identifiable student information shall not be released except with parental
consent or as required by law or district policy. Student directory information may be released when appropriate.

The Board supports foundation allocations that serve all district schools equitably.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 300-312.1 Fundraising for charitable purposes

Bus. Code 17510-17510.95 Charitable solicitations

Bus. Code 25608 Alcohol on school property; use in connection with instruction

Ed. Code 38130-38138 Civic Center Act; use of school property for public purposes

Ed. Code 8820-8822 The Arts and Music in Schools—Funding Guarantee and Accountability Act

Gov. Code 12580-12599.10 Fundraisers for Charitable Purposes Act

Pen. Code 319-329 Lottery; raffle

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Proposition 28- AMS Financial & Audit Requirements

Court Decision Serrano v. Priest (1976) 18 Cal. 3d 728

Education Audit Appeals Panel Publication 2023-24 Audit Guide

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Consortium of Education Foundations

Website California Office of the Attorney General, Registry of Charities and
Fundraisers

Website Education Audit Appeals Panel

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

638

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0686D530ED8F11EEB407AAEE37DD7B27&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I5E9B7390F02B11EE8FC9D14757ADFBA1
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=17510.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=25608.&lawCode=BPC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=5.1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.&chapter=6.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=9.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/in/prop28auditresource.asp
https://eaap.ca.gov/audit-guide/current-audit-guide-booklet/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cceflink.org
http://caag.state.ca.us/charities
http://www.eaap.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==


0415 Equity

1100 Communication With The Public

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1321 Solicitation Of Funds From And By Students

1321 Solicitation Of Funds From And By Students

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

5030 Student Wellness

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1) Release Of Directory Information

5126 Awards For Achievement

5126 Awards For Achievement

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

5142.2 Safe Routes To School Program

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6142.6 Visual And Performing Arts Education

6142.6 Visual And Performing Arts Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6163.1 Library Media Centers

9140 Board Representatives

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

639

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfMwJytzFNKXN79UzPcGYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sYTAk4EZ2vzy8JGYSkgP4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ThFslshO6u1icVPG4MKD7LmFA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VvkA2usIlhYY6Ic5Q36aMA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HI0jTdSLSPDgxNej5RvpcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k0jVpNQyElxkwTfTchUNOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IF66LY2PpkEYVWSnLKmJyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LcN9vRTlpZjVGXKPwplusUqPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mxq9mybS8TyB0oYieoqFiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9JTCNm4FohB6gbYp8EfHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9cB6Mjes5go7Gu46CPWVkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ETlN1bxfF5plus2tfydsQKL2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZErrLVpcoJvwqLSAEC58Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u2wa5PQStjCH4L19pDz9Wg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=91LTrXx9lijyf0g30Q38cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eHdfgWNzMzMOvPzslshzuNwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HCG9nKCHCc5ct1S1fXbTSQ==


Regulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint ProceduresRegulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 04/11/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 04/11/2024

Except as may otherwise be specifically provided in other district policies, these uniform complaint procedures (UCP)
shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints specified in the accompanying Board policy.

Compliance Officers

The district designates the individual(s), position(s), or unit(s) identified below as responsible for receiving,
coordinating, and investigating complaints and for complying with state and federal civil rights laws. The individual(s),
position(s), or unit(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in Administrative Regulation 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment responsible for handling complaints regarding unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying and in Administrative Regulation 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment for handling complaints
regarding sexual harassment.

Superintendent/Principal
1935 Bohemian Hwy
Occidental, Ca 95465
707-874-1205
morgan@harmonyusd.org

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to investigate and resolve
the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the complainant and respondent if another compliance
officer is assigned to the complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which the compliance officer has a bias or
conflict of interest that would prohibit the fair investigation or resolution of the complaint. Any complaint against a
compliance officer or that raises a concern about the compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly
and without bias shall be filed with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be
investigated.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve complaints receive
training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the complaints to which they are assigned.
Training provided to such employees shall cover current state and federal laws and regulations governing the
program; applicable processes for investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying; applicable standards for reaching decisions on complaints; and
appropriate corrective measures. Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the
Superintendent or designee.

The compliance officer or, if necessary, an appropriate administrator shall determine whether interim measures are
necessary during an investigation and while the result is pending. If interim measures are determined to be
necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's
designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall
remain in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the district issues
its final written decision, whichever occurs first.

Notifications

The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and offices, including
staff lounges and student government meeting rooms.  (Education Code 234.1)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's UCP to
students, employees, parents/guardians of district students, district advisory committee members, school advisory
committee members, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other interested parties.  (5 CCR
4622)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

640



The notice shall include:

1. A statement that the district is primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state laws and
regulations, including those related to prohibition of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or
bullying against any protected group, and a list of all programs and activities that are subject to UCP as
identified in the section "Complaints Subject to UCP" in the accompanying Board policy
 

2. The title of the position responsible for processing complaints, the identity of the person(s) currently occupying
that position if known, and a statement that such persons will be knowledgeable about the laws and programs
that they are assigned to investigate
 

3. A statement that a UCP complaint, except a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying, must be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred
 

4. A statement that a UCP complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying must
be filed no later than six months from the date of the alleged conduct or the date the complainant first
obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged conduct
 

5. A statement that a student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for participation in an
educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the district's educational program,
including curricular and extracurricular activities
 

6. A statement that a complaint regarding student fees or the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) may be
filed anonymously if the complainant provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support the
complaint
 

7. A statement that the district will post a standardized notice of the educational and graduation requirements of
foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, children of military families, former juvenile court school
students now enrolled in the district, students who are migratory, and students participating in a newcomer
program as specified in Education Code 48645.7, 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, and 51225.2, and the
complaint process
 

8. A statement that complaints will be investigated in accordance with the district's UCP and a written decision
will be sent to the complainant within 60 days from the receipt of the complaint, unless this time period is
extended by written agreement of the complainant
 

9. A statement that, for programs within the scope of the UCP as specified in the accompanying Board policy, the
complainant has a right to appeal the district's investigation report to the California Department of Education
(CDE) by filing a written appeal, including a copy of the original complaint and the district's decision, within 30
calendar days of receiving the district's decision
 

10. A statement advising the complainant of any civil law remedies, including, but not limited to, injunctions,
restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available under state or federal laws prohibiting
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, if applicable
 

11. A statement that copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge

The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and information related to Title IX
as required pursuant to Education Code 221.6 shall be posted on the district and district school websites and may be
provided through district-supported social media, if available.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students and
parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant information provided in the district's
policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary language other than
English, the district's UCP policy, regulation, forms, and notices shall be translated into that language, in accordance
with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all

641



relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

Filing of Complaints

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints received, providing
each with a code number and a date stamp. If a site administrator not designated as a compliance officer receives a
complaint, the site administrator shall notify the compliance officer.

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in
writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall assist in the filing of the complaint.  (5
CCR 4600)

Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable:

1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing the programs
specified in the accompanying Board policy may be filed by any individual, public agency, or organization.  (5
CCR 4600)

 
2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against student fees, deposits, and

charges or any requirement related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence,
or information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of
the prohibition against the charging of unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the school or
with the Superintendent or designee.

 
3. A UCP complaint, except for a UCP complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or

bullying, shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. For complaints
related to the LCAP, the date of the alleged violation is the date when the County Superintendent of Schools
approves the LCAP that was adopted by the Governing Board.  (5 CCR 4630)
 

4. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying may be filed only by a
person who alleges having personally suffered unlawful discrimination, a person who believes that any specific
class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful discrimination, or a duly authorized representative who
alleges that an individual student has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying.  (5
CCR 4630)
 

5. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying shall be initiated no later
than six months from the date that the alleged unlawful discrimination occurred, or six months from the date
that the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for
filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written
request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension.  (5 CCR 4630)
 

6. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying is filed anonymously,
the compliance officer shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the
specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the allegation.

 
7. When a complainant of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying or the alleged victim,

when not the complainant, requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform the complainant or
victim that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary action.
When honoring a request for confidentiality, the district shall nevertheless take all reasonable steps to
investigate and resolve/respond to the complaint consistent with the request.

Mediation

Within three business days after receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally discuss with all the
parties the possibility of using mediation to resolve the complaint. Mediation shall be offered to resolve complaints
that involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any
complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation

642



would feel compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all
arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation,
or bullying, the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to permit the mediator access to all relevant
confidential information. The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at
any time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance officer shall
proceed with an investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the complaint unless the
complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn,
then the district shall take only the actions agreed upon through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the
district shall then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation.

Investigation of Complaint

The compliance officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint within 10 business days of receiving the
complaint.

Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the complainant and/or
the complainant's representative with the opportunity to present the information contained in the complaint to the
compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or representative of the opportunity to present the
compliance officer with any evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint.
Such evidence or information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and review all available
records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any additional evidence or information received
from the parties during the course of the investigation. The compliance officer shall individually interview all
available witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location
where the relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance officer shall
inform the parties of the status of the investigation.

To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the
compliance officer shall interview the alleged victim(s), any alleged offender(s), and other relevant witnesses
privately, separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or
support the investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the
allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or any other obstruction of the
investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation.
Refusal by the district to provide the investigator with access to records and/or information related to the allegations
in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or any other obstruction of the investigation may
result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in
favor of the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631)

Timeline for Investigation Report
Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the
complainant a written investigation report, as described in the section "Investigation Report" below, within 60
calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4631)

For any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the respondent shall be
informed of any extension of the timeline agreed to by the complainant.

Investigation Report

643



For all complaints, the district's investigation report shall include:  (5 CCR 4631)

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered
 

2. A conclusion providing a clear determination for each allegation as to whether the district is in compliance with
the relevant law
 

3. Corrective action(s) whenever the district finds merit in the complaint, including, when required by law, a
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians and, for a student fees complaint, a remedy that
complies with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600
 

4. Notice of the complainant's right to appeal the district's investigation report to CDE, except when the district
has used the UCP to address a complaint not specified in 5 CCR 4610
 

5. Procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to CDE

The investigation report may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and for reporting
any subsequent problems.

In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of an investigation report may be
communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may be involved in implementing the
investigation report or are affected by the complaint, as long as the privacy of the parties is protected. In a complaint
alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, notice of the investigation report to the alleged
victim shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon the respondent that relates directly to the
alleged victim.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient (LEP) student or parent/guardian, then the district's response, if
requested by the complainant, and the investigation report shall be written in English and the primary language in
which the complaint was filed.

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying based on state law, the
investigation report shall also include a notice to the complainant that:

1. The complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint procedures,
including, but not limited to, injunctions, restraining orders or other remedies or orders, 60 calendar days after
the filing of an appeal with CDE  (Education Code 262.3)
 

2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state courts or to
discrimination complaints based on federal law  (Education Code 262.3)
 

3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, disability, or age may also
be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of
the alleged discrimination

Corrective Actions

When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate corrective action
permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school or district environment may include,
but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school
policies; or school climate surveys.

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, appropriate
remedies that may be offered to the victim but not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited
to, the following:

1. Counseling

644



 
2. Academic support

 
3. Health services

 
4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus

 
5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or retaliation

 
6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation does not penalize the

victim
 

7. Restorative justice
 

8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no retaliation

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying involving a student as
the respondent, appropriate corrective actions that may be provided to the student include, but are not limited to,
the following:

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law
 

2. Parent/guardian conference
 

3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others
 

4. Positive behavior support
 

5. Referral to a student success team
 

6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges as permitted by law
 

7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or
bullying, the district shall take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with
applicable law and collective bargaining agreement.

The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community to ensure that
students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, that the district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond to it.

When a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy shall be provided to the complainant or other
affected person.

However, if a complaint alleging noncompliance with the law regarding student fees, deposits, and other charges,
physical education instructional minutes, courses without educational content, or any requirement related to the
LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians
subject to procedures established by regulation of the State Board of Education.  (Education Code 49013, 51222,
51223, 51228.3, 52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the law regarding student fees, the district, by engaging in reasonable
efforts, shall attempt in good faith to identify and fully reimburse all affected students and parents/guardians who
paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior to the filing of the complaint.  (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR
4600)

Appeals to the California Department of Education

Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's investigation report on a complaint regarding any specified
federal or state educational program subject to UCP may file an appeal in writing with CDE within 30 calendar days
of receiving the district's investigation report.  (5 CCR 4632)

645



The appeal shall be sent to CDE with a copy of the original locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's
investigation report for that complaint. The complainant shall specify and explain the basis for the appeal, including
at least one of the following:  (5 CCR 4632)

1. The district failed to follow its complaint procedures
 

2. Relative to the allegations of the complaint, the district's investigation report lacks material findings of fact
necessary to reach a conclusion of law
 

3. The material findings of fact in the district's investigation report are not supported by substantial evidence
 

4. The legal conclusion in the district's investigation report is inconsistent with the law
 

5. In a case in which the district found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper remedy

Upon notification by CDE that the district's investigation report has been appealed, the Superintendent or designee
shall forward the following documents to CDE within 10 days of the date of notification:  (5 CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint
 

2. A copy of the district's investigation report
 

3. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and documents submitted by
the parties and gathered by the investigator
 

4. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
 

5. A copy of the district's UCP
 

6. Other relevant information requested by CDE

If notified by CDE that the district's investigation report failed to address allegation(s) raised by the complaint, the
district shall, within 20 days of the notification, provide CDE and the appellant with an amended investigation report
that addresses the allegation(s) that were not addressed in the original investigation report. The amended report shall
also inform the appellant of the right to separately appeal the amended report with respect to the allegation(s) that
were not addressed in the original report.  (5 CCR 4632)

Health and Safety Complaints in License-Exempt Preschool Programs

Any complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt California State Preschool Program (CSPP) shall
be addressed through the procedures described in 5 CCR 4690-4694.

In order to identify appropriate subjects of CSPP health and safety issues pursuant to Health and Safety Code
1596.7925, a notice shall be posted in each license-exempt CSPP classroom in the district notifying
parents/guardians, students, and teachers of the health and safety requirements of Title 5 regulations that apply to
CSPP programs pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1596.7925 and the location at which to obtain a form to file any
complaint alleging noncompliance with those requirements. For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee may
download and post a notice available from the CDE website.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4691)

The district's annual UCP notification distributed pursuant to 5 CCR 4622 shall clearly indicate which of its CSPP
programs are operating as exempt from licensing and which CSPP programs are operating pursuant to requirements
under Title 22 of the Code of Regulations.  (5 CCR 4691)

Any complaint regarding specified health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program shall be filed with the
preschool program administrator or designee, and may be filed anonymously. The complaint form shall specify the
location for filing the complaint, contain a space to indicate whether the complainant desires a response to the
complaint, and allow a complainant to add as much text as desired to explain the complaint.  (Education Code 8212;
5 CCR 4690)

646



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

If it is determined that the complaint is beyond the authority of the preschool program administrator, the matter shall
be forwarded to the Superintendent or designee in a timely manner, not to exceed 10 working days, for resolution.
The preschool administrator or the Superintendent or designee shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any
complaint within their authority.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4692)

Investigation of a complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program shall begin within 10
days of receipt of the complaint.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4692)

The preschool administrator or designee shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period not to
exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received. If the complainant has indicated on the complaint
form a desire to receive a response to the complaint, the preschool administrator or Superintendent's designee shall,
within 45 working days of the initial filing of the complaint, report the resolution of the complaint to the complainant
and CDE's assigned field consultant. If the preschool administrator makes this report, the information shall be
reported at the same time to the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4692)

If a complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program involves an LEP student or
parent/guardian, then the district's response, if requested by the complainant, and the investigation report shall be
written in English and the primary language in which the complaint was filed.

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, the complainant has the right to describe the
complaint to the Board at a regularly scheduled hearing and, within 30 days of the date of the written report, may
file a written appeal of the district's decision to the Superintendent of Public Instruction in accordance with 5 CCR
4632.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4693, 4694)

All complaints and responses are public records.  (5 CCR 4690)

On a quarterly basis, the Superintendent or designee shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all
CSPP health and safety complaints, including the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of
resolved and unresolved complaints, to the Board at a regularly scheduled Board meeting and to the County
Superintendent.  (5 CCR 4693)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

5 CCR 15580-15584 Child nutrition programs complaint procedures

5 CCR 3200-3205 Special education compliance complaints

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4680-4687 Williams uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4690-4694 Complaints regarding health and safety issues in license-exempt preschool
programs

5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs
receiving state or federal financial assistance

Ed. Code 18100-18203 School libraries

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 46015 Parental leave for students

Ed. Code 48645.7 Juvenile court schools

Ed. Code 48853-48853.5 Foster youth

647

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I4431E3804C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4433B8444C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I32C91A004C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I32CF5B934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I34D6EB604C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I34DE17534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I35001E404C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I35028F434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=11.&chapter=2.&article=
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48645.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=


Ed. Code 48900.5 Suspension; other means of correction

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49010-49013 Student fees

Ed. Code 49060-49079 Student records

Ed. Code 49069.5 Records of foster youth

Ed. Code 49490-49590 Child nutrition programs

Ed. Code 49701 Provisions of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunities for
Military Children

Ed. Code 51204.5 Social sciences instruction; contributions of specified groups

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6

Ed. Code 51222 Physical education

Ed. Code 51223 Physical education; elementary schools

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Foster youth, homeless children, former juvenile court school students;
course credits; graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51226-51226.1 Career technical education

Ed. Code 51228.1-51228.3 Course periods without educational content

Ed. Code 51501 Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Ed. Code 52059.5 Statewide system of support

Ed. Code 52059.5-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 52075 Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan
requirements

Ed. Code 52300-52462 Career technical education

Ed. Code 52500-52617 Adult schools

Ed. Code 54400-54425 Compensatory education programs

Ed. Code 54440-54445 Migrant education

Ed. Code 54460-54529 Compensatory education programs

Ed. Code 59000-59300 Special schools and centers

Ed. Code 60010 Instructional materials; definition

Ed. Code 60040-60052 Requirements for instructional materials

Ed. Code 64000-64001 Consolidated application process; school plan for student achievement

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils

Ed. Code 8200-8488 Child care and development programs

Ed. Code 8500-8538 Adult basic education

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

H&S Code 1596.792 California Child Day Care Act; general provisions and definitions

H&S Code 1596.7925 California Child Day Care Act; health and safety regulations

Pen. Code 422.55 Definition of hate crime

Pen. Code 422.6 Crimes; harassment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1221 Application of laws

648

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=5.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49069.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=&title=2.&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=2
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49701.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51204.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51222.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51223.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52059.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52075.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=10.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=32.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=&title=2.&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=2
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=38.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=11135.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.792.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.7925.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.55.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.6.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1221 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1221)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 6301-6576 Title I Improving the Academic Achievement of the Disadvantaged

20 USC 6801-7014 Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant
students

28 CFR 35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin

34 CFR 104.7 Section 504; Designation of responsible employee and adoption of
grievances procedures

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

34 CFR 106.30 Discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and activities;
definitions

34 CFR 106.44 Recipient's response to sexual harassment

34 CFR 106.45 Grievance process for formal complaints of sexual harassment

34 CFR 106.8 Designation of coordinator; dissemination of policy, and adoption of
grievance procedures

34 CFR 110.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Uniform Complaint Procedure 2021-22 Program Instrument

California Department of Education Publication Sample UCP Board Policies and Procedures

California Department of Justice Publication Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for Providing Inclusive
Curricula and Books, January 2024

CSBA Publication Reference: State Roles, Responsibilities, and Process for Instructional
Materials Adoption, February 2024

CSBA Publication Fact Sheet: Instructional Materials Adoption: Local governing board
responsibilities, February 2024

CSBA Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, February 2024

Federal Register
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, April 29, 2024, Vol. 89, No. 83,
pages 33474-33896

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Responding to Bullying of Students with Disabilities,
October 2014

U.S. DOJ Publication
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI
Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English
Proficient Persons, 2007

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

649

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-35/subpart-A/section-35.107
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100/section-100.3
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.7
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-D/section-106.44
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-D/section-106.45
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-110/subpart-C/section-110.25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-docs/Legal Alert Re Inclusive Curricula.1.9.24.1157CLEAN.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-StateRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=f00baf9bd1af4844b94f99135ca65588
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-LocalRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=94453dc92df043379995b07589a4d558
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-instructional-materials-brief.ashx?la=en&rev=9880900e6d334c81a7f64d637e40dc56
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/04/29/2024-07915/nondiscrimination-on-the-basis-of-sex-in-education-programs-or-activities-receiving-federal
https://legalservices.csba.org/


Website Student Privacy Policy Office

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture

Website California Department of Social Services

Website U.S. Department of Justice

Website California Civil Rights Department

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420.41 Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E PDF(1) Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E(1) Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E(2) Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E(3) Charter School Oversight

0430 Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

0430 Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1100 Communication With The Public

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

650

http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/opepd/sppo
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cacfp/afterschool-programs
http://www.dss.cahwnet.gov
http://www.justice.gov
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HzkkjzHbKIecOxFNHsgA5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMD4VaaOJXV2m0hadSplusYaQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kEFjSDrbShV8yFmzOpluslqqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s6ihNoMOplusnlORrvLjVzlvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fGWAWChATTukNyAs2r8OIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uMoTslsh83PJ5g2hr9xli4b8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TUislshGGe9hNZBmAMXMR2Wwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qappc3ZQkwX9gwplusb8nplusvplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=a7JTUlbMZuZNU0TNnGbfsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kCq042yuNu4ulWLuxXyVBQ==


1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E PDF(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E PDF(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(3) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.23 Special Education Staff

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

651

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7qc5lwJV7pplusdxsdt2v9kEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7973lYJs1ccYtmzYDpvxRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EEpluso2cUlX3slshYIslshIhw1vZ5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tjHpsZ4i7fvGYovabLvFdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AvaW6036FImpluswTIUl86G5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1ARJdTNyHjNplusBiwHULslshKoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v7RqQFhXTOwnT5Ta2sYxCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oudxB8CqzWTdFscjpvIyqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q1AdCLjYQPQc6vK8YYydYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==


4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4244 Complaints

4244 Complaints

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4344 Complaints

4344 Complaints

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5137 Positive School Climate

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

652

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9Pdno3vr4cY5ipkiXplus6Hdg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EbMZR4CYiMFW2oZfD4y6QQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8SuqRFplus3pC1xUJHYqAjnPg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ejzdSdbj1y1oisJyMVKSDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3HDWMAslshfCqRlzH0hGxAVUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DI6ywVuc7JyQgdek6cc8PQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1plusOKOaJVgOwqplustOfbTtRcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=deyOslshslshWxrJvIA6plusATGGJpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==


5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6152 Class Assignment

6152 Class Assignment

6152-E PDF(1) Class Assignment

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

653

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u0KIYnF1vwt1FWaVnvz8Ug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=48tuLsv3dSbv6SLDhZZwwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BGoA7qY3N2vhlmVNuT4IpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dWbcK0pslshm4rnOBBx3Sc7slshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nZsupsPNzskHJcu62HOhslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusEFuPIOyBIOQo3IF0jOJFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xxClFkI6arC1hk4HQvbL2g==


6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.3 Appointment Of Surrogate Parent For Special Education Students

6159.3 Appointment Of Surrogate Parent For Special Education Students

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E PDF(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E PDF(2) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6163.1 Library Media Centers

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.3 Education For Juvenile Court School Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

9000 Role Of The Board

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9124 Attorney

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

654

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshkic8mRh8bSX8GPxFoVTxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zzslshjVkByQ2SMG9ypluszVcq3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=meWm7GBQaFFi6ABX88TU8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7WFlDnw1fIPqhy85PkFpRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zjcJVyzuOv3nslsh0mAaslshAavQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GJbgyMuWBRmplusoCQBCpk4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sQGK5n462ah26CPDMVD4fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FRxG1YX8ZtplusZjDM8vQuSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusIEJMkJ0WCE2Gqw8lYylQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=91LTrXx9lijyf0g30Q38cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eHdfgWNzMzMOvPzslshzuNwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNCVZBgJ9VmKAsw5Po0qnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ws7UMexGqT5Z38wJpkKljg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WJglWMmeslsh2plusVnA7eSoba4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p7pITslshO70EPWm6bslshJ06Ldw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PxFIp5oJzfmJOSBv4qdCWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vDFXv0D7JlAplusVkU2WUJMGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ra4KvNEGvfVplussB0slshpluszvhXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qnN24plusCJDvN9OzbzpgOq6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G9AjRHI50rf6uo44xKppiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4EDyJ5o48M5GoCEMVxOSoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IXNhzWv4FVPy7LGXEhqslshRw==


9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

655

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==


 
  

Regulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint ProceduresRegulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 04/11/2024

Board Policy Manual Harmony Union Elementary School District
 
Regulation 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures
Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019 | Last Revised Date: 04/11/2024 | Last Reviewed Date: 04/11/2024
Status:  ADOPTED

Except as may otherwise be specifically provided in other district policies, these uniform complaint procedures (UCP)
shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints specified in the accompanying Board policy.
 

Compliance Officers

The district designates the individual(s), position(s), or unit(s) identified below as responsible for receiving,
coordinating, and investigating complaints and for complying with state and federal civil rights laws. The individual(s),
position(s), or unit(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in Administrative Regulation 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment responsible for handling complaints regarding unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying and in Administrative Regulation 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment for handling complaints
regarding sexual harassment.

Superintendent/Principal 1935 Bohemian Hwy
Occidental, Ca 95465
707-874-1205
morgan@harmonyusd.org

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to investigate and resolve
the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the complainant and respondent if another compliance
officer is assigned to the complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which the compliance officer has a bias or
conflict of interest that would prohibit the fair investigation or resolution of the complaint. Any complaint against a
compliance officer or that raises a concern about the compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly
and without bias shall be filed with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be
investigated.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve complaints receive
training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the complaints to which they are assigned.
Training provided to such employees shall cover current state and federal laws and regulations governing the
program; applicable processes for investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying; applicable standards for reaching decisions on complaints; and
appropriate corrective measures. Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the
Superintendent or designee.

The compliance officer or, if necessary, an appropriate administrator shall determine whether interim measures are
necessary during an investigation and while the result is pending. If interim measures are determined to be
necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's
designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall
remain in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the district issues
its final written decision, whichever occurs first.
 

Notifications

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

656

mailto:morgan@harmonyusd.org


The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and offices, including
staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code 234.1)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's UCP to
students, employees, parents/guardians of district students, district advisory committee members, school advisory
committee members, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other interested parties. (5 CCR
4622)
 
The notice shall include:

1. A statement that the district is primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state laws and
regulations, including those related to prohibition of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or
bullying against any protected group, and a list of all programs and activities that are subject to UCP as
identified in the section "Complaints Subject to UCP" in the accompanying Board policy

 

2. The title of the position responsible for processing complaints, the identity of the person(s) currently
occupying that position if known, and a statement that such persons will be knowledgeable about the
laws and programs that they are assigned to investigate

 

3. A statement that a UCP complaint, except a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying, must be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred

 

4. A statement that a UCP complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying
must be filed no later than six months from the date of the alleged conduct or the date the complainant
first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged conduct

 

5. A statement that a student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for participation
in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the district's educational
program, including curricular and extracurricular activities

 

6. A statement that a complaint regarding student fees or the local control and accountability plan (LCAP)
may be filed anonymously if the complainant provides evidence or information leading to evidence to
support the complaint

 

7. A statement that the district will post a standardized notice of the educational and graduation
requirements of foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, children of military families, former
juvenile court school students now enrolled in the district, students who are migratory, and students
participating in a newcomer program as specified in Education Code 48645.7, 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5,
51225.1, and 51225.2, and the complaint  process

 

8. A statement that complaints will be investigated in accordance with the district's UCP and a written
decision will be sent to the complainant within 60 days from the receipt of the complaint, unless this
time period is extended by written agreement of the complainant

 

9. A statement that, for programs within the scope of the UCP as specified in the accompanying Board
policy, the complainant has a right to appeal the district's investigation report to the California

657



Department of Education (CDE) by filing a written appeal, including a copy of the original complaint and
the district's decision, within 30 calendar days of receiving the district's decision

 

10. A statement advising the complainant of any civil law remedies, including, but not limited to, injunctions,
restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available under state or federal laws
prohibiting discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, if applicable

 

11. A statement that copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge

The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and information related to Title IX
as required pursuant to Education Code 221.6 shall be posted on the district and district school websites and may be
provided through district-supported social media, if available.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students and
parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant information provided in the district's
policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary language other than
English, the district's UCP policy, regulation, forms, and notices shall be translated into that language, in accordance
with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all
 
relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

Filing of Complaints

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints received, providing
each with a code number and a date stamp. If a site administrator not designated as a compliance officer receives a
complaint, the site administrator shall notify the compliance officer.

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in
writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall assist in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR
4600)

Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable:

1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing the
programs specified in the accompanying Board policy may be filed by any individual, public agency, or
organization. (5 CCR 4600)

 

2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against student fees, deposits,
and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides
evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complaint
about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful student fees may be filed with the
principal of the school or with the Superintendent or designee.

 

3. A UCP complaint, except for a UCP complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation,
or bullying, shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. For
complaints related to the LCAP, the date of the alleged violation is the date when the County
Superintendent of Schools approves the LCAP that was adopted by the Governing Board. (5 CCR 4630)

 

658



4. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying may be filed only by a
person who alleges having personally suffered unlawful discrimination, a person who believes that any
specific class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful discrimination, or a duly authorized
representative who alleges that an individual student has been subjected to discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying. (5 CCR 4630)

 

5. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying shall be initiated no
later than six months from the date that the alleged unlawful discrimination occurred, or six months from
the date that the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful
discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee
for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. (5
CCR 4630)

 

6. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying is filed
anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate,
depending on the specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the
allegation.

 

7. When a complainant of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying or the alleged
victim, when not the complainant, requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform the
complainant or victim that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate the conduct or take
other necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the district shall nevertheless take
all reasonable steps to investigate and resolve/respond to the complaint consistent with the request.

Mediation

Within three business days after receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally discuss with all the
parties the possibility of using mediation to resolve the complaint. Mediation shall be offered to resolve complaints
that involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any
complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation
 
would feel compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all
arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation,
or bullying, the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to permit the mediator access to all relevant
confidential information. The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at
any time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance officer shall
proceed with an investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the complaint unless the
complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn,
then the district shall take only the actions agreed upon through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the
district shall then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation.
 

Investigation of Complaint

The compliance officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint within 10 business days of receiving the
complaint.

Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the complainant and/or

659



the complainant's representative with the opportunity to present the information contained in the complaint to the
compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or representative of the opportunity to present the
compliance officer with any evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint.
Such evidence or information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and review all available
records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any additional evidence or information received
from the parties during the course of the investigation. The compliance officer shall individually interview all
available witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location
where the relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance officer shall
inform the parties of the status of the investigation.

To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the
compliance officer shall interview the alleged victim(s), any alleged offender(s), and other relevant witnesses
privately, separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or
support the investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the
allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or any other obstruction of the
investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation.
Refusal by the district to provide the investigator with access to records and/or information related to the allegations
in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or any other obstruction of the investigation may
result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in
favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)
 

Timeline for Investigation Report
OPTION 1: (Districts that do not allow complainants to appeal to the Board)

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the
complainant a written investigation report, as described in the section "Investigation Report" below, within 60
calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. (5 CCR 4631)

For any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the respondent shall be
informed of any extension of the timeline agreed to by the complainant.
 
OPTION 2: (Districts that allow complainants to appeal to the Board)

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the investigation report shall be sent to the
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint.

Within 30 calendar days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the complainant
a written report, as described in the section "Investigation Report" below. If the complainant is dissatisfied with the
compliance officer's decision, the complainant may, within five business days, file the complaint in writing with the
Board.

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting convened in
order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered. When required by law, the matter
shall be considered in closed session. The Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance
officer's decision shall be final.

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the complainant within 60
calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within the time period that has been specified in a
written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

For any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the respondent shall be
informed of any extension of the timeline agreed to by the complainant, and, in the same manner as the complainant,
may file a complaint with the Board if dissatisfied with the decision.

660



END OF OPTION 2

Investigation Report
For all complaints, the district's investigation report shall include: (5 CCR 4631)

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered

 

2. A conclusion providing a clear determination for each allegation as to whether the district is in
compliance with the relevant law

 

3. Corrective action(s) whenever the district finds merit in the complaint, including, when required by law, a
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians and, for a student fees complaint, a remedy that
complies with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600

 

4. Notice of the complainant's right to appeal the district's investigation report to CDE, except when the
district has used the UCP to address a complaint not specified in 5 CCR 4610

 

5. Procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to CDE

The investigation report may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and for reporting
any subsequent problems.

In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of an investigation report may be
communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may be involved in implementing the
investigation report or are affected by the complaint, as long as the privacy of the parties is protected. In a complaint
alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, notice of the investigation report to the alleged
victim shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon the respondent that relates directly to the
alleged victim.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient (LEP) student or parent/guardian, then the district's response, if
requested by the complainant, and the investigation report shall be written in English and the primary language in
which the complaint was filed.
 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying based on state law, the
investigation report shall also include a notice to the complainant that:

1. The complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint procedures,
including, but not limited to, injunctions, restraining orders or other remedies or orders, 60 calendar days
after the filing of an appeal with CDE (Education Code 262.3)

 

2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state courts or to
discrimination complaints based on federal law (Education Code 263)

 

3. Complaints alleging discriminaFon based on race, color, naFonal origin, sex, gender, disability, or age may
also be filed with the U.S. Department of EducaFon, Office for Civil Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within
180 days of the alleged discrimination

661

http://www.ed.gov/ocr


Corrective Actions

When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate corrective action
permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school or district environment may include,
but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school
policies; or school climate surveys.

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, appropriate
remedies that may be offered to the victim but not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited
to, the following:

1. Counseling
2. Academic support
3. Health services
4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus
5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or retaliation

 

6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation does not penalize
the victim

7. Restorative justice
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no retaliation

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying involving a student as
the respondent, appropriate corrective actions that may be provided to the student include, but are not limited to,
the following:

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law
2. Parent/guardian conference
3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others
4. Positive behavior support
5. Referral to a student success team
6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges as permitted by law
7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or
 
bullying, the district shall take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with
applicable law and collective bargaining agreement.

The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community to ensure that
students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, that the district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond to it.

When a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy shall be provided to the complainant or other
affected person.

However, if a complaint alleging noncompliance with the law regarding student fees, deposits, and other charges,
physical education instructional minutes, courses without educational content, or any requirement related to the
LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians
subject to procedures established by regulation of the State Board of Education. (Education Code 49013, 51222,
51223, 51228.3, 52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the law regarding student fees, the district, by engaging in reasonable
efforts, shall attempt in good faith to identify and fully reimburse all affected students and parents/guardians who
paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior to the filing of the complaint. (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR
4600)
 

662



Appeals to the California Department of Education
Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's investigation report on a complaint regarding any specified
federal or state educational program subject to UCP may file an appeal in writing with CDE within 30 calendar days
of receiving the district's investigation report. (5 CCR 4632)

The appeal shall be sent to CDE with a copy of the original locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's
investigation report for that complaint. The complainant shall specify and explain the basis for the appeal, including
at least one of the following: (5 CCR 4632)

1. The district failed to follow its complaint procedures

 

2. Relative to the allegations of the complaint, the district's investigation report lacks material findings of
fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law

3. The material findings of fact in the district's investigation report are not supported by substantial
evidence

4. The legal conclusion in the district's investigation report is inconsistent with the law
5. In a case in which the district found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper

remedy

Upon notification by CDE that the district's investigation report has been appealed, the Superintendent or designee
shall forward the following documents to CDE within 10 days of the date of notification: (5 CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint
2. A copy of the district's investigation report

 

3. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and documents
submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator

 

4. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
5. A copy of the district's UCP
6. Other relevant information requested by CDE

If notified by CDE that the district's investigation report failed to address allegation(s) raised by the complaint, the
district shall, within 20 days of the notification, provide CDE and the appellant with an amended investigation report

that addresses the allegation(s) that were not addressed in the original investigation report. The amended report shall
also inform the appellant of the right to separately appeal the amended report with respect to the allegation(s) that
were not addressed in the original report. (5 CCR 4632)
 

Health and Safety Complaints in License-Exempt
Preschool Programs

Any complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt California State Preschool Program (CSPP) shall
be addressed through the procedures described in 5 CCR 4690-4694.

In order to identify appropriate subjects of CSPP health and safety issues pursuant to Health and Safety Code
1596.7925, a notice shall be posted in each license-exempt CSPP classroom in the district notifying
parents/guardians, students, and teachers of the health and safety requirements of Title 5 regulations that apply to
CSPP programs pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1596.7925 and the location at which to obtain a form to file any
complaint alleging noncompliance with those requirements. For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee may
download and post a notice available from the CDE website. (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4691)

663



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

The district's annual UCP notification distributed pursuant to 5 CCR 4622 shall clearly indicate which of its CSPP
programs are operating as exempt from licensing and which CSPP programs are operating pursuant to requirements
under Title 22 of the Code of Regulations. (5 CCR 4691)

Any complaint regarding specified health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program shall be filed with the
preschool program administrator or designee, and may be filed anonymously. The complaint form shall specify the
location for filing the complaint, contain a space to indicate whether the complainant desires a response to the
complaint, and allow a complainant to add as much text as desired to explain the complaint. (Education Code 8212; 5
CCR 4690)

If it is determined that the complaint is beyond the authority of the preschool program administrator, the matter shall
be forwarded to the Superintendent or designee in a timely manner, not to exceed 10 working days, for resolution.
The preschool administrator or the Superintendent or designee shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any
complaint within their authority. (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4692)

Investigation of a complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program shall begin within 10
days of receipt of the complaint. (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4692)

The preschool administrator or designee shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period not to
exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received. If the complainant has indicated on the complaint
form a desire to receive a response to the complaint, the preschool administrator or Superintendent's designee shall,
within 45 working days of the initial filing of the complaint, report the resolution of the complaint to the complainant
and CDE's assigned field consultant. If the preschool administrator makes this report, the information shall be
reported at the same time to the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4692)

If a complaint regarding health or safety issues in a license-exempt CSPP program involves an LEP student or
parent/guardian, then the district's response, if requested by the complainant, and the investigation report shall be
written in English and the primary language in which the complaint was filed.

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, the complainant has the right to describe the
complaint to the Board at a regularly scheduled hearing and, within 30 days of the date of the written report, may
file a written appeal of the district's decision to the Superintendent of Public Instruction in accordance with 5 CCR
4632. (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4693, 4694)

All complaints and responses are public records. (5 CCR 4690)
 
 
  

On a quarterly basis, the Superintendent or designee shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all
CSPP health and safety complaints, including the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of
resolved and unresolved complaints, to the Board at a regularly scheduled Board meeting and to the County
Superintendent. (5 CCR 4693)
 

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

5 CCR 15580-15584 Child nutrition programs complaint procedures

5 CCR 3200-3205 Special education compliance complaints

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures and Williams complaints

664

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I4431E3804C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4433B8444C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I32C91A004C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I32CF5B934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I34D6EB604C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I34DE17534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3


5 CCR 4690-4694 Complaints regarding health and safety issues in license-exempt preschool
programs

5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs
receiving state or federal financial assistance

Ed. Code 18100-18203 School libraries

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 46015 Parental leave for students

Ed. Code 48645.7 Juvenile court schools

Ed. Code 48853-48853.5 Foster youth

Ed. Code 48900.5 Suspension; other means of correction

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49010-49013 Student fees

Ed. Code 49060-49079 Student records

Ed. Code 49069.5 Records of foster youth

Ed. Code 49490-49590 Child nutrition programs

Ed. Code 49701 Provisions of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunities for
Military Children

Ed. Code 51204.5 Social sciences instruction; contributions of specified groups

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6

Ed. Code 51222 Physical education

Ed. Code 51223 Physical education; elementary schools

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Foster youth, homeless children, former juvenile court school students;
course credits; graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51226-51226.1 Career technical education

Ed. Code 51228.1-51228.3 Course periods without educational content

Ed. Code 51501 Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Ed. Code 52059.5 Statewide system of support

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 52075 Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan
requirements

Ed. Code 52300-52462 Career technical education

Ed. Code 52500-52617 Adult schools

Ed. Code 54400-54425 Compensatory education programs

Ed. Code 54440-54445 Migrant education

Ed. Code 54460-54529 Compensatory education programs

Ed. Code 59000-59300 Special schools and centers

Ed. Code 60010 Instructional materials; definition

Ed. Code 60040-60052 Requirements for instructional materials

Ed. Code 64000-64001 Consolidated application process; school plan for student achievement

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

665

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I35001E404C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I35028F434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=11.&chapter=2.&article=
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48645.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=5.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49069.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=&title=2.&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=2
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49701.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51204.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51222.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51223.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52059.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52075.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=10.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=32.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=&title=2.&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=2
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=38.&chapter=&article=


Ed. Code 8200-8488 Child care and development programs

Ed. Code 8500-8538 Adult basic education

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

H&S Code 1596.792 California Child Day Care Act; general provisions and definitions

H&S Code 1596.7925 California Child Day Care Act; health and safety regulations

Pen. Code 422.55 Definition of hate crime

Pen. Code 422.6 Crimes; harassment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1221 Application of laws

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 6301-6576 Title I Improving the Academic Achievement of the Disadvantaged

20 USC 6801-7014 Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant
students

28 CFR 35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin

34 CFR 104.7 Section 504; Designation of responsible employee and adoption of
grievances procedures

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

34 CFR 106.30 Discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and activities;
definitions

34 CFR 106.44 Recipient's response to sexual harassment

34 CFR 106.45 Grievance process for formal complaints of sexual harassment

34 CFR 106.8 Designation of coordinator; dissemination of policy, and adoption of
grievance procedures

34 CFR 110.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Uniform Complaint Procedure 2021-22 Program Instrument

California Department of Education Publication Sample UCP Board Policies and Procedures

California Department of Justice Publication Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for Providing Inclusive
Curricula and Books, January 2024

CSBA Publication Reference: State Roles, Responsibilities, and Process for Instructional
Materials Adoption, February 2024

666

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=11135.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.792.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.7925.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.55.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.6.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1221 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1221)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-35/subpart-A/section-35.107
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100/section-100.3
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.7
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-D/section-106.44
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-D/section-106.45
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-110/subpart-C/section-110.25
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-docs/Legal Alert Re Inclusive Curricula.1.9.24.1157CLEAN.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-StateRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=f00baf9bd1af4844b94f99135ca65588


CSBA Publication Fact Sheet: Instructional Materials Adoption: Local governing board
responsibilities, February 2024

CSBA Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, February 2024

Federal Register
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, April 29, 2024, Vol. 89, No. 83,
pages 33474-33896

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter: Responding to Bullying of Students with Disabilities,
October 2014

U.S. DOJ Publication
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI
Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English
Proficient Persons, 2007

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Student Privacy Policy Office

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture

Website California Department of Social Services

Website U.S. Department of Justice

Website California Civil Rights Department

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420.41 Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E PDF(1) Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E(1) Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E(2) Charter School Oversight

0420.41-E(3) Charter School Oversight

0430 Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

0430 Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1100 Communication With The Public

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

667

https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-LocalRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=94453dc92df043379995b07589a4d558
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-instructional-materials-brief.ashx?la=en&rev=9880900e6d334c81a7f64d637e40dc56
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/04/29/2024-07915/nondiscrimination-on-the-basis-of-sex-in-education-programs-or-activities-receiving-federal
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/opepd/sppo
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cacfp/afterschool-programs
http://www.dss.cahwnet.gov
http://www.justice.gov
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HzkkjzHbKIecOxFNHsgA5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMD4VaaOJXV2m0hadSplusYaQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kEFjSDrbShV8yFmzOpluslqqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s6ihNoMOplusnlORrvLjVzlvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fGWAWChATTukNyAs2r8OIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uMoTslsh83PJ5g2hr9xli4b8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TUislshGGe9hNZBmAMXMR2Wwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==


1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E PDF(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E PDF(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(3) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.23 Special Education Staff

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

668

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qappc3ZQkwX9gwplusb8nplusvplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=a7JTUlbMZuZNU0TNnGbfsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kCq042yuNu4ulWLuxXyVBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7qc5lwJV7pplusdxsdt2v9kEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7973lYJs1ccYtmzYDpvxRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EEpluso2cUlX3slshYIslshIhw1vZ5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tjHpsZ4i7fvGYovabLvFdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AvaW6036FImpluswTIUl86G5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1ARJdTNyHjNplusBiwHULslshKoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v7RqQFhXTOwnT5Ta2sYxCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oudxB8CqzWTdFscjpvIyqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q1AdCLjYQPQc6vK8YYydYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==


4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4244 Complaints

4244 Complaints

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4344 Complaints

4344 Complaints

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5125 Student Records

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

669

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9Pdno3vr4cY5ipkiXplus6Hdg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EbMZR4CYiMFW2oZfD4y6QQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8SuqRFplus3pC1xUJHYqAjnPg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ejzdSdbj1y1oisJyMVKSDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3HDWMAslshfCqRlzH0hGxAVUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DI6ywVuc7JyQgdek6cc8PQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==


5125 Student Records

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5137 Positive School Climate

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

670

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1plusOKOaJVgOwqplustOfbTtRcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=deyOslshslshWxrJvIA6plusATGGJpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u0KIYnF1vwt1FWaVnvz8Ug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=48tuLsv3dSbv6SLDhZZwwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==


6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6152 Class Assignment

6152 Class Assignment

6152-E PDF(1) Class Assignment

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.3 Appointment Of Surrogate Parent For Special Education Students

6159.3 Appointment Of Surrogate Parent For Special Education Students

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E PDF(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E PDF(2) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6163.1 Library Media Centers

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.3 Education For Juvenile Court School Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178 Career Technical Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

671

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BGoA7qY3N2vhlmVNuT4IpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dWbcK0pslshm4rnOBBx3Sc7slshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nZsupsPNzskHJcu62HOhslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusEFuPIOyBIOQo3IF0jOJFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xxClFkI6arC1hk4HQvbL2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshkic8mRh8bSX8GPxFoVTxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zzslshjVkByQ2SMG9ypluszVcq3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=meWm7GBQaFFi6ABX88TU8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7WFlDnw1fIPqhy85PkFpRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zjcJVyzuOv3nslsh0mAaslshAavQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GJbgyMuWBRmplusoCQBCpk4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sQGK5n462ah26CPDMVD4fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FRxG1YX8ZtplusZjDM8vQuSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusIEJMkJ0WCE2Gqw8lYylQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=91LTrXx9lijyf0g30Q38cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eHdfgWNzMzMOvPzslshzuNwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNCVZBgJ9VmKAsw5Po0qnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ws7UMexGqT5Z38wJpkKljg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WJglWMmeslsh2plusVnA7eSoba4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p7pITslshO70EPWm6bslshJ06Ldw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PxFIp5oJzfmJOSBv4qdCWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==


6178 Career Technical Education

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

9000 Role Of The Board

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9124 Attorney

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

672

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vDFXv0D7JlAplusVkU2WUJMGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ra4KvNEGvfVplussB0slshpluszvhXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qnN24plusCJDvN9OzbzpgOq6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G9AjRHI50rf6uo44xKppiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4EDyJ5o48M5GoCEMVxOSoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IXNhzWv4FVPy7LGXEhqslshRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==


Policy 2121: Superintendent's ContractPolicy 2121: Superintendent's Contract Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/10/2021

The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent's employment contract should outline the framework through
which the Board and Superintendent will work together as a governance team to achieve district goals and
objectives. When approving the Superintendent's employment contract, the Board shall consider the value of
stability in district administration, the best use of district resources, and the Board's duty to ensure accountability to
the public for the performance of the district's schools.

The contract shall be reviewed by district legal counsel and may include the following:

1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to Education Code 35031
 

2. Length of the work year and hours of work
 

3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position, including a statement that any
subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the sole discretion of the Board
 

4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, consistent with Board policies,
regulations, and guidelines applicable to other professional administrative staff

The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the district's provision of cell
phones or other technological devices, and the use of a personal vehicle.
 

5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves
 

6. Professional development
 

7. General duties and responsibilities of the position
 

8. Criteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of the Superintendent
 

9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, although the Board may
enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the expiration of the existing contract

10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not wish to enter into a new
contract, which shall be at least 45 calendar days in advance of the expiration of the term of the contract
pursuant to Education Code 35031, and the responsibility of the Superintendent to remind the Board in
writing and in a timely manner of the requirement to give notice

11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash settlement that the
Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its expiration date
 

12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, actions, and legal proceedings
brought against the Superintendent in the Superintendent's official capacity in the performance of
employment-related duties

The Board may deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session at a regular meeting. However, discussions
regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur in the closed session of a regular meeting
only between the Board and its designated representative(s), as permitted under Government Code 54957.6. Such
deliberations shall not be held during a special meeting.  (Government Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6)

Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the approval process commences.

The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract during an open session of a regularly scheduled
Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. At that meeting, prior to taking action, the

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

673



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Board shall orally report a summary of the recommendation for the final action on the Superintendent's salary or
compensation in the form of fringe benefits.  (Government Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953)

Copies of the contract and other public records created or received in the process of developing the
recommendation related to the Superintendent's salary, benefits, and other compensation shall be available to the
public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54953)

Termination of Contract

Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent's employment contract in
accordance with law and applicable contract provisions.

In such an event, the maximum cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon termination of the
contract shall not exceed the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by the number of months left on the
contract or the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12, whichever is less.  (Government Code 53260)

The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which may be continued for the
same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the Superintendent finds other employment, whichever
occurs first.  (Government Code 53260, 53261)

However, when the termination of the Superintendent's contract is based upon the Board's belief and subsequent
confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has engaged in fraud, misappropriation of funds,
or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or noncash settlement of any amount shall be provided.  (Government Code
53260)

In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position, the Superintendent
shall reimburse the district for payments received as paid leave salary pending investigation or as cash settlement
upon termination, and for any funds expended by the district in defending the Superintendent against a crime
involving the Superintendent's office or position.  (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260)

The Board shall not take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause at a special or emergency meeting of
the Board.  (Education Code 35150)

Additionally, the Board shall not take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause or within 30 days after
the first convening of the Board after an election at which one or more Board members are elected or recalled. 
(Education Code 35150)

However, the Board may take action to terminate the Superintendent without cause at a regular meeting during any
month in which a regular meeting of the Board is not scheduled.  (Education Code 35150)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 41325-41328 Conditions of emergency apportionment

Gov. Code 3511.1-3511.2 Local agency executives

Gov. Code 53243-53243.4 Abuse of office

Gov. Code 53260-53264 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 54953 Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of superintendent

Gov. Code 54954 Time and place of regular meetings

Gov. Code 54956 Special meetings

Gov. Code 54957 Closed session personnel matters

Gov. Code 54957.1 Closed session; public report of action taken

674

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35031.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=3.&chapter=3.&part=24.&lawCode=EDC&title=2.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54953.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54956.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.1.


Gov. Code 54957.6 Closed sessions regarding employee matters

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

26 CFR 1.105-11 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan

26 USC 105 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan; definition of highly compensated
individual

42 USC 300gg-16 Group health plan; nondiscrimination in favor of highly compensated
individuals

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974)

Attorney General Publication The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003

Court Decision San Diego Union v. City Council (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947

CSBA Publication Superintendent Contract Template

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website Association of California School Administrators

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2110 Superintendent Responsibilities And Duties

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

2140 Evaluation Of The Superintendent

2140-E PDF(1) Evaluation Of The Superintendent

2210 Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy

3312 Contracts

3350 Travel Expenses

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

675

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:26 section:105 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title26-section105)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/media/the-brown-act.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.acsa.org
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sy0X3slshAC6SZy2Hy1plusJKGmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O8tAL8zo45MouRALkO6PIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aQj433CKghDhhRoi88Gcplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MSu1nXUDpfxfRkMnqoslshHtQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KgiyCl2e9j5HAaAD8RZRJQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PgxJhplusCKKesNPYQ4aXN6sA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LofyVcj8gl0z7nxb7p5bgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==


4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4117.5 Termination Agreements

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4217.5 Termination Agreements

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.5 Termination Agreements

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

9000 Role Of The Board

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9124 Attorney

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

676

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VsBzeBBN2psrZQBQTmgvhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TCQhtfA9vZTxm7drb0YVxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8o2liUShM2plus2oQKEsEgVrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4EDyJ5o48M5GoCEMVxOSoQ==


9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(2) Actions By The Board

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

677

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njS4xumUWTwAMwglWYqYRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7KRlrn5MwzPHLdsLle7xjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zu8V10QrJEzMVHchy5jqKA==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 3516: Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness PlanPolicy 3516: Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/23/2018

The Governing Board recognizes that all district staff and students must be prepared to respond quickly and
responsibly to emergencies, disasters, and threats of disaster. The district shall take all reasonable steps to prevent
and/or mitigate the impact of a disaster on district students, staff, and schools.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a disaster preparedness plan which contains routine and
emergency disaster procedures, including, but not limited to, earthquake emergency procedures, and adaptations for
individuals with disabilities in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the federal Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act, and Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Such procedures shall be
incorporated into the comprehensive school safety plan.  (Education Code 32282)

In developing the disaster preparedness plan, the Superintendent or designee shall involve district staff at all levels,
including administrators, district police or security officers, facilities managers, transportation managers, food
services personnel, school psychologists, counselors, school nurses, teachers, classified employees, and public
information officers. As appropriate, the Superintendent shall also collaborate with law enforcement, fire safety
officials, emergency medical services, health and mental health professionals, parents/guardians, and students.

The plan shall comply with state-approved Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) guidelines
established for multiple-jurisdiction or multiple-agency operations and with the National Incident Management
System.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to employees regarding their responsibilities, including periodic
drills and exercises to test and refine staff's responsiveness in the event of an emergency.

The Board shall grant the use of school buildings, grounds, and equipment to public agencies, including the American
Red Cross, for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting the public health and
welfare. The Board shall cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever services the district
may deem necessary to meet the community's needs.  (Education Code 32282)

District employees are considered disaster service workers and are subject to disaster service activities assigned to
them.  (Government Code 3100)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

19 CCR 2400-2450 Standardized Emergency Management System

5 CCR 550 Fire drills

5 CCR 560 Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans

CA Constitution Article 20, Section 3 Oath or affirmation

Civ. Code 1714.5 Release from liability for disaster service workers and shelters

Ed. Code 32001 Fire alarms and drills

Ed. Code 32040 Duty to equip school with first aid kit

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32290 Safety devices

Ed. Code 39834 Operating overloaded bus

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

678

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2B3148D34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2B37B1734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 3.&article=XX
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.5.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32040.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32290.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39834.


Ed. Code 46390-46392 Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster

Ed. Code 49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement

Gov. Code 11549 Cybersecurity assessment

Gov. Code 11549.3 Office of information security

Gov. Code 3100-3109 Oath or affirmation of allegiance

Gov. Code 8586.5 California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Gov. Code 8607 Standardized Emergency Management System

Public Utilities Code 2872 Automatic dialing

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cal OES Publication California Emergency Management for Schools: A Guide for Districts and
Sites

Cal OES Publication School Emergency Response: Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998

Cal OES Publication State of California Emergency Plan, 2017

Cal OES Publication Active Shooter Awareness Guidance, February 2018

California Department of Education Publication Crisis Response Box, 2000

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Publication National Incident Management System, 3rd ed., October 2017

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans,
2013

Website California Public Utilities Commission

Website California Office of Emergency Services: School Emergency Planning &
Safety

Website California Department of Education, Comprehensive School Safety Plans

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning

Website U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Website Federal Emergency Management Agency

Website California Governor's Office of Emergency Services

Website California Seismic Safety Commission

Website American Red Cross

Website California Attorney General's Office

Website CSBA

679

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=3.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49505.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=8.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8586.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8607.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PUC&sectionNum=2872.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/planning-preparedness-prevention/planning-preparedness/school-emergency-planning-safety/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/vp/cssp.asp
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/homeland-security/california-cybersecurity-integration-center/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/cp
http://www.cdc.gov/asthma
http://www.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/emergencyplan
http://www.dhs.gov
http://www.fema.gov/hazards/earthquakes
http://www.caloes.ca.gov
http://www.seismic.ca.gov
http://www.redcross.org
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org


Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1313 Civility

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3000 Concepts And Roles

3511 Energy And Water Management

3511 Energy And Water Management

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516.1 Fire Drills And Fires

3516.2 Bomb Threats

3516.3 Earthquake Emergency Procedure System

680

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UVfQ2ovi67OOmlbQvAQMjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ajdeAVVjY5plusqsslsh8YCnUdvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VnfslshWdq0B3FdCiPhto850A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dLmEtnu93X37hoahscIWslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jhHdy7tk7Jplusff53BHWkWEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H701MjUB6hgHsEplusvB74bLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vwqikrIyh1EyZNNyRxyi4A==


3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3540 Transportation

3540 Transportation

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4112.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4131 Staff Development

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4212.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4212.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4231 Staff Development

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4312.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4312.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4331 Staff Development

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5142 Safety

5142 Safety

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

681

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Cs4UYN8WU5fgnm1OL4jlMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s8OqcvcKGLwBj2Bs5sCyBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9b2PYEkbFHLVspaelCqO1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QBmatyqluR3HrSkCmMJQslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KHBYZcacwiCsNvAMIt6yzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wqGfK229M7hLlJ0XC464UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l499G64HkCF4KEjVD0IGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TLVkcZfx0dKsA8sd4iZeeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eaMuIXvJQQHosfOzBnzrrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gXOFbnEq0DplusslshOBAsdtAHpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eq8nvIslsh3JYCGK397IJhLbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W7qwTtHWcoMkNC68Fd7P2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4iU90Q8AxOTW0b1K0bqs4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ixj5iNcaOIL439eH3FXyoA==


6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153-E PDF(1) School-Sponsored Trips

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

7111 Evaluating Existing Buildings

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

682

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zzxb9ZpnSIiAjmNVXKfJKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X20o6P5S3ESJpOyE2Xs6tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyGCXhWTBp3lTwg0Gfj5Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshCsz6K41Oas7x5yEplusqsCtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Regulation 3516: Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness PlanRegulation 3516: Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/23/2018

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district and/or school site plans address, at a minimum, the
following types of emergencies and disasters:

1. Fire on or off school grounds which endangers students and staff
 

2. Earthquake, flood, or other natural disasters
 

3. Environmental hazards, such as leakages or spills of hazardous materials
 

4. Attack or disturbance, or threat of attack or disturbance, by an individual or group
 

5. Bomb threat or actual detonation
 

6. Biological, radiological, chemical, and other activities, or heightened warning of such activities
 

7. Medical emergencies and quarantines, such as a pandemic influenza outbreak
 

8. Attack or threat of attack to the district's digital network and technology infrastructure

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's procedures include strategies and actions for
prevention/mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery, including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Regular inspection of school facilities and equipment, identification of risks, and implementation of strategies
and measures to increase the safety and security of school facilities

2. Routine monitoring of the security of the district's digital network and technology infrastructure
 

3. Instruction for district staff and students regarding emergency plans, including:
 

a. Training of staff in first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation
 

b. Regular practice of emergency procedures by students and staff
 

4. Specific determination of roles and responsibilities of staff during a disaster or other emergency, including
determination of:
 

a. The appropriate chain of command at the district and, if communication between the district and site is
not possible, at each site
 

b. Individuals responsible for specific duties
 

c. Designation of the principal for the overall control and supervision of activities at each school during an
emergency, including authorization to use discretion in situations which do not permit execution of
prearranged plans
 

d. Identification of at least one person at each site who holds a valid certificate in first aid and
cardiopulmonary resuscitation
 

e. Assignment of responsibility for identification of injured persons and administration of first aid
 

5. Personal safety and security, including:
 

a. Identification of areas of responsibility for the supervision of students
 

b. Procedures for the evacuation of students and staff, including posting of evacuation routes
 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

683



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

c. Procedures for the release of students, including a procedure to release students when reference to the
emergency card is not feasible

d. Identification of transportation needs, including a plan which allows bus seating capacity limits to be
exceeded when a disaster or hazard requires students to be moved immediately to ensure their safety
 

e. Provision of a first aid kit to each classroom
 

f. Arrangements for students and staff with special needs
 

g. Upon notification that a pandemic situation exists, adjustment of attendance policies for students and
sick leave policies for staff with known or suspected pandemic influenza or other infectious disease
 

6. Closure of schools, including an analysis of:
 

a. The impact on student learning and methods to ensure continuity of instruction
 

b. How to provide for continuity of operations for essential central office functions, such as payroll and
ongoing communication with students and parents/guardians
 

7. Communication among staff, parents/guardians, the Governing Board, other governmental agencies, and the
media during an emergency, including:
 

a. Identification of spokesperson(s)

b. Development and testing of communication platforms, such as hotlines, automatic dialing devices,
telephone trees, websites, social media, and electronic notifications
 

c. Development of methods to ensure that communications are, to the extent practicable, in a language
and format that is easy for parents/guardians to understand
 

d. Distribution of information about district and school site emergency procedures to staff, students, and
parents/guardians
 

8. Cooperation with other state and local agencies, including:
 

a. Development of guidelines for law enforcement involvement and intervention
 

b. Collaboration with the local health department, including development of a tracking system to alert the
local health department of a substantial increase of student or staff absenteeism as indicative of a
potential outbreak of an infectious disease
 

9. Steps to be taken after the disaster or emergency, including:
 

a. Inspection of school facilities
 

b. Provision of mental health services for students and staff, as needed

The Superintendent or designee shall assemble critical information that would be needed in an emergency. Such
information may include, but is not limited to, a list of individuals and organizations who should be contacted for
assistance in an emergency, current layouts and blueprints of school buildings, aerial photos of the campus, maps of
evacuation routes and alternate routes, a roster of employees with their work locations, student photographs and
their emergency contact information, a clearly labeled set of keys, location of first aid supplies, procedures and
locations for turning off fire alarms, sprinklers, utilities, and other systems, information to access the district's
technology infrastructure, and insurance information. Such information shall be stored in a box in a secure, easily
accessible location, with a duplicate kept at another location in case the primary location is inaccessible.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

684



State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

19 CCR 2400-2450 Standardized Emergency Management System

5 CCR 550 Fire drills

5 CCR 560 Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans

CA Constitution Article 20, Section 3 Oath or affirmation

Civ. Code 1714.5 Release from liability for disaster service workers and shelters

Ed. Code 32001 Fire alarms and drills

Ed. Code 32040 Duty to equip school with first aid kit

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32290 Safety devices

Ed. Code 39834 Operating overloaded bus

Ed. Code 46390-46392 Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster

Ed. Code 49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement

Gov. Code 11549 Cybersecurity assessment

Gov. Code 11549.3 Office of information security

Gov. Code 3100-3109 Oath or affirmation of allegiance

Gov. Code 8586.5 California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Gov. Code 8607 Standardized Emergency Management System

Public Utilities Code 2872 Automatic dialing

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cal OES Publication California Emergency Management for Schools: A Guide for Districts and
Sites

Cal OES Publication School Emergency Response: Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998

Cal OES Publication State of California Emergency Plan, 2017

Cal OES Publication Active Shooter Awareness Guidance, February 2018

California Department of Education Publication Crisis Response Box, 2000

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Publication National Incident Management System, 3rd ed., October 2017

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans,
2013

Website California Public Utilities Commission

Website California Office of Emergency Services: School Emergency Planning &
Safety

Website California Department of Education, Comprehensive School Safety Plans

Website California Cybersecurity Integration Center

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness

685

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2B3148D34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2B37B1734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 3.&article=XX
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.5.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32040.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32290.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39834.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=3.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49505.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=8.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8586.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8607.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PUC&sectionNum=2872.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/planning-preparedness-prevention/planning-preparedness/school-emergency-planning-safety/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/vp/cssp.asp
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/homeland-security/california-cybersecurity-integration-center/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/cp


Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning

Website U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Website Federal Emergency Management Agency

Website California Governor's Office of Emergency Services

Website California Seismic Safety Commission

Website American Red Cross

Website California Attorney General's Office

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1313 Civility

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3000 Concepts And Roles

3511 Energy And Water Management

3511 Energy And Water Management

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

686

http://www.cdc.gov/asthma
http://www.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/emergencyplan
http://www.dhs.gov
http://www.fema.gov/hazards/earthquakes
http://www.caloes.ca.gov
http://www.seismic.ca.gov
http://www.redcross.org
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UVfQ2ovi67OOmlbQvAQMjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ajdeAVVjY5plusqsslsh8YCnUdvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VnfslshWdq0B3FdCiPhto850A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dLmEtnu93X37hoahscIWslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==


3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516.1 Fire Drills And Fires

3516.2 Bomb Threats

3516.3 Earthquake Emergency Procedure System

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3540 Transportation

3540 Transportation

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4112.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4131 Staff Development

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4212.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4212.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4231 Staff Development

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4312.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4312.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4331 Staff Development

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

5113 Absences And Excuses

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

687

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jhHdy7tk7Jplusff53BHWkWEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H701MjUB6hgHsEplusvB74bLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vwqikrIyh1EyZNNyRxyi4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Cs4UYN8WU5fgnm1OL4jlMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s8OqcvcKGLwBj2Bs5sCyBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9b2PYEkbFHLVspaelCqO1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QBmatyqluR3HrSkCmMJQslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KHBYZcacwiCsNvAMIt6yzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wqGfK229M7hLlJ0XC464UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l499G64HkCF4KEjVD0IGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TLVkcZfx0dKsA8sd4iZeeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eaMuIXvJQQHosfOzBnzrrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gXOFbnEq0DplusslshOBAsdtAHpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==


5113 Absences And Excuses

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5142 Safety

5142 Safety

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153-E PDF(1) School-Sponsored Trips

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

7111 Evaluating Existing Buildings

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

688

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eq8nvIslsh3JYCGK397IJhLbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W7qwTtHWcoMkNC68Fd7P2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4iU90Q8AxOTW0b1K0bqs4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ixj5iNcaOIL439eH3FXyoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zzxb9ZpnSIiAjmNVXKfJKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X20o6P5S3ESJpOyE2Xs6tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyGCXhWTBp3lTwg0Gfj5Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshCsz6K41Oas7x5yEplusqsCtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy 3550: Food Service/Child Nutrition ProgramPolicy 3550: Food Service/Child Nutrition Program Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/09/2022

The Governing Board recognizes that adequate, nourishing food is essential to student health and well-being,
development, and ability to learn. The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies to increase students'
access to and participation in the district's food service programs and maintain fiscal integrity of the programs in
accordance with law.

Each school day, a nutritionally adequate breakfast and lunch shall be made available at no cost to any student who
requests a meal, including a student enrolled in an independent study program on any school day in which the
student is scheduled for in-person educational activities of two or more hours. A nutritionally adequate breakfast or
lunch is one that qualifies for reimbursement under the most current meal pattern for the federal School Breakfast
Program or National School Lunch Program.

After a student has been provided a school meal at no cost, the district may sell the student the entrée from an
additional nutritiously adequate meal that qualifies for federal reimbursement, from the same meal service.
 (Education Code 49431)

Foods and beverages available through the district's food service program shall:

1. Be carefully selected so as to contribute to students' nutritional well-being and the prevention of disease

2. Meet or exceed nutrition standards specified in law
 

3. Be prepared in ways that will appeal to students, retain nutritive quality, and foster lifelong healthful eating
habits
 

4. Be served in age-appropriate portions

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall communicate information related to the
district's food service programs to the public through available means, including, but not limited to, the district's
website, social media, flyers, and school publications.

The district's food service program shall give priority to serving freshly prepared onsite meals, using whole or
minimally processed sustainable foods which are locally grown or produced, including fresh fruits and vegetables, and
providing plant-based or restricted diet food options for students.

District schools are encouraged to establish school gardens and/or farm-to-school projects to increase the
availability of safe, fresh, seasonal fruits and vegetables for school meals, positively impact students' knowledge
related to food and nutrition, support the district's nutrition education program, and increase students' consumption
of these foods and participation in school meals.

To the extent possible, the school meal program shall be coordinated with the nutrition education program,
instructional program for teachers, parents/guardians and food service employees, available community resources,
and other related district programs.

To encourage student participation in school meal programs, schools may offer multiple choices of food items within
a meal service, provided all food items meet nutrition standards and all students are given an opportunity to select
any food item.

The Superintendent or designee may invite students and parents/guardians to participate in the selection of foods of
good nutritional quality for school menus.

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

689



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Students shall be allowed adequate time and space to eat meals.  (Education Code 49501.5)

To the extent possible, school, recess, and transportation schedules shall be designed to promote participation in
school meal programs.

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically review the adequacy of school cafeterias and facilities for food
preparation and consumption.

In accordance with law, the Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a food safety program in order to
reduce the risk of foodborne hazards at each step of the food preparation and service process.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board on student participation in the district's nutrition
programs and the extent to which the district's food service program meets state and federal nutrition standards for
foods and beverages. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary and available
documentation required for the Administrative Review conducted by the California Department of Education (CDE)
to ensure the food service program's compliance with federal requirements related to nutrition standards, meal
patterns, provision of drinking water, school meal environment, food safety, and other areas as required by CDE.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 15510 Mandatory meals for needy students

5 CCR 15530-15535 Nutrition education

5 CCR 15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs

5 CCR 15575-15578 Requirements for foods and beverages outside the federal meals program

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 38080-38103 Cafeteria; establishment and use

Ed. Code 45103.5 Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions

Ed. Code 48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education

Ed. Code 49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49501.5-49506 School Meals

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Nutrition

Ed. Code 49530-49536 Child Nutrition Act

Ed. Code 49540-49546 Child care food program

Ed. Code 49547-49548.3 Comprehensive nutrition services

Ed. Code 49550.3-49562 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49570 National School Lunch Act

Ed. Code 51795-51798 School instructional gardens

H&S Code 113700-114437 California Retail Food Code; sanitation and safety requirements

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1758b Local wellness policy

42 USC 1761 Summer Food Service Program and Seamless Summer Feeding Option

690

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I43C602534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43CA6F204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43CC1CD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43DD33D04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43DEE1844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I441D71204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I44218FD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=38103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48432.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49570.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.&article=8.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=HSC&division=104.&title=&part=7.&chapter=&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1758b edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1758b)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1761 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1761)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


42 USC 1769a Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program

42 USC 1771-1793 Child Nutrition Act

42 USC 1772 Special Milk Program

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program

7 CFR 215.1-215.18 Special Milk Program

7 CFR 220.2-220.22 National School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 245.1-245.13 Eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Professional Standards in the School Nutrition Programs, Management
Bulletin SNP-13-2020, Updated January 2022

California Department of Education Publication Healthy Children Ready to Learn, 2006

California Department of Food and Agriculture
Pub Planting the Seed: Farm to School Roadmap for Success, February 2022

California Project Lean Publication Policy in Action: A Guide to Implementing Your Local School Wellness
Policy, October 2006

CSBA Publication Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student
Wellness Policies, 2012

CSBA Publication Monitoring for Success: Student Wellness Policy Implementation
Monitoring Report and Guide, 2008

CSBA Publication Nutrition Standards for Schools: Implications for Student Wellness, Policy
Brief, October 2007

CSBA Publication Building Healthy Communities: A School Leader's Guide to Collaboration
and Community Engagement, 2009

CSBA Publication Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource
Guide, April 2006

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication School Breakfast Toolkit

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement - Nutrition Programs and
Activities, FNS Instruction 113-1, November 2005

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Dietary Guidelines for Americans, 2020

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Food Buying Guide for Child Nutrition Programs, May 2022

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program: Handbook for Schools, December 2010

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Guidance for School Food Authorities: Developing a School Food Safety
Program Based on the Process Approach to HACCP Principles, June 2005

Website California Department of Food and Agriculture, Office of Farm to Fork

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Website California Farm Bureau Federation

Website Nourish California

Website California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition)

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website California School Nutrition Association

Website California Department of Education, School Nutrition

691

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1769a edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1769a)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13A&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1772 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1772)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-210
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-215
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp132020.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa/sf/documents/healthychildren.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Farm_To_School_Report_20220222-small.pdf
https://www.californiaprojectlean.org/docuserfiles/policy in Action Guide FINAL.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/ConditionsofChildren/201211MonitoringForSuccess.ashx?la=en&rev=90a8b252b84a4e80b2ebd6c1a6899865
https://www.csba.org/~/~/media/Files/EducationIssues/Wellness/200910_MFS_Guide.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/media/3A78FEAF129D488FA34CFAAA16B38911.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/media/4D07909373B14A0BB5CA2CCF41F98351.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/~/media/B5947DF3DE58432C9B038C9C38360684.ashx
https://www.fns.usda.gov/sbp/toolkit
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cr/fns-instruction-113-1
https://www.dietaryguidelines.gov/sites/default/files/2020-12/Dietary_Guidelines_for_Americans_2020-2025.pdf
https://www.fns.usda.gov/tn/food-buying-guide
https://www.fns.usda.gov/ffvp/fresh-fruits-and-vegetable-program-handbook-schools
https://www.fns.usda.gov/fs/developing-school-food-safety-program-based-process-approach-haccp
https://cafarmtofork.cdfa.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.cfbf.com
http://www.cfpa.net
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org
http://www.cdc.gov/asthma
http://www.calsna.org
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/


Website National Alliance for Nutrition and Activity

Website California Department of Public Health

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0500 Accountability

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E PDF(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(3) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3000 Concepts And Roles

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3510 Green School Operations

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

3554-E PDF(1) Other Food Sales

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4131 Staff Development

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4231 Staff Development

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

692

http://www.cspinet.org/nutritionpolicy/nana.html
http://www.cdph.ca.gov
http://www.ccrcca.org/resources/family-resource-directory/item/california-healthy-kids-resource-center
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tjHpsZ4i7fvGYovabLvFdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AvaW6036FImpluswTIUl86G5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1ARJdTNyHjNplusBiwHULslshKoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v7RqQFhXTOwnT5Ta2sYxCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oudxB8CqzWTdFscjpvIyqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n67e5kfO6UsNa403CtI0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ajdeAVVjY5plusqsslsh8YCnUdvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh23goxgT99IvsfkPmn7cLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Cs4UYN8WU5fgnm1OL4jlMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s8OqcvcKGLwBj2Bs5sCyBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mNYOlITC2hFPGRQsbslshG9aA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bR5qqdVsXlJdzqLOF9pZxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJ4jIslsh1bn6XplusKQzpqxAsEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==


5030 Student Wellness

5141.27 Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs

5141.27 Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

7110 Facilities Master Plan

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

693

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6Ue2dBIk9slshSn46mJXOe5Qw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LtSmhwplusgoONDUwykFKTlJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=shY9JGdEYqwy7nkKm8lxzg==


Regulation 3550: Food Service/Child Nutrition ProgramRegulation 3550: Food Service/Child Nutrition Program Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/09/2022

Nutrition Standards for School Meals

Meals, food items, and beverages provided through the district's food services program shall:  (Education Code
49501.5, 49553; 42 USC 1758, 1773)

1. Comply with National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program standards for meal patterns, nutrient levels, and
calorie requirements for the ages/grade levels served, as specified in 7 CFR 210.10 or 220.8 as applicable

2. Not be deep fried, par fried, or flash fried, as defined in Education Code 49430 and 49430.7

Drinking Water

The district shall provide access to free, fresh drinking water during meal times in food service areas at all district
schools, including, but not limited to, areas where reimbursable meals under the National School Lunch or Breakfast
Program are served or consumed.  (Education Code 38086; 42 USC 1758)

Special Milk Program

Any school that does not participate in the National School Lunch or Breakfast Program may participate in the
Special Milk Program to provide all enrolled students with reasonably priced milk.  (7 CFR 215.7)

Food Safety

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's food service program meets the applicable sanitation
and safety requirements of the California Retail Food Code as set forth in Health and Safety Code 113700-114437.

For all district schools participating in the National School Lunch and/or School Breakfast Program, the
Superintendent or designee shall implement a written food safety program for the storage, preparation, and service
of school meals which complies with the national Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) system. The
district's HACCP plan shall include, but is not limited to, a determination of critical control points and critical limits at
each stage of food production, monitoring procedures, corrective actions, and recordkeeping procedures.  (42 USC
1758; 7 CFR 210.13, 220.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that food service directors, managers, and staff complete an annual
continuing education or training as required by law. Each new employee, including a substitute, or volunteer shall
complete initial food safety training prior to handling food. For each employee, the Superintendent or designee shall
document the date, trainer, and subject of each training.

The Superintendent or designee shall assign staff to maintain records and logs documenting food safety activities,
including, but not limited to, records of food deliveries, time and temperature monitoring during food production,
equipment temperature (freezer, cooler, thermometer calibration), corrective actions, verification or review of safety
efforts, and staff training.

Inspection of Food Facilities

All food preparation and service areas shall be inspected in accordance with Health and Safety Code 113725-
113725.1 and applicable county regulations.

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

694



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Each school participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program shall, during each school year,
obtain a minimum of two food safety inspections conducted by the county environmental health agency.  (42 USC
1758; 7 CFR 210.13, 220.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall retain records from the most recent food safety inspection. All schools shall
post a notice indicating that the most recent inspection report is available to any interested person upon request.
(Health and Safety Code 113725.1; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.13, 210.15, 220.7)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 15510 Mandatory meals for needy students

5 CCR 15530-15535 Nutrition education

5 CCR 15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs

5 CCR 15575-15578 Requirements for foods and beverages outside the federal meals program

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 38080-38103 Cafeteria; establishment and use

Ed. Code 45103.5 Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions

Ed. Code 48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education

Ed. Code 49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49501.5-49506 School Meals

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Nutrition

Ed. Code 49530-49536 Child Nutrition Act

Ed. Code 49540-49546 Child care food program

Ed. Code 49547-49548.3 Comprehensive nutrition services

Ed. Code 49550.3-49562 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49570 National School Lunch Act

Ed. Code 51795-51798 School instructional gardens

H&S Code 113700-114437 California Retail Food Code; sanitation and safety requirements

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1758b Local wellness policy

42 USC 1761 Summer Food Service Program and Seamless Summer Feeding Option

42 USC 1769a Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program

42 USC 1771-1793 Child Nutrition Act

42 USC 1772 Special Milk Program

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program

7 CFR 215.1-215.18 Special Milk Program

7 CFR 220.2-220.22 National School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 245.1-245.13 Eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk

695

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I43C602534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43CA6F204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43CC1CD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43DD33D04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43DEE1844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I441D71204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I44218FD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=38103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48432.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49570.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.&article=8.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=HSC&division=104.&title=&part=7.&chapter=&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1758b edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1758b)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1761 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1761)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1769a edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1769a)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13A&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1772 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1772)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-210
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-215


Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Professional Standards in the School Nutrition Programs, Management
Bulletin SNP-13-2020, Updated January 2022

California Department of Education Publication Healthy Children Ready to Learn, 2006

California Department of Food and Agriculture
Pub Planting the Seed: Farm to School Roadmap for Success, February 2022

California Project Lean Publication Policy in Action: A Guide to Implementing Your Local School Wellness
Policy, October 2006

CSBA Publication Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student
Wellness Policies, 2012

CSBA Publication Monitoring for Success: Student Wellness Policy Implementation
Monitoring Report and Guide, 2008

CSBA Publication Nutrition Standards for Schools: Implications for Student Wellness, Policy
Brief, October 2007

CSBA Publication Building Healthy Communities: A School Leader's Guide to Collaboration
and Community Engagement, 2009

CSBA Publication Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource
Guide, April 2006

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication School Breakfast Toolkit

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement - Nutrition Programs and
Activities, FNS Instruction 113-1, November 2005

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Dietary Guidelines for Americans, 2020

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Food Buying Guide for Child Nutrition Programs, May 2022

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program: Handbook for Schools, December 2010

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Guidance for School Food Authorities: Developing a School Food Safety
Program Based on the Process Approach to HACCP Principles, June 2005

Website California Department of Food and Agriculture, Office of Farm to Fork

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Website California Farm Bureau Federation

Website Nourish California

Website California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition)

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website California School Nutrition Association

Website California Department of Education, School Nutrition

Website National Alliance for Nutrition and Activity

Website California Department of Public Health

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0500 Accountability

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E PDF(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(1) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

696

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp132020.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa/sf/documents/healthychildren.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Farm_To_School_Report_20220222-small.pdf
https://www.californiaprojectlean.org/docuserfiles/policy in Action Guide FINAL.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/ConditionsofChildren/201211MonitoringForSuccess.ashx?la=en&rev=90a8b252b84a4e80b2ebd6c1a6899865
https://www.csba.org/~/~/media/Files/EducationIssues/Wellness/200910_MFS_Guide.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/media/3A78FEAF129D488FA34CFAAA16B38911.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/media/4D07909373B14A0BB5CA2CCF41F98351.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/~/media/B5947DF3DE58432C9B038C9C38360684.ashx
https://www.fns.usda.gov/sbp/toolkit
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cr/fns-instruction-113-1
https://www.dietaryguidelines.gov/sites/default/files/2020-12/Dietary_Guidelines_for_Americans_2020-2025.pdf
https://www.fns.usda.gov/tn/food-buying-guide
https://www.fns.usda.gov/ffvp/fresh-fruits-and-vegetable-program-handbook-schools
https://www.fns.usda.gov/fs/developing-school-food-safety-program-based-process-approach-haccp
https://cafarmtofork.cdfa.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.cfbf.com
http://www.cfpa.net
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org
http://www.cdc.gov/asthma
http://www.calsna.org
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/
http://www.cspinet.org/nutritionpolicy/nana.html
http://www.cdph.ca.gov
http://www.ccrcca.org/resources/family-resource-directory/item/california-healthy-kids-resource-center
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tjHpsZ4i7fvGYovabLvFdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AvaW6036FImpluswTIUl86G5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1ARJdTNyHjNplusBiwHULslshKoQ==


1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(3) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3000 Concepts And Roles

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3510 Green School Operations

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

3554-E PDF(1) Other Food Sales

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4131 Staff Development

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4231 Staff Development

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

5030 Student Wellness

5141.27 Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs

5141.27 Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

697

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v7RqQFhXTOwnT5Ta2sYxCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oudxB8CqzWTdFscjpvIyqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n67e5kfO6UsNa403CtI0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ajdeAVVjY5plusqsslsh8YCnUdvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh23goxgT99IvsfkPmn7cLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Cs4UYN8WU5fgnm1OL4jlMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s8OqcvcKGLwBj2Bs5sCyBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mNYOlITC2hFPGRQsbslshG9aA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bR5qqdVsXlJdzqLOF9pZxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJ4jIslsh1bn6XplusKQzpqxAsEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6Ue2dBIk9slshSn46mJXOe5Qw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LtSmhwplusgoONDUwykFKTlJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==


5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

7110 Facilities Master Plan

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

698

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=shY9JGdEYqwy7nkKm8lxzg==


Policy 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria FundPolicy 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/09/2022

The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit program. To ensure
program quality and cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or designee shall centralize and direct the purchasing of
foods and supplies, the planning of menus, and the auditing of all food service accounts for the district.

At the Board's discretion, district funds other than the cafeteria fund may be used for the purchase of school meals.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that food service director(s) possess the qualifications required by 7
CFR 210.30 and California Department of Education (CDE) standards.

At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who conduct or oversee
administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive training provided by CDE.  (42 USC 1776)

Meal Sales

Each school day, a nutritionally adequate breakfast and lunch shall be made available at no cost to any student who
requests a meal, including a student enrolled in an independent study program on any school day in which the
student is scheduled for in-person educational activities of two or more hours. After such school meals have been
made available to a student, the district may sell the student the entrée from an additional nutritiously adequate meal
that qualifies for federal reimbursement, from the same meal service.  (Education Code 49431, 49501.5)

As permitted by law, adult meals and other nonprogram foods, such as smart snack compliant food and beverages
sold in vending machines, may be sold to students.  (Education Code 38082, 49431, 49501.5)

Meals may be sold to district employees, Board members, and employees or members of the fund or association
maintaining the cafeteria.  (Education Code 38082)

In addition, meals may be sold to nonstudents, including parents/guardians, volunteers, students' siblings, or other
individuals, who are authorized by the Superintendent or designee to be on campus. Any meals served to
nonstudents shall not be subsidized by federal or state reimbursements, food service revenues, or U.S. Department
of Agriculture (USDA) foods.

Meal prices, as recommended by the Superintendent or designee and approved by the Board, shall be based on the
costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 38084 and 42 USC 1760.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish strategies and procedures for the collection of meal payments. Such
procedures shall conform with 2 CFR 200.426 and any applicable CDE guidance. The Superintendent or designee
shall clearly communicate these procedures to students and parents/guardians, and shall make this policy and the
accompanying administrative regulation available to the public pursuant to Education Code 49557.5.

Cafeteria Fund and Account

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's general fund.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through school meal programs are
allocated only for purposes related to the operation or improvement of food services and for reasonable and
necessary indirect program costs as allowed by law.

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

699



OPTION 1: (Food service employees paid from general fund)
The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the district's general fund. At any time,
the Board may order reimbursement from the district's cafeteria fund for these payments in amounts prescribed by
the Board and not exceeding the costs actually incurred.  (Education Code 38103)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Food service employees paid from cafeteria fund)
The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria fund.  (Education Code
38103)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Contracts with Outside Services

With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting services or management
services in one or more district schools.  (Education Code 45103.5; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16)

Procurement of Foods, Equipment, and Supplies

To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district or by any entity
purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. Domestic commodity or product means an
agricultural commodity that is produced in the United States and a food product that is processed in the United
States substantially using agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States.  (42 USC 1760; 7 CFR
210.21)

The district's food service program shall give priority to serving freshly prepared onsite meals, using whole or
minimally processed sustainable foods which are locally grown or produced, including fresh fruits and vegetables, and
to providing plant-based or restricted diet food options for students.

When soliciting for bids and contracts for the purchase of an agricultural food product, the district shall specify in the
solicitation that only the purchase of agricultural food products grown, packed, or processed domestically is
authorized, unless a specific exception applies. A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the
district's food service program only as a last resort when the product is not produced or manufactured in the United
States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities of a satisfactory quality, the quality of the domestic product is
inferior to the quality of the nondomestic product, or the bid or price of the nondomestic product is more than 25
percent lower than the bid or price of the domestic product. In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall
retain documentation justifying the use of the exception for three years from the date of purchase.  (Food and
Agriculture Code 58596.3)

Furthermore, the district shall accept a bid or price for an agricultural food product grown in California before
accepting a bid or price for a domestic agricultural food product that is grown outside the state, if the quality of the
California-grown product is comparable and the bid or price does not exceed the lowest bid or price for domestic
product produced outside the state.  (Food and Agriculture Code 58595)

Bid solicitations and awards for purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies in support of the district's child
nutrition program, or for contracts awarded pursuant to Public Contract Code 2000, shall be consistent with the
federal procurement standards in 2 CFR 200.318-200.326. Awards shall be let to the most responsive and
responsible party. Price shall be the primary consideration, but not the only determining factor, in making such an
award.  (Public Contract Code 20111)

Program Monitoring and Evaluation

The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports regarding revenues and

700



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

expenditures related to the food service program.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the Administrative Review
conducted by CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food service program with federal requirements.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

12 CCR 18928-18998.4 Short-lived climate pollutants

5 CCR 15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals

Ed. Code 38090-38095 Cafeterias; funds and accounts

Ed. Code 38100-38103 Cafeterias; allocation of charges

Ed. Code 42646 Alternate payroll procedure

Ed. Code 45103.5 Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions

Ed. Code 49010 Educational activity; definition

Ed. Code 49431 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49501.5-49506 School Meals

Ed. Code 49550.3-49562 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49554 Contract for services

Ed. Code 49580-49581 Food recovery program

F&A Code 58595 Preference for California-grown agricultural products

F&A Code 58596.1-58596.5 Buy American Food Act; purchase of nondomestic agricultural food
products

H&S Code 113700-114437 California Retail Food Code; sanitation and safety requirements

Pub. Cont. Code 2000-2002 Responsive bidders

Pub. Cont. Code 20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest
responsible bidder

Pub. Cont. Code 3410 U.S. produce and processed foods

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

2 CFR 200 Appendix VII Indirect cost proposals

2 CFR 200.318-200.326 Procurement standards

2 CFR 200.400-200.475 Cost principles

2 CFR 200.56 Indirect costs; definition

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1771-1793 Child Nutrition Act

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program

7 CFR 245.8 Nondiscrimination practices for students eligible for free and reduced price
meal and free milk

7 CFR 250.1-250.70 USDA foods

701

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43DD33D04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43DEE1844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42646.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49431.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49554.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=13.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAC&sectionNum=58595.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAC&division=21.&title=&part=1.&chapter=8.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=HSC&division=104.&title=&part=7.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20111.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3410.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13A&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-210
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-245/section-245.8


Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Dept of Social Services Publication Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual

California Department of Education Publication Professional Standards in the SNPs, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-13-
2020, rev. January 2022

California Department of Education Publication Food Service Management Company Contract Preapproval, NSD
Management Bulletin, SNP-05-2023, March 2023

California Department of Education Publication
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, Clarification on
Collection of Delinquent Meal Payments, and Excess Student Account
Balances, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-04-2023, July 2023

California Department of Education Publication Excess Net Cash Resources – Revised to Increase Limitation, NSD
Management Bulletin, SNP-04-2022, May 2022

California Department of Education Publication Pricing of Adult Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast
Programs, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-04-2021, August 2021

California Department of Education Publication Procuring and Monitoring of Food Service Management Contracts, NSD
Management Bulletin, SNP-13-2015, January 2015

California Department of Education Publication Cafeteria Funds - Allowable Uses, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-05-
2020, February 2020

California Department of Education Publication Storage and Inventory Management of U.S. Department of Agriculture
Foods, NSD Management Bulletin, FDP-01-2018, January 2018

California Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Buy American and the Agriculture Improvement Act of 2018, SP-32-2019,
August 2019

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Procuring Local Foods for Child Nutrition Programs, January 2022

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities, SP
60-2016, September 2016

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Compliance with and Enforcement of the Buy American Provision in the
National School Lunch Program, SP-38-2017, June 2017

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Discretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal
Programs, SP 17-2014, January 2014

U.S. Dept of Agriculture Publication School Meals - FAQs

Website CalRecycle, Resources for Local Education Agencies: K-12 Public Schools
and School Districts

Website California Department of Education, Accounting

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Website California Department of Social Services

Website California Department of Education, School Nutrition

Website California School Nutrition Association

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

702

https://www.cdss.ca.gov/cacfp/resources/cacfp-administrative-manual
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp132020.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp052523.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp042023.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp042022.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp042021.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp132015.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp052020.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/fd/mbfdp012018.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/buy-american-and-agriculture-improvement-act
https://www.fns.usda.gov/f2s/procuring-local-foods
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/unpaid-meal-charges-local-meal-charge-policies
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/indirect-cost-guidance
https://www.fns.usda.gov/nslp/compliance-enforcement-buy-american
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/discretionary-elimination-reduced-price-charges-school-meal-programs
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/school-meals-faqs
https://calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/slcp/schools/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.dss.cahwnet.gov
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/
http://www.calsna.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==


1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3110 Transfer Of Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3312 Contracts

3314.2 Revolving Funds

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3510 Green School Operations

3511 Energy And Water Management

3511 Energy And Water Management

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3515.6 Criminal Background Checks For Contractors

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

3554-E PDF(1) Other Food Sales

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112.4 Health Examinations

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.4 Health Examinations

4231 Staff Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

703

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wGJJaQGnX6Y6rafyiuI4Iw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z05kjfeDdOpUIOmxqBPz2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8IoJJAjMzlslshOWslsh7QoMplusOtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FuGbUGslshC8pLIUk1WaGu2jQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PgxJhplusCKKesNPYQ4aXN6sA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=75OG8ER1xGSFT6dZBhqsLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SQP1boTqlkYy9HP0Z2OxXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F2w88plushKfZ45jRBB3dqhfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7UhHYplus1alK4VqcUSRo9HFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LBnwh6896SKjJpplusW0YEM7Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh23goxgT99IvsfkPmn7cLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VnfslshWdq0B3FdCiPhto850A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dLmEtnu93X37hoahscIWslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lM5v3M94DfhQbo3BygneVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fMq1dbWqBN13PpTecplussN2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshYxKPcUw8SB4OdYdRBZ68w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mNYOlITC2hFPGRQsbslshG9aA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bR5qqdVsXlJdzqLOF9pZxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJ4jIslsh1bn6XplusKQzpqxAsEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==


4312.4 Health Examinations

4331 Staff Development

5030 Student Wellness

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

704

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==


Regulation 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria FundRegulation 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/09/2022

Payments for Meals

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a system for accurately recording payments received and tracking
meals provided to each student.

At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's meal payment
policies through multiple methods, including, but not limited to:

1. Explaining the meal charge policy within registration materials provided to parents/guardians at the start of the
school year
 

2. Including the policy in print versions of student handbooks, if provided to parents/guardians annually
 

3. Providing the policy whenever parents/guardians are notified regarding the application process for free and
reduced-price meals, such as in the distribution of eligibility forms at the start of the school year
 

4. Posting the policy on the district's website

Reimbursement Claims

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the number of meals served each day by school site and by
category of free and reduced-price meals. The Superintendent or designee shall submit reimbursement claims for
school meals to the California Department of Education (CDE) using the online Child Nutrition Information and
Payment System.

Minimizing Food Waste and Reducing Food Insecurity

The District shall take steps to minimize food waste and reduce food insecurity in district schools.  (Health and Safety
Code 114079)

The Superintendent or designee shall arrange to recover the maximum amount of edible food that would otherwise
be disposed for donation to a local food recovery organization.  (14 CCR 18991.3)

The district may also provide sharing tables where students and staff may return appropriate unused cafeteria food
items to be made available to students during the course of a regular school meal time. If food on the sharing tables
is not taken by a student, the school cafeteria may donate the food to a food bank or any other nonprofit charitable
organization.  (Health and Safety Code 114079)

Food that may be donated includes prepackaged, nonpotentially hazardous food with the packaging still intact and in
good condition, whole uncut produce that complies with Health and Safety Code 113992, unopened bags of sliced
fruit, unopened containers of milk that are immediately stored in a cooling bin maintained at 41 degrees Fahrenheit
or below, and perishable prepackaged food if it is placed in a proper temperature-controlled environment. The
preparation, safety, and donation of food shall be consistent with Health and Safety Code 113980.  (Health and
Safety Code 114079)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records related to edible food recovery including a list of each food
recovery service or organization that collects or receives the district's edible food, contact information for the service
or organization, the types of food, frequency, and quantity that will be collected or hauled by the district, and a copy
of contracts or written agreements between the district and food recovery services or organizations.  (14 CCR
18991.4)

Cafeteria Fund and Account

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

705



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

All proceeds from food sales and other services offered by the cafeteria shall be deposited in the cafeteria fund as
provided by law.  (Education Code 38090, 38093)

The cafeteria fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the Governing Board as necessary for the
operation of school cafeterias in accordance with Education Code 38100-38103, 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix VII, and
the California School Accounting Manual.

The district may use cafeteria funds to supplement the provision of a nutritionally adequate breakfast and/or lunch
to district students when permitted by law.

Any charges to, or transfers from, a food service program shall be dated and accompanied by a written explanation of
the purpose of and basis for the expenditure.  (Education Code 38101)

Indirect costs charged to the food service program shall be based on either the district's prior year indirect cost rate
as approved by CDE or the statewide average approved indirect cost rate for the second prior fiscal year, whichever
is less.  (Education Code 38101)

Net cash resources in the nonprofit school food service shall not exceed six months' average expenditures.  (7 CFR
210.14, 220.7)

U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods

The district shall provide facilities for the storage and control of foods received through the U.S. Department of
Agriculture (USDA) that protect against theft, spoilage, damage, or other loss. Such storage facilities shall maintain
donated foods in sanitary conditions, at the proper temperature and humidity, and with adequate air circulation. The
district shall comply with all federal, state, or local requirements related to food safety and health and procedures for
responding to a food recall, as applicable, and shall obtain all required health inspections.  (7 CFR 250.14)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain inventories of USDA foods in accordance with 7 CFR 250.59 and CDE
procedures, and shall ensure that foods are used before their expiration dates.

USDA donated foods shall be used in school lunches as far as practicable. USDA foods also may be used in other
nonprofit food service activities, including, but not limited to, school breakfasts or other meals, a la carte foods sold
to students, meals served to adults directly involved in the operation and administration of the food service and to
other school staff, and training in nutrition, health, food service, or general home economics instruction for students,
provided that any revenues from such activities accrue to the district's nonprofit food service account.  (7 CFR
250.59)

Contracts with Outside Services

The term of any contract for food service management or consulting services shall not exceed one year. Any renewal
of the contract or further requests for proposals to provide such services shall be considered on a year-to-year basis.
 (Education Code 45103.5; 7 CFR 210.16)

Any contract for management of the food service operation shall be approved by CDE and comply with the
conditions in Education Code 49554 and 7 CFR 210.16 as applicable. The district shall retain control of the quality,
extent, and general nature of its food services.  (Education Code 49554; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16)

Any contract for consulting services shall not result in the supervision of food service classified staff by the
management consultant, nor shall it result in the elimination of any food service classified staff or position or have
any adverse effect on the wages, benefits, or other terms and conditions of employment of classified food service
staff or positions. All persons providing consulting services shall be subject to applicable employment conditions
related to health and safety as listed in Education Code 45103.5.  (Education Code 45103.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the

706



policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

12 CCR 18928-18998.4 Short-lived climate pollutants

5 CCR 15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals

Ed. Code 38090-38095 Cafeterias; funds and accounts

Ed. Code 38100-38103 Cafeterias; allocation of charges

Ed. Code 42646 Alternate payroll procedure

Ed. Code 45103.5 Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions

Ed. Code 49010 Educational activity; definition

Ed. Code 49431 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49501.5-49506 School Meals

Ed. Code 49550.3-49562 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49554 Contract for services

Ed. Code 49580-49581 Food recovery program

F&A Code 58595 Preference for California-grown agricultural products

F&A Code 58596.1-58596.5 Buy American Food Act; purchase of nondomestic agricultural food
products

H&S Code 113700-114437 California Retail Food Code; sanitation and safety requirements

Pub. Cont. Code 2000-2002 Responsive bidders

Pub. Cont. Code 20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest
responsible bidder

Pub. Cont. Code 3410 U.S. produce and processed foods

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

2 CFR 200 Appendix VII Indirect cost proposals

2 CFR 200.318-200.326 Procurement standards

2 CFR 200.400-200.475 Cost principles

2 CFR 200.56 Indirect costs; definition

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1771-1793 Child Nutrition Act

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program

7 CFR 245.8 Nondiscrimination practices for students eligible for free and reduced price
meal and free milk

7 CFR 250.1-250.70 USDA foods

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Dept of Social Services Publication Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual

California Department of Education Publication Professional Standards in the SNPs, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-13-
2020, rev. January 2022

California Department of Education Publication Food Service Management Company Contract Preapproval, NSD
Management Bulletin, SNP-05-2023, March 2023

707

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43DD33D04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43DEE1844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42646.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49431.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49554.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=13.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAC&sectionNum=58595.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAC&division=21.&title=&part=1.&chapter=8.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=HSC&division=104.&title=&part=7.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20111.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3410.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13A&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-210
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-245/section-245.8
https://www.cdss.ca.gov/cacfp/resources/cacfp-administrative-manual
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp132020.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp052523.asp


California Department of Education Publication
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, Clarification on
Collection of Delinquent Meal Payments, and Excess Student Account
Balances, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-04-2023, July 2023

California Department of Education Publication Excess Net Cash Resources – Revised to Increase Limitation, NSD
Management Bulletin, SNP-04-2022, May 2022

California Department of Education Publication Pricing of Adult Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast
Programs, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-04-2021, August 2021

California Department of Education Publication Procuring and Monitoring of Food Service Management Contracts, NSD
Management Bulletin, SNP-13-2015, January 2015

California Department of Education Publication Cafeteria Funds - Allowable Uses, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-05-
2020, February 2020

California Department of Education Publication Storage and Inventory Management of U.S. Department of Agriculture
Foods, NSD Management Bulletin, FDP-01-2018, January 2018

California Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Buy American and the Agriculture Improvement Act of 2018, SP-32-2019,
August 2019

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Procuring Local Foods for Child Nutrition Programs, January 2022

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities, SP
60-2016, September 2016

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Compliance with and Enforcement of the Buy American Provision in the
National School Lunch Program, SP-38-2017, June 2017

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Discretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal
Programs, SP 17-2014, January 2014

U.S. Dept of Agriculture Publication School Meals - FAQs

Website CalRecycle, Resources for Local Education Agencies: K-12 Public Schools
and School Districts

Website California Department of Education, Accounting

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Website California Department of Social Services

Website California Department of Education, School Nutrition

Website California School Nutrition Association

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3100 Budget

708

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp042023.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp042022.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp042021.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp132015.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp052020.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/fd/mbfdp012018.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/buy-american-and-agriculture-improvement-act
https://www.fns.usda.gov/f2s/procuring-local-foods
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/unpaid-meal-charges-local-meal-charge-policies
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/indirect-cost-guidance
https://www.fns.usda.gov/nslp/compliance-enforcement-buy-american
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/discretionary-elimination-reduced-price-charges-school-meal-programs
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/school-meals-faqs
https://calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/slcp/schools/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.dss.cahwnet.gov
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/
http://www.calsna.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==


3100 Budget

3110 Transfer Of Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3312 Contracts

3314.2 Revolving Funds

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3510 Green School Operations

3511 Energy And Water Management

3511 Energy And Water Management

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3515.6 Criminal Background Checks For Contractors

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

3554-E PDF(1) Other Food Sales

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112.4 Health Examinations

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.4 Health Examinations

4231 Staff Development

4312.4 Health Examinations

4331 Staff Development

5030 Student Wellness

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

709

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wGJJaQGnX6Y6rafyiuI4Iw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z05kjfeDdOpUIOmxqBPz2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8IoJJAjMzlslshOWslsh7QoMplusOtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FuGbUGslshC8pLIUk1WaGu2jQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PgxJhplusCKKesNPYQ4aXN6sA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=75OG8ER1xGSFT6dZBhqsLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SQP1boTqlkYy9HP0Z2OxXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F2w88plushKfZ45jRBB3dqhfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7UhHYplus1alK4VqcUSRo9HFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LBnwh6896SKjJpplusW0YEM7Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh23goxgT99IvsfkPmn7cLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VnfslshWdq0B3FdCiPhto850A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dLmEtnu93X37hoahscIWslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lM5v3M94DfhQbo3BygneVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fMq1dbWqBN13PpTecplussN2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshYxKPcUw8SB4OdYdRBZ68w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mNYOlITC2hFPGRQsbslshG9aA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bR5qqdVsXlJdzqLOF9pZxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJ4jIslsh1bn6XplusKQzpqxAsEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==


5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

710

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==


Policy 3553: Free And Reduced Price MealsPolicy 3553: Free And Reduced Price Meals Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/09/2022

The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, health and well-being, and
learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and encourage the participation of all
students in the district's food service program.

Each school day, the district shall make available, free of charge, one nutritionally adequate breakfast and one
nutritionally adequate lunch for any student who requests a meal.  (Education Code 49501.5)

After a student has been provided a school meal at no cost, the district may sell the student the entrée from an
additional nutritiously adequate meal that qualifies for federal reimbursement, from the same meal service.
 (Education Code 49431)

To provide optimal nutrition and ensure that schools receive maximum federal meal reimbursement, the
Superintendent or designee shall assess the eligibility of district schools to operate a federal universal meal service
provision, such as Provision 2 or the Community Eligibility Provision, pursuant to 42 USC 1759a. The Superintendent
or designee shall submit an application to operate a federal universal meal provision to the California Department of
Education (CDE) on behalf of any district school that meets the definition of a "high poverty school."  (Education
Code 49564.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals served under the school nutrition program meet applicable
state and/or federal nutritional standards, as specified in law and district-adopted guidelines.

The Board shall approve, and shall submit to CDE for approval, a plan that ensures that students eligible to receive
free or reduced-price meals are not treated differently from other students and that meets other requirements
specified in Education Code 49557.

Confidentiality/Release of Records

All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program shall be confidential
and may not be disclosed except as provided by law and authorized by the Board or pursuant to a court order.
 (Education Code 49558)

The Board authorizes designated employees to use records pertaining to an individual student's eligibility for the free
and reduced-price meal program for the following purposes:  (Education Code 49558)

1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data

2. Identification of students eligible for services under the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act
pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6576

3. Facilitation of targeted educational services and supports to individual students based on the local control
accountability plan

If a student transfers from the district to another district, charter school, county office of education program, or
private school, the Superintendent or designee may share the student's meal eligibility information to the other
educational agency to assist that other educational agency in ensuring that the student continues to receive school
meals.

The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student participating in the free or
reduced-price meal program to another school district, charter school, or county office of education that is serving a
student living in the same household for purposes related to program eligibility and data used in local control funding

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

711



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

formula (LCFF) calculations.  (Education Code 49558)

The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student participating in the free or
reduced-price meal program to the Superintendent of Public Instruction for purposes of determining allocations
under the LCFF and for assessing accountability of that funding.  (Education Code 49558)

The Superintendent or designee may release information on the school lunch program application to the local agency
that determines eligibility for participation in the Medi-Cal program if the student has been approved for free meals
or, if included in the agreement with the local agency, for reduced-price meals. The Superintendent or designee also
may release information on the school lunch application to the local agency that determines eligibility for CalFresh or
another nutrition assistance program authorized under 7 CFR 210.1 if the student has been approved for free or
reduced-price meals. Information may be released for these purposes only if the student's parent/guardian consents
to the sharing of information and the district has entered into a memorandum of understanding with the local agency
which, at a minimum, includes the roles and responsibilities of the district and local agency and the process for
sharing the information. After sharing information with the local agency for purposes of determining eligibility for
that program, no further information shall be shared unless otherwise authorized by law.  (Education Code 49557.2,
49557.3, 49558)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 15510 Mandatory meals for needy students

5 CCR 15530-15535 Nutrition education

5 CCR 15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49501.5-49506 School Meals

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Nutrition

Ed. Code 49530-49536 Child Nutrition Act

Ed. Code 49547-49548.3 Comprehensive nutrition services

Ed. Code 49550.3-49562 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49564.3 High-poverty schools; universal meal service

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 6301-6576 Title I Improving the Academic Achievement of the Disadvantaged

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1771-1791 Child nutrition

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program

7 CFR 220.10-220.21 National School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 245.1-245.13 Eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Updated Guidance on Sharing of School Meal Applications and the Passing
of Assembly Bill 1599, Management Bulletin SNP-12-2015, July 2015

712

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I43C602534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43CA6F204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43CC1CD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43DD33D04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43DEE1844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49564.3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-210
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp122015.asp


California Department of Education Publication
Clarification on the Sharing of Individual Student Eligibility Information for
Local Control and Accountability Plan Purposes, Management Bulletin SNP-
02-2018, May 2018

CSBA Publication Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student
Wellness Policies, 2012

CSBA Publication Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource
Guide, April 2006

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast
Programs, Summer 2002

U.S. Dept of Agriculture Publication Eligibility Manual for School Meals: Determining and Verifying Eligibility,
July 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Website Nourish California

Website California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition)

Website California Department of Education, School Nutrition

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3250 Transportation Fees

3250 Transportation Fees

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

3554-E PDF(1) Other Food Sales

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

713

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp022018.asp
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/ConditionsofChildren/201211MonitoringForSuccess.ashx?la=en&rev=90a8b252b84a4e80b2ebd6c1a6899865
https://www.csba.org/~/~/media/B5947DF3DE58432C9B038C9C38360684.ashx
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/provision-2-guidance-national-school-lunch-and-school-breakfast-programs
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/eligibility-manual-school-meals
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.cfpa.net
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh6SlFyzKkH9DdA9QHKau7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6kK88uM9U9OdlnxyjvxVvw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fMq1dbWqBN13PpTecplussN2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshYxKPcUw8SB4OdYdRBZ68w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mNYOlITC2hFPGRQsbslshG9aA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bR5qqdVsXlJdzqLOF9pZxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJ4jIslsh1bn6XplusKQzpqxAsEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==


4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

5030 Student Wellness

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6177 Summer Learning Programs

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

714

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3HDWMAslshfCqRlzH0hGxAVUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DI6ywVuc7JyQgdek6cc8PQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yb0tAplusotzAvMSWz7HdlHHg==


Regulation 3553: Free And Reduced Price MealsRegulation 3553: Free And Reduced Price Meals Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/09/2022

Applications

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's application form for free and reduced-price meals and
related materials include the statements specified in Education Code 49557 and 7 CFR 245.5. The district's
application packet shall include the notifications and information listed in Education Code 49557.2.

The application form and related information shall be distributed in paper form to all parents/guardians at the
beginning of each school year and shall be available to students at all times during the school day.  (Education Code
48980, 49520, 49557; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.5)

In addition, the district application form for free and reduced price meals shall be available online. The online
application form shall require completion of only those questions necessary for determining eligibility, contain clear
instructions for families that are experiencing homelessness or who are migratory and comply with other
requirements specified in Education Code 49557.

An application form and related information shall also be provided whenever a new student is enrolled.

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall send a public release, containing the same
information supplied to parents/guardians and including eligibility criteria, to local media, the local unemployment
office, and any major employers in the district attendance area contemplating large layoffs. Copies of the public
release shall be made available upon request to any interested person.  (7 CFR 245.5)

Eligibility

The Superintendent or designee shall determine students' eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program
based on the criteria specified in 42 USC 1758 and 1773 and 7 CFR 245.1-245.13 and made available by the
California Department of Education.

Participants in the CalFresh, California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKS), and Medi-Cal
programs shall be directly certified for enrollment in the free and reduced-price meal program without further
application. Participants in other state or federal programs may be directly certified when authorized by law.
 (Education Code 49561, 49562; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.6)

Verification of Eligibility

Not later than November 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the eligibility of a sample of
household applications approved for the school year in accordance with the sample sizes and procedures specified in
42 USC 1758 and 7 CFR 245.6a.

If the review indicates that the initial eligibility determination is correct, the Superintendent or designee shall verify
the approved household application. If the review indicates that the initial eligibility determination is incorrect, the
Superintendent or designee shall:  (42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.6a)

1. If the eligibility status changes from reduced price to free, make the increased benefits immediately available
and notify the household of the change in benefits
 

2. If the eligibility status changes from free to reduced price, first verify the application, then notify the household
of the correct eligibility status, and, when required by law, send a notice of adverse action as described below
 

3. If the eligibility status changes from free or reduced price to paid, send the household a notice of adverse
action as described below

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

715



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

If, as a result of verification activities, the eligibility of a household that is receiving free or reduced-price benefits
cannot be confirmed, or if the household fails to cooperate with verification efforts, the Superintendent or designee
shall reduce or terminate benefits, as applicable, and shall properly document and retain on file in the district the
reasons for the household's ineligibility. At least 10 days prior to the actual reduction or termination, the
Superintendent or designee shall send a notice of adverse action to the household. The notice shall advise the
household of:  (7 CFR 245.6a)

1. The change and the reasons for the change
 

2. The right to appeal, when the appeal must be filed to ensure continued benefits while awaiting a hearing and
decision, and instructions on how to appeal
 

3. The right to reapply at any time during the school year

Confidentiality/Release of Records

The Superintendent designates the following district employee(s) to disclose a student's name and eligibility status
from individual meal records only for the purpose of disaggregation of academic achievement data and/or the
provision of services under the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6576.

_____________________________________
(title or position)

In permitting the disclosure of student records for such purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that:
(Education Code 49558)

1. No individual indicators of participation in the free and reduced-price meal program are maintained in the
permanent records of any student if not otherwise allowed by law
 

2. Information regarding individual student participation in the free and reduced-price meal program is not
publicly released
 

3. All other confidentiality provisions required by law are met
 

4. Information collected regarding individual students certified to participate in the free and reduced-price meal
program is destroyed when no longer needed for its intended purpose

Nondiscrimination Plan

In implementing the district's food service programs for students who are eligible to receive free or reduced-price
meals, the district shall ensure the following:  (Education Code 49557; 42 USC 1758)

1. The names of the students shall not be published, posted, or announced in any manner, or used for any
purpose other than the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, unless otherwise provided by
law
 

2. There shall be no overt identification of any of the students by the use of special tokens or tickets or by any
other means
 

3. The students shall not be required to work for their meals
 

4. The students shall not be required to use a separate dining area, go through a separate serving line or entrance,
or consume their meals at a different time

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

716



State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 15510 Mandatory meals for needy students

5 CCR 15530-15535 Nutrition education

5 CCR 15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49501.5-49506 School Meals

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Nutrition

Ed. Code 49530-49536 Child Nutrition Act

Ed. Code 49547-49548.3 Comprehensive nutrition services

Ed. Code 49550.3-49562 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 49564.3 High-poverty schools; universal meal service

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 6301-6576 Title I Improving the Academic Achievement of the Disadvantaged

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1771-1791 Child nutrition

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program

7 CFR 220.10-220.21 National School Breakfast Program

7 CFR 245.1-245.13 Eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Updated Guidance on Sharing of School Meal Applications and the Passing
of Assembly Bill 1599, Management Bulletin SNP-12-2015, July 2015

California Department of Education Publication
Clarification on the Sharing of Individual Student Eligibility Information for
Local Control and Accountability Plan Purposes, Management Bulletin SNP-
02-2018, May 2018

CSBA Publication Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student
Wellness Policies, 2012

CSBA Publication Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource
Guide, April 2006

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast
Programs, Summer 2002

U.S. Dept of Agriculture Publication Eligibility Manual for School Meals: Determining and Verifying Eligibility,
July 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Website Nourish California

Website California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition)

Website California Department of Education, School Nutrition

Website CSBA

717

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I43C602534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43CA6F204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43CC1CD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43DD33D04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I43DEE1844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=10.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49564.3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-210
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp122015.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/mbsnp022018.asp
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/ConditionsofChildren/201211MonitoringForSuccess.ashx?la=en&rev=90a8b252b84a4e80b2ebd6c1a6899865
https://www.csba.org/~/~/media/B5947DF3DE58432C9B038C9C38360684.ashx
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/provision-2-guidance-national-school-lunch-and-school-breakfast-programs
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cn/eligibility-manual-school-meals
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.cfpa.net
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu/sn/
http://www.csba.org


Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3250 Transportation Fees

3250 Transportation Fees

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

3554-E PDF(1) Other Food Sales

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

5030 Student Wellness

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148 Child Care And Development

718

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh6SlFyzKkH9DdA9QHKau7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6kK88uM9U9OdlnxyjvxVvw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fMq1dbWqBN13PpTecplussN2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshYxKPcUw8SB4OdYdRBZ68w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mNYOlITC2hFPGRQsbslshG9aA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bR5qqdVsXlJdzqLOF9pZxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJ4jIslsh1bn6XplusKQzpqxAsEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3HDWMAslshfCqRlzH0hGxAVUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DI6ywVuc7JyQgdek6cc8PQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==


5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6177 Summer Learning Programs

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

719

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yb0tAplusotzAvMSWz7HdlHHg==


Policy 4111: Recruitment And SelectionPolicy 4111: Recruitment And Selection Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018

The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to effectively carry out the district's
vision, mission, and goals, and believes that students benefit when district staff reflects the racial, ethnic, linguistic,
and cultural diversity of the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop equitable, fair, and transparent recruitment and selection processes
and procedures that ensure individuals are selected for employment in the district based on demonstrated
knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or unlawful discrimination.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall, through the recruitment and selection processes and procedures,
seek to establish and maintain a diverse staff, including the active recruitment from institutions and organizations
that serve populations underrepresented among district employees.

When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review, as appropriate, the job description for the
position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the position. The Superintendent or
designee shall also disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of candidates.

When posting an employment opportunity, the Superintendent or designee shall include the pay scale for the open
position.  (Labor Code 432.2)

The Superintendent shall develop and maintain appropriate hiring procedures to identify the best possible candidates
for a position. In doing so, an interview committee may be established to rank candidates and recommend finalists.
During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or demonstrate how they will be able to perform the
duties of the job. All discussions and recommendations shall be confidential and consistent with law.

No inquiry shall be made about any information prohibited by state or federal nondiscrimination laws.

Unless otherwise provided for in law, the district may not discriminate against a person in hiring based on the
person's use of cannabis off the job and away from the workplace, including that the district may not request
information from an applicant related to the applicant's prior use of cannabis, apart from the applicant's criminal
history, or penalize an applicant based on a drug screening which finds that the applicant has nonpsychoactive
cannabis metabolites in the applicant's hair, blood, urine, or other bodily fluid.  (Government Code 12954)

However, the district retains the right to maintain drug-free schools or prohibit employees from possessing, being
impaired by, or using cannabis while on the job.  (Government Code 12954)

The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire, orally or in writing, about an applicant's salary history information,
including compensation and benefits. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall not rely on salary history
information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment to an applicant or the salary to offer. However,
the Superintendent or designee may consider salary information that is disclosable under state or federal law or that
the applicant discloses voluntarily and without prompting.  (Labor Code 432.3)

For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate who meets all
qualifications established by law and the Board for the position. No person shall be employed by the Board without
the recommendation or endorsement of the Superintendent or designee.

Incentives

With Board approval and in accordance with district needs and any applicable collective bargaining agreements, the
district may provide incentives to recruit teachers, administrators, or other employees, such as signing bonuses,
assistance with beginning teacher induction and/or credential costs, mentoring, additional compensation, and/or
subsidized housing. 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

720



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 35035 Powers and duties of the superintendent; transfer authority

Ed. Code 44066 Limitations on certification requirements

Ed. Code 44259 Teaching credential, exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements

Ed. Code 44750 Teacher recruitment resource center

Ed. Code 44830-44831 Employment of certificated persons

Ed. Code 44858 Age or marital status in certificated positions

Ed. Code 44859 Prohibition against certain rules and regulations regarding residency

Ed. Code 45103-45139 Employment; classified employees

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 815.2 Liability of public entities and public employees

H&S Code 53570-53574 Teacher Housing Act of 2016

Lab. Code 432.3 Salary information

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

28 CFR 35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

34 CFR 106.51-106.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program
or activities

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

5 USC 552 Freedom of Information Act

8 USC 1324a Unlawful employment of aliens

8 USC 1324b Unfair immigration related employment practices

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Commission on Teacher Credentialing
Publication Strategic Plan: Ensuring Educator Excellence, 2023

California County Superintendents Publication Teacher Recruitment in California: An Analysis of Effective Strategies,
Research Brief, Veritas Research and Evaluation Group, October 2017

California Department of Education Publication How to Increase the Diversity of California’s Educator Workforce, April
2022

Court Decision C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al. (2012) 138
Cal.Rptr.3d 1

Ctr for Cities + Schools, cityLAB & Terner Ctr Pub Education Workforce Housing in California: Developing the 21st Century
Campus, 2021

Ctr for Cities + Schools, cityLAB & Terner Ctr Pub Education Workforce Housing in California: The Handbook

Website University of California Los Angeles, cityLAB

721

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35035.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44066.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44259.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.4.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44858.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44859.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=815.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=31.&title=&part=14.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=432.3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:5 section:552 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title5-section552)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:8 section:1324a edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1324a)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:8 section:1324b edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1324b)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/docs/default-source/commission/files/ctc-strategic-plan.pdf?sfvrsn=baef20b1_12
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/documents/dtwcouncilreportapril22.pdf
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/wp-content/uploads/Report-Education-Workforce-Housing-in-CaliforniaCCS-cityLAB-Terner-Center2022-1.pdf
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/wp-content/uploads/Handbook-Education-Workforce-Housing-in-CaliforniacityLAB-CCS-Terner-Center-2022.pdf
https://www.citylab.ucla.edu/


Website University of California Berkeley, Terner Center for Housing Innovation

Website University of California Berkeley, Center for Cities + Schools

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website Education Job Opportunities Information Network

Website Teach USA

Website California County Superintendents

Website California Civil Rights Department

Website U.S. Department of Education

Website Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0000 Vision

0200 Goals For The School District

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

2230 Representative And Deliberative Groups

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4100 Certificated Personnel

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.21 Interns

4112.21 Interns

4112.22 Staff Teaching English Learners

4112.23 Special Education Staff

4112.61 Employment References

4112.61 Employment References

4112.8 Employment Of Relatives

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

722

https://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.edjoin.org
http://culturalvistas.org/programs/us/teach-usa
http://ccsesa.org/recruit
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.eeoc.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8WZCIZ8oG2xBqtK4ApFplus0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y0lPgUQGFYjslshDyVbAGuO8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FmR0VzEiZmPJbzwslshtepjSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uBcQ4eaeRFHuUSheEP8hTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HO2TobjEaXImT4CZqcERQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yCe8C7kWe75gfF55mrNriw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aY2FcIbUQ6NeT56IXs1dVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i0usZRZ9FHC2qN5CKMopNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2AwEPXWWMy8yHNBDMCPeWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q1AdCLjYQPQc6vK8YYydYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fLZwTXXe53E9GIplusMgcI7Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LZE76ianfzktE7iUQcoWvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=V3AgdDGxpDqX0vS5szDxWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==


4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.61 Employment References

4212.61 Employment References

4212.8 Employment Of Relatives

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.1 Contracts

4312.61 Employment References

4312.61 Employment References

4312.8 Employment Of Relatives

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4331 Staff Development

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

9000 Role Of The Board

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

723

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6TogWNds3iE3eJAPzDkczg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4q0UEwAFzydTuBL3yuu5oA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qlCwE76ui18wkRF15t2z4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4NfXtLOJyGN9J9q6fiebJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1E1XGgFCZ31ZqJQhL7tkEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njqkN16qoZXT6lzB4G0ZslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gdtps7Z2fZ9I0mcPZhfTiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=a1JMEyKlddqnlFHrKQEKxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshe87zq36hFrGUQHdbi0ejA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xh8UUDL6WCw8POuAsCslshQBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==


Regulation 4112.5: Criminal Record CheckRegulation 4112.5: Criminal Record Check Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Superintendent or designee shall not hire or retain in employment, in a certificated or classified position, a
person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c), a
controlled substance offense as defined in Education Code 44011, or a sex offense as defined in Education Code
44010. However, the Superintendent or designee shall not deny or terminate employment solely on the basis that
the person has been:  (Education Code 44830.1, 44836, 45122.1, 45123)

1. Convicted of a violent or serious felony, controlled substance offense, or sex offense, and the conviction is
reversed and the person is acquitted of the offense in a new trial or the charges against the person are
dismissed, unless the sex offense for which the conviction is dismissed pursuant to Penal Code 1203.4 involves
a victim who was a minor
 

2. Convicted of a violent or serious felony and has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation or a pardon
 

3. Convicted of a serious felony, that is not also a violent felony, and has proven to the sentencing court that
rehabilitation for purposes of school employment has been attained for at least one year
 

4. Convicted of a controlled substance offense and is applying for or is employed in a certificated position and
has a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing
 

5. Convicted of a controlled substance offense and is applying for or is employed in a classified position and has
been determined by the Governing Board, from the evidence presented, to have been rehabilitated for at least
five years

A certificated employee may be hired by the district without obtaining a criminal record summary if that employee is
employed as a certificated employee in another California school district and became a permanent employee of
another California school district as of October 1, 1997.  (Education Code 44830.1, 44836)

The Superintendent or designee shall not issue a temporary certificate of clearance to a person whose application for
a credential, certificate, or permit is being processed by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing if that person has
been convicted of a violent or serious felony, unless the person is otherwise exempt pursuant to Education Code
44332.6 or 44830.1.  (Education Code 44332.5, 44332.6)

Pre-Employment Record Check

The Superintendent or designee shall require each person to be employed by the district to submit fingerprints
electronically through the Live Scan system so that a criminal record check may be conducted by the Department of
Justice (DOJ). The Superintendent or designee shall provide the applicant with a Live Scan request form and a list of
nearby Live Scan locations.

When a person is applying for a classified position, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the DOJ also
obtain a criminal record check through the Federal Bureau of Investigation whenever the applicant meets one of the
following conditions:  (Education Code 45125)

1. The applicant has not resided in California for at least one year immediately preceding the application for
employment.
 

2. The applicant has resided in California for more than one year, but less than seven years, and the DOJ has
ascertained that the person was convicted of a sex offense where the victim was a minor or a drug offense
where an element of the offense is either the distribution to or the use of a controlled substance by a minor.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ when an applicant who has submitted fingerprints
to the DOJ is not subsequently employed by the district.  (Penal Code 11105.2)

Subsequent Arrest Notification

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

724



The Superintendent or designee shall enter into a contract with the DOJ to receive notification of subsequent arrests
resulting in conviction of any person whose fingerprints have been submitted to the DOJ.  (Education Code 44830.1,
45125; Penal Code 11105.2)

Upon telephone or email notification by the DOJ that a current temporary employee, substitute employee, or
probationary employee serving before March 15 of the employee's second probationary year has been convicted of
a violent or serious felony, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place that employee on leave without
pay.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

When the district receives written electronic notification by the DOJ of the fact of conviction, the temporary
employee, substitute employee, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of the employee's second
probationary year shall be terminated automatically unless the employee challenges the DOJ record and the DOJ
withdraws its notification in writing. Upon receipt of the written withdrawal of notification by the DOJ, the
Superintendent or designee shall immediately reinstate the employee with full restoration of salary and benefits for
the period of time from the suspension without pay to the reinstatement if the employee is still employed by the
district.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a person whose fingerprints are
maintained by the DOJ is terminated.  (Penal Code 11105.2)

Notification of Applicant/Employee

The Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously furnish a copy of any DOJ notification to the applicant or
employee to whom it relates if the information is a basis for an adverse employment decision. The copy shall be
delivered in person or to the last contact information provided by the applicant or employee.  (Penal Code 11105,
11105.2)

Maintenance of Records

The Superintendent shall designate at least one custodian of records who shall be responsible for the security,
storage, dissemination, and destruction of all Criminal Offender Record Information (CORI) furnished to the district
and shall serve as the primary contact for the DOJ for any related issues.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

An employee designated as custodian of records shall receive a criminal background check clearance from the DOJ
prior to serving in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

The custodian of records shall sign and return to the DOJ the Employee Statement Form acknowledging an
understanding of the laws prohibiting misuse of CORI. In addition, the custodian of records shall ensure that any
individual with access to CORI has on file a signed Employee Statement Form.

To ensure its confidentiality, CORI shall be accessible only to the custodian of records and shall be kept in a locked
file separate from other files. CORI shall be used only for the purpose for which it is requested and its contents shall
not be disclosed or reproduced.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45125)

Once a hiring determination is made, the applicant's CORI shall be destroyed to the extent that the identity of the
individual can no longer be reasonably ascertained.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45125; 11 CCR 708)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a designated custodian of records
ceases to serve in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

Interagency Agreement

Subject to an interagency agreement with other school districts, the district shall submit and receive CORI on behalf
of all participating districts.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

Upon receipt from the DOJ of a report of conviction of a serious or violent felony, the district shall communicate
that fact to participating districts and shall remove the affected employee from the common list of persons eligible

725



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

for employment. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

In addition, upon receipt from the DOJ of a criminal history record or report of subsequent arrest for any person on a
common list of persons eligible for employment, the district shall give notice to the superintendent of any
participating district, or the person designated in writing by that superintendent, that the report is available for
inspection on a confidential basis by the superintendent or the authorized designee. The report shall be made
available at the district office for 30 days following the receipt of the notice.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall not release a copy of that information to any participating district or any other person. In addition,
the district shall retain or dispose of the information in the manner specified in law and in this administrative
regulation after all participating districts have had an opportunity to inspect it in accordance with law.  (Education
Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall maintain a record of all persons to whom the information has been shown and shall make this
record available to the DOJ.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 701-708 Criminal offender record information

11 CCR 720-724 Incomplete criminal history information

11 CCR 994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate of clearance

Ed. Code 44346.1 Applicants for credential; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal record
information

Ed. Code 44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of sex offense or controlled
substance offense

Ed. Code 44932 Grounds for dismissal of permanent employees

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125 Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45125.5 Automated records check

Ed. Code 45126 Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

H&S Code 11350 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Narcotics

H&S Code 11377 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Restricted
Dangerous Drugs

Pen. Code 11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination

Pen. Code 11102.2 Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records

Pen. Code 11105 Access to criminal history information

Pen. Code 11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification

Pen. Code 11105.3 Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence

726

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0CD30F005A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0CDECED35A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0D13C1805A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0D1855635A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44346.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44836.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44932.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11350.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11377.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11102.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3.


Pen. Code 11140-11144 Furnishing of state criminal history information

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 1203.4 Dismissal of conviction

Pen. Code 1203.425 Conviction relief

Pen. Code 13300-13305 Local summary criminal history information

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger
(1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice, Background Checks

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

727

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=3.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/fingerprints
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O8tAL8zo45MouRALkO6PIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==


4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

728

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HNThtsBXuYTJV36dzD00hw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ukl6dbOkdRYslshCh8plusz8BDaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Exhibit 4112.5-E(1): Criminal Record CheckExhibit 4112.5-E(1): Criminal Record Check Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

SAMPLE EMPLOYEE STATEMENT FORM
USE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION

As an employee/volunteer of __________________________________________________ School District, you may have
access to confidential criminal record information which is controlled by state and federal statutes. Misuse of such
information may adversely affect the individual's civil rights and violate constitutional rights of privacy. Penal Code
502 prescribes the penalties relating to computer crimes. Penal Code 11105 and 13300 identify who has access to
criminal history information and under what circumstances it may be disseminated. Penal Code 11140-11144 and
13301-13305 prescribe penalties for misuse of criminal history information. Government Code 6200 prescribes
felony penalties for misuse of public records. Penal Code 11142 and 13300 state:

"Any person authorized by law to receive a record or information obtained from a record who knowingly furnishes
the record or information to a person not authorized by law to receive the record or information is guilty of a
misdemeanor."

Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy, states:

"Any person who intentionally discloses information, not otherwise public, which they know or should reasonably
know was obtained from personal or confidential information maintained by a state agency or from records within
a system of records maintained by a federal government agency, shall be subject to a civil action, for invasion of
privacy, by the individual."

CIVIL, CRIMINAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTIES:

Penal Code 11141: DOJ furnishing to unauthorized person (misdemeanor)
 
Penal Code 11142: Authorized person furnishing to other (misdemeanor)
 
Penal Code 11143: Unauthorized person in possession (misdemeanor)
 
California Constitution, Article I, Section 1 (Right to Privacy)
 
Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy
 
Title 18 USC 641, 1030, 1951, and 1952

Any employee who is responsible for such misuse may be subject to immediate dismissal. Violations of this law may
result in criminal and/or civil action.

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE AND UNDERSTAND THE POLICY REGARDING MISUSE OF CRIMINAL RECORD
INFORMATION.

Signature ________________________________________________ Date ___________________________

Printed Name ________________________________________________ Title ___________________________

Name of District ________________________________________________

PLEASE NOTE: Do not return this form to the DOJ. Your Custodian of Records should maintain these forms.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 701-708 Criminal offender record information

11 CCR 720-724 Incomplete criminal history information

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

729

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0CD30F005A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0CDECED35A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0D13C1805A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0D1855635A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3


11 CCR 994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate of clearance

Ed. Code 44346.1 Applicants for credential; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal record
information

Ed. Code 44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of sex offense or controlled
substance offense

Ed. Code 44932 Grounds for dismissal of permanent employees

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125 Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45125.5 Automated records check

Ed. Code 45126 Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

H&S Code 11350 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Narcotics

H&S Code 11377 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Restricted
Dangerous Drugs

Pen. Code 11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination

Pen. Code 11102.2 Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records

Pen. Code 11105 Access to criminal history information

Pen. Code 11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification

Pen. Code 11105.3 Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence

Pen. Code 11140-11144 Furnishing of state criminal history information

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 1203.4 Dismissal of conviction

Pen. Code 1203.425 Conviction relief

Pen. Code 13300-13305 Local summary criminal history information

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger
(1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice, Background Checks

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

730

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44346.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44836.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44932.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11350.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11377.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11102.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=3.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/fingerprints
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==


1240 Volunteer Assistance

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

731

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O8tAL8zo45MouRALkO6PIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==


4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

732

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HNThtsBXuYTJV36dzD00hw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ukl6dbOkdRYslshCh8plusz8BDaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4112.9: Employee NotificationsPolicy 4112.9: Employee Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board believes that providing clear communications to staff is essential to establishing a professional,
positive work environment and enhancing their job performance. The Superintendent or designee shall provide
district employees all notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent or designee
believes will promote staff knowledge of the district's policies, programs, activities, and operations.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, district employees shall be asked to sign an
acknowledgment indicating receipt of the notification. Such acknowledgments shall be retained in each employee's
personnel file.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

733

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I6BAEEA607C7411EE81CB83C869CBEC13?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9F7694335A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I681EE2305A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I682942735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I6A8A63F05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I6A9CB3725A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I48FD1E835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4B8F3B125A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22461.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35171.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44896.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44934.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.


Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

734

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44948.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44949.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44951.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45117.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45169.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48851.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=21029.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8355.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120875.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120880.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.196.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=2800.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=5401.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11165.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11166.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=UIC&sectionNum=2613.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

735

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:2354 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section2354)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-825/subpart-C/section-825.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100\
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:38 section:4334 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title38-section4334)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-A/section-382.113
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-C/section-382.303
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-F/section-382.601
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==


4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

736

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==


4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4315 Evaluation/Supervision

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

737

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=43ckWjavfMnRcTpW4OQNpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==


4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

738

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Exhibit 4112.9-E(1): Employee NotificationsExhibit 4112.9-E(1): Employee Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/13/2023

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to employees. Other
notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  To All Employees

When/Whom to Notify: At the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 231.5, Government Code 12950
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: The district's policy on sexual harassment, legal remedies, complaints

When/Whom to Notify: Annually and 72 hours before pesticide application
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.2
Subject: Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, Internet address to access information on pesticides

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6117
Subject: Public hearing on implementing year-round program schedule

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6112
Subject: Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 1312.3; BP 0460; BP 3260
Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student fees and
local control accountability plan

When to Notify:  Annually
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173, AR 6173.1, 6173.3, 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory, and newcomer students.

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer epinephrine auto-injectors

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer stock albuterol inhalers

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer anti-seizure medication

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer opioid antagonist

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

739



When to Notify: When a parent/guardian requests for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of
emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 1126
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4136/4236/4336
Subject: Prohibition of activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to duties; discipline;
appeal

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 8355; 41 USC 8102; 34 CFR 84.205, 84.210
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4020, BP 4159/4259/4359
Subject: District's drug- and alcohol-free workplace; actions that will be taken if violated; available employee
assistance programs

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 21029
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Right to purchase PERS service credit for military service performed prior to public employment

When/Whom to Notify: Upon placement of automated external defibrillator (AED) in school, annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1797.196
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141
Subject: Proper use of AED; location of all AEDs on campus, sudden cardiac arrest, school's emergency response plan

When/Whom to Notify: If the district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3513.3
Subject: District's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When/Whom to Notify: Annually, or more frequently if there is new information
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 120875, 120880
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43
Subject: AIDS and hepatitis B, methods to prevent exposure

When/Whom to Notify: To new employees upon hire and other employees upon request, in districts with 25 or
more employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2
Subject: Rights pursuant to Labor Code 230-230.1 pertaining to leaves and accommodations for victims of crime or
abuse

When/Whom to Notify: With each paycheck
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 246
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1
Subject: Amount of sick leave available

When/Whom to Notify: Upon hire, in employee handbook, and upon request for parental leave
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 1034
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4033
Subject: The district's policy on lactation accommodation

When/Whom to Notify: To covered employees and former employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2800.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354

740



Subject: Availability of COBRA/Cal-COBRA continuation and conversion coverage; statement encouraging careful
examination of options before declining coverage

When/Whom to Notify: To employees participating in a flexible spending account
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2810.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Deadline to withdraw funds from account before the end of the plan year

When/Whom to Notify: To every new employee, either at the time employee is hired or by end of first pay period
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3551
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Workers' compensation benefits, how to obtain medical care, role of primary physician, form for reporting
personal physician/chiropractor

When/Whom to Notify: Within one day of receiving notice of potential exposure to COVID-19, and remain posted
for not less than 15 calendar days, to employees who were on the premises during the infectious period, the
exclusive representative, and the employer of subcontracted employees as applicable
Where: Prominently display in all places where notices to employees concerning workplace rules or regulations are
customarily posted
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 6409.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: Potential exposure to COVID-19; benefits to which employees may be entitled; available leave options;
protection against discrimination and retaliation; district's disinfection and safety plan

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to beginning employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.4
Subject: Status as a mandated reporter of child abuse, reporting obligations, confidentiality rights, copy of law

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and when leaving work due to pregnancy or nonoccupational sickness or
injury
Education or Other Legal Code: Unemployment Insurance Code 2613
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Disability insurance rights and benefits

When/Whom to Notify: To principal, counselor who directly supervises or reports on student's behavior or progress,
and teacher and other administrators who directly supervise or report on student's behavior or progress when the
superintendent or designee believes the employee needs the information for the protection of self or others when
working with the student, when Superintendent or designee receives written notification that minor student has
committed a felony or misdemeanor involving specified offenses
Education or Other Legal Code: Welfare and Institutions Code 827
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Limited exception to juvenile court record confidentiality to ensure rehabilitation of juvenile criminal
offenders and protect students and staff

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees and job applicants
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11023; 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 0410, AR 4030
Subject: District's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees via employee handbook, or to each new employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11091, 11095; 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Benefits through Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA); obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of need for leave when possible

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3203
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: The right and procedure to access the injury and illness prevention program

741



When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; contact information for district's Title IX Coordinator; referral of
inquiries to Title IX Coordinator and/or Office for Civil Rights

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: 40 CFR 763.84, 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514
Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6178
Subject: All career and technical education opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin,
sex, or disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100

II.  To Certificated Employees

When/Whom to Notify: To eligible certificated employees in a timely manner, and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees within 30 days of hire
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 22455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4121
Subject: Criteria for membership in retirement system; right to elect membership at any time

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment of a retired certificated individual
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 22461
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.14/4317.14
Subject: Postretirement earnings limitation or employment restriction; monthly report of compensation

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35171
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115, BP 4315
Subject: District regulations related to performance evaluations

When/Whom to Notify: 30 days before last day of school year for instructional staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated staff, in any year in which employee is evaluated
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44663
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Copy of employee's evaluation

When/Whom to Notify: To a certificated employee with unsatisfactory evaluation, once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every other year for permanent employee
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44664
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Notice and description of the unsatisfactory performance

When/Whom to Notify: By May 30, if district elects to issue reemployment notices to certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44842
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1
Subject: Request that the employee notify district of intent to remain in service next year

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary and temporary certificated employees upon employment and every July
thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1, AR 4121
Subject: Employment status and salary

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee, by March 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23, 44948.5

742



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4116
Subject: Whether or not employee is reelected for next school year

When/Whom to Notify: When certificated employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, at any time of year
or, for charge of unsatisfactory performance, during instructional year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44934, 44934.1, 44936
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118; AR 4118
Subject: Notice of charges, procedures, and employee rights; intent to dismiss or suspend 30 days after notice

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unprofessional conduct, at least 45 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unsatisfactory performance, at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or prior to last quarter of school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with mandatory leave of absence offense, within 10 days
of entry of judgment in proceedings
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44940.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Notice of intent to dismiss 30 days from notice unless employee demands hearing

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee 30 days prior to dismissal during school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second- year probationary employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44948.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Reasons for dismissal and opportunity to appeal

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 when necessary to reduce certificated personnel, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44949, 44955
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Reasons for personnel reduction and employees' right to hearing; final notice of Board decision re:
termination

When/Whom to Notify: Before the end of the school year to temporary employee who served 75 percent of school
year but will be released
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44954
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4121
Subject: District's decision not to reelect employee for following school year

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to any
permanent or probationary certificated employee, including an employee holding a position that requires
administrative or supervisory credential, whose services are terminated
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44955.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Decrease in the number of permanent employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and hearing
adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher, when a student engages in or is reasonably suspected of specified acts
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49079
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher of a student who is suspended or expelled, when Superintendent or designee

743



receives transfer student's record regarding acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48201
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee upon change in employment status due to alleged misconduct
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 80303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.7/4317.7
Subject: Contents of state regulation re: report to Commission on Teacher Credentialing

III.  To Classified Employees

When/Whom to Notify: When a classified employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, in a nonmerit district
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45113
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4218
Subject: Notice of charges, right to hearing, timeline for requesting hearing

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15, when laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff, displacement and reemployment rights, right to hearing; final notice of Board decision
regarding termination

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: District Statement of Reduction in Force to affected employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and
hearing adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: At least 60 days prior to the effective date of layoff, if the employee's position must be
eliminated due to the expiration of a specially funded program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff date, displacement and reemployment rights

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and upon each change in classification
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45169
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4212
Subject: Employee's class specification, salary data, assignment or work location, duty hours, prescribed workweek

When/Whom to Notify: To permanent employee whose leave is exhausted
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45192, 45195
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4261.1, AR 4261.11
Subject: Exhaustion of leave, opportunity to request additional leave

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers prior to expiration of specified
documents
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 1234
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Expiration date of driver's license, driver's certificate and medical certificate; need to renew

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers upon employment and at least once per
year thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 2480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Limitations on vehicle idling; consequences of not complying

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to district drug testing program and thereafter upon

744



employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.113, 382.601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Explanation of federal requirements for drug testing program and district's policy; prior to administration of
each drug or alcohol test

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to operating school bus
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Post accident information, procedures, and instruction

IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

When/Whom to Notify: To superintendent, deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent or senior manager of
classified service, at least 45 days before expiration of contract
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 2121, BP 4312.1
Subject: Decision not to reelect or reemploy upon expiration of contract or term

When/Whom to Notify: Upon request by administrative or supervisory employee transferred to teaching position
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44896
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Statement of the reasons for the reassignment

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 to employee who may be released/reassigned the following school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Notice that employee may be released or reassigned the following school year

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

When/Whom to Notify: In the event of a breach of security of district records to affected employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 3580
Subject: Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, and, as applicable, contact information for
credit reporting agencies

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to placing derogatory information in personnel file
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6
Subject: Notice of derogatory information, opportunity to review and comment

When/Whom to Notify: To employees who volunteer to administer epinephrine auto-injector
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Defense and indemnification from civil liability by the district

When/Whom to Notify: To district police officer, within 30 days of decision to impose discipline
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 3304
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3515.3
Subject: Decision to impose discipline, including the date that discipline will be imposed

When/Whom to Notify: To employee returning from military leave of absence, within 30 days of return
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 20997
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Right to receive PERS service credit for military service; application form

When/Whom to Notify: 24 hours before Board meets in closed session to hear complaints or charges against
employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54957
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BB 9321

745



Subject: Employee's right to have complaints/charges heard in open session

When/Whom to Notify: When taking disciplinary action against employee for disclosure of confidential information
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54963
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23
Subject: Law prohibiting disclosure of confidential information obtained in closed session

When/Whom to Notify: When document identifying employee who is victim of domestic violence is disclosed
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

When/Whom to Notify: Within one working day of work-related injury or victimization of crime
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3553, 5401
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Potential eligibility for workers' compensation benefits, claim form

When/Whom to Notify: When adverse employment action is based on DOJ criminal history information or
subsequent arrest notification
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11105, 11105.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5
Subject: Copy of DOJ notification

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee with exposure to blood or potentially infectious materials, upon initial
employment and at least annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3204
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42
Subject: The existence, location, and availability of exposure and medical records; person responsible for maintaining
and providing access to records; right to access records

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee assigned to a work area in a laboratory setting where hazardous chemicals
are present, within 15 working days after receiving a monitoring result related to an employee exposure
determination
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5191
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Contents of 8 CCR 5191, including location and availability of chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits, signs
and symptoms of exposure, location of reference material

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee who may be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, upon
initial assignment and when new hazard is introduced into work area
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5194
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Requirements of 8 CCR 5194, including any presence of hazardous substances in the work area, location
and availability of hazard communication program, new material safety data sheet, employee rights

When/Whom to Notify: To employee eligible for military leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 38 USC 4334
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Notice of rights, benefits, and obligations under military leave

When/Whom to Notify: Within five days of employee's request for family care and medical leave, receipt of
supporting information, or district's knowledge that the requested leave may qualify as FMLA leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300; 2 CCR 11049, 11091
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Designation of leave as FMLA or non-FMLA; if not eligible, reason not eligible; requirement to use paid
leave; any requirement for fitness-for-duty certification; any subsequent changes in designation notice

When/Whom to Notify: Whenever notice of eligibility for FMLA is provided to employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Rights and responsibilities re: use of FMLA; consequences of failure to meet obligations

746



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees working with families experiencing homelessness
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48851.3, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173
Subject: Duties of district liaison for homeless students and availability of training and services

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

747

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I6BAEEA607C7411EE81CB83C869CBEC13?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9F7694335A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I681EE2305A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I682942735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I6A8A63F05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I6A9CB3725A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I48FD1E835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4B8F3B125A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22461.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35171.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44896.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44934.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44948.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44949.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44951.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.


Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

748

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45117.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45169.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48851.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=21029.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8355.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120875.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120880.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.196.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=2800.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=5401.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11165.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11166.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=UIC&sectionNum=2613.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:2354 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section2354)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-825/subpart-C/section-825.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100\
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8


34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

749

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:38 section:4334 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title38-section4334)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-A/section-382.113
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-C/section-382.303
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-F/section-382.601
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==


4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

750

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==


4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4315 Evaluation/Supervision

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

751

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=43ckWjavfMnRcTpW4OQNpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==


4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

752

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy 4118: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary ActionPolicy 4118: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 03/09/2023

The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their jobs satisfactorily, exhibit professional and appropriate
conduct, and serve as positive role models both at school and in the community. A certificated employee may be
disciplined for conduct or performance in accordance with law, the applicable collective bargaining agreement, Board
policy, or administrative regulation.

Disciplinary action shall be based on the particular facts and circumstances involved and the severity of the conduct
or performance.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that disciplinary actions are appropriately documented and taken in a
consistent, nondiscriminatory manner. In addition, an employee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassigned,
transferred, dismissed, or otherwise retaliated against solely for engaging in protected activities, or for acting to
protect a student engaged in exercising any free speech or press right authorized by, or for refusing to infringe upon
a student's conduct protected pursuant to, Education Code 48907 or 48950.

Disciplinary actions may include, but are not limited to, verbal and written warnings, suspension or leave without pay,
or dismissal.

Suspension/Dismissal Procedures

The Superintendent shall notify the Board whenever there is cause to suspend or dismiss an employee pursuant to
Education Code 44932 or 44933.

When the Board finds that there is cause to suspend or dismiss an employee pursuant to Education Code 44932 or
44933, it may formulate a written statement of charges specifying instances of behavior and the acts or omissions
constituting the charge, the statutes and rules that the employee is alleged to have violated when applicable, and the
facts relevant to each charge. The Board shall also review any duly signed and verified written statement of charges
filed by any other person.  (Education Code 44934, 44934.1)

Based on the written statement of charges, the Board may, upon majority vote, give notice to the employee of the
Board's intention to suspend or dismiss the employee at the expiration of 30 days from the date the notice is served.
 (Education Code 44934, 44934.1)

Prior to serving a suspension or dismissal notice that includes a charge of unsatisfactory performance, the district
shall give the employee written notice of the unsatisfactory performance that specifies the nature of the
unsatisfactory performance with such specific instances of behavior and with such particularity as to furnish the
employee an opportunity to correct the faults and overcome the grounds for any unsatisfactory performance
charges and, if applicable, that includes the evaluation made pursuant to Education Code 44660-44665. The written
notice of the unsatisfactory performance shall be provided at least 90 days prior to the filing of the suspension or
dismissal notice or prior to the last one-fourth of the school days in the year.  (Education Code 44938)

Prior to serving a suspension or dismissal notice that includes a charge of unprofessional conduct, the district shall
give the employee written notice that describes the nature of the unprofessional conduct with such specific
instances of behavior and with such particularity as to furnish the employee an opportunity to correct the faults and
overcome the grounds for any unprofessional conduct charges and, if applicable, that includes the evaluation made
pursuant to Education Code 44660-44665. The written notice of the unprofessional conduct shall be provided at
least 45 days prior to the filing of the suspension or dismissal notice.  (Education Code 44938)

Except for notices that only include charges of unsatisfactory performance, the written suspension or dismissal
notice may be served at any time of year. Such notice shall be served upon the employee personally if given outside
of the instructional year or, if given during the instructional year, may be served personally or by registered mail to
the employee's last known address. Notices with a charge of unsatisfactory performance shall be given only during

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

753



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

the instructional year of the school site where the employee is physically employed and may be served personally or
by registered mail to the employee's last known address.  (Education Code 44936)

If an employee has been served notice and demands a hearing pursuant to Government Code 11505 and 11506, the
Board shall either rescind its action or schedule a hearing on the matter.  (Education Code 44941, 44941.1, 44943,
44944)

Pending suspension or dismissal proceedings for an employee who is charged with egregious misconduct, immoral
conduct, conviction of a felony or of any crime involving moral turpitude, incompetency due to mental disability, or
willful refusal to perform regular assignments without reasonable cause as prescribed by district rules and
regulations, the Board may, if it deems it necessary, immediately suspend the employee from assigned duties. If the
employee files a motion with the Office of Administrative Hearings for immediate reversal of the suspension based
on a cause other than egregious misconduct, the Board may file a written response before or at the time of the
hearing.  (Education Code 44939, 44939.1)

When a suspension or dismissal hearing is to be conducted by a Commission on Professional Competence, the Board
shall, no later than 45 days before the date set for the hearing, select one person with a currently valid credential to
serve on the Commission. The appointee shall not be an employee of the district and shall have at least three years'
experience within the past 10 years at the same grade span or assignment as the employee, as defined in Education
Code 44944.  (Education Code 44944)

Compulsory Leave of Absence

Upon being informed that a certificated employee has been charged with a mandatory leave of absence offense, the
Superintendent or designee shall immediately place the employee on a compulsory leave of absence.  (Education
Code 44940, 44940.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

5 CCR 80304 Notice of sexual misconduct

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Ed. Code 44008 Effect of termination of probation

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44242.5 Reports and review of alleged misconduct

Ed. Code 44425 Conviction of a sex or narcotic offense

Ed. Code 44660-44665 Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44930-44988 Resignations, dismissals and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45055 Drawing of warrants for teachers

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 51530 Advocacy or teaching of communism

754

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1A21F34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SECTION 1.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44008.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44009.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44242.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51530.


Gov. Code 1028 Advocacy of communism

Gov. Code 11505-11506 Hearing

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

H&S Code 11054 Schedule I; substances included

H&S Code 11055 Schedule II; substances included

H&S Code 11056 Schedule III; substances included

H&S Code 11357-11361 Marijuana

H&S Code 11363 Peyote

H&S Code 11364 Opium

H&S Code 11370.1 Possession of controlled substances with a firearm

Pen. Code 11165.2-11165.6 Child abuse or neglect; definitions

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 187 Murder

Pen. Code 291 School employees arrest for sex offense

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

U.S. Constitution, First Amendment Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication California's Laws and Rules Pertaining to the Discipline of Professional
Certificated Personnel, 2007

Court Decision Visalia Unified School District v. Public Employment Relations Board (2024)
98 Cal.App.5th 844

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision Crowl v. Commission on Professional Competence (1990) 225 Cal. App. 3d
334

Court Decision Morrison v. State Board of Education (1969) 1 Cal.3d 214

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website Office of the Attorney General

Website Office of Administrative Hearings

Website Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal Case Type

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

755

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1028.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=1.&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11054.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11056.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.&title=&part=&chapter=6.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11363.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11364.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11370.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=187.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=291.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://constitution.congress.gov/constitution/amendment-1/
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html
https://oag.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH/Case-Types/General-Jurisdiction/About/Page-Content/About-Teacher-Dismissal
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==


1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.21 Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)

3516.2 Bomb Threats

4000 Concepts And Roles

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.1 Contracts

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4114 Transfers

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

756

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z05kjfeDdOpUIOmxqBPz2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8IoJJAjMzlslshOWslsh7QoMplusOtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DIR3sZboSffLXoUbxPXAKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZpbbT8fzKc0BqMpXzZ9ZgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==


4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.22 Dress And Grooming

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4131.1 Teacher Support And Guidance

4136 Nonschool Employment

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

757

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiSe2iGDhslshwnUZnmXGJiRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0AS5Thslsh7nT4SNVplusryqONdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sglf5xVtilpRV7u6aDyjXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=imMZ4dXwt35MAMb9Dv1mfQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==


4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.22 Dress And Grooming

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4236 Nonschool Employment

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

758

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UQlYtGH6P0pGfM45SXLplusUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0t9pCQoKyKgb8KK1zcLWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjJ8dUjzXBuq4jQVtwTilA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==


4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.22 Dress And Grooming

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6162.54 Test Integrity/Test Preparation

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

759

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hz0HVoO940ZS15slshcFslshOwIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1JnrSvhCfnqPIG8sUTFnjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XEEIofWfBEyvWQZoFslshuwbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aslshBE4uBozduiWScBbgRpKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dD2SKrDRpB3slshBzQUnOHw9Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IdLRPWlw6UWiOylGCzu6TA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Regulation 4118: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary ActionRegulation 4118: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/16/2023

Causes for Suspension or Dismissal

A certificated employee with permanent status may be suspended without pay or dismissed only for one or more of
the following causes:  (Education Code 44932)

1. Immoral conduct including, but not limited to, egregious misconduct that is the basis for a sex offense or
controlled substance offense described in Education Code 44010 or 44011 or child abuse and neglect as
described in Penal Code 11165.2-11165.6
 

2. Unprofessional conduct
 

3. Commission, aiding, or advocating the commission of acts of criminal syndicalism
 

4. Dishonesty
 

5. Unsatisfactory performance
 

6. Evident unfitness for service
 

7. Physical or mental condition unfitting the employee to instruct or associate with children
 

8. Persistent violation of or refusal to obey the school laws or reasonable regulations of the state or district
 

9. Conviction of a felony or of any crime involving moral turpitude
 

10. Violation of Education Code 51530 or Government Code 1028 prohibiting the advocacy or teaching of
communism
 

11. Alcoholism or other drug abuse that makes the employee unfit to instruct or associate with children

An employee may be suspended or dismissed on grounds of unprofessional conduct consisting of acts or omissions
not listed above if the charge specifies instances of behavior deemed to constitute unprofessional conduct.
 (Education Code 44933)

Suspension/Dismissal of Permanent Employees

When a permanent certificated employee is charged with one or more of the offenses specified in the section
"Causes for Suspension or Dismissal" above, the following procedures shall apply:

1. The person preparing a written statement of charges that there is cause to suspend or dismiss an employee
shall submit the signed statement to the Governing Board, or a written statement of charges shall be
formulated by the Board that cause to suspend or dismiss the permanent employee exists.  (Education Code
44934, 44934.1)
 

2. The employee, upon receiving notice of the Board's intent to suspend or dismiss, may request a hearing on the
matter. The hearing shall be conducted by the Commission on Professional Competence, except that any case
involving only egregious misconduct shall be heard instead by an administrative law judge and, in any other
case, the hearing may be conducted by an administrative law judge when both the district and the employee so
stipulate.  (Education Code 44943, 44944, 44944.05, 44944.1, 44944.3)
 

3. Except when the employee is charged solely with egregious misconduct, the district may amend the charges
less than 90 days before the hearing only upon showing of good cause and upon approval of the administrative
law judge.  (Education Code 44934)
 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

760



4. The employee shall be suspended or dismissed when the Commission on Professional Competence or
administrative law judge has issued its decision upholding suspension or dismissal or, if the employee did not
request a hearing, at the expiration of 30 days after service of the notice of intent to suspend or dismiss.
 (Education Code 44941, 44943, 44944)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the Commission on Teacher Credentialing when the employment status
of a certificated employee has been changed as a result of alleged misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is
pending.  (Education Code 44030.5, 44242.5, 44940; 5 CCR 80303)

Suspension/Dismissal of Probationary Employees

The district may choose not to rehire probationary employees for the following school year without giving a
statement of reasons if proper notice is provided by March 15 of the employee's second, complete, consecutive year
of employment.  (Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23)

OPTION 1: (Districts with ADA of 250 or more, or districts with less than 250 ADA that have elected to use the
dismissal procedures in Education Code 44948.3)

During the school year, a probationary employee who is in the first or second year of service may be dismissed only
for one or more of the causes listed in Items #1-11 in the section "Causes for Suspension or Dismissal" above or for
unsatisfactory performance determined pursuant to Education Code 44660-44665.  (Education Code 44948.2,
44948.3)

Whenever a first- or second-year probationary employee is so charged, the following procedures shall apply for
dismissing the employee during the school year:  (Education Code 44948.3)

1. The Superintendent or designee shall give 30 days' prior written notice of dismissal, not later than March 15 in
the case of second-year probationary employees. The notice shall include a statement of the reasons for the
dismissal, notice of the opportunity to appeal, and, if the cause is unsatisfactory performance, a copy of the
evaluation conducted pursuant to Education Code 44664.

2. Upon receipt of the notice of dismissal, the employee may be dismissed if no request for a hearing is submitted
to the Board within 15 days.

3. If a hearing is requested, the district may arrange for the appointment of an administrative law judge to
conduct the hearing and to recommend a decision to the Board.

A probationary employee may be suspended without pay for a specified period of time as an alternative to dismissal.
 (Education Code 44948.3)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Districts with less than 250 ADA that do not grant permanent status after two years and do not elect to
use the procedures in Education Code 44948.3)

During the school year, probationary employees may be dismissed only for one or more of the causes listed in Items
#1-11 in the section "Causes for Suspension or Dismissal" above.  (Education Code 44948)

Whenever a probationary employee is so charged, dismissal procedures shall be those set forth in Education Code
44934 and 44934.1 as described in the section "Suspension/Dismissal of Permanent Employees" above.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Compulsory Leave of Absence

Upon being informed that a certificated employee has been charged with a "mandatory leave of absence offense,"
the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place the employee on a leave of absence. A mandatory leave of
absence offense includes:  (Education Code 44830.1, 44940)

761



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

1. Any sex offense as defined in Education Code 44010
 

2. Violation or attempted violation of Penal Code 187, prohibiting murder or attempted murder
 

3. Any offense involving the unlawful sale, use, or exchange to minors of controlled substances as listed in Health
and Safety Code 11054, 11055, and 11056

The Superintendent or designee may place on an immediate compulsory leave of absence a certificated employee
who is charged with an "optional leave of absence offense," defined as a controlled substance offense specified in
Education Code 44011 and Health and Safety Code 11357-11361, 11363, 11364, and 11370.1, except as it relates
to marijuana, mescaline, peyote, or tetrahydrocannabinol.  (Education Code 44940)

If an employee is charged with an offense that falls into both the mandatory and optional leave of absence
definitions, the offense shall be treated as a mandatory leave of absence offense.  (Education Code 44940)

An employee's compulsory leave for a mandatory or optional leave of absence offense may extend for not more than
10 days after the entry of judgment in the criminal proceedings. However, the compulsory leave may be extended if
the Board gives notice, within 10 days after the entry of judgment in the proceedings, that the employee will be
dismissed within 30 days from the date of service of the notice unless a hearing is demanded.  (Education Code
44940, 44940.5)

During the period of compulsory leave, the employee shall be compensated in accordance with Education Code
44940.5.

Upon receipt of telephone or electronic notification from the Department of Justice that a current temporary,
substitute, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of the second probationary year has been convicted
of a violent or serious felony, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place the employee on leave without
pay. Upon receipt of electronic notification of the conviction from the Department of Justice, such employee shall be
automatically terminated and without regard to any other termination procedure.  (Education Code 44830.1)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

5 CCR 80304 Notice of sexual misconduct

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Ed. Code 44008 Effect of termination of probation

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44242.5 Reports and review of alleged misconduct

Ed. Code 44425 Conviction of a sex or narcotic offense

Ed. Code 44660-44665 Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44930-44988 Resignations, dismissals and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45055 Drawing of warrants for teachers

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

762

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1A21F34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SECTION 1.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44008.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44009.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44242.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.


Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 51530 Advocacy or teaching of communism

Gov. Code 1028 Advocacy of communism

Gov. Code 11505-11506 Hearing

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

H&S Code 11054 Schedule I; substances included

H&S Code 11055 Schedule II; substances included

H&S Code 11056 Schedule III; substances included

H&S Code 11357-11361 Marijuana

H&S Code 11363 Peyote

H&S Code 11364 Opium

H&S Code 11370.1 Possession of controlled substances with a firearm

Pen. Code 11165.2-11165.6 Child abuse or neglect; definitions

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 187 Murder

Pen. Code 291 School employees arrest for sex offense

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

U.S. Constitution, First Amendment Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication California's Laws and Rules Pertaining to the Discipline of Professional
Certificated Personnel, 2007

Court Decision Visalia Unified School District v. Public Employment Relations Board (2024)
98 Cal.App.5th 844

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision Crowl v. Commission on Professional Competence (1990) 225 Cal. App. 3d
334

Court Decision Morrison v. State Board of Education (1969) 1 Cal.3d 214

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website Office of the Attorney General

Website Office of Administrative Hearings

Website Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal Case Type

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

763

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51530.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1028.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=1.&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11054.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11056.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.&title=&part=&chapter=6.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11363.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11364.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11370.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=187.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=291.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://constitution.congress.gov/constitution/amendment-1/
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html
https://oag.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH/Case-Types/General-Jurisdiction/About/Page-Content/About-Teacher-Dismissal
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==


1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.21 Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)

3516.2 Bomb Threats

4000 Concepts And Roles

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.1 Contracts

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4114 Transfers

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

764

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z05kjfeDdOpUIOmxqBPz2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8IoJJAjMzlslshOWslsh7QoMplusOtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DIR3sZboSffLXoUbxPXAKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZpbbT8fzKc0BqMpXzZ9ZgQ==


4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.22 Dress And Grooming

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4131.1 Teacher Support And Guidance

4136 Nonschool Employment

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

765

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiSe2iGDhslshwnUZnmXGJiRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0AS5Thslsh7nT4SNVplusryqONdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sglf5xVtilpRV7u6aDyjXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=imMZ4dXwt35MAMb9Dv1mfQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==


4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.22 Dress And Grooming

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4236 Nonschool Employment

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

766

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UQlYtGH6P0pGfM45SXLplusUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0t9pCQoKyKgb8KK1zcLWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjJ8dUjzXBuq4jQVtwTilA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==


4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.22 Dress And Grooming

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6162.54 Test Integrity/Test Preparation

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

767

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hz0HVoO940ZS15slshcFslshOwIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1JnrSvhCfnqPIG8sUTFnjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XEEIofWfBEyvWQZoFslshuwbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aslshBE4uBozduiWScBbgRpKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dD2SKrDRpB3slshBzQUnOHw9Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IdLRPWlw6UWiOylGCzu6TA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

768



Regulation 4119.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment ComplaintRegulation 4119.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
ProceduresProcedures

Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/18/2021

Harmony Union School District

Administrative Regulation 4119.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Procedures

Status: PENDING
Original Adopted Date:      | Last Revised Date:      | Last Reviewed Date:

The district does not discriminate on the basis of sex and prohibits sex discrimination
in any education program or activity that it operates, as required by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972
(“Title IX”) and its regulations, including in employment.

The grievance procedures described in this regulation have been adopted by the district to provide for the prompt
and equitable resolution of allegations that a district employee, while participating in or attempting to participate in a
district education program or activity, was subjected to discrimination on the basis of sex, including but not limited
to, sex-based harassment, retaliation, or other conduct prohibited by Title IX. 

This regulation only applies to alleged incidents that occurred on or after August 1, 2024. For alleged incidents of sex
discrimination or sexual harassment that occurred prior to August 1, 2024, the procedures that applied at the time of
the alleged incident should be used.

This regulation applies to any district education program or activity, including but not limited to, events occurring on
school property, during any school-related or school-sponsored activity, on school-sponsored transportation, and/or
where the district has disciplinary authority.

Allegations that a district student was subjected to conduct prohibited by Title IX shall be addressed using the
grievance procedures in Administrative Regulation (“AR”) 5145.71.

Definitions

Complaint means an oral or written request to the district that objectively can be understood as a request for the
district to investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR
106.02)

Complainant means: (1) a student or employee who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations; or (2) a person other than a student or employee who is
alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations
and who was participating or attempting to participate in the district’s education program or activity at the time of
the alleged sex discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Party means a complainant or respondent. (34 CFR 106.02)

Peer retaliation means retaliation by a student against another student. (34 CFR 106.02)

Pregnancy or related conditions means: (1) pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; (2) medical
conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; or (3) recovery from pregnancy,
childbirth, termination of pregnancy, lactation, or related medical conditions. (34 CFR 106.02)

Respondent means a person who is alleged to have violated the district’s prohibition on sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Retaliation means intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination against any person by the district, a student, or an
employee or other person authorized by the district to provide aid, benefit, or service under the district’s education
program or activity, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or its regulations, or
because the person has reported information, made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this part, including in an informal
resolution process, in grievance procedures, and in any other actions taken by the district under 34 CFR 106.44 (f)(1).

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

769



This provision does not limit the district’s ability to require an employee to participate as a witness in, or otherwise
assist with, a Title IX investigation or proceeding. (34 CFR 106.02)

Sex discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related
conditions, sexual orientation, and gender identity. Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination. (34 CFR
106.02, 106.10)

Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination and means sexual harassment and other harassment on the basis
of sex, including on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related conditions, sexual
orientation, and gender identity, that is (34 CFR 106.02):

 

1. Quid pro quo harassment. An employee, agent, or other person authorized by the district to provide an aid,
benefit, or service under the district’s education program or activity explicitly or impliedly conditioning the
provision of such an aid, benefit, or service on a person’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;

 

2. Hostile environment harassment. Unwelcome sex-based conduct that, based on the totality of the
circumstances, is subjectively and objectively offensive and is so severe or pervasive that it limits or denies a
person’s ability to participate in or benefit from the district’s education program or activity (i.e., creates a
hostile environment). Whether a hostile environment has been created is a fact-specific inquiry that includes
consideration of the following:

 

i. The degree to which the conduct affected the complainant’s ability to access the district’s education
program or activity;

 

ii. The type, frequency, and duration of the conduct;

 

iii. The parties’ ages, roles within the district’s education program or activity, previous interactions, and
other factors about each party that may be relevant to evaluating the effects of the conduct;

 

iv. The location of the conduct and the context in which the conduct occurred; and

 

v. Other sex-based harassment in the district’s education program or activity; or
 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 34 CFR 106.2.

Supportive measures means individualized measures offered as appropriate, as reasonably
available, without unreasonably burdening a Complainant or Respondent, not for punitive or
disciplinary reasons, and without fee or charge to the Complainant or Respondent to (34 CFR 106.02):
 

1. Restore or preserve that party’s access to the district’s education program or activity, including measures that
are designed to protect the safety of the parties or the district’s educational environment; or

 

2. Provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or during an informal

resolution process.

770



General Title IX Requirements

When implementing the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure compliance
with the following requirements (34 CFR 106.45, 106.44):
 

1. That Complainants and Respondents are treated equitably.

 

2. That the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decisionmaker, appeal decisionmaker, and any facilitator of an
informal resolution process do not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or
Respondents generally or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Such persons shall also receive training in
accordance with 34 CFR 106.8.  A decisionmaker may be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator or
investigator. 

 

3. That the Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged sex discrimination until a determination is
made at the conclusion of these grievance procedures.

 

4. That discipline is not imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations
unless there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged
in prohibited sex discrimination.

 

5. That reasonable steps are taken to protect the privacy of the parties and witnesses during the grievance
procedures. These steps shall not restrict the ability of the parties to obtain and present evidence, including by
speaking to witnesses (subject to the district’s prohibition on peer retaliation); consult with their family
members, confidential resources, or advisors; or otherwise prepare for or participate in the grievance
procedures.

 

6. That all relevant and permissible evidence – including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence – is
objectively evaluated and that credibility determinations are not based on a person’s status as a Complainant,
Respondent, or witness.

 

7. That all evidence considered impermissible or privileged under 34 CFR 106.45(b) is excluded.

The district prohibits retaliation against an individual for reporting suspected sex discrimination, making a Complaint,
being a witness, or otherwise participating in a Title IX investigation or proceeding. Retaliation is illegal under federal
and state nondiscrimination laws, prohibited by Board policy, and will result in disciplinary action.

The district shall not disclose personally identifiable information obtained in the course of complying with Title IX
regulations, except: (1) when the district has obtained prior written consent from a person with the legal right to
consent to the disclosure; (2) when the information is disclosed to a parent, guardian, or other authorized legal
representative with the legal right to receive disclosures on behalf of the person whose personally identifiable
information is at issue; (3) to carry out the purposes of the Title IX regulations, including action taken to address
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX in the district’s education program or
activity; (4) as required by federal law, federal regulations, or the terms and conditions of a federal award, including a
grant award or other funding agreement; or (5) to the extent such disclosures are not otherwise in conflict with Title
IX or its regulations, when required by state or local law or when permitted under FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 1232g, or its
implementing regulations, 34 CFR part 99. (34 CFR 106.44(j))

If the Respondent is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with one or more
members, as appropriate, of the student's individualized education program (IEP) or 504 team, to determine how to
comply with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) or Section 504 of the

771



Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

Title IX Coordinator

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to coordinate its efforts to comply
with Title IX. The Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted at::

Matthew Morgan, Superintendent-Principal
1935 Bohemian Highway
Occidental, CA 94565
Phone (707) 874-1205
mmorgan@harmonyusd.org

Duty to Report Prohibited Conduct

An employee shall notify the Title IX Coordinator within one (1) workday when the employee has information about
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination, including but not limited to sex-based harassment, under
Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR 106.44(c)) 

The Title IX Coordinator shall monitor the district’s education programs and activities for barriers to reporting
information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations and
take steps reasonably calculated to address such barriers. (34 CFR 106.44(b))

When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX and its regulations,
including but not limited to sex-based harassment, the Title IX coordinator shall (34 CFR 106.44(f)):

 

1. Contact the Complainant and/or the individual who reported the conduct to provide information regarding the
district’s grievance procedures and any informal resolution process, if available and appropriate; offer
supportive measures as appropriate; and determine how they wish to proceed; and

 

2. If a Complaint is made, notify the Respondent of the grievance procedures and any informal resolution
process, if available and appropriate, and coordinate supportive measures, as appropriate, for the Respondent.

Complaints

The following people have a right to make a Complaint of sex discrimination, including a Complaint of sex-based
harassment, requesting that the district investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under
Title IX (34 CFR 106.45(a), 106.02):
 

1. A Complainant;

 

2. An authorized legal representative with the legal right to act on behalf of a Complainant; or

 

3. The district’s Title IX Coordinator or designee.

With respect to complaints of sex discrimination other than sex-based harassment, in addition to the people listed
above, the following persons have a right to make a Complaint (34 CFR 106.45(a)):

 

1. Any student or employee; or

772



 

2. Any person other than a student or employee who was participating or attempting to participate in a district
education program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discrimination.

In the absence of a Complaint or the withdrawal of any or all of the allegations in a Complaint, and in the absence or
termination of an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator, when notified of conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination, shall determine whether to initiate a Complaint of sex discrimination. To make this
fact-specific determination, the Title IX Coordinator must consider, at a minimum, the following factors (34 CFR
106.44(f)):
 

1. The Complainant’s request not to proceed with initiation of a Complaint;

 

2. The Complainant’s reasonable safety concerns regarding initiation of a Complaint;

 

3. The risk that additional acts of sex discrimination would occur if a Complaint is not initiated;

 

4. The severity of the alleged sex discrimination, including whether the discrimination, if established, would
require the removal of a Respondent from campus or imposition of another disciplinary sanction to end the
discrimination and prevent its recurrence;

 

5. The age and relationship of the parties, including whether the Respondent is an employee of the district;

 

6. The scope of the alleged sex discrimination, including information suggesting a pattern, ongoing sex
discrimination, or sex discrimination alleged to have impacted multiple individuals;

 

7. The availability of evidence to assist a decisionmaker in determining whether sex discrimination occurred; and

 

8. Whether the district could end the alleged sex discrimination and prevent its recurrence without initiating its
grievance procedures.                                                                

If, after considering these and other relevant factors, the Title IX Coordinator determines that the conduct as alleged
presents an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of the Complainant or other person, or that the
conduct as alleged prevents the district from ensuring equal access on the basis of sex to its education program or
activity, the Title IX Coordinator may initiate a Complaint. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

If the Title IX Coordinator initiates a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator shall notify the Complainant of the
Complaint prior to doing so, as well as provide other notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific points
in the grievance procedures, and appropriately address reasonable concerns about the Complainant’s safety or the
safety of others, including by providing supportive measures. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Regardless of whether a Complaint is initiated, the Title IX Coordinator shall take other appropriate prompt and
effective steps, in addition to steps necessary to effectuate the remedies provided to an individual Complainant, if
any, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity.
(34 CFR 106.44(f))

Complaints of sex discrimination may be consolidated when they arise out of the same facts or circumstances,

773



including Complaints against more than one Respondent, Complaints by more than one Complainant, or Complaints
by one party against another party. (34 CFR 106.45(e))

Initial Evaluation

Upon receipt of a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall conduct a prompt initial evaluation to
determine whether to dismiss or investigate a complaint, within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

The Title IX Coordinator or designee may dismiss a Complaint of sex discrimination if (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. The district is unable to identify the Respondent after taking reasonable steps to do so;
 

2. The Respondent is not participating in a district education program or activity and is not employed by the
district;
 

3. The Complainant voluntarily withdraws any or all of the allegations in the Complaint, the
Title IX Coordinator declines to initiate a complaint, and the Title IX Coordinator determines that, without the
Complainant’s withdrawn allegations, the conduct that remains alleged in the Complaint, if any, would not
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX even if proven; or

 

4. The Title IX Coordinator or designee determines the conduct alleged in the Complaint, even if proven, would
not constitute sex discrimination under Title IX. Before dismissing the Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or
designee shall make reasonable efforts to clarify the allegations with the Complainant.

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall promptly notify the Complainant of the basis for
the dismissal. If the dismissal occurs after the Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX
Coordinator or designee shall also notify the Respondent of the dismissal and the basis for the dismissal promptly
following notification to the Complainant, or simultaneously if notification is in writing. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the Complainant that a dismissal may be appealed and shall provide
the Complainant with an opportunity to appeal the dismissal of a Complaint. If the dismissal occurs after the
Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall also notify the
Respondent that the dismissal may be appealed. Dismissals may be appealed on the following bases (34 CFR
106.45(d)):

 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;
 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the dismissal was
made; and
 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
Complainants or Respondents generally or the individual Complainant or Respondent that would change the
outcome.
 

If the dismissal is appealed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. Notify the parties of any appeal, including notice of the allegations, if notice was not previously provided to
the Respondent;
 

2. Implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;
 

774



3. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal did not take part in an investigation of the allegations or dismissal
of the Complaint;
 

4. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal has been trained consistent with 34 CFR 106.8;

 

5. Provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement in support of, or challenging, the
outcome; and
 

6. Notify the parties of the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result.

When a Complaint is dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall, at a minimum, undertake the following: (1)
offer supportive measures to the Complainant as appropriate; (2) if the Respondent has been notified of the
allegations, offer supportive measures to the Respondent as appropriate; and (3) take other prompt and effective
steps, as appropriate, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within a district education
program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

If a Complaint is dismissed, or in the absence of a Complaint, the conduct may still be addressed pursuant to other
board policies or district regulations where applicable, including but not limited to AR 4030.

If after an initial evaluation the Complaint is not dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator shall either initiate the district’s
grievance procedures or, if available and appropriate and requested by all the parties, an informal resolution process
as specified in the section below titled “Informal Resolution Process.” (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Notice of Allegations

Upon initiation of the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the
known parties in writing of the following (34 CFR 106.45(c)):
 

1. The district's Title IX grievance procedures and any informal resolution process;

 

2. Sufficient information available at the time to allow the parties to respond to the allegations, including the
identities of the parties involved in the incident(s), the conduct alleged to constitute sex discrimination, and the
date(s) and location(s) of the alleged incident(s);

 

3. A statement that retaliation is prohibited; and

 

4. A statement that the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence or an accurate description of this evidence. If a description of the evidence is provided,
the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise impermissible
evidence upon the request of any party.

If, in the course of an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator or designee decides to investigate additional allegations
of sex discrimination by the Respondent toward the Complainant that are not included in the notice provided or that
are included in a Complaint that is consolidated, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the known parties
of the additional allegations. (34 CFR 106.45(c))

Investigation Procedures

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall designate an investigator and a decisionmaker to determine whether sex
discrimination occurred. The investigator may be the same person as the decisionmaker. Neither the investigator nor
the decisionmaker may have a conflict of interest or bias and both shall have received training in accordance with 34
CFR 106.8.  

775



The designated investigator shall conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial by (34 CFR
106.45(b), (f)):
 

1. Ensuring that the burden is on the district’s investigator – not on the parties – to conduct an investigation that
gathers sufficient evidence to determine whether sex discrimination occurred. 

 

2. Ensuring that the parties have an equal opportunity to present fact witnesses and other inculpatory and
exculpatory evidence that are relevant and not otherwise impermissible.

 

3. Reviewing all evidence gathered through the investigation and determining what evidence is relevant and what
evidence is impermissible regardless of relevance.

 

4. Excluding the following types of evidence as impermissible, including questions seeking such evidence:

 

a. Evidence that is protected under a privilege recognized by Federal or State law unless the person to
whom the privilege or confidentiality is owed has voluntarily waived the privilege or confidentiality;

 

b. A party’s or witness’s records that are made or maintained by a physician, psychologist, or other
recognized professional or paraprofessional in connection with the provision of treatment to the party or
witness, unless the district obtains that party’s or witness’s voluntary, written consent for use in its
grievance procedures; and

 

c. Evidence that relates to the Complainant’s sexual interests or prior sexual conduct, unless evidence
about the Complainant’s prior sexual conduct is offered to prove that someone other than the
Respondent committed the alleged conduct or is evidence about specific incidents of the Complainant’s
prior sexual conduct with the Respondent that is offered to prove consent to the alleged sex-based
harassment. The fact of prior consensual sexual conduct between the Complainant and Respondent does
not by itself demonstrate or imply the Complainant’s consent to the alleged sex-based harassment or
preclude determination that sex-based harassment occurred.

 

5. Providing each party with an equal opportunity to access the evidence that is relevant to the allegations of sex
discrimination and not otherwise impermissible, by:

 

a. Providing an equal opportunity to access such evidence, or an accurate description of this evidence.  

If the parties are provided with a description of the evidence, the designated investigator shall, upon the request of
any party, provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence. 
 

b. Providing a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate description of the
evidence for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily waived by both
parties.

 

776



c. Taking reasonable steps to prevent and address the parties’ unauthorized disclosure of information and
evidence obtained solely through the grievance procedures. Disclosures of such information and
evidence for purposes of administrative proceedings or litigation related to the complaint of sex
discrimination are authorized.

Employees are required to participate as a witness in, or otherwise assist with, an investigation under this regulation.

The investigator shall complete the investigation within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

At the completion of the investigation, the investigator shall provide to the parties an evidence review period as
specified in the section below titled “Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Written Decision

At the completion of the investigation, if the designated investigator is not the decisionmaker, the investigator shall
provide all of the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence obtained in the investigation to the
decisionmaker.

If credibility is both in dispute and relevant to evaluating one or more allegations of sex discrimination, the district
must ensure that the decisionmaker is able to question parties and witnesses to adequately assess credibility.
Credibility determinations shall not be based on a person’s status as a Complainant, Respondent, or witness. (34 CFR
106.45(b), (g))

The decisionmaker shall apply the preponderance of the evidence standard to make a determination as to whether
sex discrimination occurred. If the decisionmaker is not persuaded under the preponderance of the evidence
standard that sex discrimination occurred, the decisionmaker must not determine that sex discrimination occurred.
(34 CFR 106.45(b), 106.45(h))

The district shall notify the parties in writing of the determination whether sex discrimination occurred under Title IX
including the rationale for such determination, and the procedures and permissible bases for the Complainant and
Respondent to appeal. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

The written decision shall be issued to the parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

Appeals

Either party may appeal the determination of a Complaint on one of the following bases:
 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;

 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the determination
or dismissal was made; or

 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the
outcome.

An appeal must be made in writing to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5) days of the issuance of the written
determination and must state the basis for the appeal.

Upon receipt of an appeal, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly notify the other party of the appeal, and that other
party shall have five (5) calendar days to respond to the request for an appeal.

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an appeal decisionmaker to hear the appeal. The appeal

777



decisionmaker shall not have a conflict of interest or bias and shall not have been previously involved in the
grievance procedures, including any informal resolution process, for the Complaint.

An appeal decision shall be issued in writing to both parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Either party has the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights within
180 days of the date of the most recently alleged misconduct.

In addition to filing a sex discrimination or sex-based harassment complaint with the district through the grievance
procedures in this regulation, a person may file a complaint with either the California Civil Rights Department (CRD)
or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) as described in AR 4030. 

Timelines for Grievance Procedures

The district’s Title IX grievance procedures shall be completed within the following timelines, unless extended as
specified below, or as otherwise permitted by law:

 

1. The Title IX Coordinator shall make an initial evaluation to determine whether to dismiss or investigate a
Complaint within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of a Complaint;

 

2. The investigation shall be completed within sixty (60) calendar days from receipt of the Complaint;

 

3. If the district offers an informal resolution process as provided under this regulation, and the parties voluntarily
engage in such a process, the timelines otherwise provided in this regulation shall exclude the time spent in the
informal resolution process;

 

4. At the completion of the investigation, the parties shall be provided with the evidence or an accurate
description of the evidence, and a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate
description of the evidence, for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily
waived by both parties;

 

5. A written decision shall be sent to the parties within ten (10) calendar days of the completion of the evidence
review period;

 

6. Any requests for an appeal shall be made within five (5) calendar days of the date the written decision is sent
to the parties;

 

7. Any response from a party to the request for an appeal shall be submitted within five (5) calendar days after
receiving notice of the appeal;

 

8. An appeal decision shall be issued within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the request for an appeal.

Any timelines specified in this regulation may be subject to reasonable extensions on a case-by-case basis for good
cause with notice to the parties that includes the reason for the delay. (34 CFR 106.45(b))

Supportive Measures

778



When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX, the Title IX Coordinator
or designee shall offer and coordinate supportive measures as appropriate for the Complainant and/or Respondent
to restore or preserve that person’s access to district education programs or activities or provide support during the
district’s Title IX grievance procedures or during an informal resolution process. Supportive measures may include:
counseling; increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus; restrictions on contact applied to one
or more parties; leaves of absence; changes in work, regardless of whether there is or is not a comparable
alternative; and training and education programs related to sex-based harassment. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

If the Respondent is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with one or more
members, as appropriate, of the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) team or 504 team, if any, to
determine how to comply with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and/or
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Supportive measures must not unreasonably burden either party and must be designed to protect the safety of the
parties or the district’s educational environment, or to provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or
during any informal resolution process. A district must not impose such measures for punitive or disciplinary reasons.
(34 CFR 106.44(g))

A Complainant or Respondent shall be provided with a timely opportunity to seek, from an appropriate and impartial
employee, modification or reversal of the decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate supportive measures
applicable to them. The impartial employee must be someone other than the employee who made the challenged
decision and must have authority to modify or reverse the decision, if the impartial employee determines that the
decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate the supportive measure was inconsistent with the definition of
supportive measures in 34 CFR 106.2. A Complainant or Respondent shall also be provided with the opportunity to
seek additional modification or termination of a supportive measure applicable to them if circumstances change
materially. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Upon the conclusion of the grievance procedures or any informal resolution process, the district may continue with
the supportive measures, or modify or terminate such measures, as appropriate. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Information about any supportive measures shall not be disclosed to persons other than the person to whom they
apply, including informing one party of supportive measures provided to another party, unless necessary to provide
the supportive measure or restore or preserve a party’s access to the education program or activity, or when an
exception in 34 CFR 106.44 applies. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Emergency Removal from School

Discipline shall not be imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations unless
there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited
sex discrimination. However, the district may remove a student Respondent from the district’s education program or
activity on an emergency basis, provided that the district undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis,
determines that an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of a Complainant or any students, employees,
or other persons arising from the allegations of sex discrimination justifies removal, and provides the Respondent
with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal. A student with a
disability may only be removed from school on an emergency basis in accordance with the IDEA and/or Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(h))  

If a district employee is the Respondent, the employee may be placed on administrative leave during the pendency of
the grievance process where permitted by law and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.  

Informal Resolution

At any time prior to determining whether sex discrimination occurred under these procedures, the district may offer
an informal resolution process to the parties if appropriate. However, the district shall not offer an informal
resolution process for allegations that an employee engaged in sex-based harassment of a student. (34 CFR
106.44(k))

The district has discretion to determine whether it is appropriate to offer an informal resolution process to the
parties when it receives information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination or when a
Complaint of sex discrimination is made, and may decline to offer informal resolution despite one or more of the

779



parties’ wishes. Circumstances when the district may decline to allow informal resolution include but are not limited
to when the district determines the alleged conduct would present a future risk of harm to others. (34 CFR
106.44(k))

The district shall not require or pressure the parties to participate in an informal resolution process. The district shall
obtain the parties’ voluntary consent to the informal resolution process and shall not require waiver of the right to an
investigation and determination of a Complaint as a condition of enrollment or continuing enrollment, or
employment or continuing employment, or exercise of any other right. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

The facilitator for the informal resolution process shall not be the same person as the investigator or the
decisionmaker in the district’s grievance procedures. Any person designated by the district to facilitate an informal
resolution process shall not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or Respondents generally
or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Any person facilitating informal resolution shall receive training under
34 CFR 106.8. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

Before initiation of an informal resolution process, the district must provide to the parties notice that explains (34
CFR 106.44(k)):
 

1. The allegations;

 

2. The requirements of the informal resolution process;

 

3. That, prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the informal resolution process
and to initiate or resume the district’s grievance procedures;

 

4. That the parties’ agreement to a resolution at the conclusion of the informal resolution process would preclude
the parties from initiating or resuming grievance procedures arising from the same allegations;

 

5. The potential terms that may be requested or offered in an informal resolution agreement (including notice
that an informal resolution agreement is binding only on the parties), which could include but are not limited to:

 

a. Restrictions on contact; and

 

b. Restrictions on the Respondent’s participation in one or more of the district’s programs or activities or
attendance at specific events, including restrictions the district could have imposed as remedies or
disciplinary sanctions had the district determined at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures
that sex discrimination occurred.

 

6. What information the district shall maintain and whether and how the district could disclose such information
for use in grievance procedures, if grievance procedures are initiated or resumed.

Any informal resolution agreement reached under this process shall not prevent or restrict the disclosure of factual
information. (Civ. Proc. Code 1001)

If the district provides the parties with an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator must, to the extent
necessary, take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or
recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

780



Remedies

If there is a determination that sex discrimination occurred, the Title IX Coordinator shall, as appropriate, coordinate
the provision and implementation of remedies to a Complainant and other persons the district identifies as having
had equal access to the district’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex discrimination; coordinate
the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions on a Respondent, including notification to the Complainant of any such
disciplinary sanctions; and take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does
not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

If there is a determination that sex-based harassment occurred, the district may provide remedies to the
Complainant that include but are not limited to referral to counseling services, referral to an Employee Assistance
Program, contact limitations between the parties, or adjustments to assignments and/or schedules.  

Corrective/Disciplinary Actions

The district may not impose discipline on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX unless there is a
determination at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

When an employee is found to have committed prohibited sex discrimination or retaliation, the district shall take
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

The district shall not discipline a party, witness, or others participating in the grievance procedures for making a false
statement or for engaging in consensual sexual conduct based solely on the district's determination of whether sex
discrimination, including sex-based harassment, occurred. (34 CFR 106.45)

Recordkeeping

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the following for at least a period of seven years (34 CFR 106.8):
 

1. For each Complaint of sex discrimination, records documenting the informal resolution process (if any) or the
grievance procedures and the resulting outcome;

 

2. For each notification the Title IX Coordinator receives of information about conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations, records documenting the actions the district took
to meet its obligations under 34 CFR 106.44, including supportive measures offered and implemented; and

 

3. All materials used to provide training under 34 CFR 106.8. The district shall make these training materials
available upon request for inspection by members of the public.

For complaints containing allegations of childhood sexual assault within the meaning of Code of Civil Procedure
340.1, the Superintendent or designee shall also indefinitely maintain the following:       
 

1. A record of the allegation(s);

 

2. A record of the investigation procedures followed;

 

3. A record of the written determination;

 

4. A record of the corrective action implemented, if any;

781



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 

5. A record of any appeals and the outcome of the same; and

 

6. All training materials addressing the prohibition and investigation of childhood sexual assault.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs
receiving state or federal financial assistance

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Civ. Code 51.9 Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional
relationships

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900.2 Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Gov. Code 12950.1 Sexual harassment training

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1092 Definition of sexual assault

20 USC 1221 Application of laws

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

34 USC 12291 Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking

42 USC 1983 Civil action for deprivation of rights

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

U.S. DOJ, FBI Publication National Incident-Based Reporting System

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Reese v. Jefferson School District (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736

Court Decision Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education (1999) 526 U.S. 629

Court Decision Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1998) 524 U.S. 274

Court Decision Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473

Court Decision Doe v. Petaluma City School District (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447

Court Decision Donovan v. Poway Unified School District (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567

Court Decision Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130

Federal Register
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, April 29, 2024, Vol. 89, No. 83,
pages 33474-33896

782

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=51.9.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1092 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1092)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1221 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1221)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:34 section:12291 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title34-section12291)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1983 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1983)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://ucr.fbi.gov/nibrs/2018/resource-pages/nibrs_offense_definitions-2018.pdf
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/04/29/2024-07915/nondiscrimination-on-the-basis-of-sex-in-education-programs-or-activities-receiving-federal


Website U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Investigation

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

3600 Consultants

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4131 Staff Development

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

783

https://www.justice.gov/doj/federal-bureau-investigation
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vrUL5jWsDxbgRF4r37zU8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==


Policy 4121: Temporary/Substitute PersonnelPolicy 4121: Temporary/Substitute Personnel Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board recognizes that substitute and temporary personnel perform an essential role in promoting
student achievement and desires to employ highly qualified, appropriately credentialed employees to fill such
positions.

Hiring

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend candidates for substitute or temporary positions for Board
approval, and shall ensure that all substitute and temporary employees are assigned in accordance with law and the
authorizations specified in their credential.

Substitute personnel may be employed on an on-call, day-to-day basis.

In addition, after September 1 of any school year, the Board may employ substitute personnel for the remainder of
the school year in positions for which no regular employee is available. The district shall first demonstrate to the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing the inability to acquire the services of a qualified regular employee. 
(Education Code 44917)

Permanent or probationary certificated employees who were laid off pursuant to Education Code 44955 and who
have a preferred right of reappointment shall be given priority for substitute service in the order of their original
employment.  (Education Code 44956, 44957)

Classification

At the time of initial employment and each July thereafter, the Board shall classify substitute and temporary
employees as such.  (Education Code 44915, 44916)

The Board may classify as substitute personnel a teacher hired to fill the position of a regularly employed person
who is absent from service.  (Education Code 44917)

To address the need for additional certificated employees when regular district employees are absent due to leaves
or long-term illness, the Board may classify a teacher who is employed for at least one semester and up to one
complete school year as a temporary employee. Any person whose service begins in the second semester and before
March 15 may be classified as a temporary employee, even if employed for less than a semester. The Board shall
determine the number of persons who shall be so employed, which shall not exceed the identified need based on the
absence of regular employees.  (Education Code 44920)

Additionally, the Board shall classify as temporary employees those certificated persons, other than substitute
employees, who are employed to:

1. Serve from day to day during the first three months of any school term to teach temporary classes which shall
not exist after that time, or perform any other duties which do not last longer than the first three months of
any school term  (Education Code 44919)
 

2. Teach in special day and evening classes for adults or in schools of migratory population for not more than four
months of any school term  (Education Code 44919)
 

3. Serve in a limited assignment supervising student athletic activities provided such assignments have first been
made available to teachers presently employed in the district  (Education Code 44919)
 

4. Serve in a position for a period not to exceed 20 working days, in order to prevent the stoppage of district
business during an emergency when persons are not immediately available for probationary classification 
(Education Code 44919)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

784



5. Serve only for the first semester, because the district expects a reduction in student enrollment during the
second semester due to mid-year graduations  (Education Code 44921)

For purposes of classifying employees pursuant to Item #1 or #2 above, the school year shall not be divided into
more than two school terms.  (Education Code 44919)

Any employee hired to provide services in a categorically funded program or project may be employed for a period
less than a full school year. An employee may be classified as a temporary employee if the period of employment will
end at the expiration of that program or project.  (Education Code 44909)

Salary and Benefits

The Board shall adopt and make public a salary schedule setting the daily or pay period rate(s) for substitute
employees for all categories or classes of certificated employees of the district.  (Education Code 44977, 45030)

OPTION 1: (Temporary employees participate in district benefits)

Temporary employees shall participate in the health and welfare plans or other fringe benefits of the district.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Temporary employees do not participate in district benefits)

Temporary employees shall not participate in the health and welfare plans or other fringe benefits of the district.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Paid Sick Leave

OPTION 1: (Paid leave accrual based on one hour for every 30 hours worked)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any temporary or substitute employee
who works for 30 or more days within a year of employment shall be entitled to one hour of paid sick leave for every
30 hours worked. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of
80 hours or ten days. However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours or five
days in each year of employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Paid leave accrual method that provides for a regular accrual basis)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any temporary or substitute employee
who works for 30 or more days within a year of  employment shall accrue, on a regular basis, paid sick leave of up to
24 hours by the 120th calendar day of employment or each calendar year or 12-month period, and at least 40 hours
of accrued sick leave by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-month period. Accrued
paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of 80 hours or ten days.
However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours or five days in each year of
employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

OPTION 3: (Paid leave that credits employees with sick leave at the beginning of each year and does not allow
unused sick leave to carry over to the next year)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any temporary or substitute employee
who works for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall be credited with 40 hours or five days of paid
sick leave for that year. Unused sick leave shall not carry over to the following year of employment.  (Labor Code
246)

785



OPTION 3 ENDS HERE

Any temporary or substitute employee may begin to use accrued paid sick days on the 90th day of employment,
after which the employee may use the sick days as they are accrued.  (Labor Code 246)

A temporary or substitute employee may use accrued sick leave for absences due to:  (Labor Code 246.5)

1. The employee's own need or the need of a family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the diagnosis,
care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care
 

2. Need of the employee to obtain or seek any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days and the district shall not in any manner discriminate
or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249. The Superintendent or designee shall display a
poster containing required information, provide notice to eligible employees of their sick leave rights, keep records of
employees' use of sick leave for three years, and comply with other requirements specified in Labor Code 245-249
and in Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave.

Release from Employment/Dismissal

The Board may dismiss a substitute employee at any time at its discretion.  (Education Code 44953)

The Board may release a temporary employee at its discretion if the employee has served less than 75 percent of the
number of days the regular schools of the district are maintained during one school year. After serving 75 percent of
the number of days that district schools are maintained during one school year, a temporary employee may be
released as long as the employee is notified, before the last day of June, of the district's decision not to reelect the
temporary employee for the following school year.  (Education Code 37200, 44954)

Reemployment as a Probationary Employee

Reemployment provisions contained in Education Code 44918 do not apply to districts with average daily
attendance of over 250,000; such districts should modify the following section accordingly.

Unless released from employment pursuant to Education Code 44954, any person employed for one complete
school year as a temporary employee shall, if reemployed for the following school year in a vacant position requiring
certification qualifications, be classified as a probationary employee. With the exception of on-call, day-to-day
substitutes, if a temporary or substitute employee performs the duties normally required of certificated employees
for at least 75 percent of the number of days the regular schools of the district were maintained in that school year
and is then employed as a probationary employee for the following school year, the employee's previous
employment as a temporary or substitute employee shall be credited as one year's employment as a probationary
employee for purposes of acquiring permanent status.  (Education Code 44917, 44918, 44920)

Vacant position means a position in which the employee is qualified to serve and which is not filled by a permanent
or probationary employee. It shall not include a position which would be filled by a permanent or probationary
employee except for the fact that such employee is on leave.  (Education Code 44920, 44921)

A temporary employee hired pursuant to Item #1 or #2 in the section "Classification" above shall be classified as a
probationary employee if the duties continue beyond the time limits of the assignment.  (Education Code 44919)

A person employed pursuant to Item #5 in the section "Classification" above who is then continued in employment
beyond the first semester shall be classified as a probationary employee for the entire school year and shall be
reemployed to fill any vacant position in the district for which the employee is certified. Preference for available
positions shall be determined by the Board as prescribed by Education Code 44845 and 44846.  (Education Code
44921)

786



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

With the exception of on-call, day-to-day substitutes, any temporary or substitute employee who was released
pursuant to Education Code 44954 but who has nevertheless served in a certificated position in the district for at
least 75 percent of each of two consecutive school years shall receive first priority if the district fills a vacant
position for the subsequent school year at the grade level at which the employee served during either year. In the
case of a departmentalized program, the employee shall have taught the subject matter in which the vacant position
occurs.  (Education Code 44918)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5502 Filing of notice of physical examination for employment of retired person

5 CCR 5503 Physical examination for employment of retired persons

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 80025-80025.5 Emergency substitute teaching permits

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22515 Irrevocable election to join retirement plan

Ed. Code 37200 School calendar

Ed. Code 44252.5 State basic skills assessment required for certificated personnel

Ed. Code 44300 Emergency permits

Ed. Code 44830 Employment of certificated persons

Ed. Code 44839.5 Requirements for employment of retirant

Ed. Code 44845 Date of employment

Ed. Code 44846 Criteria for reemployment preferences

Ed. Code 44909 Employees providing services through categorically funded programs

Ed. Code 44914 Substitute and probationary employment computation for classification as
permanent employee

Ed. Code 44915 Classification of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44917 Classification of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44918 Substitute or temporary employee deemed probationary employee;
reemployment rights

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44920 Employment of certain temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44921 Employment of temporary employees; reemployment rights (unified and
high school districts)

Ed. Code 44953 Dismissal of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44956 Rights of laid-off permanent employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44957 Rights of laid-off probationary employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 45030 Substitutes

Ed. Code 45041 Computation of salary

Ed. Code 45042 Alternative method of computation for less than one school year

787

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3617CFD14C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I361C8AC34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I362FEBB34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I75E67F804C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I76659A934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22515.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44252.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44839.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44845.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44846.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44909.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44914.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44915.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44917.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44918.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44920.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44921.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44953.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44956.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44977.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45030.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45041.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45042.


Ed. Code 45043 Compensation for employment beginning in the second semester

Ed. Code 56060-56063 Substitute teachers in special education

Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision McIntyre v. Sonoma Valley Unified School District (2012) 206 Cal.App.4th
170

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

Court Decision Stockton Teachers Association CTA/NEA v. Stockton Unified School District
(2012) 204 Cal.App.4th 446

Court Decision Bakersfield Elementary Teachers Association v. Bakersfield City School
District (2006) 145 Cal.App.4th 1260

Court Decision California Teachers Association v. Vallejo City Unified School District (2007)
149 Cal.App.4th 135

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0500 Accountability

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.1 Contracts

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4112.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

788

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45043.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=1.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3540.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=234.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.5.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HO2TobjEaXImT4CZqcERQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yCe8C7kWe75gfF55mrNriw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KHBYZcacwiCsNvAMIt6yzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wqGfK229M7hLlJ0XC464UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==


4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4212.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4251 Employee Compensation

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

789

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Qw55wsplusWapreuBu77rJwEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5DF7PiVrcMOslshPUMb2mLDiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6TogWNds3iE3eJAPzDkczg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4q0UEwAFzydTuBL3yuu5oA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l499G64HkCF4KEjVD0IGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TLVkcZfx0dKsA8sd4iZeeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=alZhT5G6ID73IOslshCDBMSbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jED6j2ftplusfmMeCpF6SKslshQ==


4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4312.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4340 Bargaining Units

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

790

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njqkN16qoZXT6lzB4G0ZslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gdtps7Z2fZ9I0mcPZhfTiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eaMuIXvJQQHosfOzBnzrrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gXOFbnEq0DplusslshOBAsdtAHpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aXEdBlWzo3nDtSuWv8t4plusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mFoPGONs6uqBVhM0b1O1Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qnN24plusCJDvN9OzbzpgOq6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G9AjRHI50rf6uo44xKppiQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4121: Temporary/Substitute PersonnelRegulation 4121: Temporary/Substitute Personnel Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

Qualifications

Any candidate recommended by the Superintendent or designee for a substitute or temporary position requiring
certification qualifications shall possess the appropriate credential or permit authorizing employment in such position
and shall meet all other requirements of law for certificated positions.  (Education Code 44830)

The district shall not initially hire a certificated person on a substitute or temporary basis in a capacity designated in
the person's credential unless the person has demonstrated basic skills proficiency in reading, writing, and
mathematics pursuant to Education Code 44252.5, or is exempted by law.  (Education Code 44830)

A noncredentialed person shall not substitute for any special education certificated position. The Superintendent or
designee shall recruit and maintain lists of appropriately credentialed substitute teachers for special education
positions. The Superintendent or designee shall contact institutes of higher education with approved special
education programs for possible recommendations of appropriately credentialed special education personnel. 
(Education Code 56060, 56063)

Notifications

Before starting work, each new temporary employee shall receive a written statement indicating employment status
and salary. This statement shall clearly indicate the temporary nature of the employment and the length of time for
which the person is being employed.  (Education Code 44916)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify all substitute and part-time certificated employees, within 30 days of
their hire, of their right to elect membership in a defined benefit program under a qualified retirement plan. The
employee shall sign a form provided by the system to acknowledge receipt of this notice and to indicate whether the
employee elects or declines membership. Election of membership shall be irrevocable for all future employment to
perform creditable service.  (Education Code 22455.5, 22515)

Assignments

A person who holds an emergency 30-day substitute permit, emergency career substitute permit, emergency
substitute permit for prospective teachers, or emergency substitute permit for career technical education shall be
restricted in the number of days the employee may substitute for any one teacher in accordance with 5 CCR 80025-
80025.5.

In placing substitute teachers in special education classrooms, the district shall give first priority to substitute
teachers with the appropriate special education credential(s), second priority to substitute teachers with any other
special education credential, and third priority to substitute teachers with a regular teaching credential. An
inappropriately credentialed substitute teacher shall not serve as a substitute for a special education teacher for a
period of more than 20 cumulative school days for each special education teacher absent during each school year.
The district may apply to the Superintendent of Public Instruction for an extension of 20 school days, or for a longer
period in extraordinary circumstances.  (Education Code 56060, 56061, 56062)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5502 Filing of notice of physical examination for employment of retired person

5 CCR 5503 Physical examination for employment of retired persons

5 CCR 5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of students

5 CCR 80025-80025.5 Emergency substitute teaching permits

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

791

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3617CFD14C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I361C8AC34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I362FEBB34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I75E67F804C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I76659A934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3


Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22515 Irrevocable election to join retirement plan

Ed. Code 37200 School calendar

Ed. Code 44252.5 State basic skills assessment required for certificated personnel

Ed. Code 44300 Emergency permits

Ed. Code 44830 Employment of certificated persons

Ed. Code 44839.5 Requirements for employment of retirant

Ed. Code 44845 Date of employment

Ed. Code 44846 Criteria for reemployment preferences

Ed. Code 44909 Employees providing services through categorically funded programs

Ed. Code 44914 Substitute and probationary employment computation for classification as
permanent employee

Ed. Code 44915 Classification of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44917 Classification of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44918 Substitute or temporary employee deemed probationary employee;
reemployment rights

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44920 Employment of certain temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 44921 Employment of temporary employees; reemployment rights (unified and
high school districts)

Ed. Code 44953 Dismissal of substitute employees

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44956 Rights of laid-off permanent employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44957 Rights of laid-off probationary employees to substitute positions

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 45030 Substitutes

Ed. Code 45041 Computation of salary

Ed. Code 45042 Alternative method of computation for less than one school year

Ed. Code 45043 Compensation for employment beginning in the second semester

Ed. Code 56060-56063 Substitute teachers in special education

Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

792

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22515.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44252.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44839.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44845.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44846.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44909.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44914.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44915.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44917.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44918.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44920.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44921.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44953.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44956.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44977.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45030.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45041.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45042.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45043.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=1.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3540.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=234.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.5.


Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision McIntyre v. Sonoma Valley Unified School District (2012) 206 Cal.App.4th
170

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

Court Decision Stockton Teachers Association CTA/NEA v. Stockton Unified School District
(2012) 204 Cal.App.4th 446

Court Decision Bakersfield Elementary Teachers Association v. Bakersfield City School
District (2006) 145 Cal.App.4th 1260

Court Decision California Teachers Association v. Vallejo City Unified School District (2007)
149 Cal.App.4th 135

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0500 Accountability

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.1 Contracts

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4112.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

793

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HO2TobjEaXImT4CZqcERQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yCe8C7kWe75gfF55mrNriw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KHBYZcacwiCsNvAMIt6yzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wqGfK229M7hLlJ0XC464UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==


4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4212.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4251 Employee Compensation

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.3 Oath Or Affirmation

4312.3-E PDF(1) Oath Or Affirmation

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

794

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Qw55wsplusWapreuBu77rJwEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5DF7PiVrcMOslshPUMb2mLDiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6TogWNds3iE3eJAPzDkczg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4q0UEwAFzydTuBL3yuu5oA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l499G64HkCF4KEjVD0IGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TLVkcZfx0dKsA8sd4iZeeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=alZhT5G6ID73IOslshCDBMSbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jED6j2ftplusfmMeCpF6SKslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njqkN16qoZXT6lzB4G0ZslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gdtps7Z2fZ9I0mcPZhfTiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eaMuIXvJQQHosfOzBnzrrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gXOFbnEq0DplusslshOBAsdtAHpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==


4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4340 Bargaining Units

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

795

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aXEdBlWzo3nDtSuWv8t4plusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mFoPGONs6uqBVhM0b1O1Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qnN24plusCJDvN9OzbzpgOq6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G9AjRHI50rf6uo44xKppiQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4127: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesPolicy 4127: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017

The Governing Board acknowledges that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of students
in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, and therefore desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the
district's interscholastic athletic activities in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and safety of
participating students.  

The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a substitute
employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary employee in a limited assignment
capacity. Interscholastic athletic activities include any activities in which student teams participate in interscholastic
competition.  (5 CCR 5590)

When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic activity team coach, the position shall first be made
available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district.  (Education Code 44919)

All coaches shall be subject to applicable law, Board policies, administrative regulations, and California Interscholastic
Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct.

Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591)

Qualifications and Training

The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in accordance with law
and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an appropriate level of competence,
knowledge, and skill.

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored interscholastic athletic
activity shall, prior to beginning the individual’s duties, submit to the Superintendent or designee either an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and
Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background clearance.  (Education Code 49024)

Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to the
Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that the coach meets the
qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State
Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the extent to which the
district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including those required pursuant to Education Code
33479.6, 35179.1, and 49032, and by district policy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 350 Fees not permitted

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

796

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AAC61634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I364BB1104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I364F33834C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.


Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

797

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45247.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45249.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=6.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=2.6.
https://www.cifstate.org/governance/constitution/index
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201601ConcussionsInStudentAthletes.ashx?la=en&rev=5426e7214aa540819e2534a64c1ec82d
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201807PreventingCatastrophicHeatIllness.ashx?la=en&rev=7436c3554336486db014b55033426ebc
https://positivecoach.org/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.nata.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ca-at.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==


4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

798

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


Regulation 4127: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesRegulation 4127: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017

Qualifications

Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not necessarily limited to,
competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593)

1.  Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency procedures, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and possession of a
valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card
 

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card
 

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card
 

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' Association
(NATA/CATA)
 

e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the supervision of an
athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and conditioning
 

2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one or more of the
following:
 

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques
 

b. Completion of in-service programs arranged by a school district or county office of education
 

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being coached
 

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached
 

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in the sport being
coached
 

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the league rules, and, at
the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF)
 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport participation, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions and adolescent
or sports psychology for secondary school positions
 

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth
 

c.  Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in appropriate training
courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons serve under the direct supervision of a fully
qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 CCR 5593)

Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria specified in 5 CCR 5593
required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. Any volunteer who does not meet such
criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

799



program.

Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary
athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592)

1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated teachers from
teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from a licensed physician or other
person approved by the district
 

2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 44424, or any
offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with children

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall obtain an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code
49024)

Training

Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at the individual's expense, a coaching
education program that meets the standards developed by CIF and includes, but is not limited to, training in regard to
sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport management, statewide and school regulations, CPR,
including certification, use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited
to, training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac
arrest. A high school coach who has completed the education program in another California school district shall be
deemed to have met the requirement for this district. An individual who has not completed the education program
may be assigned as a coach for no longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1,
49032)

In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches shall complete an
approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2,
33479.6, 33479.7)

Code of Ethical Conduct

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596)

1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches
 

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials
 

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct
 

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority
 

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times
 

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players
 

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and standards of the game
 

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment
 

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at any public or private
postsecondary educational institution
 

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to be eligible to
participate in athletics

800



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, anabolic steroids, or any

substance to increase physical development or performance that is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American Medical Association
 

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools
 

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the district and the league
in which the district participates

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 350 Fees not permitted

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

801

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AAC61634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I364BB1104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I364F33834C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45247.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45249.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=6.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=2.6.
https://www.cifstate.org/governance/constitution/index
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201601ConcussionsInStudentAthletes.ashx?la=en&rev=5426e7214aa540819e2534a64c1ec82d
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201807PreventingCatastrophicHeatIllness.ashx?la=en&rev=7436c3554336486db014b55033426ebc
https://positivecoach.org/


Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

802

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.nata.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ca-at.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==


6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

803

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


Policy 4140: Bargaining UnitsPolicy 4140: Bargaining Units Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/18/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The Governing Board recognizes the right of district employees to form a bargaining unit and to select an employee
organization as the exclusive representative for the employees in the employees' employment relationship with the
district. The Board is committed to negotiating in good faith with the exclusive representative and respecting the
rights of employees and employee organizations.

The district shall not dominate or interfere with the formation or administration of any employee organization or
contribute financial or other support to it.  (Government Code 3543.5)

Employees shall not be prohibited from wearing union buttons, insignia, or other pictorial or written messages that
favor or oppose the formation of a bargaining unit or any matter that is the subject of negotiations.

Formation of Bargaining Units

Certificated and classified employees shall not be included in the same bargaining unit. (Government Code 3545)

A bargaining unit of certificated or classified supervisory employees may only be recognized if the bargaining unit
includes all certificated or classified supervisory employees, respectively, and is not represented by the same
employee organization that represents district employees who are supervised by the supervisory employees.
 (Government Code 3545)

For this purpose, supervisory employee means any employee, regardless of job description, having authority, in the
interest of the district, to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other
employees, or the responsibility to assign work to, direct, or adjust grievance of other employees, or effectively
recommend that action, when the exercise of that authority is not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires
the use of independent judgment.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Employees serving in management, senior management, or confidential positions shall not be represented by an
exclusive representative. In the employment relationship with the district, employees who serve in a management,
senior management, or confidential position may represent themselves or be represented by an employee
organization whose membership is composed entirely of employees designated as holding those positions. However,
an employee organization representing management, senior management, or confidential employees shall not be
permitted to meet and negotiate with the district on behalf of the employees.  (Education Code 45100.5,
Government Code 3543.4)

Management employee means an employee in a position having significant responsibilities for formulating district
policies or administering district programs.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Confidential employee means any employee who is required to develop or present management positions with
respect to employer-employee relations or whose duties normally require access to confidential information that is
used to contribute significantly to the development of management positions.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Membership

The district shall not deter or discourage employees or job applicants from becoming or remaining members of an
employee organization, authorizing representation by an employee organization, or authorizing dues or fee
deductions to an employee organization. In addition, the district shall not impose or threaten to impose reprisals on
employees, discriminate or threaten to discriminate against employees, or otherwise interfere with, restrain, or
coerce employees because of their membership or nonmembership in an employee organization.  (Government Code
3543.5, 3550, 3551.5)

District Communications to Employees

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

804



The Superintendent or designee may communicate with district employees regarding their rights to join and/or
support or to refrain from joining or supporting an officially recognized employee organization. Such communications
shall be factual and accurate and may not promise a benefit, threaten a reprisal, or in any way deter or discourage
employees from joining an employee organization or paying dues.

The district may disseminate written documents, recorded messages, or other mass communications to actual or
perspective employees represented by an exclusive representative concerning their rights to join and/or support, or
refrain from joining and/or supporting, an employee organization only after the Superintendent or designee meets
and confers with the exclusive representative concerning the content of the mass communication. If the district and
exclusive representative do not come to agreement on the content of the mass communication and the district still
chooses to disseminate it, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the exclusive representative provide a
communication of reasonable length to the district that shall be disseminated to the employees at the same time as
the district's own mass communication.  (Government Code 3556)

Access to New Employee Orientations

The district shall permit each exclusive representative access to new employee orientation or onboarding process
where newly hired employees represented by the exclusive representative are advised, whether in person, online, or
through other means or mediums, of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties, responsibilities, or any other
employment-related matters. The district shall provide the exclusive representative at least 10 days' notice in
advance of an orientation, except that a shorter notice may be provided where there is an urgent need critical to the
district's operations that was not reasonably foreseeable.  (Government Code 3556)

Following a request to negotiate by either party, the structure, time, and manner of access to new employee
orientations shall be determined by mutual agreement of the district and the exclusive representative. If the district
and exclusive representative fail to reach an agreement, the structure, time, and manner of access to the new
employee orientation shall be subject to compulsory interest arbitration. The district and the exclusive
representative may mutually agree to submit any dispute to compulsory interest arbitration at any time. In addition,
if any dispute arises during negotiations and is not resolved within 45 days after the first meeting or within 60 days
after the initial request to negotiate, whichever is earlier, either party may make a demand for compulsory interest
arbitration. When any such dispute arises during the summer when the district's administrative office is closed, the
timeline shall commence on the first day the administrative office reopens. The arbitrator's decision shall be issued
within 10 days and shall be final and binding on the parties.  (Government Code 3556, 3557)

The date, time, and place of a new employee orientation shall not be disclosed to anyone other than employees, the
exclusive representative, or a vendor that is contracted to provide a service for purposes of the orientation.
 (Government Code 3556)

Until June 30, 2025, unless the district and the exclusive representative have agreed otherwise, when the district has
not conducted an in-person orientation within 30 days of hiring a new employee, the Superintendent or designee
shall permit the exclusive representative to schedule an in-person meeting during employment hours at the new
employee's worksite, during which the new employee shall have the opportunity to attend and shall be relieved of
other duties for the purpose of attending the meeting. The district shall provide appropriate space at the worksite
within seven calendar days of receiving a request from the exclusive representative.  (Government Code 3556, 3557)

During this meeting, the exclusive representative shall be permitted to communicate directly with the new
employees for up to 30 minutes of paid time.  (Government Code 3556)

Access to Employee Contact Information

The Superintendent or designee shall provide an exclusive representative with the name, job title, department, work
location, telephone numbers (work, home, and personal cell phone), of all employees represented by the exclusive
representative on file with the district. An employee's personal email address shall only be disclosed if it used by the
employee to conduct district business.

Such information shall be provided within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire for all

805



new employees represented by the exclusive representative, unless the exclusive representative has agreed to a
different interval for the provision of the information. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the
exclusive representative with the same information for all employees represented by the exclusive representative
every 120 days, unless more frequent disclosure is required by agreement with the exclusive representative.
 (Government Code 3558, 7928.300)

However, the Superintendent or designee shall not disclose:  (Government Code 3558, 6205-6210, 6215-6216,
7928.300)

1. The home address and any phone numbers on file for employees performing law enforcement-related
functions

2. The home address, home telephone or personal cell phone number(s), or personal email address(es) of any
employee who is a participant in the Safe at Home address confidentiality program pursuant to Government
Code 6205-6210 and 6215-16
 

3. The employee's home address, home telephone and personal cell phone numbers, and personal email address
of an employee not performing law enforcement related functions if the employee has submitted a written
request to the district to keep such information private. In such instances, the Superintendent or designee shall
also remove the employee's home address, home telephone number, and personal cell phone number from any
mailing list maintained by the district unless the list is only used by the district to contact the employee.

Within 20 calendar days after an exclusive representative notifies the Superintendent or designee that a list of
employees provided by the district is inaccurate or incomplete, the Superintendent or designee shall take steps to
correct the list and provide a new list of employees to the exclusive representative.  (Government Code 3558)

The Superintendent or designee shall review the list of contact information for district employees at the beginning of
each school year, or more often as appropriate.

Communications with Employees by Employee Organizations

Subject to reasonable regulation by the district, employee organizations shall have access, at reasonable times, to the
work areas of employees represented by the employee organization and to district facilities for the purpose of
meeting with employees represented by the employee organization. Access may be limited in instances where it
would be disruptive to district operations.  (Government Code 3543.1)

Additionally, subject to reasonable regulation by the district, employee organizations shall have the ability to use
institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, and other means of communication to communicate with employees
represented by the employee organization.  (Government Code 3543.1)

Membership Dues or Other Payments to an Employee Organization

When drawing an order for the salary or wage payment of a bargaining unit employee of an employee organization,
the district shall deduct any amount that has been requested by the employee in a revocable written authorization
for the purpose of paying dues or other payments for any service, program, or committee provided or sponsored by
the employee organization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

When an employee organization has certified to the district that it has and will maintain individual employee
authorizations for payroll deductions, the district shall rely on information from the employee organization regarding
the amounts of such payroll deductions and the employees to whom they apply and shall not handle or process
employee written authorizations for the employees represented by such employee organization. The district also
shall not require a copy of the written authorization to be submitted by the employee organization, except when
there is a dispute about the existence or terms of the written authorization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

A written authorization shall remain in effect until expressly revoked in writing by the employee and pursuant to the
terms of the written authorization. Employee requests to cancel or change authorizations for payroll deductions for
employee organizations shall be directed to the employee organization that represents the employee rather than the
district. The employee organization shall be responsible for processing these requests. The district shall rely on the

806



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

information provided by the employee organization regarding whether deductions for an employee organization
were properly canceled or changed. The employee organization shall be required to indemnify the district for any
claims made by an employee for deductions made by the district in reliance on information from the employee
organization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

When an employee organization has declined to certify that it will handle and process written authorizations from
employee(s) represented by the employee organization and makes a request for payroll deductions, the district shall
request a copy of the written authorization for an employee before making the payroll deductions for that employee.
 (Education Code 45060, 45168)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 33015-33490 Recognition of exclusive representative; proceedings

8 CCR 33700-33710 Severance of established unit

Ed. Code 45060-45061.5 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment; certificated employees

Ed. Code 45100.5 Senior classified management positions

Ed. Code 45104.5 Abolishment of senior classified management positions

Ed. Code 45108.5 Definition of senior classified management employees

Ed. Code 45108.7 Waiver of provisions of Education Code 45108.5

Ed. Code 45168 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment; classified employees

Ed. Code 45220-45320 Merit system; classified employees

Gov. Code 3500-3511 Local public employee organizations

Gov. Code 3507.7 Representation of temporary employees

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Gov. Code 3543.4 Management and confidential positions; representation

Gov. Code 3545 Appropriateness of unit; basis

Gov. Code 3550-3552 Prohibition on public employers deterring or discouraging union
membership

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

Gov. Code 53260-53264 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 6205-6210 Confidentiality of addresses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, or child abduction

Gov. Code 6215-6216 Address confidentiality for individuals who face threats or violence because
of work for a public entity

Gov. Code 6503.5 Joint powers agencies; agreement

Gov. Code 7928.300 Disclosure of employee contact information to employee organization

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision County of Los Angeles v. Los Angeles County Employee Relations
Commission (2013) 56 Cal. 4th 905

Court Decision Friedrichs v. California Teachers Association, et al. (2016) 136 S.Ct. 1083

Court Decision Janus v. American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees,
Council 31 (2018) 138 S.Ct. 2448

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling Regents of the University of California (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1700-H.

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling Desert Community College District (2007) PERB Dec. No. 1921

807

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=IB5AC9B005A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#IB5B0E0C35A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45100.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45104.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45108.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45108.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45168.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=9.&title=&part=&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3507.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3540.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=6503.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7928.300.


Public Employment Relations Board Ruling East Whittier School District (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1727

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling City of Sacramento (2019) PERB Dec. No. 2702

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Website Association of California School Administrators

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1431 Waivers

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

808

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cft.org
http://www.perb.ca.gov
http://www.csea.com
http://www.cta.org
http://www.acsa.org
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ikwhky3RnE91hYDa7IlSuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0AS5Thslsh7nT4SNVplusryqONdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sglf5xVtilpRV7u6aDyjXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kZSplusmbBylVJaSR8plusKQgNlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5DF7PiVrcMOslshPUMb2mLDiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0t9pCQoKyKgb8KK1zcLWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjJ8dUjzXBuq4jQVtwTilA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ABGqplusKhgcDuxXkEIYU1UslshA==


4251 Employee Compensation

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4301 Administrative Staff Organization

4312.1 Contracts

4315 Evaluation/Supervision

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361.2 Personal Leaves

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

809

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jED6j2ftplusfmMeCpF6SKslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZSDYZnWJbKBtY3IS6KwJlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=43ckWjavfMnRcTpW4OQNpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1JnrSvhCfnqPIG8sUTFnjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XEEIofWfBEyvWQZoFslshuwbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mFoPGONs6uqBVhM0b1O1Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4157: Employee SafetyPolicy 4157: Employee Safety Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/18/2021

The Governing Board is committed to maximizing employee safety and believes that workplace safety is the
responsibility of every employee. Working conditions and equipment shall comply with standards prescribed by
federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

No employee shall be required or permitted to be in any place of employment which is unsafe or unhealthful.  (Labor
Code 6402)

The Superintendent or designee shall promote safety and correct any unsafe work practices through education and
enforcement.

All employees are expected to use safe work practices and, to the extent possible, correct any unsafe conditions that
may occur. If an employee is unable to correct an unsafe condition, the employee shall immediately report the
problem to the Superintendent or designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and implement a written injury and illness prevention program that
includes a workplace violence prevention plan and that provides employees with access to such program in
accordance with law.  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203)

The Superintendent or designee shall make first aid materials readily available at district workplaces and shall make
effective provisions to prepare for prompt medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury or illness.
 (8 CCR 3400)

No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against for exercising any right regarding employee safety or
health specified in Labor Code 6310, including:

1. Making a report or complaint
 

2. Instituting proceedings or causing proceedings to be instituted
 

3. Testifying with regard to employee safety or health
 

4. Participating in any occupational health and safety committee established pursuant to Labor Code 6401.7
 

5. Requesting access to injury or illness reports and records
 

6. Exercising any other right protected by the Occupational Safety and Health Act

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

8 CCR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CCR 3203 Injury and illness prevention program

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 3400 Medical services and first aid

8 CCR 5095-5100 Control of noise exposure

8 CCR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Ed. Code 32030-32034 Eye safety

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

810

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA506C3A35A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2997DB735A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3180B2D25A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43020D605A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4306A1435A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4AFF57235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=3.


Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 1139 Worker's rights in emergencies

Lab. Code 132a Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination

Lab. Code 3300 Definition of employer

Lab. Code 6305 Occupational safety and health standards; special order

Lab. Code 6310 Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited

Lab. Code 6325 Prohibition of entry into place of employment

Lab. Code 6400-6413.5 Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees

Lab. Code 6401.7 Injury and illness prevention program

Lab. Code 6401.9 Workplace violence prevention plans

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

29 CFR 1910.1030 Bloodborne pathogens

29 CFR 1910.95 Noise standards

29 CFR 651-678 Occupational safety and health

8 CFR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CFR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CFR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program,
rev. August 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

811

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=132a.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6305.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6310.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6325.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.9.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-Z/section-1910.1030
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-G/section-1910.95
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh
http://www.osha.gov
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.hearingconservation.org
http://www.cdc.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==


3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4131 Staff Development

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4157.2 Ergonomics

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4231 Staff Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

812

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nS2wDZsHHIG4ZB2Fn4Geug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sRcslshe3arGplusAMzKkUvOBeqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GNQSA66OvhpnuQ6X3tLvpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rhCLEtplus6plus95wOD74SplusGTsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMMixE0quSYqoekTKt54JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n75LeISTFf0Si4frsAE10Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==


4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.2 Ergonomics

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4331 Staff Development

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4357.2 Ergonomics

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

6142.93 Science Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

813

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OAOFZLeNyprD5s79QXK5Zg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HLMzSmqplusplus1gwwslKGHsSfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfLc4SRUEYPj1LDHoENslshRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==


Regulation 4157: Employee SafetyRegulation 4157: Employee Safety Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/18/2021

The Superintendent or designee shall provide safety devices and implement safeguards, methods, and processes that
are reasonably necessary for the safety and health of employees in the workplace.  (Labor Code 6401)

If the Department of Industrial Relations Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) prohibits entry into
any district workplace or performance of a district operation or process based on a determination that the workplace
exposes employees to the risk of an imminent hazard, including a machine, device, apparatus, or equipment that is in
a dangerous condition or is dangerously placed, the Superintendent or designee shall post a notice of the hazard
provided by Cal/OSHA in a conspicuous place at the work site. This notice shall not be removed except by an
authorized representative of Cal/OSHA and only when the workplace, operation, or process is made safe, and the
required safeguards, safety appliances, or devices are provided.  (Labor Code 6325)

Injury and Illness Prevention Program

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall cover all district employees and all other workers whom the
district controls or directs and directly supervises on the job to the extent that the workers are exposed to hazards
specific to their worksite and job assignment. The obligation of contractors or other employers who control or direct
and supervise their own employees on the job shall not be affected by the district's injury and illness prevention
program.  (Labor Code 6401.7)

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall include:  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203)

1. The name/position of the person(s) with authority and responsibility for implementing the program
 

2. A system for ensuring that employees comply with safe and healthful work practices, which may include, but
are not limited to:
 

a. Recognition of employees who follow safe and healthful work practices
 

b. Training and retraining programs
 

c. Disciplinary actions

3. A system for communicating with employees in a form readily understandable by all employees on matters
related to occupational health and safety, including provisions designed to encourage employees to report
hazards at the worksite without fear of reprisal.  The communications system may include, but is not limited to:

a. Meetings
 

b. Training programs
 

c. Posting
 

d. Written communications
 

e. A system of anonymous notification by employees about hazards

f. A labor/management safety and health committee
 

4. Procedures for identifying and evaluating workplace hazards, including scheduled periodic inspections to
identify unsafe conditions and work practices. Such inspections shall be made:
 

a. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment that represents a new occupational
safety or health hazard is introduced into the workplace
 

b. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard
 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

814



5. A procedure for investigating occupational injury or illness
 

6. Methods and/or procedures for correcting unsafe or unhealthful conditions, work practices, and work
procedures in a timely manner, based on the severity of the hazard, when the hazard is observed or discovered

When an imminent hazard exists that cannot be immediately abated without endangering employee(s) and/or
property, these procedures shall call for the removal of all exposed staff from the area except those necessary
to correct the hazardous condition. Employees needed to correct the condition shall be provided with the
necessary safeguards.
 

7. Provision of training and instruction as follows:
 

a. To all new employees
 

b. To all employees given new job assignments for which training has not previously been received
 

c. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced into the workplace and
represent a new hazard
 

d. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard
 

e. To supervisors, to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to which employees under their
immediate direction and control may be exposed

8. A written workplace violence prevention plan developed and implemented in accordance with Labor Code
6401.9  (Labor Code 6401.7)

The plan, which shall be easily accessible to all employees at all times, shall be in effect at all times and in all
work areas, and be specific to the hazards and corrective measures for each work area and operation.  (Labor
Code 6401.9)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to all employees when the plan is first established and
annually thereafter in accordance with Labor Code 6401.9. Training materials shall be appropriate in content
and vocabulary to employees' educational level, literacy, and language.  (Labor Code 6401.9)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees, or their representative designated pursuant to 8 CCR
3203, with either of the following:  (8 CCR 3203)

1. Access to the district's injury and illness prevention program in a reasonable time, place, and manner, but in no
event later than five business days after the request for access is received from an employee or a designated
representative of the employee.

When an employee or designated representative requests a copy of the district's injury and illness prevention
program, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the requester a printed copy unless the employee or
designated representative agrees to receive an electronic copy.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide one printed copy free of charge. If the employee or designated
representative requests additional copies within one year of the previous request and the district's injury and
illness prevention program has not been updated with new information since the prior copy was provided, the
district may charge reasonable reproduction costs pursuant to 8 CCR 3204 for the additional copies.

2. Unobstructed access to the district's injury and illness prevention program through the district's server or
website that allows an employee to review, print, and email the current version of the district's injury and
illness prevention program.

The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the right and procedure to access the district's injury and illness
prevention program to all employees.  (8 CCR 3203)

Labor/Management Safety and Health Committee

815



The district's labor/management safety and health committee shall:  (8 CCR 3203)

1. Meet regularly, but not less than quarterly.
 

2. Prepare and make available to affected employees written records of the safety and health issues discussed at
committee meetings and maintained for review by Cal/OSHA upon request. These records shall be maintained
for at least one year.
 

3. Review results of the periodic, scheduled worksite inspections.
 

4. Review investigations of occupational accidents and causes of incidents resulting in occupational injury or
illness or exposure to hazardous substances. As appropriate, the committee may submit suggestions to the
Superintendent or designee regarding the prevention of future incidents.
 

5. Review investigations of alleged hazardous conditions brought to the attention of any committee member.
When determined necessary by the committee, it may conduct its own inspection and investigation to assist in
remedial solutions.
 

6. Submit recommendations to assist in the evaluation of employee safety suggestions.
 

7. Upon request of Cal/OSHA, verify abatement action taken by the district to abate citations issued by
Cal/OSHA.

Hearing Protection

Whenever employee noise exposure equals or exceeds the standards specified by law, the Superintendent or
designee shall implement a hearing conservation program in accordance with state and federal regulations, including,
when required, monitoring of sound levels, audiogram evaluation and audiometric testing of affected employees, the
provision of hearing protectors, and employee training.  (8 CCR 5095-5100; 29 CFR 1910.95)

Eye Safety Devices

Employees shall wear eye safety devices whenever they are engaged in or observing an activity involving hazards or
hazardous substances likely to cause eye injury.  (Education Code 32030-32034)

First Aid and Medical Services

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the ready availability of medical personnel for advice and consultation
on matters of industrial health or injury. Whenever a district facility or district grounds are not in close proximity to
an infirmary, clinic, or hospital where all injured employees may be treated, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that at least one employee is adequately trained to provide first aid.  (8 CCR 3400)

The Superintendent or designee shall make adequate first aid materials readily available for employees at every
worksite. Such materials shall be approved by a consulting physician and shall be kept in a sanitary and usable
condition. The Superintendent or designee shall frequently inspect all first aid materials and replenish them as
necessary.  (8 CCR 3400)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that suitable facilities for quick drenching or flushing of the eyes and
body are provided within the work area for immediate emergency use when the eyes or body or any person may be
exposed to injurious corrosive materials.  (8 CCR 3400)

To avoid unnecessary delay in medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury or illness, the
Superintendent or designee shall use one or more of the following:  (8 CCR 3400)

1. A communication system for contacting a physician or emergency medical service, such as access to 911 or
equivalent telephone system. The communication system or the employees using the system shall have the
ability to direct emergency services to the location of the injured or ill employee.
 

2. Readily accessible and available on-site treatment facilities suitable for treatment of reasonably anticipated
injury and illness

816



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
3. Proper equipment for prompt medical transport when transportation of injured or ill employees is necessary

and appropriate

Protection from Communicable Diseases and Infections

The Superintendent or designee shall develop an exposure control plan for bloodborne pathogens that is consistent
with the district's injury and illness prevention program. The plan shall include a determination of which job
classifications have occupational exposure to blood or other potentially infectious materials; precautions to be
implemented, including universal precautions, engineering and work practice controls, and personal protective
equipment; availability of the hepatitis B vaccination; provision of information and training to employees; and follow-
up actions to be taken if exposure occurs. The district shall ensure that a copy of the exposure control plan is
accessible to employees in accordance with law.  (8 CCR 5193; 29 CFR 1910.1030)

Strategies to prevent and mitigate the outbreak or spread of infectious diseases shall be followed for diseases that
are communicated through airborne transmission, skin-to-skin contact, foodborne transmission, or other casual or
noncasual means. Such strategies shall include, but are not limited to, communication and training about the
disease(s); campus closures and alternative means of instruction when necessary; preventative measures, such as
social distancing, personal protective equipment, temperature checks, and/or any other health screening allowed by
law; and cleaning and sanitization of district facilities and equipment.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report to the local health officer the presence or suspected
presence of any communicable disease.  (17 CCR 2508)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

8 CCR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CCR 3203 Injury and illness prevention program

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 3400 Medical services and first aid

8 CCR 5095-5100 Control of noise exposure

8 CCR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Ed. Code 32030-32034 Eye safety

Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 1139 Worker's rights in emergencies

Lab. Code 132a Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination

Lab. Code 3300 Definition of employer

Lab. Code 6305 Occupational safety and health standards; special order

Lab. Code 6310 Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited

Lab. Code 6325 Prohibition of entry into place of employment

Lab. Code 6400-6413.5 Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees

Lab. Code 6401.7 Injury and illness prevention program

Lab. Code 6401.9 Workplace violence prevention plans

817

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA506C3A35A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2997DB735A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3180B2D25A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43020D605A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4306A1435A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4AFF57235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=132a.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6305.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6310.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6325.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.9.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

29 CFR 1910.1030 Bloodborne pathogens

29 CFR 1910.95 Noise standards

29 CFR 651-678 Occupational safety and health

8 CFR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CFR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CFR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program,
rev. August 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

818

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-Z/section-1910.1030
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-G/section-1910.95
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh
http://www.osha.gov
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.hearingconservation.org
http://www.cdc.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nS2wDZsHHIG4ZB2Fn4Geug==


4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4131 Staff Development

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4157.2 Ergonomics

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4231 Staff Development

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.2 Ergonomics

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

819

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sRcslshe3arGplusAMzKkUvOBeqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GNQSA66OvhpnuQ6X3tLvpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rhCLEtplus6plus95wOD74SplusGTsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMMixE0quSYqoekTKt54JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n75LeISTFf0Si4frsAE10Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OAOFZLeNyprD5s79QXK5Zg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HLMzSmqplusplus1gwwslKGHsSfw==


4319.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4331 Staff Development

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4357.2 Ergonomics

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

6142.93 Science Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

820

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfLc4SRUEYPj1LDHoENslshRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4157.1: Work-Related InjuriesRegulation 4157.1: Work-Related Injuries Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

In order to provide medical benefits, temporary or permanent disability benefits, wage replacement, retraining or skill
enhancement, and/or death benefits in the event that an employee becomes injured or ill in the course of
employment, the district shall provide all employees with insurance and workers' compensation benefits in
accordance with law. The Superintendent or designee shall develop an efficient claims handling process that reduces
costs and facilitates employee recovery.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify every new employee, at the time of hire or by the end of the first pay
period, of the employee's right to receive workers' compensation benefits if injured at work.  (Labor Code 3551; 8
CCR 15596)

In addition, a notice regarding workers' compensation benefits shall be posted in a conspicuous location frequented
by employees, where the notice may be easily read during the workday.  (Labor Code 3550)

In the event that an employee is injured or becomes ill in the course of employment, the employee shall report the
work-related injury or illness to the Superintendent or designee as soon as practicable. The employee and
appropriate district staff shall also promptly document the date and time of any incident, a description of the
incident, and any persons present.

Within one working day of receiving notice or knowledge of any injury to an employee in the course of employment,
the Superintendent or designee shall provide a claim form and notice of potential eligibility for workers'
compensation benefits to the employee or, in the case of the employee's death, to the employee's dependents. The
claim form and notice shall be provided personally or by first class mail.  (Labor Code 5401)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employee notices described above are in the form prescribed by
the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), Division of Workers Compensation.

The Superintendent or designee shall additionally ensure that any employee who is a victim of a crime that occurred
at the place of employment is given written notice personally or by first class mail within one working day of the
crime, or when the district reasonably should have known of the crime, that the employee is eligible for workers'
compensation benefits for injuries, including psychiatric injuries, that may have resulted from the crime.  (Labor Code
3553)

Upon learning of a work-related injury or illness, or injury or illness alleged to have arisen out of and in the course of
employment, the Superintendent or designee shall report the incident to the district's insurance carrier or DIR, as
applicable, within five days after obtaining knowledge of the injury or illness. If a subsequent death arises as a result
of the reported injury or illness, an amended report indicating the death shall be filed within five days after being
notified of or learning about the death.  (Labor Code 6409.1)

In addition, in every case involving death or serious injury or illness, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately
make a report to the Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) by telephone or through an online
mechanism made available by Cal/OSHA.  (Labor Code 6409.1)

For the purpose of this report, serious injury or illness means any injury or illness occurring in a place of employment
or in connection with any employment that requires inpatient hospitalization for other than medical observation or
diagnostic testing, or in which an employee suffers an amputation, the loss of an eye, or any serious degree of
permanent disfigurement.  (Labor Code 6302)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 15596 Notice of employee rights to workers' compensation benefits

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

821

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA6CD3B835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)


Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Lab. Code 3200-4856 Workers' compensation

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 3600-3605 Conditions of liability

Lab. Code 3760 Report of injury to insurer

Lab. Code 4600 Provision of medical and hospital treatment by employer

Lab. Code 4906 Disclosures and statements

Lab. Code 5400-5413 Notice of injury or death

Lab. Code 6302 Definition of serious injury or illness

Lab. Code 6409.1 Reports

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Workers' Compensation in California: A Guidebook for Injured Workers,
2016

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Workers' Compensation Claim Form (DWC 1) & Notice of Potential
Eligibility

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Notice to Employees - Injuries Caused by Work

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Time of Hire Pamphlet

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Workers
Compensation

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Public Health

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3320-E PDF(1) Claims And Actions Against The District

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

822

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3760.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=4600.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=4906.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6409.1.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.dir.ca.gov/dwc
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cdph.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4EBplusTtUIhoHuqi6oSdslshURg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9JbfbGnh7plusxoAd0OhM50Wg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jZVgb2EwMpfVREY844c3ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==


4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.2 Ergonomics

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.2 Ergonomics

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.2 Ergonomics

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

823

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QdAYOi3LWCjpslshWly8PXR9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8BWeWybYAmE6SKbR4Pgplusmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8uHplus8BW3Aplus9fCZplusRv3VV6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Policy 4161: LeavesPolicy 4161: Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board shall provide for paid and unpaid leaves of absence for employees in accordance with law,
Board policy, administrative regulation, collective bargaining agreements, and merit system rules, as applicable.

Employees have the right to take leaves as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreements, including, but
not limited to:

1. Personal illness or injury
 

2. Industrial accident or illness
 

3. Family care and medical leave
 

4. Military service
 

5. Personal necessity and personal emergencies

6. Disability leave for certificated employees in accordance with Education Code 44986
 

7. Vacations for classified staff and certificated management staff, as applicable
 

8. Sabbaticals for purposes of study or training related to the employee's job duties
 

9. Attendance at work-related meetings and staff development opportunities

10. Compulsory leave
 

11. Maternity, parental leave, and reproductive loss leave for both certificated and classified staff, as applicable
under state law
 

12. Bereavement

Long-Term Leaves

With Board approval, an employee may receive a leave of absence, without pay and without accruing seniority or
service credit, for a period of up to one school year. Applications for long-term leave shall be made in writing and
shall state the purpose for which leave is requested. All long-term leave agreements shall be in writing and shall state
the terms and conditions of the leave, including the conditions governing the employee's return.

At the end of a long-term leave, the employee shall be reinstated to a similar position as that employee held at the
time leave was granted, unless otherwise agreed upon.

The Board shall consider any written request by an employee to return to work prior to the expiration date of the
leave.

Administrative and Supervisory Personnel

Certificated administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
certificated employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other certificated employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memorandums of understanding,
Board policy, administrative regulation, or law.

Classified administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
classified employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other classified employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memoranda of understanding, Board

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

824



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

policy, administrative regulation, or law.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

825

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=13.&chapter=14.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44018.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44043.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44800.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45059.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=2.&part=3.&chapter=11.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==


4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

826

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBp0EUVInFQ1zz7nukNJZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4vWyj9hsEfWLJRLCTzvd2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==


4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

827

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4161: LeavesRegulation 4161: Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

Failure to Return to Service After Leave

The district may terminate the employment of a certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more
consecutive working days after April 30 of the previous school year if all of the following circumstances exist: 
(Education Code 44842)

1. The employee fails to report for duty, without good cause, at the beginning of the school year after having
notified the Governing Board of the intention to remain in service with the district in accordance with
Education Code 44842
 

2. The district had specifically notified the employee, at least five days in advance, of the time and place at which
the employee was to report to work
 

3. The employee continues to be absent from work for 20 consecutive working days, beginning from the date the
employee was to report to work.
 

4. The employee did not request or was not granted a leave of absence authorized by the Board

Use of Leaves by Classified Employees

A classified employee may interrupt or terminate vacation leave in order to begin another type of paid leave without
a return to active service, as long as the employee provides adequate notice and relevant supporting information
regarding the basis for such interruption or termination.  (Education Code 45200)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

828

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=13.&chapter=14.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44018.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44043.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44800.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45059.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=2.&part=3.&chapter=11.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.


Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

829

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBp0EUVInFQ1zz7nukNJZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==


4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

830

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4vWyj9hsEfWLJRLCTzvd2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Regulation 4161.1: Personal Illness/Injury LeaveRegulation 4161.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The following administrative regulation applies to classified employees, including classified management. For
certificated employees, including certificated management, see Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 – Personal
Illness/Injury Leave.

Certificated employees employed five school days per week are entitled to 10 days leave of absence with full pay for
personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of service. Employees who work less than five school days per
week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, any part-time
employees who are entitled to less than three days of paid sick leave per year due to the amount of time worked
shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if they are eligible.  (Education Code 44978; Labor Code
245-249)

Use of Sick Leave

A certificated employee may use sick leave for absences as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining
agreement, including, but not limited to:

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of and in the course of employment; quarantine
which results from contact in the course of employment with other persons having a contagious disease; or
temporary inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or quarantine  (Education Code
44964)

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery, as well as reproductive loss  (Education Code 44965,
44978; Government Code 12945.6)
 

3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 44981)

4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour
 

5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been exhausted 
(Education Code 44984)

6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster care
placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR
825.112)

7. Need of the employee or employee's family member, including a designated person, as defined in Labor Code
245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care  (Government
Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)
 

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

9. Bereavement leave, as specified in Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves 
(Education Code 44985; Government Code 12945.7)

For the purposes specified in Items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of sick leave that
would be accrued during six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 233)

An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick leave has not yet been
accrued.  (Education Code 44978)

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 44978)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

831



An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of termination, in
accordance with Education Code 44042.5.

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave they have accumulated.

The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous district.  (Education Code
44979, 44980)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the district after at least one
school year of employment that if the employee accepts a certificated position in another district, county office of
education, or community college district within one year, the employee may request that the district transfer any
accumulated sick leave to the new employer.  (Education Code 44979, 44980)

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a certificated employee who is a former active duty
member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the California National Guard or a federal
reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical
treatment, including mental health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more
by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days per week shall be
entitled to such leave in proportion to the time worked.  (Education Code 44978.2)

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee receives confirmation of the
submission of the disability application to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee
begins or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives the disability
rating decision, the employee shall report that information to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating
decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the
10-day maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may
change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  (Education Code
44978.2)

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification Requirements"
below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date that the leave
was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education
Code 44978.2)

Notification of Absence

An employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the need to be absent as soon as such need is known, so
that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate of the expected duration of
absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of
absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the
afternoon of the day preceding the day on which the employee intends to return to work. If the employee fails to
notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted
from the employee's pay.

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

OPTION 1:  (Differential pay: regular salary minus cost of substitute)

During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all
accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five
school months, the district shall deduct from the employee's regular salary for that period the actual cost of a
substitute to fill the position. If the district has made every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute
and has been unable to do so, the amount that would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from the

832



employee's salary.  (Education Code 44977)

An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. However, if the school
year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of the five-month period in
a subsequent school year.  (Education Code 44977)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (50 percent of employee's regular salary)

After a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to
illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five months, the employee shall receive at
least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary during the additional period of absence.  (Education Code 44983)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List

If a certificated employee is not medically able to return to work after the five-month period provided pursuant to
Education Code 44977, the employee shall be placed either in another position or on a reemployment list.
Placement on the reemployment list shall be for 24 months for probationary employees or 39 months for permanent
employees and shall begin at the expiration of the five-month period. If during this time the employee becomes
medically able, the employee shall be returned to employment in a position for which the employee is credentialed
and qualified.  (Education Code 44978.1)

Parental Leave

During each school year, a certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave,
for the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any
period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code
44977.5)

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 months. 
(Education Code 44977.5)

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent
on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for
the remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 44977.5)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the parental leave taken
pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12
work weeks in a 12-month period.  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

Verification Requirements

After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows chronic
absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or whenever available
evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the district, at
district expense, in order to receive a report on the employee's need for further leave of absence and a prognosis as
to when the employee will be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not
warrant continued absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny further

833



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

leave.

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician shall be in
writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the employee's genetic
information. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a
confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and not be disclosed
except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended medical
treatment may be asked to submit a letter from a physician stating that the employee is able to return to duty and
stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations.

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in any manner discriminate
or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the following
information:
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
 

b. The number of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick leave is prohibited
by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district
discriminates or retaliates against the employee

2. Provide at least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per year and allow
eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their pay check, of
the amount of paid sick leave they have available
 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each eligible employee
for three years

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5601 Transfer of accumulated sick leave

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 44964 Power to grant leaves of absence for accident, illness, or quarantine

Ed. Code 44965 Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth

Ed. Code 44976 Transfer of leave rights when school is transferred to another district

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 44977.5 Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is
exhausted

834

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3672E8234C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44042.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44964.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44965.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44976.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44977.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44977.5.


Ed. Code 44978 Sick leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44978.1 Inability to return to duty; placement in another position or on
reemployment list

Ed. Code 44978.2 Leave for military service-connected disability

Ed. Code 44979 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to another district

Ed. Code 44980 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to a county office of education

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44983 Compensation during leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44986 Leave of absence; state disability benefits

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

29 CFR 825.100-825.702 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Discrimination on the basis of sex; effectuating Title IX

42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Veguez v. Governing Board of Long Beach Unified School District (2005)
127 Cal.App.4th 406

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

835

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44978.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44978.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44978.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44979.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44981.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44983.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44986.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45194.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12945.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=234.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.5.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1635
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter21F&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==


4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

836

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QdAYOi3LWCjpslshWly8PXR9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pXjfxplusLlXAM7DUgbXNpQeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8BWeWybYAmE6SKbR4Pgplusmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==


4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4317.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

837

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8uHplus8BW3Aplus9fCZplusRv3VV6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W2A4g5554Gs4x6ULp50o8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Regulation 4161.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4161.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

Personal leaves granted to district employees shall be used as permitted in law, this administrative regulation, other
Governing Board-approved policy or district regulation, or applicable collective bargaining agreement, or as
otherwise required by law.

For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner.  (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

Bereavement

Employees are entitled to a leave of up to five days upon the death of any member of the employee's immediate
family, as defined in Education Code 44985 and 45194.

"Immediate family" means a parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse of
the employee, and the spouse, domestic partner, child, child-in-law, sibling, or sibling-in-law of the employee, or any
relative living in the immediate household of the employee.  (Education Code 44985, 45194; Government Code
12945.7)

No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary for any authorized paid bereavement leave as specified in
the collective bargaining agreement or as otherwise established by this policy, nor shall such leave be deducted from
any other leave to which the employee is entitled unless requested by the employee.  (Education Code 44985,
45194; Government Code 12945.7)

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Reproductive Loss

Upon request by any employee who has experienced a reproductive loss event, defined as the day or, for a multiple-
day event, the final day of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or an unsuccessful assisted
reproduction, the district shall grant the employee up to five days of reproductive loss leave, to be taken
consecutively or non-consecutively. The employee shall take the leave within three months following the event. If
the employee is on another type of leave at the time of the reproductive loss event, or chooses to take another type
of leave immediately following a reproductive loss event, then the reproductive loss leave shall be completed within
three months of the end date of the other leave.  (Government Code 12945.6)

Reproductive loss leave will be unpaid unless the employee chooses to use vacation, personal leave, accrued and
available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Government Code
12945.6)

Any request or inquiry or information provided by an employee related to reproductive loss leave and/or a
reproductive loss shall remain confidential, except to internal personnel or counsel as necessary or as required by
law.

Personal Necessity

Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during each school
year for reasons of personal necessity.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

838



Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the
limits set by bereavement leave provisions  (Education Code 44981, 45207; Government Code 12945.7)
 

2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5 
(Education Code 44981; Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 246.5)

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or
witness under subpoena or other order  (Education Code 45207)

5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee
 

6. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or for which the need is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the
need for the leave as soon as practicable.

After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

An employee may take time off work in order to:  (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury
 

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the district office when requesting
leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees.  (Education Code 44037)

A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

A certificated employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than as a litigant or to
respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the
connivance or misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's
regular earnings and any witness fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

839



Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

An employee who is a victim of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of such victim may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial proceedings, if
the crime is any of the following:  (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)
 

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)
 

3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the district attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is advocating on
behalf of the victim.  (Labor Code 230.2)

The district shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of this
leave.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or
mental injury with a threat of physical injury or an employee whose immediate family member, as defined, is
deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or compensatory time off that is
otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee

840



was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The district shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor Code 230,
230.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor Code
230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by the
district. Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon request. 
(Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to:  (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

2. Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)

In lieu of using vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off, eligible employees may take unpaid leave for this
purpose.

If two or more parents/guardians of a child are employed at the same work site, this leave shall be allowed for the
parent/guardian who first gives notice to the district. Simultaneous absence by another parent/guardian of the child
may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Upon request by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall provide documentation from the school or
licensed child care provider that the employee engaged in permitted child-related activities on a specific date and at
a particular time.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Service on Education Boards and Committees

Upon request, a certificated employee shall be granted up to 20 school days of paid leave per school year for service
performed within the state on any education board, commission, committee, or group authorized by Education Code
44987.3 provided that all of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 44987.3)

841



1. The service is performed within the state
 

2. The board, commission, organization, or group informs the district in writing of the service
 

3. The board, commission, organization, or group agrees, prior to the service, to reimburse the district, upon the
district's written request, for compensation paid to the employee's substitute and for actual related
administrative costs

Employee Organization Activities

Upon request, any certificated or classified employee shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of
compensation, to serve as an elected officer of a district employee organization or any statewide or national
employee organization with which the employee organization is affiliated. Such leave shall be in addition to any other
leave to which the employee may be entitled by other laws or a memorandum of understanding or collective
bargaining agreement.  (Education Code 44987, 45210)

The leave shall include, but is not limited to, absence for purposes of attending periodic, stated, special, or regular
meetings of the body of the organization on which the employee serves as an officer.  (Education Code 44987,
45210)

Upon request of an employee organization in the district or its state or national affiliate, a reasonable number of
unelected classified employees shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of compensation for the purpose of
attending important organizational activities authorized by the employee organization. The employee organization
shall provide reasonable notification to the Superintendent or designee when requesting a leave of absence for
employees for this purpose.  (Education Code 45210)

When leave is granted for any of the above purposes, the employee organization shall reimburse the district within
10 days after receiving the district's certification of payment of compensation to the employee.  (Education Code
44987, 45210)

Religious Leave

The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three days of leave per year for religious purposes,
provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures, the
neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship on the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall deduct the cost of hiring a substitute, when required, from the wages of the
employee who takes religious leave.

No employee shall be discriminated against for using this leave or any additional days of unpaid leave granted for
religious observances at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

842



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the district for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave. Such
leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental entity
authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the district as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave. The
Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the eligibility
of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required certification. 
(Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

843

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 8.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44981.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44987.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44987.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45190.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45194.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45198.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45207.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EVID&sectionNum=1035.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EVID&sectionNum=1037.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12945.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.


Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

844

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=234.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=246.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.dir.ca.gov
http://www.cft.org
http://www.perb.ca.gov
http://www.csea.com
http://www.cta.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Qw55wsplusWapreuBu77rJwEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kZSplusmbBylVJaSR8plusKQgNlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==


4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4340 Bargaining Units

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

845

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=alZhT5G6ID73IOslshCDBMSbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ABGqplusKhgcDuxXkEIYU1UslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aXEdBlWzo3nDtSuWv8t4plusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==


Policy 4211: Recruitment And SelectionPolicy 4211: Recruitment And Selection Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018

The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to effectively carry out the district's
vision, mission, and goals, and believes that students benefit when district staff reflects the racial, ethnic, linguistic,
and cultural diversity of the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop equitable, fair, and transparent recruitment and selection processes
and procedures that ensure individuals are selected for employment in the district based on demonstrated
knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or unlawful discrimination.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall, through the recruitment and selection processes and procedures,
seek to establish and maintain a diverse staff, including the active recruitment from institutions and organizations
that serve populations underrepresented among district employees.

When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review, as appropriate, the job description for the
position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the position. The Superintendent or
designee shall also disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of candidates.

When posting an employment opportunity, the Superintendent or designee shall include the pay scale for the open
position.  (Labor Code 432.2)

The Superintendent shall develop and maintain appropriate hiring procedures to identify the best possible candidates
for a position. In doing so, an interview committee may be established to rank candidates and recommend finalists.
During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or demonstrate how they will be able to perform the
duties of the job. All discussions and recommendations shall be confidential and consistent with law.

No inquiry shall be made about any information prohibited by state or federal nondiscrimination laws.

Unless otherwise provided for in law, the district may not discriminate against a person in hiring based on the
person's use of cannabis off the job and away from the workplace, including that the district may not request
information from an applicant related to the applicant's prior use of cannabis, apart from the applicant's criminal
history, or penalize an applicant based on a drug screening which finds that the applicant has nonpsychoactive
cannabis metabolites in the applicant's hair, blood, urine, or other bodily fluid.  (Government Code 12954)

However, the district retains the right to maintain drug-free schools or prohibit employees from possessing, being
impaired by, or using cannabis while on the job.  (Government Code 12954)

The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire, orally or in writing, about an applicant's salary history information,
including compensation and benefits. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall not rely on salary history
information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment to an applicant or the salary to offer. However,
the Superintendent or designee may consider salary information that is disclosable under state or federal law or that
the applicant discloses voluntarily and without prompting.  (Labor Code 432.3)

For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate who meets all
qualifications established by law and the Board for the position. No person shall be employed by the Board without
the recommendation or endorsement of the Superintendent or designee.

Incentives

With Board approval and in accordance with district needs and any applicable collective bargaining agreements, the
district may provide incentives to recruit teachers, administrators, or other employees, such as signing bonuses,
assistance with beginning teacher induction and/or credential costs, mentoring, additional compensation, and/or
subsidized housing. 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

846



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 35035 Powers and duties of the superintendent; transfer authority

Ed. Code 44066 Limitations on certification requirements

Ed. Code 44259 Teaching credential, exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements

Ed. Code 44750 Teacher recruitment resource center

Ed. Code 44830-44831 Employment of certificated persons

Ed. Code 44858 Age or marital status in certificated positions

Ed. Code 44859 Prohibition against certain rules and regulations regarding residency

Ed. Code 45103-45139 Employment; classified employees

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 815.2 Liability of public entities and public employees

H&S Code 53570-53574 Teacher Housing Act of 2016

Lab. Code 432.3 Salary information

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

28 CFR 35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

34 CFR 106.51-106.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program
or activities

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

5 USC 552 Freedom of Information Act

8 USC 1324a Unlawful employment of aliens

8 USC 1324b Unfair immigration related employment practices

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Commission on Teacher Credentialing
Publication Strategic Plan: Ensuring Educator Excellence, 2023

California County Superintendents Publication Teacher Recruitment in California: An Analysis of Effective Strategies,
Research Brief, Veritas Research and Evaluation Group, October 2017

California Department of Education Publication How to Increase the Diversity of California’s Educator Workforce, April
2022

Court Decision C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al. (2012) 138
Cal.Rptr.3d 1

Ctr for Cities + Schools, cityLAB & Terner Ctr Pub Education Workforce Housing in California: Developing the 21st Century
Campus, 2021

Ctr for Cities + Schools, cityLAB & Terner Ctr Pub Education Workforce Housing in California: The Handbook

Website University of California Los Angeles, cityLAB

847

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35035.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44066.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44259.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.4.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44858.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44859.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=815.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=31.&title=&part=14.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=432.3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:5 section:552 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title5-section552)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:8 section:1324a edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1324a)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:8 section:1324b edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1324b)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/docs/default-source/commission/files/ctc-strategic-plan.pdf?sfvrsn=baef20b1_12
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/documents/dtwcouncilreportapril22.pdf
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/wp-content/uploads/Report-Education-Workforce-Housing-in-CaliforniaCCS-cityLAB-Terner-Center2022-1.pdf
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/wp-content/uploads/Handbook-Education-Workforce-Housing-in-CaliforniacityLAB-CCS-Terner-Center-2022.pdf
https://www.citylab.ucla.edu/


Website University of California Berkeley, Terner Center for Housing Innovation

Website University of California Berkeley, Center for Cities + Schools

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website Education Job Opportunities Information Network

Website Teach USA

Website California County Superintendents

Website California Civil Rights Department

Website U.S. Department of Education

Website Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0000 Vision

0200 Goals For The School District

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

2230 Representative And Deliberative Groups

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4100 Certificated Personnel

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.21 Interns

4112.21 Interns

4112.22 Staff Teaching English Learners

4112.23 Special Education Staff

4112.61 Employment References

4112.61 Employment References

4112.8 Employment Of Relatives

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

848

https://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.edjoin.org
http://culturalvistas.org/programs/us/teach-usa
http://ccsesa.org/recruit
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.eeoc.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8WZCIZ8oG2xBqtK4ApFplus0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y0lPgUQGFYjslshDyVbAGuO8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FmR0VzEiZmPJbzwslshtepjSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uBcQ4eaeRFHuUSheEP8hTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HO2TobjEaXImT4CZqcERQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yCe8C7kWe75gfF55mrNriw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aY2FcIbUQ6NeT56IXs1dVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i0usZRZ9FHC2qN5CKMopNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2AwEPXWWMy8yHNBDMCPeWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q1AdCLjYQPQc6vK8YYydYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fLZwTXXe53E9GIplusMgcI7Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LZE76ianfzktE7iUQcoWvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=V3AgdDGxpDqX0vS5szDxWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==


4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.61 Employment References

4212.61 Employment References

4212.8 Employment Of Relatives

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.1 Contracts

4312.61 Employment References

4312.61 Employment References

4312.8 Employment Of Relatives

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4331 Staff Development

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

9000 Role Of The Board

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

849

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6TogWNds3iE3eJAPzDkczg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4q0UEwAFzydTuBL3yuu5oA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qlCwE76ui18wkRF15t2z4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4NfXtLOJyGN9J9q6fiebJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1E1XGgFCZ31ZqJQhL7tkEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njqkN16qoZXT6lzB4G0ZslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gdtps7Z2fZ9I0mcPZhfTiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=a1JMEyKlddqnlFHrKQEKxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshe87zq36hFrGUQHdbi0ejA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xh8UUDL6WCw8POuAsCslshQBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==


Regulation 4212.5: Criminal Record CheckRegulation 4212.5: Criminal Record Check Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Superintendent or designee shall not hire or retain in employment, in a certificated or classified position, a
person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c), a
controlled substance offense as defined in Education Code 44011, or a sex offense as defined in Education Code
44010. However, the Superintendent or designee shall not deny or terminate employment solely on the basis that
the person has been:  (Education Code 44830.1, 44836, 45122.1, 45123)

1. Convicted of a violent or serious felony, controlled substance offense, or sex offense, and the conviction is
reversed and the person is acquitted of the offense in a new trial or the charges against the person are
dismissed, unless the sex offense for which the conviction is dismissed pursuant to Penal Code 1203.4 involves
a victim who was a minor
 

2. Convicted of a violent or serious felony and has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation or a pardon
 

3. Convicted of a serious felony, that is not also a violent felony, and has proven to the sentencing court that
rehabilitation for purposes of school employment has been attained for at least one year
 

4. Convicted of a controlled substance offense and is applying for or is employed in a certificated position and
has a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing
 

5. Convicted of a controlled substance offense and is applying for or is employed in a classified position and has
been determined by the Governing Board, from the evidence presented, to have been rehabilitated for at least
five years

A certificated employee may be hired by the district without obtaining a criminal record summary if that employee is
employed as a certificated employee in another California school district and became a permanent employee of
another California school district as of October 1, 1997.  (Education Code 44830.1, 44836)

The Superintendent or designee shall not issue a temporary certificate of clearance to a person whose application for
a credential, certificate, or permit is being processed by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing if that person has
been convicted of a violent or serious felony, unless the person is otherwise exempt pursuant to Education Code
44332.6 or 44830.1.  (Education Code 44332.5, 44332.6)

Pre-Employment Record Check

The Superintendent or designee shall require each person to be employed by the district to submit fingerprints
electronically through the Live Scan system so that a criminal record check may be conducted by the Department of
Justice (DOJ). The Superintendent or designee shall provide the applicant with a Live Scan request form and a list of
nearby Live Scan locations.

When a person is applying for a classified position, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the DOJ also
obtain a criminal record check through the Federal Bureau of Investigation whenever the applicant meets one of the
following conditions:  (Education Code 45125)

1. The applicant has not resided in California for at least one year immediately preceding the application for
employment.
 

2. The applicant has resided in California for more than one year, but less than seven years, and the DOJ has
ascertained that the person was convicted of a sex offense where the victim was a minor or a drug offense
where an element of the offense is either the distribution to or the use of a controlled substance by a minor.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ when an applicant who has submitted fingerprints
to the DOJ is not subsequently employed by the district.  (Penal Code 11105.2)

Subsequent Arrest Notification

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

850



The Superintendent or designee shall enter into a contract with the DOJ to receive notification of subsequent arrests
resulting in conviction of any person whose fingerprints have been submitted to the DOJ.  (Education Code 44830.1,
45125; Penal Code 11105.2)

Upon telephone or email notification by the DOJ that a current temporary employee, substitute employee, or
probationary employee serving before March 15 of the employee's second probationary year has been convicted of
a violent or serious felony, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place that employee on leave without
pay.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

When the district receives written electronic notification by the DOJ of the fact of conviction, the temporary
employee, substitute employee, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of the employee's second
probationary year shall be terminated automatically unless the employee challenges the DOJ record and the DOJ
withdraws its notification in writing. Upon receipt of the written withdrawal of notification by the DOJ, the
Superintendent or designee shall immediately reinstate the employee with full restoration of salary and benefits for
the period of time from the suspension without pay to the reinstatement if the employee is still employed by the
district.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a person whose fingerprints are
maintained by the DOJ is terminated.  (Penal Code 11105.2)

Notification of Applicant/Employee

The Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously furnish a copy of any DOJ notification to the applicant or
employee to whom it relates if the information is a basis for an adverse employment decision. The copy shall be
delivered in person or to the last contact information provided by the applicant or employee.  (Penal Code 11105,
11105.2)

Maintenance of Records

The Superintendent shall designate at least one custodian of records who shall be responsible for the security,
storage, dissemination, and destruction of all Criminal Offender Record Information (CORI) furnished to the district
and shall serve as the primary contact for the DOJ for any related issues.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

An employee designated as custodian of records shall receive a criminal background check clearance from the DOJ
prior to serving in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

The custodian of records shall sign and return to the DOJ the Employee Statement Form acknowledging an
understanding of the laws prohibiting misuse of CORI. In addition, the custodian of records shall ensure that any
individual with access to CORI has on file a signed Employee Statement Form.

To ensure its confidentiality, CORI shall be accessible only to the custodian of records and shall be kept in a locked
file separate from other files. CORI shall be used only for the purpose for which it is requested and its contents shall
not be disclosed or reproduced.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45125)

Once a hiring determination is made, the applicant's CORI shall be destroyed to the extent that the identity of the
individual can no longer be reasonably ascertained.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45125; 11 CCR 708)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a designated custodian of records
ceases to serve in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

Interagency Agreement

Subject to an interagency agreement with other school districts, the district shall submit and receive CORI on behalf
of all participating districts.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

Upon receipt from the DOJ of a report of conviction of a serious or violent felony, the district shall communicate
that fact to participating districts and shall remove the affected employee from the common list of persons eligible

851



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

for employment. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

In addition, upon receipt from the DOJ of a criminal history record or report of subsequent arrest for any person on a
common list of persons eligible for employment, the district shall give notice to the superintendent of any
participating district, or the person designated in writing by that superintendent, that the report is available for
inspection on a confidential basis by the superintendent or the authorized designee. The report shall be made
available at the district office for 30 days following the receipt of the notice.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall not release a copy of that information to any participating district or any other person. In addition,
the district shall retain or dispose of the information in the manner specified in law and in this administrative
regulation after all participating districts have had an opportunity to inspect it in accordance with law.  (Education
Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall maintain a record of all persons to whom the information has been shown and shall make this
record available to the DOJ.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 701-708 Criminal offender record information

11 CCR 720-724 Incomplete criminal history information

11 CCR 994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate of clearance

Ed. Code 44346.1 Applicants for credential; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal record
information

Ed. Code 44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of sex offense or controlled
substance offense

Ed. Code 44932 Grounds for dismissal of permanent employees

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125 Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45125.5 Automated records check

Ed. Code 45126 Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

H&S Code 11350 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Narcotics

H&S Code 11377 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Restricted
Dangerous Drugs

Pen. Code 11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination

Pen. Code 11102.2 Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records

Pen. Code 11105 Access to criminal history information

Pen. Code 11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification

Pen. Code 11105.3 Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence

852

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0CD30F005A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0CDECED35A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0D13C1805A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0D1855635A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44346.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44836.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44932.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11350.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11377.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11102.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3.


Pen. Code 11140-11144 Furnishing of state criminal history information

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 1203.4 Dismissal of conviction

Pen. Code 1203.425 Conviction relief

Pen. Code 13300-13305 Local summary criminal history information

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger
(1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice, Background Checks

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

853

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=3.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/fingerprints
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O8tAL8zo45MouRALkO6PIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==


4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

854

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HNThtsBXuYTJV36dzD00hw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ukl6dbOkdRYslshCh8plusz8BDaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Exhibit 4212.5-E(1): Criminal Record CheckExhibit 4212.5-E(1): Criminal Record Check Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

SAMPLE EMPLOYEE STATEMENT FORM
USE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION

As an employee/volunteer of __________________________________________________ School District, you may have
access to confidential criminal record information which is controlled by state and federal statutes. Misuse of such
information may adversely affect the individual's civil rights and violate constitutional rights of privacy. Penal Code
502 prescribes the penalties relating to computer crimes. Penal Code 11105 and 13300 identify who has access to
criminal history information and under what circumstances it may be disseminated. Penal Code 11140-11144 and
13301-13305 prescribe penalties for misuse of criminal history information. Government Code 6200 prescribes
felony penalties for misuse of public records. Penal Code 11142 and 13300 state:

"Any person authorized by law to receive a record or information obtained from a record who knowingly furnishes
the record or information to a person not authorized by law to receive the record or information is guilty of a
misdemeanor."

Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy, states:

"Any person who intentionally discloses information, not otherwise public, which they know or should reasonably
know was obtained from personal or confidential information maintained by a state agency or from records within
a system of records maintained by a federal government agency, shall be subject to a civil action, for invasion of
privacy, by the individual."

CIVIL, CRIMINAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTIES:

Penal Code 11141: DOJ furnishing to unauthorized person (misdemeanor)
 
Penal Code 11142: Authorized person furnishing to other (misdemeanor)
 
Penal Code 11143: Unauthorized person in possession (misdemeanor)
 
California Constitution, Article I, Section 1 (Right to Privacy)
 
Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy
 
Title 18 USC 641, 1030, 1951, and 1952

Any employee who is responsible for such misuse may be subject to immediate dismissal. Violations of this law may
result in criminal and/or civil action.

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE AND UNDERSTAND THE POLICY REGARDING MISUSE OF CRIMINAL RECORD
INFORMATION.

Signature ________________________________________________ Date ___________________________

Printed Name ________________________________________________ Title ___________________________

Name of District ________________________________________________

PLEASE NOTE: Do not return this form to the DOJ. Your Custodian of Records should maintain these forms.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 701-708 Criminal offender record information

11 CCR 720-724 Incomplete criminal history information

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

855

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0CD30F005A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0CDECED35A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0D13C1805A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0D1855635A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3


11 CCR 994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate of clearance

Ed. Code 44346.1 Applicants for credential; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal record
information

Ed. Code 44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of sex offense or controlled
substance offense

Ed. Code 44932 Grounds for dismissal of permanent employees

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125 Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45125.5 Automated records check

Ed. Code 45126 Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

H&S Code 11350 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Narcotics

H&S Code 11377 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Restricted
Dangerous Drugs

Pen. Code 11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination

Pen. Code 11102.2 Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records

Pen. Code 11105 Access to criminal history information

Pen. Code 11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification

Pen. Code 11105.3 Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence

Pen. Code 11140-11144 Furnishing of state criminal history information

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 1203.4 Dismissal of conviction

Pen. Code 1203.425 Conviction relief

Pen. Code 13300-13305 Local summary criminal history information

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger
(1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice, Background Checks

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

856

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44346.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44836.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44932.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11350.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11377.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11102.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=3.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/fingerprints
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==


1240 Volunteer Assistance

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

857

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O8tAL8zo45MouRALkO6PIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HNThtsBXuYTJV36dzD00hw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ukl6dbOkdRYslshCh8plusz8BDaw==


4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

858

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4212.9: Employee NotificationsPolicy 4212.9: Employee Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board believes that providing clear communications to staff is essential to establishing a professional,
positive work environment and enhancing their job performance. The Superintendent or designee shall provide
district employees all notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent or designee
believes will promote staff knowledge of the district's policies, programs, activities, and operations.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, district employees shall be asked to sign an
acknowledgment indicating receipt of the notification. Such acknowledgments shall be retained in each employee's
personnel file.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

859

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I6BAEEA607C7411EE81CB83C869CBEC13?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9F7694335A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I681EE2305A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I682942735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I6A8A63F05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I6A9CB3725A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I48FD1E835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4B8F3B125A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22461.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35171.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44896.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44934.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.


Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

860

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44948.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44949.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44951.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45117.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45169.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48851.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=21029.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8355.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120875.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120880.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.196.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=2800.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=5401.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11165.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11166.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=UIC&sectionNum=2613.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

861

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:2354 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section2354)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-825/subpart-C/section-825.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100\
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:38 section:4334 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title38-section4334)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-A/section-382.113
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-C/section-382.303
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-F/section-382.601
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==


4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

862

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==


4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

863

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==


4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

864

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Exhibit 4212.9-E(1): Employee NotificationsExhibit 4212.9-E(1): Employee Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/13/2023

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to employees. Other
notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  To All Employees

When/Whom to Notify: At the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 231.5, Government Code 12950
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: The district’s policy on sexual harassment, legal remedies, complaints

When/Whom to Notify: Annually and 72 hours before pesticide application
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.2
Subject: Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, Internet address to access information on pesticides

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6117
Subject: Public hearing on implementing year-round program schedule

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6112
Subject: Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 1312.3; BP 0460; BP 3260
Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student fees and
local control accountability plan

When to Notify:  Annually
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173, AR 6173.1, 6173.3, 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory, and newcomer students.

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer epinephrine auto-injectors

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer stock albuterol inhalers

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer anti-seizure medication

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer opioid antagonist

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

865



When to Notify: When a parent/guardian requests for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of
emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 1126
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4136/4236/4336
Subject: Prohibition of activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to duties; discipline;
appeal

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 8355; 41 USC 8102; 34 CFR 84.205, 84.210
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4020, BP 4159/4259/4359
Subject: District's drug- and alcohol-free workplace; actions that will be taken if violated; available employee
assistance programs

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 21029
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Right to purchase PERS service credit for military service performed prior to public employment

When/Whom to Notify: Upon placement of automated external defibrillator (AED) in school, annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1797.196
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141
Subject: Proper use of AED; location of all AEDs on campus, sudden cardiac arrest, school's emergency response plan

When/Whom to Notify: If the district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3513.3
Subject: District's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When/Whom to Notify: Annually, or more frequently if there is new information
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 120875, 120880
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43
Subject: AIDS and hepatitis B, methods to prevent exposure

When/Whom to Notify: To new employees upon hire and other employees upon request, in districts with 25 or
more employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2
Subject: Rights pursuant to Labor Code 230-230.1 pertaining to leaves and accommodations for victims of crime or
abuse

When/Whom to Notify: With each paycheck
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 246
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1
Subject: Amount of sick leave available

When/Whom to Notify: Upon hire, in employee handbook, and upon request for parental leave
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 1034
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4033
Subject: The district's policy on lactation accommodation

When/Whom to Notify: To covered employees and former employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2800.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354

866



Subject: Availability of COBRA/Cal-COBRA continuation and conversion coverage; statement encouraging careful
examination of options before declining coverage

When/Whom to Notify: To employees participating in a flexible spending account
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2810.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Deadline to withdraw funds from account before the end of the plan year

When/Whom to Notify: To every new employee, either at the time employee is hired or by end of first pay period
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3551
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Workers' compensation benefits, how to obtain medical care, role of primary physician, form for reporting
personal physician/chiropractor

When/Whom to Notify: Within one day of receiving notice of potential exposure to COVID-19, and remain posted
for not less than 15 calendar days, to employees who were on the premises during the infectious period, the
exclusive representative, and the employer of subcontracted employees as applicable
Where: Prominently display in all places where notices to employees concerning workplace rules or regulations are
customarily posted
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 6409.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: Potential exposure to COVID-19; benefits to which employees may be entitled; available leave options;
protection against discrimination and retaliation; district's disinfection and safety plan

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to beginning employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.4
Subject: Status as a mandated reporter of child abuse, reporting obligations, confidentiality rights, copy of law

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and when leaving work due to pregnancy or nonoccupational sickness or
injury
Education or Other Legal Code: Unemployment Insurance Code 2613
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Disability insurance rights and benefits

When/Whom to Notify: To principal, counselor who directly supervises or reports on student's behavior or progress,
and teacher and other administrators who directly supervise or report on student's behavior or progress when the
superintendent or designee believes the employee needs the information for the protection of self or others when
working with the student, when Superintendent or designee receives written notification that minor student has
committed a felony or misdemeanor involving specified offenses
Education or Other Legal Code: Welfare and Institutions Code 827
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Limited exception to juvenile court record confidentiality to ensure rehabilitation of juvenile criminal
offenders and protect students and staff

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees and job applicants
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11023; 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 0410, AR 4030
Subject: District's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees via employee handbook, or to each new employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11091, 11095; 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Benefits through Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA); obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of need for leave when possible

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3203
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: The right and procedure to access the injury and illness prevention program

867



When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; contact information for district's Title IX Coordinator; referral of
inquiries to Title IX Coordinator and/or Office for Civil Rights

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: 40 CFR 763.84, 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514
Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6178
Subject: All career and technical education opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin,
sex, or disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100

II.  To Certificated Employees

When/Whom to Notify: To eligible certificated employees in a timely manner, and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees within 30 days of hire
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 22455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4121
Subject: Criteria for membership in retirement system; right to elect membership at any time

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment of a retired certificated individual
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 22461
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.14/4317.14
Subject: Postretirement earnings limitation or employment restriction; monthly report of compensation

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35171
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115, BP 4315
Subject: District regulations related to performance evaluations

When/Whom to Notify: 30 days before last day of school year for instructional staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated staff, in any year in which employee is evaluated
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44663
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Copy of employee's evaluation

When/Whom to Notify: To a certificated employee with unsatisfactory evaluation, once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every other year for permanent employee
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44664
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Notice and description of the unsatisfactory performance

When/Whom to Notify: By May 30, if district elects to issue reemployment notices to certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44842
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1
Subject: Request that the employee notify district of intent to remain in service next year

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary and temporary certificated employees upon employment and every July
thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1, AR 4121
Subject: Employment status and salary

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee, by March 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23, 44948.5

868



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4116
Subject: Whether or not employee is reelected for next school year

When/Whom to Notify: When certificated employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, at any time of year
or, for charge of unsatisfactory performance, during instructional year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44934, 44934.1, 44936
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118; AR 4118
Subject: Notice of charges, procedures, and employee rights; intent to dismiss or suspend 30 days after notice

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unprofessional conduct, at least 45 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unsatisfactory performance, at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or prior to last quarter of school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with mandatory leave of absence offense, within 10 days
of entry of judgment in proceedings
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44940.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Notice of intent to dismiss 30 days from notice unless employee demands hearing

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee 30 days prior to dismissal during school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second- year probationary employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44948.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Reasons for dismissal and opportunity to appeal

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 when necessary to reduce certificated personnel, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44949, 44955
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Reasons for personnel reduction and employees' right to hearing; final notice of Board decision re:
termination

When/Whom to Notify: Before the end of the school year to temporary employee who served 75 percent of school
year but will be released
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44954
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4121
Subject: District's decision not to reelect employee for following school year

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to any
permanent or probationary certificated employee, including an employee holding a position that requires
administrative or supervisory credential, whose services are terminated
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44955.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Decrease in the number of permanent employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and hearing
adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher, when a student engages in or is reasonably suspected of specified acts
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49079
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher of a student who is suspended or expelled, when Superintendent or designee

869



receives transfer student's record regarding acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48201
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee upon change in employment status due to alleged misconduct
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 80303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.7/4317.7
Subject: Contents of state regulation re: report to Commission on Teacher Credentialing

III.  To Classified Employees

When/Whom to Notify: When a classified employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, in a nonmerit district
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45113
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4218
Subject: Notice of charges, right to hearing, timeline for requesting hearing

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15, when laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff, displacement and reemployment rights, right to hearing; final notice of Board decision
regarding termination

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: District Statement of Reduction in Force to affected employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and
hearing adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: At least 60 days prior to the effective date of layoff, if the employee's position must be
eliminated due to the expiration of a specially funded program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff date, displacement and reemployment rights

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and upon each change in classification
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45169
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4212
Subject: Employee's class specification, salary data, assignment or work location, duty hours, prescribed workweek

When/Whom to Notify: To permanent employee whose leave is exhausted
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45192, 45195
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4261.1, AR 4261.11
Subject: Exhaustion of leave, opportunity to request additional leave

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers prior to expiration of specified
documents
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 1234
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Expiration date of driver's license, driver's certificate and medical certificate; need to renew

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers upon employment and at least once per
year thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 2480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Limitations on vehicle idling; consequences of not complying

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to district drug testing program and thereafter upon

870



employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.113, 382.601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Explanation of federal requirements for drug testing program and district's policy; prior to administration of
each drug or alcohol test

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to operating school bus
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Post accident information, procedures, and instruction

IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

When/Whom to Notify: To superintendent, deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent or senior manager of
classified service, at least 45 days before expiration of contract
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 2121, BP 4312.1
Subject: Decision not to reelect or reemploy upon expiration of contract or term

When/Whom to Notify: Upon request by administrative or supervisory employee transferred to teaching position
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44896
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Statement of the reasons for the reassignment

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 to employee who may be released/reassigned the following school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Notice that employee may be released or reassigned the following school year

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

When/Whom to Notify: In the event of a breach of security of district records to affected employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 3580
Subject: Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, and, as applicable, contact information for
credit reporting agencies

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to placing derogatory information in personnel file
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6
Subject: Notice of derogatory information, opportunity to review and comment

When/Whom to Notify: To employees who volunteer to administer epinephrine auto-injector
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Defense and indemnification from civil liability by the district

When/Whom to Notify: To district police officer, within 30 days of decision to impose discipline
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 3304
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3515.3
Subject: Decision to impose discipline, including the date that discipline will be imposed

When/Whom to Notify: To employee returning from military leave of absence, within 30 days of return
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 20997
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Right to receive PERS service credit for military service; application form

When/Whom to Notify: 24 hours before Board meets in closed session to hear complaints or charges against
employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54957
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BB 9321

871



Subject: Employee's right to have complaints/charges heard in open session

When/Whom to Notify: When taking disciplinary action against employee for disclosure of confidential information
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54963
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23
Subject: Law prohibiting disclosure of confidential information obtained in closed session

When/Whom to Notify: When document identifying employee who is victim of domestic violence is disclosed
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

When/Whom to Notify: Within one working day of work-related injury or victimization of crime
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3553, 5401
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Potential eligibility for workers' compensation benefits, claim form

When/Whom to Notify: When adverse employment action is based on DOJ criminal history information or
subsequent arrest notification
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11105, 11105.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5
Subject: Copy of DOJ notification

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee with exposure to blood or potentially infectious materials, upon initial
employment and at least annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3204
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42
Subject: The existence, location, and availability of exposure and medical records; person responsible for maintaining
and providing access to records; right to access records

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee assigned to a work area in a laboratory setting where hazardous chemicals
are present, within 15 working days after receiving a monitoring result related to an employee exposure
determination
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5191
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Contents of 8 CCR 5191, including location and availability of chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits, signs
and symptoms of exposure, location of reference material

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee who may be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, upon
initial assignment and when new hazard is introduced into work area
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5194
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Requirements of 8 CCR 5194, including any presence of hazardous substances in the work area, location
and availability of hazard communication program, new material safety data sheet, employee rights

When/Whom to Notify: To employee eligible for military leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 38 USC 4334
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Notice of rights, benefits, and obligations under military leave

When/Whom to Notify: Within five days of employee's request for family care and medical leave, receipt of
supporting information, or district's knowledge that the requested leave may qualify as FMLA leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300; 2 CCR 11049, 11091
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Designation of leave as FMLA or non-FMLA; if not eligible, reason not eligible; requirement to use paid
leave; any requirement for fitness-for-duty certification; any subsequent changes in designation notice

When/Whom to Notify: Whenever notice of eligibility for FMLA is provided to employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Rights and responsibilities re: use of FMLA; consequences of failure to meet obligations

872



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees working with families experiencing homelessness
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48851.3, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173
Subject: Duties of district liaison for homeless students and availability of training and services

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

873

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I6BAEEA607C7411EE81CB83C869CBEC13?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9F7694335A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I681EE2305A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I682942735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I6A8A63F05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I6A9CB3725A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I48FD1E835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4B8F3B125A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22461.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35171.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44896.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44934.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44948.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44949.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44951.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.


Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

874

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45117.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45169.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48851.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=21029.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8355.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120875.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120880.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.196.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=2800.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=5401.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11165.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11166.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=UIC&sectionNum=2613.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:2354 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section2354)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-825/subpart-C/section-825.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100\
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8


34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

875

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:38 section:4334 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title38-section4334)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-A/section-382.113
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-C/section-382.303
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-F/section-382.601
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==


4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

876

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==


4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

877

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==


4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

878

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary ActionPolicy 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/05/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/16/2023

The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their jobs satisfactorily, to exhibit professional and
appropriate conduct, and serve as positive role models both at school and in the community. A classified employee
may be disciplined for unprofessional conduct or unsatisfactory performance in accordance with law or any
applicable collective bargaining agreement, Board policy, or administrative regulation.

Disciplinary actions shall be based on the particular facts and circumstances involved and the severity of the
employee's conduct or performance.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that disciplinary actions are taken in a consistent, nondiscriminatory
manner. In addition, an employee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, dismissed, or otherwise
retaliated against solely for engaging in protected activities, or for acting to protect a student engaged in exercising
any free speech or press right authorized by, or for refusing to infringe upon a student's conduct protected pursuant
to, Education Code 48907 or 48950.

Disciplinary actions may include, but are not limited to, verbal and written warnings, involuntary reassignment,
demotion, suspension or leave without pay, reduction of wages, or dismissal.

A probationary classified employee may be dismissed without cause anytime before the probationary period expires.

Permanent classified employees shall be subject to disciplinary action only for cause as specified in the
accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 45113)

Procedures for Serious Disciplinary Proceedings

The Superintendent or designee shall develop disciplinary procedures for use when dismissal, suspension, demotion,
involuntary reassignment, or other serious disciplinary action is contemplated against an employee. The procedures
for such discipline shall include an opportunity for an employee for whom any such disciplinary action is
recommended to meet with, or respond in writing to, a designated district official ("Skelly officer") who will
determine whether the recommended discipline should proceed further or be modified or withdrawn.

After meeting with the employee or considering the employee's written response, if the Skelly officer determines
that the recommended discipline should proceed, the Superintendent or designee shall send the employee a notice
of the recommended disciplinary action, a statement of charges, and the results of the Skelly review process. The
notice shall include a statement advising the employee of the right to request a Board hearing on the matter.
 (Education Code 45113, 45116)

If the employee fails to request a hearing within the time specified in the notice, the employee is deemed to have
waived the right to do so, and the Board may order the recommended disciplinary action into effect immediately.

If a timely request is submitted, a hearing shall be conducted by the Board or by a third-party hearing officer, in
accordance with law.  (Education Code 45113, 45312)

A classified employee who timely requests a hearing may only be suspended, demoted, or dismissed pending the
outcome of the hearing in accordance with Education Code 45113 and as specified in the accompanying
administrative regulation.

The hearing shall be held at the earliest convenient date, taking into consideration the established schedule of the
Board and the availability of legal counsel and witnesses. The employee shall be notified of the time and place of the
hearing.

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

879



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

The hearing shall be held in closed session unless the employee requests that the matter be heard in an open session
meeting.  (Government Code 54957)

The employee shall be entitled to appear personally, produce evidence, and be represented by legal counsel.

The Board may use the services of its legal counsel in ruling upon procedural questions, objections to evidence, and
issues of law. The Board may review and consider the records of any prior personnel action proceedings against the
employee in which disciplinary action was ultimately sustained, and any records contained in the employee's
personnel files and introduced into evidence at the hearing. The Board shall not be bound by rules of evidence used
in California courts. Informality in any such hearing shall not invalidate any order or decision made by the Board.

At any time before a matter is submitted to the Board for decision, the Superintendent or designee may, with the
consent of the Board, serve on the employee and file with the Board an amended or supplemental recommendation
of disciplinary action. If the amended or supplemental recommendation includes new causes or allegations, the
employee shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to prepare a defense. Any new causes or allegations shall be
deemed controverted and any objections to the amended or supplemental causes or allegations may be made orally
at the hearing and shall be noted on the record.

Following the hearing or, if the employee has not requested a hearing, after reviewing the Superintendent or
designee's recommendation for disciplinary action, the Board shall affirm, modify, or reject the recommended
disciplinary action. The decision of the Board shall be in writing and shall contain findings of fact and the disciplinary
action approved, if any. The decision of the Board shall be final.

Within 10 working days of the Board's final decision, a copy of the decision shall be delivered to the employee
and/or designated representative personally or by registered mail.

Except for an allegation of egregious misconduct in which a minor is involved, the Board may delegate the authority
to determine whether sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action to an impartial third-party hearing officer. When a
matter is heard by a third-party hearing officer, the Board shall review the determination and adopt or reject the
recommended decision.  (Education Code 45113)

When any matter involves an allegation of egregious misconduct as defined in Education Code 44932 and involves a
witness who is a minor, the matter shall be referred to an administrative law judge to determine whether sufficient
cause exists for disciplinary action against the employee. In such cases, the ruling of the administrative law judge
shall be binding on the district and the employee.  (Education Code 45113)

Compulsory Leave of Absence

Upon being informed that a classified employee has been charged with a mandatory leave of absence offense, the
Superintendent or designee shall immediately place the employee on a compulsory leave of absence.  (Education
Code 44940, 44940.5, 45304)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Ed. Code 35161 Board delegation of any powers or duties

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave of absence

Ed. Code 45101 Definitions; disciplinary action and cause

880

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SECTION 1.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35161.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44009.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45101.


Ed. Code 45109 Fixing of duties

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45116 Notice of disciplinary action

Ed. Code 45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 45302 Demotion and removal from permanent classified service

Ed. Code 45303 Additional cause for suspension or dismissal of employee charged with
mandatory or optional leave of absence offense

Ed. Code 45304 Compulsory leave of absence for classified persons

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

Veh. Code 1808.8 School bus drivers; dismissal for safety-related cause

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

U.S. Constitution, First Amendment Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Visalia Unified School District v. Public Employment Relations Board (2024)
98 Cal.App.5th 844

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision California School Employees v. Livingston Union School District (2007) 149
Cal. App. 4th 391

Court Decision CSEA v. Foothill Community College District (1975) 52 Cal. App. 3rd 150

Court Decision Skelly v. California Personnel Board (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website Office of the Attorney General

Website Office of Administrative Hearings

Website Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal Case Type

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

881

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45109.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45116.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45123.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45303.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45304.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=1808.8.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://constitution.congress.gov/constitution/amendment-1/
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html
https://oag.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH/Case-Types/General-Jurisdiction/About/Page-Content/About-Teacher-Dismissal
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z05kjfeDdOpUIOmxqBPz2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8IoJJAjMzlslshOWslsh7QoMplusOtg==


3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.21 Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3516.2 Bomb Threats

4000 Concepts And Roles

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.22 Dress And Grooming

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4119.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4136 Nonschool Employment

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

882

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DIR3sZboSffLXoUbxPXAKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiSe2iGDhslshwnUZnmXGJiRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c8NY3i7ge7BBQrOQPfXyfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0AS5Thslsh7nT4SNVplusryqONdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sglf5xVtilpRV7u6aDyjXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==


4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.22 Dress And Grooming

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4236 Nonschool Employment

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

883

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UQlYtGH6P0pGfM45SXLplusUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wJduplushF6Xv0zSBANgLJOQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0t9pCQoKyKgb8KK1zcLWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjJ8dUjzXBuq4jQVtwTilA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==


4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.22 Dress And Grooming

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

884

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hz0HVoO940ZS15slshcFslshOwIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6oh1Dj6rYFrgfBebytWr0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1JnrSvhCfnqPIG8sUTFnjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XEEIofWfBEyvWQZoFslshuwbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


6162.54 Test Integrity/Test Preparation

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

885

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IdLRPWlw6UWiOylGCzu6TA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Regulation 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary ActionRegulation 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/16/2023

Causes for Disciplinary Action

A permanent classified employee may be subject to suspension, demotion, involuntary reassignment, or dismissal for
one or more of the following causes:

1. Immoral conduct, including, but not limited to, egregious misconduct that is the basis for a sex offense as
defined in Education Code 44010, a controlled substance offense as defined in Education Code 44011, or child
abuse and neglect as described in Penal Code 11165.2-11165.6
 

2. Conduct that constitutes a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c)
 

3. Unlawful discrimination, including harassment, against any student or other employee
 

4. Violation of or refusal to obey state or federal law or regulation, Board policy, or district or school procedure
 

5. Falsification of any information supplied to the district, including, but not limited to, information supplied on
application forms, employment records, or any other school district records
 

6. Unsatisfactory performance
 

7. Unprofessional conduct
 

8. Dishonesty
 

9. Neglect of duty or absence without leave
 

10. Insubordination
 

11. Use of alcohol or a controlled substance while on duty or in such close time proximity thereto as to affect the
employee's performance
 

12. Destruction or misuse of district property
 

13. Failure to fulfill any ongoing condition of employment including, but not limited to, maintenance of any license,
certificate, or other similar requirement specified in the employee's class specification or otherwise necessary
for the employee to perform the duties of the position

14. A physical or mental condition which precludes the employee from the proper performance of duties and
responsibilities as determined by competent medical authority, except as otherwise provided by a contract or
by law
 

15. Retaliation against any person who, in good faith, reports, discloses, divulges, or otherwise brings to the
attention of any appropriate authority any information relative to an actual or suspected violation of state or
federal law occurring on or directly related to the job
 

16. Violation of Education Code 45303 or Government Code 1028 prohibiting the advocacy or teaching of
communism
 

17. Any other misconduct which is of such nature that it causes discredit or injury to the district or the employee's
position

No disciplinary action shall be taken for any cause that arose before the employee became permanent, nor for any
cause that arose more than two years before the date of the filing of the notice of cause unless this cause was
concealed or not disclosed by the employee when it could be reasonably assumed that the employee would have
disclosed the facts to the district.  (Education Code 45113)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

886



Initiation and Notification of Charges

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notice to the employee of a recommendation for discipline, which
includes the charges and materials upon which the recommendation is based. The notification shall identify an
impartial district official ("Skelly officer") with whom the employee may meet at a specified time and place or to
whom the employee may provide a written response to the recommendation of discipline. After meeting with the
employee or considering any response from the employee, the Skelly officer shall recommend to the Superintendent
or designee whether to proceed with the recommendation for discipline.

The Superintendent or designee shall file any final recommendation for disciplinary action in writing with the
Governing Board. A copy of the recommendation shall be served upon the employee either personally or by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, at the employee's last known address.

The notice shall, in ordinary and concise language, inform the employee of the specific charge(s) or cause(s) for the
disciplinary action, the specific acts and omissions upon which the action is based, and, if applicable, the district rule
or regulation that the employee has allegedly violated. In addition, the notice shall include the employee's right to a
hearing on those charges, the time within which the hearing may be requested, which shall be not less than five days
after service of the notice to the employee, and a card or paper which the employee may sign and file to deny the
charges and request a hearing.  (Education Code 45113, 45116)

Request for Board Hearing

Within the time specified in the notice of the recommendation of disciplinary action, the employee may request a
hearing on the charges by signing and filing the card or paper included with the notice.  (Education Code 45113)

Any other written document signed and appropriately filed within the specified time limit by the employee shall
constitute sufficient notice of the request for a hearing. The request shall be delivered to the office of the
Superintendent or designee during normal work hours of that office. If mailed to the office of the Superintendent or
designee, it must be received or postmarked no later than the time limit specified by the district. In cases where an
order of suspension without pay has been issued in conjunction with a recommendation of dismissal, any request for
a hearing on the dismissal shall also constitute a request to hear the suspension order, and the necessity of the
suspension order shall be an issue in the hearing.

Employment Status Pending a Disciplinary Hearing

A classified employee against whom a recommendation for disciplinary action has been issued may remain on active
duty or may be placed on paid leave pending a hearing on the charges. The employee shall not be suspended without
pay, suspended or demoted with a reduction in pay, or dismissed pending the outcome of a timely requested hearing,
except as specified below.  (Education Code 45113)

However, the disciplinary action may be imposed prior to the decision if the Board, or an impartial third-party
hearing officer provided pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement, finds by a preponderance of the evidence
that at the time discipline was imposed, the employee (1) engaged in criminal misconduct, (2) engaged in misconduct
that presents a risk of harm to students, staff, or property, or (3) committed habitual violations of the district's
policies or regulations. Such finding(s) must be made at the conclusion of the Skelly review process.  (Education Code
45113)

In such cases where the disciplinary action is imposed prior to the decision, the employee shall be given written
notice of the disciplinary action and the findings made at the conclusion of the Skelly review process. Such written
notice shall be served upon the employee personally.

In addition, the district may cease paying the employee if a decision has not been rendered by an impartial third-
party hearing officer, pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement, or the Board within 30 days of the date the
hearing was requested.  (Education Code 45113)

Compulsory Leave of Absence

887



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Upon being informed that a classified employee has been charged with a "mandatory leave of absence offense," the
Superintendent or designee shall immediately place the employee on a leave of absence. A mandatory leave of
absence offense includes:  (Education Code 44940, 45304)

1. Any sex offense as defined in Education Code 44010
 

2. Violation or attempted violation of Penal Code 187, prohibiting murder or attempted murder
 

3. Any offense involving the unlawful sale, use, or exchange to minors of controlled substances as listed in Health
and Safety Code 11054, 11055, and 11056

The Superintendent or designee may place on an immediate compulsory leave of absence a classified employee who
is charged with an "optional leave of absence offense," defined as a controlled substance offense specified in
Education Code 44011 and Health and Safety Code 11357-11361, 11363, 11364, and 11370.1 except as it relates
to marijuana, mescaline, peyote, or tetrahydrocannabinol.  (Education Code 44940, 44940.5, 45304)

An employee's compulsory leave for a mandatory or optional leave of absence offense may extend for not more than
10 days after the entry of judgment in the criminal proceedings. However, the compulsory leave may be extended if
the Board gives notice, within 10 days after the entry of judgment in the proceedings, that the employee will be
dismissed within 30 days from the date of service of the notice unless the employee demands a hearing on the
dismissal.  (Education Code 44940, 44940.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Ed. Code 35161 Board delegation of any powers or duties

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave of absence

Ed. Code 45101 Definitions; disciplinary action and cause

Ed. Code 45109 Fixing of duties

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45116 Notice of disciplinary action

Ed. Code 45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 45302 Demotion and removal from permanent classified service

Ed. Code 45303 Additional cause for suspension or dismissal of employee charged with
mandatory or optional leave of absence offense

Ed. Code 45304 Compulsory leave of absence for classified persons

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

Veh. Code 1808.8 School bus drivers; dismissal for safety-related cause

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

U.S. Constitution, First Amendment Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

888

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SECTION 1.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35161.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44009.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45101.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45109.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45116.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45123.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45303.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45304.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=1808.8.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://constitution.congress.gov/constitution/amendment-1/


Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Visalia Unified School District v. Public Employment Relations Board (2024)
98 Cal.App.5th 844

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision California School Employees v. Livingston Union School District (2007) 149
Cal. App. 4th 391

Court Decision CSEA v. Foothill Community College District (1975) 52 Cal. App. 3rd 150

Court Decision Skelly v. California Personnel Board (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website Office of the Attorney General

Website Office of Administrative Hearings

Website Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal Case Type

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.21 Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3516.2 Bomb Threats

4000 Concepts And Roles

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

889

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html
https://oag.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH/Case-Types/General-Jurisdiction/About/Page-Content/About-Teacher-Dismissal
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z05kjfeDdOpUIOmxqBPz2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8IoJJAjMzlslshOWslsh7QoMplusOtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1t8wMJFEdch9Vplusl3zplusg7Gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AVpXCb5jDWcdInS4TwrqsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DIR3sZboSffLXoUbxPXAKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==


4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.22 Dress And Grooming

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4119.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4136 Nonschool Employment

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

890

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiSe2iGDhslshwnUZnmXGJiRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c8NY3i7ge7BBQrOQPfXyfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0AS5Thslsh7nT4SNVplusryqONdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sglf5xVtilpRV7u6aDyjXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==


4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.22 Dress And Grooming

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4236 Nonschool Employment

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.22 Dress And Grooming

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

891

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UQlYtGH6P0pGfM45SXLplusUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wJduplushF6Xv0zSBANgLJOQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0t9pCQoKyKgb8KK1zcLWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjJ8dUjzXBuq4jQVtwTilA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hz0HVoO940ZS15slshcFslshOwIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6oh1Dj6rYFrgfBebytWr0Q==


4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6162.54 Test Integrity/Test Preparation

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

892

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1JnrSvhCfnqPIG8sUTFnjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XEEIofWfBEyvWQZoFslshuwbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IdLRPWlw6UWiOylGCzu6TA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4218.1: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)Policy 4218.1: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System) Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/12/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/16/2023

The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their jobs satisfactorily and exhibit professional and
appropriate conduct, and serve as positive role models both at school and in the community. A classified employee
may be disciplined for unprofessional conduct or unsatisfactory performance in accordance with law, any applicable
collective bargaining agreement, and the rules of the personnel commission.

Disciplinary actions shall be based on the particular facts and circumstances involved and the severity of the
employee's conduct or performance.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that disciplinary actions are taken in a consistent nondiscriminatory
manner. In addition, an employee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, dismissed, or otherwise
retaliated against solely for engaging in protected activities, or for acting to protect a student engaged in exercising
any free speech or press right authorized by, or for refusing to infringe upon a student's conduct protected pursuant
to, Education Code 48907 or 48950.

Disciplinary actions may include, but are not limited to, verbal and written warnings, involuntary reassignment,
demotion, suspension or leave without pay, reduction of wages, or  dismissal.

A probationary classified employee may be dismissed without cause at any time prior to the expiration of the
probationary period.

A permanent classified employee shall be subject to suspension, demotion, or dismissal only for one or more of the
causes designated by rule of the personnel commission.  (Education Code 45302, 45304)

When such serious disciplinary action is being contemplated against an employee, the district shall adhere to
disciplinary procedures developed by the personnel commission. Due process shall be afforded to the employee,
including proper notice, an opportunity for the employee to meet with a designated district official ("Skelly officer")
or to respond in writing to the charges, and an opportunity to appeal the district's decision with the personnel
commission in accordance with Education Code 45305-45307. If the matter is addressed in a hearing before the
personnel commission, the decision of the personnel commission shall be final.

However, if the matter involves an allegation of egregious misconduct as defined in Education Code 44932 and
involves a witness who is a minor, the matter shall be referred to an administrative law judge to determine whether
sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action against the employee. The ruling of the administrative law judge shall be
binding on the district and the employee.  (Education Code 45312)

If the district places an employee on a compulsory leave of absence or suspension during the period the employee is
charged with a criminal offense, is under a criminal investigation, or is waiting due to administrative delay for
necessary job-related administrative determinations, and the proceedings are resolved in favor of the employee, the
district shall pay to the employee the employee's full compensation for the period of the involuntary leave of
absence upon the employee's return to service in the school district.  (Education Code 45190)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Civ. Code 1286.2 Grounds for vacating decision of arbitrator

Ed. Code 11500-11506 Programs to encourage parent involvement

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

893

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SECTION 1.&article=I
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CCP&sectionNum=1286.2.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=16.&part=7.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.


Ed. Code 35161 Board delegation of any powers or duties

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44031 Personnel file contents and inspection

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave of absence

Ed. Code 44990-44994 Testimony of minor witnesses at dismissal or suspension hearings

Ed. Code 45101 Definitions; disciplinary action and cause

Ed. Code 45109 Fixing of duties

Ed. Code 45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 45124 Dismissal of sexual psychopath

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45202 Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Ed. Code 45302-45307 Suspension, dismissal, or other disciplinary action; classified employees

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

H&S Code 11054 Schedule I; substances included

H&S Code 11055 Schedule II; substances included

H&S Code 11056 Schedule III; substances included

H&S Code 11357-11361 Marijuana

H&S Code 11363 Peyote

H&S Code 11364 Opium

H&S Code 11370.1 Possession of controlled substances with a firearm

Pen. Code 11165.2-11165.6 Child abuse or neglect; definitions

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 187 Murder

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

Pen. Code 830.32 School district and community college police

Veh. Code 1808.8 School bus drivers; dismissal for safety-related cause

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

U.S. Constitution, First Amendment Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA School Personnel Comm Association
Publication

Merit Rules and Regulations: CSPCA Recommended Personnel Policies and
Procedures Manual for California School Merit Systems, 2014

Court Decision Visalia Unified School District v. Public Employment Relations Board (2024)
98 Cal.App.5th 844

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

894

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35161.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44009.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45101.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45109.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45123.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45124.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45190.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45202.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11054.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11056.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.&title=&part=&chapter=6.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11363.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11364.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11370.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=187.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=830.32.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=1808.8.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://constitution.congress.gov/constitution/amendment-1/


Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Personnel Commission (1970) 3
Cal.3d 139

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Bonita Unified School District
(2008) No. B200141

Court Decision California School Employees v. Livingston Union School District (2007) 149
Cal. App. 4th 391

Court Decision CSEA v. Foothill Community College District (1975) 52 Cal. App. 3rd 150

Court Decision Skelly v. California Personnel Board (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website Office of the Attorney General

Website Office of Administrative Hearings

Website Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal Case Type

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California School Personnel Commissioners Association

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

895

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html
https://oag.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH/Case-Types/General-Jurisdiction/About/Page-Content/About-Teacher-Dismissal
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://meritsystem.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z05kjfeDdOpUIOmxqBPz2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8IoJJAjMzlslshOWslsh7QoMplusOtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c8NY3i7ge7BBQrOQPfXyfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==


4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.24 Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

896

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wJduplushF6Xv0zSBANgLJOQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6oh1Dj6rYFrgfBebytWr0Q==


Regulation 4219.11: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based HarassmentRegulation 4219.11: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/18/2021

Harmony Union School District

Administrative Regulation 4219.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Procedures
Status: PENDING
Original Adopted Date:      | Last Revised Date:      | Last Reviewed Date: 

The district does not discriminate on the basis of sex and prohibits sex discrimination
in any education program or activity that it operates, as required by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972
(“Title IX”) and its regulations, including in employment.

The grievance procedures described in this regulation have been adopted by the district to provide for the prompt
and equitable resolution of allegations that a district employee, while participating in or attempting to participate in a
district education program or activity, was subjected to discrimination on the basis of sex, including but not limited
to, sex-based harassment, retaliation, or other conduct prohibited by Title IX. 

This regulation only applies to alleged incidents that occurred on or after August 1, 2024. For alleged incidents of sex
discrimination or sexual harassment that occurred prior to August 1, 2024, the procedures that applied at the time of
the alleged incident should be used.

This regulation applies to any district education program or activity, including but not limited to, events occurring on
school property, during any school-related or school-sponsored activity, on school-sponsored transportation, and/or
where the district has disciplinary authority.

Allegations that a district student was subjected to conduct prohibited by Title IX shall be addressed using the
grievance procedures in Administrative Regulation (“AR”) 5145.71.

Definitions

Complaint means an oral or written request to the district that objectively can be understood as a request for the
district to investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR
106.02)

Complainant means: (1) a student or employee who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations; or (2) a person other than a student or employee who is
alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations
and who was participating or attempting to participate in the district’s education program or activity at the time of
the alleged sex discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Party means a complainant or respondent. (34 CFR 106.02)

Peer retaliation means retaliation by a student against another student. (34 CFR 106.02)

Pregnancy or related conditions means: (1) pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; (2) medical
conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; or (3) recovery from pregnancy,
childbirth, termination of pregnancy, lactation, or related medical conditions. (34 CFR 106.02)

Respondent means a person who is alleged to have violated the district’s prohibition on sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Retaliation means intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination against any person by the district, a student, or an
employee or other person authorized by the district to provide aid, benefit, or service under the district’s education
program or activity, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or its regulations, or
because the person has reported information, made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this part, including in an informal
resolution process, in grievance procedures, and in any other actions taken by the district under 34 CFR 106.44 (f)(1).
This provision does not limit the district’s ability to require an employee to participate as a witness in, or otherwise
assist with, a Title IX investigation or proceeding. (34 CFR 106.02)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

897



Sex discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related
conditions, sexual orientation, and gender identity. Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination. (34 CFR
106.02, 106.10)

Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination and means sexual harassment and other harassment on the basis
of sex, including on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related conditions, sexual
orientation, and gender identity, that is (34 CFR 106.02):

 

1. Quid pro quo harassment. An employee, agent, or other person authorized by the district to provide an aid,
benefit, or service under the district’s education program or activity explicitly or impliedly conditioning the
provision of such an aid, benefit, or service on a person’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;

 

2. Hostile environment harassment. Unwelcome sex-based conduct that, based on the totality of the
circumstances, is subjectively and objectively offensive and is so severe or pervasive that it limits or denies a
person’s ability to participate in or benefit from the district’s education program or activity (i.e., creates a
hostile environment). Whether a hostile environment has been created is a fact-specific inquiry that includes
consideration of the following:

 

i. The degree to which the conduct affected the complainant’s ability to access the district’s education
program or activity;

 

ii. The type, frequency, and duration of the conduct;

 

iii. The parties’ ages, roles within the district’s education program or activity, previous interactions, and
other factors about each party that may be relevant to evaluating the effects of the conduct;

 

iv. The location of the conduct and the context in which the conduct occurred; and

 

v. Other sex-based harassment in the district’s education program or activity; or
 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 34 CFR 106.2.

Supportive measures means individualized measures offered as appropriate, as reasonably
available, without unreasonably burdening a Complainant or Respondent, not for punitive or
disciplinary reasons, and without fee or charge to the Complainant or Respondent to (34 CFR 106.02):
 

1. Restore or preserve that party’s access to the district’s education program or activity, including measures that
are designed to protect the safety of the parties or the district’s educational environment; or

 

2. Provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or during an informal

resolution process.

General Title IX Requirements

898



When implementing the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure compliance
with the following requirements (34 CFR 106.45, 106.44):
 

1. That Complainants and Respondents are treated equitably.

 

2. That the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decisionmaker, appeal decisionmaker, and any facilitator of an
informal resolution process do not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or
Respondents generally or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Such persons shall also receive training in
accordance with 34 CFR 106.8.  A decisionmaker may be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator or
investigator. 

 

3. That the Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged sex discrimination until a determination is
made at the conclusion of these grievance procedures.

 

4. That discipline is not imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations
unless there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged
in prohibited sex discrimination.

 

5. That reasonable steps are taken to protect the privacy of the parties and witnesses during the grievance
procedures. These steps shall not restrict the ability of the parties to obtain and present evidence, including by
speaking to witnesses (subject to the district’s prohibition on peer retaliation); consult with their family
members, confidential resources, or advisors; or otherwise prepare for or participate in the grievance
procedures.

 

6. That all relevant and permissible evidence – including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence – is
objectively evaluated and that credibility determinations are not based on a person’s status as a Complainant,
Respondent, or witness.

 

7. That all evidence considered impermissible or privileged under 34 CFR 106.45(b) is excluded.

The district prohibits retaliation against an individual for reporting suspected sex discrimination, making a Complaint,
being a witness, or otherwise participating in a Title IX investigation or proceeding. Retaliation is illegal under federal
and state nondiscrimination laws, prohibited by Board policy, and will result in disciplinary action.

The district shall not disclose personally identifiable information obtained in the course of complying with Title IX
regulations, except: (1) when the district has obtained prior written consent from a person with the legal right to
consent to the disclosure; (2) when the information is disclosed to a parent, guardian, or other authorized legal
representative with the legal right to receive disclosures on behalf of the person whose personally identifiable
information is at issue; (3) to carry out the purposes of the Title IX regulations, including action taken to address
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX in the district’s education program or
activity; (4) as required by federal law, federal regulations, or the terms and conditions of a federal award, including a
grant award or other funding agreement; or (5) to the extent such disclosures are not otherwise in conflict with Title
IX or its regulations, when required by state or local law or when permitted under FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 1232g, or its
implementing regulations, 34 CFR part 99. (34 CFR 106.44(j))

If the Respondent is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with one or more
members, as appropriate, of the student's individualized education program (IEP) or 504 team, to determine how to
comply with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) or Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

899



Title IX Coordinator

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to coordinate its efforts to comply
with Title IX. The Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted at:

Matthew Morgan, Superintendent-Principal
1935 Bohemian Highway
Occidental, CA 94565
Phone (707) 874-1205
mmorgan@harmonyusd.org

Duty to Report Prohibited Conduct
An employee shall notify the Title IX Coordinator within one (1) workday when the employee has information about
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination, including but not limited to sex-based harassment, under
Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR 106.44(c)) 

The Title IX Coordinator shall monitor the district’s education programs and activities for barriers to reporting
information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations and
take steps reasonably calculated to address such barriers. (34 CFR 106.44(b))

When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX and its regulations,
including but not limited to sex-based harassment, the Title IX coordinator shall (34 CFR 106.44(f)):

 

1. Contact the Complainant and/or the individual who reported the conduct to provide information regarding the
district’s grievance procedures and any informal resolution process, if available and appropriate; offer
supportive measures as appropriate; and determine how they wish to proceed; and

 

2. If a Complaint is made, notify the Respondent of the grievance procedures and any informal resolution
process, if available and appropriate, and coordinate supportive measures, as appropriate, for the Respondent.

Complaints

The following people have a right to make a Complaint of sex discrimination, including a Complaint of sex-based
harassment, requesting that the district investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under
Title IX (34 CFR 106.45(a), 106.02):
 

1. A Complainant;

 

2. An authorized legal representative with the legal right to act on behalf of a Complainant; or

 

3. The district’s Title IX Coordinator or designee.

With respect to complaints of sex discrimination other than sex-based harassment, in addition to the people listed
above, the following persons have a right to make a Complaint (34 CFR 106.45(a)):

 

1. Any student or employee; or

 

2. Any person other than a student or employee who was participating or attempting to participate in a district
900



education program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discrimination.

In the absence of a Complaint or the withdrawal of any or all of the allegations in a Complaint, and in the absence or
termination of an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator, when notified of conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination, shall determine whether to initiate a Complaint of sex discrimination. To make this
fact-specific determination, the Title IX Coordinator must consider, at a minimum, the following factors (34 CFR
106.44(f)):
 

1. The Complainant’s request not to proceed with initiation of a Complaint;

 

2. The Complainant’s reasonable safety concerns regarding initiation of a Complaint;

 

3. The risk that additional acts of sex discrimination would occur if a Complaint is not initiated;

 

4. The severity of the alleged sex discrimination, including whether the discrimination, if established, would
require the removal of a Respondent from campus or imposition of another disciplinary sanction to end the
discrimination and prevent its recurrence;

 

5. The age and relationship of the parties, including whether the Respondent is an employee of the district;

 

6. The scope of the alleged sex discrimination, including information suggesting a pattern, ongoing sex
discrimination, or sex discrimination alleged to have impacted multiple individuals;

 

7. The availability of evidence to assist a decisionmaker in determining whether sex discrimination occurred; and

 

8. Whether the district could end the alleged sex discrimination and prevent its recurrence without initiating its
grievance procedures.                                                                

If, after considering these and other relevant factors, the Title IX Coordinator determines that the conduct as alleged
presents an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of the Complainant or other person, or that the
conduct as alleged prevents the district from ensuring equal access on the basis of sex to its education program or
activity, the Title IX Coordinator may initiate a Complaint. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

If the Title IX Coordinator initiates a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator shall notify the Complainant of the
Complaint prior to doing so, as well as provide other notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific points
in the grievance procedures, and appropriately address reasonable concerns about the Complainant’s safety or the
safety of others, including by providing supportive measures. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Regardless of whether a Complaint is initiated, the Title IX Coordinator shall take other appropriate prompt and
effective steps, in addition to steps necessary to effectuate the remedies provided to an individual Complainant, if
any, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity.
(34 CFR 106.44(f))

Complaints of sex discrimination may be consolidated when they arise out of the same facts or circumstances,
including Complaints against more than one Respondent, Complaints by more than one Complainant, or Complaints
by one party against another party. (34 CFR 106.45(e))

901



Initial Evaluation

Upon receipt of a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall conduct a prompt initial evaluation to
determine whether to dismiss or investigate a complaint, within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

The Title IX Coordinator or designee may dismiss a Complaint of sex discrimination if (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. The district is unable to identify the Respondent after taking reasonable steps to do so;
 

2. The Respondent is not participating in a district education program or activity and is not employed by the
district;
 

3. The Complainant voluntarily withdraws any or all of the allegations in the Complaint, the
Title IX Coordinator declines to initiate a complaint, and the Title IX Coordinator determines that, without the
Complainant’s withdrawn allegations, the conduct that remains alleged in the Complaint, if any, would not
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX even if proven; or

 

4. The Title IX Coordinator or designee determines the conduct alleged in the Complaint, even if proven, would
not constitute sex discrimination under Title IX. Before dismissing the Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or
designee shall make reasonable efforts to clarify the allegations with the Complainant.

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall promptly notify the Complainant of the basis for
the dismissal. If the dismissal occurs after the Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX
Coordinator or designee shall also notify the Respondent of the dismissal and the basis for the dismissal promptly
following notification to the Complainant, or simultaneously if notification is in writing. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the Complainant that a dismissal may be appealed and shall provide
the Complainant with an opportunity to appeal the dismissal of a Complaint. If the dismissal occurs after the
Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall also notify the
Respondent that the dismissal may be appealed. Dismissals may be appealed on the following bases (34 CFR
106.45(d)):

 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;
 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the dismissal was
made; and
 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
Complainants or Respondents generally or the individual Complainant or Respondent that would change the
outcome.
 

If the dismissal is appealed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. Notify the parties of any appeal, including notice of the allegations, if notice was not previously provided to
the Respondent;
 

2. Implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;
 

3. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal did not take part in an investigation of the allegations or dismissal
of the Complaint;
 

902



4. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal has been trained consistent with 34 CFR 106.8;

 

5. Provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement in support of, or challenging, the
outcome; and
 

6. Notify the parties of the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result.

When a Complaint is dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall, at a minimum, undertake the following: (1)
offer supportive measures to the Complainant as appropriate; (2) if the Respondent has been notified of the
allegations, offer supportive measures to the Respondent as appropriate; and (3) take other prompt and effective
steps, as appropriate, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within a district education
program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

If a Complaint is dismissed, or in the absence of a Complaint, the conduct may still be addressed pursuant to other
board policies or district regulations where applicable, including but not limited to AR 4030.

If after an initial evaluation the Complaint is not dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator shall either initiate the district’s
grievance procedures or, if available and appropriate and requested by all the parties, an informal resolution process
as specified in the section below titled “Informal Resolution Process.” (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Notice of Allegations

Upon initiation of the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the
known parties in writing of the following (34 CFR 106.45(c)):
 

1. The district's Title IX grievance procedures and any informal resolution process;

 

2. Sufficient information available at the time to allow the parties to respond to the allegations, including the
identities of the parties involved in the incident(s), the conduct alleged to constitute sex discrimination, and the
date(s) and location(s) of the alleged incident(s);

 

3. A statement that retaliation is prohibited; and

 

4. A statement that the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence or an accurate description of this evidence. If a description of the evidence is provided,
the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise impermissible
evidence upon the request of any party.

If, in the course of an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator or designee decides to investigate additional allegations
of sex discrimination by the Respondent toward the Complainant that are not included in the notice provided or that
are included in a Complaint that is consolidated, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the known parties
of the additional allegations. (34 CFR 106.45(c))

Investigation Procedures

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall designate an investigator and a decisionmaker to determine whether sex
discrimination occurred. The investigator may be the same person as the decisionmaker. Neither the investigator nor
the decisionmaker may have a conflict of interest or bias and both shall have received training in accordance with 34
CFR 106.8.  

The designated investigator shall conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial by (34 CFR
106.45(b), (f)):

903



 

1. Ensuring that the burden is on the district’s investigator – not on the parties – to conduct an investigation that
gathers sufficient evidence to determine whether sex discrimination occurred. 

 

2. Ensuring that the parties have an equal opportunity to present fact witnesses and other inculpatory and
exculpatory evidence that are relevant and not otherwise impermissible.

 

3. Reviewing all evidence gathered through the investigation and determining what evidence is relevant and what
evidence is impermissible regardless of relevance.

 

4. Excluding the following types of evidence as impermissible, including questions seeking such evidence:

 

a. Evidence that is protected under a privilege recognized by Federal or State law unless the person to
whom the privilege or confidentiality is owed has voluntarily waived the privilege or confidentiality;

 

b. A party’s or witness’s records that are made or maintained by a physician, psychologist, or other
recognized professional or paraprofessional in connection with the provision of treatment to the party or
witness, unless the district obtains that party’s or witness’s voluntary, written consent for use in its
grievance procedures; and

 

c. Evidence that relates to the Complainant’s sexual interests or prior sexual conduct, unless evidence
about the Complainant’s prior sexual conduct is offered to prove that someone other than the
Respondent committed the alleged conduct or is evidence about specific incidents of the Complainant’s
prior sexual conduct with the Respondent that is offered to prove consent to the alleged sex-based
harassment. The fact of prior consensual sexual conduct between the Complainant and Respondent does
not by itself demonstrate or imply the Complainant’s consent to the alleged sex-based harassment or
preclude determination that sex-based harassment occurred.

 

5. Providing each party with an equal opportunity to access the evidence that is relevant to the allegations of sex
discrimination and not otherwise impermissible, by:

 

a. Providing an equal opportunity to access such evidence, or an accurate description of this evidence.  

If the parties are provided with a description of the evidence, the designated investigator shall, upon the request of
any party, provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence. 
 

b. Providing a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate description of the
evidence for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily waived by both
parties.

 

c. Taking reasonable steps to prevent and address the parties’ unauthorized disclosure of information and
evidence obtained solely through the grievance procedures. Disclosures of such information and
evidence for purposes of administrative proceedings or litigation related to the complaint of sex

904



discrimination are authorized.

Employees are required to participate as a witness in, or otherwise assist with, an investigation under this regulation.

The investigator shall complete the investigation within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

At the completion of the investigation, the investigator shall provide to the parties an evidence review period as
specified in the section below titled “Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Written Decision

At the completion of the investigation, if the designated investigator is not the decisionmaker, the investigator shall
provide all of the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence obtained in the investigation to the
decisionmaker.

If credibility is both in dispute and relevant to evaluating one or more allegations of sex discrimination, the district
must ensure that the decisionmaker is able to question parties and witnesses to adequately assess credibility.
Credibility determinations shall not be based on a person’s status as a Complainant, Respondent, or witness. (34 CFR
106.45(b), (g))

The decisionmaker shall apply the preponderance of the evidence standard to make a determination as to whether
sex discrimination occurred. If the decisionmaker is not persuaded under the preponderance of the evidence
standard that sex discrimination occurred, the decisionmaker must not determine that sex discrimination occurred.
(34 CFR 106.45(b), 106.45(h))

The district shall notify the parties in writing of the determination whether sex discrimination occurred under Title IX
including the rationale for such determination, and the procedures and permissible bases for the Complainant and
Respondent to appeal. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

The written decision shall be issued to the parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

Appeals

Either party may appeal the determination of a Complaint on one of the following bases:
 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;

 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the determination
or dismissal was made; or

 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the
outcome.

An appeal must be made in writing to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5) days of the issuance of the written
determination and must state the basis for the appeal.

Upon receipt of an appeal, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly notify the other party of the appeal, and that other
party shall have five (5) calendar days to respond to the request for an appeal.

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an appeal decisionmaker to hear the appeal. The appeal
decisionmaker shall not have a conflict of interest or bias and shall not have been previously involved in the
grievance procedures, including any informal resolution process, for the Complaint.

905



An appeal decision shall be issued in writing to both parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Either party has the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights within
180 days of the date of the most recently alleged misconduct.

In addition to filing a sex discrimination or sex-based harassment complaint with the district through the grievance
procedures in this regulation, a person may file a complaint with either the California Civil Rights Department (CRD)
or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) as described in AR 4030. 

Timelines for Grievance Procedures

The district’s Title IX grievance procedures shall be completed within the following timelines, unless extended as
specified below, or as otherwise permitted by law:

 

1. The Title IX Coordinator shall make an initial evaluation to determine whether to dismiss or investigate a
Complaint within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of a Complaint;

 

2. The investigation shall be completed within sixty (60) calendar days from receipt of the Complaint;

 

3. If the district offers an informal resolution process as provided under this regulation, and the parties voluntarily
engage in such a process, the timelines otherwise provided in this regulation shall exclude the time spent in the
informal resolution process;

 

4. At the completion of the investigation, the parties shall be provided with the evidence or an accurate
description of the evidence, and a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate
description of the evidence, for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily
waived by both parties;

 

5. A written decision shall be sent to the parties within ten (10) calendar days of the completion of the evidence
review period;

 

6. Any requests for an appeal shall be made within five (5) calendar days of the date the written decision is sent
to the parties;

 

7. Any response from a party to the request for an appeal shall be submitted within five (5) calendar days after
receiving notice of the appeal;

 

8. An appeal decision shall be issued within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the request for an appeal.

Any timelines specified in this regulation may be subject to reasonable extensions on a case-by-case basis for good
cause with notice to the parties that includes the reason for the delay. (34 CFR 106.45(b))

Supportive Measures

When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX, the Title IX Coordinator
or designee shall offer and coordinate supportive measures as appropriate for the Complainant and/or Respondent

906



to restore or preserve that person’s access to district education programs or activities or provide support during the
district’s Title IX grievance procedures or during an informal resolution process. Supportive measures may include:
counseling; increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus; restrictions on contact applied to one
or more parties; leaves of absence; changes in work, regardless of whether there is or is not a comparable
alternative; and training and education programs related to sex-based harassment. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

If the Respondent is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with one or more
members, as appropriate, of the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) team or 504 team, if any, to
determine how to comply with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and/or
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Supportive measures must not unreasonably burden either party and must be designed to protect the safety of the
parties or the district’s educational environment, or to provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or
during any informal resolution process. A district must not impose such measures for punitive or disciplinary reasons.
(34 CFR 106.44(g))

A Complainant or Respondent shall be provided with a timely opportunity to seek, from an appropriate and impartial
employee, modification or reversal of the decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate supportive measures
applicable to them. The impartial employee must be someone other than the employee who made the challenged
decision and must have authority to modify or reverse the decision, if the impartial employee determines that the
decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate the supportive measure was inconsistent with the definition of
supportive measures in 34 CFR 106.2. A Complainant or Respondent shall also be provided with the opportunity to
seek additional modification or termination of a supportive measure applicable to them if circumstances change
materially. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Upon the conclusion of the grievance procedures or any informal resolution process, the district may continue with
the supportive measures, or modify or terminate such measures, as appropriate. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Information about any supportive measures shall not be disclosed to persons other than the person to whom they
apply, including informing one party of supportive measures provided to another party, unless necessary to provide
the supportive measure or restore or preserve a party’s access to the education program or activity, or when an
exception in 34 CFR 106.44 applies. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Emergency Removal from School

Discipline shall not be imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations unless
there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited
sex discrimination. However, the district may remove a student Respondent from the district’s education program or
activity on an emergency basis, provided that the district undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis,
determines that an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of a Complainant or any students, employees,
or other persons arising from the allegations of sex discrimination justifies removal, and provides the Respondent
with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal. A student with a
disability may only be removed from school on an emergency basis in accordance with the IDEA and/or Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(h))  

If a district employee is the Respondent, the employee may be placed on administrative leave during the pendency of
the grievance process where permitted by law and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.  

Informal Resolution

At any time prior to determining whether sex discrimination occurred under these procedures, the district may offer
an informal resolution process to the parties if appropriate. However, the district shall not offer an informal
resolution process for allegations that an employee engaged in sex-based harassment of a student. (34 CFR
106.44(k))

The district has discretion to determine whether it is appropriate to offer an informal resolution process to the
parties when it receives information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination or when a
Complaint of sex discrimination is made, and may decline to offer informal resolution despite one or more of the
parties’ wishes. Circumstances when the district may decline to allow informal resolution include but are not limited
to when the district determines the alleged conduct would present a future risk of harm to others. (34 CFR
106.44(k))

907



The district shall not require or pressure the parties to participate in an informal resolution process. The district shall
obtain the parties’ voluntary consent to the informal resolution process and shall not require waiver of the right to an
investigation and determination of a Complaint as a condition of enrollment or continuing enrollment, or
employment or continuing employment, or exercise of any other right. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

The facilitator for the informal resolution process shall not be the same person as the investigator or the
decisionmaker in the district’s grievance procedures. Any person designated by the district to facilitate an informal
resolution process shall not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or Respondents generally
or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Any person facilitating informal resolution shall receive training under
34 CFR 106.8. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

Before initiation of an informal resolution process, the district must provide to the parties notice that explains (34
CFR 106.44(k)):
 

1. The allegations;

 

2. The requirements of the informal resolution process;

 

3. That, prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the informal resolution process
and to initiate or resume the district’s grievance procedures;

 

4. That the parties’ agreement to a resolution at the conclusion of the informal resolution process would preclude
the parties from initiating or resuming grievance procedures arising from the same allegations;

 

5. The potential terms that may be requested or offered in an informal resolution agreement (including notice
that an informal resolution agreement is binding only on the parties), which could include but are not limited to:

 

a. Restrictions on contact; and

 

b. Restrictions on the Respondent’s participation in one or more of the district’s programs or activities or
attendance at specific events, including restrictions the district could have imposed as remedies or
disciplinary sanctions had the district determined at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures
that sex discrimination occurred.

 

6. What information the district shall maintain and whether and how the district could disclose such information
for use in grievance procedures, if grievance procedures are initiated or resumed.

Any informal resolution agreement reached under this process shall not prevent or restrict the disclosure of factual
information. (Civ. Proc. Code 1001)

If the district provides the parties with an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator must, to the extent
necessary, take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or
recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

Remedies

If there is a determination that sex discrimination occurred, the Title IX Coordinator shall, as appropriate, coordinate

908



the provision and implementation of remedies to a Complainant and other persons the district identifies as having
had equal access to the district’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex discrimination; coordinate
the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions on a Respondent, including notification to the Complainant of any such
disciplinary sanctions; and take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does
not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

If there is a determination that sex-based harassment occurred, the district may provide remedies to the
Complainant that include but are not limited to referral to counseling services, referral to an Employee Assistance
Program, contact limitations between the parties, or adjustments to assignments and/or schedules.  

Corrective/Disciplinary Actions

The district may not impose discipline on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX unless there is a
determination at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

When an employee is found to have committed prohibited sex discrimination or retaliation, the district shall take
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

The district shall not discipline a party, witness, or others participating in the grievance procedures for making a false
statement or for engaging in consensual sexual conduct based solely on the district's determination of whether sex
discrimination, including sex-based harassment, occurred. (34 CFR 106.45)

Recordkeeping

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the following for at least a period of seven years (34 CFR 106.8):
 

1. For each Complaint of sex discrimination, records documenting the informal resolution process (if any) or the
grievance procedures and the resulting outcome;

 

2. For each notification the Title IX Coordinator receives of information about conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations, records documenting the actions the district took
to meet its obligations under 34 CFR 106.44, including supportive measures offered and implemented; and

 

3. All materials used to provide training under 34 CFR 106.8. The district shall make these training materials
available upon request for inspection by members of the public.

For complaints containing allegations of childhood sexual assault within the meaning of Code of Civil Procedure
340.1, the Superintendent or designee shall also indefinitely maintain the following:       
 

1. A record of the allegation(s);

 

2. A record of the investigation procedures followed;

 

3. A record of the written determination;

 

4. A record of the corrective action implemented, if any;

 

5. A record of any appeals and the outcome of the same; and

909



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 

6. All training materials addressing the prohibition and investigation of childhood sexual assault.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

2 CCR 11006-11086 Discrimination in employment

2 CCR 11009 Employment discrimination

2 CCR 11021 Discrimination in employment - retaliation

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11024 Required training and education on harassment based on sex, gender
identity and expression, and sexual orientation

5 CCR 201 Admission to high school

5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs
receiving state or federal financial assistance

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 220.1 Prohibition of retaliation related to educational equity

Ed. Code 220.3 Prohibition of disclosure of information related to student’s sexual
orientation, gender identity, or gender expression

Ed. Code 220.5 Prohibition of policies requiring disclosure of information related to
student’s sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

Gov. Code 12940 Unlawful discriminatory employment practices

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 12950.1 Sexual harassment training

Lab. Code 1101 Political activities of employees

Lab. Code 1102.1 Discrimination: sexual orientation

Lab. Code 1197.5 Wages, hours, and working conditions

Lab. Code 1197.5 Wages, hours and working conditions

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

29 CFR 1636 Implementation of the Pregnant Workers Fairness Act

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

42 USC 2000gg-2000gg-6 Pregnant Workers Fairness Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Burlington Industries v. Ellreth (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257

Court Decision Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California (2003) 31
Cal.4th 1026

Court Decision Faragher v. City of Boca Raton (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275

Court Decision Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989

Court Decision Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al. (1986) 447 U.S. 57

910

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I670D99435A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I676D45735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I679937735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2A9445844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1101.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1197.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1197.5.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1636
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter22&edition=prelim


Court Decision Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc. (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998

Federal Register
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, April 29, 2024, Vol. 89, No. 83,
pages 33474-33896

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Com.
Publication Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment, November 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education

Website California Civil Rights Department

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3600 Consultants

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

911

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/04/29/2024-07915/nondiscrimination-on-the-basis-of-sex-in-education-programs-or-activities-receiving-federal
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
http://www.eeoc.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vrUL5jWsDxbgRF4r37zU8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yVIN8uamvk3kvMcSKCTUog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tgMslshZmNZzkplus9waWSNsF8EQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KakOepoH6ppslshy7SYtHAZbg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==


4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4119.22 Dress And Grooming

4131 Staff Development

4144 Complaints

4144 Complaints

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4219.22 Dress And Grooming

4231 Staff Development

4244 Complaints

4244 Complaints

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

4319.22 Dress And Grooming

4344 Complaints

4344 Complaints

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

912

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PMQplusfDkxafan8iEJNVAe2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HQAt0plx9BIPBslshhG3Aj9rQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiSe2iGDhslshwnUZnmXGJiRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=V9ZPJtOn9clVTj9sZCOwqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WsSmLoMNGF5zpm6pPplusvjog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HNThtsBXuYTJV36dzD00hw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ukl6dbOkdRYslshCh8plusz8BDaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UQlYtGH6P0pGfM45SXLplusUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9Pdno3vr4cY5ipkiXplus6Hdg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EbMZR4CYiMFW2oZfD4y6QQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hz0HVoO940ZS15slshcFslshOwIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8SuqRFplus3pC1xUJHYqAjnPg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ejzdSdbj1y1oisJyMVKSDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==


5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

913

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4227: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesPolicy 4227: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017

The Governing Board acknowledges that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of students
in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, and therefore desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the
district's interscholastic athletic activities in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and safety of
participating students.  

The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a substitute
employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary employee in a limited assignment
capacity. Interscholastic athletic activities include any activities in which student teams participate in interscholastic
competition.  (5 CCR 5590)

When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic activity team coach, the position shall first be made
available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district.  (Education Code 44919)

All coaches shall be subject to applicable law, Board policies, administrative regulations, and California Interscholastic
Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct.

Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591)

Qualifications and Training

The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in accordance with law
and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an appropriate level of competence,
knowledge, and skill.

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored interscholastic athletic
activity shall, prior to beginning the individual’s duties, submit to the Superintendent or designee either an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and
Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background clearance.  (Education Code 49024)

Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to the
Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that the coach meets the
qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State
Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the extent to which the
district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including those required pursuant to Education Code
33479.6, 35179.1, and 49032, and by district policy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 350 Fees not permitted

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

914

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AAC61634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I364BB1104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I364F33834C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.


Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

915

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45247.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45249.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=6.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=2.6.
https://www.cifstate.org/governance/constitution/index
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201601ConcussionsInStudentAthletes.ashx?la=en&rev=5426e7214aa540819e2534a64c1ec82d
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201807PreventingCatastrophicHeatIllness.ashx?la=en&rev=7436c3554336486db014b55033426ebc
https://positivecoach.org/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.nata.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ca-at.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==


4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

916

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


Regulation 4227: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesRegulation 4227: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017

Qualifications

Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not necessarily limited to,
competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593)

1.  Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency procedures, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and possession of a
valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card
 

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card
 

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card
 

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' Association
(NATA/CATA)
 

e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the supervision of an
athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and conditioning
 

2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one or more of the
following:
 

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques
 

b. Completion of in-service programs arranged by a school district or county office of education
 

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being coached
 

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached
 

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in the sport being
coached
 

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the league rules, and, at
the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF)
 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport participation, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions and adolescent
or sports psychology for secondary school positions
 

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth
 

c.  Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in appropriate training
courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons serve under the direct supervision of a fully
qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 CCR 5593)

Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria specified in 5 CCR 5593
required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. Any volunteer who does not meet such
criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

917



program.

Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary
athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592)

1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated teachers from
teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from a licensed physician or other
person approved by the district
 

2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 44424, or any
offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with children

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall obtain an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code
49024)

Training

Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at the individual's expense, a coaching
education program that meets the standards developed by CIF and includes, but is not limited to, training in regard to
sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport management, statewide and school regulations, CPR,
including certification, use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited
to, training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac
arrest. A high school coach who has completed the education program in another California school district shall be
deemed to have met the requirement for this district. An individual who has not completed the education program
may be assigned as a coach for no longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1,
49032)

In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches shall complete an
approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2,
33479.6, 33479.7)

Code of Ethical Conduct

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596)

1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches
 

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials
 

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct
 

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority
 

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times
 

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players
 

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and standards of the game
 

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment
 

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at any public or private
postsecondary educational institution
 

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to be eligible to
participate in athletics

918



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, anabolic steroids, or any

substance to increase physical development or performance that is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American Medical Association
 

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools
 

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the district and the league
in which the district participates

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 350 Fees not permitted

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

919

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AAC61634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I364BB1104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I364F33834C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45247.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45249.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=6.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=2.6.
https://www.cifstate.org/governance/constitution/index
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201601ConcussionsInStudentAthletes.ashx?la=en&rev=5426e7214aa540819e2534a64c1ec82d
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201807PreventingCatastrophicHeatIllness.ashx?la=en&rev=7436c3554336486db014b55033426ebc
https://positivecoach.org/


Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

920

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.nata.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ca-at.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==


6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

921

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


Policy 4240: Bargaining UnitsPolicy 4240: Bargaining Units Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/18/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The Governing Board recognizes the right of district employees to form a bargaining unit and to select an employee
organization as the exclusive representative for the employees in the employees' employment relationship with the
district. The Board is committed to negotiating in good faith with the exclusive representative and respecting the
rights of employees and employee organizations.

The district shall not dominate or interfere with the formation or administration of any employee organization or
contribute financial or other support to it.  (Government Code 3543.5)

Employees shall not be prohibited from wearing union buttons, insignia, or other pictorial or written messages that
favor or oppose the formation of a bargaining unit or any matter that is the subject of negotiations.

Formation of Bargaining Units

Certificated and classified employees shall not be included in the same bargaining unit. (Government Code 3545)

A bargaining unit of certificated or classified supervisory employees may only be recognized if the bargaining unit
includes all certificated or classified supervisory employees, respectively, and is not represented by the same
employee organization that represents district employees who are supervised by the supervisory employees.
 (Government Code 3545)

For this purpose, supervisory employee means any employee, regardless of job description, having authority, in the
interest of the district, to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other
employees, or the responsibility to assign work to, direct, or adjust grievance of other employees, or effectively
recommend that action, when the exercise of that authority is not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires
the use of independent judgment.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Employees serving in management, senior management, or confidential positions shall not be represented by an
exclusive representative. In the employment relationship with the district, employees who serve in a management,
senior management, or confidential position may represent themselves or be represented by an employee
organization whose membership is composed entirely of employees designated as holding those positions. However,
an employee organization representing management, senior management, or confidential employees shall not be
permitted to meet and negotiate with the district on behalf of the employees.  (Education Code 45100.5,
Government Code 3543.4)

Management employee means an employee in a position having significant responsibilities for formulating district
policies or administering district programs.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Confidential employee means any employee who is required to develop or present management positions with
respect to employer-employee relations or whose duties normally require access to confidential information that is
used to contribute significantly to the development of management positions.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Membership

The district shall not deter or discourage employees or job applicants from becoming or remaining members of an
employee organization, authorizing representation by an employee organization, or authorizing dues or fee
deductions to an employee organization. In addition, the district shall not impose or threaten to impose reprisals on
employees, discriminate or threaten to discriminate against employees, or otherwise interfere with, restrain, or
coerce employees because of their membership or nonmembership in an employee organization.  (Government Code
3543.5, 3550, 3551.5)

District Communications to Employees

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

922



The Superintendent or designee may communicate with district employees regarding their rights to join and/or
support or to refrain from joining or supporting an officially recognized employee organization. Such communications
shall be factual and accurate and may not promise a benefit, threaten a reprisal, or in any way deter or discourage
employees from joining an employee organization or paying dues.

The district may disseminate written documents, recorded messages, or other mass communications to actual or
perspective employees represented by an exclusive representative concerning their rights to join and/or support, or
refrain from joining and/or supporting, an employee organization only after the Superintendent or designee meets
and confers with the exclusive representative concerning the content of the mass communication. If the district and
exclusive representative do not come to agreement on the content of the mass communication and the district still
chooses to disseminate it, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the exclusive representative provide a
communication of reasonable length to the district that shall be disseminated to the employees at the same time as
the district's own mass communication.  (Government Code 3556)

Access to New Employee Orientations

The district shall permit each exclusive representative access to new employee orientation or onboarding process
where newly hired employees represented by the exclusive representative are advised, whether in person, online, or
through other means or mediums, of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties, responsibilities, or any other
employment-related matters. The district shall provide the exclusive representative at least 10 days' notice in
advance of an orientation, except that a shorter notice may be provided where there is an urgent need critical to the
district's operations that was not reasonably foreseeable.  (Government Code 3556)

Following a request to negotiate by either party, the structure, time, and manner of access to new employee
orientations shall be determined by mutual agreement of the district and the exclusive representative. If the district
and exclusive representative fail to reach an agreement, the structure, time, and manner of access to the new
employee orientation shall be subject to compulsory interest arbitration. The district and the exclusive
representative may mutually agree to submit any dispute to compulsory interest arbitration at any time. In addition,
if any dispute arises during negotiations and is not resolved within 45 days after the first meeting or within 60 days
after the initial request to negotiate, whichever is earlier, either party may make a demand for compulsory interest
arbitration. When any such dispute arises during the summer when the district's administrative office is closed, the
timeline shall commence on the first day the administrative office reopens. The arbitrator's decision shall be issued
within 10 days and shall be final and binding on the parties.  (Government Code 3556, 3557)

The date, time, and place of a new employee orientation shall not be disclosed to anyone other than employees, the
exclusive representative, or a vendor that is contracted to provide a service for purposes of the orientation.
 (Government Code 3556)

Until June 30, 2025, unless the district and the exclusive representative have agreed otherwise, when the district has
not conducted an in-person orientation within 30 days of hiring a new employee, the Superintendent or designee
shall permit the exclusive representative to schedule an in-person meeting during employment hours at the new
employee's worksite, during which the new employee shall have the opportunity to attend and shall be relieved of
other duties for the purpose of attending the meeting. The district shall provide appropriate space at the worksite
within seven calendar days of receiving a request from the exclusive representative.  (Government Code 3556, 3557)

During this meeting, the exclusive representative shall be permitted to communicate directly with the new
employees for up to 30 minutes of paid time.  (Government Code 3556)

Access to Employee Contact Information

The Superintendent or designee shall provide an exclusive representative with the name, job title, department, work
location, telephone numbers (work, home, and personal cell phone), of all employees represented by the exclusive
representative on file with the district. An employee's personal email address shall only be disclosed if it used by the
employee to conduct district business.

Such information shall be provided within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire for all

923



new employees represented by the exclusive representative, unless the exclusive representative has agreed to a
different interval for the provision of the information. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the
exclusive representative with the same information for all employees represented by the exclusive representative
every 120 days, unless more frequent disclosure is required by agreement with the exclusive representative.
 (Government Code 3558, 7928.300)

However, the Superintendent or designee shall not disclose:  (Government Code 3558, 6205-6210, 6215-6216,
7928.300)

1. The home address and any phone numbers on file for employees performing law enforcement-related
functions
 

2. The home address, home telephone or personal cell phone number(s), or personal email address(es) of any
employee who is a participant in the Safe at Home address confidentiality program pursuant to Government
Code 6205-6210 and 6215-16
 

3. The employee's home address, home telephone and personal cell phone numbers, and personal email address
of an employee not performing law enforcement related functions if the employee has submitted a written
request to the district to keep such information private. In such instances, the Superintendent or designee shall
also remove the employee's home address, home telephone number, and personal cell phone number from any
mailing list maintained by the district unless the list is only used by the district to contact the employee.

Within 20 calendar days after an exclusive representative notifies the Superintendent or designee that a list of
employees provided by the district is inaccurate or incomplete, the Superintendent or designee shall take steps to
correct the list and provide a new list of employees to the exclusive representative.  (Government Code 3558)

The Superintendent or designee shall review the list of contact information for district employees at the beginning of
each school year, or more often as appropriate.

Communications with Employees by Employee Organizations

Subject to reasonable regulation by the district, employee organizations shall have access, at reasonable times, to the
work areas of employees represented by the employee organization and to district facilities for the purpose of
meeting with employees represented by the employee organization. Access may be limited in instances where it
would be disruptive to district operations.  (Government Code 3543.1)

Additionally, subject to reasonable regulation by the district, employee organizations shall have the ability to use
institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, and other means of communication to communicate with employees
represented by the employee organization.  (Government Code 3543.1)

Membership Dues or Other Payments to an Employee Organization

When drawing an order for the salary or wage payment of a bargaining unit employee of an employee organization,
the district shall deduct any amount that has been requested by the employee in a revocable written authorization
for the purpose of paying dues or other payments for any service, program, or committee provided or sponsored by
the employee organization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

When an employee organization has certified to the district that it has and will maintain individual employee
authorizations for payroll deductions, the district shall rely on information from the employee organization regarding
the amounts of such payroll deductions and the employees to whom they apply and shall not handle or process
employee written authorizations for the employees represented by such employee organization. The district also
shall not require a copy of the written authorization to be submitted by the employee organization, except when
there is a dispute about the existence or terms of the written authorization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

A written authorization shall remain in effect until expressly revoked in writing by the employee and pursuant to the
terms of the written authorization. Employee requests to cancel or change authorizations for payroll deductions for
employee organizations shall be directed to the employee organization that represents the employee rather than the
district. The employee organization shall be responsible for processing these requests. The district shall rely on the

924



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

information provided by the employee organization regarding whether deductions for an employee organization
were properly canceled or changed. The employee organization shall be required to indemnify the district for any
claims made by an employee for deductions made by the district in reliance on information from the employee
organization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

When an employee organization has declined to certify that it will handle and process written authorizations from
employee(s) represented by the employee organization and makes a request for payroll deductions, the district shall
request a copy of the written authorization for an employee before making the payroll deductions for that employee.
 (Education Code 45060, 45168)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 33015-33490 Recognition of exclusive representative; proceedings

8 CCR 33700-33710 Severance of established unit

Ed. Code 45060-45061.5 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment; certificated employees

Ed. Code 45100.5 Senior classified management positions

Ed. Code 45104.5 Abolishment of senior classified management positions

Ed. Code 45108.5 Definition of senior classified management employees

Ed. Code 45108.7 Waiver of provisions of Education Code 45108.5

Ed. Code 45168 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment; classified employees

Ed. Code 45220-45320 Merit system; classified employees

Gov. Code 3500-3511 Local public employee organizations

Gov. Code 3507.7 Representation of temporary employees

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Gov. Code 3543.4 Management and confidential positions; representation

Gov. Code 3545 Appropriateness of unit; basis

Gov. Code 3550-3552 Prohibition on public employers deterring or discouraging union
membership

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

Gov. Code 53260-53264 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 6205-6210 Confidentiality of addresses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, or child abduction

Gov. Code 6215-6216 Address confidentiality for individuals who face threats or violence because
of work for a public entity

Gov. Code 6503.5 Joint powers agencies; agreement

Gov. Code 7928.300 Disclosure of employee contact information to employee organization

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision County of Los Angeles v. Los Angeles County Employee Relations
Commission (2013) 56 Cal. 4th 905

Court Decision Friedrichs v. California Teachers Association, et al. (2016) 136 S.Ct. 1083

Court Decision Janus v. American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees,
Council 31 (2018) 138 S.Ct. 2448

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling Regents of the University of California (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1700-H.

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling Desert Community College District (2007) PERB Dec. No. 1921

925

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=IB5AC9B005A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#IB5B0E0C35A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45100.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45104.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45108.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45108.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45168.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=9.&title=&part=&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3507.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3540.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=6503.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7928.300.


Public Employment Relations Board Ruling East Whittier School District (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1727

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling City of Sacramento (2019) PERB Dec. No. 2702

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Website Association of California School Administrators

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1431 Waivers

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

926

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cft.org
http://www.perb.ca.gov
http://www.csea.com
http://www.cta.org
http://www.acsa.org
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ikwhky3RnE91hYDa7IlSuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0AS5Thslsh7nT4SNVplusryqONdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sglf5xVtilpRV7u6aDyjXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kZSplusmbBylVJaSR8plusKQgNlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5DF7PiVrcMOslshPUMb2mLDiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0t9pCQoKyKgb8KK1zcLWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjJ8dUjzXBuq4jQVtwTilA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ABGqplusKhgcDuxXkEIYU1UslshA==


4251 Employee Compensation

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4301 Administrative Staff Organization

4312.1 Contracts

4315 Evaluation/Supervision

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361.2 Personal Leaves

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

927

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jED6j2ftplusfmMeCpF6SKslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZSDYZnWJbKBtY3IS6KwJlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=43ckWjavfMnRcTpW4OQNpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1JnrSvhCfnqPIG8sUTFnjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XEEIofWfBEyvWQZoFslshuwbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mFoPGONs6uqBVhM0b1O1Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4257: Employee SafetyPolicy 4257: Employee Safety Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board is committed to maximizing employee safety and believes that workplace safety is the
responsibility of every employee. Working conditions and equipment shall comply with standards prescribed by
federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

No employee shall be required or permitted to be in any place of employment which is unsafe or unhealthful.  (Labor
Code 6402)

The Superintendent or designee shall promote safety and correct any unsafe work practices through education and
enforcement.

All employees are expected to use safe work practices and, to the extent possible, correct any unsafe conditions that
may occur. If an employee is unable to correct an unsafe condition, the employee shall immediately report the
problem to the Superintendent or designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and implement a written injury and illness prevention program that
includes a workplace violence prevention plan and that provides employees with access to such program in
accordance with law.  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203)

The Superintendent or designee shall make first aid materials readily available at district workplaces and shall make
effective provisions to prepare for prompt medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury or illness.
 (8 CCR 3400)

No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against for exercising any right regarding employee safety or
health specified in Labor Code 6310, including:

1. Making a report or complaint
 

2. Instituting proceedings or causing proceedings to be instituted
 

3. Testifying with regard to employee safety or health
 

4. Participating in any occupational health and safety committee established pursuant to Labor Code 6401.7
 

5. Requesting access to injury or illness reports and records
 

6. Exercising any other right protected by the Occupational Safety and Health Act

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

8 CCR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CCR 3203 Injury and illness prevention program

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 3400 Medical services and first aid

8 CCR 5095-5100 Control of noise exposure

8 CCR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Ed. Code 32030-32034 Eye safety

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

928

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA506C3A35A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2997DB735A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3180B2D25A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43020D605A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4306A1435A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4AFF57235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=3.


Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 1139 Worker's rights in emergencies

Lab. Code 132a Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination

Lab. Code 3300 Definition of employer

Lab. Code 6305 Occupational safety and health standards; special order

Lab. Code 6310 Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited

Lab. Code 6325 Prohibition of entry into place of employment

Lab. Code 6400-6413.5 Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees

Lab. Code 6401.7 Injury and illness prevention program

Lab. Code 6401.9 Workplace violence prevention plans

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

29 CFR 1910.1030 Bloodborne pathogens

29 CFR 1910.95 Noise standards

29 CFR 651-678 Occupational safety and health

8 CFR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CFR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CFR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program,
rev. August 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

929

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=132a.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6305.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6310.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6325.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.9.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-Z/section-1910.1030
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-G/section-1910.95
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh
http://www.osha.gov
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.hearingconservation.org
http://www.cdc.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==


3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4131 Staff Development

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4157.2 Ergonomics

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4231 Staff Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

930

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nS2wDZsHHIG4ZB2Fn4Geug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sRcslshe3arGplusAMzKkUvOBeqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GNQSA66OvhpnuQ6X3tLvpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rhCLEtplus6plus95wOD74SplusGTsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMMixE0quSYqoekTKt54JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n75LeISTFf0Si4frsAE10Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==


4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.2 Ergonomics

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4331 Staff Development

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4357.2 Ergonomics

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

6142.93 Science Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

931

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OAOFZLeNyprD5s79QXK5Zg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HLMzSmqplusplus1gwwslKGHsSfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfLc4SRUEYPj1LDHoENslshRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==


Regulation 4257: Employee SafetyRegulation 4257: Employee Safety Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/18/2021

The Superintendent or designee shall provide safety devices and implement safeguards, methods, and processes that
are reasonably necessary for the safety and health of employees in the workplace.  (Labor Code 6401)

If the Department of Industrial Relations Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) prohibits entry into
any district workplace or performance of a district operation or process based on a determination that the workplace
exposes employees to the risk of an imminent hazard, including a machine, device, apparatus, or equipment that is in
a dangerous condition or is dangerously placed, the Superintendent or designee shall post a notice of the hazard
provided by Cal/OSHA in a conspicuous place at the work site. This notice shall not be removed except by an
authorized representative of Cal/OSHA and only when the workplace, operation, or process is made safe, and the
required safeguards, safety appliances, or devices are provided.  (Labor Code 6325)

Injury and Illness Prevention Program

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall cover all district employees and all other workers whom the
district controls or directs and directly supervises on the job to the extent that the workers are exposed to hazards
specific to their worksite and job assignment. The obligation of contractors or other employers who control or direct
and supervise their own employees on the job shall not be affected by the district's injury and illness prevention
program.  (Labor Code 6401.7)

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall include:  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203)

1. The name/position of the person(s) with authority and responsibility for implementing the program
 

2. A system for ensuring that employees comply with safe and healthful work practices, which may include, but
are not limited to:
 

a. Recognition of employees who follow safe and healthful work practices
 

b. Training and retraining programs
 

c. Disciplinary actions
 

3. A system for communicating with employees in a form readily understandable by all employees on matters
related to occupational health and safety, including provisions designed to encourage employees to report
hazards at the worksite without fear of reprisal.  The communications system may include, but is not limited to:

a. Meetings
 

b. Training programs
 

c. Posting
 

d. Written communications
 

e. A system of anonymous notification by employees about hazards
 

f. A labor/management safety and health committee
 

4. Procedures for identifying and evaluating workplace hazards, including scheduled periodic inspections to
identify unsafe conditions and work practices. Such inspections shall be made:
 

a. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment that represents a new occupational
safety or health hazard is introduced into the workplace
 

b. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard
 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

932



5. A procedure for investigating occupational injury or illness
 

6. Methods and/or procedures for correcting unsafe or unhealthful conditions, work practices, and work
procedures in a timely manner, based on the severity of the hazard, when the hazard is observed or discovered

When an imminent hazard exists that cannot be immediately abated without endangering employee(s) and/or
property, these procedures shall call for the removal of all exposed staff from the area except those necessary
to correct the hazardous condition. Employees needed to correct the condition shall be provided with the
necessary safeguards.
 

7. Provision of training and instruction as follows:
 

a. To all new employees
 

b. To all employees given new job assignments for which training has not previously been received
 

c. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced into the workplace and
represent a new hazard
 

d. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard
 

e. To supervisors, to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to which employees under their
immediate direction and control may be exposed
 

8. A written workplace violence prevention plan developed and implemented in accordance with Labor Code
6401.9  (Labor Code 6401.7)

The plan, which shall be easily accessible to all employees at all times, shall be in effect at all times and in all
work areas, and be specific to the hazards and corrective measures for each work area and operation.  (Labor
Code 6401.9)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to all employees when the plan is first established and
annually thereafter in accordance with Labor Code 6401.9. Training materials shall be appropriate in content
and vocabulary to employees' educational level, literacy, and language.  (Labor Code 6401.9)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees, or their representative designated pursuant to 8 CCR
3203, with either of the following:  (8 CCR 3203)

1. Access to the district's injury and illness prevention program in a reasonable time, place, and manner, but in no
event later than five business days after the request for access is received from an employee or a designated
representative of the employee.

When an employee or designated representative requests a copy of the district's injury and illness prevention
program, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the requester a printed copy unless the employee or
designated representative agrees to receive an electronic copy.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide one printed copy free of charge. If the employee or designated
representative requests additional copies within one year of the previous request and the district's injury and
illness prevention program has not been updated with new information since the prior copy was provided, the
district may charge reasonable reproduction costs pursuant to 8 CCR 3204 for the additional copies.
 

2. Unobstructed access to the district's injury and illness prevention program through the district's server or
website that allows an employee to review, print, and email the current version of the district's injury and
illness prevention program.

The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the right and procedure to access the district's injury and illness
prevention program to all employees.  (8 CCR 3203)

Labor/Management Safety and Health Committee

933



The district's labor/management safety and health committee shall:  (8 CCR 3203)

1. Meet regularly, but not less than quarterly.
 

2. Prepare and make available to affected employees written records of the safety and health issues discussed at
committee meetings and maintained for review by Cal/OSHA upon request. These records shall be maintained
for at least one year.
 

3. Review results of the periodic, scheduled worksite inspections.
 

4. Review investigations of occupational accidents and causes of incidents resulting in occupational injury or
illness or exposure to hazardous substances. As appropriate, the committee may submit suggestions to the
Superintendent or designee regarding the prevention of future incidents.
 

5. Review investigations of alleged hazardous conditions brought to the attention of any committee member.
When determined necessary by the committee, it may conduct its own inspection and investigation to assist in
remedial solutions.
 

6. Submit recommendations to assist in the evaluation of employee safety suggestions.
 

7. Upon request of Cal/OSHA, verify abatement action taken by the district to abate citations issued by
Cal/OSHA.

Hearing Protection

Whenever employee noise exposure equals or exceeds the standards specified by law, the Superintendent or
designee shall implement a hearing conservation program in accordance with state and federal regulations, including,
when required, monitoring of sound levels, audiogram evaluation and audiometric testing of affected employees, the
provision of hearing protectors, and employee training.  (8 CCR 5095-5100; 29 CFR 1910.95)

Eye Safety Devices

Employees shall wear eye safety devices whenever they are engaged in or observing an activity involving hazards or
hazardous substances likely to cause eye injury.  (Education Code 32030-32034)

First Aid and Medical Services

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the ready availability of medical personnel for advice and consultation
on matters of industrial health or injury. Whenever a district facility or district grounds are not in close proximity to
an infirmary, clinic, or hospital where all injured employees may be treated, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that at least one employee is adequately trained to provide first aid.  (8 CCR 3400)

The Superintendent or designee shall make adequate first aid materials readily available for employees at every
worksite. Such materials shall be approved by a consulting physician and shall be kept in a sanitary and usable
condition. The Superintendent or designee shall frequently inspect all first aid materials and replenish them as
necessary.  (8 CCR 3400)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that suitable facilities for quick drenching or flushing of the eyes and
body are provided within the work area for immediate emergency use when the eyes or body or any person may be
exposed to injurious corrosive materials.  (8 CCR 3400)

To avoid unnecessary delay in medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury or illness, the
Superintendent or designee shall use one or more of the following:  (8 CCR 3400)

1. A communication system for contacting a physician or emergency medical service, such as access to 911 or
equivalent telephone system. The communication system or the employees using the system shall have the
ability to direct emergency services to the location of the injured or ill employee.
 

2. Readily accessible and available on-site treatment facilities suitable for treatment of reasonably anticipated
injury and illness

934



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
3. Proper equipment for prompt medical transport when transportation of injured or ill employees is necessary

and appropriate

Protection from Communicable Diseases and Infections

The Superintendent or designee shall develop an exposure control plan for bloodborne pathogens that is consistent
with the district's injury and illness prevention program. The plan shall include a determination of which job
classifications have occupational exposure to blood or other potentially infectious materials; precautions to be
implemented, including universal precautions, engineering and work practice controls, and personal protective
equipment; availability of the hepatitis B vaccination; provision of information and training to employees; and follow-
up actions to be taken if exposure occurs. The district shall ensure that a copy of the exposure control plan is
accessible to employees in accordance with law.  (8 CCR 5193; 29 CFR 1910.1030)

Strategies to prevent and mitigate the outbreak or spread of infectious diseases shall be followed for diseases that
are communicated through airborne transmission, skin-to-skin contact, foodborne transmission, or other casual or
noncasual means. Such strategies shall include, but are not limited to, communication and training about the
disease(s); campus closures and alternative means of instruction when necessary; preventative measures, such as
social distancing, personal protective equipment, temperature checks, and/or any other health screening allowed by
law; and cleaning and sanitization of district facilities and equipment.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report to the local health officer the presence or suspected
presence of any communicable disease.  (17 CCR 2508)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

8 CCR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CCR 3203 Injury and illness prevention program

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 3400 Medical services and first aid

8 CCR 5095-5100 Control of noise exposure

8 CCR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Ed. Code 32030-32034 Eye safety

Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 1139 Worker's rights in emergencies

Lab. Code 132a Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination

Lab. Code 3300 Definition of employer

Lab. Code 6305 Occupational safety and health standards; special order

Lab. Code 6310 Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited

Lab. Code 6325 Prohibition of entry into place of employment

Lab. Code 6400-6413.5 Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees

Lab. Code 6401.7 Injury and illness prevention program

Lab. Code 6401.9 Workplace violence prevention plans

935

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA506C3A35A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2997DB735A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3180B2D25A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43020D605A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4306A1435A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4AFF57235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=132a.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6305.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6310.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6325.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.9.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

29 CFR 1910.1030 Bloodborne pathogens

29 CFR 1910.95 Noise standards

29 CFR 651-678 Occupational safety and health

8 CFR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CFR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CFR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program,
rev. August 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

936

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-Z/section-1910.1030
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-G/section-1910.95
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh
http://www.osha.gov
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.hearingconservation.org
http://www.cdc.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nS2wDZsHHIG4ZB2Fn4Geug==


4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4131 Staff Development

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4157.2 Ergonomics

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4231 Staff Development

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.2 Ergonomics

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

937

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sRcslshe3arGplusAMzKkUvOBeqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GNQSA66OvhpnuQ6X3tLvpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rhCLEtplus6plus95wOD74SplusGTsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMMixE0quSYqoekTKt54JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n75LeISTFf0Si4frsAE10Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OAOFZLeNyprD5s79QXK5Zg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HLMzSmqplusplus1gwwslKGHsSfw==


4319.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4331 Staff Development

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4357.2 Ergonomics

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

6142.93 Science Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

938

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfLc4SRUEYPj1LDHoENslshRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4257.1: Work-Related InjuriesRegulation 4257.1: Work-Related Injuries Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/18/2021

In order to provide medical benefits, temporary or permanent disability benefits, wage replacement, retraining or skill
enhancement, and/or death benefits in the event that an employee becomes injured or ill in the course of
employment, the district shall provide all employees with insurance and workers' compensation benefits in
accordance with law. The Superintendent or designee shall develop an efficient claims handling process that reduces
costs and facilitates employee recovery.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify every new employee, at the time of hire or by the end of the first pay
period, of the employee's right to receive workers' compensation benefits if injured at work.  (Labor Code 3551; 8
CCR 15596)

In addition, a notice regarding workers' compensation benefits shall be posted in a conspicuous location frequented
by employees, where the notice may be easily read during the workday.  (Labor Code 3550)

In the event that an employee is injured or becomes ill in the course of employment, the employee shall report the
work-related injury or illness to the Superintendent or designee as soon as practicable. The employee and
appropriate district staff shall also promptly document the date and time of any incident, a description of the
incident, and any persons present.

Within one working day of receiving notice or knowledge of any injury to an employee in the course of employment,
the Superintendent or designee shall provide a claim form and notice of potential eligibility for workers'
compensation benefits to the employee or, in the case of the employee's death, to the employee's dependents. The
claim form and notice shall be provided personally or by first class mail.  (Labor Code 5401)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employee notices described above are in the form prescribed by
the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), Division of Workers Compensation.

The Superintendent or designee shall additionally ensure that any employee who is a victim of a crime that occurred
at the place of employment is given written notice personally or by first class mail within one working day of the
crime, or when the district reasonably should have known of the crime, that the employee is eligible for workers'
compensation benefits for injuries, including psychiatric injuries, that may have resulted from the crime.  (Labor Code
3553)

Upon learning of a work-related injury or illness, or injury or illness alleged to have arisen out of and in the course of
employment, the Superintendent or designee shall report the incident to the district's insurance carrier or DIR, as
applicable, within five days after obtaining knowledge of the injury or illness. If a subsequent death arises as a result
of the reported injury or illness, an amended report indicating the death shall be filed within five days after being
notified of or learning about the death.  (Labor Code 6409.1)

In addition, in every case involving death or serious injury or illness, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately
make a report to the Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) by telephone or through an online
mechanism made available by Cal/OSHA.  (Labor Code 6409.1)

For the purpose of this report, serious injury or illness means any injury or illness occurring in a place of employment
or in connection with any employment that requires inpatient hospitalization for other than medical observation or
diagnostic testing, or in which an employee suffers an amputation, the loss of an eye, or any serious degree of
permanent disfigurement.  (Labor Code 6302)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 15596 Notice of employee rights to workers' compensation benefits

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

939

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA6CD3B835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)


Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Lab. Code 3200-4856 Workers' compensation

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 3600-3605 Conditions of liability

Lab. Code 3760 Report of injury to insurer

Lab. Code 4600 Provision of medical and hospital treatment by employer

Lab. Code 4906 Disclosures and statements

Lab. Code 5400-5413 Notice of injury or death

Lab. Code 6302 Definition of serious injury or illness

Lab. Code 6409.1 Reports

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Workers' Compensation in California: A Guidebook for Injured Workers,
2016

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Workers' Compensation Claim Form (DWC 1) & Notice of Potential
Eligibility

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Notice to Employees - Injuries Caused by Work

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Time of Hire Pamphlet

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Workers
Compensation

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Public Health

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3320-E PDF(1) Claims And Actions Against The District

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

940

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3760.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=4600.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=4906.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6409.1.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.dir.ca.gov/dwc
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cdph.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4EBplusTtUIhoHuqi6oSdslshURg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9JbfbGnh7plusxoAd0OhM50Wg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jZVgb2EwMpfVREY844c3ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==


4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.2 Ergonomics

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.2 Ergonomics

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.2 Ergonomics

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

941

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QdAYOi3LWCjpslshWly8PXR9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8BWeWybYAmE6SKbR4Pgplusmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8uHplus8BW3Aplus9fCZplusRv3VV6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Policy 4261: LeavesPolicy 4261: Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board shall provide for paid and unpaid leaves of absence for employees in accordance with law,
Board policy, administrative regulation, collective bargaining agreements, and merit system rules, as applicable.

Employees have the right to take leaves as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreements, including, but
not limited to:

1. Personal illness or injury
 

2. Industrial accident or illness
 

3. Family care and medical leave
 

4. Military service
 

5. Personal necessity and personal emergencies

6. Disability leave for certificated employees in accordance with Education Code 44986
 

7. Vacations for classified staff and certificated management staff, as applicable
 

8. Sabbaticals for purposes of study or training related to the employee's job duties
 

9. Attendance at work-related meetings and staff development opportunities

10. Compulsory leave
 

11. Maternity, parental leave, and reproductive loss leave for both certificated and classified staff, as applicable
under state law
 

12. Bereavement

Long-Term Leaves

With Board approval, an employee may receive a leave of absence, without pay and without accruing seniority or
service credit, for a period of up to one school year. Applications for long-term leave shall be made in writing and
shall state the purpose for which leave is requested. All long-term leave agreements shall be in writing and shall state
the terms and conditions of the leave, including the conditions governing the employee's return.

At the end of a long-term leave, the employee shall be reinstated to a similar position as that employee held at the
time leave was granted, unless otherwise agreed upon.

The Board shall consider any written request by an employee to return to work prior to the expiration date of the
leave.

Administrative and Supervisory Personnel

Certificated administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
certificated employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other certificated employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memorandums of understanding,
Board policy, administrative regulation, or law.

Classified administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
classified employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other classified employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memoranda of understanding, Board

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

942



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

policy, administrative regulation, or law.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

943

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=13.&chapter=14.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44018.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44043.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44800.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45059.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=2.&part=3.&chapter=11.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==


4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

944

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBp0EUVInFQ1zz7nukNJZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4vWyj9hsEfWLJRLCTzvd2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==


4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

945

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4261: LeavesRegulation 4261: Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

Failure to Return to Service After Leave

The district may terminate the employment of a certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more
consecutive working days after April 30 of the previous school year if all of the following circumstances exist: 
(Education Code 44842)

1. The employee fails to report for duty, without good cause, at the beginning of the school year after having
notified the Governing Board of the intention to remain in service with the district in accordance with
Education Code 44842
 

2. The district had specifically notified the employee, at least five days in advance, of the time and place at which
the employee was to report to work
 

3. The employee continues to be absent from work for 20 consecutive working days, beginning from the date the
employee was to report to work.
 

4. The employee did not request or was not granted a leave of absence authorized by the Board

Use of Leaves by Classified Employees

A classified employee may interrupt or terminate vacation leave in order to begin another type of paid leave without
a return to active service, as long as the employee provides adequate notice and relevant supporting information
regarding the basis for such interruption or termination.  (Education Code 45200)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

946

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=13.&chapter=14.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44018.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44043.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44800.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45059.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=2.&part=3.&chapter=11.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.


Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

947

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBp0EUVInFQ1zz7nukNJZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==


4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

948

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4vWyj9hsEfWLJRLCTzvd2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Regulation 4261.1: Personal Illness/Injury LeaveRegulation 4261.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The following administrative regulation applies to classified employees, including classified management. For
certificated employees, including certificated management, see Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal
Illness/Injury Leave.

Classified employees employed five days a week are entitled to 12 days leave of absence with full pay for personal
illness or injury (sick leave) per fiscal year. Employees who work less than a full fiscal year or fewer than five days a
week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, part-time
employees who are entitled to less than 24 hours of paid sick leave per fiscal year due to the amount of time worked
shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if they are eligible.  (Education Code 45191; Labor Code
245-249)

Use of Sick Leave

A classified employee may use sick leave for absences as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreement,
including, but not limited to:

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of employment, or by quarantine
which results from contact in the course of employment with other persons having a contagious disease
 (Education Code 45199)

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery, as well as reproductive loss  (Education Code 45193;
Government Code 12945.6)
 

3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 45207)

4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour
 

5. Industrial accident or illness when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been exhausted  (Education
Code 45192)

6. Need of an employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster care
placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR
825.112)

7. Need of the employee or the employee's family member, including a designated person, as defined in Labor
Code 245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care
 (Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)
 

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

9. Bereavement leave, as specified in Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves
 (Education Code 45194; Government Code 12945.7)

For the purposes specified in Items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of sick leave that
would be accrued during six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 233)

An employee may take leave for personal illness or injury at any time during the year, even if credit for such leave
has not yet been accrued. However, a new full-time classified employee shall not be entitled to more than six days of
sick leave, or the proportionate amount to which the employee may be entitled, until the first day of the month after
the employee has completed six months of active service with the district.  (Education Code 45191)

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 45191)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

949



An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of termination, in
accordance with Education Code 44042.5.

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave they have accumulated.

The district shall not require newly employed classified employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous district.
However, if the employee's previous employment was terminated for cause, the transfer of the accumulated leave
shall be made only if approved by the Governing Board.  (Education Code 45202)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any classified employee whose employment with the district is
terminated after at least one calendar year for reasons other than for cause that, if the employee accepts
employment in another district, county office of education, or community college district within one year of the
termination of employment, the employee may request that the district transfer any accumulated sick leave to the
new employer.  (Education Code 45202)

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a classified employee who is a former active duty
member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the California National Guard or a federal
reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical
treatment, including mental health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or higher
by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days per week shall be
entitled to such leave in proportion to the time worked.  (Education Code 45191.5)

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee receives confirmation of the
submission of the disability application to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee
begins or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives the disability
rating decision, the employee shall report that information to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating
decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the
12-day maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may
change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  (Education Code
45191.5)

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification Requirements"
below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date that the leave
was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education
Code 45191.5)

Notification of Absence

An employee shall notify the Superintendent or the designated manager or supervisor of the need to be absent as
soon as such need is known so that the services of a substitute may be secured as necessary. This notification shall
include an estimate of the expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the
employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall
notify the district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon of the day preceding the day on which the employee
intends to return to work. If the employee fails to notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being
secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted from the employee's pay.

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

OPTION 1:  (Differential pay: employee's salary minus actual cost of substitute)

When a classified employee has exhausted all paid leaves, including sick leave, and continues to be absent on
account of illness or injury for a period of five months or less, the district shall deduct from the employee's regular

950



salary for that period an amount that does not exceed the actual cost of a substitute to fill the position.  (Education
Code 45196)

The five-month period shall commence on the first day of absence and shall run concurrently with any other paid
leave.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Annual credit of 100 working days of paid sick leave; once fully paid leaves exhausted, 50 percent or
more of regular salary for remainder of the 100 days)

Each year, each regular classified employee shall be credited with no fewer than 100 working days of paid leave for
personal illness or injury, including current year and accumulated days of leave. When the current year and
accumulated days at full pay are exhausted, the remainder of the 100 days shall be compensated at least 50 percent
of the employee's regular salary. Any of the 100 days of leave not used during the year in which they are credited
shall be forfeited and shall not accumulate from year to year. This paid leave shall be exclusive of any other paid
leave, holidays, vacation, or compensatory time to which the employee may be entitled.  (Education Code 45196)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Parental Leave

During each school year, a classified employee may use all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, for
the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any
period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code
45196.1)

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 months.
 (Education Code 45196.1)

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent
on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for
the remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 45196.1)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall run concurrently with the parental leave taken
pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12
work weeks in a 12-month period.  (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

Extension of Leave

A permanent employee who is absent because of a personal illness or injury and who has exhausted all available sick
leave, vacation, compensatory overtime, and any other paid leave shall be so notified, in writing, and offered an
opportunity to request additional leave. The Board may grant the employee additional leave, paid or unpaid, for a
period not to exceed six months and may renew this leave for two additional six-month periods or for lesser periods.
The total additional leave granted shall not exceed 18 months.  (Education Code 45195)

If the employee is still unable to return to work after all available paid and unpaid leaves have been exhausted, the
employee shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period of 39 months. If during this time the employee
becomes medically able, the employee shall be offered reemployment in the first vacancy in the classification of the
employee's previous assignment. During the 39 months, the employee's reemployment shall take preference over all
other applicants except those laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, in which case the employee shall be ranked
according to seniority.  (Education Code 45195)

Verification Requirements

After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall submit a completed and signed district absence form to

951



the employee's immediate supervisor.

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows chronic
absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or whenever available
evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the district, at
district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical condition of the employee. The report shall include a
statement as to the employee's need for additional leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will
be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant continued absence,
the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny the request for additional leave.

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician shall be in
writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the employee's genetic
information. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a
confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and shall not be
disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended medical
treatment may be asked to submit a letter from a physician stating that the employee is able to return to work and
stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations.

Short-Term and Substitute Employees

OPTION 1:  (Paid leave accrual based on one hour for every 30 hours worked)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, short-term or substitute employees
who work for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall be entitled to one hour of paid sick leave for
every 30 hours worked. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a
maximum of 80 hours or ten days. However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40
hours or five days in each year of employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Paid leave accrual method that provides for a regular accrual basis)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, short-term or substitute employees
who work for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall accrue, on a regular basis, paid sick leave of
up to 24 hours by the 120th calendar day of their employment or each calendar year or 12-month period, and at
least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave by the 200th calendar day of employment, each calendar year, or 12-
month period. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of 80
hours or ten days. However, the district may limit an employee's use of accrued paid sick days to 40 hours or five
days in each year of employment.  (Labor Code 246)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

OPTION 3:  (Paid leave that credits employees with sick leave at the beginning of each year and does not allow
unused sick leave to carry over to the next year)

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, short-term or substitute employees
who work for 30 or more days within a year of their employment shall be credited with 40 hours or five days of paid
sick leave for that year. Unused sick leave shall not carry over to the following year of employment.  (Labor Code
246)

OPTION 3 ENDS HERE

Short-term or substitute employees may begin to use accrued paid sick days on the 90th day of their employment,
after which they may use the sick days as they are accrued.  (Labor Code 246)

952



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

A short-term or substitute employee may use accrued sick leave for absences due to:  (Labor Code 246.5)

1. The employee's own need or the need of a family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the diagnosis,
care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care
 

2. Need of the employee to obtain or seek any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

No employee, including a short-term or substitute employee, shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days and
the district shall not in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick
leave, filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the following
information:
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
 

b. The number of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick leave is prohibited
by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district
discriminates or retaliates against the employee

2. Provide at least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per year and allow
eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their pay check, of
the amount of paid sick leave they have available
 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each eligible employee
for three years

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 45103 Classified service in districts not incorporating the merit system

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45191 Personal illness and injury leave; classified employees

Ed. Code 45191.5 Leave for military service-connected disability

Ed. Code 45193 Leave of absence for pregnancy; use of sick leave under certain
circumstance

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 45196 Salary deductions during sick leave; classified employees

953

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44042.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45190.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45191.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45191.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45193.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45196.


Ed. Code 45196.1 Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is
exhausted

Ed. Code 45202 Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

29 CFR 825.100-825.702 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Discrimination on the basis of sex; effectuating Title IX

42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Colton Joint Unified School
District (2009) 170 Cal.App.4th 957

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Tustin Unified School District
(2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 510

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

954

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45196.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45202.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12945.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.5.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1635
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter21F&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QdAYOi3LWCjpslshWly8PXR9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==


4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

955

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8BWeWybYAmE6SKbR4Pgplusmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8uHplus8BW3Aplus9fCZplusRv3VV6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==


4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

956

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Regulation 4261.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4261.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

Personal leaves granted to district employees shall be used as permitted in law, this administrative regulation, other
Governing Board-approved policy or district regulation, or applicable collective bargaining agreement, or as
otherwise required by law.

For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner.  (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

Bereavement

Employees are entitled to a leave of up to five days upon the death of any member of the employee's immediate
family, as defined in Education Code 44985 and 45194.

"Immediate family" means a parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse of
the employee, and the spouse, domestic partner, child, child-in-law, sibling, or sibling-in-law of the employee, or any
relative living in the immediate household of the employee.  (Education Code 44985, 45194; Government Code
12945.7)

No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary for any authorized paid bereavement leave as specified in
the collective bargaining agreement or as otherwise established by this policy, nor shall such leave be deducted from
any other leave to which the employee is entitled unless requested by the employee.  (Education Code 44985,
45194; Government Code 12945.7)

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Reproductive Loss

Upon request by any employee who has experienced a reproductive loss event, defined as the day or, for a multiple-
day event, the final day of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or an unsuccessful assisted
reproduction, the district shall grant the employee up to five days of reproductive loss leave, to be taken
consecutively or non-consecutively. The employee shall take the leave within three months following the event. If
the employee is on another type of leave at the time of the reproductive loss event, or chooses to take another type
of leave immediately following a reproductive loss event, then the reproductive loss leave shall be completed within
three months of the end date of the other leave.  (Government Code 12945.6)

Reproductive loss leave will be unpaid unless the employee chooses to use vacation, personal leave, accrued and
available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Government Code
12945.6)

Any request or inquiry or information provided by an employee related to reproductive loss leave and/or a
reproductive loss shall remain confidential, except to internal personnel or counsel as necessary or as required by
law.

Personal Necessity

Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during each school
year for reasons of personal necessity.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

957



Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the
limits set by bereavement leave provisions  (Education Code 44981, 45207; Government Code 12945.7)
 

2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5 
(Education Code 44981; Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 246.5)

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or
witness under subpoena or other order  (Education Code 45207)

5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee
 

6. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or for which the need is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the
need for the leave as soon as practicable.

After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

An employee may take time off work in order to:  (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury
 

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the district office when requesting
leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees.  (Education Code 44037)

A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

A certificated employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than as a litigant or to
respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the
connivance or misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's
regular earnings and any witness fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

958



Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

An employee who is a victim of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of such victim may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial proceedings, if
the crime is any of the following:  (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)
 

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)
 

3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the district attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is advocating on
behalf of the victim.  (Labor Code 230.2)

The district shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of this
leave.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or
mental injury with a threat of physical injury or an employee whose immediate family member, as defined, is
deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or compensatory time off that is
otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee

959



was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The district shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor Code 230,
230.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor Code
230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by the
district. Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon request. 
(Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to:  (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

2. Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)

In lieu of using vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off, eligible employees may take unpaid leave for this
purpose.

If two or more parents/guardians of a child are employed at the same work site, this leave shall be allowed for the
parent/guardian who first gives notice to the district. Simultaneous absence by another parent/guardian of the child
may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Upon request by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall provide documentation from the school or
licensed child care provider that the employee engaged in permitted child-related activities on a specific date and at
a particular time.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Service on Education Boards and Committees

Upon request, a certificated employee shall be granted up to 20 school days of paid leave per school year for service
performed within the state on any education board, commission, committee, or group authorized by Education Code
44987.3 provided that all of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 44987.3)

960



1. The service is performed within the state
 

2. The board, commission, organization, or group informs the district in writing of the service
 

3. The board, commission, organization, or group agrees, prior to the service, to reimburse the district, upon the
district's written request, for compensation paid to the employee's substitute and for actual related
administrative costs

Employee Organization Activities

Upon request, any certificated or classified employee shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of
compensation, to serve as an elected officer of a district employee organization or any statewide or national
employee organization with which the employee organization is affiliated. Such leave shall be in addition to any other
leave to which the employee may be entitled by other laws or a memorandum of understanding or collective
bargaining agreement.  (Education Code 44987, 45210)

The leave shall include, but is not limited to, absence for purposes of attending periodic, stated, special, or regular
meetings of the body of the organization on which the employee serves as an officer.  (Education Code 44987,
45210)

Upon request of an employee organization in the district or its state or national affiliate, a reasonable number of
unelected classified employees shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of compensation for the purpose of
attending important organizational activities authorized by the employee organization. The employee organization
shall provide reasonable notification to the Superintendent or designee when requesting a leave of absence for
employees for this purpose.  (Education Code 45210)

When leave is granted for any of the above purposes, the employee organization shall reimburse the district within
10 days after receiving the district's certification of payment of compensation to the employee.  (Education Code
44987, 45210)

Religious Leave

The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three days of leave per year for religious purposes,
provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures, the
neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship on the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall deduct the cost of hiring a substitute, when required, from the wages of the
employee who takes religious leave.

No employee shall be discriminated against for using this leave or any additional days of unpaid leave granted for
religious observances at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

961



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the district for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave. Such
leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental entity
authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the district as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave. The
Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the eligibility
of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required certification. 
(Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

962

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 8.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44981.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44987.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44987.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45190.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45194.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45198.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45207.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EVID&sectionNum=1035.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EVID&sectionNum=1037.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12945.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.


Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

963

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=234.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=246.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.dir.ca.gov
http://www.cft.org
http://www.perb.ca.gov
http://www.csea.com
http://www.cta.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Qw55wsplusWapreuBu77rJwEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kZSplusmbBylVJaSR8plusKQgNlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==


4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4340 Bargaining Units

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

964

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=alZhT5G6ID73IOslshCDBMSbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ABGqplusKhgcDuxXkEIYU1UslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aXEdBlWzo3nDtSuWv8t4plusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==


Policy 4311: Recruitment And SelectionPolicy 4311: Recruitment And Selection Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018

The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to effectively carry out the district's
vision, mission, and goals, and believes that students benefit when district staff reflects the racial, ethnic, linguistic,
and cultural diversity of the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop equitable, fair, and transparent recruitment and selection processes
and procedures that ensure individuals are selected for employment in the district based on demonstrated
knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or unlawful discrimination.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall, through the recruitment and selection processes and procedures,
seek to establish and maintain a diverse staff, including the active recruitment from institutions and organizations
that serve populations underrepresented among district employees.

When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review, as appropriate, the job description for the
position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the position. The Superintendent or
designee shall also disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of candidates.

When posting an employment opportunity, the Superintendent or designee shall include the pay scale for the open
position.  (Labor Code 432.2)

The Superintendent shall develop and maintain appropriate hiring procedures to identify the best possible candidates
for a position. In doing so, an interview committee may be established to rank candidates and recommend finalists.
During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or demonstrate how they will be able to perform the
duties of the job. All discussions and recommendations shall be confidential and consistent with law.

No inquiry shall be made about any information prohibited by state or federal nondiscrimination laws.

Unless otherwise provided for in law, the district may not discriminate against a person in hiring based on the
person's use of cannabis off the job and away from the workplace, including that the district may not request
information from an applicant related to the applicant's prior use of cannabis, apart from the applicant's criminal
history, or penalize an applicant based on a drug screening which finds that the applicant has nonpsychoactive
cannabis metabolites in the applicant's hair, blood, urine, or other bodily fluid.  (Government Code 12954)

However, the district retains the right to maintain drug-free schools or prohibit employees from possessing, being
impaired by, or using cannabis while on the job.  (Government Code 12954)

The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire, orally or in writing, about an applicant's salary history information,
including compensation and benefits. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall not rely on salary history
information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment to an applicant or the salary to offer. However,
the Superintendent or designee may consider salary information that is disclosable under state or federal law or that
the applicant discloses voluntarily and without prompting.  (Labor Code 432.3)

For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate who meets all
qualifications established by law and the Board for the position. No person shall be employed by the Board without
the recommendation or endorsement of the Superintendent or designee.

Incentives

With Board approval and in accordance with district needs and any applicable collective bargaining agreements, the
district may provide incentives to recruit teachers, administrators, or other employees, such as signing bonuses,
assistance with beginning teacher induction and/or credential costs, mentoring, additional compensation, and/or
subsidized housing.

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

965



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 35035 Powers and duties of the superintendent; transfer authority

Ed. Code 44066 Limitations on certification requirements

Ed. Code 44259 Teaching credential, exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements

Ed. Code 44750 Teacher recruitment resource center

Ed. Code 44830-44831 Employment of certificated persons

Ed. Code 44858 Age or marital status in certificated positions

Ed. Code 44859 Prohibition against certain rules and regulations regarding residency

Ed. Code 45103-45139 Employment; classified employees

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

Gov. Code 12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 815.2 Liability of public entities and public employees

H&S Code 53570-53574 Teacher Housing Act of 2016

Lab. Code 432.3 Salary information

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

28 CFR 35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

34 CFR 106.51-106.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program
or activities

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

5 USC 552 Freedom of Information Act

8 USC 1324a Unlawful employment of aliens

8 USC 1324b Unfair immigration related employment practices

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Commission on Teacher Credentialing
Publication Strategic Plan: Ensuring Educator Excellence, 2023

California County Superintendents Publication Teacher Recruitment in California: An Analysis of Effective Strategies,
Research Brief, Veritas Research and Evaluation Group, October 2017

California Department of Education Publication How to Increase the Diversity of California’s Educator Workforce, April
2022

Court Decision C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al. (2012) 138
Cal.Rptr.3d 1

Ctr for Cities + Schools, cityLAB & Terner Ctr Pub Education Workforce Housing in California: Developing the 21st Century
Campus, 2021

Ctr for Cities + Schools, cityLAB & Terner Ctr Pub Education Workforce Housing in California: The Handbook

Website University of California Los Angeles, cityLAB

966

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35035.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44066.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44259.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.4.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44858.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44859.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=815.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=31.&title=&part=14.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=432.3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:5 section:552 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title5-section552)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:8 section:1324a edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1324a)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:8 section:1324b edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1324b)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/docs/default-source/commission/files/ctc-strategic-plan.pdf?sfvrsn=baef20b1_12
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/documents/dtwcouncilreportapril22.pdf
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/wp-content/uploads/Report-Education-Workforce-Housing-in-CaliforniaCCS-cityLAB-Terner-Center2022-1.pdf
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/wp-content/uploads/Handbook-Education-Workforce-Housing-in-CaliforniacityLAB-CCS-Terner-Center-2022.pdf
https://www.citylab.ucla.edu/


Website University of California Berkeley, Terner Center for Housing Innovation

Website University of California Berkeley, Center for Cities + Schools

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website Education Job Opportunities Information Network

Website Teach USA

Website California County Superintendents

Website California Civil Rights Department

Website U.S. Department of Education

Website Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0000 Vision

0200 Goals For The School District

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

2230 Representative And Deliberative Groups

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4100 Certificated Personnel

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.21 Interns

4112.21 Interns

4112.22 Staff Teaching English Learners

4112.23 Special Education Staff

4112.61 Employment References

4112.61 Employment References

4112.8 Employment Of Relatives

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

967

https://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/
https://citiesandschools.berkeley.edu/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.edjoin.org
http://culturalvistas.org/programs/us/teach-usa
http://ccsesa.org/recruit
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.eeoc.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8WZCIZ8oG2xBqtK4ApFplus0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y0lPgUQGFYjslshDyVbAGuO8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FmR0VzEiZmPJbzwslshtepjSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8AR6I93bQq2HQgTQJRhslsh4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uBcQ4eaeRFHuUSheEP8hTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HO2TobjEaXImT4CZqcERQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yCe8C7kWe75gfF55mrNriw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aY2FcIbUQ6NeT56IXs1dVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i0usZRZ9FHC2qN5CKMopNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2AwEPXWWMy8yHNBDMCPeWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q1AdCLjYQPQc6vK8YYydYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fLZwTXXe53E9GIplusMgcI7Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LZE76ianfzktE7iUQcoWvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=V3AgdDGxpDqX0vS5szDxWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==


4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.61 Employment References

4212.61 Employment References

4212.8 Employment Of Relatives

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.1 Contracts

4312.61 Employment References

4312.61 Employment References

4312.8 Employment Of Relatives

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4331 Staff Development

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

9000 Role Of The Board

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

968

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6TogWNds3iE3eJAPzDkczg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4q0UEwAFzydTuBL3yuu5oA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qlCwE76ui18wkRF15t2z4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4NfXtLOJyGN9J9q6fiebJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1E1XGgFCZ31ZqJQhL7tkEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njqkN16qoZXT6lzB4G0ZslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gdtps7Z2fZ9I0mcPZhfTiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=a1JMEyKlddqnlFHrKQEKxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshe87zq36hFrGUQHdbi0ejA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xh8UUDL6WCw8POuAsCslshQBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==


Regulation 4312.5: Criminal Record CheckRegulation 4312.5: Criminal Record Check Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Superintendent or designee shall not hire or retain in employment, in a certificated or classified position, a
person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c), a
controlled substance offense as defined in Education Code 44011, or a sex offense as defined in Education Code
44010. However, the Superintendent or designee shall not deny or terminate employment solely on the basis that
the person has been:  (Education Code 44830.1, 44836, 45122.1, 45123)

1. Convicted of a violent or serious felony, controlled substance offense, or sex offense, and the conviction is
reversed and the person is acquitted of the offense in a new trial or the charges against the person are
dismissed, unless the sex offense for which the conviction is dismissed pursuant to Penal Code 1203.4 involves
a victim who was a minor
 

2. Convicted of a violent or serious felony and has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation or a pardon
 

3. Convicted of a serious felony, that is not also a violent felony, and has proven to the sentencing court that
rehabilitation for purposes of school employment has been attained for at least one year
 

4. Convicted of a controlled substance offense and is applying for or is employed in a certificated position and
has a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing
 

5. Convicted of a controlled substance offense and is applying for or is employed in a classified position and has
been determined by the Governing Board, from the evidence presented, to have been rehabilitated for at least
five years

A certificated employee may be hired by the district without obtaining a criminal record summary if that employee is
employed as a certificated employee in another California school district and became a permanent employee of
another California school district as of October 1, 1997.  (Education Code 44830.1, 44836)

The Superintendent or designee shall not issue a temporary certificate of clearance to a person whose application for
a credential, certificate, or permit is being processed by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing if that person has
been convicted of a violent or serious felony, unless the person is otherwise exempt pursuant to Education Code
44332.6 or 44830.1.  (Education Code 44332.5, 44332.6)

Pre-Employment Record Check

The Superintendent or designee shall require each person to be employed by the district to submit fingerprints
electronically through the Live Scan system so that a criminal record check may be conducted by the Department of
Justice (DOJ). The Superintendent or designee shall provide the applicant with a Live Scan request form and a list of
nearby Live Scan locations.

When a person is applying for a classified position, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the DOJ also
obtain a criminal record check through the Federal Bureau of Investigation whenever the applicant meets one of the
following conditions:  (Education Code 45125)

1. The applicant has not resided in California for at least one year immediately preceding the application for
employment.
 

2. The applicant has resided in California for more than one year, but less than seven years, and the DOJ has
ascertained that the person was convicted of a sex offense where the victim was a minor or a drug offense
where an element of the offense is either the distribution to or the use of a controlled substance by a minor.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ when an applicant who has submitted fingerprints
to the DOJ is not subsequently employed by the district.  (Penal Code 11105.2)

Subsequent Arrest Notification

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

969



The Superintendent or designee shall enter into a contract with the DOJ to receive notification of subsequent arrests
resulting in conviction of any person whose fingerprints have been submitted to the DOJ.  (Education Code 44830.1,
45125; Penal Code 11105.2)

Upon telephone or email notification by the DOJ that a current temporary employee, substitute employee, or
probationary employee serving before March 15 of the employee's second probationary year has been convicted of
a violent or serious felony, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place that employee on leave without
pay.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

When the district receives written electronic notification by the DOJ of the fact of conviction, the temporary
employee, substitute employee, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of the employee's second
probationary year shall be terminated automatically unless the employee challenges the DOJ record and the DOJ
withdraws its notification in writing. Upon receipt of the written withdrawal of notification by the DOJ, the
Superintendent or designee shall immediately reinstate the employee with full restoration of salary and benefits for
the period of time from the suspension without pay to the reinstatement if the employee is still employed by the
district.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a person whose fingerprints are
maintained by the DOJ is terminated.  (Penal Code 11105.2)

Notification of Applicant/Employee

The Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously furnish a copy of any DOJ notification to the applicant or
employee to whom it relates if the information is a basis for an adverse employment decision. The copy shall be
delivered in person or to the last contact information provided by the applicant or employee.  (Penal Code 11105,
11105.2)

Maintenance of Records

The Superintendent shall designate at least one custodian of records who shall be responsible for the security,
storage, dissemination, and destruction of all Criminal Offender Record Information (CORI) furnished to the district
and shall serve as the primary contact for the DOJ for any related issues.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

An employee designated as custodian of records shall receive a criminal background check clearance from the DOJ
prior to serving in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

The custodian of records shall sign and return to the DOJ the Employee Statement Form acknowledging an
understanding of the laws prohibiting misuse of CORI. In addition, the custodian of records shall ensure that any
individual with access to CORI has on file a signed Employee Statement Form.

To ensure its confidentiality, CORI shall be accessible only to the custodian of records and shall be kept in a locked
file separate from other files. CORI shall be used only for the purpose for which it is requested and its contents shall
not be disclosed or reproduced.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45125)

Once a hiring determination is made, the applicant's CORI shall be destroyed to the extent that the identity of the
individual can no longer be reasonably ascertained.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45125; 11 CCR 708)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a designated custodian of records
ceases to serve in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

Interagency Agreement

Subject to an interagency agreement with other school districts, the district shall submit and receive CORI on behalf
of all participating districts.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

Upon receipt from the DOJ of a report of conviction of a serious or violent felony, the district shall communicate
that fact to participating districts and shall remove the affected employee from the common list of persons eligible

970



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

for employment. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

In addition, upon receipt from the DOJ of a criminal history record or report of subsequent arrest for any person on a
common list of persons eligible for employment, the district shall give notice to the superintendent of any
participating district, or the person designated in writing by that superintendent, that the report is available for
inspection on a confidential basis by the superintendent or the authorized designee. The report shall be made
available at the district office for 30 days following the receipt of the notice.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall not release a copy of that information to any participating district or any other person. In addition,
the district shall retain or dispose of the information in the manner specified in law and in this administrative
regulation after all participating districts have had an opportunity to inspect it in accordance with law.  (Education
Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall maintain a record of all persons to whom the information has been shown and shall make this
record available to the DOJ.  (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 701-708 Criminal offender record information

11 CCR 720-724 Incomplete criminal history information

11 CCR 994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate of clearance

Ed. Code 44346.1 Applicants for credential; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal record
information

Ed. Code 44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of sex offense or controlled
substance offense

Ed. Code 44932 Grounds for dismissal of permanent employees

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125 Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45125.5 Automated records check

Ed. Code 45126 Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

H&S Code 11350 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Narcotics

H&S Code 11377 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Restricted
Dangerous Drugs

Pen. Code 11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination

Pen. Code 11102.2 Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records

Pen. Code 11105 Access to criminal history information

Pen. Code 11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification

Pen. Code 11105.3 Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence

971

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0CD30F005A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0CDECED35A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0D13C1805A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0D1855635A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44346.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44836.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44932.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11350.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11377.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11102.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3.


Pen. Code 11140-11144 Furnishing of state criminal history information

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 1203.4 Dismissal of conviction

Pen. Code 1203.425 Conviction relief

Pen. Code 13300-13305 Local summary criminal history information

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger
(1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice, Background Checks

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

972

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=3.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/fingerprints
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O8tAL8zo45MouRALkO6PIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==


4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

973

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HNThtsBXuYTJV36dzD00hw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ukl6dbOkdRYslshCh8plusz8BDaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Exhibit 4312.5-E(1): Criminal Record CheckExhibit 4312.5-E(1): Criminal Record Check Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

SAMPLE EMPLOYEE STATEMENT FORM
USE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION

As an employee/volunteer of __________________________________________________ School District, you may have
access to confidential criminal record information which is controlled by state and federal statutes. Misuse of such
information may adversely affect the individual's civil rights and violate constitutional rights of privacy. Penal Code
502 prescribes the penalties relating to computer crimes. Penal Code 11105 and 13300 identify who has access to
criminal history information and under what circumstances it may be disseminated. Penal Code 11140-11144 and
13301-13305 prescribe penalties for misuse of criminal history information. Government Code 6200 prescribes
felony penalties for misuse of public records. Penal Code 11142 and 13300 state:

"Any person authorized by law to receive a record or information obtained from a record who knowingly furnishes
the record or information to a person not authorized by law to receive the record or information is guilty of a
misdemeanor."

Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy, states:

"Any person who intentionally discloses information, not otherwise public, which they know or should reasonably
know was obtained from personal or confidential information maintained by a state agency or from records within
a system of records maintained by a federal government agency, shall be subject to a civil action, for invasion of
privacy, by the individual."

CIVIL, CRIMINAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTIES:

Penal Code 11141: DOJ furnishing to unauthorized person (misdemeanor)
 
Penal Code 11142: Authorized person furnishing to other (misdemeanor)
 
Penal Code 11143: Unauthorized person in possession (misdemeanor)
 
California Constitution, Article I, Section 1 (Right to Privacy)
 
Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy
 
Title 18 USC 641, 1030, 1951, and 1952

Any employee who is responsible for such misuse may be subject to immediate dismissal. Violations of this law may
result in criminal and/or civil action.

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE AND UNDERSTAND THE POLICY REGARDING MISUSE OF CRIMINAL RECORD
INFORMATION.

Signature ________________________________________________ Date ___________________________

Printed Name ________________________________________________ Title ___________________________

Name of District ________________________________________________

PLEASE NOTE: Do not return this form to the DOJ. Your Custodian of Records should maintain these forms.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

11 CCR 701-708 Criminal offender record information

11 CCR 720-724 Incomplete criminal history information

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

974

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0CD30F005A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0CDECED35A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I0D13C1805A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I0D1855635A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3


11 CCR 994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate of clearance

Ed. Code 44346.1 Applicants for credential; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 44830.1 Criminal record summary; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal record
information

Ed. Code 44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of sex offense or controlled
substance offense

Ed. Code 44932 Grounds for dismissal of permanent employees

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony

Ed. Code 45125 Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45125.5 Automated records check

Ed. Code 45126 Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Gov. Code 12954 Employment discrimination; cannabis use

H&S Code 11350 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Narcotics

H&S Code 11377 Offenses Involving Controlled Substances Formerly Classified as Restricted
Dangerous Drugs

Pen. Code 11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination

Pen. Code 11102.2 Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records

Pen. Code 11105 Access to criminal history information

Pen. Code 11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification

Pen. Code 11105.3 Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence

Pen. Code 11140-11144 Furnishing of state criminal history information

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 1203.4 Dismissal of conviction

Pen. Code 1203.425 Conviction relief

Pen. Code 13300-13305 Local summary criminal history information

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger
(1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice, Background Checks

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

975

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44346.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44830.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44836.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44932.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45122.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11350.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11377.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11102.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1203.425.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=3.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/fingerprints
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==


1240 Volunteer Assistance

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2120 Superintendent Recruitment And Selection

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4127 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

976

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O8tAL8zo45MouRALkO6PIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jSqKbarW6TfC0hMh5NDVBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lgLVW70plusL4eKtK5RJO72Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ga7PXdnZNWXrykslshRRNLSHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1NIplusQQWSWV74Y1rRIdyzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HdOQCvG7Q2GgffQccwVplusRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HNThtsBXuYTJV36dzD00hw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ukl6dbOkdRYslshCh8plusz8BDaw==


4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4227 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

977

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ser2nlhU4ZsMpFS5AdjEmQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yyEC9plusuPQ6p4MILQcn0B5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nupJgyPmjsvx5WKULZvfvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Bj21NFnslshGs6TctLD6splusaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OangaSyUFplusrrMFpUSfmplusWw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4312.9: Employee NotificationsPolicy 4312.9: Employee Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board believes that providing clear communications to staff is essential to establishing a professional,
positive work environment and enhancing their job performance. The Superintendent or designee shall provide
district employees all notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent or designee
believes will promote staff knowledge of the district's policies, programs, activities, and operations.

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, district employees shall be asked to sign an
acknowledgment indicating receipt of the notification. Such acknowledgments shall be retained in each employee's
personnel file.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

978

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I6BAEEA607C7411EE81CB83C869CBEC13?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9F7694335A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I681EE2305A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I682942735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I6A8A63F05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I6A9CB3725A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I48FD1E835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4B8F3B125A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22461.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35171.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44896.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44934.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.


Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

979

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44948.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44949.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44951.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45117.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45169.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48851.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=21029.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8355.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120875.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120880.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.196.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=2800.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=5401.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11165.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11166.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=UIC&sectionNum=2613.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

980

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:2354 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section2354)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-825/subpart-C/section-825.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100\
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:38 section:4334 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title38-section4334)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-A/section-382.113
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-C/section-382.303
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-F/section-382.601
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==


4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

981

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==


4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

982

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==


4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

983

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Exhibit 4312.9-E(1): Employee NotificationsExhibit 4312.9-E(1): Employee Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/13/2023

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to employees. Other
notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  To All Employees

When/Whom to Notify: At the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 231.5, Government Code 12950
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: The district’s policy on sexual harassment, legal remedies, complaints

When/Whom to Notify: Annually and 72 hours before pesticide application
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.2
Subject: Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, Internet address to access information on pesticides

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6117
Subject: Public hearing on implementing year-round program schedule

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 6112
Subject: Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 1312.3; BP 0460; BP 3260
Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student fees and
local control accountability plan

When to Notify:  Annually
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173, AR 6173.1, 6173.3, 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory, and newcomer students.

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer epinephrine auto-injectors

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer stock albuterol inhalers

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer anti-seizure medication

When/Whom to Notify: At least once per year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained to administer opioid antagonist

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

984



When to Notify: When a parent/guardian requests for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  AR 5141.21
Subject: Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of
emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 1126
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4136/4236/4336
Subject: Prohibition of activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to duties; discipline;
appeal

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 8355; 41 USC 8102; 34 CFR 84.205, 84.210
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4020, BP 4159/4259/4359
Subject: District's drug- and alcohol-free workplace; actions that will be taken if violated; available employee
assistance programs

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 21029
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Right to purchase PERS service credit for military service performed prior to public employment

When/Whom to Notify: Upon placement of automated external defibrillator (AED) in school, annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1797.196
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141
Subject: Proper use of AED; location of all AEDs on campus, sudden cardiac arrest, school's emergency response plan

When/Whom to Notify: If the district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3513.3
Subject: District's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When/Whom to Notify: Annually, or more frequently if there is new information
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 120875, 120880
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43
Subject: AIDS and hepatitis B, methods to prevent exposure

When/Whom to Notify: To new employees upon hire and other employees upon request, in districts with 25 or
more employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2
Subject: Rights pursuant to Labor Code 230-230.1 pertaining to leaves and accommodations for victims of crime or
abuse

When/Whom to Notify: With each paycheck
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 246
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1
Subject: Amount of sick leave available

When/Whom to Notify: Upon hire, in employee handbook, and upon request for parental leave
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 1034
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4033
Subject: The district's policy on lactation accommodation

When/Whom to Notify: To covered employees and former employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2800.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354

985



Subject: Availability of COBRA/Cal-COBRA continuation and conversion coverage; statement encouraging careful
examination of options before declining coverage

When/Whom to Notify: To employees participating in a flexible spending account
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 2810.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Deadline to withdraw funds from account before the end of the plan year

When/Whom to Notify: To every new employee, either at the time employee is hired or by end of first pay period
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3551
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Workers' compensation benefits, how to obtain medical care, role of primary physician, form for reporting
personal physician/chiropractor

When/Whom to Notify: Within one day of receiving notice of potential exposure to COVID-19, and remain posted
for not less than 15 calendar days, to employees who were on the premises during the infectious period, the
exclusive representative, and the employer of subcontracted employees as applicable
Where: Prominently display in all places where notices to employees concerning workplace rules or regulations are
customarily posted
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 6409.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: Potential exposure to COVID-19; benefits to which employees may be entitled; available leave options;
protection against discrimination and retaliation; district's disinfection and safety plan

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to beginning employment
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.4
Subject: Status as a mandated reporter of child abuse, reporting obligations, confidentiality rights, copy of law

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and when leaving work due to pregnancy or nonoccupational sickness or
injury
Education or Other Legal Code: Unemployment Insurance Code 2613
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4154/4254/4354
Subject: Disability insurance rights and benefits

When/Whom to Notify: To principal, counselor who directly supervises or reports on student's behavior or progress,
and teacher and other administrators who directly supervise or report on student's behavior or progress when the
superintendent or designee believes the employee needs the information for the protection of self or others when
working with the student, when Superintendent or designee receives written notification that minor student has
committed a felony or misdemeanor involving specified offenses
Education or Other Legal Code: Welfare and Institutions Code 827
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Limited exception to juvenile court record confidentiality to ensure rehabilitation of juvenile criminal
offenders and protect students and staff

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees and job applicants
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11023; 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 0410, AR 4030
Subject: District's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees via employee handbook, or to each new employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 2 CCR 11091, 11095; 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Benefits through Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA); obligation
to provide 30 days' notice of need for leave when possible

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3203
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157/4257/4357
Subject: The right and procedure to access the injury and illness prevention program

986



When/Whom to Notify: To all employees
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
Subject: Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex; contact information for district's Title IX Coordinator; referral of
inquiries to Title IX Coordinator and/or Office for Civil Rights

When/Whom to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: 40 CFR 763.84, 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514
Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to the beginning of school year or upon employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6178
Subject: All career and technical education opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin,
sex, or disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100

II.  To Certificated Employees

When/Whom to Notify: To eligible certificated employees in a timely manner, and to part-time and substitute
certificated employees within 30 days of hire
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 22455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4121
Subject: Criteria for membership in retirement system; right to elect membership at any time

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment of a retired certificated individual
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 22461
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.14/4317.14
Subject: Postretirement earnings limitation or employment restriction; monthly report of compensation

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35171
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115, BP 4315
Subject: District regulations related to performance evaluations

When/Whom to Notify: 30 days before last day of school year for instructional staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated staff, in any year in which employee is evaluated
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44663
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Copy of employee's evaluation

When/Whom to Notify: To a certificated employee with unsatisfactory evaluation, once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every other year for permanent employee
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44664
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4115
Subject: Notice and description of the unsatisfactory performance

When/Whom to Notify: By May 30, if district elects to issue reemployment notices to certificated employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44842
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1
Subject: Request that the employee notify district of intent to remain in service next year

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary and temporary certificated employees upon employment and every July
thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.1, AR 4121
Subject: Employment status and salary

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee, by March 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23, 44948.5

987



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4116
Subject: Whether or not employee is reelected for next school year

When/Whom to Notify: When certificated employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, at any time of year
or, for charge of unsatisfactory performance, during instructional year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44934, 44934.1, 44936
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118; AR 4118
Subject: Notice of charges, procedures, and employee rights; intent to dismiss or suspend 30 days after notice

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unprofessional conduct, at least 45 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with unsatisfactory performance, at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or prior to last quarter of school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4118
Subject: Notice of deficiency and opportunity to correct

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee charged with mandatory leave of absence offense, within 10 days
of entry of judgment in proceedings
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44940.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Notice of intent to dismiss 30 days from notice unless employee demands hearing

When/Whom to Notify: To probationary employee 30 days prior to dismissal during school year, but not later than
March 15 for a second- year probationary employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44948.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4118
Subject: Reasons for dismissal and opportunity to appeal

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 when necessary to reduce certificated personnel, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44949, 44955
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Reasons for personnel reduction and employees' right to hearing; final notice of Board decision re:
termination

When/Whom to Notify: Before the end of the school year to temporary employee who served 75 percent of school
year but will be released
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44954
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4121
Subject: District's decision not to reelect employee for following school year

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to any
permanent or probationary certificated employee, including an employee holding a position that requires
administrative or supervisory credential, whose services are terminated
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44955.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4117.3
Subject: Decrease in the number of permanent employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and hearing
adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher, when a student engages in or is reasonably suspected of specified acts
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49079
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To teacher of a student who is suspended or expelled, when Superintendent or designee

988



receives transfer student's record regarding acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48201
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Student has committed specified act that constitutes ground for suspension or expulsion

When/Whom to Notify: To certificated employee upon change in employment status due to alleged misconduct
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 80303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4117.7/4317.7
Subject: Contents of state regulation re: report to Commission on Teacher Credentialing

III.  To Classified Employees

When/Whom to Notify: When a classified employee is subject to disciplinary action for cause, in a nonmerit district
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45113
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4218
Subject: Notice of charges, right to hearing, timeline for requesting hearing

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15, when laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds, with final notice by May 15
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff, displacement and reemployment rights, right to hearing; final notice of Board decision
regarding termination

When/Whom to Notify: During the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August
15 of the fiscal year to which the Budget Act applies when the Board determines that the district's local control
funding formula apportionment per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, to
classified employees who are laid off due to lack of work or lack of funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: District Statement of Reduction in Force to affected employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and
hearing adopted by the Board

When/Whom to Notify: At least 60 days prior to the effective date of layoff, if the employee's position must be
eliminated due to the expiration of a specially funded program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45117
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4217.3
Subject: Notice of layoff date, displacement and reemployment rights

When/Whom to Notify: Upon employment and upon each change in classification
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45169
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4212
Subject: Employee's class specification, salary data, assignment or work location, duty hours, prescribed workweek

When/Whom to Notify: To permanent employee whose leave is exhausted
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 45192, 45195
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4261.1, AR 4261.11
Subject: Exhaustion of leave, opportunity to request additional leave

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers prior to expiration of specified
documents
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 1234
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Expiration date of driver's license, driver's certificate and medical certificate; need to renew

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers and school activity bus drivers upon employment and at least once per
year thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 13 CCR 2480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3542
Subject: Limitations on vehicle idling; consequences of not complying

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to district drug testing program and thereafter upon

989



employment
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.113, 382.601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Explanation of federal requirements for drug testing program and district's policy; prior to administration of
each drug or alcohol test

When/Whom to Notify: To school bus drivers, prior to operating school bus
Education or Other Legal Code: 49 CFR 382.303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42
Subject: Post accident information, procedures, and instruction

IV. To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

When/Whom to Notify: To superintendent, deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent or senior manager of
classified service, at least 45 days before expiration of contract
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 2121, BP 4312.1
Subject: Decision not to reelect or reemploy upon expiration of contract or term

When/Whom to Notify: Upon request by administrative or supervisory employee transferred to teaching position
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44896
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Statement of the reasons for the reassignment

When/Whom to Notify: By March 15 to employee who may be released/reassigned the following school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4313.2
Subject: Notice that employee may be released or reassigned the following school year

V. To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

When/Whom to Notify: In the event of a breach of security of district records to affected employees
Education or Other Legal Code: Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 3580
Subject: Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, and, as applicable, contact information for
credit reporting agencies

When/Whom to Notify: Prior to placing derogatory information in personnel file
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44031
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6
Subject: Notice of derogatory information, opportunity to review and comment

When/Whom to Notify: To employees who volunteer to administer epinephrine auto-injector
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49414
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5141.21
Subject: Defense and indemnification from civil liability by the district

When/Whom to Notify: To district police officer, within 30 days of decision to impose discipline
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 3304
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3515.3
Subject: Decision to impose discipline, including the date that discipline will be imposed

When/Whom to Notify: To employee returning from military leave of absence, within 30 days of return
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 20997
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Right to receive PERS service credit for military service; application form

When/Whom to Notify: 24 hours before Board meets in closed session to hear complaints or charges against
employee
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54957
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BB 9321

990



Subject: Employee's right to have complaints/charges heard in open session

When/Whom to Notify: When taking disciplinary action against employee for disclosure of confidential information
Education or Other Legal Code: Government Code 54963
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23
Subject: Law prohibiting disclosure of confidential information obtained in closed session

When/Whom to Notify: When document identifying employee who is victim of domestic violence is disclosed
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 230
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4158/4258/4358
Subject: Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

When/Whom to Notify: Within one working day of work-related injury or victimization of crime
Education or Other Legal Code: Labor Code 3553, 5401
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1
Subject: Potential eligibility for workers' compensation benefits, claim form

When/Whom to Notify: When adverse employment action is based on DOJ criminal history information or
subsequent arrest notification
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 11105, 11105.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5
Subject: Copy of DOJ notification

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee with exposure to blood or potentially infectious materials, upon initial
employment and at least annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 3204
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42
Subject: The existence, location, and availability of exposure and medical records; person responsible for maintaining
and providing access to records; right to access records

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee assigned to a work area in a laboratory setting where hazardous chemicals
are present, within 15 working days after receiving a monitoring result related to an employee exposure
determination
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5191
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Contents of 8 CCR 5191, including location and availability of chemical hygiene plan, exposure limits, signs
and symptoms of exposure, location of reference material

When/Whom to Notify: To any employee who may be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area, upon
initial assignment and when new hazard is introduced into work area
Education or Other Legal Code: 8 CCR 5194
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 3514.1
Subject: Requirements of 8 CCR 5194, including any presence of hazardous substances in the work area, location
and availability of hazard communication program, new material safety data sheet, employee rights

When/Whom to Notify: To employee eligible for military leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 38 USC 4334
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5
Subject: Notice of rights, benefits, and obligations under military leave

When/Whom to Notify: Within five days of employee's request for family care and medical leave, receipt of
supporting information, or district's knowledge that the requested leave may qualify as FMLA leave
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300; 2 CCR 11049, 11091
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Designation of leave as FMLA or non-FMLA; if not eligible, reason not eligible; requirement to use paid
leave; any requirement for fitness-for-duty certification; any subsequent changes in designation notice

When/Whom to Notify: Whenever notice of eligibility for FMLA is provided to employee
Education or Other Legal Code: 29 CFR 825.300
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8
Subject: Rights and responsibilities re: use of FMLA; consequences of failure to meet obligations

991



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

When/Whom to Notify: To all employees working with families experiencing homelessness
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48851.3, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173
Subject: Duties of district liaison for homeless students and availability of training and services

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

13 CCR 1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers

13 CCR 2480 Vehicle idling; limitations

2 CCR 11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction

2 CCR 11035-11051 Unlawful sex discrimination; pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical
conditions

2 CCR 11087-11098 California Family Rights Act

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 80303 Reports of change in employment status; alleged misconduct

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 5191 Chemical hygiene plan

8 CCR 5194 Hazard communication

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 22455.5 STRS information to potential members

Ed. Code 22461 Postretirement compensation limitation

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 35031 Term of employment

Ed. Code 35171 Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44929.21 Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

Ed. Code 44929.23 Districts with less than 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause

Ed. Code 44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct

Ed. Code 44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss

Ed. Code 44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44948.5 Nonreelection procedures; districts under 250 ADA

Ed. Code 44949 Dismissal of probationary employees

Ed. Code 44951 Continuation in position unless notified; administrative or supervisory
personnel

Ed. Code 44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees

Ed. Code 44955 Reduction in number of permanent employees

992

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I6BAEEA607C7411EE81CB83C869CBEC13?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9F7694335A1E11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I677D23F35A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I681EE2305A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I682942735A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I6A8A63F05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I6A9CB3725A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I7B1196734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I48FD1E835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4B8F3B125A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=22461.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35171.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44896.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.21.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44929.23.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44934.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44948.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44949.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44951.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.


Ed. Code 44955.5
Decrease in number of permanent employees during specified time period
upon determination related to local control funding formula per unit of
average daily attendance

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges; classified employees

Ed. Code 45117 Notice of layoff; classified employees

Ed. Code 45169 Employee salary data; classified employees

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Ed. Code 45195 Additional leave

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48851.3 Education of students in foster care and students who are homeless

Ed. Code 49013 Complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds
suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist

Gov. Code 1126 Incompatible activities of employees

Gov. Code 12950 Sexual harassment

Gov. Code 21029 Retirement credit for period of military service

Gov. Code 54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session

Gov. Code 54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information

Gov. Code 8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco-free schools

H&S Code 120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B

H&S Code 1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility

Pen. Code 11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement

Pen. Code 11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or
neglect

Unemp. Ins. Code 2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2354 Local application for career and technical education programs

29 CFR 825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement

34 CFR 100 Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

993

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44955.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45117.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45169.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48851.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=21029.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8355.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120875.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120880.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1797.196.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=2800.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=5401.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11165.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11166.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=UIC&sectionNum=2613.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:2354 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section2354)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-825/subpart-C/section-825.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100\
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8


34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement

38 USC 4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; notice
requirement

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

41 USC 8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

49 CFR 382.113 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications

49 CFR 382.303 Post-accident information, procedures, and instructions

49 CFR 382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notification

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4020 Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4020-E PDF(1) Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

994

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:38 section:4334 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title38-section4334)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-A/section-382.113
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-C/section-382.303
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-B/chapter-III/subchapter-B/part-382/subpart-F/section-382.601
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusZeYGgAu9UThaSLTMslshd0tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAC1rhww8L7iMSkpluscNIKLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==


4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.3 Personnel Reduction

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4136 Nonschool Employment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4216 Probationary/Permanent Status

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

995

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0HrgtD93LpWo6RGKoDQWGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z1npbcNjWu1CWfiZgZVkYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJkaQwwnZhDTOWG0aTpluszAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Bk3LOaZsPplusMRs9a3VJhCiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fR314LutMmFYUvNk9C96Jw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7sHool8yrgGslsh2K1XsUvvplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MObgaIXdAVd5lNPLmPorjA==


4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4236 Nonschool Employment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4336 Nonschool Employment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

996

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=APgj73ZNTP6EJMk9V1CDcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Iy9wVlM5jjPeyzy0KqaxOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e5xOcZXLhQOki5bvxpDjiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CIWIALtpRkJxLslshcdopjIJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==


4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

997

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Regulation 4319.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment ComplaintRegulation 4319.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
ProceduresProcedures

Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/18/2021

Harmony Union School District

Administrative Regulation 4319.12: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Procedures
Status: PENDING
Original Adopted Date:      | Last Revised Date:      | Last Reviewed Date: 

The district does not discriminate on the basis of sex and prohibits sex discrimination
in any education program or activity that it operates, as required by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972
(“Title IX”) and its regulations, including in employment.

The grievance procedures described in this regulation have been adopted by the district to provide for the prompt
and equitable resolution of allegations that a district employee, while participating in or attempting to participate in a
district education program or activity, was subjected to discrimination on the basis of sex, including but not limited
to, sex-based harassment, retaliation, or other conduct prohibited by Title IX. 

This regulation only applies to alleged incidents that occurred on or after August 1, 2024. For alleged incidents of sex
discrimination or sexual harassment that occurred prior to August 1, 2024, the procedures that applied at the time of
the alleged incident should be used.

This regulation applies to any district education program or activity, including but not limited to, events occurring on
school property, during any school-related or school-sponsored activity, on school-sponsored transportation, and/or
where the district has disciplinary authority.

Allegations that a district student was subjected to conduct prohibited by Title IX shall be addressed using the
grievance procedures in Administrative Regulation (“AR”) 5145.71.

Definitions

Complaint means an oral or written request to the district that objectively can be understood as a request for the
district to investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR
106.02)

Complainant means: (1) a student or employee who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations; or (2) a person other than a student or employee who is
alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations
and who was participating or attempting to participate in the district’s education program or activity at the time of
the alleged sex discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Party means a complainant or respondent. (34 CFR 106.02)

Peer retaliation means retaliation by a student against another student. (34 CFR 106.02)

Pregnancy or related conditions means: (1) pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; (2) medical
conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; or (3) recovery from pregnancy,
childbirth, termination of pregnancy, lactation, or related medical conditions. (34 CFR 106.02)

Respondent means a person who is alleged to have violated the district’s prohibition on sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Retaliation means intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination against any person by the district, a student, or an
employee or other person authorized by the district to provide aid, benefit, or service under the district’s education
program or activity, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or its regulations, or
because the person has reported information, made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this part, including in an informal
resolution process, in grievance procedures, and in any other actions taken by the district under 34 CFR 106.44 (f)(1).
This provision does not limit the district’s ability to require an employee to participate as a witness in, or otherwise

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

998



assist with, a Title IX investigation or proceeding. (34 CFR 106.02)

Sex discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related
conditions, sexual orientation, and gender identity. Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination. (34 CFR
106.02, 106.10)

Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination and means sexual harassment and other harassment on the basis
of sex, including on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related conditions, sexual
orientation, and gender identity, that is (34 CFR 106.02):

 

1. Quid pro quo harassment. An employee, agent, or other person authorized by the district to provide an aid,
benefit, or service under the district’s education program or activity explicitly or impliedly conditioning the
provision of such an aid, benefit, or service on a person’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;

 

2. Hostile environment harassment. Unwelcome sex-based conduct that, based on the totality of the
circumstances, is subjectively and objectively offensive and is so severe or pervasive that it limits or denies a
person’s ability to participate in or benefit from the district’s education program or activity (i.e., creates a
hostile environment). Whether a hostile environment has been created is a fact-specific inquiry that includes
consideration of the following:

 

i. The degree to which the conduct affected the complainant’s ability to access the district’s education
program or activity;

 

ii. The type, frequency, and duration of the conduct;

 

iii. The parties’ ages, roles within the district’s education program or activity, previous interactions, and
other factors about each party that may be relevant to evaluating the effects of the conduct;

 

iv. The location of the conduct and the context in which the conduct occurred; and

 

v. Other sex-based harassment in the district’s education program or activity; or
 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 34 CFR 106.2.

Supportive measures means individualized measures offered as appropriate, as reasonably
available, without unreasonably burdening a Complainant or Respondent, not for punitive or
disciplinary reasons, and without fee or charge to the Complainant or Respondent to (34 CFR 106.02):
 

1. Restore or preserve that party’s access to the district’s education program or activity, including measures that
are designed to protect the safety of the parties or the district’s educational environment; or

 

2. Provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or during an informal

resolution process.

General Title IX Requirements

999



When implementing the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure compliance
with the following requirements (34 CFR 106.45, 106.44):
 

1. That Complainants and Respondents are treated equitably.

 

2. That the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decisionmaker, appeal decisionmaker, and any facilitator of an
informal resolution process do not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or
Respondents generally or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Such persons shall also receive training in
accordance with 34 CFR 106.8.  A decisionmaker may be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator or
investigator. 

 

3. That the Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged sex discrimination until a determination is
made at the conclusion of these grievance procedures.

 

4. That discipline is not imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations
unless there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged
in prohibited sex discrimination.

 

5. That reasonable steps are taken to protect the privacy of the parties and witnesses during the grievance
procedures. These steps shall not restrict the ability of the parties to obtain and present evidence, including by
speaking to witnesses (subject to the district’s prohibition on peer retaliation); consult with their family
members, confidential resources, or advisors; or otherwise prepare for or participate in the grievance
procedures.

 

6. That all relevant and permissible evidence – including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence – is
objectively evaluated and that credibility determinations are not based on a person’s status as a Complainant,
Respondent, or witness.

 

7. That all evidence considered impermissible or privileged under 34 CFR 106.45(b) is excluded.

The district prohibits retaliation against an individual for reporting suspected sex discrimination, making a Complaint,
being a witness, or otherwise participating in a Title IX investigation or proceeding. Retaliation is illegal under federal
and state nondiscrimination laws, prohibited by Board policy, and will result in disciplinary action.

The district shall not disclose personally identifiable information obtained in the course of complying with Title IX
regulations, except: (1) when the district has obtained prior written consent from a person with the legal right to
consent to the disclosure; (2) when the information is disclosed to a parent, guardian, or other authorized legal
representative with the legal right to receive disclosures on behalf of the person whose personally identifiable
information is at issue; (3) to carry out the purposes of the Title IX regulations, including action taken to address
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX in the district’s education program or
activity; (4) as required by federal law, federal regulations, or the terms and conditions of a federal award, including a
grant award or other funding agreement; or (5) to the extent such disclosures are not otherwise in conflict with Title
IX or its regulations, when required by state or local law or when permitted under FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 1232g, or its
implementing regulations, 34 CFR part 99. (34 CFR 106.44(j))

If the Respondent is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with one or more
members, as appropriate, of the student's individualized education program (IEP) or 504 team, to determine how to
comply with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) or Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

1000



Title IX Coordinator

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to coordinate its efforts to comply
with Title IX. The Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted at::

Matthew Morgan, Superintendent-Principal
1935 Bohemian Highway
Occidental, CA 94565
Phone (707) 874-1205
mmorgan@harmonyusd.org

Duty to Report Prohibited Conduct

An employee shall notify the Title IX Coordinator within one (1) workday when the employee has information about
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination, including but not limited to sex-based harassment, under
Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR 106.44(c)) 

The Title IX Coordinator shall monitor the district’s education programs and activities for barriers to reporting
information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations and
take steps reasonably calculated to address such barriers. (34 CFR 106.44(b))

When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX and its regulations,
including but not limited to sex-based harassment, the Title IX coordinator shall (34 CFR 106.44(f)):

 

1. Contact the Complainant and/or the individual who reported the conduct to provide information regarding the
district’s grievance procedures and any informal resolution process, if available and appropriate; offer
supportive measures as appropriate; and determine how they wish to proceed; and

 

2. If a Complaint is made, notify the Respondent of the grievance procedures and any informal resolution
process, if available and appropriate, and coordinate supportive measures, as appropriate, for the Respondent.

Complaints

The following people have a right to make a Complaint of sex discrimination, including a Complaint of sex-based
harassment, requesting that the district investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under
Title IX (34 CFR 106.45(a), 106.02):
 

1. A Complainant;

 

2. An authorized legal representative with the legal right to act on behalf of a Complainant; or

 

3. The district’s Title IX Coordinator or designee.

With respect to complaints of sex discrimination other than sex-based harassment, in addition to the people listed
above, the following persons have a right to make a Complaint (34 CFR 106.45(a)):

 

1. Any student or employee; or

 

1001



2. Any person other than a student or employee who was participating or attempting to participate in a district
education program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discrimination.

In the absence of a Complaint or the withdrawal of any or all of the allegations in a Complaint, and in the absence or
termination of an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator, when notified of conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination, shall determine whether to initiate a Complaint of sex discrimination. To make this
fact-specific determination, the Title IX Coordinator must consider, at a minimum, the following factors (34 CFR
106.44(f)):
 

1. The Complainant’s request not to proceed with initiation of a Complaint;

 

2. The Complainant’s reasonable safety concerns regarding initiation of a Complaint;

 

3. The risk that additional acts of sex discrimination would occur if a Complaint is not initiated;

 

4. The severity of the alleged sex discrimination, including whether the discrimination, if established, would
require the removal of a Respondent from campus or imposition of another disciplinary sanction to end the
discrimination and prevent its recurrence;

 

5. The age and relationship of the parties, including whether the Respondent is an employee of the district;

 

6. The scope of the alleged sex discrimination, including information suggesting a pattern, ongoing sex
discrimination, or sex discrimination alleged to have impacted multiple individuals;

 

7. The availability of evidence to assist a decisionmaker in determining whether sex discrimination occurred; and

 

8. Whether the district could end the alleged sex discrimination and prevent its recurrence without initiating its
grievance procedures.                                                                

If, after considering these and other relevant factors, the Title IX Coordinator determines that the conduct as alleged
presents an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of the Complainant or other person, or that the
conduct as alleged prevents the district from ensuring equal access on the basis of sex to its education program or
activity, the Title IX Coordinator may initiate a Complaint. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

If the Title IX Coordinator initiates a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator shall notify the Complainant of the
Complaint prior to doing so, as well as provide other notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific points
in the grievance procedures, and appropriately address reasonable concerns about the Complainant’s safety or the
safety of others, including by providing supportive measures. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Regardless of whether a Complaint is initiated, the Title IX Coordinator shall take other appropriate prompt and
effective steps, in addition to steps necessary to effectuate the remedies provided to an individual Complainant, if
any, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity.
(34 CFR 106.44(f))

Complaints of sex discrimination may be consolidated when they arise out of the same facts or circumstances,
including Complaints against more than one Respondent, Complaints by more than one Complainant, or Complaints
by one party against another party. (34 CFR 106.45(e))

1002



Initial Evaluation

Upon receipt of a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall conduct a prompt initial evaluation to
determine whether to dismiss or investigate a complaint, within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

The Title IX Coordinator or designee may dismiss a Complaint of sex discrimination if (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. The district is unable to identify the Respondent after taking reasonable steps to do so;
 

2. The Respondent is not participating in a district education program or activity and is not employed by the
district;
 

3. The Complainant voluntarily withdraws any or all of the allegations in the Complaint, the
Title IX Coordinator declines to initiate a complaint, and the Title IX Coordinator determines that, without the
Complainant’s withdrawn allegations, the conduct that remains alleged in the Complaint, if any, would not
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX even if proven; or

 

4. The Title IX Coordinator or designee determines the conduct alleged in the Complaint, even if proven, would
not constitute sex discrimination under Title IX. Before dismissing the Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or
designee shall make reasonable efforts to clarify the allegations with the Complainant.

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall promptly notify the Complainant of the basis for
the dismissal. If the dismissal occurs after the Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX
Coordinator or designee shall also notify the Respondent of the dismissal and the basis for the dismissal promptly
following notification to the Complainant, or simultaneously if notification is in writing. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the Complainant that a dismissal may be appealed and shall provide
the Complainant with an opportunity to appeal the dismissal of a Complaint. If the dismissal occurs after the
Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall also notify the
Respondent that the dismissal may be appealed. Dismissals may be appealed on the following bases (34 CFR
106.45(d)):

 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;
 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the dismissal was
made; and
 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
Complainants or Respondents generally or the individual Complainant or Respondent that would change the
outcome.
 

If the dismissal is appealed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. Notify the parties of any appeal, including notice of the allegations, if notice was not previously provided to
the Respondent;
 

2. Implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;
 

3. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal did not take part in an investigation of the allegations or dismissal
of the Complaint;

1003



 
4. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal has been trained consistent with 34 CFR 106.8;

 

5. Provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement in support of, or challenging, the
outcome; and
 

6. Notify the parties of the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result.

When a Complaint is dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall, at a minimum, undertake the following: (1)
offer supportive measures to the Complainant as appropriate; (2) if the Respondent has been notified of the
allegations, offer supportive measures to the Respondent as appropriate; and (3) take other prompt and effective
steps, as appropriate, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within a district education
program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

If a Complaint is dismissed, or in the absence of a Complaint, the conduct may still be addressed pursuant to other
board policies or district regulations where applicable, including but not limited to AR 4030.

If after an initial evaluation the Complaint is not dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator shall either initiate the district’s
grievance procedures or, if available and appropriate and requested by all the parties, an informal resolution process
as specified in the section below titled “Informal Resolution Process.” (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Notice of Allegations

Upon initiation of the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the
known parties in writing of the following (34 CFR 106.45(c)):
 

1. The district's Title IX grievance procedures and any informal resolution process;

 

2. Sufficient information available at the time to allow the parties to respond to the allegations, including the
identities of the parties involved in the incident(s), the conduct alleged to constitute sex discrimination, and the
date(s) and location(s) of the alleged incident(s);

 

3. A statement that retaliation is prohibited; and

 

4. A statement that the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence or an accurate description of this evidence. If a description of the evidence is provided,
the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise impermissible
evidence upon the request of any party.

If, in the course of an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator or designee decides to investigate additional allegations
of sex discrimination by the Respondent toward the Complainant that are not included in the notice provided or that
are included in a Complaint that is consolidated, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the known parties
of the additional allegations. (34 CFR 106.45(c))

Investigation Procedures

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall designate an investigator and a decisionmaker to determine whether sex
discrimination occurred. The investigator may be the same person as the decisionmaker. Neither the investigator nor
the decisionmaker may have a conflict of interest or bias and both shall have received training in accordance with 34
CFR 106.8.  

The designated investigator shall conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial by (34 CFR

1004



106.45(b), (f)):
 

1. Ensuring that the burden is on the district’s investigator – not on the parties – to conduct an investigation that
gathers sufficient evidence to determine whether sex discrimination occurred. 

 

2. Ensuring that the parties have an equal opportunity to present fact witnesses and other inculpatory and
exculpatory evidence that are relevant and not otherwise impermissible.

 

3. Reviewing all evidence gathered through the investigation and determining what evidence is relevant and what
evidence is impermissible regardless of relevance.

 

4. Excluding the following types of evidence as impermissible, including questions seeking such evidence:

 

a. Evidence that is protected under a privilege recognized by Federal or State law unless the person to
whom the privilege or confidentiality is owed has voluntarily waived the privilege or confidentiality;

 

b. A party’s or witness’s records that are made or maintained by a physician, psychologist, or other
recognized professional or paraprofessional in connection with the provision of treatment to the party or
witness, unless the district obtains that party’s or witness’s voluntary, written consent for use in its
grievance procedures; and

 

c. Evidence that relates to the Complainant’s sexual interests or prior sexual conduct, unless evidence
about the Complainant’s prior sexual conduct is offered to prove that someone other than the
Respondent committed the alleged conduct or is evidence about specific incidents of the Complainant’s
prior sexual conduct with the Respondent that is offered to prove consent to the alleged sex-based
harassment. The fact of prior consensual sexual conduct between the Complainant and Respondent does
not by itself demonstrate or imply the Complainant’s consent to the alleged sex-based harassment or
preclude determination that sex-based harassment occurred.

 

5. Providing each party with an equal opportunity to access the evidence that is relevant to the allegations of sex
discrimination and not otherwise impermissible, by:

 

a. Providing an equal opportunity to access such evidence, or an accurate description of this evidence.  

If the parties are provided with a description of the evidence, the designated investigator shall, upon the request of
any party, provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence. 
 

b. Providing a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate description of the
evidence for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily waived by both
parties.

 

c. Taking reasonable steps to prevent and address the parties’ unauthorized disclosure of information and
evidence obtained solely through the grievance procedures. Disclosures of such information and

1005



evidence for purposes of administrative proceedings or litigation related to the complaint of sex
discrimination are authorized.

Employees are required to participate as a witness in, or otherwise assist with, an investigation under this regulation.

The investigator shall complete the investigation within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

At the completion of the investigation, the investigator shall provide to the parties an evidence review period as
specified in the section below titled “Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Written Decision

At the completion of the investigation, if the designated investigator is not the decisionmaker, the investigator shall
provide all of the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence obtained in the investigation to the
decisionmaker.

If credibility is both in dispute and relevant to evaluating one or more allegations of sex discrimination, the district
must ensure that the decisionmaker is able to question parties and witnesses to adequately assess credibility.
Credibility determinations shall not be based on a person’s status as a Complainant, Respondent, or witness. (34 CFR
106.45(b), (g))

The decisionmaker shall apply the preponderance of the evidence standard to make a determination as to whether
sex discrimination occurred. If the decisionmaker is not persuaded under the preponderance of the evidence
standard that sex discrimination occurred, the decisionmaker must not determine that sex discrimination occurred.
(34 CFR 106.45(b), 106.45(h))

The district shall notify the parties in writing of the determination whether sex discrimination occurred under Title IX
including the rationale for such determination, and the procedures and permissible bases for the Complainant and
Respondent to appeal. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

The written decision shall be issued to the parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

Appeals

Either party may appeal the determination of a Complaint on one of the following bases:
 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;

 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the determination
or dismissal was made; or

 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the
outcome.

An appeal must be made in writing to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5) days of the issuance of the written
determination and must state the basis for the appeal.

Upon receipt of an appeal, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly notify the other party of the appeal, and that other
party shall have five (5) calendar days to respond to the request for an appeal.

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an appeal decisionmaker to hear the appeal. The appeal
decisionmaker shall not have a conflict of interest or bias and shall not have been previously involved in the
grievance procedures, including any informal resolution process, for the Complaint.

1006



An appeal decision shall be issued in writing to both parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Either party has the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights within
180 days of the date of the most recently alleged misconduct.

In addition to filing a sex discrimination or sex-based harassment complaint with the district through the grievance
procedures in this regulation, a person may file a complaint with either the California Civil Rights Department (CRD)
or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) as described in AR 4030. 

Timelines for Grievance Procedures

The district’s Title IX grievance procedures shall be completed within the following timelines, unless extended as
specified below, or as otherwise permitted by law:

 

1. The Title IX Coordinator shall make an initial evaluation to determine whether to dismiss or investigate a
Complaint within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of a Complaint;

 

2. The investigation shall be completed within sixty (60) calendar days from receipt of the Complaint;

 

3. If the district offers an informal resolution process as provided under this regulation, and the parties voluntarily
engage in such a process, the timelines otherwise provided in this regulation shall exclude the time spent in the
informal resolution process;

 

4. At the completion of the investigation, the parties shall be provided with the evidence or an accurate
description of the evidence, and a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate
description of the evidence, for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily
waived by both parties;

 

5. A written decision shall be sent to the parties within ten (10) calendar days of the completion of the evidence
review period;

 

6. Any requests for an appeal shall be made within five (5) calendar days of the date the written decision is sent
to the parties;

 

7. Any response from a party to the request for an appeal shall be submitted within five (5) calendar days after
receiving notice of the appeal;

 

8. An appeal decision shall be issued within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the request for an appeal.

Any timelines specified in this regulation may be subject to reasonable extensions on a case-by-case basis for good
cause with notice to the parties that includes the reason for the delay. (34 CFR 106.45(b))

Supportive Measures

When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX, the Title IX Coordinator

1007



or designee shall offer and coordinate supportive measures as appropriate for the Complainant and/or Respondent
to restore or preserve that person’s access to district education programs or activities or provide support during the
district’s Title IX grievance procedures or during an informal resolution process. Supportive measures may include:
counseling; increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus; restrictions on contact applied to one
or more parties; leaves of absence; changes in work, regardless of whether there is or is not a comparable
alternative; and training and education programs related to sex-based harassment. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

If the Respondent is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with one or more
members, as appropriate, of the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) team or 504 team, if any, to
determine how to comply with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and/or
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Supportive measures must not unreasonably burden either party and must be designed to protect the safety of the
parties or the district’s educational environment, or to provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or
during any informal resolution process. A district must not impose such measures for punitive or disciplinary reasons.
(34 CFR 106.44(g))

A Complainant or Respondent shall be provided with a timely opportunity to seek, from an appropriate and impartial
employee, modification or reversal of the decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate supportive measures
applicable to them. The impartial employee must be someone other than the employee who made the challenged
decision and must have authority to modify or reverse the decision, if the impartial employee determines that the
decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate the supportive measure was inconsistent with the definition of
supportive measures in 34 CFR 106.2. A Complainant or Respondent shall also be provided with the opportunity to
seek additional modification or termination of a supportive measure applicable to them if circumstances change
materially. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Upon the conclusion of the grievance procedures or any informal resolution process, the district may continue with
the supportive measures, or modify or terminate such measures, as appropriate. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Information about any supportive measures shall not be disclosed to persons other than the person to whom they
apply, including informing one party of supportive measures provided to another party, unless necessary to provide
the supportive measure or restore or preserve a party’s access to the education program or activity, or when an
exception in 34 CFR 106.44 applies. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Emergency Removal from School

Discipline shall not be imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations unless
there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited
sex discrimination. However, the district may remove a student Respondent from the district’s education program or
activity on an emergency basis, provided that the district undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis,
determines that an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of a Complainant or any students, employees,
or other persons arising from the allegations of sex discrimination justifies removal, and provides the Respondent
with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal. A student with a
disability may only be removed from school on an emergency basis in accordance with the IDEA and/or Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(h))  

If a district employee is the Respondent, the employee may be placed on administrative leave during the pendency of
the grievance process where permitted by law and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.  

Informal Resolution

At any time prior to determining whether sex discrimination occurred under these procedures, the district may offer
an informal resolution process to the parties if appropriate. However, the district shall not offer an informal
resolution process for allegations that an employee engaged in sex-based harassment of a student. (34 CFR
106.44(k))

The district has discretion to determine whether it is appropriate to offer an informal resolution process to the
parties when it receives information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination or when a
Complaint of sex discrimination is made, and may decline to offer informal resolution despite one or more of the
parties’ wishes. Circumstances when the district may decline to allow informal resolution include but are not limited
to when the district determines the alleged conduct would present a future risk of harm to others. (34 CFR

1008



106.44(k))

The district shall not require or pressure the parties to participate in an informal resolution process. The district shall
obtain the parties’ voluntary consent to the informal resolution process and shall not require waiver of the right to an
investigation and determination of a Complaint as a condition of enrollment or continuing enrollment, or
employment or continuing employment, or exercise of any other right. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

The facilitator for the informal resolution process shall not be the same person as the investigator or the
decisionmaker in the district’s grievance procedures. Any person designated by the district to facilitate an informal
resolution process shall not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or Respondents generally
or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Any person facilitating informal resolution shall receive training under
34 CFR 106.8. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

Before initiation of an informal resolution process, the district must provide to the parties notice that explains (34
CFR 106.44(k)):
 

1. The allegations;

 

2. The requirements of the informal resolution process;

 

3. That, prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the informal resolution process
and to initiate or resume the district’s grievance procedures;

 

4. That the parties’ agreement to a resolution at the conclusion of the informal resolution process would preclude
the parties from initiating or resuming grievance procedures arising from the same allegations;

 

5. The potential terms that may be requested or offered in an informal resolution agreement (including notice
that an informal resolution agreement is binding only on the parties), which could include but are not limited to:

 

a. Restrictions on contact; and

 

b. Restrictions on the Respondent’s participation in one or more of the district’s programs or activities or
attendance at specific events, including restrictions the district could have imposed as remedies or
disciplinary sanctions had the district determined at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures
that sex discrimination occurred.

 

6. What information the district shall maintain and whether and how the district could disclose such information
for use in grievance procedures, if grievance procedures are initiated or resumed.

Any informal resolution agreement reached under this process shall not prevent or restrict the disclosure of factual
information. (Civ. Proc. Code 1001)

If the district provides the parties with an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator must, to the extent
necessary, take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or
recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

Remedies

1009



If there is a determination that sex discrimination occurred, the Title IX Coordinator shall, as appropriate, coordinate
the provision and implementation of remedies to a Complainant and other persons the district identifies as having
had equal access to the district’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex discrimination; coordinate
the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions on a Respondent, including notification to the Complainant of any such
disciplinary sanctions; and take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does
not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

If there is a determination that sex-based harassment occurred, the district may provide remedies to the
Complainant that include but are not limited to referral to counseling services, referral to an Employee Assistance
Program, contact limitations between the parties, or adjustments to assignments and/or schedules.  

Corrective/Disciplinary Actions

The district may not impose discipline on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX unless there is a
determination at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

When an employee is found to have committed prohibited sex discrimination or retaliation, the district shall take
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

The district shall not discipline a party, witness, or others participating in the grievance procedures for making a false
statement or for engaging in consensual sexual conduct based solely on the district's determination of whether sex
discrimination, including sex-based harassment, occurred. (34 CFR 106.45)

Recordkeeping

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the following for at least a period of seven years (34 CFR 106.8):
 

1. For each Complaint of sex discrimination, records documenting the informal resolution process (if any) or the
grievance procedures and the resulting outcome;

 

2. For each notification the Title IX Coordinator receives of information about conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations, records documenting the actions the district took
to meet its obligations under 34 CFR 106.44, including supportive measures offered and implemented; and

 

3. All materials used to provide training under 34 CFR 106.8. The district shall make these training materials
available upon request for inspection by members of the public.

For complaints containing allegations of childhood sexual assault within the meaning of Code of Civil Procedure
340.1, the Superintendent or designee shall also indefinitely maintain the following:       
 

1. A record of the allegation(s);

 

2. A record of the investigation procedures followed;

 

3. A record of the written determination;

 

4. A record of the corrective action implemented, if any;

 

1010



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

5. A record of any appeals and the outcome of the same; and

 

6. All training materials addressing the prohibition and investigation of childhood sexual assault.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs
receiving state or federal financial assistance

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Civ. Code 51.9 Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional
relationships

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900.2 Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Gov. Code 12950.1 Sexual harassment training

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1092 Definition of sexual assault

20 USC 1221 Application of laws

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

34 USC 12291 Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking

42 USC 1983 Civil action for deprivation of rights

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

U.S. DOJ, FBI Publication National Incident-Based Reporting System

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Reese v. Jefferson School District (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736

Court Decision Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education (1999) 526 U.S. 629

Court Decision Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1998) 524 U.S. 274

Court Decision Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473

Court Decision Doe v. Petaluma City School District (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447

Court Decision Donovan v. Poway Unified School District (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567

Court Decision Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130

Federal Register
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, April 29, 2024, Vol. 89, No. 83,
pages 33474-33896

Website U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Investigation

1011

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=51.9.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1092 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1092)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1221 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1221)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:34 section:12291 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title34-section12291)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1983 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1983)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://ucr.fbi.gov/nibrs/2018/resource-pages/nibrs_offense_definitions-2018.pdf
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/04/29/2024-07915/nondiscrimination-on-the-basis-of-sex-in-education-programs-or-activities-receiving-federal
https://www.justice.gov/doj/federal-bureau-investigation


Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

3600 Consultants

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4033 Lactation Accommodation

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4131 Staff Development

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

1012

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vrUL5jWsDxbgRF4r37zU8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XaXX4cQM6iPv6CeFzw0c9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4327: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesPolicy 4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017

The Governing Board acknowledges that well-trained coaches are vital to the success of the experience of students
in sports and interscholastic athletic activities, and therefore desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the
district's interscholastic athletic activities in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and safety of
participating students.  

The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a substitute
employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary employee in a limited assignment
capacity. Interscholastic athletic activities include any activities in which student teams participate in interscholastic
competition.  (5 CCR 5590)

When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic activity team coach, the position shall first be made
available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district.  (Education Code 44919)

All coaches shall be subject to applicable law, Board policies, administrative regulations, and California Interscholastic
Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct.

Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591)

Qualifications and Training

The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in accordance with law
and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an appropriate level of competence,
knowledge, and skill.

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored interscholastic athletic
activity shall, prior to beginning the individual’s duties, submit to the Superintendent or designee either an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and
Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background clearance.  (Education Code 49024)

Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to the
Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that the coach meets the
qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State
Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the extent to which the
district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including those required pursuant to Education Code
33479.6, 35179.1, and 49032, and by district policy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 350 Fees not permitted

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1013

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AAC61634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I364BB1104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I364F33834C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.


Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

1014

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45247.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45249.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=6.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=2.6.
https://www.cifstate.org/governance/constitution/index
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201601ConcussionsInStudentAthletes.ashx?la=en&rev=5426e7214aa540819e2534a64c1ec82d
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201807PreventingCatastrophicHeatIllness.ashx?la=en&rev=7436c3554336486db014b55033426ebc
https://positivecoach.org/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.nata.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ca-at.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==


4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1015

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


Regulation 4327: Temporary Athletic Team CoachesRegulation 4327: Temporary Athletic Team Coaches Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017

Qualifications

Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not necessarily limited to,
competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593)

1.  Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency procedures, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and possession of a
valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card
 

b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card
 

c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card
 

d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' Association
(NATA/CATA)
 

e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the supervision of an
athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and conditioning
 

2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one or more of the
following:
 

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques
 

b. Completion of in-service programs arranged by a school district or county office of education
 

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being coached
 

d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached
 

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in the sport being
coached
 

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, the league rules, and, at
the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF)
 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport participation, as evidenced
by one or more of the following:
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions and adolescent
or sports psychology for secondary school positions
 

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth
 

c.  Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program

The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in appropriate training
courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons serve under the direct supervision of a fully
qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 CCR 5593)

Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria specified in 5 CCR 5593
required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. Any volunteer who does not meet such
criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1016



program.

Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary
athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592)

1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit certificated teachers from
teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four years, from a licensed physician or other
person approved by the district
 

2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 44424, or any
offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with children

Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall obtain an Activity
Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code
49024)

Training

Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at the individual's expense, a coaching
education program that meets the standards developed by CIF and includes, but is not limited to, training in regard to
sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport management, statewide and school regulations, CPR,
including certification, use of an automated external defibrillator (AED), and first aid that includes, but is not limited
to, training in recognizing the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions, heat illness, and cardiac
arrest. A high school coach who has completed the education program in another California school district shall be
deemed to have met the requirement for this district. An individual who has not completed the education program
may be assigned as a coach for no longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1,
49032)

In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches shall complete an
approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2,
33479.6, 33479.7)

Code of Ethical Conduct

Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596)

1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches
 

2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials
 

3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct
 

4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority
 

5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times
 

6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players
 

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and standards of the game
 

8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment
 

9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at any public or private
postsecondary educational institution
 

10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to be eligible to
participate in athletics

1017



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, anabolic steroids, or any

substance to increase physical development or performance that is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American Medical Association
 

12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools
 

13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the district and the league
in which the district participates

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 350 Fees not permitted

5 CCR 5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35179-35179.8 Interscholastic athletics

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates

Ed. Code 44424 Conviction of a crime

Ed. Code 44808 Liability when students are not on school property

Ed. Code 44916 Written statement of employment status

Ed. Code 44919 Classification of temporary employees; classifications

Ed. Code 45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information

Ed. Code 45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff

Ed. Code 45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students

Ed. Code 49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate

Ed. Code 49030-49034 Performance enhancing substances

Ed. Code 49406 TB risk assessment

H&S Code 124238-124238.5 Nevaeh Youth Sports Safety Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Interscholastic Federation Publication California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws

California Interscholastic Federation Publication Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Commission on Teacher Credentialing Publication Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor
Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010

Court Decision CTA v. Rialto Unified School District (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627

Court Decision Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma Union High School District (2003) 29 Cal.4th
911

Court Decision Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th
187

CSBA Publication Concussions in Student Athletes and How To Reduce Risk, Fact Sheet,
January 2016

CSBA Publication Preventing Catastrophic Heat Illness, Governance Brief, July 2018

Website Positive Coaching Alliance

1018

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AAC61634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I364BB1104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I364F33834C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44011.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44919.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45125.01.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45247.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45249.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49024.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=6.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=2.6.
https://www.cifstate.org/governance/constitution/index
https://www.cifstate.org/coaches-admin/pvh/index
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201601ConcussionsInStudentAthletes.ashx?la=en&rev=5426e7214aa540819e2534a64c1ec82d
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201807PreventingCatastrophicHeatIllness.ashx?la=en&rev=7436c3554336486db014b55033426ebc
https://positivecoach.org/


Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Athletic Trainers' Association

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Athletic Trainers' Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

4112.4 Health Examinations

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4312.4 Health Examinations

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E PDF(1) Criminal Record Check

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

1019

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.nata.org
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ca-at.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H175FfjM1Tg4ZRlHzAD0IQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YVzzm8UObQjNqKBtqF2EmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Co6slsh7YtyFJzeegLeo45PdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JnPjHplusNKFDqsr6RWiuNLslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LNndoBEg7DvSxw2oG6RCjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6slshUmHatwQ387zOAJ75LFsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshu9HOHOHplusvplusbJBvGhLg6lQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s1B5BmAbXGTDr959FJTYVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lf17aIUEN9uRPukaxEaJEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==


6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1020

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


Policy 4340: Bargaining UnitsPolicy 4340: Bargaining Units Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/18/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The Governing Board recognizes the right of district employees to form a bargaining unit and to select an employee
organization as the exclusive representative for the employees in the employees' employment relationship with the
district. The Board is committed to negotiating in good faith with the exclusive representative and respecting the
rights of employees and employee organizations.

The district shall not dominate or interfere with the formation or administration of any employee organization or
contribute financial or other support to it.  (Government Code 3543.5)

Employees shall not be prohibited from wearing union buttons, insignia, or other pictorial or written messages that
favor or oppose the formation of a bargaining unit or any matter that is the subject of negotiations.

Formation of Bargaining Units

Certificated and classified employees shall not be included in the same bargaining unit. (Government Code 3545)

A bargaining unit of certificated or classified supervisory employees may only be recognized if the bargaining unit
includes all certificated or classified supervisory employees, respectively, and is not represented by the same
employee organization that represents district employees who are supervised by the supervisory employees.
 (Government Code 3545)

For this purpose, supervisory employee means any employee, regardless of job description, having authority, in the
interest of the district, to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other
employees, or the responsibility to assign work to, direct, or adjust grievance of other employees, or effectively
recommend that action, when the exercise of that authority is not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires
the use of independent judgment.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Employees serving in management, senior management, or confidential positions shall not be represented by an
exclusive representative. In the employment relationship with the district, employees who serve in a management,
senior management, or confidential position may represent themselves or be represented by an employee
organization whose membership is composed entirely of employees designated as holding those positions. However,
an employee organization representing management, senior management, or confidential employees shall not be
permitted to meet and negotiate with the district on behalf of the employees.  (Education Code 45100.5,
Government Code 3543.4)

Management employee means an employee in a position having significant responsibilities for formulating district
policies or administering district programs.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Confidential employee means any employee who is required to develop or present management positions with
respect to employer-employee relations or whose duties normally require access to confidential information that is
used to contribute significantly to the development of management positions.  (Government Code 3540.1)

Membership

The district shall not deter or discourage employees or job applicants from becoming or remaining members of an
employee organization, authorizing representation by an employee organization, or authorizing dues or fee
deductions to an employee organization. In addition, the district shall not impose or threaten to impose reprisals on
employees, discriminate or threaten to discriminate against employees, or otherwise interfere with, restrain, or
coerce employees because of their membership or nonmembership in an employee organization.  (Government Code
3543.5, 3550, 3551.5)

District Communications to Employees

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1021



The Superintendent or designee may communicate with district employees regarding their rights to join and/or
support or to refrain from joining or supporting an officially recognized employee organization. Such communications
shall be factual and accurate and may not promise a benefit, threaten a reprisal, or in any way deter or discourage
employees from joining an employee organization or paying dues.

The district may disseminate written documents, recorded messages, or other mass communications to actual or
perspective employees represented by an exclusive representative concerning their rights to join and/or support, or
refrain from joining and/or supporting, an employee organization only after the Superintendent or designee meets
and confers with the exclusive representative concerning the content of the mass communication. If the district and
exclusive representative do not come to agreement on the content of the mass communication and the district still
chooses to disseminate it, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the exclusive representative provide a
communication of reasonable length to the district that shall be disseminated to the employees at the same time as
the district's own mass communication.  (Government Code 3556)

Access to New Employee Orientations

The district shall permit each exclusive representative access to new employee orientation or onboarding process
where newly hired employees represented by the exclusive representative are advised, whether in person, online, or
through other means or mediums, of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties, responsibilities, or any other
employment-related matters. The district shall provide the exclusive representative at least 10 days' notice in
advance of an orientation, except that a shorter notice may be provided where there is an urgent need critical to the
district's operations that was not reasonably foreseeable.  (Government Code 3556)

Following a request to negotiate by either party, the structure, time, and manner of access to new employee
orientations shall be determined by mutual agreement of the district and the exclusive representative. If the district
and exclusive representative fail to reach an agreement, the structure, time, and manner of access to the new
employee orientation shall be subject to compulsory interest arbitration. The district and the exclusive
representative may mutually agree to submit any dispute to compulsory interest arbitration at any time. In addition,
if any dispute arises during negotiations and is not resolved within 45 days after the first meeting or within 60 days
after the initial request to negotiate, whichever is earlier, either party may make a demand for compulsory interest
arbitration. When any such dispute arises during the summer when the district's administrative office is closed, the
timeline shall commence on the first day the administrative office reopens. The arbitrator's decision shall be issued
within 10 days and shall be final and binding on the parties.  (Government Code 3556, 3557)

The date, time, and place of a new employee orientation shall not be disclosed to anyone other than employees, the
exclusive representative, or a vendor that is contracted to provide a service for purposes of the orientation.
 (Government Code 3556)

Until June 30, 2025, unless the district and the exclusive representative have agreed otherwise, when the district has
not conducted an in-person orientation within 30 days of hiring a new employee, the Superintendent or designee
shall permit the exclusive representative to schedule an in-person meeting during employment hours at the new
employee's worksite, during which the new employee shall have the opportunity to attend and shall be relieved of
other duties for the purpose of attending the meeting. The district shall provide appropriate space at the worksite
within seven calendar days of receiving a request from the exclusive representative.  (Government Code 3556, 3557)

During this meeting, the exclusive representative shall be permitted to communicate directly with the new
employees for up to 30 minutes of paid time.  (Government Code 3556)

Access to Employee Contact Information

The Superintendent or designee shall provide an exclusive representative with the name, job title, department, work
location, telephone numbers (work, home, and personal cell phone), of all employees represented by the exclusive
representative on file with the district. An employee's personal email address shall only be disclosed if it used by the
employee to conduct district business.

Such information shall be provided within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following hire for all

1022



new employees represented by the exclusive representative, unless the exclusive representative has agreed to a
different interval for the provision of the information. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the
exclusive representative with the same information for all employees represented by the exclusive representative
every 120 days, unless more frequent disclosure is required by agreement with the exclusive representative.
 (Government Code 3558, 7928.300)

However, the Superintendent or designee shall not disclose:  (Government Code 3558, 6205-6210, 6215-6216,
7928.300)

1. The home address and any phone numbers on file for employees performing law enforcement-related
functions
 

2. The home address, home telephone or personal cell phone number(s), or personal email address(es) of any
employee who is a participant in the Safe at Home address confidentiality program pursuant to Government
Code 6205-6210 and 6215-16
 

3. The employee's home address, home telephone and personal cell phone numbers, and personal email address
of an employee not performing law enforcement related functions if the employee has submitted a written
request to the district to keep such information private. In such instances, the Superintendent or designee shall
also remove the employee's home address, home telephone number, and personal cell phone number from any
mailing list maintained by the district unless the list is only used by the district to contact the employee.

Within 20 calendar days after an exclusive representative notifies the Superintendent or designee that a list of
employees provided by the district is inaccurate or incomplete, the Superintendent or designee shall take steps to
correct the list and provide a new list of employees to the exclusive representative.  (Government Code 3558)

The Superintendent or designee shall review the list of contact information for district employees at the beginning of
each school year, or more often as appropriate.

Communications with Employees by Employee Organizations

Subject to reasonable regulation by the district, employee organizations shall have access, at reasonable times, to the
work areas of employees represented by the employee organization and to district facilities for the purpose of
meeting with employees represented by the employee organization. Access may be limited in instances where it
would be disruptive to district operations.  (Government Code 3543.1)

Additionally, subject to reasonable regulation by the district, employee organizations shall have the ability to use
institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, and other means of communication to communicate with employees
represented by the employee organization.  (Government Code 3543.1)

Membership Dues or Other Payments to an Employee Organization

When drawing an order for the salary or wage payment of a bargaining unit employee of an employee organization,
the district shall deduct any amount that has been requested by the employee in a revocable written authorization
for the purpose of paying dues or other payments for any service, program, or committee provided or sponsored by
the employee organization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

When an employee organization has certified to the district that it has and will maintain individual employee
authorizations for payroll deductions, the district shall rely on information from the employee organization regarding
the amounts of such payroll deductions and the employees to whom they apply and shall not handle or process
employee written authorizations for the employees represented by such employee organization. The district also
shall not require a copy of the written authorization to be submitted by the employee organization, except when
there is a dispute about the existence or terms of the written authorization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

A written authorization shall remain in effect until expressly revoked in writing by the employee and pursuant to the
terms of the written authorization. Employee requests to cancel or change authorizations for payroll deductions for
employee organizations shall be directed to the employee organization that represents the employee rather than the
district. The employee organization shall be responsible for processing these requests. The district shall rely on the

1023



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

information provided by the employee organization regarding whether deductions for an employee organization
were properly canceled or changed. The employee organization shall be required to indemnify the district for any
claims made by an employee for deductions made by the district in reliance on information from the employee
organization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168)

When an employee organization has declined to certify that it will handle and process written authorizations from
employee(s) represented by the employee organization and makes a request for payroll deductions, the district shall
request a copy of the written authorization for an employee before making the payroll deductions for that employee.
 (Education Code 45060, 45168)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 33015-33490 Recognition of exclusive representative; proceedings

8 CCR 33700-33710 Severance of established unit

Ed. Code 45060-45061.5 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment; certificated employees

Ed. Code 45100.5 Senior classified management positions

Ed. Code 45104.5 Abolishment of senior classified management positions

Ed. Code 45108.5 Definition of senior classified management employees

Ed. Code 45108.7 Waiver of provisions of Education Code 45108.5

Ed. Code 45168 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment; classified employees

Ed. Code 45220-45320 Merit system; classified employees

Gov. Code 3500-3511 Local public employee organizations

Gov. Code 3507.7 Representation of temporary employees

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Gov. Code 3543.4 Management and confidential positions; representation

Gov. Code 3545 Appropriateness of unit; basis

Gov. Code 3550-3552 Prohibition on public employers deterring or discouraging union
membership

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

Gov. Code 53260-53264 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 6205-6210 Confidentiality of addresses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, or child abduction

Gov. Code 6215-6216 Address confidentiality for individuals who face threats or violence because
of work for a public entity

Gov. Code 6503.5 Joint powers agencies; agreement

Gov. Code 7928.300 Disclosure of employee contact information to employee organization

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision County of Los Angeles v. Los Angeles County Employee Relations
Commission (2013) 56 Cal. 4th 905

Court Decision Friedrichs v. California Teachers Association, et al. (2016) 136 S.Ct. 1083

Court Decision Janus v. American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees,
Council 31 (2018) 138 S.Ct. 2448

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling Regents of the University of California (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1700-H.

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling Desert Community College District (2007) PERB Dec. No. 1921

1024

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=IB5AC9B005A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#IB5B0E0C35A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45100.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45104.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45108.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45108.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45168.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=9.&title=&part=&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3507.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3540.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=11.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=6503.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7928.300.


Public Employment Relations Board Ruling East Whittier School District (2004) PERB Dec. No. 1727

Public Employment Relations Board Ruling City of Sacramento (2019) PERB Dec. No. 2702

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Website Association of California School Administrators

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1431 Waivers

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4115 Evaluation/Supervision

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

1025

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cft.org
http://www.perb.ca.gov
http://www.csea.com
http://www.cta.org
http://www.acsa.org
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ikwhky3RnE91hYDa7IlSuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xyDWQHQsHMma6IcpZ5oePQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yejplus07hR8MGJhPYyhWCPnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusDzyfwslshdNZjVONnPZkMCBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0AS5Thslsh7nT4SNVplusryqONdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Sglf5xVtilpRV7u6aDyjXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kZSplusmbBylVJaSR8plusKQgNlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5DF7PiVrcMOslshPUMb2mLDiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dl07LBkMujX48PVplusgFt7Sw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0t9pCQoKyKgb8KK1zcLWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjJ8dUjzXBuq4jQVtwTilA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ABGqplusKhgcDuxXkEIYU1UslshA==


4251 Employee Compensation

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4301 Administrative Staff Organization

4312.1 Contracts

4315 Evaluation/Supervision

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4361.2 Personal Leaves

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1026

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jED6j2ftplusfmMeCpF6SKslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZSDYZnWJbKBtY3IS6KwJlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=43ckWjavfMnRcTpW4OQNpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WRpi6tqk5fHfGDfJEla6qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1JnrSvhCfnqPIG8sUTFnjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XEEIofWfBEyvWQZoFslshuwbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mFoPGONs6uqBVhM0b1O1Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4357: Employee SafetyPolicy 4357: Employee Safety Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/18/2021

The Governing Board is committed to maximizing employee safety and believes that workplace safety is the
responsibility of every employee. Working conditions and equipment shall comply with standards prescribed by
federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

No employee shall be required or permitted to be in any place of employment which is unsafe or unhealthful.  (Labor
Code 6402)

The Superintendent or designee shall promote safety and correct any unsafe work practices through education and
enforcement.

All employees are expected to use safe work practices and, to the extent possible, correct any unsafe conditions that
may occur. If an employee is unable to correct an unsafe condition, the employee shall immediately report the
problem to the Superintendent or designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and implement a written injury and illness prevention program that
includes a workplace violence prevention plan and that provides employees with access to such program in
accordance with law.  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203)

The Superintendent or designee shall make first aid materials readily available at district workplaces and shall make
effective provisions to prepare for prompt medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury or illness.
 (8 CCR 3400)

No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against for exercising any right regarding employee safety or
health specified in Labor Code 6310, including:

1. Making a report or complaint
 

2. Instituting proceedings or causing proceedings to be instituted
 

3. Testifying with regard to employee safety or health
 

4. Participating in any occupational health and safety committee established pursuant to Labor Code 6401.7
 

5. Requesting access to injury or illness reports and records
 

6. Exercising any other right protected by the Occupational Safety and Health Act

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

8 CCR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CCR 3203 Injury and illness prevention program

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 3400 Medical services and first aid

8 CCR 5095-5100 Control of noise exposure

8 CCR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Ed. Code 32030-32034 Eye safety

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1027

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA506C3A35A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2997DB735A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3180B2D25A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43020D605A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4306A1435A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4AFF57235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=3.


Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 1139 Worker's rights in emergencies

Lab. Code 132a Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination

Lab. Code 3300 Definition of employer

Lab. Code 6305 Occupational safety and health standards; special order

Lab. Code 6310 Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited

Lab. Code 6325 Prohibition of entry into place of employment

Lab. Code 6400-6413.5 Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees

Lab. Code 6401.7 Injury and illness prevention program

Lab. Code 6401.9 Workplace violence prevention plans

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

29 CFR 1910.1030 Bloodborne pathogens

29 CFR 1910.95 Noise standards

29 CFR 651-678 Occupational safety and health

8 CFR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CFR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CFR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program,
rev. August 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

1028

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=132a.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6305.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6310.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6325.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.9.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-Z/section-1910.1030
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-G/section-1910.95
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh
http://www.osha.gov
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.hearingconservation.org
http://www.cdc.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==


3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4131 Staff Development

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4157.2 Ergonomics

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4231 Staff Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1029

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nS2wDZsHHIG4ZB2Fn4Geug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sRcslshe3arGplusAMzKkUvOBeqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GNQSA66OvhpnuQ6X3tLvpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rhCLEtplus6plus95wOD74SplusGTsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMMixE0quSYqoekTKt54JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n75LeISTFf0Si4frsAE10Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==


4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.2 Ergonomics

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4331 Staff Development

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4357.2 Ergonomics

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

6142.93 Science Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1030

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OAOFZLeNyprD5s79QXK5Zg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HLMzSmqplusplus1gwwslKGHsSfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfLc4SRUEYPj1LDHoENslshRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==


Regulation 4357: Employee SafetyRegulation 4357: Employee Safety Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Superintendent or designee shall provide safety devices and implement safeguards, methods, and processes that
are reasonably necessary for the safety and health of employees in the workplace.  (Labor Code 6401)

If the Department of Industrial Relations Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) prohibits entry into
any district workplace or performance of a district operation or process based on a determination that the workplace
exposes employees to the risk of an imminent hazard, including a machine, device, apparatus, or equipment that is in
a dangerous condition or is dangerously placed, the Superintendent or designee shall post a notice of the hazard
provided by Cal/OSHA in a conspicuous place at the work site. This notice shall not be removed except by an
authorized representative of Cal/OSHA and only when the workplace, operation, or process is made safe, and the
required safeguards, safety appliances, or devices are provided.  (Labor Code 6325)

Injury and Illness Prevention Program

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall cover all district employees and all other workers whom the
district controls or directs and directly supervises on the job to the extent that the workers are exposed to hazards
specific to their worksite and job assignment. The obligation of contractors or other employers who control or direct
and supervise their own employees on the job shall not be affected by the district's injury and illness prevention
program.  (Labor Code 6401.7)

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall include:  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203)

1. The name/position of the person(s) with authority and responsibility for implementing the program
 

2. A system for ensuring that employees comply with safe and healthful work practices, which may include, but
are not limited to:
 

a. Recognition of employees who follow safe and healthful work practices
 

b. Training and retraining programs
 

c. Disciplinary actions
 

3. A system for communicating with employees in a form readily understandable by all employees on matters
related to occupational health and safety, including provisions designed to encourage employees to report
hazards at the worksite without fear of reprisal.  The communications system may include, but is not limited to:

a. Meetings
 

b. Training programs
 

c. Posting
 

d. Written communications
 

e. A system of anonymous notification by employees about hazards
 

f. A labor/management safety and health committee
 

4. Procedures for identifying and evaluating workplace hazards, including scheduled periodic inspections to
identify unsafe conditions and work practices. Such inspections shall be made:
 

a. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment that represents a new occupational
safety or health hazard is introduced into the workplace
 

b. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard
 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1031



5. A procedure for investigating occupational injury or illness
 

6. Methods and/or procedures for correcting unsafe or unhealthful conditions, work practices, and work
procedures in a timely manner, based on the severity of the hazard, when the hazard is observed or discovered

When an imminent hazard exists that cannot be immediately abated without endangering employee(s) and/or
property, these procedures shall call for the removal of all exposed staff from the area except those necessary
to correct the hazardous condition. Employees needed to correct the condition shall be provided with the
necessary safeguards.
 

7. Provision of training and instruction as follows:
 

a. To all new employees
 

b. To all employees given new job assignments for which training has not previously been received
 

c. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced into the workplace and
represent a new hazard
 

d. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard
 

e. To supervisors, to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to which employees under their
immediate direction and control may be exposed
 

8. A written workplace violence prevention plan developed and implemented in accordance with Labor Code
6401.9  (Labor Code 6401.7)

The plan, which shall be easily accessible to all employees at all times, shall be in effect at all times and in all
work areas, and be specific to the hazards and corrective measures for each work area and operation.  (Labor
Code 6401.9)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to all employees when the plan is first established and
annually thereafter in accordance with Labor Code 6401.9. Training materials shall be appropriate in content
and vocabulary to employees' educational level, literacy, and language.  (Labor Code 6401.9)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees, or their representative designated pursuant to 8 CCR
3203, with either of the following:  (8 CCR 3203)

1. Access to the district's injury and illness prevention program in a reasonable time, place, and manner, but in no
event later than five business days after the request for access is received from an employee or a designated
representative of the employee.

When an employee or designated representative requests a copy of the district's injury and illness prevention
program, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the requester a printed copy unless the employee or
designated representative agrees to receive an electronic copy.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide one printed copy free of charge. If the employee or designated
representative requests additional copies within one year of the previous request and the district's injury and
illness prevention program has not been updated with new information since the prior copy was provided, the
district may charge reasonable reproduction costs pursuant to 8 CCR 3204 for the additional copies.
 

2. Unobstructed access to the district's injury and illness prevention program through the district's server or
website that allows an employee to review, print, and email the current version of the district's injury and
illness prevention program.

The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the right and procedure to access the district's injury and illness
prevention program to all employees.  (8 CCR 3203)

Labor/Management Safety and Health Committee

1032



The district's labor/management safety and health committee shall:  (8 CCR 3203)

1. Meet regularly, but not less than quarterly.
 

2. Prepare and make available to affected employees written records of the safety and health issues discussed at
committee meetings and maintained for review by Cal/OSHA upon request. These records shall be maintained
for at least one year.
 

3. Review results of the periodic, scheduled worksite inspections.
 

4. Review investigations of occupational accidents and causes of incidents resulting in occupational injury or
illness or exposure to hazardous substances. As appropriate, the committee may submit suggestions to the
Superintendent or designee regarding the prevention of future incidents.
 

5. Review investigations of alleged hazardous conditions brought to the attention of any committee member.
When determined necessary by the committee, it may conduct its own inspection and investigation to assist in
remedial solutions.
 

6. Submit recommendations to assist in the evaluation of employee safety suggestions.
 

7. Upon request of Cal/OSHA, verify abatement action taken by the district to abate citations issued by
Cal/OSHA.

Hearing Protection

Whenever employee noise exposure equals or exceeds the standards specified by law, the Superintendent or
designee shall implement a hearing conservation program in accordance with state and federal regulations, including,
when required, monitoring of sound levels, audiogram evaluation and audiometric testing of affected employees, the
provision of hearing protectors, and employee training.  (8 CCR 5095-5100; 29 CFR 1910.95)

Eye Safety Devices

Employees shall wear eye safety devices whenever they are engaged in or observing an activity involving hazards or
hazardous substances likely to cause eye injury.  (Education Code 32030-32034)

First Aid and Medical Services

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the ready availability of medical personnel for advice and consultation
on matters of industrial health or injury. Whenever a district facility or district grounds are not in close proximity to
an infirmary, clinic, or hospital where all injured employees may be treated, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that at least one employee is adequately trained to provide first aid.  (8 CCR 3400)

The Superintendent or designee shall make adequate first aid materials readily available for employees at every
worksite. Such materials shall be approved by a consulting physician and shall be kept in a sanitary and usable
condition. The Superintendent or designee shall frequently inspect all first aid materials and replenish them as
necessary.  (8 CCR 3400)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that suitable facilities for quick drenching or flushing of the eyes and
body are provided within the work area for immediate emergency use when the eyes or body or any person may be
exposed to injurious corrosive materials.  (8 CCR 3400)

To avoid unnecessary delay in medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury or illness, the
Superintendent or designee shall use one or more of the following:  (8 CCR 3400)

1. A communication system for contacting a physician or emergency medical service, such as access to 911 or
equivalent telephone system. The communication system or the employees using the system shall have the
ability to direct emergency services to the location of the injured or ill employee.
 

2. Readily accessible and available on-site treatment facilities suitable for treatment of reasonably anticipated
injury and illness

1033



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
3. Proper equipment for prompt medical transport when transportation of injured or ill employees is necessary

and appropriate

Protection from Communicable Diseases and Infections

The Superintendent or designee shall develop an exposure control plan for bloodborne pathogens that is consistent
with the district's injury and illness prevention program. The plan shall include a determination of which job
classifications have occupational exposure to blood or other potentially infectious materials; precautions to be
implemented, including universal precautions, engineering and work practice controls, and personal protective
equipment; availability of the hepatitis B vaccination; provision of information and training to employees; and follow-
up actions to be taken if exposure occurs. The district shall ensure that a copy of the exposure control plan is
accessible to employees in accordance with law.  (8 CCR 5193; 29 CFR 1910.1030)

Strategies to prevent and mitigate the outbreak or spread of infectious diseases shall be followed for diseases that
are communicated through airborne transmission, skin-to-skin contact, foodborne transmission, or other casual or
noncasual means. Such strategies shall include, but are not limited to, communication and training about the
disease(s); campus closures and alternative means of instruction when necessary; preventative measures, such as
social distancing, personal protective equipment, temperature checks, and/or any other health screening allowed by
law; and cleaning and sanitization of district facilities and equipment.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report to the local health officer the presence or suspected
presence of any communicable disease.  (17 CCR 2508)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

8 CCR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CCR 3203 Injury and illness prevention program

8 CCR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CCR 3400 Medical services and first aid

8 CCR 5095-5100 Control of noise exposure

8 CCR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Ed. Code 32030-32034 Eye safety

Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 1139 Worker's rights in emergencies

Lab. Code 132a Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination

Lab. Code 3300 Definition of employer

Lab. Code 6305 Occupational safety and health standards; special order

Lab. Code 6310 Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited

Lab. Code 6325 Prohibition of entry into place of employment

Lab. Code 6400-6413.5 Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees

Lab. Code 6401.7 Injury and illness prevention program

Lab. Code 6401.9 Workplace violence prevention plans

1034

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA506C3A35A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2997DB735A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I29F64F235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3180B2D25A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I43020D605A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4306A1435A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I4AFF57235A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=132a.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6305.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6310.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6325.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6401.9.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 2508 Reporting of communicable diseases

29 CFR 1910.1030 Bloodborne pathogens

29 CFR 1910.95 Noise standards

29 CFR 651-678 Occupational safety and health

8 CFR 14000-14316 Occupational injury or illness reports and records

8 CFR 3204 Access to employee exposure and medical records

8 CFR 5193 Bloodborne pathogens

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program,
rev. August 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3514.1 Hazardous Substances

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.5 Emergency Schedules

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

1035

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-Z/section-1910.1030
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XVII/part-1910/subpart-G/section-1910.95
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh
http://www.osha.gov
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.hearingconservation.org
http://www.cdc.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0NplusERGptIF8XZQSaZ7wgYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oWxj1rwt5hOzCTFNV9Pb0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jfeodBbKrslshNQp0ahybaZ6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nS2wDZsHHIG4ZB2Fn4Geug==


4119.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4131 Staff Development

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4157.2 Ergonomics

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4231 Staff Development

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.2 Ergonomics

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.42 Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1036

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sRcslshe3arGplusAMzKkUvOBeqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GNQSA66OvhpnuQ6X3tLvpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rhCLEtplus6plus95wOD74SplusGTsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AMMixE0quSYqoekTKt54JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n75LeISTFf0Si4frsAE10Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OAOFZLeNyprD5s79QXK5Zg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HLMzSmqplusplus1gwwslKGHsSfw==


4319.42-E PDF(1) Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4331 Staff Development

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4357.2 Ergonomics

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

6142.93 Science Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1037

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfLc4SRUEYPj1LDHoENslshRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4357.1: Work-Related InjuriesRegulation 4357.1: Work-Related Injuries Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

In order to provide medical benefits, temporary or permanent disability benefits, wage replacement, retraining or skill
enhancement, and/or death benefits in the event that an employee becomes injured or ill in the course of
employment, the district shall provide all employees with insurance and workers' compensation benefits in
accordance with law. The Superintendent or designee shall develop an efficient claims handling process that reduces
costs and facilitates employee recovery.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify every new employee, at the time of hire or by the end of the first pay
period, of the employee's right to receive workers' compensation benefits if injured at work.  (Labor Code 3551; 8
CCR 15596)

In addition, a notice regarding workers' compensation benefits shall be posted in a conspicuous location frequented
by employees, where the notice may be easily read during the workday.  (Labor Code 3550)

In the event that an employee is injured or becomes ill in the course of employment, the employee shall report the
work-related injury or illness to the Superintendent or designee as soon as practicable. The employee and
appropriate district staff shall also promptly document the date and time of any incident, a description of the
incident, and any persons present.

Within one working day of receiving notice or knowledge of any injury to an employee in the course of employment,
the Superintendent or designee shall provide a claim form and notice of potential eligibility for workers'
compensation benefits to the employee or, in the case of the employee's death, to the employee's dependents. The
claim form and notice shall be provided personally or by first class mail.  (Labor Code 5401)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employee notices described above are in the form prescribed by
the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), Division of Workers Compensation.

The Superintendent or designee shall additionally ensure that any employee who is a victim of a crime that occurred
at the place of employment is given written notice personally or by first class mail within one working day of the
crime, or when the district reasonably should have known of the crime, that the employee is eligible for workers'
compensation benefits for injuries, including psychiatric injuries, that may have resulted from the crime.  (Labor Code
3553)

Upon learning of a work-related injury or illness, or injury or illness alleged to have arisen out of and in the course of
employment, the Superintendent or designee shall report the incident to the district's insurance carrier or DIR, as
applicable, within five days after obtaining knowledge of the injury or illness. If a subsequent death arises as a result
of the reported injury or illness, an amended report indicating the death shall be filed within five days after being
notified of or learning about the death.  (Labor Code 6409.1)

In addition, in every case involving death or serious injury or illness, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately
make a report to the Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) by telephone or through an online
mechanism made available by Cal/OSHA.  (Labor Code 6409.1)

For the purpose of this report, serious injury or illness means any injury or illness occurring in a place of employment
or in connection with any employment that requires inpatient hospitalization for other than medical observation or
diagnostic testing, or in which an employee suffers an amputation, the loss of an eye, or any serious degree of
permanent disfigurement.  (Labor Code 6302)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 15596 Notice of employee rights to workers' compensation benefits

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1038

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IA6CD3B835A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)


Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Ed. Code 45192 Industrial accident and illness leave for classified employees

Lab. Code 3200-4856 Workers' compensation

Lab. Code 3550-3553 Notifications: Workers' compensation benefits

Lab. Code 3600-3605 Conditions of liability

Lab. Code 3760 Report of injury to insurer

Lab. Code 4600 Provision of medical and hospital treatment by employer

Lab. Code 4906 Disclosures and statements

Lab. Code 5400-5413 Notice of injury or death

Lab. Code 6302 Definition of serious injury or illness

Lab. Code 6409.1 Reports

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Workers' Compensation in California: A Guidebook for Injured Workers,
2016

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Workers' Compensation Claim Form (DWC 1) & Notice of Potential
Eligibility

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Notice to Employees - Injuries Caused by Work

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Time of Hire Pamphlet

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Workers
Compensation

Website California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Public Health

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3320-E PDF(1) Claims And Actions Against The District

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

1039

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45192.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3760.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=4600.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=4906.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=4.&title=&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=6409.1.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.dir.ca.gov/dwc
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cdph.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4EBplusTtUIhoHuqi6oSdslshURg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9JbfbGnh7plusxoAd0OhM50Wg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jZVgb2EwMpfVREY844c3ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==


4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4157.2 Ergonomics

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4257.2 Ergonomics

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4357.2 Ergonomics

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1040

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QdAYOi3LWCjpslshWly8PXR9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iWLnWbK2UFyioGav2Qp1Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nPHzBilojURsCqjplusfI6slshAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VcHEADrpq3tREfL3774V6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8BWeWybYAmE6SKbR4Pgplusmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=92LIslshMOX4ex1TAPOtslsh3ugA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7uj7Y3p8tvGncxgKivKhag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5LDcrsTzV1iUQIUaWVMsA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8uHplus8BW3Aplus9fCZplusRv3VV6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HjtJ14aiTEYzwzyxhfPLqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AFEP7Nt3aTIW17aUHA2RUg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UCTIYndP87AIp7sm9UT56Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Policy 4361: LeavesPolicy 4361: Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board shall provide for paid and unpaid leaves of absence for employees in accordance with law,
Board policy, administrative regulation, collective bargaining agreements, and merit system rules, as applicable.

Employees have the right to take leaves as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining agreements, including, but
not limited to:

1. Personal illness or injury
 

2. Industrial accident or illness
 

3. Family care and medical leave
 

4. Military service
 

5. Personal necessity and personal emergencies

6. Disability leave for certificated employees in accordance with Education Code 44986
 

7. Vacations for classified staff and certificated management staff, as applicable
 

8. Sabbaticals for purposes of study or training related to the employee's job duties
 

9. Attendance at work-related meetings and staff development opportunities

10. Compulsory leave
 

11. Maternity, parental leave, and reproductive loss leave for both certificated and classified staff, as applicable
under state law
 

12. Bereavement

Long-Term Leaves

With Board approval, an employee may receive a leave of absence, without pay and without accruing seniority or
service credit, for a period of up to one school year. Applications for long-term leave shall be made in writing and
shall state the purpose for which leave is requested. All long-term leave agreements shall be in writing and shall state
the terms and conditions of the leave, including the conditions governing the employee's return.

At the end of a long-term leave, the employee shall be reinstated to a similar position as that employee held at the
time leave was granted, unless otherwise agreed upon.

The Board shall consider any written request by an employee to return to work prior to the expiration date of the
leave.

Administrative and Supervisory Personnel

Certificated administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
certificated employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other certificated employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memorandums of understanding,
Board policy, administrative regulation, or law.

Classified administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's bargaining agreement for
classified employees shall generally be entitled to those leave provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for
other classified employees unless otherwise specified in individual contract, memoranda of understanding, Board

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1041



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

policy, administrative regulation, or law.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

1042

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=13.&chapter=14.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44018.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44043.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44800.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45059.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=2.&part=3.&chapter=11.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==


4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1043

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBp0EUVInFQ1zz7nukNJZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4vWyj9hsEfWLJRLCTzvd2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==


4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1044

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 4361: LeavesRegulation 4361: Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

Failure to Return to Service After Leave

The district may terminate the employment of a certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more
consecutive working days after April 30 of the previous school year if all of the following circumstances exist: 
(Education Code 44842)

1. The employee fails to report for duty, without good cause, at the beginning of the school year after having
notified the Governing Board of the intention to remain in service with the district in accordance with
Education Code 44842
 

2. The district had specifically notified the employee, at least five days in advance, of the time and place at which
the employee was to report to work
 

3. The employee continues to be absent from work for 20 consecutive working days, beginning from the date the
employee was to report to work.
 

4. The employee did not request or was not granted a leave of absence authorized by the Board

Use of Leaves by Classified Employees

A classified employee may interrupt or terminate vacation leave in order to begin another type of paid leave without
a return to active service, as long as the employee provides adequate notice and relevant supporting information
regarding the basis for such interruption or termination.  (Education Code 45200)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44043.5 Catastrophic leave

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 44842 Reemployment notices; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44962-44988 Leave of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Ed. Code 45190-45210 Leaves of absence; classified

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1045

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=13.&chapter=14.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44018.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44043.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44800.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44842.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45059.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=2.&part=3.&chapter=11.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.


Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.1 Contracts

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4131 Staff Development

4141 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.3 Professional Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4231 Staff Development

4241 Collective Bargaining Agreement

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

1046

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xrGuMmmGAyQrrAMNcfwfgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FyL5oJ2ObxkqeTKxqNEAqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBp0EUVInFQ1zz7nukNJZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o4eCVlDFtFCCMC9zplus1PufQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==


4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.3 Professional Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4300 Administrative And Supervisory Personnel

4312.1 Contracts

4331 Staff Development

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1047

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4vWyj9hsEfWLJRLCTzvd2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TpluskwfzPGBU410tg5ZYR1kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMv1m4IuIO8U0eBrKYvLew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Regulation 4361.1: Personal Illness/Injury LeaveRegulation 4361.1: Personal Illness/Injury Leave Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The following administrative regulation applies to classified employees, including classified management. For
certificated employees, including certificated management, see Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 – Personal
Illness/Injury Leave.

Certificated employees employed five school days per week are entitled to 10 days leave of absence with full pay for
personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of service. Employees who work less than five school days per
week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, any part-time
employees who are entitled to less than three days of paid sick leave per year due to the amount of time worked
shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if they are eligible.  (Education Code 44978; Labor Code
245-249)

Use of Sick Leave

A certificated employee may use sick leave for absences as authorized by law and/or collective bargaining
agreement, including, but not limited to:

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of and in the course of employment; quarantine
which results from contact in the course of employment with other persons having a contagious disease; or
temporary inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or quarantine  (Education Code
44964)

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery, as well as reproductive loss  (Education Code 44965,
44978; Government Code 12945.6)
 

3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 44981)

4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour
 

5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been exhausted 
(Education Code 44984)

6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster care
placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR
825.112)

7. Need of the employee or employee's family member, including a designated person, as defined in Labor Code
245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care  (Government
Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)
 

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 230(c) and
230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's child, when the employee has
been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

9. Bereavement leave, as specified in Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves 
(Education Code 44985; Government Code 12945.7)

For the purposes specified in Items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of sick leave that
would be accrued during six months at the employee's then current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 233)

An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick leave has not yet been
accrued.  (Education Code 44978)

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 44978)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1048



An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of termination, in
accordance with Education Code 44042.5.

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave they have accumulated.

The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous district.  (Education Code
44979, 44980)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the district after at least one
school year of employment that if the employee accepts a certificated position in another district, county office of
education, or community college district within one year, the employee may request that the district transfer any
accumulated sick leave to the new employer.  (Education Code 44979, 44980)

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a certificated employee who is a former active duty
member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the California National Guard or a federal
reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical
treatment, including mental health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more
by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days per week shall be
entitled to such leave in proportion to the time worked.  (Education Code 44978.2)

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee receives confirmation of the
submission of the disability application to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee
begins or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives the disability
rating decision, the employee shall report that information to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating
decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the
10-day maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may
change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  (Education Code
44978.2)

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification Requirements"
below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date that the leave
was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education
Code 44978.2)

Notification of Absence

An employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the need to be absent as soon as such need is known, so
that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate of the expected duration of
absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of
absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the
afternoon of the day preceding the day on which the employee intends to return to work. If the employee fails to
notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted
from the employee's pay.

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

OPTION 1:  (Differential pay: regular salary minus cost of substitute)

During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all
accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five
school months, the district shall deduct from the employee's regular salary for that period the actual cost of a
substitute to fill the position. If the district has made every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute
and has been unable to do so, the amount that would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from the

1049



employee's salary.  (Education Code 44977)

An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. However, if the school
year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of the five-month period in
a subsequent school year.  (Education Code 44977)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (50 percent of employee's regular salary)

After a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to
illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of up to five months, the employee shall receive at
least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary during the additional period of absence.  (Education Code 44983)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List

If a certificated employee is not medically able to return to work after the five-month period provided pursuant to
Education Code 44977, the employee shall be placed either in another position or on a reemployment list.
Placement on the reemployment list shall be for 24 months for probationary employees or 39 months for permanent
employees and shall begin at the expiration of the five-month period. If during this time the employee becomes
medically able, the employee shall be returned to employment in a position for which the employee is credentialed
and qualified.  (Education Code 44978.1)

Parental Leave

During each school year, a certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave,
for the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any
period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code
44977.5)

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 months. 
(Education Code 44977.5)

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent
on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for
the remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 44977.5)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the parental leave taken
pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12
work weeks in a 12-month period.  (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

Verification Requirements

After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows chronic
absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or whenever available
evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the district, at
district expense, in order to receive a report on the employee's need for further leave of absence and a prognosis as
to when the employee will be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not
warrant continued absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny further

1050



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

leave.

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician shall be in
writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the employee's genetic
information. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a
confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and not be disclosed
except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended medical
treatment may be asked to submit a letter from a physician stating that the employee is able to return to duty and
stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations.

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in any manner discriminate
or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the following
information:
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
 

b. The number of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick leave is prohibited
by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district
discriminates or retaliates against the employee

2. Provide at least 40 hours or five days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per year and allow
eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their pay check, of
the amount of paid sick leave they have available
 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each eligible employee
for three years

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 5601 Transfer of accumulated sick leave

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 44964 Power to grant leaves of absence for accident, illness, or quarantine

Ed. Code 44965 Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth

Ed. Code 44976 Transfer of leave rights when school is transferred to another district

Ed. Code 44977 Salary schedule for substitute employees

Ed. Code 44977.5 Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is
exhausted

1051

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3672E8234C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44042.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44964.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44965.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44976.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44977.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44977.5.


Ed. Code 44978 Sick leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44978.1 Inability to return to duty; placement in another position or on
reemployment list

Ed. Code 44978.2 Leave for military service-connected disability

Ed. Code 44979 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to another district

Ed. Code 44980 Transfer of accumulated sick leave to a county office of education

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44983 Compensation during leave; certificated employees

Ed. Code 44984 Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44986 Leave of absence; state disability benefits

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.6 Reproductive loss leave

Lab. Code 220 Sections inapplicable to public employees

Lab. Code 230 Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Lab. Code 230.1 Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault,
and stalking victims; right to time off

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

29 CFR 825.100-825.702 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Discrimination on the basis of sex; effectuating Title IX

42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11 Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Veguez v. Governing Board of Long Beach Unified School District (2005)
127 Cal.App.4th 406

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4112.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

1052

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44978.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44978.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44978.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44979.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44981.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44983.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44986.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45194.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12945.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=234.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.5.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1635
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter21F&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GeBrgZBxP7NUMFslshslshim46bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yF32S9IlWIbVnLHv0K6VkA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXmMOSYVsbZcIvbvQ2LLcQ==


4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4113.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status

4117.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4159 Employee Assistance Programs

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.5 Military Leave

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4161.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.42 Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4213.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1053

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QdAYOi3LWCjpslshWly8PXR9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0PdtOCFLSiplusMRFe6Fhiufw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YwslshZOplusqibk1eetI2T9UXew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pXjfxplusLlXAM7DUgbXNpQeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QF4yW93kqPvyrOulRYpLcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LAWAecLsy5PkpwRkljsxdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NNBQNVG00XUhWij7Bllm8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bseVox38UtMty3fG7plusZdKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oVlje7XBXEMdHTSU1shKxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DlNZWbEngCPNNSH8GfLbkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dPA6fWQl7YSUnUBw60FJjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LTuVxzDSHRMwu0j6GnFE3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xw2z7Zi5XwS3AyVS15rTslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7SAXzYQXqbLZBUt4PC5zLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Gs1SW0dH8NAIXb6gpe29eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8BWeWybYAmE6SKbR4Pgplusmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=42ufub685Wo6LYClqBEDZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bplussd7YsX9CyWkf7e1Ttqdw==


4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4259 Employee Assistance Programs

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.5 Military Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4261.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4313.4 Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

4317.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4359 Employee Assistance Programs

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.11 Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.5 Military Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1054

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cd1rmKaJe7NnSMntQghslshjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TVEM59lzcDuhC6ClCbEKDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=70XJPCc0EjfKKD8vbxWM0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z7slshxADXGcvFhr8eKkLIv4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tnv0iplusHA4fCcNG6dQKxkiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vh6AWIuvinCFRFhM33nqQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GZGRxYQ25u4p5LyVW0sEiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2OrqZh3Fplus1wuHUOplusCedJEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8uHplus8BW3Aplus9fCZplusRv3VV6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W2A4g5554Gs4x6ULp50o8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sslshplusgb2t5rDLrf5z6plusmzL9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=A68f8NJYWfjCv2oGaKmIEA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Z6w9xoPdplusuFDZKwXqi5tag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PtSkgb0IJKrb6fBvJiTTlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=S5jmVCrWOTshGRo3crZ76Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4slshofbFClM6ZYMBdElRdz1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MWbE2lOjPyNslshM7Bk6pO78Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uwmZplusPFlNcTplusOatKal9HFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=95hcXIDHpABeawslshulnklgg==


Regulation 4361.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4361.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

Personal leaves granted to district employees shall be used as permitted in law, this administrative regulation, other
Governing Board-approved policy or district regulation, or applicable collective bargaining agreement, or as
otherwise required by law.

For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner.  (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

Bereavement

Employees are entitled to a leave of up to five days upon the death of any member of the employee's immediate
family, as defined in Education Code 44985 and 45194.

"Immediate family" means a parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse of
the employee, and the spouse, domestic partner, child, child-in-law, sibling, or sibling-in-law of the employee, or any
relative living in the immediate household of the employee.  (Education Code 44985, 45194; Government Code
12945.7)

No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary for any authorized paid bereavement leave as specified in
the collective bargaining agreement or as otherwise established by this policy, nor shall such leave be deducted from
any other leave to which the employee is entitled unless requested by the employee.  (Education Code 44985,
45194; Government Code 12945.7)

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Reproductive Loss

Upon request by any employee who has experienced a reproductive loss event, defined as the day or, for a multiple-
day event, the final day of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or an unsuccessful assisted
reproduction, the district shall grant the employee up to five days of reproductive loss leave, to be taken
consecutively or non-consecutively. The employee shall take the leave within three months following the event. If
the employee is on another type of leave at the time of the reproductive loss event, or chooses to take another type
of leave immediately following a reproductive loss event, then the reproductive loss leave shall be completed within
three months of the end date of the other leave.  (Government Code 12945.6)

Reproductive loss leave will be unpaid unless the employee chooses to use vacation, personal leave, accrued and
available sick leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Government Code
12945.6)

Any request or inquiry or information provided by an employee related to reproductive loss leave and/or a
reproductive loss shall remain confidential, except to internal personnel or counsel as necessary or as required by
law.

Personal Necessity

Employees may use a maximum of seven days of accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during each school
year for reasons of personal necessity.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1055



Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the
limits set by bereavement leave provisions  (Education Code 44981, 45207; Government Code 12945.7)
 

2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5 
(Education Code 44981; Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 246.5)

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or
witness under subpoena or other order  (Education Code 45207)

5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee
 

6. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or for which the need is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the
need for the leave as soon as practicable.

After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed district absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

An employee may take time off work in order to:  (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury
 

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the district office when requesting
leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees.  (Education Code 44037)

A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

A certificated employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than as a litigant or to
respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the
connivance or misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's
regular earnings and any witness fees received.  (Education Code 44036)

1056



Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

An employee who is a victim of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of such victim may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial proceedings, if
the crime is any of the following:  (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)
 

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)
 

3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the district attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is advocating on
behalf of the victim.  (Labor Code 230.2)

The district shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of this
leave.  (Labor Code 230.2)

Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or a crime that caused physical injury or
mental injury with a threat of physical injury or an employee whose immediate family member, as defined, is
deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or compensatory time off that is
otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following:  (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee

1057



was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The district shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor Code 230,
230.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor Code
230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by the
district. Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon request. 
(Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to:  (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

2. Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)

In lieu of using vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off, eligible employees may take unpaid leave for this
purpose.

If two or more parents/guardians of a child are employed at the same work site, this leave shall be allowed for the
parent/guardian who first gives notice to the district. Simultaneous absence by another parent/guardian of the child
may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Upon request by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall provide documentation from the school or
licensed child care provider that the employee engaged in permitted child-related activities on a specific date and at
a particular time.  (Labor Code 230.8)

Service on Education Boards and Committees

Upon request, a certificated employee shall be granted up to 20 school days of paid leave per school year for service
performed within the state on any education board, commission, committee, or group authorized by Education Code
44987.3 provided that all of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 44987.3)

1058



1. The service is performed within the state
 

2. The board, commission, organization, or group informs the district in writing of the service
 

3. The board, commission, organization, or group agrees, prior to the service, to reimburse the district, upon the
district's written request, for compensation paid to the employee's substitute and for actual related
administrative costs

Employee Organization Activities

Upon request, any certificated or classified employee shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of
compensation, to serve as an elected officer of a district employee organization or any statewide or national
employee organization with which the employee organization is affiliated. Such leave shall be in addition to any other
leave to which the employee may be entitled by other laws or a memorandum of understanding or collective
bargaining agreement.  (Education Code 44987, 45210)

The leave shall include, but is not limited to, absence for purposes of attending periodic, stated, special, or regular
meetings of the body of the organization on which the employee serves as an officer.  (Education Code 44987,
45210)

Upon request of an employee organization in the district or its state or national affiliate, a reasonable number of
unelected classified employees shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of compensation for the purpose of
attending important organizational activities authorized by the employee organization. The employee organization
shall provide reasonable notification to the Superintendent or designee when requesting a leave of absence for
employees for this purpose.  (Education Code 45210)

When leave is granted for any of the above purposes, the employee organization shall reimburse the district within
10 days after receiving the district's certification of payment of compensation to the employee.  (Education Code
44987, 45210)

Religious Leave

The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three days of leave per year for religious purposes,
provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures, the
neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreasonable hardship on the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall deduct the cost of hiring a substitute, when required, from the wages of the
employee who takes religious leave.

No employee shall be discriminated against for using this leave or any additional days of unpaid leave granted for
religious observances at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.

Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

1059



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the district for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave. Such
leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental entity
authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the district as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave. The
Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the eligibility
of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required certification. 
(Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Resignation and leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.21 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 12945.7 Bereavement leave

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

1060

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 8.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44963.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44981.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44987.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44987.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45190.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45194.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45198.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45207.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EVID&sectionNum=1035.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EVID&sectionNum=1037.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=2.5.&title=&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12945.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4.


Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Leave to attend to family illness

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Industrial Relations

Website California Federation of Teachers

Website California Public Employment Relations Board

Website California School Employees Association

Website California Teachers Association

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4140 Bargaining Units

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

1061

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=234.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=246.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=MVC&sectionNum=395.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=1192.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=667.5.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter28&edition=prelim
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.dir.ca.gov
http://www.cft.org
http://www.perb.ca.gov
http://www.csea.com
http://www.cta.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Qw55wsplusWapreuBu77rJwEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kZSplusmbBylVJaSR8plusKQgNlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mrpWTlJCdlQhpS5HSkDoUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RVZbjPjfC4W6gllnD4ymQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K5plusNkxBiOiChRlPOdbcGUw==


4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4240 Bargaining Units

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4340 Bargaining Units

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1062

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WMpjN4lplusDu94DXaeJrSuvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=alZhT5G6ID73IOslshCDBMSbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ABGqplusKhgcDuxXkEIYU1UslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MNqIgUUBzufYloUrRvTSjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KW5rjYplusprBeWcQPn8Yomcg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wVxslshRdekMcTbV4s13DUmwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WXqVQW7LPYqBPuLYg8AZ5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aXEdBlWzo3nDtSuWv8t4plusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xNOVQzA5zSOsvJsP7gUXplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wg5y2UYUXD2LURoKH3h9pw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rRLuJZ9h5yYat2anOQlslshVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B6CszqMDwx47YVXGfriZLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5113: Absences And ExcusesPolicy 5113: Absences And Excuses Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/18/2018

The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays an important role in student achievement. The Board
shall work with parents/guardians and students to ensure their compliance with all state attendance laws and may
use appropriate legal means to correct problems of chronic absence or truancy.

In accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation, absence from school shall be excused only for
health reasons, family emergencies, and justifiable personal reasons as specified in Education Code 48205, and work
in the entertainment or allied industry as permitted pursuant to Education Code 48225.5.

When a student's absence from school is excused, the student's teacher shall determine identical or reasonably
equivalent assignments and tests to those missed during the absence which the student shall be permitted to
complete for full credit within a reasonable amount of time as determined by the teacher.  (Education Code 48205,
48225.5)

Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school property may be
considered excused subject to law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 46014)

Inasmuch as school attendance and class participation are integral to students' learning experiences,
parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical and other appointments during non-school
hours.

Students shall not be absent from school without their parents/guardians' knowledge or consent, except in cases of
medical emergency or, as authorized pursuant to Education Code 46010.1, for a confidential medical appointment.

The Board shall, by resolution entered into its minutes, approve reasonable methods that may be used to verify
student absences due to illness or quarantine.  (5 CCR 421)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 306 Explanation of absence

5 CCR 420-424 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

Ed. Code 1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance

Ed. Code 37201 School month

Ed. Code 37223 Weekend classes

Ed. Code 41601 Reports of average daily attendance

Ed. Code 42238-42250.1 Apportionments

Ed. Code 46000 Attendance records

Ed. Code 46010-46015 Absences

Ed. Code 46110-46120 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools

Ed. Code 46140-46148 Attendance in junior high and high schools

Ed. Code 48200-48208 Children ages 6-18; compulsory full-time attendance

Ed. Code 48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance

Ed. Code 48225.5 Work permit; excused absence; entertainment or allied industries;
participation in not-for-profit performing arts organization

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1063

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AA66DF24C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AD8EFA04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2ADBFCE34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=1740.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37223.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41601.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=7.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48225.5.


Ed. Code 48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

Ed. Code 48260-48273 Truants

Ed. Code 48292 Filing complaint against parent

Ed. Code 48320-48324 School attendance review boards

Ed. Code 48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade

Ed. Code 49701 Provisions of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunities for
Military Children

Elec. Code 12302 Student participation on precinct boards

Fam. Code 6920-6930 Consent by minor for medical treatment

W&I Code 11253.5 Compulsory school attendance; eligibility for aid

W&I Code 601-601.5 Habitually truant minors

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 244 (1983)

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 168 (2004)

Court Decision American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307

CSBA Publication Seize the Data: Using Chronic Absence Data to Drive Student Engagement,
March 2024

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

1064

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48292.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49067.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49701.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=12302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=11.&title=&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=11253.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=14.
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/Attendance-Brief-2024.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vhtdEjrNCanYul9F3plusVfqg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6xq5Zf0QVJehWNeiplusaVZtA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DD4fplusMEt2Amslshf1ph8uG3plusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o2bICCUQjgzB617bIoHq1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mYkptIN7TU6Gqslsh46Nu7Z6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==


5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131 Conduct

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.33 Head Lice

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5147 Dropout Prevention

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6177 Summer Learning Programs

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1065

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KJNkh53DO3lmSWBW1A5cJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0EqUplus0sAfMHAvzZzIff7IA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UwbZkiRPS6mEhtplusM4aIoiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NdS3ITAmXi5YJxIa2P0nnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O4JwZL8Jiaq0yif6ir40uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SdyzaGyJoEpUuu5V9LggSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t9slshBl67vvB3M3ZfhIHmPAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8C93wExGD9cMe16x45plusMzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WJglWMmeslsh2plusVnA7eSoba4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p7pITslshO70EPWm6bslshJ06Ldw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yb0tAplusotzAvMSWz7HdlHHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hqoWWN0aSNwSBq1E1JVEhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==


Regulation 5113: Absences And ExcusesRegulation 5113: Absences And Excuses Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/21/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 05/19/2022

Excused Absences

Subject to any applicable limitation, condition, or other requirement specified in law, a student's absence shall be
excused for any of the following reasons:

1. Personal illness, including absence for the benefit of the student's mental or behavioral health  (Education Code
48205)
 

2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer  (Education Code 48205)
 

3. Medical, dental, optometrical, or chiropractic service or appointment  (Education Code 48205)

4. Attendance at funeral services for or grieving the death of a member of the student's immediate family or, as
determined by the student's parent/guardian, a person so closely associated with the student as to be
considered the student's immediate family  (Education Code 48205)

A student may be excused for this reason for up to five days for each incident.  (Education Code 48205)
 

5. Jury duty in the manner provided for by law  (Education Code 48205)

6. Illness or medical appointment of a child to whom the student is the custodial parent  (Education Code 48205)
 

7. Upon advance written request by the parent/guardian and the approval of the principal or designee, justifiable
personal reasons including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 48205)
 

a. Attendance or appearance in court
 

b. Attendance at a funeral service
 

c. Observance of a religious holiday or ceremony

d. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than one school day each semester
 

e. Attendance at an employment conference
 

f. Attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process offered by a nonprofit
organization
 

8. Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12302 (Education Code
48205)
 

9. To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the uniformed services, as
defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for deployment to a combat zone or a combat
support position or is on leave from or has immediately returned from such deployment  (Education Code
48205)

Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the Superintendent or
designee.  (Education Code 48205)
 

10. Attendance at the student's naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen (Education Code
48205)
 

11. Participation in a cultural ceremony or event which relates to the habits, practices, beliefs, and traditions of a
certain group of people  (Education Code 48205)
 

12. For a middle school or high school student, engagement in a civic or political event, provided that the student

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1066



notifies the school ahead of the absence  (Education Code 48205)
 
Unless otherwise permitted by the Superintendent or designee, students shall be limited to one such school
day-long absence each school year  (Education Code 48205)

13. When a student's immediate family member or, as determined by the student's parent/guardian, a person so
closely associated with the student as to be considered the student's immediate family has died:  (Education
Code 48205)
 

a.     To access services from a victim services organization or agency
 

b.     To access grief support services
 

c.    To participate in safety planning or take other actions, including, but not limited to, temporary or
permanent relocation, to increase the safety of the student, an immediate family member of the student,
or a person determined by the student's parent/guardian to be in such close association with the student
as to be considered immediate family.

Such absence shall be excused for not more than three days for each incident.  (Education Code 48205)

14. Participation in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at the student's place of
worship or other suitable place away from school property as designated by the religious group, church, or
denomination  (Education Code 46014)

Absence for student participation in religious exercises or instruction shall not be considered an absence for
the purpose of computing average daily attendance if the student attends at least the minimum school day as
specified in Administrative Regulation 6112 - School Day, and is not excused from school for this purpose on
more than four days each school month.  (Education Code 46014)
 

15. For a student who holds a work permit authorizing work in the entertainment or allied industries for a period
of not more than five consecutive days, work in such industry  (Education Code 48225.5)

For this purpose, student absence shall be excused for a maximum of up to five absences each school year. 
(Education Code 48225.5)"
 

16. Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public school audience 
(Education Code 48225.5)

A student may be excused for up to five such absences each school year provided that the student's
parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the school.  (Education Code 48225.5)
 

17. Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the student's specific
circumstances  (Education Code 48205, 48260)

For the purpose of the absences described above, immediate family means the student's parent/guardian, sibling,
grandparent, or any other relative living in the student's household.  (Education Code 48205)

Method of Verification

Student absence to care for a child for whom the student is the custodial parent shall not require a physician's note. 
(Education Code 48205)

For other absences, the student shall, upon returning to school following the absence, present a satisfactory
explanation, either in person or by written note, verifying the reason for the absence. Absences shall be verified by
the student's parent/guardian, other person having charge or control of the student, or the student if age 18 or
older.  (Education Code 46012; 5 CCR 306)

When an absence is planned, the principal or designee shall be notified prior to the date of the absence when
possible.

The following methods may be used to verify student absences:

1067



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

1. Written, digital, or audio message from parent/guardian or parent representative
 

2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's parent/guardian or
parent representative

The employee shall subsequently record the following:
 

a. Name of student
 

b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative
 

c. Name of verifying employee
 

d. Date(s) of absence
 

e. Reason for absence
 

3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method which establishes the
fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated

The employee shall document the verification and include the information specified in Item #2 above.
 

4. Physician's verification

a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such appointments, district staff
shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may request a note from the medical office to
confirm the time of the appointment

b. If a student shows a pattern of chronic absenteeism due to illness, district staff may require physician
verification of any further student absences

Parental Notifications

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to participate in religious
exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places of worship, or at other suitable places
away from school property designated by a religious group, church, or denomination  (Education Code 46014,
48980)

2. Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students enrolled in the district that school
authorities may excuse any student from school to obtain confidential medical services without the consent of
the student's parent/guardian  (Education Code 46010.1)
 

3. Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have a grade reduced or lose academic credit for any excused
absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be provided are satisfactorily completed within a
reasonable period of time  (Education Code 48980)

Such notice shall include the full text of Education Code 48205.  (Education Code 48980)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 306 Explanation of absence

5 CCR 420-424 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

Ed. Code 1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance

1068

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AA66DF24C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AD8EFA04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2ADBFCE34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=1740.


Ed. Code 37201 School month

Ed. Code 37223 Weekend classes

Ed. Code 41601 Reports of average daily attendance

Ed. Code 42238-42250.1 Apportionments

Ed. Code 46000 Attendance records

Ed. Code 46010-46015 Absences

Ed. Code 46110-46120 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools

Ed. Code 46140-46148 Attendance in junior high and high schools

Ed. Code 48200-48208 Children ages 6-18; compulsory full-time attendance

Ed. Code 48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance

Ed. Code 48225.5 Work permit; excused absence; entertainment or allied industries;
participation in not-for-profit performing arts organization

Ed. Code 48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

Ed. Code 48260-48273 Truants

Ed. Code 48292 Filing complaint against parent

Ed. Code 48320-48324 School attendance review boards

Ed. Code 48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade

Ed. Code 49701 Provisions of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunities for
Military Children

Elec. Code 12302 Student participation on precinct boards

Fam. Code 6920-6930 Consent by minor for medical treatment

W&I Code 11253.5 Compulsory school attendance; eligibility for aid

W&I Code 601-601.5 Habitually truant minors

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 244 (1983)

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 168 (2004)

Court Decision American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307

CSBA Publication Seize the Data: Using Chronic Absence Data to Drive Student Engagement,
March 2024

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4119.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

4219.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

1069

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37223.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41601.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=7.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=1.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=26.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48225.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48292.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49067.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49701.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=12302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=11.&title=&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=11253.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=14.
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/Attendance-Brief-2024.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kry9krHZhxKMeuoGiQrWSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oLCueZ7YB9PgOVrvAJUZaA==


4319.41 Employees With Infectious Disease

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5131 Conduct

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.33 Head Lice

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5147 Dropout Prevention

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1070

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwUaslshiCL8ok4Z46uwQslshhcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vhtdEjrNCanYul9F3plusVfqg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6xq5Zf0QVJehWNeiplusaVZtA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DD4fplusMEt2Amslshf1ph8uG3plusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o2bICCUQjgzB617bIoHq1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mYkptIN7TU6Gqslsh46Nu7Z6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KJNkh53DO3lmSWBW1A5cJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0EqUplus0sAfMHAvzZzIff7IA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UwbZkiRPS6mEhtplusM4aIoiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NdS3ITAmXi5YJxIa2P0nnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O4JwZL8Jiaq0yif6ir40uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SdyzaGyJoEpUuu5V9LggSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t9slshBl67vvB3M3ZfhIHmPAw==


6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6173.2 Education Of Children Of Military Families

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6177 Summer Learning Programs

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1071

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8C93wExGD9cMe16x45plusMzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WJglWMmeslsh2plusVnA7eSoba4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p7pITslshO70EPWm6bslshJ06Ldw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yb0tAplusotzAvMSWz7HdlHHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hqoWWN0aSNwSBq1E1JVEhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==


Policy 5126: Awards For AchievementPolicy 5126: Awards For Achievement Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 03/11/2021

The Governing Board encourages excellence as a goal for all students and wishes to publicly recognize students for
exemplary achievement in academic, artistic, extracurricular, athletic, and community service activities.

No fee or other cost shall be charged to any student in relation to any requirements in qualifying for or receiving any
district achievement awards.

District/School Awards

Student awards may include verbal recognition, a letter, a certificate, a Board resolution, public ceremony, trophy,
gift, plaque, or monetary gift. The Board shall establish a budget for this purpose.  (Education Code 44015)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop criteria for the selection of student award recipients.

Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

At graduation from high school, students whose academic achievements in core curriculum areas have been
outstanding shall receive special recognition.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify graduating high school students who have demonstrated mastery of
the high school curriculum qualifying them for the Golden State Seal Merit Diploma.  (Education Code 51454)

State Seal of Biliteracy

The district shall present the State Seal of Biliteracy to each graduating high school student who has attained a high
level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing in one or more languages in addition to English, as specified in
the accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 51460-51464).

District Awards for Biliteracy

In order to affirm the value of bilingualism and encourage students' enrollment in world language programs, the
Superintendent or designee may present awards at appropriate grade levels to recognize the pursuit and/or
attainment of grade-level proficiency in one or more languages in addition to English. The Superintendent or
designee may also present awards to English learners who are reclassified as fluent English proficient to recognize
proficiency in both English and the student's native language.

State Seal of Civic Engagement

The Superintendent or designee shall present the State Seal of Civic Engagement to each 11th or 12th grade student
who demonstrates excellence in civics education and participation and has demonstrated an understanding of the
U.S. Constitution, the California Constitution, and the democratic system of government.  (Education Code 51470-
51475)

All district students shall be afforded the opportunity to earn the State Seal of Civic Engagement, regardless of their
background, communities, or experiences. No student shall be denied such opportunity based on academic ability,
alternative school setting, or unique or unconventional expression of civic engagement.

Scholarship and Loan Fund

The Board shall establish and maintain a scholarship and loan fund which shall be used to provide interest-free loans

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1072



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

for educational advancement, scholarship, and/or grants-in-aid to bona fide organizations, students, or graduates of
district schools.  (Education Code 35310, 35315)

The district's scholarship and loan fund shall be administered by a district committee composed of Board members,
the Superintendent, and such other community, staff, administrative, and/or student representatives as determined
by the Board.  (Education Code 35310)

The Board shall select its own representatives to the committee. Staff, community, and/or student representatives
shall be selected by the Superintendent. Members of this committee shall serve two-year terms.

The committee may accept gifts, donations, and bequests made for the purposes of the fund and may prescribe
conditions or restrictions on these gifts and bequests. If the donor imposes any conditions, the committee shall
review the conditions and make a recommendation to the Board as to the compatibility of such conditions with the
intent and purpose of the fund. The Board may prohibit the committee from accepting any donation under
conditions it finds incompatible with the fund's intents and purposes as specified in Board Policy 3290 - Gifts, Grants
and Requests.  (Education Code 35313)

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board at least annually regarding the status and activity of the
fund.  (Education Code 35319)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11517.6-11519.5 English Language Proficiency Assessments for California

5 CCR 1632 Alternative credits toward graduation for foreign language instruction in
private school

5 CCR 876 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 35160 Authority of governing boards

Ed. Code 35310-35319 Scholarship and loan funds

Ed. Code 44015 Awards to employees and students

Ed. Code 51007 Equitable access to programs designed to strengthen technological skills

Ed. Code 51243-51245 Credit for private school foreign language instruction

Ed. Code 51450-51455 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

Ed. Code 51460-51464 State Seal of Biliteracy

Ed. Code 51470-51475 State Seal of Civic Engagement

Ed. Code 52164.1 Assessment of English language skills of English learners

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication State Seal of Biliteracy FAQs

California Department of Education Publication SSCE Implementation Guidance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Californians Together

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

1073

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2FB746244C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2E0550634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35160.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=12.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51007.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=3.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=3.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=3.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.californianstogether.org
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov


Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

1150 Commendations And Awards

1150 Commendations And Awards

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1260 Educational Foundation

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5127 Graduation Ceremonies And Activities

5137 Positive School Climate

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

1074

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfMwJytzFNKXN79UzPcGYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jPlUF2ZHeJmsqtehTdriHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aoGjeZzurgQksdI4JplusPezw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HnJoKJUR6n3f2KEiQLplusLNw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HI0jTdSLSPDgxNej5RvpcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SQP1boTqlkYy9HP0Z2OxXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F2w88plushKfZ45jRBB3dqhfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7UhHYplus1alK4VqcUSRo9HFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LBnwh6896SKjJpplusW0YEM7Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mYkptIN7TU6Gqslsh46Nu7Z6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8i6dKOPYvslshCCaS8T7F78LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3j4F45slshslshWoxueEERslshXnhiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LLhFQhntSGslshyJ4Ll2roQYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2POP9cLgiU1RnPgeV9VGTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qtpJdLaAkn6TtcU1DmuplusrA==


6174 Education For English Learners

6174 Education For English Learners

6174-E PDF(1) Education For English Learners - Education For English Language Learners

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

9140 Board Representatives

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1075

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=82plus7ckd4CjHLPDQ3NpWyhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjdlRrILOQDZwoAaCHcEzQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jc3sBdcMzLxCvrGjyQjmgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4C5xwe76bfoCibvslshg8h7HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HBBf4ROJSOTs0gBwLgecsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hqoWWN0aSNwSBq1E1JVEhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HCG9nKCHCc5ct1S1fXbTSQ==


Regulation 5126: Awards For AchievementRegulation 5126: Awards For Achievement Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Superintendent or designee may appoint an awards committee at each school which may consist of school
administrators, staff members, parents/guardians, community members, and student representatives. The committee
shall submit recommendations for student awards to the Superintendent or designee for approval.

Individual awards in excess of $200 must be expressly approved by the Governing Board.  (Education Code 44015)

Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

To be eligible to receive the Golden State Seal Merit Diploma upon graduation from high school, a student shall
complete all requirements for a high school diploma and shall demonstrate mastery of the curriculum in mathematics,
English language arts, science, U.S. history, and two other subject matter areas selected by the student by meeting at
least one of the following criteria for each subject:  (Education Code 51451, 51452; 5 CCR 876)

1. Mathematics and English language arts
 

a. A grade of at least B+ or the numerical equivalent in a single course each semester completed in grade 9,
10, or 11
 

b. An achievement level of "Standard Met" or above for the high school Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment
 

2. Science
 

a. A grade of at least B+ or the numerical equivalent in a single course each semester completed in grade 9,
10, or 11
 

b. An achievement level of "Standard Met" or above for the high school California Science Test taken in
grade 10 or 11
 

3. U.S. history
 

a. A grade of at least B or the numerical equivalent in the required U.S. history course each semester
 

b. A qualifying score that demonstrates mastery of the subject as determined by the district for an exam
produced by a private provider or the district
 

4. Two additional subject areas of the student's choosing
 

a. Any additional qualifying grade or score listed above, earned for the subject of English language arts,
mathematics, science, or U.S. history not already used to meet eligibility
 

b. A grade of at least B or the numerical equivalent upon completion of high school courses in other
subjects
 

c. A qualifying score that demonstrates mastery of other subjects, as determined by the district, for an
exam produced by a private provider or the district

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify students who have earned the Golden
State Seal Merit Diploma and shall affix an insignia to the high school diploma and transcript of each such student.
 (Education Code 51454)

The Superintendent or designee shall submit an insignia request form to the California Department of Education in
sufficient time to allow for processing of the request prior to the high school graduation ceremony.

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1076



State Seal of Biliteracy

To be eligible to receive the State Seal of Biliteracy upon graduation, a student shall demonstrate a high level of
proficiency in English and at least one other language, which may include American Sign Language.  (Education Code
51461)

Proficiency in English shall be demonstrated by meeting one of the following state-established criteria:  (Education
Code 51461)

1. Completion of all English language arts requirements for graduation with an overall grade point average of at
least 3.0 in those classes or completion of one or more English language arts courses at a public higher
education institution or an independent institution of higher education, as described in Education Code 66010,
with a grade equivalent to a grade point average of 3.0 or above
 

2. Passage of the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress for English language arts, or any
successor test, administered in grade 11, at or above the "Standard Met" achievement level
 

3. Passage of an English Advanced Placement (AP) exam with a score of 3 or higher or an English International
Baccalaureate (IB) exam with a score of 4 or higher
 

4. Achievement of a score of 480 or higher on the Evidence-Based Reading and Writing section of the Scholastic
Aptitude Test (SAT)

Proficiency in one or more languages other than English shall be demonstrated through one of the following
requirements:  (Education Code 51461)

1. Passage of a world language AP exam with a score of 3 or higher, a world language IB exam with a score of 4
or higher, or a world language American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages (ACTFL) Writing
Proficiency Test (WPT) and an Oral Proficiency Interview (OPI) with scores of Intermediate Mid or higher
 

2. Successful completion of a four-year course of study of content in a world language at a high school or higher
level, attaining an overall grade point average of at least 3.0 in that course of study, and oral proficiency in the
language comparable to that required in Item #1 above, successful completion of high school level courses
completed in another country in a language other than English with the equivalent of an overall grade point
average of 3.0 or above, as verified through a transcript, or completion of one or more world language courses
at a public higher education institution or an independent institution of higher education as described in
Education Code 66010, with a grade equivalent to a grade point average of at least 3.0 and oral proficiency in
the language comparable to that specified in Item #1 above, as verified through a transcript
 

3. If no AP exam or off-the-shelf language test exists, passage of a district language exam that can be certified to
meet the rigor of a four-year high school course of study in a given language, and that, at a minimum, assesses
speaking, reading, and writing in a language other than English at the proficient level or higher
 

4. If a language is not characterized by listening, speaking, or reading, or for which there is no written system,
passage of an assessment on the modalities that characterize communication in that language at the proficient
level or higher

To be eligible to receive the State Seal of Biliteracy, a student who is an English learner shall, in addition to
demonstrating proficiency in English and one or more languages other than English through one of the
accomplishments specified above, attain an Oral Language composite score of level 4 on the English Language
Proficiency Assessments for California, or any successor English oral language proficiency assessment.  (Education
Code 51461)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify high school students who have earned
the State Seal of Biliteracy and shall affix the insignia to the high school diploma or transcript of each such student.
 (Education Code 51463)

State Seal of Civic Engagement

1077



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

To be eligible to receive the State Seal of Civic Engagement, a student shall meet district requirements for all of the
following state-established criteria:

1. Be engaged in academic work in a productive way
 

2. Demonstrate a competent understanding of U.S. and California Constitutions, functions and governance of
local governments, tribal government structures and organizations, the role of the citizen in a constitutional
democracy, and democratic principles, concepts, and processes
 

3. Participate in one or more informed civic engagement project(s) that address real-world problems and require
students to identify and inquire into civic needs or problems, consider varied responses, take action, and reflect
on efforts
 

4. Demonstrate civic knowledge, skills, and dispositions through self-reflection
 

5. Exhibit character traits that reflect civic-mindedness and a commitment to positively impact the classroom,
school, community and/or society

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify students who have earned the State
Seal of Civic Engagement and shall affix the insignia to the high school diploma or transcript of each such student.
 (Education Code 51473)

Scholarship and Loan Fund

The Superintendent shall serve as chief executive officer of the scholarship and loan fund and as chairperson of the
district committee established to administer the fund. The committee shall meet at least once each fiscal year and at
other such times as it may be called into session by the Superintendent.  (Education Code 35311, 35312)

Scholarship and loan funds shall be deposited, administered, and audited in accordance with Education Code 35314
and 35318.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish criteria, procedures, and deadlines for student applications for
scholarships and/or loans from the fund. As applicable, the Superintendent or designee may require the student to
submit letters of recommendation or other supplementary materials providing evidence of the student's
accomplishments and/or need.

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall annually distribute information about eligibility requirements for the Golden
State Seal Merit Diploma, State Seal of Biliteracy, State Seal of Civic Engagement, and/or any district awards
programs to students at the applicable grade levels.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11517.6-11519.5 English Language Proficiency Assessments for California

5 CCR 1632 Alternative credits toward graduation for foreign language instruction in
private school

5 CCR 876 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 35160 Authority of governing boards

Ed. Code 35310-35319 Scholarship and loan funds

1078

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2FB746244C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2E0550634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35160.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=12.


Ed. Code 44015 Awards to employees and students

Ed. Code 51007 Equitable access to programs designed to strengthen technological skills

Ed. Code 51243-51245 Credit for private school foreign language instruction

Ed. Code 51450-51455 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

Ed. Code 51460-51464 State Seal of Biliteracy

Ed. Code 51470-51475 State Seal of Civic Engagement

Ed. Code 52164.1 Assessment of English language skills of English learners

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication State Seal of Biliteracy FAQs

California Department of Education Publication SSCE Implementation Guidance

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Californians Together

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

1150 Commendations And Awards

1150 Commendations And Awards

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1260 Educational Foundation

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5125 Student Records

1079

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51007.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=3.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=3.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=3.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.californianstogether.org
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfMwJytzFNKXN79UzPcGYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jPlUF2ZHeJmsqtehTdriHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aoGjeZzurgQksdI4JplusPezw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HnJoKJUR6n3f2KEiQLplusLNw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HI0jTdSLSPDgxNej5RvpcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SQP1boTqlkYy9HP0Z2OxXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F2w88plushKfZ45jRBB3dqhfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7UhHYplus1alK4VqcUSRo9HFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LBnwh6896SKjJpplusW0YEM7Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mYkptIN7TU6Gqslsh46Nu7Z6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==


5125 Student Records

5127 Graduation Ceremonies And Activities

5137 Positive School Climate

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6174 Education For English Learners

6174 Education For English Learners

6174-E PDF(1) Education For English Learners - Education For English Language Learners

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

9140 Board Representatives

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1080

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8i6dKOPYvslshCCaS8T7F78LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3j4F45slshslshWoxueEERslshXnhiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LLhFQhntSGslshyJ4Ll2roQYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2POP9cLgiU1RnPgeV9VGTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qtpJdLaAkn6TtcU1DmuplusrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=82plus7ckd4CjHLPDQ3NpWyhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjdlRrILOQDZwoAaCHcEzQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jc3sBdcMzLxCvrGjyQjmgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4C5xwe76bfoCibvslshg8h7HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HBBf4ROJSOTs0gBwLgecsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hqoWWN0aSNwSBq1E1JVEhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HCG9nKCHCc5ct1S1fXbTSQ==


Policy 5141.21: Administering Medication And Monitoring Health ConditionsPolicy 5141.21: Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board believes that regular school attendance is critical to student learning and that students who
need to take medication prescribed or ordered for them by their authorized health care providers should be able to
participate in the educational program.

Any medication prescribed for a student with a disability who is qualified to receive services under the Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 shall be administered in accordance
with the student's individualized education program or Section 504 services plan, as applicable.

For the administration of medication to other students during school or school-related activities, the Superintendent
or designee shall develop protocols which shall include options for allowing parents/guardians to administer
medication to their child at school, designate other individuals to do so on their behalf, and, with the student's
authorized health care provider's approval, request the district's permission for the student to self-administer a
medication or self-monitor and/or self-test for a medical condition. Such processes shall be implemented in a manner
that preserves campus security, minimizes instructional interruptions, and promotes student safety and privacy.

The Superintendent or designee shall make epinephrine auto-injectors available at each school for providing
emergency medical aid to any person suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from an anaphylactic reaction.
 (Education Code 49414)

In accordance with law, the Superintendent or designee may make naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid
antagonist and stock albuterol inhalers available at each school for providing emergency medical aid to any person
suffering or reasonably believed to be suffering from opioid overdose or respiratory distress.  (Education Code
49414.3, 49414.7)

OPTION 1:  The parent/guardian of a student who is a qualified patient pursuant to Health and Safety Code
11362.7-11362.85 may administer medicinal cannabis, excluding medicinal cannabis or cannabis products in a
smokeable or vapeable form, to the student at a school site. School personnel are not authorized to administer
medicinal cannabis to a student.  (Education Code 49414.1)

Before administering medicinal cannabis at a school site, the parent/guardian shall provide to the principal or
designee a valid written medical recommendation for the student to be given medicinal cannabis, which shall be kept
on file at the school. The parent/guardian shall sign in at the school site before administering the medication, and
shall not administer the medication in a manner that disrupts the educational environment or exposes other students.
After the parent/guardian administers the medication, the parent/guardian shall remove any remaining medicinal
cannabis from the school site.  (Education Code 49414.1)

END OF OPTION 1

OPTION 2:  Because of the conflict between state and federal law regarding the legality of medicinal cannabis, the
Board prohibits the administration of medicinal cannabis to students on school grounds by parents/guardians or
school personnel.

END OF OPTION 2

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with city and county emergency responders, including local public
health administrators, to design procedures or measures for addressing an emergency such as a public disaster or
epidemic.

Administration of Medication by School Personnel

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1081



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

When allowed by law, medication prescribed to a student by an authorized health care provider may be administered
by a school nurse or, when a school nurse or other medically licensed person is unavailable and the physician has
authorized administration of medication by unlicensed personnel for a particular student, by other designated school
personnel with appropriate training. School nurses and other designated school personnel shall administer
medications to students in accordance with law, Board policy, administrative regulation, and, as applicable, the
written statement provided by the student's parent/guardian and authorized health care provider. Such personnel
shall be afforded appropriate liability protection.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school personnel designated to administer any medication receive
appropriate training and, as necessary, retraining from qualified medical personnel before any medication is
administered. At a minimum, the training shall cover how and when such medication should be administered, the
recognition of symptoms and treatment, emergency follow-up procedures, and the proper documentation and
storage of medication. Such trained, unlicensed designated school personnel shall be supervised by, and provided
with immediate communication access to, a school nurse, physician, or other appropriate individual.

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain documentation of the training and ongoing supervision, as well as
annual written verification of competency of other designated school personnel.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 600-611 Administering medication to students

Bus. Code 2700-2837 Nursing

Bus. Code 3500-3546 Physician assistants

Bus. Code 4119.2 Acquisition of epinephrine auto-injectors

Bus. Code 4119.8 Acquisition of naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49407 Liability for treatment

Ed. Code 49408 Student emergency information

Ed. Code 49414 Emergency epinephrine auto-injectors

Ed. Code 49414.3 Emergency medical assistance; administration of medication for opioid
overdose

Ed. Code 49414.4 Opioid Misuse

Ed. Code 49414.5 Providing school personnel with voluntary emergency training

Ed. Code 49414.7 Administration of albuterol inhalers

Ed. Code 49414.8 Funding for emergency opioid antagonists; requirements

Ed. Code 49422-49427 Employment of medical personnel

Ed. Code 49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student

Ed. Code 49423.1 Inhaled asthma medication

Ed. Code 49426.5 Licensed vocational nurses

Ed. Code 49468-49468.5 The Seizure Safe Schools Act

Ed. Code 49480 Continuing medication regimen; notice

H&S 1799.113 Opioid overdose treatment

H&S Code 11362.7-11362.85 Medicinal cannabis

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

1082

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2B7EA5804C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2B8164A34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=2.&chapter=6.&lawCode=BPC&article=1.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&division=2.&title=&part=&chapter=7.7.&article=1.&goUp=Y
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=4119.2.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=4119.8.&lawCode=BPC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49407.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49408.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49423.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49423.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49426.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=4.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49480.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1799.113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.&title=&part=&chapter=6.&article=2.5.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim


21 USC 812 Schedule of controlled substances

21 USC 844 Penalties for possession of controlled substance

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 99.30 Conditions under which prior written consent is required to disclose
information

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

American Diabetes Association Publication Legal Advisory on Rights of Students with Diabetes in California's K-12
Public Schools, August 2007

American Diabetes Association Publication Program Advisory on Medication Administration, 2005

American Diabetes Association Publication Glucagon Training Standards for School Personnel: Providing Emergency
Medical Assistance to Pupils with Diabetes, May 2006

Court Decision American Nurses Association v. Torlakson (2013) 57 Cal.4th 570

National Diabetes Education Program Publication Helping the Student with Diabetes Succeed: A Guide for School Personnel,
June 2003

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National Diabetes Education Program

Website U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, National Heart, Lung, and
Blood Institute

Website American Diabetes Association

Website California Department of Education, Health Services and School Nursing

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Public Health

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E(2) Employee Notifications

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4119.43 Universal Precautions

4131 Staff Development

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4219.43 Universal Precautions

4219.43 Universal Precautions

1083

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:21 section:812 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title21-section812)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:21 section:844 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title21-section844)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-D/section-99.30
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ndep.nih.gov
http://www.nhlbi.nih.gov/health/public/lung/index.htm#asthma
http://www.diabetes.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cdph.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NUTS60cEg180MpkgLJZZjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ggjJXRC9p1bJNpnhZIRBGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OmzfrBuH8jMVpfOaSWLOpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ib0uQdCJ1h1RI4uoX4yxkw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq9PeZK6XslshNwr0m2hGnplusJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YYKtjxnV3HnJNE2Zuius1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xXAwwoLLLavROqVslshXyTGBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kDJNED5UiNE3U0ReThoplusZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OjpAZwT9THNJlgPUplus5vO5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=12qV6tycrXo9HNuLpH90kQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CTpzOcgFAslshQf4qIfH9GQQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=01iBWZgslshFOkGXoPdGlRQ0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=b5073jGjLtBkgfQhejPK2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xJHLRhLqMYNslshyZx0bFr2Uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o47swslsh41hGKZtYJDrOJplusIg==


4231 Staff Development

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(2) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E PDF(3) Employee Notifications

4312.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4319.43 Universal Precautions

4319.43 Universal Precautions

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.23 Asthma Management

5141.23 Asthma Management

5141.24 Specialized Health Care Services

5141.27 Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs

5141.27 Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1084

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jHOCL1wBE5NLVHoYJaplusJ3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0GZKB5K4JXxXXadEIhY8kA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DRA0BvTINirpmRhHs3ZJjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6duDJ0dTMCljCReeY0ARQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eplusWYjnqIYslsh4LmwMzwU8HlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3tXfWBKZ4FL0ifslshxNQTlBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusXQRxDeWslshMHzl9Q7DNslshOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1plusOKOaJVgOwqplustOfbTtRcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=deyOslshslshWxrJvIA6plusATGGJpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eq8nvIslsh3JYCGK397IJhLbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W7qwTtHWcoMkNC68Fd7P2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ug4Z97ZI2jJdt0YCCVpaTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DenKSXvbdKslshBbdCoOtkX1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s47ZdhokZ9fdsUI0sXpQOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6Ue2dBIk9slshSn46mJXOe5Qw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LtSmhwplusgoONDUwykFKTlJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==


6163.2 Animals At School

6163.2 Animals At School

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1085

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fFrVymEplusoeGPig6FOBtGtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aLTplustWg5VbV7slshZj1ZzPJnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Khpw3dD4JKBXlwslshwtrOOww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P5IwtJJxCesc5RlIXoplusz8A==


Policy 5144: DisciplinePolicy 5144: Discipline Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/21/2019

The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive school environment which is
conducive to student learning and achievement and desires to prepare students for responsible citizenship by
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior,
use of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention and support, and
parent/guardian involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that exclude students from instruction
as a means for correcting student misbehavior.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop effective, age-appropriate strategies for maintaining a positive school
climate and responding appropriately to student misbehavior at district schools. The strategies shall focus on
providing students with needed supports; communicating clear, appropriate, and consistent expectations and
consequences for student conduct; and ensuring equity and continuous improvement in the implementation of
district discipline policies and practices.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee's strategies for responding to student misconduct shall reflect the
Board's preference for the use of positive interventions and alternative disciplinary measures over exclusionary
discipline measures.

Disciplinary measures that may result in loss of instructional time or cause students to be disengaged from school,
such as detention, suspension, and expulsion, shall be imposed only when required or permitted by law or when
other means of correction have been documented to have failed.  (Education Code 48900.5)

School personnel and volunteers shall not allow any disciplinary action taken against a student to result in the denial
or delay of a school meal.  (Education Code 49557.5)

A student shall not be denied recess unless the student's participation poses an immediate threat to the physical
safety of the student or to the physical safety of one or more of the student's peers. If, due to such immediate threat,
a student is denied recess, staff shall make all reasonable efforts to resolve the threat and minimize the student's
exclusion from recess, to the greatest extent practicable.  (Education Code 49056)

Seclusion and behavioral restraint are prohibited as a means of discipline and shall not be used to correct student
behavior except as permitted pursuant to Education Code 49005.4 and in accordance with district regulations.
 (Education Code 49005.2)

The Superintendent or designee shall create a model discipline matrix that lists violations and the consequences for
each as allowed by law.

The principal or designee at each school may develop disciplinary rules to meet the school's particular needs
consistent with law, Board policy, and administrative regulations. The Board, at an open meeting, may review the
approved school discipline rules for consistency with Board policy and state law. Site-level disciplinary rules shall be
included in the district's comprehensive safety plan.  (Education Code 32282, 35291.5)

At all times, the safety of students and staff, providing interventions and supports to students, as well as the
maintenance of an orderly school environment, shall be priorities in determining appropriate discipline. When
misconduct occurs, staff shall attempt to identify the causes of the student's behavior and implement appropriate
support and/or discipline. When choosing between different disciplinary strategies, staff shall consider the effect of
each option on the student's health, well-being, and opportunity to learn.

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules fairly, consistently, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination
policies.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as necessary to assist staff in developing the
skills needed to effectively and equitably implement the disciplinary strategies adopted for district schools, including,

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1086



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

but not limited to, knowledge of school and classroom management skills and their consistent application, effective
accountability and positive intervention techniques, and the tools to form strong, cooperative relationships with
parents/guardians.

District goals for improving school climate, based on suspension and expulsion rates, surveys of students, staff, and
parents/guardians regarding their sense of school safety and connectedness to the school community, and other
local measures, shall be included in the district's local control and accountability plan, as required by law.

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee may report to the Board regarding disciplinary
strategies used in district schools in the immediately preceding school year and their effect on student learning.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 307 Participation in school activities until departure of bus

5 CCR 353 Detention after school

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 35146 Closed sessions

Ed. Code 35291-35291.5 Rules

Ed. Code 35291.5 School-adopted discipline rules

Ed. Code 37223 Weekend classes

Ed. Code 48900-48926 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 48980-48985 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49055 Restorative justice practices

Ed. Code 49056 Prohibition of denial of recess

Ed. Code 49330-49335 Injurious objects

Ed. Code 49414.4 Opioid misuse; alternative to referral to law enforcement

Ed. Code 49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Dept of Education Program Advisories Classroom Management: A California Resource Guide for Teachers and
Administrators of Elementary and Secondary Schools, 2000

CSBA Publication The Case for Reducing Out-of-School Suspensions and Expulsions, Fact
Sheet, April 2014

CSBA Publication Recent Legislation on Discipline: AB 240, Fact Sheet, March 2015

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

1087

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AA8B7E34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AB254D34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35146.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37223.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=5.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49056.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=8.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx


CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender
and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

CSBA Publication Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity During the School Day, Fact
Sheet, November 2009

Fix School Discipline Project Sample alternative discipline policy

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Resource on Confronting Racial Discrimination in Student Discipline

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication
Fact Sheet: Supporting Students with Disabilities and Avoiding the
Discriminatory Use of Student Discipline under Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School
Discipline, January 2014

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Public Counsel

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.21 Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.31 School Resource Officers

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

1088

https://www.csba.org/~/media/E68E16A652D34EADA2BFDCD9668B1C8F.ashx
http://fixschooldiscipline.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/Sample-Alternative-Discipline-Policy.docx
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/504-discipline-factsheet.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fixschooldiscipline.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DIR3sZboSffLXoUbxPXAKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KoRdrhJNNdVhpluseUGrkchLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oPeODeNCvU9cici9pMyFbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ehmq9dbHwXplusV0W1Jdk27cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==


4131 Staff Development

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5030 Student Wellness

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5127 Graduation Ceremonies And Activities

5131 Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5131.5 Vandalism And Graffiti

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.9 Academic Honesty

5132 Dress And Grooming

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1089

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vhtdEjrNCanYul9F3plusVfqg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6xq5Zf0QVJehWNeiplusaVZtA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DD4fplusMEt2Amslshf1ph8uG3plusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=E65U6rNct0PCh5TzyFTxjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8i6dKOPYvslshCCaS8T7F78LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HJuQKpmoNTr4oeBccYQKsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HsaEmIJcZWrk7Q18AdtTEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nUpUy9jBqheu6n36kZNR4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FslshwKS842o9nZiIxwbe6Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1plusOKOaJVgOwqplustOfbTtRcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=deyOslshslshWxrJvIA6plusATGGJpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Rt3BPTWz2ERSB2pqbWFUYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAZA7cjtBsmbuplusVcEzF6ig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QmFgz4YASgplusjslshwaOB0eEhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==


5132 Dress And Grooming

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5142 Safety

5142 Safety

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153-E PDF(1) School-Sponsored Trips

6159.4 Behavioral Interventions For Special Education Students

6162.54 Test Integrity/Test Preparation

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1090

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jVYr1cMfodNAUjLaAjdfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4iU90Q8AxOTW0b1K0bqs4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ixj5iNcaOIL439eH3FXyoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o1CyqjgZcZll0EL9rYoucA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Oc14dzxXfCgplusGnlfazMrYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aslshBE4uBozduiWScBbgRpKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dD2SKrDRpB3slshBzQUnOHw9Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kMpBxIRplusOc4gPFo4Hm18Tw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zzxb9ZpnSIiAjmNVXKfJKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X20o6P5S3ESJpOyE2Xs6tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyGCXhWTBp3lTwg0Gfj5Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshQc848k8yejWTUxHAtK1ew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IdLRPWlw6UWiOylGCzu6TA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jtw0HTZSplusslshdPJ0slshDw1LPOQ==


6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4-E PDF(1) Student Use Of Technology

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1091

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c5s3SEPjQLEJplusRqQAaBcOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u9YjgxoraAKv3jv8u0vwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Regulation 5144: DisciplineRegulation 5144: Discipline Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/21/2019

Site-Level Rules

Site-level rules shall be consistent with state law and Board policies and administrative regulations. In developing
site-level disciplinary rules, the principal or designee shall solicit the participation, views, and advice of one
representative selected by each of the following groups:  (Education Code 35291.5)

1. Parents/guardians
 

2. Teachers
 

3. School administrators
 

4. School security personnel, if any
 

5. Students in grades seven through twelve

Annually, site-level discipline rules shall be reviewed and, if necessary, updated to align with any changes in state
law, district discipline policies and regulations, and/or goals for school safety and climate as specified in the district's
local control and accountability plan. A copy of the rules shall be filed with the Superintendent or designee for
inclusion in the comprehensive safety plan.

School rules shall be communicated to students clearly and in an age-appropriate manner.

It shall be the duty of each employee of the school to enforce the school rules on student discipline.  (Education
Code 35291.5)

Disciplinary Strategies

To the extent possible, staff shall use disciplinary strategies that keep students in school and participating in the
instructional program. Except when students' presence causes a danger to themselves or others or they commit a
single act of a grave nature or an offense for which suspension or expulsion is required by law, suspension,
supervised suspension, or expulsion shall be used only when other means of correction have failed to bring about
proper conduct. Disciplinary strategies may include, but are not limited to:

1. Discussion or conference between school staff, the student, and the student's parents/guardians
 

2. Referral of the student to the school counselor or other school support service personnel for case
management and counseling
 

3. Convening of a study team, guidance team, resource panel, or other intervention-related team to assess the
behavior and develop and implement an individual plan to address the behavior in partnership with the student
and the student's parents/guardians
 

4. When applicable, referral for a comprehensive psychosocial or psychoeducational assessment, including for
purposes of creating an individualized education program (IEP) or a Section 504 plan
 

5. Enrollment in a program for teaching prosocial behavior or anger management
 

6. Participation in a restorative justice program
 

7. A positive behavior support approach with tiered interventions that occur during the school day on campus
 

8. Participation in a social and emotional learning program that teaches students the ability to understand and
manage emotions, develop caring and concern for others, make responsible decisions, establish positive
relationships, and handle challenging situations capably

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1092



 
9. Participation in a program that is sensitive to the traumas experienced by students, focuses on students'

behavioral health needs, and addresses those needs in a proactive manner
 

10. After-school programs that address specific behavioral issues or expose students to positive activities and
behaviors, including, but not limited to, those operated in collaboration with local parent and community
groups
 

11. Detention after school hours as provided in the section below entitled "Detention After School"
 

12. Community service as provided in the section below entitled "Community Service"
 

13. In accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation, restriction or disqualification from participation
in extracurricular activities
 

14. Reassignment to an alternative educational environment
 

15. Suspension and expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation

When, by law or district policy, other means of correction are required to be implemented before a student could be
suspended or expelled, any other means of correction implemented shall be documented and retained in the
student's records.  (Education Code 48900.5)

When a student has been suspended, or other means of correction have been implemented against the student, for
an incident of racist bullying, harassment, or intimidation, the principal or designee shall engage both the victim and
perpetrator in a restorative justice practice suitable to the needs of the students. The principal or designee shall also
require the perpetrator to engage in a culturally sensitive program that promotes racial justice and equity and
combats racism and ignorance and shall regularly check on the victim to ensure that the victim is not in danger of
suffering from any long-lasting mental health issues.  (Education Code 48900.5)

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules fairly, consistently, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination
policies.

When disciplining a student who has been identified for special education and related services, the procedures
specified in Administrative Regulation 5144.2 - Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)
shall be applied. If a student has not been identified as a student with a disability and the district suspects the
behavior that resulted in discipline may be based in an unidentified disability, the district shall conduct an evaluation
to determine if the student has a disability which requires an IEP or 504 plan.  (U.S.C. 1412(a)(3))

Detention After School

Students may be detained for disciplinary reasons for up to one hour after the close of the maximum school day, or
until the departure of the school bus to which they have been assigned if applicable.  (5 CCR 307, 353)

The student shall not be detained unless the principal or designee notifies the parent/guardian.

Students shall remain under the supervision of a certificated employee during the period of detention.

Students may be offered the choice of serving their detention on Saturday rather than after school.

Community Service

As part of or instead of disciplinary action, the Board, Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may require a
student to perform community service during nonschool hours on school grounds or, with written permission of the
student's parent/guardian, off school grounds. Such service may include, but is not limited to, community or school
outdoor beautification, community or campus betterment, and teacher, peer, or youth assistance programs.
 (Education Code 48900.6)

1093



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

This community service option is not available for a student who has been suspended, pending expulsion, pursuant to
Education Code 48915. However, if the recommended expulsion is not implemented or the expulsion itself is
suspended, then the student may be required to perform community service for the resulting suspension.  (Education
Code 48900.6)

Notice to Parents/Guardians and Students

At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians, in writing, about
the availability of district rules related to discipline.  (Education Code 35291, 48980)

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide written notice of disciplinary rules to parents/guardians of transfer
students at the time of their enrollment in the district.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 307 Participation in school activities until departure of bus

5 CCR 353 Detention after school

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 35146 Closed sessions

Ed. Code 35291-35291.5 Rules

Ed. Code 35291.5 School-adopted discipline rules

Ed. Code 37223 Weekend classes

Ed. Code 48900-48926 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 48980-48985 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint

Ed. Code 49055 Restorative justice practices

Ed. Code 49056 Prohibition of denial of recess

Ed. Code 49330-49335 Injurious objects

Ed. Code 49414.4 Opioid misuse; alternative to referral to law enforcement

Ed. Code 49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

42 USC 1751-1769j School Lunch Program

42 USC 1773 School Breakfast Program

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Dept of Education Program Advisories Classroom Management: A California Resource Guide for Teachers and
Administrators of Elementary and Secondary Schools, 2000

CSBA Publication The Case for Reducing Out-of-School Suspensions and Expulsions, Fact
Sheet, April 2014

1094

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AA8B7E34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2AB254D34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35146.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37223.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=5.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49056.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=8.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49414.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=11.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter13&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1773 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1773)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


CSBA Publication Recent Legislation on Discipline: AB 240, Fact Sheet, March 2015

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender
and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

CSBA Publication Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity During the School Day, Fact
Sheet, November 2009

Fix School Discipline Project Sample alternative discipline policy

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Resource on Confronting Racial Discrimination in Student Discipline

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication
Fact Sheet: Supporting Students with Disabilities and Avoiding the
Discriminatory Use of Student Discipline under Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School
Discipline, January 2014

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Public Counsel

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

3515.21 Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.3 District Police/Security Department

3515.31 School Resource Officers

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

1095

https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/media/E68E16A652D34EADA2BFDCD9668B1C8F.ashx
http://fixschooldiscipline.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/Sample-Alternative-Discipline-Policy.docx
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/504-discipline-factsheet.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fixschooldiscipline.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DIR3sZboSffLXoUbxPXAKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KIEZQwQnnx11uoaUcjbBuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusYnNhplus0fFsplusslshsNPeislshPeMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KoRdrhJNNdVhpluseUGrkchLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oPeODeNCvU9cici9pMyFbQ==


3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

4131 Staff Development

4158 Employee Security

4158 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5030 Student Wellness

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.1 Exemptions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5127 Graduation Ceremonies And Activities

5131 Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.41 Use Of Seclusion And Restraint

5131.5 Vandalism And Graffiti

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63-E PDF(1) Steroids

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1096

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ehmq9dbHwXplusV0W1Jdk27cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=lUClrm4m3rKplust7vrzuVwSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3hpboTYZpAtxspmxjTZ4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Pzyc65bRDXufx1koU9plYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yqjAl9T5QZTx9zaD7PfQUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshR28kVWEDMZbHplusYDOhqx7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RKwNrJClaQuFnJG0Z3gexA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vhtdEjrNCanYul9F3plusVfqg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6xq5Zf0QVJehWNeiplusaVZtA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DD4fplusMEt2Amslshf1ph8uG3plusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=E65U6rNct0PCh5TzyFTxjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8i6dKOPYvslshCCaS8T7F78LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w6U95qZGdjORYpGo5i2ZoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cwQg6skua5G1rp4l9rAk9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4rjK1ByY7nXOOTjQvxonuA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x33plusRFESODTdOPMtaXNdPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HJuQKpmoNTr4oeBccYQKsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HsaEmIJcZWrk7Q18AdtTEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nUpUy9jBqheu6n36kZNR4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FslshwKS842o9nZiIxwbe6Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1plusOKOaJVgOwqplustOfbTtRcw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=deyOslshslshWxrJvIA6plusATGGJpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=w20XDplusytvjmx1uBplus8lB6qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yeU9ZLYhpT1sUl3plusTn6QvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=9slsh7AQiBzkw8BPwuCYlPcjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Rt3BPTWz2ERSB2pqbWFUYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAZA7cjtBsmbuplusVcEzF6ig==


5131.9 Academic Honesty

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5142 Safety

5142 Safety

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153-E PDF(1) School-Sponsored Trips

6159.4 Behavioral Interventions For Special Education Students

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1097

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QmFgz4YASgplusjslshwaOB0eEhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jVYr1cMfodNAUjLaAjdfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4iU90Q8AxOTW0b1K0bqs4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ixj5iNcaOIL439eH3FXyoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o1CyqjgZcZll0EL9rYoucA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Oc14dzxXfCgplusGnlfazMrYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aslshBE4uBozduiWScBbgRpKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dD2SKrDRpB3slshBzQUnOHw9Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kMpBxIRplusOc4gPFo4Hm18Tw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zzxb9ZpnSIiAjmNVXKfJKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X20o6P5S3ESJpOyE2Xs6tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyGCXhWTBp3lTwg0Gfj5Bg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshQc848k8yejWTUxHAtK1ew==


6162.54 Test Integrity/Test Preparation

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4-E PDF(1) Student Use Of Technology

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1098

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IdLRPWlw6UWiOylGCzu6TA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jtw0HTZSplusslshdPJ0slshDw1LPOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c5s3SEPjQLEJplusRqQAaBcOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u9YjgxoraAKv3jv8u0vwBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian NotificationsPolicy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/17/2018 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/13/2023

The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication from the district and/or school to families to keep
families informed regarding educational programs, school operations, and the legal rights of students and
parents/guardians. The Superintendent or designee shall send parents/guardians all notifications required by law and
any other notifications the Superintendent or designee believes will promote familial understanding and involvement.

Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 48980 shall be sent at
the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular mail, in electronic form when so requested by
the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used by the district for written communication with
parents/guardians.  (Education Code 48981)

No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any particular student unless the
student's parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual notification or other separate special
notification. Such notice shall state the activity that will be undertaken and the approximate date on which the
activity will occur.  (Education Code 48983-48984)

The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return it to the school or,
if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a signed acknowledgment of receipt of
the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is not required. Any signature is an acknowledgment of
receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate in any particular program has been given
or withheld.  (Education Code 48982)

Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, the student's parents/guardians shall be given
all required parental notifications at that time.

Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format.

When necessary, the district shall provide notifications to qualified individuals with disabilities in alternative formats,
such as braille, large font, or audio recordings, to enable such individuals to effectively participate in any program,
service, or activity, as required by law.

Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary language other than
English, as determined from the California Department of Education census data collected pursuant to Education
Code 52164, all notices sent to the parent/guardian of any such student shall, in addition to being written in English,
be written in the primary language, and may be responded to either in English or the primary language.  (Education
Code 48981, 48985)

Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the district's printed
notifications for any reason, the employee shall inform the principal or designee, who shall work with the
parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2950-2951 Hearing tests

17 CCR 6000-6075 School attendance immunization requirements

22 CCR 101218.1 Child care licensing; parent/guardian rights

5 CCR 11303 Reclassification of English learners

5 CCR 11511.5 English language proficiency assessment; test results

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1099

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=IA89EB7705A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#IA8A67FA45A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I168091995B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I39375F534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I39CF0B734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)


5 CCR 11523 Notice of proficiency examinations

5 CCR 17782 Notice of Action; application for services

5 CCR 17783 Notice of Action; recipient of services

5 CCR 18066 Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences

5 CCR 18094-18095 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 18114 Notice of delinquent fees; child care services

5 CCR 18118-18119 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 3052 Behavioral intervention

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal

5 CCR 4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy

5 CCR 852 Exemptions from state assessments

5 CCR 863 Reports of state assessment results

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17288 Building standards for university campuses

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 221.5 Equal opportunity

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 262.3 Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of
civil remedies

Ed. Code 310 Language acquisition programs

Ed. Code 313 Reclassification of English learners; parental consultation

Ed. Code 313.2 Long-term English learner; notification

Ed. Code 32221.5 Insurance for athletic team members

Ed. Code 32255-32255.6 Student's right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals

Ed. Code 32390 Voluntary program for fingerprinting students

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35160.5 Extracurricular and cocurricular activities

Ed. Code 35178.4 Notice of accreditation status

Ed. Code 35182.5 Advertising in the classroom

Ed. Code 35183 School dress code; uniforms

Ed. Code 35186 Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities

Ed. Code 35211 Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability

Ed. Code 35256 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35258 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35291 Rules for student discipline

Ed. Code 35292.6 School maintenance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1100

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3AC615A34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3E44B5A0129911ED9F299521DAC452C1?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3FCFE980129911ED9F299521DAC452C1?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I46B644734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I474F50204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I47BAE3314C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I481A68544C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I4824C8904C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4826C4634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3172B1C14C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I347E1D044C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I35C2F9134C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2C87FF334C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I264EAA2065BC11ED990AA2D2ACB66143?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17288.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=221.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=262.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=313.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=313.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32221.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=3.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35160.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35178.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35183.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35211.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35256.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35258.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35292.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.


Ed. Code 39831.5 School bus rider rules and information

Ed. Code 41329 School closures and consolidation

Ed. Code 440 English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language
development

Ed. Code 44050 Employee code of conduct; interaction with students

Ed. Code 44808.5 Permission to leave school grounds

Ed. Code 46010.1 Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services

Ed. Code 46014 Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting pupils

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission

Ed. Code 48070.5 Promotion and retention of students

Ed. Code 48204 Residency requirements

Ed. Code 48205 Absence for personal reasons

Ed. Code 48206.3 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions

Ed. Code 48207-48208 Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals

Ed. Code 48213 Prior notice of exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48216 Immunization and exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48260.5 Notice regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48262 Need for parent conference regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48263 Referral to school attendance review board or probation department

Ed. Code 48301 Interdistrict transfers

Ed. Code 48412 Certificate of proficiency

Ed. Code 48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education

Ed. Code 48432.5 Involuntary transfers of students

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Students in foster care and students experiencing homelessness

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

Ed. Code 48900.1 Parental attendance required after suspension

Ed. Code 48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

Ed. Code 48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts

Ed. Code 48906 Notification of release of student to peace officer

Ed. Code 48911 Notification in case of suspension

Ed. Code 48911.1 Assignment to supervised suspension classroom

Ed. Code 48912 Closed sessions; consideration of suspension

Ed. Code 48915.1 Expelled students; enrollment in another district

Ed. Code 48916 Readmission procedures

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 48929 Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1101

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39831.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41329.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44050.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46010.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48070.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48204.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48205.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48206.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48213.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48216.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48260.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48262.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48263.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48301.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48412.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48432.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48432.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48904.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48906.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48911.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48911.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48912.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48915.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48918.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48929.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.


Ed. Code 48980.3 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 48980.4 Notice regarding full human papillomavirus (HPV) immunization

Ed. Code 48981 Time and means of notification

Ed. Code 48982 Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice

Ed. Code 48983 Contents of notice

Ed. Code 48984 Activities prohibited unless notice given

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drug use

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 48986 Safe storage of firearms

Ed. Code 48987 Child abuse information

Ed. Code 49013 Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49063 Notification of parental rights

Ed. Code 49067 Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course

Ed. Code 49068 Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record

Ed. Code 49069.7 Absolute right to access

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging content of student record

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 49073.6 Student records; social media

Ed. Code 49076 Access to student records

Ed. Code 49077 Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order

Ed. Code 49392 Threats of homicide at school

Ed. Code 49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunizations

Ed. Code 49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student

Ed. Code 49451 Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent

Ed. Code 49452.5 Screening for scoliosis

Ed. Code 49452.6 Type 1 diabetes informational materials

Ed. Code 49452.7 Information on type 2 diabetes

Ed. Code 49452.8 Oral health assessment

Ed. Code 49455.5 Eye examination for purpose of eyeglasses

Ed. Code 49456 Results of vision or hearing test

Ed. Code 49471-49472 Insurance

Ed. Code 49475 Student athletes; concussions and head injuries

Ed. Code 49476 Student athletes; opioid fact sheet

Ed. Code 49480 Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970

Ed. Code 51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.2 Course credits

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1102

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48981.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48982.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48983.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48986.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48987.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49063.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49067.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49068.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49069.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49070.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49076.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49077.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49392.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49403.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49423.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49451.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49456.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49475.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49476.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49480.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.3.


Ed. Code 51225.31 Graduation from high school; exemption for eligible students with special
needs

Ed. Code 51225.8 Completion and submission of FAFSA and CADAA

Ed. Code 51229 Course of study for grades 7-12

Ed. Code 51513 Personal beliefs; privacy

Ed. Code 51749.5 Independent study

Ed. Code 51938 HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction

Ed. Code 52062 Local control and accountability plans and the statewide system of support

Ed. Code 52164 Language census

Ed. Code 52164.1 Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of
language skills

Ed. Code 52164.3 Reassessment of English learners; notification of results

Ed. Code 52242 Advanced placement examination fees

Ed. Code 54444.2 Migrant education programs; parent involvement

Ed. Code 56301 Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights

Ed. Code 56321 Special education: proposed assessment plan

Ed. Code 56321.5-56321.6 Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education

Ed. Code 56329 Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment

Ed. Code 56341.1 Development of individualized education program; right to audio record
meeting

Ed. Code 56341.5 Individualized education program team meetings

Ed. Code 56343.5 Individualized education program meetings

Ed. Code 56366.45 Change in status of a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency

Ed. Code 56521.1 Behavioral intervention

Ed. Code 58501 Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment

Ed. Code 60615 Exemption from state assessment

Ed. Code 60641 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

Ed. Code 60900.5 Use of CalPADS data

Ed. Code 69432.9 Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program

Ed. Code 8212 Complaints related to preschool health and safety issues

Ed. Code 8483 Before/after school program; enrollment priorities

Ed. Code 8489 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

Ed. Code 8489.1 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco use prevention

H&S Code 104855 Availability of topical fluoride treatment

H&S Code 116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy

H&S Code 120365-120375 Immunizations

H&S Code 120440 Sharing immunization information

H&S Code 124100-124105 Health screening and immunizations

H&S Code 1596.8555 Administration of child day care licensing; posting license

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1103

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.31.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51229.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51513.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51749.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52062.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52242.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=54444.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56301.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56321.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56329.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56341.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56341.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56343.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56366.45.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56521.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=58501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60615.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60641.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60900.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=69432.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8212.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8483.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8489.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8489.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104885.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=3.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.8555.


H&S Code 1596.857 Right to enter child care facility

H&S Code 1597.16 Licensed child care centers; lead testing

Pen. Code 626.81 Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus

Pen. Code 627.5 Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration

W&I Code 10228 Child care providers; posting of rates, discounts, and scholarships

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1232h Privacy rights

20 USC 1415 Procedural safeguards

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 6312 Local educational agency plan

20 USC 6318 Parent and family engagement

20 USC 7704 Impact Aid; policies and procedures related to children residing on Indian
lands

20 USC 7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students

34 CFR 104.32 District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education

34 CFR 104.36 Procedural safeguards

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 200.48 Teacher qualifications

34 CFR 222.94 Impact Aid; district responsibilities

34 CFR 300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation

34 CFR 300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings

34 CFR 300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability

34 CFR 300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of
student with disability

34 CFR 300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities

34 CFR 300.508 Due process complaint

34 CFR 300.530 Discipline procedures

34 CFR 99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information

34 CFR 99.34 Student records; disclosure to other educational agencies

34 CFR 99.37 Disclosure of directory information

34 CFR 99.7 Student records; annual notification

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

42 USC 1758 Child nutrition programs

7 CFR 245.5 Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals

7 CFR 245.6a Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals

1104

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.857.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1597.16.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.81.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=627.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=10228.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232h edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232h)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1415 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1415)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6311 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6311)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6312 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6312)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6318 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6318)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7704 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7704)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7908 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7908)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-D/section-104.32
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-D/section-104.36
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-A/section-200.48
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-II/part-222/subpart-G/subject-group-ECFRf3208fed8076bf8/section-222.94
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR0e487e9b8f716c0/section-300.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR28b07e67452ed7a/section-300.322
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.502
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.503
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.504
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.508
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/subject-group-ECFRfb9aefa81a38ee9/section-300.530
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-D/section-99.30
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-D/section-99.34
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-D/section-99.37
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A/section-99.7
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1758 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1758)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-245/section-245.5
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-245/section-245.6a


Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and
Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3312 Contracts

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

1105

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PgxJhplusCKKesNPYQ4aXN6sA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MG3YciedvmQRtTIjasRbwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusoXH3JxNjx5DyzsnfqxcZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Cs4UYN8WU5fgnm1OL4jlMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s8OqcvcKGLwBj2Bs5sCyBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fMq1dbWqBN13PpTecplussN2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshYxKPcUw8SB4OdYdRBZ68w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==


4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222-E PDF(1) Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5030 Student Wellness

5111 Admission

5111 Admission

5111.1 District Residency

5111.1 District Residency

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123-E PDF(1) Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5131.61 Drug Testing

5132 Dress And Grooming

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1106

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mzJKeqhH0nY2a1jT2P3Myw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=geTO3v48kNslsh5zqz2JdhkgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rSDWVIM0mR6T5uTAuylAhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vhtdEjrNCanYul9F3plusVfqg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tFzNgsUwvpsslsh5rgZVfMerw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y9uajJvAiz5Cv2iv4gYplusfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BRefPHplusO9QHva0w8AgyTTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eY7RdLQkMt62BzK0tVS3Yg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o2bICCUQjgzB617bIoHq1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=E65U6rNct0PCh5TzyFTxjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3HDWMAslshfCqRlzH0hGxAVUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DI6ywVuc7JyQgdek6cc8PQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5PKcFR5HjC6zlSWROlN9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OwX3GmZwqN90hOP71xybOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rYJyuucQ8pIPXuN6Md6InQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k0jVpNQyElxkwTfTchUNOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IF66LY2PpkEYVWSnLKmJyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LcN9vRTlpZjVGXKPwplusUqPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ocVWiaAp0EaJZfo6jyH4gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjdXmslshnyplusQc72u5KVWOeDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7pshrgVfGdZMm9Kc4wgaPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==


5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.32 Health Screening For School Entry

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5142.1 Identification And Reporting Of Missing Children

5143 Insurance

5143 Insurance

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.8 Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals

5145.8 Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6117 Year-Round Schedules

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1107

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=J7gt98g5WBsfbGpIGTfplusPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Dx8KLNVQWP5511KsksQbVg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8S0TFaHIdqbWyslsh1NHCTwag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dZnCOmRlLyy9x9hHhslsh9slshLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1XvJUtEHDZVl0dn58ucgPg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AxVplusef3DK6libsKCUwslshLXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zrTXrVBkcYzw7VntLHqGeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=h8FDIi10gdjid2BmslshIiLplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o1CyqjgZcZll0EL9rYoucA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Oc14dzxXfCgplusGnlfazMrYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qANB3w0WdGpm1oFrFPuJYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CwzJH6cjCmR51xJ0hm8Gmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=L48qPeXM4rfS6lhVVbIxpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UwbZkiRPS6mEhtplusM4aIoiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NdS3ITAmXi5YJxIa2P0nnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==


6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2-E PDF(1) Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.4 Behavioral Interventions For Special Education Students

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.8 Research

6162.8 Research

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1108

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u0KIYnF1vwt1FWaVnvz8Ug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=48tuLsv3dSbv6SLDhZZwwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3j4F45slshslshWoxueEERslshXnhiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LLhFQhntSGslshyJ4Ll2roQYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gpTCDTLlv4yypyMoMTDXslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=U6fLlNzFdxcINc04wplusZusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Dmw35FlqGwHW19l4nyFh0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t9slshBl67vvB3M3ZfhIHmPAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8C93wExGD9cMe16x45plusMzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusEFuPIOyBIOQo3IF0jOJFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xxClFkI6arC1hk4HQvbL2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshkic8mRh8bSX8GPxFoVTxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zzslshjVkByQ2SMG9ypluszVcq3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshQc848k8yejWTUxHAtK1ew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uahjTZz0J80SKh8LFRmJmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7WCE5GlrzmWHOEEAZ4AOCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNCVZBgJ9VmKAsw5Po0qnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ws7UMexGqT5Z38wJpkKljg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Khpw3dD4JKBXlwslshwtrOOww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P5IwtJJxCesc5RlIXoplusz8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshC39JFPNHvqMfvvefXTIqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==


6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.3 Education For Juvenile Court School Students

6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

9310 Board Policies

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1109

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PxFIp5oJzfmJOSBv4qdCWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xj7HyYcYYWt1fX9nAxy2Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4C5xwe76bfoCibvslshg8h7HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HBBf4ROJSOTs0gBwLgecsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hqoWWN0aSNwSBq1E1JVEhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UBWDuz3w1JnfecVpmbwcGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==


Exhibit 5145.6-E(1): Parent/Guardian NotificationsExhibit 5145.6-E(1): Parent/Guardian Notifications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/13/2023

Cautionary Notice: Government Code 17581.5 releases districts from the obligation to perform specified
mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year. The Budget Act
of 2023 (SB 101, Ch. 12, Statutes of 2023) extends the suspension of these requirements through the 2023-24
fiscal year. As a result, certain provisions of the following Exhibit related to scoliosis screening and bus safety
instruction may be suspended.

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of notices that the law explicitly requires be provided to parents/guardians.
Other notices may exist and be identified in the future.

I.  Annually

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 222.5; 46015
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5146
Subject:  Rights and options for pregnant and parenting students

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 234.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0410
Subject:  Right to a free public  education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year or upon enrollment
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 310
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6142.2, AR 6174
Subject:  Information on the district's language acquisition program

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17611.5, 17612, 48980.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514.2
Subject:  Use of pesticide products, active ingredients, internet address to access information, and, if district uses
certain pesticides, integrated pest management plan

When to Notify:  Annually by February 1
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35256, 35258
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0510
Subject:  School Accountability Report Card provided

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35291, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144, AR 5144.1
Subject:  District and site discipline rules

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44050
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4119.21, BP 4219.21, BP 4319.21
Subject:  Code of conduct addressing employee interactions with students

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46010.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113
Subject:  Absence for confidential medical services

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if district has adopted policy on involuntary transfer of students
convicted of certain crimes when victim is enrolled at same school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48929, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5116.2

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1110



Subject:  District policy authorizing transfer

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6111
Subject:  Schedule of minimum days and student-free staff development days

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 231.5; 5 CCR 4917; 34 CFR 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5145.7
Subject:  Copy of sexual harassment policy as related to students; contact information for Title IX coordinator

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 32255-32255.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5145.8
Subject:  Right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 35160.5, 46600-46611, 48204, 48301
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5111.1, AR 5116.1, AR 5117
Subject:  All statutory attendance options, available local attendance options, options for meeting residency, form for
changing attendance, appeals process

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if Governing Board allows such absence
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 46014
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113
Subject:  Absence for religious exercise or purposes

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 48205
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113, BP 6154
Subject:  Excused absences; grade/credit cannot be reduced due to excused absence if work or test has been
completed; full text of Education Code 48205

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 48206.3, 48207, 48208
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6183
Subject:  Availability of home/hospital instruction for students with temporary disabilities

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49403
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5141.31
Subject:  School immunization program

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49423, 49480
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.21
Subject:  Administration of prescribed medication

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49451; 20 USC 1232h
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject:  Right to refuse consent to physical examination

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49471, 49472
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5143
Subject:  Availability of insurance

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year in grades 9-12, if district allows career technical education (CTE)
course to satisfy graduation requirement

1111



Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 51225.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6146.1
Subject:  How district established graduation requirements do or do not satisfy college entrance A-G course criteria;
district's CTE courses that satisfy A-G course criteria

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48985.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject: The dangers of using synthetic drugs not prescribed by a physician and possibility that such drugs can be
found in counterfeit pills

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48986, 49392
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 0450
Subject: Information and laws related to the safe storage of firearms and California's child access prevention laws

When to Notify: Annually (not otherwise specified)
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3, BP 0460, BP 3260
Subject:  Uniform complaint procedures, available appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student
fees and local control and accountability plan

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125, AR 5125.3
Subject:  Challenge, review and expunging of records

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063, 49069; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125
Subject:  Student records: inspect and review, access, types, location, persons responsible, location of log, access
criteria, cost of copies, amendment requests, criteria for defining school officials and to determine legitimate
educational interest, categories defined as directory information, disclosures, right to file complaint with U.S.
Department of Education, course prospectus availability

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063, 49073; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.37
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.1
Subject:  Release of directory information

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49069.5, 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173, AR 6173.1, AR 6173.3, AR 6175
Subject:  Transfer of coursework and credits for foster youth, students experiencing homelessness, former juvenile
court school students, children of military family, students who are migratory and newcomer students

When to Notify:  Two or more times during the school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49428
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5141.5
Subject:  How to access mental health services at school and/or in the community

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year in schools serving students in grades 6-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49428.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5141.5
Subject: Distribution of digitized mental health poster online

When to Notify:  Annually or upon enrollment in elementary school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject: Availability of type 1 diabetes informational materials developed by the California Department of Education

1112



When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49520, 48980, 42 USC 1758, 7 CFR 245.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3553
Subject:  Eligibility and application process for free and reduced price meals

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51513, 20 USC 1232h
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022,  BP 6162.8
Subject:  Notice of privacy policy and dates of activities re: survey, health examination, or collection of personal
information for marketing; process to opt out of such activities; inspection rights and procedures

When to Notify:  When developing the local control and accountability plan and during the annual update of the
local control and accountability plan (LCAP)
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 52062
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0460
Subject: Opportunity to submit written comments regarding specific actions and expenditures in proposed plan or
annual update

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56301
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6164.4
Subject:  Parental rights re: special education identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning,
implementation and review, and procedures for initiating a referral for assessment

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 58501, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6181
Subject:  Alternative schools

When/Whom to Notify: Annually (not otherwise specified)
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 60615, 5 CCR 852
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6162.51
Subject: Student's participation in state assessments; option to request exemption from testing

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 60900.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject:  Use of CalPADS data as specified in Education Code 60900.5

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104855
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.6
Subject:  Availability of dental fluoride treatment; opportunity to accept or deny treatment

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if district receives Title I funds
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312; 34 CFR 200.48
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4112.2, AR 4222
Subject:  Right to request information re: professional qualifications of child's teacher and paraprofessional

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 104.8, 106.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0410, BP 6178
Subject:  Nondiscrimination

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year to parent, teacher, and employee organizations or, in their absence,
individuals
Education or Other Legal Code:  40 CFR 763.84, 40 CFR 763.93
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514
Subject:  Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

1113



When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA FNS Instructions 113-1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 3555
Subject:  Information related to the district's food service programs

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA SP-46-2016
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3551
Subject:  District policy on meal payments

II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career

When to Notify:  Beginning in grade 7, at least once prior to course selection and career counseling
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 221.5, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6164.2
Subject:  Course selection and career counseling

When to Notify:  Upon a student's enrollment
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 310
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6142.2, AR 6174
Subject:  Information on the district's language acquisition programs

When to Notify:  When child first enrolls in a public school, if the school offers a fingerprinting program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 32390, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5142.1
Subject:  Fingerprinting program

When/Whom to Notify: When participating in driver training courses under the jurisdiction of the district
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35211
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject: Civil liability, insurance coverage

When to Notify:  Upon registration in K-6, if students have not previously been transported
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 39831.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3543
Subject:  School bus safety rules and information, list of stops, rules of conduct, red light crossing instructions, bus
danger zones, walking to and from stops

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year for high school students, if high school is open campus
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44808.5, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5112.5
Subject:  Open campus

When to Notify:  When admitted or advancing to sixth grade
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980.4
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject:  A statement regarding the state's public policy, advising that the student adhere to current immunization
guidelines regarding full human papillomavirus (HPV) immunization before admission or advancement to the eighth
grade level

When to Notify:  Prior to providing an eye examination
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49455.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject: Upcoming eye examinations at school site, including form on which parent/guardian may indicate lack of
consent

When to Notify: When a parent/guardian request for district designation of volunteers is received for training on
emergency use of anti-seizure medication for a student diagnosed with seizures
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49468.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  To be included in AR 5141.21
Subject:  Request for volunteers to be trained in recognition and response to seizures, including administration of

1114



emergency anti-seizure medication, description of training, right to rescind offer to volunteer, prohibition against
retaliation.

When to Notify: Upon a student's enrollment
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125, AR 5125.3
Subject:  Specified rights related to student records

When to Notify: When students enter grade 7
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject: Specified information on type 2 diabetes

When to Notify:  When in kindergarten, or first grade if not previously enrolled in public school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.32
Subject:  Requirement for oral health assessment, explanation of law, importance of oral health, agency contact,
privacy rights

When to Notify: Before grade 12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51225.8
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6143
Subject:  Completion and submission of FAFSA and CADAA

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year for students in grades 9-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51229, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6143, BP 6178
Subject:  UC and CSU College admission requirements, UC and CSU web sites that list certified courses, description
of CTE, CDE Internet address, how students may meet with counselors

When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year for students in grades 7-12, or at time of enrollment if after
beginning of year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6142.1
Subject:  Sexual health and HIV prevention education; right to view A/V materials, whether taught by district staff or
outside consultants, right to request specific Education Code sections, right to excuse

When to Notify:  Within 20 working days of receiving results of standardized achievement tests or, if results not
available in school year, within 20 working days of start of next school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 60641, 5 CCR 863
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6162.51
Subject:  Results of tests; test purpose, individual score and intended use

When/Whom to Notify: By October 15 for students in grade 12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 69432.9
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5121, AR 5125
Subject: Forwarding of student's grade point average to Cal Grant program; timeline to opt out

When to Notify:  Upon enrollment in a California State Preschool program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8489.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148.3
Subject: Limitations on disenrollment, including expulsion and suspension and how to file an appeal in the event of
expulsion or suspension

When to Notify:  When child is enrolled or reenrolled in a licensed child care center or preschool
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.7996
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  Information on risks and effects of lead exposure, blood lead testing

When to Notify:  When child is enrolled in kindergarten
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 124100, 124105

1115



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.32
Subject:  Health screening examination

When to Notify:  To students in grades 11-12, early enough to enable registration for fall test
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 11523
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6146.2
Subject:  Notice of proficiency examination provided under Education Code 48412

When to Notify:  To secondary students, if district receives Title I funds
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 7908
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.1
Subject:  Request that district not release student's name, address, and phone number to military recruiters without
prior written consent

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur

When to Notify:  In the event of a breach of security of district records
Education or Other Legal Code:  Civil Code 1798.29
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 3580
Subject:  Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, contact information for credit reporting
agencies

When to Notify:  Upon receipt of a complaint alleging discrimination
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 262.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3
Subject:  Civil law remedies available to complainants

When to Notify:  When determining whether an English learner should be reclassified as fluent English proficient
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 313, 5 CCR 11303
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Description of reclassification process, opportunity for parent/guardian to participate

When to Notify:  When Student is identified as English learner and district receives Title I or Title III funds for English
learner programs, not later than 30 days after beginning of school year or within two weeks of placement if
identified during school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 313.2, 440, 20 USC 6312
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Reason for classification, level of English proficiency, identification as long-term English learner, description
of program(s), option to decline program or choose alternate, option to remove student from program at any time,
exit requirements of program

When to Notify:  For districts under financial distress, as defined, upon an affirmative action by the Board to
implement a school closure or consolidation
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 41329
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject:  The date of the closure or consolidation, student's new school assignment, district resources to support
student transition, contacts for additional information.

When to Notify:  Prior to implementing alternative schedule
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46162
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6112
Subject:  Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When to Notify:  When homeless or foster youth applies for enrollment in before/after school program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8483
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5178.2
Subject:  Right to priority enrollment how to request priority enrollment

When to Notify:  When certification status of a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency attended by a district
student changes, within 14 days of becoming aware of the change
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56366.45

1116



Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: Not currently in CSBA policy
Subject: A change in certification status of nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency

When to Notify:  When a child in a California State Preschool program exhibits persistent and serious challenging
behaviors
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8489.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148.3
Subject: Description of the child's behaviors and program plan for maintaining the child's safe participation in
program and expulsion/unenrollment process

When to Notify: At least 24 hours before the effective date of suspending or expelling a child from a California State
Preschool program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8489.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148.3
Subject: "Notice of Action, Recipient of Services," as described in 5 CCR 17783

When to Notify:  Before high school student attends specialized secondary program on a university campus
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17288
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None
Subject:  University campus buildings may not meet Education Code requirements for structural safety

When to Notify:  At least 72 hours before use of pesticide product not included in annual list
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17612
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514.2
Subject:  Intended use of pesticide product

When to Notify:  To members of athletic teams
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 32221.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5143
Subject:  Offer of insurance; no-cost and low-cost program options

When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before participation in competition
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 33479.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2
Subject:  Information on sudden cardiac arrest

When to Notify:  If school has lost its WASC accreditation status
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35178.4
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6190
Subject:  Loss of status, potential consequences

When/Whom to Notify: When district has contracted for electronic products or services that disseminate advertising
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35182.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3312
Subject: Advertising will be used in the classroom or learning center

When to Notify:  At least six months before implementing a schoolwide uniform policy
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35183
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5132
Subject:  Dress code policy requiring schoolwide uniform

When to Notify:  Before implementing a year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6117
Subject:  Public hearing on year-round schedule

When to Notify:  When interdistrict transfer is requested and not approved or denied within 30 days
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46601
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5117
Subject:  Appeal process

1117



When to Notify:  Before early entry to transitional kindergarten or kindergarten, if early entry offered
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48000
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5111, AR 6170.1
Subject:  Effects, advantages and disadvantages of early entry

When to Notify:  When student identified as being at risk of retention
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48070.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5123
Subject:  Student at risk of retention

When to Notify:  When student excluded due to quarantine, contagious or infectious disease, danger to safety or
health
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48213
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5112.2
Subject:  Student has been excluded from school

When to Notify:  Before already admitted student is excluded for lack of immunization
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48216, 17 CCR 6040
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.31
Subject:  Need to submit evidence of immunization or exemption within 10 school days; referral to medical care

When to Notify:  When a student is classified as truant
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48260.5, 48262
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113.1
Subject:  Truancy, parental obligation, availability of alternative programs, student consequences, need for
conference

When to Notify:  When a truant is referred to a SARB or probation department
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48263
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113.1
Subject:  Name and address of SARB or probation department and reason for referral

When/Whom to Notify: When student requests to voluntarily transfer to continuation school
Education or Other Legal Code:   Education Code 48432.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6184
Subject: Copy of district policy and regulation on continuation education

When to Notify:  Prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48432.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6184
Subject:  Right to require meeting prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school

When/Whom to Notify: To person holding educational rights, prior to recommending placement of foster youth
outside school of origin
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48853.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173.1
Subject: Basis for the placement recommendation

When to Notify:  When a foster youth or an Indian child receives a suspension, expulsion, manifestation
determination, or involuntary transfer
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48853.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173.1, AR 6173.4
Subject:  Suspension notice, expulsion notice, manifestation determination notice, involuntary transfer notice, and
other documents and related information to a foster youth's educational rights holder, attorney, and county social
worker and an Indian child's tribal social worker and, if applicable, the child's county social worker

When to Notify:  When student is removed from class and teacher requires parental attendance at school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48900.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Parental attendance required; timeline for attendance

1118



When to Notify:  Prior to withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48904
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.2
Subject:  Damaged school property

When to Notify:  When withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts from transferring student
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48904.3
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.2
Subject:  Next school will continue withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts

When to Notify:  When student is released to peace officer
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48906
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5145.11
Subject:  Release of student to peace officer for the purpose of removing minor from school, unless taken into
custody as victim of suspected child abuse

When to Notify:  At time of suspension
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5144.1, AR 5144.1
Subject:  Notice of suspension

When to Notify:  When original period of suspension is extended
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Extension of suspension

When to Notify:  At the time a student is assigned to a supervised suspension classroom
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  The student's assignment to a supervised suspension classroom

When to Notify:  Before holding a closed session re: suspension
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48912
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Intent to hold a closed session re: suspension

When to Notify:  When a student expelled from another district for certain acts seeks admission
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48915.1, 48918
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5119
Subject:  Hearing re: possible danger presented by expelled student

When to Notify:  When readmission is denied
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Reasons for denial; determination of assigned program

When to Notify:  When expulsion occurs
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Readmission procedures

When to Notify:  At least 10 calendar days before expulsion hearing
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48918
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Notice of expulsion hearing

When to Notify:  When expulsion or suspension of expulsion occurs
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48918
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1
Subject:  Decision to expel; right to appeal to county board; obligation to inform new district of status

1119



When to Notify:  Before involuntary transfer of student convicted of certain crime when victim is enrolled at same
school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48929, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5116.2
Subject:  Right to request a meeting with principal or designee

When to Notify:  One month before the scheduled minimum day
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6111
Subject:  When minimum days are scheduled after the beginning of the school year

When to Notify:  When parents/guardians request guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48987
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.4
Subject:  Guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site with local child protective agencies

When to Notify:  When student in danger of failing a course
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49067
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5121
Subject:  Student in danger of failing a course

When to Notify:  When student transfers from another district or private school into the district
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49068
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125
Subject:  Right to receive copy of student's record and a hearing to challenge content of student's records

When/Whom to Notify: When parent/guardian's challenge of student record is denied and parent/guardian appeals
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49070
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.3
Subject: If board sustains allegations, the correction of destruction of record; if denied, right to submit written
objection

When/Whom to Notify: When district is considering program to gather safety-related information from students'
social media activity
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49073.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5125
Subject: Opportunity for input on proposed program

When/Whom to Notify: When district adopts program to gather information from students' social media activity,
and annually thereafter
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49073.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5125
Subject: Information is being gathered, access to records, process for removal or corrections, destruction of records

When to Notify:  Within 24 hours of release of information to a judge or probation officer
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49076
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125
Subject:  Release of student record to a judge or probation officer for conducting truancy mediation program or for
presenting evidence at a truancy petition

When to Notify:  Before release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49077
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125
Subject:  Release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena

When to Notify:  When screening results in suspicion that student has scoliosis
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject:  Scoliosis screening

When to Notify:  When test results in discovery of visual or hearing defects

1120



Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49456; 17 CCR 2951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3
Subject:  Vision or hearing test results

When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49475
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2
Subject:  Information on concussions and head injuries

When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before their first practice or competition
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49476
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2
Subject:  Opioid fact sheet

When/Whom to Notify: Within 30 days of foster youth, student experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court
school student, child of military family, or migrant student being transferred after second year of high school, or
immigrant student enrolled in newcomer program in grades 11-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Educational Code 51225.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6146.1, AR 6173, AR 6173.1, AR 6173.3, AR 6175
Subject: Exemption from local graduation requirements, effect on college admission, option for fifth year of high
school, transfer opportunities through California Community Colleges

When to Notify: When satisfactory educational progress in one or more independent study courses is not being
made by student under 18
Education or Other Legal Code:  Educational Code 51749.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6158
Subject: Findings from evaluation to determine if it is in student's best interest to remain in independent study or
whether student should be referred to an alternative program.

When to Notify:  Before any test/survey questioning personal beliefs
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51513
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5022
Subject:  Permission for test, survey questioning personal beliefs

When to Notify:  At least 14 days before HIV prevention or sexual health instruction, if arrangement made for guest
speaker after beginning of school year
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6142.1
Subject:  Instruction in HIV prevention or sexual health by guest speaker or outside consultant

When to Notify:  Prior to administering survey regarding health risks and behaviors to students in 7-12
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022
Subject:  Notice that the survey will be administered

When to Notify:  Within 30 calendar days of receipt of results of assessment or reassessment of English proficiency
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 52164.1, 52164.3, 5 CCR 11511.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Results of state test of English proficiency

When to Notify:  When migrant education program is established
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 54444.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6175, AR 6175
Subject:  Parent advisory council membership composition

When to Notify:  When child participates in licensed child care and development program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.857, 22 CCR 101218.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  Parent/guardian right to enter and inspect facility and other rights as specified

When to Notify:  When a licensed child care center has a building constructed before January 1, 2010 and has

1121



drinking water tested for lead
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1597.16
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  The requirement to test the facility, and the results of the test

When/Whom to Notify: When district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education Funds
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 104420
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3513.3
Subject: The district's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When to Notify:  When sharing student immunization information with an immunization system
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 120440
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125
Subject:  Types of information to be shared, name and address of agency, acceptable use of the information, right to
examine, right to refuse to share

When/Whom to Notify: At least 14 days prior to sex offender coming on campus as volunteer
Education or Other Legal Code:  Penal Code 626.81
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1240, BP 1250
Subject: Dates and times permission granted; obtaining information from law enforcement

When to Notify:  When hearing is requested by person asked to leave school premises
Education or Other Legal Code:  Penal Code 627.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3515.2
Subject:  Notice of hearing

When/Whom to Notify: When responding to complaint re: discrimination, special education, or noncompliance with
law
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 4631
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1312.3
Subject: Findings, disposition of complaint, any corrective actions, appeal rights and procedures

When to Notify:  When child participates in licensed child care and development program
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18066
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148
Subject:  Policies regarding excused and unexcused absences

When to Notify:  Within 30 days of application for subsidized child care or preschool services
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 17782, 18094, 18118
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148, AR 5148.3
Subject:  Policies re: Approval or denial of services

When to Notify:  At least 14 days before change in service or other intended action, upon recertification or update
of application for child care or preschool services
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 17783, 18095, 18119
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148, AR 5148.3
Subject:  Policies re: Any change in service, such as in fees, amount of service, termination of service

When to Notify:  Upon child's enrollment in child care program
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18114
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148
Subject:  Policies re: Policy on fee collection

When to Notify:  When payment of child care fees is seven days late
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18114
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148
Subject:  Policies re: Notice of delinquent fees

When to Notify:  When district substantively changes policy on student privacy rights
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1232h
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022

1122



Subject:  Notice of any substantive change in policy or regulation

When to Notify:  For districts receiving Title I funds, when a child has been assigned or taught for four or more
consecutive weeks by a teacher who does not meet state certification requirements for the grade level/subject
taught
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4112.2
Subject:  Timely notice to parent/guardian of child's assignment

When to Notify:  For districts receiving Title I funds, not later than 30 days after beginning of school year, to
parents/guardians of English learners
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174
Subject:  Reasons for placement, level of proficiency, instructional methods, how program meets child's strengths
and teaches English, exit requirements, right to choose another program

When to Notify:  For schools receiving Title I funds, upon development of parent involvement policy
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6318
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6020
Subject:  Notice of policy

When to Notify:  When district receives Impact Aid funds for students residing on Indian lands, to parents/guardians
of Indian children
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 7704; 34 CFR 222.94
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3231
Subject:  Relevant applications, evaluations, program plans, information about district's general educational program;
opportunity to submit comments

When to Notify:  When household is selected for verification of eligibility for free or reduced-price meals
Education or Other Legal Code:  42 USC 1758, 7 CFR 245.6a
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3553
Subject:  Need to submit verification information; any subsequent change in benefits; appeals

When/Whom to Notify: When student is homeless or unaccompanied minor
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48852.5, 42 USC 11432
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173
Subject: Educational and related opportunities; transportation services; placement decision and right to appeal;
duties of district liaison; public notice

When to Notify:  When student transfers out of state and records are disclosed without consent pursuant to 34 CFR
99.30
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 99.34
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125
Subject: Right to receive records and an opportunity for hearing upon request

When to Notify:  When student complains of sexual harassment
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 106.44, 106.45
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5145.7
Subject: Right to file formal complaint, availability of supportive measures, notice of process, reason for dismissal of
complaint if applicable

When to Notify:  When district receives federal funding assistance for nutrition program
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA FNS Instruction 113-1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3555
Subject: Rights and responsibilities, nondiscrimination policy, complaint procedures

IV.  Special Education Notices

When to Notify: Prior to a student with disabilities beginning tenth grade
Education or Other Legal Code:  Educational Code 51225.31
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6146.1

1123



Subject: Exemption from local graduation requirements

When to Notify:  Prior to conducting initial evaluation
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56301, 56321, 56321.5, 56321.6, 56329, 20 USC 1415 (d), 34 CFR
300.502, 300.503
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6159.1, AR 6159.1, AR 6164.4
Subject:  Proposed evaluation plan, related parental rights, prior written notice, procedural safeguards

When/Whom to Notify: Before functional behavioral assessment begins
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56321
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159
Subject: Notification and consent

When to Notify:  24 hours before IEP when district intending to record
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56341.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159
Subject:  Intention to audio-record IEP meeting

When to Notify:  Early enough to ensure opportunity for parent to attend IEP meeting
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56341.5, 34 CFR 300.322
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159
Subject:  Time, purpose, location, who will attend, participation of others with special knowledge, transition
statements if appropriate

When to Notify:  When parent/guardian orally requests review of IEP
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56343.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159
Subject:  Need for written request

When to Notify:  Within one school day of emergency intervention or serious property damage
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56521.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.4
Subject:  Emergency intervention

When to Notify:  Whenever there is a proposal or refusal to initiate or change the identification, evaluation,
placement, or FAPE, including when parent/guardian revokes consent for services
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(c), 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159, AR 6159.1
Subject:  Prior written notice

When/Whom to Notify: Upon filing of state complaint
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(d), 34 CFR 300.504
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.1
Subject: Procedural safeguards notice

When/Whom to Notify: When disciplinary measures are taken or a change in placement
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(k), 34 CFR 300.530
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.2
Subject: Decision and procedural safeguards notice

When to Notify:  Upon requesting a due process hearing
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(k), 34 CFR 300.508
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.1
Subject:  Child's name, address, school, description of problem, proposed resolution

When to Notify:  Eligibility for services under Section 504
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 104.32, 104.36
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6164.6
Subject:  District responsibilities, district actions, procedural safeguards

V.  Classroom Notices

1124



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Where to Post:  In all district schools and offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 234.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3
Subject:  Uniform complaint procedures board policy and administrative regulation

Where  to Post:  In each classroom used for license exempt California State Preschool Program
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8212
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR/E 1312.3
Subject:  Health and safety requirements for preschool programs; where to get complaint form

Where to Post :  In each classroom in each school
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35186
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR/E 1312.4
Subject:  Complaints subject to Williams uniform complaint procedures

Where to Post:  In any school serving any of grades 3-12, in a prominent and conspicuous location in every restroom
required to stock menstrual products,
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35292.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3517
Subject:   Requirement to stock and make available free of cost an adequate supply of menstrual products that
includes email address and telephone number for a designated individual responsible for maintaining requisite supply
of menstrual products

Where to Post: In a licensed child care and development center at a location accessible to parents/guardians
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.857
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject:  Parent/guardian right to inspect, prohibition against retaliation, right to file complaint; registered sex
offender database available to public; review licensing reports of facility visits and substantiated complaints against
facility

Where to Post:   In a prominent, publicly accessible location in the child care facility
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 1596.8555
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject: Child care license

Where to Post:   In a prominent location adjacent to child care license at facility
Education or Other Legal Code:  Welfare and institutions Code 10228
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148
Subject: Rates, discounts, or scholarship policies

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

17 CCR 2950-2951 Hearing tests

17 CCR 6000-6075 School attendance immunization requirements

22 CCR 101218.1 Child care licensing; parent/guardian rights

5 CCR 11303 Reclassification of English learners

5 CCR 11511.5 English language proficiency assessment; test results

5 CCR 11523 Notice of proficiency examinations

5 CCR 17782 Notice of Action; application for services

5 CCR 17783 Notice of Action; recipient of services

5 CCR 18066 Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences

5 CCR 18094-18095 Notice of Action; child care services

1125

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=IA89EB7705A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#IA8A67FA45A2011EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I168091995B6211EC9451000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I39375F534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I39CF0B734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3AC615A34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3E44B5A0129911ED9F299521DAC452C1?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3FCFE980129911ED9F299521DAC452C1?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I46B644734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I474F50204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I47BAE3314C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3


5 CCR 18114 Notice of delinquent fees; child care services

5 CCR 18118-18119 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 3052 Behavioral intervention

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal

5 CCR 4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy

5 CCR 852 Exemptions from state assessments

5 CCR 863 Reports of state assessment results

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Ed. Code 17288 Building standards for university campuses

Ed. Code 17612 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 221.5 Equal opportunity

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 262.3 Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of
civil remedies

Ed. Code 310 Language acquisition programs

Ed. Code 313 Reclassification of English learners; parental consultation

Ed. Code 313.2 Long-term English learner; notification

Ed. Code 32221.5 Insurance for athletic team members

Ed. Code 32255-32255.6 Student's right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals

Ed. Code 32390 Voluntary program for fingerprinting students

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Ed. Code 35160.5 Extracurricular and cocurricular activities

Ed. Code 35178.4 Notice of accreditation status

Ed. Code 35182.5 Advertising in the classroom

Ed. Code 35183 School dress code; uniforms

Ed. Code 35186 Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities

Ed. Code 35211 Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability

Ed. Code 35256 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35258 School Accountability Report Card

Ed. Code 35291 Rules for student discipline

Ed. Code 35292.6 School maintenance

Ed. Code 37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule

Ed. Code 39831.5 School bus rider rules and information

Ed. Code 41329 School closures and consolidation

Ed. Code 440 English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language
development

Ed. Code 44050 Employee code of conduct; interaction with students

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1126

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I481A68544C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I4824C8904C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4826C4634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3172B1C14C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I346E65934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I347E1D044C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I35C2F9134C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2C87FF334C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I264EAA2065BC11ED990AA2D2ACB66143?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17288.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17612.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=221.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=231.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=262.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=313.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=313.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32221.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=3.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=2.&title=2.&part=20.&chapter=3.&article=13.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35160.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35178.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35183.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35211.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35256.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35258.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35292.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=37616.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39831.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41329.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44050.


Ed. Code 44808.5 Permission to leave school grounds

Ed. Code 46010.1 Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services

Ed. Code 46014 Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting pupils

Ed. Code 46160-46162 Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with
notice

Ed. Code 46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission

Ed. Code 48070.5 Promotion and retention of students

Ed. Code 48204 Residency requirements

Ed. Code 48205 Absence for personal reasons

Ed. Code 48206.3 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions

Ed. Code 48207-48208 Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals

Ed. Code 48213 Prior notice of exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48216 Immunization and exclusion from attendance

Ed. Code 48260.5 Notice regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48262 Need for parent conference regarding truancy

Ed. Code 48263 Referral to school attendance review board or probation department

Ed. Code 48301 Interdistrict transfers

Ed. Code 48412 Certificate of proficiency

Ed. Code 48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education

Ed. Code 48432.5 Involuntary transfers of students

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Students in foster care and students experiencing homelessness

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students

Ed. Code 48900.1 Parental attendance required after suspension

Ed. Code 48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

Ed. Code 48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts

Ed. Code 48906 Notification of release of student to peace officer

Ed. Code 48911 Notification in case of suspension

Ed. Code 48911.1 Assignment to supervised suspension classroom

Ed. Code 48912 Closed sessions; consideration of suspension

Ed. Code 48915.1 Expelled students; enrollment in another district

Ed. Code 48916 Readmission procedures

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 48929 Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48980.3 Notification of pesticide use

Ed. Code 48980.4 Notice regarding full human papillomavirus (HPV) immunization

Ed. Code 48981 Time and means of notification

Ed. Code 48982 Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1127

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44808.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46010.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46162.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48070.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48204.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48205.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48206.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48213.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48216.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48260.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48262.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48263.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48301.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48412.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48432.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48432.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48904.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48906.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48911.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48911.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48912.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48915.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48916.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48918.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48929.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48981.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48982.


Ed. Code 48983 Contents of notice

Ed. Code 48984 Activities prohibited unless notice given

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drug use

Ed. Code 48985.5 Synthetic drugs

Ed. Code 48986 Safe storage of firearms

Ed. Code 48987 Child abuse information

Ed. Code 49013 Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees

Ed. Code 49063 Notification of parental rights

Ed. Code 49067 Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course

Ed. Code 49068 Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record

Ed. Code 49069.7 Absolute right to access

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging content of student record

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 49073.6 Student records; social media

Ed. Code 49076 Access to student records

Ed. Code 49077 Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order

Ed. Code 49392 Threats of homicide at school

Ed. Code 49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunizations

Ed. Code 49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student

Ed. Code 49451 Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent

Ed. Code 49452.5 Screening for scoliosis

Ed. Code 49452.6 Type 1 diabetes informational materials

Ed. Code 49452.7 Information on type 2 diabetes

Ed. Code 49452.8 Oral health assessment

Ed. Code 49455.5 Eye examination for purpose of eyeglasses

Ed. Code 49456 Results of vision or hearing test

Ed. Code 49471-49472 Insurance

Ed. Code 49475 Student athletes; concussions and head injuries

Ed. Code 49476 Student athletes; opioid fact sheet

Ed. Code 49480 Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions

Ed. Code 49510-49520 Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970

Ed. Code 51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.2 Course credits

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.31 Graduation from high school; exemption for eligible students with special
needs

Ed. Code 51225.8 Completion and submission of FAFSA and CADAA

Ed. Code 51229 Course of study for grades 7-12

Ed. Code 51513 Personal beliefs; privacy

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1128

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48983.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48984.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48986.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48987.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49013.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49063.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49067.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49068.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49069.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49070.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49076.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49077.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49392.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49403.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49423.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49451.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49452.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49455.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49456.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49475.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49476.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49480.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.31.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51229.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51513.


Ed. Code 51749.5 Independent study

Ed. Code 51938 HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction

Ed. Code 52062 Local control and accountability plans and the statewide system of support

Ed. Code 52164 Language census

Ed. Code 52164.1 Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of
language skills

Ed. Code 52164.3 Reassessment of English learners; notification of results

Ed. Code 52242 Advanced placement examination fees

Ed. Code 54444.2 Migrant education programs; parent involvement

Ed. Code 56301 Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights

Ed. Code 56321 Special education: proposed assessment plan

Ed. Code 56321.5-56321.6 Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education

Ed. Code 56329 Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment

Ed. Code 56341.1 Development of individualized education program; right to audio record
meeting

Ed. Code 56341.5 Individualized education program team meetings

Ed. Code 56343.5 Individualized education program meetings

Ed. Code 56366.45 Change in status of a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency

Ed. Code 56521.1 Behavioral intervention

Ed. Code 58501 Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment

Ed. Code 60615 Exemption from state assessment

Ed. Code 60641 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

Ed. Code 60900.5 Use of CalPADS data

Ed. Code 69432.9 Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program

Ed. Code 8212 Complaints related to preschool health and safety issues

Ed. Code 8483 Before/after school program; enrollment priorities

Ed. Code 8489 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

Ed. Code 8489.1 Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco use prevention

H&S Code 104855 Availability of topical fluoride treatment

H&S Code 116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy

H&S Code 120365-120375 Immunizations

H&S Code 120440 Sharing immunization information

H&S Code 124100-124105 Health screening and immunizations

H&S Code 1596.8555 Administration of child day care licensing; posting license

H&S Code 1596.857 Right to enter child care facility

H&S Code 1597.16 Licensed child care centers; lead testing

Pen. Code 626.81 Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus

Pen. Code 627.5 Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration

W&I Code 10228 Child care providers; posting of rates, discounts, and scholarships

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

1129

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51749.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51938.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52062.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52164.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52242.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=54444.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56301.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56321.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=30.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56329.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56341.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56341.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56343.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56366.45.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56521.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=58501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60615.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60641.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60900.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=69432.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8212.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8483.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8489.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=8489.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104420.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=104885.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=3.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.8555.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1596.857.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=1597.16.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.81.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=627.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=10228.


State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1232h Privacy rights

20 USC 1415 Procedural safeguards

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 6312 Local educational agency plan

20 USC 6318 Parent and family engagement

20 USC 7704 Impact Aid; policies and procedures related to children residing on Indian
lands

20 USC 7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students

34 CFR 104.32 District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education

34 CFR 104.36 Procedural safeguards

34 CFR 104.8 Nondiscrimination

34 CFR 106.9 Severability

34 CFR 200.48 Teacher qualifications

34 CFR 222.94 Impact Aid; district responsibilities

34 CFR 300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation

34 CFR 300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings

34 CFR 300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability

34 CFR 300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of
student with disability

34 CFR 300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities

34 CFR 300.508 Due process complaint

34 CFR 300.530 Discipline procedures

34 CFR 99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information

34 CFR 99.34 Student records; disclosure to other educational agencies

34 CFR 99.37 Disclosure of directory information

34 CFR 99.7 Student records; annual notification

40 CFR 763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions

40 CFR 763.93 Asbestos management plans

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

42 USC 1758 Child nutrition programs

7 CFR 245.5 Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals

7 CFR 245.6a Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and
Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service

1130

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232h edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232h)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1415 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1415)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6311 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6311)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6312 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6312)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6318 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6318)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7704 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7704)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7908 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7908)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-D/section-104.32
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-D/section-104.36
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104/subpart-A/section-104.8
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106/subpart-A/section-106.9
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-A/section-200.48
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-II/part-222/subpart-G/subject-group-ECFRf3208fed8076bf8/section-222.94
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR0e487e9b8f716c0/section-300.300
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR28b07e67452ed7a/section-300.322
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.502
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.503
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.504
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.508
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/subject-group-ECFRfb9aefa81a38ee9/section-300.530
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-D/section-99.30
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-D/section-99.34
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-D/section-99.37
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A/section-99.7
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.84
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-40/chapter-I/subchapter-R/part-763/subpart-E/section-763.93
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1758 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1758)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-245/section-245.5
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-245/section-245.6a
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fns.usda.gov


Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3312 Contracts

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3514.2 Integrated Pest Management

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3515.5 Sex Offender Notification

3517 Facilities Inspection

3517-E(1) Facilities Inspection

3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3555 Nutrition Program Compliance

3555-E PDF(1) Nutrition Program Compliance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

1131

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AAFO2l2o9MAbzaM3Kj8cxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XgnslshJKKslsh9bdxtw47edMGig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PgxJhplusCKKesNPYQ4aXN6sA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=z3KAIN58bEjIgeUvCslshxplus2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MKycnSYio3fwDQVJ1slshn0JQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wpcpplusDfesDyqDslshPbt3Fy6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JxZplusxjxPBsZD5Gy9Hf2A5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iH2xTLZxDRTEtHWl1TnnlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MG3YciedvmQRtTIjasRbwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusoXH3JxNjx5DyzsnfqxcZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Cs4UYN8WU5fgnm1OL4jlMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=s8OqcvcKGLwBj2Bs5sCyBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pluswLNhKIHtm9NrFLff1jdplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fMq1dbWqBN13PpTecplussN2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshYxKPcUw8SB4OdYdRBZ68w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5JGzkWG8aplusWWjliw80zAKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6ePy67PGD6ysz8hnY7edmA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6hSeSXTnUfqhRG8XPDBxgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YakHRnslshSgqZ2iksRH137BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mzJKeqhH0nY2a1jT2P3Myw==


4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222-E PDF(1) Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5030 Student Wellness

5111 Admission

5111 Admission

5111.1 District Residency

5111.1 District Residency

5112.2 Exclusions From Attendance

5112.5 Open/Closed Campus

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5117 Interdistrict Attendance

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123-E PDF(1) Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5131.61 Drug Testing

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.3 Health Examinations

5141.3 Health Examinations

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1132

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=geTO3v48kNslsh5zqz2JdhkgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rSDWVIM0mR6T5uTAuylAhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vhtdEjrNCanYul9F3plusVfqg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tFzNgsUwvpsslsh5rgZVfMerw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=y9uajJvAiz5Cv2iv4gYplusfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BRefPHplusO9QHva0w8AgyTTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eY7RdLQkMt62BzK0tVS3Yg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o2bICCUQjgzB617bIoHq1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FQEDvS0Xe7klAplusGmwmosslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=E65U6rNct0PCh5TzyFTxjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3HDWMAslshfCqRlzH0hGxAVUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DI6ywVuc7JyQgdek6cc8PQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5PKcFR5HjC6zlSWROlN9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OwX3GmZwqN90hOP71xybOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rYJyuucQ8pIPXuN6Md6InQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k0jVpNQyElxkwTfTchUNOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IF66LY2PpkEYVWSnLKmJyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LcN9vRTlpZjVGXKPwplusUqPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ocVWiaAp0EaJZfo6jyH4gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GjdXmslshnyplusQc72u5KVWOeDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7pshrgVfGdZMm9Kc4wgaPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZwSiq59uUUHNTfw4UD3mCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjAn3LAjMy3KtQFO04HnTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=J7gt98g5WBsfbGpIGTfplusPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Dx8KLNVQWP5511KsksQbVg==


5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.32 Health Screening For School Entry

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5142.1 Identification And Reporting Of Missing Children

5143 Insurance

5143 Insurance

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.8 Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals

5145.8 Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.2 World Language Instruction

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1133

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8S0TFaHIdqbWyslsh1NHCTwag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dZnCOmRlLyy9x9hHhslsh9slshLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1XvJUtEHDZVl0dn58ucgPg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AxVplusef3DK6libsKCUwslshLXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zrTXrVBkcYzw7VntLHqGeg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=h8FDIi10gdjid2BmslshIiLplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o1CyqjgZcZll0EL9rYoucA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Oc14dzxXfCgplusGnlfazMrYg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qANB3w0WdGpm1oFrFPuJYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CwzJH6cjCmR51xJ0hm8Gmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=L48qPeXM4rfS6lhVVbIxpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UwbZkiRPS6mEhtplusM4aIoiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NdS3ITAmXi5YJxIa2P0nnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u0KIYnF1vwt1FWaVnvz8Ug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=48tuLsv3dSbv6SLDhZZwwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3j4F45slshslshWoxueEERslshXnhiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LLhFQhntSGslshyJ4Ll2roQYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==


6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2-E PDF(1) Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.1 Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.2 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education

6159.4 Behavioral Interventions For Special Education Students

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.8 Research

6162.8 Research

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.3 Education For Juvenile Court School Students

6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1134

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gpTCDTLlv4yypyMoMTDXslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=U6fLlNzFdxcINc04wplusZusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Dmw35FlqGwHW19l4nyFh0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t9slshBl67vvB3M3ZfhIHmPAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8C93wExGD9cMe16x45plusMzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusEFuPIOyBIOQo3IF0jOJFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xxClFkI6arC1hk4HQvbL2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshkic8mRh8bSX8GPxFoVTxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zzslshjVkByQ2SMG9ypluszVcq3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshQc848k8yejWTUxHAtK1ew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uahjTZz0J80SKh8LFRmJmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7WCE5GlrzmWHOEEAZ4AOCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNCVZBgJ9VmKAsw5Po0qnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ws7UMexGqT5Z38wJpkKljg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Khpw3dD4JKBXlwslshwtrOOww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P5IwtJJxCesc5RlIXoplusz8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshC39JFPNHvqMfvvefXTIqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PxFIp5oJzfmJOSBv4qdCWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xj7HyYcYYWt1fX9nAxy2Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==


6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

9310 Board Policies

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1135

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4C5xwe76bfoCibvslshg8h7HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HBBf4ROJSOTs0gBwLgecsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hqoWWN0aSNwSBq1E1JVEhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UBWDuz3w1JnfecVpmbwcGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==


Regulation 5145.7: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based HarassmentRegulation 5145.7: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/18/2021

Harmony Union School District
Administrative Regulation 5145.7: Sexual Harassment Status: PENDING
Original Adopted Date:      | Last Revised Date:      | Last Reviewed Date:  

The district does not discriminate on the basis of sex in any of its programs or activities and complies with Title IX of
the Education Amendments of 1972 and its implementing regulations. Sex discrimination, including sex-based
harassment, is prohibited in district education programs and activities.

Definitions

Sex discrimination includes treating a student differently with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate
in school programs or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services based on the student's
sex, sex stereotypes; sex characteristics; sexual orientation; gender; gender identity; gender expression; pregnancy,
childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation, including related medical conditions and recovery; parental, family,
or marital status; or the student's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived
characteristics.

Sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may result from physical, verbal,
nonverbal, or written conduct and occurs when prohibited conduct is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it
affects a student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating,
threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering
with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a student's educational opportunities.

Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination and means sexual harassment and other harassment on the basis
of sex, sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, or other bases specified above. Conduct will constitute sex-based
harassment when it takes the form of:  (34 CFR 106.2, 106.11)

1. Quid pro quo harassment: A district employee, agent, or other individual authorized by the district to provide
an aid, benefit, or service in the district's education program or activity conditioning the provision of district
aid, benefit, or service on a student's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct
 

2. Hostile environment harassment: Unwelcome sex-based conduct that, based on the totality of the
circumstances, is subjectively and objectively offensive and is so severe or pervasive that it limits or denies a
person's ability to participate in or benefit from the district's education program or activity

Any prohibited conduct that occurs off campus or outside of school-related or school-sponsored programs or
activities will be regarded as sex-based harassment in violation of district policy if it has a continuing effect on
a student's ability to participate in or benefit from district educational programs or activities.
 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 34 CFR 106.2

Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, unwanted requests for sexual favors,
or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature made against another person of the same or
opposite sex in the educational setting, under any of the following conditions:  (Education Code 212.5; 5 CCR 4916)

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of a student's academic status or
progress
 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by a student is used as the basis for academic decisions affecting the
student
 

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the student's academic performance or

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1136



of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment
 

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the student is used as the basis for any decision affecting the
student regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at or through any district
program or activity

Examples of Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

Examples of types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and which may constitute sex- based harassment,
under state and/or federal law, in accordance with the definitions above, include, but are not limited to:

1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations, or propositions
 

2. Unwelcome sex-based slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or sexually degrading
descriptions
 

3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body or overly personal conversation
 

4. Sex-based jokes, derogatory posters, notes, stories, cartoons, drawings, pictures, obscene gestures, or
computer-generated images of a sexual nature
 

5. Spreading sex-based rumors
 

6. Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-sex class
 

7. Massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or brushing the body
 

8. Touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way
 

9. Impeding or blocking movements or any physical interference with school activities when directed at an
individual on the basis of sex
 

10. Displaying sexually suggestive objects
 

11. Sexual assault, sexual battery, or sexual coercion
 

12. Electronic communications containing comments, words, or images described above

Title IX Coordinator/Compliance Officer

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to coordinate its efforts to comply
with Title IX. The individual(s) shall also serve as the Compliance Officer(s)   specified in Administrative Regulation
1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures and Administrative Regulation 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment as
the responsible employee(s) to handle student complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, as permitted by law. The
Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted at:

Matthew Morgan, Superintendent-Principal
1935 Bohemian Highway
Occidental, CA 94565
Phone (707) 874-1205
mmorgan@harmonyusd.org

Notifications

1137

mailto:mmorgan@harmonyusd.org


To prevent unlawful sex discrimination and sex-based harassment in district programs and activities, the
Superintendent or designee shall provide notifications and implement measures to prevent discrimination and
harassment as specified in Administrative Regulation 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

In addition to the measures to prevent discrimination specified in Administrative Regulation 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a copy of the district's sex
discrimination and sex-based harassment policy and regulation:

1. Is displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other area where notices of district
rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct are posted. (Education Code 231.5)

 

2. Is provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new and continuing students at the time the
student is enrolled or at the beginning of each quarter, semester, or summer session. (Education Code 231.5)
 

3. Appears in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's comprehensive rules,
regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct. (Education Code 231.5)

Reports and Complaints

A student or a student's parent(s)/guardian(s) who believes that the student has been subjected to sex discrimination,
including sex-based harassment, in a district program or activity or who has witnessed sex discrimination, including
sex-based harassment, is strongly encouraged to report the incident to the district's Title IX Coordinator, a teacher,
the principal, or any other available school employee. Within one workday of receiving such a report, the principal or
other school employee shall forward the report to the district's Title IX Coordinator. Any school employee who
observes sex discrimination or sex-based harassment shall, within one workday, report the observation to the Title IX
Coordinator as specified in the accompanying board policy. The report shall be made regardless of whether the
alleged victim files a formal complaint or requests confidentiality.

When a report or complaint of sex discrimination or sex-based harassment involves off-campus conduct, the Title IX
Coordinator shall assess whether the conduct may create or contribute to the creation of a hostile school
environment. If the Title IX Coordinator determines that a hostile environment may be created, the complaint shall
be investigated and resolved in the same manner as if the prohibited conduct occurred at school.

Complaint Procedures

All complaints and allegations of sex discrimination and sex-based harassment shall be investigated and resolved in
accordance with 34 CFR 106.44 and 106.45 and Administrative Regulation 5145.71 - Title IX Sex Discrimination and
Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Procedures.

Issues Unique to Intersex, Nonbinary, Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students

Gender identity of a student means the student's gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior as determined from
the student's internal sense, regardless of whether that gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior is different
from that traditionally associated with the student's physiology or assigned sex at birth.

Gender expression means a student's gender-related appearance and behavior, whether stereotypically associated
with the student's assigned sex at birth.  (Education Code 210.7)

Gender transition refers to the process in which a student changes from living and identifying as the sex assigned to
the student at birth to living and identifying as the sex that corresponds to the student's gender identity.

Gender-nonconforming student means a student whose gender expression differs from stereotypical expectations.

Intersex student means a student with natural bodily variations in anatomy, hormones, chromosomes, and other traits
that differ from expectations generally associated with female and male bodies.

Nonbinary student means a student whose gender identity falls outside of the traditional conception of strictly either
female or male, regardless of whether the student identifies as transgender, was born with intersex traits, uses
gender-neutral pronouns, or uses agender, genderqueer, pangender, gender nonconforming, gender variant, or such

1138



other more specific term to describe their gender.

Transgender student means a student whose gender identity is different from the gender assigned at birth.

The district prohibits acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility that are based on sex,
sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression, or that have the
purpose or effect of producing a negative impact on the student's academic performance or of creating an
intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment, regardless of whether the acts are sexual in nature.
Examples of the types of conduct that are prohibited in the district and which may constitute sex-based hostile
environment harassment include, but are not limited to:

1. Refusing to address a student by a name and the pronouns consistent with the student's gender identity
 

2. Disciplining or disparaging a student or excluding the student from participating in activities, for behavior or
appearance that is consistent with the student's gender identity or that does not conform to stereotypical
notions of masculinity or femininity, as applicable
 

3. Blocking a student's entry to the restroom that corresponds to the student's gender identity
 

4. Taunting a student because the student participates in an athletic activity more typically favored by a student
of the other sex
 

5. Revealing a student's gender identity to individuals who do not have a legitimate need for the information,
without the student's consent
 

6. Using gender-specific slurs
 

7. Assaulting a student because of the student's gender, sex characteristic, sexual orientation, gender identity, or
gender expression

To ensure that intersex, nonbinary, transgender, and gender-nonconforming students are afforded the same rights,
benefits, and protections provided to all students by law and Board policy, the district shall address each situation on
a case-by-case basis, in accordance with the following guidelines:

1. Right to privacy: A student's intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming status is the student's
private information

The district shall develop strategies to prevent unauthorized disclosure of students' private information. Such
strategies may include, but are not limited to, collecting or maintaining information about student gender only
when relevant to the educational program or activity, protecting or revealing a student's gender identity as
necessary to protect the health or safety of the student, and keeping a student's unofficial record separate
from the official record.

The district shall only disclose the information to others with the student's prior written consent, except when
the disclosure is otherwise required by law or when the district has compelling evidence that disclosure is
necessary to preserve the student's physical or mental well-being.  (Education Code 220.3, 220.5; 34 CFR
99.31, 99.36)

The district shall only allow disclosure of a student's personally identifiable information to employees in
accordance with law. Any district employee to whom a student's intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-
nonconforming status is disclosed shall keep the student's information confidential. When disclosure of a
student's gender identity is made to a district employee by a student, the employee shall seek the student's
permission to notify the Compliance Officer. If the student refuses to give permission, the employee shall keep
the student's information confidential, unless the employee is required to disclose or report the student's
information pursuant to this administrative regulation, and shall inform the student that honoring the student's
request may limit the district's ability to meet the student's needs related to the student's status as an intersex,
nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming student. If the student permits the employee to notify the
Compliance Officer, the employee shall do so within three school days.

1139



As appropriate given the student's need for support, the Compliance Officer may discuss with the student any
need to disclose the student's intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconformity status or gender
identity or gender expression to the student's parents/guardians and/or others, including other students,
teacher(s), or other adults on campus. The district shall offer support services, such as counseling, to students
who wish to inform their parents/guardians of their status and request assistance in doing so.
 

2. Determining a Student's Gender Identity: The Compliance Officer shall accept the student's assertion of
gender identity and begin to treat the student consistent with that gender identity unless district personnel
present a credible and supportable basis for believing that the student's assertion is for an improper purpose
 

3. Addressing a Student's Transition Needs: The Compliance Officer shall arrange a meeting with the student and,
if appropriate, the student's parents/guardians to identify and develop strategies for ensuring that the
student's access to educational programs and activities is maintained

The meeting shall discuss the intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming student's rights and
how those rights may affect and be affected by the rights of other students and shall address specific subjects
related to the student's access to facilities and to academic or educational support programs, services, or
activities, including, but not limited to, sports and other competitive endeavors. In addition, the Compliance
Officer shall identify specific school site employee(s) to whom the student may report any problem related to
the student's status as an intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming individual, so that prompt
action can be taken to address it. Alternatively, if appropriate and desired by the student, the school may form
a support team for the student that will meet periodically to assess whether the arrangements for the student
are meeting the student's educational needs and providing equal access to programs and activities, educate
appropriate staff about the student's transition, and serve as a resource to the student to better protect the
student from gender-based discrimination.

4. Accessibility to Sex-Segregated Facilities, Programs, and Activities: When the district maintains sex-segregated
facilities, such as restrooms and locker rooms, or offers sex-segregated programs and activities, such as
physical education classes, intermural sports, and interscholastic athletic programs, students shall be permitted
to access facilities and participate in programs and activities consistent with their gender identity

To address any student's privacy concerns in using sex-segregated facilities, the district shall offer available
options such as a gender-neutral or single-use restroom or changing area, a bathroom stall with a door, an area
in the locker room separated by a curtain or screen, or use of the locker room before or after the other
students. However, the district shall not require a student to utilize these options because the student is
intersex, nonbinary, transgender, or gender-nonconforming. In addition, a student shall be permitted to
participate in accordance with the student's gender identity in other circumstances where students are
separated by gender, such as for class discussions, yearbook pictures, and field trips. A student's right to
participate in a sex-segregated activity in accordance with the student's gender identity shall not render invalid
or inapplicable any other eligibility rule established for participation in the activity.

Beginning July 1, 2026, each school shall provide and maintain at least one all-gender restroom for student use
that meets the requirements of Education Code 35292.5.

5. Student Records: Upon each student's enrollment, the district is required to maintain a mandatory permanent
student record (official record) that includes the student's gender and legal name

A student's legal name as entered on the mandatory student record required pursuant to 5 CCR 432 shall only
be changed with proper documentation. A student's gender as entered on the student's official record required
pursuant to 5 CCR 432 shall only be changed with written authorization of a parent/guardian having legal
custody of the student.  (Education Code 49061)

However, when proper documentation or authorization, as applicable, is not submitted with a request to
change a student's legal name or gender, any change to the student's record shall be limited to the student's
unofficial records such as attendance sheets, report cards, and school identification.
 

6. Names and Pronouns: If a student so chooses, district personnel shall be required to address the student by a
name and the pronoun(s) consistent with the student's gender identity, without the necessity of a court order
or a change to the student's official district record

1140



However, inadvertent slips or honest mistakes by district personnel in the use of the student's name and/or
consistent pronouns will, in general, not constitute a violation of this administrative regulation or the
accompanying board policy.
 

7. Uniforms/Dress Code: A student has the right to dress in a manner consistent with the student's gender
identity, subject to any dress code adopted on a school site

 
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer:
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.
Federal Description
20 USC 1092 Definition of sexual assault
20 USC 1221 Application of laws
20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972;

discrimination based on sex
34 CFR 106.1-106.71 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs
34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs
34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy
34 USC 12291 Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and

stalking
42 USC 1983 Civil action for deprivation of rights
42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964
42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended
Management Resources Description
Court Decision Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2001, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d

736
Court Decision Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473
Court Decision Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998)

524 U.S. 274
Court Decision Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.)

324 F.3d 1130
Court Decision Donovan v. Poway Unified School District (2008) 167

Cal.App.4th 567
Court Decision Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54

F.3d 1447
Court Decision Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526

U.S. 629
CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure

Student Success, 2011
CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for

Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy
Brief, February 2014

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights
Publication

Sexual Harassment:  It's Not Academic, September 2008

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights
Publication

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of
Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third
Parties, January 2001

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights
Publication

Q&A on Campus Sexual Misconduct, September 2017

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights
Publication

Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting
Transgender Students, May 2016

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights
Website CSBA
Website California Department of Education
State Description
5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

1141

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education
programs

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct
by a minor

Civ. Code 51.9 Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and
professional relationships

Ed. Code 200-262.4 Educational equity; prohibition of discrimination on the
basis of sex

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion; definition of bullying
Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension and expulsion
Ed. Code 48900.2 Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual

harassment
Ed. Code 48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct
Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications
Gov. Code 12950.1 Sexual harassment training
Cross References
Code Description
0410 Nondiscrimination In County Office Programs And Activities
1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures
1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures
1312.3-E(3) Uniform Complaint Procedures
5131.2 Bullying
5131.2 Bullying
5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment
5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment
5145.71 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
5145.71-E(1) Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
5145.71-E(2) Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures

 

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 432 Student records

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs
receiving state or federal financial assistance

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Civ. Code 51.9 Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional
relationships

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 220.1 Prohibition of retaliation related to educational equity

Ed. Code 220.3 Prohibition of disclosure of information related to student’s sexual
orientation, gender identity, or gender expression

Ed. Code 220.5 Prohibition of policies requiring disclosure of information related to
student’s sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression

Ed. Code 35292.5 School restrooms; all-gender restrooms

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900.2 Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment

Ed. Code 48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

1142

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=51.9.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=rtvzip1z1QYQOmHs0EOcOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=yMdZ3xt4UmslshQZ6DjyaJIkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=4S9QMQAgKlkHnww2JadYrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=ilYtNH3AftZi0ZnPcQHlCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=pDDJ0DOVO7WLak0Vn95NHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=jmeM10ssC83XTJWtHHAwRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=kSz04fyFG0KIeqfU09vLVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=X4R0yLr5slshxdm55sslshVhO6wQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=cjAvjplusVekGs0HMM91tJV1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=HOi6CocXplusz4cfE1BarOf8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=hIsNWyVoGLiNV4IF8owJxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030446&revid=9slshHG03V4ysXaLoIpKj7I5Q==
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I2B0900534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=51.9.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=35292.5.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48904.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.


Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49060-49079 Student records

Gov. Code 12950.1 Sexual harassment training

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1092 Definition of sexual assault

20 USC 1221 Application of laws

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

34 USC 12291 Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking

42 USC 1983 Civil action for deprivation of rights

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication
California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) Update
FLASH #158: Guidance for Changing a Student’s Gender in CALPADS, July
2019

Court Decision Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1998) 524 U.S. 274

Court Decision Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473

Court Decision Reese v. Jefferson School District (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736

Court Decision Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education (1999) 526 U.S. 629

Court Decision Doe v. Petaluma City School District (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447

Court Decision Donovan v. Poway Unified School District (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567

Court Decision Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender
and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

CSBA Publication Legal Guidance on Rights of Transgender and Gender Nonconforming
Students in Schools, October 2022

Federal Register
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, April 29, 2024, Vol. 89, No. 83,
pages 33474-33896

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Sexual Harassment: It's Not Academic, September 2008

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School
Employees, Other Students, or Third Parties, January 2001

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender
Students, May 2016

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

1143

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1092 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1092)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1221 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1221)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:34 section:12291 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title34-section12291)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1983 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1983)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx
https://www.csba.org/~/media/E68E16A652D34EADA2BFDCD9668B1C8F.ashx
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/LegalAdvocacy/Legal-Guidance-Transgender-Legal-10-2022.ashx?la=en&rev=a3fb600ee6d640598c038dfceaef871c
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/04/29/2024-07915/nondiscrimination-on-the-basis-of-sex-in-education-programs-or-activities-receiving-federal
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/ocrshpam.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/shguide.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs/emergingpractices.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org


Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4131 Staff Development

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards - Code Of Ethics

4231 Staff Development

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

1144

http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p6ee9WGDcGk0dZ5peF6slshdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwQplusMk4AplustVtIslshRkN2Y9Xg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jlULdD55Z6s2w6fslshnQslshUplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5SxjphAf3y58ngSD8UP3qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oPeODeNCvU9cici9pMyFbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ehmq9dbHwXplusV0W1Jdk27cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=23qIOvMUEGBQN7n2uW5mnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5PslshhWytoYF03Y3HVZ5wy1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tMxfexuy3QYxzrquJP6z2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WBa4Q7bspzRMVlXZzmJ5dw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=welREa3Rkh9C0K7Yhjb7OQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ieQeL2i6IbFAxFnbL1s10g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DDj7dqx6NEiKdJ2wEkvp6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==


4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.5 Vandalism And Graffiti

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.2 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process (Students With Disabilities)

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.71-E PDF(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1145

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IYOa9MgCaAC5CiiIslshslshp6RA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WxjWI7M74q5nxuseyzxslshXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DX5ymEWG3s2CdP70CqJN3g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=srwESJnIN8uCYeDk3p5o4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HsaEmIJcZWrk7Q18AdtTEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jVYr1cMfodNAUjLaAjdfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CfwLWxIK8ufLuMPcLaYAhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aslshBE4uBozduiWScBbgRpKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dD2SKrDRpB3slshBzQUnOHw9Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2VOdvKF4t1BFCYXQkq39SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3dwdkhe8Ar237orDlC3u9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u0KIYnF1vwt1FWaVnvz8Ug==


6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6145.2 Athletic Competition

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6163.4-E PDF(1) Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1146

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=48tuLsv3dSbv6SLDhZZwwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8LR1jZnjH28nZKMqnz2bUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GwPcy6HplusUplussvj3Loas0YRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jtw0HTZSplusslshdPJ0slshDw1LPOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=c5s3SEPjQLEJplusRqQAaBcOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=u9YjgxoraAKv3jv8u0vwBg==


Regulation 5145.71: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment ComplaintRegulation 5145.71: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
ProceduresProcedures

Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/18/2021

Harmony Union School District

Administrative Regulation 5145.71: Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint Procedures
Status: PENDING

Original Adopted Date:      | Last Revised Date:      | Last Reviewed Date: 

The district does not discriminate on the basis of sex and prohibits sex discrimination in any education program or
activity that it operates, as required by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (“Title IX”) and its regulations.

The grievance procedures described in this regulation have been adopted by the district to provide for the prompt
and equitable resolution of allegations that a district student, while participating in or attempting to participate in a
district education program or activity, was subjected to discrimination on the basis of sex, including but not limited
to, sex-based harassment, retaliation, or other conduct prohibited by Title IX. 

This regulation only applies to alleged incidents that occurred on or after August 1, 2024. For alleged incidents of sex
discrimination or sexual harassment that occurred prior to August 1, 2024, the procedures that applied at the time of
the alleged incident should be used.

This regulation applies to any district education program or activity, including but not limited to, events occurring on
school property, during any school-related or school-sponsored activity, on school-sponsored transportation, and/or
where the district has disciplinary authority.

Allegations that an employee was subjected to conduct prohibited by Title IX shall be addressed using the grievance
procedures in Administrative Regulation (“AR”) 4119.12, AR 4219.12, or AR 4319.12, as applicable.

Definitions

Complaint means an oral or written request to the district that objectively can be understood as a request for the
district to investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR
106.02)

Complainant means: (1) a student or employee who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations; or (2) a person other than a student or employee who is
alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations
and who was participating or attempting to participate in the district’s education program or activity at the time of
the alleged sex discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Party means a complainant or respondent. (34 CFR 106.02)

Peer retaliation means retaliation by a student against another student. (34 CFR 106.02)

Pregnancy or related conditions means: (1) pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; (2) medical
conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; or (3) recovery from pregnancy,
childbirth, termination of pregnancy, lactation, or related medical conditions. (34 CFR 106.02)

Respondent means a person who is alleged to have violated the district’s prohibition on sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.02)

Retaliation means intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination against any person by the district, a student, or an
employee or other person authorized by the district to provide aid, benefit, or service under the district’s education
program or activity, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or its regulations, or
because the person has reported information, made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this part, including in an informal
resolution process, in grievance procedures, and in any other actions taken by the district under 34 CFR 106.44 (f)(1).
This provision does not limit the district’s ability to require an employee to participate as a witness in, or otherwise

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1147



assist with, a Title IX investigation or proceeding. (34 CFR 106.02)

Sex discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related
conditions, sexual orientation, and gender identity. Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination. (34 CFR
106.02, 106.10)

Sex-based harassment is a form of sex discrimination and means sexual harassment and other harassment on the basis
of sex, including on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or related conditions, sexual
orientation, and gender identity, that is (34 CFR 106.02):

 

1. Quid pro quo harassment. An employee, agent, or other person authorized by the district to provide an aid,
benefit, or service under the district’s education program or activity explicitly or impliedly conditioning the
provision of such an aid, benefit, or service on a person’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;

 

2. Hostile environment harassment. Unwelcome sex-based conduct that, based on the totality of the
circumstances, is subjectively and objectively offensive and is so severe or pervasive that it limits or denies a
person’s ability to participate in or benefit from the district’s education program or activity (i.e., creates a
hostile environment). Whether a hostile environment has been created is a fact-specific inquiry that includes
consideration of the following:

 

i. The degree to which the conduct affected the complainant’s ability to access the district’s education
program or activity;

 

ii. The type, frequency, and duration of the conduct;

 

iii. The parties’ ages, roles within the district’s education program or activity, previous interactions, and
other factors about each party that may be relevant to evaluating the effects of the conduct;

 

iv. The location of the conduct and the context in which the conduct occurred; and

 

v. Other sex-based harassment in the district’s education program or activity; or
 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 34 CFR 106.2.

Supportive measures means individualized measures offered as appropriate, as reasonably
available, without unreasonably burdening a Complainant or Respondent, not for punitive or
disciplinary reasons, and without fee or charge to the Complainant or Respondent to (34 CFR 106.02):
 

1. Restore or preserve that party’s access to the district’s education program or activity, including measures that
are designed to protect the safety of the parties or the district’s educational environment; or

 

2. Provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or during an informal

resolution process.

General Title IX Requirements

1148



When implementing the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure compliance
with the following requirements (34 CFR 106.45, 106.44):
 

1. That Complainants and Respondents are treated equitably.

 

2. That the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decisionmaker, appeal decisionmaker, and any facilitator of an
informal resolution process do not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or
Respondents generally or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Such persons shall also receive training in
accordance with 34 CFR 106.8.  A decisionmaker may be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator or
investigator. 

 

3. That the Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged sex discrimination until a determination is
made at the conclusion of these grievance procedures.

 

4. That discipline is not imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations
unless there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged
in prohibited sex discrimination.

 

5. That reasonable steps are taken to protect the privacy of the parties and witnesses during the grievance
procedures. These steps shall not restrict the ability of the parties to obtain and present evidence, including by
speaking to witnesses (subject to the district’s prohibition on peer retaliation); consult with their family
members, confidential resources, or advisors; or otherwise prepare for or participate in the grievance
procedures.

 

6. That all relevant and permissible evidence – including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence – is
objectively evaluated and that credibility determinations are not based on a person’s status as a Complainant,
Respondent, or witness.

 

7. That all evidence considered impermissible or privileged under 34 CFR 106.45(b) is excluded.

The district prohibits retaliation against an individual for reporting suspected sex discrimination, making a Complaint,
being a witness, or otherwise participating in a Title IX investigation or proceeding. Retaliation is illegal under federal
and state nondiscrimination laws, prohibited by Board policy, and will result in disciplinary action.

The district shall not disclose personally identifiable information obtained in the course of complying with Title IX
regulations, except: (1) when the district has obtained prior written consent from a person with the legal right to
consent to the disclosure; (2) when the information is disclosed to a parent, guardian, or other authorized legal
representative with the legal right to receive disclosures on behalf of the person whose personally identifiable
information is at issue; (3) to carry out the purposes of the Title IX regulations, including action taken to address
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX in the district’s education program or
activity; (4) as required by federal law, federal regulations, or the terms and conditions of a federal award, including a
grant award or other funding agreement; or (5) to the extent such disclosures are not otherwise in conflict with Title
IX or its regulations, when required by state or local law or when permitted under FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 1232g, or its
implementing regulations, 34 CFR part 99. (34 CFR 106.44(j))

If either party is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with one or more
members, as appropriate, of the student's individualized education program (“IEP”) or 504 team, to determine how to
comply with the requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (“IDEA”) or Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

1149



Title IX Coordinator

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to coordinate its efforts to comply
with Title IX. The Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted at:

Matthew Morgan, Superintendent-Principal
1935 Bohemian Highway
Occidental, CA 94565
Phone (707) 874-1205
mmorgan@harmonyusd.org

Duty to Report Prohibited Conduct

An employee shall notify the Title IX Coordinator within one (1) workday when the employee has information about
conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination, including but not limited to sex-based harassment, under
Title IX or its regulations. (34 CFR 106.44(c)) 

Nothing in this regulation alters an employee’s obligations to report suspected child abuse or neglect under
mandated reporting laws.

Students who believe that they have, or another student has, been discriminated against or harassed on the basis of
sex are strongly encouraged to report their concern promptly to the Title IX Coordinator or other staff. 

The Title IX Coordinator shall monitor the district’s education programs and activities for barriers to reporting
information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations and
take steps reasonably calculated to address such barriers. (34 CFR 106.44(b))

When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX and its regulations,
including but not limited to sex-based harassment, the Title IX coordinator shall (34 CFR 106.44(f)):

 

1. If applicable, immediately report any suspected child abuse in accordance with mandated reporting
requirements;

 

2. Contact the Complainant and/or the individual who reported the conduct to provide information regarding the
district’s grievance procedures and any informal resolution process, if available and appropriate; offer
supportive measures as appropriate; and determine how they wish to proceed; and

 

3. If a Complaint is made, notify the Respondent of the grievance procedures and any informal resolution
process, if available and appropriate, and coordinate supportive measures, as appropriate, for the Respondent.

Complaints

The following people have a right to make a Complaint of sex discrimination, including a Complaint of sex-based
harassment, requesting that the district investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under
Title IX (34 CFR 106.45(a), 106.02):
 

1. A Complainant;

 

2. A parent, guardian, or other authorized legal representative with the legal right to act on behalf of a
Complainant; or

 

1150



3. The district’s Title IX Coordinator or designee.

With respect to complaints of sex discrimination other than sex-based harassment, in addition to the people listed
above, the following persons have a right to make a Complaint (34 CFR 106.45(a)):

 

1. Any student or employee; or

 

2. Any person other than a student or employee who was participating or attempting to participate in a district
education program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discrimination.

In the absence of a Complaint or the withdrawal of any or all of the allegations in a Complaint, and in the absence or
termination of an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator, when notified of conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination, shall determine whether to initiate a Complaint of sex discrimination. To make this
fact-specific determination, the Title IX Coordinator must consider, at a minimum, the following factors (34 CFR
106.44(f)):
 

1. The Complainant’s request not to proceed with initiation of a Complaint;

 

2. The Complainant’s reasonable safety concerns regarding initiation of a Complaint;

 

3. The risk that additional acts of sex discrimination would occur if a Complaint is not initiated;

 

4. The severity of the alleged sex discrimination, including whether the discrimination, if established, would
require the removal of a Respondent from campus or imposition of another disciplinary sanction to end the
discrimination and prevent its recurrence;

 

5. The age and relationship of the parties, including whether the Respondent is an employee of the district;

 

6. The scope of the alleged sex discrimination, including information suggesting a pattern, ongoing sex
discrimination, or sex discrimination alleged to have impacted multiple individuals;

 

7. The availability of evidence to assist a decisionmaker in determining whether sex discrimination occurred; and

 

8. Whether the district could end the alleged sex discrimination and prevent its recurrence without initiating its
grievance procedures.                                                                

If, after considering these and other relevant factors, the Title IX Coordinator determines that the conduct as alleged
presents an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of the Complainant or other person, or that the
conduct as alleged prevents the district from ensuring equal access on the basis of sex to its education program or
activity, the Title IX Coordinator may initiate a Complaint. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

If the Title IX Coordinator initiates a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator shall notify the Complainant of the
Complaint prior to doing so, as well as provide other notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific points

1151



in the grievance procedures, and appropriately address reasonable concerns about the Complainant’s safety or the
safety of others, including by providing supportive measures. (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Regardless of whether a Complaint is initiated, the Title IX Coordinator shall take other appropriate prompt and
effective steps, in addition to steps necessary to effectuate the remedies provided to an individual Complainant, if
any, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity.
(34 CFR 106.44(f))

Complaints of sex discrimination may be consolidated when they arise out of the same facts or circumstances,
including Complaints against more than one Respondent, Complaints by more than one Complainant, or Complaints
by one party against another party. (34 CFR 106.45(e))

Initial Evaluation

Upon receipt of a Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall conduct a prompt initial evaluation to
determine whether to dismiss or investigate a complaint, within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

The Title IX Coordinator or designee may dismiss a Complaint of sex discrimination if (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. The district is unable to identify the Respondent after taking reasonable steps to do so;
 

2. The Respondent is not participating in a district education program or activity and is not employed by the
district;
 

3. The Complainant voluntarily withdraws any or all of the allegations in the Complaint, the
Title IX Coordinator declines to initiate a complaint, and the Title IX Coordinator determines that, without the
Complainant’s withdrawn allegations, the conduct that remains alleged in the Complaint, if any, would not
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX even if proven; or

 

4. The Title IX Coordinator or designee determines the conduct alleged in the Complaint, even if proven, would
not constitute sex discrimination under Title IX. Before dismissing the Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or
designee shall make reasonable efforts to clarify the allegations with the Complainant.

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall promptly notify the Complainant of the basis for
the dismissal. If the dismissal occurs after the Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX
Coordinator or designee shall also notify the Respondent of the dismissal and the basis for the dismissal promptly
following notification to the Complainant, or simultaneously if notification is in writing. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the Complainant that a dismissal may be appealed and shall provide
the Complainant with an opportunity to appeal the dismissal of a Complaint. If the dismissal occurs after the
Respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall also notify the
Respondent that the dismissal may be appealed. Dismissals may be appealed on the following bases (34 CFR
106.45(d)):

 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;
 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the dismissal was
made; and
 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
Complainants or Respondents generally or the individual Complainant or Respondent that would change the
outcome.
 

1152



If the dismissal is appealed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall (34 CFR 106.45(d)):

 

1. Notify the parties of any appeal, including notice of the allegations, if notice was not previously provided to
the Respondent;
 

2. Implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;
 

3. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal did not take part in an investigation of the allegations or dismissal
of the Complaint;
 

4. Ensure that the decisionmaker for the appeal has been trained consistent with 34 CFR 106.8;

 

5. Provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement in support of, or challenging, the
outcome; and
 

6. Notify the parties of the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result.

When a Complaint is dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall, at a minimum, undertake the following: (1)
offer supportive measures to the Complainant as appropriate; (2) if the Respondent has been notified of the
allegations, offer supportive measures to the Respondent as appropriate; and (3) take other prompt and effective
steps, as appropriate, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur within a district education
program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(d))

If a Complaint is dismissed, the conduct may still be addressed pursuant to other board policies or district regulations
where applicable, including but not limited to BP/AR 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedures.

If after an initial evaluation the Complaint is not dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator shall either initiate the district’s
grievance procedures or, if available and appropriate and requested by all the parties, an informal resolution process
as specified in the section below titled “Informal Resolution Process.” (34 CFR 106.44(f))

Notice of Allegations

Upon initiation of the district’s Title IX grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the
known parties in writing of the following (34 CFR 106.45(c)):
 

1. The district's Title IX grievance procedures and any informal resolution process;

 

2. Sufficient information available at the time to allow the parties to respond to the allegations, including the
identities of the parties involved in the incident(s), the conduct alleged to constitute sex discrimination, and the
date(s) and location(s) of the alleged incident(s);

 

3. A statement that retaliation is prohibited; and

 

4. A statement that the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence or an accurate description of this evidence. If a description of the evidence is provided,
the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise impermissible
evidence upon the request of any party.

If, in the course of an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator or designee decides to investigate additional allegations
of sex discrimination by the Respondent toward the Complainant that are not included in the notice provided or that

1153



are included in a Complaint that is consolidated, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall notify the known parties
of the additional allegations. (34 CFR 106.45(c))

Investigation Procedures

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall designate an investigator and a decisionmaker to determine whether sex
discrimination occurred. The investigator may be the same person as the decisionmaker. Neither the investigator nor
the decisionmaker may have a conflict of interest or bias and both shall have received training in accordance with 34
CFR 106.8.  

The designated investigator shall conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial by (34 CFR
106.45(b), (f)):
 

1. Ensuring that the burden is on the district’s investigator – not on the parties – to conduct an investigation that
gathers sufficient evidence to determine whether sex discrimination occurred. 

 

2. Ensuring that the parties have an equal opportunity to present fact witnesses and other inculpatory and
exculpatory evidence that are relevant and not otherwise impermissible.

 

3. Reviewing all evidence gathered through the investigation and determining what evidence is relevant and what
evidence is impermissible regardless of relevance.

 

4. Excluding the following types of evidence as impermissible, including questions seeking such evidence:

 

a. Evidence that is protected under a privilege recognized by Federal or State law unless the person to
whom the privilege or confidentiality is owed has voluntarily waived the privilege or confidentiality;

 

b. A party’s or witness’s records that are made or maintained by a physician, psychologist, or other
recognized professional or paraprofessional in connection with the provision of treatment to the party or
witness, unless the district obtains that party’s or witness’s voluntary, written consent for use in its
grievance procedures; and

 

c. Evidence that relates to the Complainant’s sexual interests or prior sexual conduct, unless evidence
about the Complainant’s prior sexual conduct is offered to prove that someone other than the
Respondent committed the alleged conduct or is evidence about specific incidents of the Complainant’s
prior sexual conduct with the Respondent that is offered to prove consent to the alleged sex-based
harassment. The fact of prior consensual sexual conduct between the Complainant and Respondent does
not by itself demonstrate or imply the Complainant’s consent to the alleged sex-based harassment or
preclude determination that sex-based harassment occurred.

 

5. Providing each party with an equal opportunity to access the evidence that is relevant to the allegations of sex
discrimination and not otherwise impermissible, by:

 

a. Providing an equal opportunity to access such evidence, or an accurate description of this evidence.  

If the parties are provided with a description of the evidence, the designated investigator shall, upon the request of

1154



any party, provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence. 
 

b. Providing a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate description of the
evidence for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily waived by both
parties.

 

c. Taking reasonable steps to prevent and address the parties’ unauthorized disclosure of information and
evidence obtained solely through the grievance procedures. Disclosures of such information and
evidence for purposes of administrative proceedings or litigation related to the complaint of sex
discrimination are authorized.

Employees are required to participate as a witness in, or otherwise assist with, an investigation under this regulation.

The investigator shall complete the investigation within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

At the completion of the investigation, the investigator shall provide to the parties an evidence review period as pro
specified in the section below titled “Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Written Decision

At the completion of the investigation, if the designated investigator is not the decisionmaker, the investigator shall
provide all of the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence obtained in the investigation to the
decisionmaker.

If credibility is both in dispute and relevant to evaluating one or more allegations of sex discrimination, the district
must ensure that the decisionmaker is able to question parties and witnesses to adequately assess credibility.
Credibility determinations shall not be based on a person’s status as a Complainant, Respondent, or witness. (34 CFR
106.45(b), (g))

The decisionmaker shall apply the preponderance of the evidence standard to make a determination as to whether
sex discrimination occurred. If the decisionmaker is not persuaded under the preponderance of the evidence
standard that sex discrimination occurred, the decisionmaker must not determine that sex discrimination occurred.
(34 CFR 106.45(b), 106.45(h))

The district shall notify the parties in writing of the determination whether sex discrimination occurred under Title IX
including the rationale for such determination, and the procedures and permissible bases for the Complainant and
Respondent to appeal. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

The written decision shall be issued to the parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled “Timelines
for Grievance Procedures.”

Appeals

Either party may appeal the determination of a Complaint on one of the following bases:
 

1. Procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;

 

2. New evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the determination
or dismissal was made; or

 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the

1155



outcome.

An appeal must be made in writing to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5) days of the issuance of the written
determination and must state the basis for the appeal.

Upon receipt of an appeal, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly notify the other party of the appeal, and that other
party shall have five (5) calendar days to respond to the request for an appeal.

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an appeal decisionmaker to hear the appeal. The appeal
decisionmaker shall not have a conflict of interest or bias and shall not have been previously involved in the
grievance procedures, including any informal resolution process, for the Complaint.

An appeal decision shall be issued in writing to both parties within the timeline specified in the section below titled
“Timelines for Grievance Procedures.”

Either party has the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights within
180 days of the date of the most recently alleged misconduct.

Timelines for Grievance Procedures

The district’s Title IX grievance procedures shall be completed within the following timelines, unless extended as
specified below, or as otherwise permitted by law:

 

1. The Title IX Coordinator shall make an initial evaluation to determine whether to dismiss or investigate a
Complaint within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of a Complaint;

 

2. The investigation shall be completed within sixty (60) calendar days from receipt of the Complaint;

 

3. If the district offers an informal resolution process as provided under this regulation, and the parties voluntarily
engage in such a process, the timelines otherwise provided in this regulation shall exclude the time spent in the
informal resolution process;

 

4. At the completion of the investigation, the parties shall be provided with the evidence or an accurate
description of the evidence, and a reasonable opportunity to respond to the evidence or the accurate
description of the evidence, for a period of five (5) calendar days, unless such review period is voluntarily
waived by both parties;

 

5. A written decision shall be sent to the parties within ten (10) calendar days of the completion of the evidence
review period;

 

6. Any requests for an appeal shall be made within five (5) calendar days of the date the written decision is sent
to the parties;

 

7. Any response from a party to the request for an appeal shall be submitted within five (5) calendar days after
receiving notice of the appeal;

 

8. An appeal decision shall be issued within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the request for an appeal.

1156



Any timelines specified in this regulation may be subject to reasonable extensions on a case-by-case basis for good
cause with notice to the parties that includes the reason for the delay. (34 CFR 106.45(b))

Supportive Measures

When notified of conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX, the Title IX Coordinator
or designee shall offer and coordinate supportive measures as appropriate for the Complainant and/or Respondent
to restore or preserve that person’s access to district education programs or activities or provide support during the
district’s Title IX grievance procedures or during an informal resolution process. Supportive measures may include:
counseling; extensions of deadlines and other course-related adjustments; campus escort services; increased security
and monitoring of certain areas of the campus; restrictions on contact applied to one or more parties; leaves of
absence; changes in class, work, housing, or extracurricular or any other activity, regardless of whether there is or is
not a comparable alternative; and training and education programs related to sex-based harassment. (34 CFR
106.44(g))

If the Complainant or Respondent is a student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall consult with
one or more members, as appropriate, of the student’s (IEP) team or 504 team, if any, to determine how to comply
with the requirements of the IDEA and/or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Supportive measures must not unreasonably burden either party and must be designed to protect the safety of the
parties or the district’s educational environment, or to provide support during the district’s grievance procedures or
during any informal resolution process. Supportive measures may not be imposed for punitive or disciplinary reasons.
(34 CFR 106.44(g))

A Complainant or Respondent shall be provided with a timely opportunity to seek, from an appropriate and impartial
employee, modification or reversal of the decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate supportive measures
applicable to them. The impartial employee must be someone other than the employee who made the challenged
decision and must have authority to modify or reverse the decision, if the impartial employee determines that the
decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate the supportive measure was inconsistent with the definition of
supportive measures in 34 CFR 106.2. A Complainant or Respondent shall also be provided with the opportunity to
seek additional modification or termination of a supportive measure applicable to them if circumstances change
materially. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Upon the conclusion of the grievance procedures or any informal resolution process, the district may continue with
the supportive measures, or modify or terminate such measures, as appropriate. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Information about any supportive measures shall not be disclosed to persons other than the person to whom they
apply, including informing one party of supportive measures provided to another party, unless necessary to provide
the supportive measure or restore or preserve a party’s access to the education program or activity, or when an
exception in 34 CFR 106.44 applies. (34 CFR 106.44(g))

Emergency Removal from School

Discipline shall not be imposed on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX or its regulations unless
there is a determination at the conclusion of these grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited
sex discrimination. However, the district may remove a student Respondent from the district’s education program or
activity on an emergency basis, provided that the district undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis,
determines that an imminent and serious threat to the health or safety of a Complainant or any students, employees,
or other persons arising from the allegations of sex discrimination justifies removal, and provides the Respondent
with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal. A student with a
disability may only be removed from school on an emergency basis in accordance with the IDEA and/or Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (34 CFR 106.44(h))  

If a district employee is the Respondent, the employee may be placed on administrative leave during the pendency of
the grievance process where permitted by law and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.  

Informal Resolution Process

At any time prior to determining whether sex discrimination occurred under these procedures, the district may offer
an informal resolution process to the parties if appropriate. However, the district shall not offer an informal

1157



resolution process for allegations that an employee engaged in sex-based harassment of a student. (34 CFR
106.44(k))

The district has discretion to determine whether it is appropriate to offer an informal resolution process to the
parties when it receives information about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination or when a
Complaint of sex discrimination is made, and may decline to offer informal resolution despite one or more of the
parties’ wishes. Circumstances when the district may decline to allow informal resolution include but are not limited
to when the district determines the alleged conduct would present a future risk of harm to others. (34 CFR
106.44(k))

The district shall not require or pressure the parties to participate in an informal resolution process. The district shall
obtain the parties’ voluntary consent to the informal resolution process and shall not require waiver of the right to an
investigation and determination of a Complaint as a condition of enrollment or continuing enrollment, or
employment or continuing employment, or exercise of any other right. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

The facilitator for the informal resolution process shall not be the same person as the investigator or the
decisionmaker in the district’s grievance procedures. Any person designated by the district to facilitate an informal
resolution process shall not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or Respondents generally
or an individual Complainant or Respondent. Any person facilitating informal resolution shall receive training under
34 CFR 106.8. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

Before initiation of an informal resolution process, the district must provide to the parties notice that explains (34
CFR 106.44(k)):
 

1. The allegations;

 

2. The requirements of the informal resolution process;

 

3. That, prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the informal resolution process
and to initiate or resume the district’s grievance procedures;

 

4. That the parties’ agreement to a resolution at the conclusion of the informal resolution process would preclude
the parties from initiating or resuming grievance procedures arising from the same allegations;

 

5. The potential terms that may be requested or offered in an informal resolution agreement (including notice
that an informal resolution agreement is binding only on the parties), which could include but are not limited to:

 

a. Restrictions on contact; and

 

b. Restrictions on the Respondent’s participation in one or more of the district’s programs or activities or
attendance at specific events, including restrictions the district could have imposed as remedies or
disciplinary sanctions had the district determined at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures
that sex discrimination occurred.

 

6. What information the district shall maintain and whether and how the district could disclose such information
for use in grievance procedures, if grievance procedures are initiated or resumed.

Any informal resolution agreement reached under this process shall not prevent or restrict the disclosure of factual

1158



information. (Civ. Proc. Code 1001)

If the district provides the parties with an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator must, to the extent
necessary, take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or
recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.44(k))

Remedies

If there is a determination that sex discrimination occurred, the Title IX Coordinator shall, as appropriate, coordinate
the provision and implementation of remedies to a Complainant and other persons the district identifies as having
had equal access to the district’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex discrimination; coordinate
the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions on a Respondent, including notification to the Complainant of any such
disciplinary sanctions; and take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does
not continue or recur within the district’s education program or activity. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

If there is a determination that sex-based harassment occurred, the remedies that may be provided by the district to
the Complainant include but are not limited to counseling services, contact limitations between the parties, or
adjustments to academic deadlines, classroom assignments, or course registrations.  

Corrective/Disciplinary Actions

Actions that may be imposed on a student determined to be responsible for sex discrimination, including but not
limited to, sex-based harassment include, but are not limited to:
 

1. Transfer from a class or school

 

2. Parent/guardian conference

 

3. Education of the student regarding the impact of the conduct on others

 

4. Positive behavior support

 

5. Referral of the student to a student success team

 

6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges

 

7. Involuntary transfer to another school within the district

 

8. Restrictions on contact with another individual

 

9. For sex-based harassment, suspension where permitted and/or required under Education Code 48900 to
48915

 

10. For sex-based harassment, expulsion where permitted and/or required under Education Code 48900 to 48915

1159



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

When an employee is found to have committed prohibited sex discrimination or retaliation, the district shall take
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

The district may not impose discipline on a Respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX unless there is a
determination at the conclusion of the district’s grievance procedures that the Respondent engaged in prohibited sex
discrimination. (34 CFR 106.45(h))

The district shall not discipline a party, witness, or others participating in the grievance procedures for making a false
statement or for engaging in consensual sexual conduct based solely on the district's determination of whether sex
discrimination, including sex-based harassment, occurred. (34 CFR 106.45)

Recordkeeping

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the following for at least a period of seven years (34 CFR 106.8):
 

1. For each Complaint of sex discrimination, records documenting the informal resolution process (if any) or the
grievance procedures and the resulting outcome;

 

2. For each notification the Title IX Coordinator receives of information about conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX or its regulations, records documenting the actions the district took
to meet its obligations under 34 CFR 106.44, including supportive measures offered and implemented; and

 

3. All materials used to provide training under 34 CFR 106.8. The district shall make these training materials
available upon request for inspection by members of the public.

For complaints containing allegations of childhood sexual assault within the meaning of Code of Civil Procedure
340.1, the Superintendent or designee shall also indefinitely maintain the following:       
 

1. A record of the allegation(s);

 

2. A record of the investigation procedures followed;

 

3. A record of the written determination;

 

4. A record of the corrective action implemented, if any;

 

5. A record of any appeals and the outcome of the same; and

 

6. All training materials addressing the prohibition and investigation of childhood sexual assault.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

1160



5 CCR 4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary educational programs
receiving state or federal financial assistance

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Civ. Code 51.9 Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional
relationships

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900.2 Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Gov. Code 12950.1 Sexual harassment training

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1092 Definition of sexual assault

20 USC 1221 Application of laws

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

34 CFR 106.1-106.82 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

34 USC 12291 Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking

42 USC 1983 Civil action for deprivation of rights

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

U.S. DOJ, FBI Publication National Incident-Based Reporting System

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education (1999) 526 U.S. 629

Court Decision Doe v. Petaluma City School District (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447

Court Decision Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1998) 524 U.S. 274

Court Decision Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473

Court Decision Reese v. Jefferson School District (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736

Court Decision Donovan v. Poway Unified School District (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567

Court Decision Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130

CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender
and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

Federal Register
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, April 29, 2024, Vol. 89, No. 83,
pages 33474-33896

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Sexual Harassment: It's Not Academic, September 2008

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School
Employees, Other Students, or Third Parties, January 2001

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights Publication Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender
Students, May 2016

1161

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=51.9.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12950.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1092 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1092)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1221 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1221)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:34 section:12291 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title34-section12291)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:1983 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section1983)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://ucr.fbi.gov/nibrs/2018/resource-pages/nibrs_offense_definitions-2018.pdf
https://www.csba.org/~/media/E68E16A652D34EADA2BFDCD9668B1C8F.ashx
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/04/29/2024-07915/nondiscrimination-on-the-basis-of-sex-in-education-programs-or-activities-receiving-federal
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/ocrshpam.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/shguide.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs/emergingpractices.pdf


Website U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Investigation

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4131 Staff Development

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5030 Student Wellness

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5144 Discipline

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

1162

https://www.justice.gov/doj/federal-bureau-investigation
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YE9jMVjdlc51qcBzXLzsJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshxhZTQk5XxxhQHTSxcoLOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rCQ7odANi6LLnplusF0mH6sCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Wcuma2qD8bwaqBOD4GPI0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RfEhAmKXhIbl6ftk70QLTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yMMCEnHaWBwMuHAbNQ38BA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6WbislshLsHTSwsuSB0ZlV7JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=JH20tCQRrLpwB2CRB3l5XQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gZJYRNNEdzdV9JnUobBUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yJWNC7Z46v0GNUiCxItMEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7p1SPZxMF6e4Y0GYyWQubQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uZPpT3EeslshtWzK4qjuZcN7w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vJtW87gSp2Ne6OL0GkVplusOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gtplusimMfHTd9RPNCKplusoOdXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qLmhUca1UfLt0uddUm2Dsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MjvAkDzVIYBpdB2YF1yRlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==


5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1163

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshwky6wNIU710QD7DjJ0Rg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R73Lyxi8slshO7SFplusobgCNMnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eAeJga5tKPspKfSNlNcUZw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=B5Jr2bUDOWCxyqJiE1TNDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ulVPOZ83yTcVXV6wcI4VcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Khpw3dD4JKBXlwslshwtrOOww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P5IwtJJxCesc5RlIXoplusz8A==


Policy 6000: Concepts And RolesPolicy 6000: Concepts And Roles Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board desires to provide a comprehensive, research-based curriculum in a supportive, positive, and
engaging manner that motivates every student to succeed. The district's educational program shall provide students
with rigorous opportunities to attain the academic, social and emotional skills, knowledge, and abilities they need to
be successful in school, postsecondary education and/or employment, and develop to their full potential.

Strategies for improving the educational program shall take into consideration the needs of individual students and
subpopulations of students, including, but not limited to, social, emotional, and behavioral needs. Students who are
failing or at risk of failing to meet academic standards shall be provided with alternative programs and/or
supplemental assistance designed to raise achievement.

Parents/guardians are critical partners in their children's education and shall be provided with opportunities to be
meaningfully involved both in support of their children's education program at school and with learning at home.

The district's goal of student success may be achieved through regional coordination, collaboration, and alignment
between the school, parents/guardians, and the community, including district support for innovative programs and
practices that promote student engagement, growth, understanding, achievement, and career exploration.

To support the district's educational program, the Board shall:

1. Establish standards of student achievement for core subjects at each grade level that are aligned with the
district's vision for student learning, the specific needs and strengths of the students, the expectations of
parents/guardians and the community, and available resources
 

2. Establish graduation requirements
 

3. Ensure that a process is in place, involving teachers, administrators, students, and parents/guardians, for the
development and review of the district's curriculum
 

4. Adopt the district curriculum and courses of study to be offered
 

5. Adopt textbooks and other instructional materials
 

6. Support the professional staff's implementation of the curriculum by providing consistent policy direction,
allocating resources based on educational program priorities, ensuring that collective bargaining agreements do
not constrain the district's ability to achieve curricular goals, recognizing staff accomplishments, and including
reasonable annual goals related to student learning in the Superintendent evaluation process
 

7. Provide a continuing program of professional development to keep instructional staff, administrators, and
Board members updated about current issues and research pertaining to curriculum, instructional strategies,
and student assessment
 

8. Review and evaluate the educational program on the basis of state and federal accountability measures,
disaggregated student achievement data, and other indicators and ensure that evaluation results are used to
improve programs, curriculum, and/or instructional practices as necessary to enhance student achievement
 

9. Communicate clear information about district instructional goals, programs, and progress in student
achievement to the community and media

The Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Review research related to curriculum issues
 

2. Select and/or develop curricula for recommendation to the Board in accordance with the district's curriculum
development and review process
 

3. Ensure the articulation of the curriculum between grade levels and with postsecondary education and the

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1164



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

workplace
 

4. Determine the general methods of instruction to be used
 

5. Assign instructors and schedule classes for all curricular offerings
 

6. Recommend instructional materials to the Board and direct the purchase of approved materials and equipment
 

7. Evaluate and report to the Board on student achievement as demonstrated through testing and other types of
appraisal, and recommend necessary changes in curriculum, programs, and instruction as indicated by student
performance data

Comparability in Instruction

The district shall provide comparable educational opportunities for all students. Instruction in the core curriculum
shall be in no way diminished when students receive supplementary services funded by special governmental
programs. Services funded by any categorical program shall supplement, not supplant, the district-provided core
curriculum and any services which may be provided by other categorical programs.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 3940 Maintenance of effort

5 CCR 4424 Comparability of services

Ed. Code 51000-51009 Legislative intent; educational program

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6321 Fiscal requirements/comparability of services

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication California State Plan for Career Technical Education: A Vision for Equity and
Excellence in CTE, March 2023

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0500 Accountability

0510 School Accountability Report Card

1100 Communication With The Public

1112 Media Relations

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E PDF(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

2140 Evaluation Of The Superintendent

1165

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I336C5EE34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I3421CC334C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6321 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6321)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/gi/documents/adoptedcacteplan2023.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=beslshRa6396d89tVl13810tA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yfWc4XYuNO1BPMsDM5XWGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6f9agvLsplusBBYLrkslshWTNyxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kCq042yuNu4ulWLuxXyVBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7qc5lwJV7pplusdxsdt2v9kEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7973lYJs1ccYtmzYDpvxRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EEpluso2cUlX3slshYIslshIhw1vZ5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VvkA2usIlhYY6Ic5Q36aMA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aQj433CKghDhhRoi88Gcplusg==


2140-E PDF(1) Evaluation Of The Superintendent

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3512 Equipment

3512-E PDF(1) Equipment

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4131 Staff Development

4143 Negotiations/Consultation

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222 Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4222-E PDF(1) Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals

4243 Negotiations/Consultation

4331 Staff Development

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123-E PDF(1) Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5131.9 Academic Honesty

6011 Academic Standards

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6120 Response To Instruction And Intervention

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6142.3 Civic Education

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.5 Environmental Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.5 Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements

6158 Independent Study

6158 Independent Study

6159 Individualized Education Program

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1166

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MSu1nXUDpfxfRkMnqoslshHtQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EQgyAayx15F7mQCslshukslshU0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tGXuoq82W15ro4PnvG3cDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uslshH5y5icfyslshPLNOvzjiW1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dfAKkgSjmyl0b3aLrgahBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kZSplusmbBylVJaSR8plusKQgNlg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mzJKeqhH0nY2a1jT2P3Myw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=geTO3v48kNslsh5zqz2JdhkgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rSDWVIM0mR6T5uTAuylAhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ABGqplusKhgcDuxXkEIYU1UslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDG9iQ5m08EG9fyq8fwFplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=klgagsHDZz5Z1z17Pdk9UA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5PKcFR5HjC6zlSWROlN9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OwX3GmZwqN90hOP71xybOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rYJyuucQ8pIPXuN6Md6InQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=QmFgz4YASgplusjslshwaOB0eEhA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ytg8in4cx2bVqvvGlWUePw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UwbZkiRPS6mEhtplusM4aIoiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NdS3ITAmXi5YJxIa2P0nnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jor0zG1plusRpluseHmwJ4N9uSplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=f2Po1rWqAcoIPrqUEjrEzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iSHEmbe8plus8F0QbSeXJ1M5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZfY4o1eLxJ2I1B7ZB1QR3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kWZ0D2455iGuvLSmU25n2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kMpBxIRplusOc4gPFo4Hm18Tw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aT00mOuZZEeES1bslshFGVYcQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rvld8slshXCOayuqdKKYZvOBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=awplusvgeQgplusR4NBoOgGSxPHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==


6159 Individualized Education Program

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E PDF(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E PDF(2) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6162.5 Student Assessment

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6174 Education For English Learners

6174 Education For English Learners

6174-E PDF(1) Education For English Learners - Education For English Language Learners

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6177 Summer Learning Programs

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6179 Supplemental Instruction

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

6183 Home And Hospital Instruction

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6190 Evaluation Of The Instructional Program

9000 Role Of The Board

9240 Board Training

9310 Board Policies

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1167

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zjcJVyzuOv3nslsh0mAaslshAavQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GJbgyMuWBRmplusoCQBCpk4WA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sQGK5n462ah26CPDMVD4fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FRxG1YX8ZtplusZjDM8vQuSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusplusIEJMkJ0WCE2Gqw8lYylQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=91LTrXx9lijyf0g30Q38cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8qSY5AB9bC1siuIBIlJi8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Khpw3dD4JKBXlwslshwtrOOww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P5IwtJJxCesc5RlIXoplusz8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2POP9cLgiU1RnPgeV9VGTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qtpJdLaAkn6TtcU1DmuplusrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=82plus7ckd4CjHLPDQ3NpWyhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjdlRrILOQDZwoAaCHcEzQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jc3sBdcMzLxCvrGjyQjmgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yb0tAplusotzAvMSWz7HdlHHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vDFXv0D7JlAplusVkU2WUJMGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ra4KvNEGvfVplussB0slshpluszvhXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rQkfDWLkplusTvxslshb6OyOiXRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4C5xwe76bfoCibvslshg8h7HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HBBf4ROJSOTs0gBwLgecsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hqoWWN0aSNwSBq1E1JVEhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UBWDuz3w1JnfecVpmbwcGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nXsVltu6pH4W3zRsPlePxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 6115: Ceremonies And ObservancesPolicy 6115: Ceremonies And Observances Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of having students observe holidays, celebrate events of cultural,
historical, or present day significance, and acknowledge the contributions of outstanding individuals in society. On
days designated by the Board, and as required by law, staff shall provide students with appropriate commemorative
exercises and educational experiences so that they may acquire the knowledge, skills, and principles essential for
informed, responsible citizenship in a democratic society.

District schools shall be closed on the holidays specified in Education Code 37220 and on any other day designated
as a holiday by the Board. The Board may, by adoption of a resolution, revise the date upon which schools close in
observance of any holiday except Veterans Day, which shall be celebrated on its actual date.  (Education Code
37220)

In addition, the Board may, through the adoption of a resolution, authorize the display of symbolic flags or banners in
support of specific awareness months.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 37220-37222.21 Holidays and commemorative events

Ed. Code 44015.1 Week of the School Administrator

Ed. Code 45203 Paid holidays

Ed. Code 45460 Classified School Employee Week

Ed. Code 49110.5 Workplace Readiness Week

Ed. Code 52720-52730 Patriotic exercises and instruction

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Public education employer-employee relations

Gov. Code 430-439 Display of flags

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

36 USC 106 Constitution Day and Citizenship Day

4 USC 6 Time and occasion for display of flag

4 USC 7 Position and manner of display of flag

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Newdow v. Rio Linda Union School District (9th Cir. 2010) 597 F.3d 1007

Court Decision West Virginia State Board of Education et al. v. Barnette et al. (1943) 319
U.S. 624

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, History/Social Science Instructional
Materials

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1168

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=22.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44015.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45203.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=13.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49110.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=11.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:36 section:106 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title36-section106)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:4 section:6 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title4-section6)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:4 section:7 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title4-section7)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/hs/im
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==


4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

5113.2 Work Permits

5113.2 Work Permits

6111 School Calendar

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6142.3 Civic Education

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.94 History-Social Science Instruction

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6144 Controversial Issues

6144 Controversial Issues

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1169

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2CzKFogEplusrAujEFITslshiHBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ksiKimLz507GLmDH05co5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O4JwZL8Jiaq0yif6ir40uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SdyzaGyJoEpUuu5V9LggSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZfY4o1eLxJ2I1B7ZB1QR3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qHIFyG2lRgHd7ypgplusKYJhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusJYFdplusCELPa3Mz7adOEwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fhR3reftbXwlXbq7vzkwIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kMpBxIRplusOc4gPFo4Hm18Tw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vDFXv0D7JlAplusVkU2WUJMGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ra4KvNEGvfVplussB0slshpluszvhXQ==


Regulation 6115: Ceremonies And ObservancesRegulation 6115: Ceremonies And Observances Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

Holidays

District schools shall be closed on the following holidays:  (Education Code 37220)
 

New Year's Day - January 1

Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day - Third Monday in January or the Monday or Friday of the week in which
January 15 occurs

Lincoln Day - The Monday or Friday of the week in which February 12 occurs

Washington Day - Third Monday in February

Memorial Day - Last Monday in May

Juneteenth National Independence Day - June 19

Independence Day - July 4

Labor Day - First Monday in September

Veterans Day - November 11

Thanksgiving Day - The Thursday in November designated by the President

Christmas Day - December 25

In addition, schools shall be closed on:  (Education Code 37220)

1. Any day appointed by the Governor as a holiday or as a special or limited holiday on which the Governor
provides that schools shall close
 

2. Any day appointed by the President as a holiday, including by executive order or by signing into law legislation
that creates a nationwide federal holiday
 

3. Any other day designated as a holiday by the Governing Board and/or negotiated with employee organizations

Holidays which fall on a Sunday shall be observed the following Monday. Holidays which fall on a Saturday shall be
observed the preceding Friday. If any of the above holidays occur under federal law on a date different from that
indicated above, the Board may close the schools on the date recognized by federal law instead of on the date
above.  (Education Code 37220)

Commemorative Exercises

District schools shall hold exercises in accordance with law to commemorate the following special days:  (Education
Code 37220, 37221, 45460, 49110.5)

Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day - The Friday before the day schools are closed for this holiday

Abraham Lincoln's Birthday - The school day before the day schools are closed for this holiday

Susan B. Anthony Day - February 15

George Washington's Birthday - The Friday preceding the third Monday in February

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1170



Black American Day - March 5

Conservation, Bird, and Arbor Day - March 7
Workplace Readiness Week - The week that includes April 28

Classified Employee Week - Third week in May

U.S. Constitution and Citizenship Day - On or near September 17

Commemorative exercises shall be integrated into the regular educational program as required by law.

Patriotic Exercises

Each school shall conduct patriotic exercises daily, which may include the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the
United States and/or instruction that promotes understanding of the concepts of "pledge," "allegiance," "republic,"
and "indivisible" and understanding of the importance of the pledge as an expression of patriotism, love of country,
and pride in the United States.  (Education Code 52720, 52730)

At elementary schools, such exercises shall be conducted at the beginning of each school day. (Education Code
52720)

At secondary schools, such exercises shall be conducted during the homeroom period.

A student may choose not to participate in the flag salute or Pledge of Allegiance for personal reasons.

Display of Flag

The flag of the United States and the flag of California shall be displayed during business hours at the entrance or on
the grounds of every district school and on or near the district office. At all times, the national flag shall be placed in
the position of first honor.  (Government Code 431, 436; 4 USC 6)

When displayed on a building or on a flagstaff in the open, the national flag shall be displayed only from sunrise to
sunset unless properly illuminated during the hours of darkness. The flag should not be displayed during inclement
weather unless an all-weather flag is used.  (4 USC 6)

The national flag shall fly at half-staff on the following occasions:  (4 USC 7)

1. For 30 days from the death of the President or a former President
 

2. For 10 days from the death of the Vice President, the Chief Justice or a retired Chief Justice, or the Speaker of
the House of Representatives
 

3. From the day of death until interment of an Associate Justice of the Supreme Court, a secretary of an
executive or military department, former Vice President, or the Governor of a state
 

4. On the day of death and the following day for a Member of Congress
 

5. On Memorial Day, until noon only
 

6. On Peace Officers Memorial Day (May 15), unless it falls on Armed Forces Day
 

7. Upon a proclamation from the Governor in the event of the death of a present or former official of the state
government, a member of the Armed Forces from the state who has died while serving on active duty, or the
death of a first responder working in the state who dies while serving in the line of duty
 

8. On other occasions by order of the President and in accordance with presidential instructions or orders

1171



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 37220-37222.21 Holidays and commemorative events

Ed. Code 44015.1 Week of the School Administrator

Ed. Code 45203 Paid holidays

Ed. Code 45460 Classified School Employee Week

Ed. Code 49110.5 Workplace Readiness Week

Ed. Code 52720-52730 Patriotic exercises and instruction

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Public education employer-employee relations

Gov. Code 430-439 Display of flags

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

36 USC 106 Constitution Day and Citizenship Day

4 USC 6 Time and occasion for display of flag

4 USC 7 Position and manner of display of flag

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Newdow v. Rio Linda Union School District (9th Cir. 2010) 597 F.3d 1007

Court Decision West Virginia State Board of Education et al. v. Barnette et al. (1943) 319
U.S. 624

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, History/Social Science Instructional
Materials

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

5113.2 Work Permits

5113.2 Work Permits

6111 School Calendar

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs

6142.3 Civic Education

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.94 History-Social Science Instruction

6143 Courses Of Study

1172

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=22.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44015.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45203.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=13.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49110.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=11.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:36 section:106 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title36-section106)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:4 section:6 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title4-section6)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:4 section:7 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title4-section7)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/hs/im
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k96wSifDL0qAoO3X3gLmnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DXltYSJrYMwIiVvmHflQjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP20D2TMUeOYrbP79plusjPMw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2CzKFogEplusrAujEFITslshiHBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ksiKimLz507GLmDH05co5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O4JwZL8Jiaq0yif6ir40uw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=SdyzaGyJoEpUuu5V9LggSA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZfY4o1eLxJ2I1B7ZB1QR3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qHIFyG2lRgHd7ypgplusKYJhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==


6143 Courses Of Study

6144 Controversial Issues

6144 Controversial Issues

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1173

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusJYFdplusCELPa3Mz7adOEwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fhR3reftbXwlXbq7vzkwIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kMpBxIRplusOc4gPFo4Hm18Tw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vDFXv0D7JlAplusVkU2WUJMGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ra4KvNEGvfVplussB0slshpluszvhXQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And CustomsPolicy 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board recognizes that students' education would be incomplete without an understanding of the role
of religion in society. As appropriate for a particular course, teachers may objectively discuss the influences of
various religions, using religious works and symbols to illustrate their relationship with culture, literature, or the arts.
The Board expects that such instruction will identify principles common to all religions and foster respect for the
diversity of religions and customs in the world and be consistent with the adopted instructional materials and state
standards, as applicable.

In order to respect each student's individual right to freedom of religious practice, religious indoctrination is
forbidden in public schools. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that instruction about religion does not
promote or denigrate the beliefs or customs of any particular religion or sect, nor that a preference be shown for one
religious viewpoint over another. Staff members shall be highly sensitive to their obligation not to interfere with the
religious development of any student in whatever tradition the student embraces, and treat all religions and religious
conviction, including nonbelief, with fairness and respect.

Staff shall not endorse, encourage, or solicit religious or anti-religious expression or activities among students during
class time.

Staff shall not coerce students in prayer or other religious activities as part of their official duties. However, Staff are
not prohibited, when acting in their private capacity, from encouraging  students' participation in personal prayer or
other religious activity. Additionally, staff shall not prohibit or discourage any student from praying or otherwise
expressing the student's religious belief so long as this does not disrupt the classroom or other school sponsored
activity.

Students may express their beliefs about religion in their homework, artwork, and other class work if the expression
is germane to the assignment. Such work shall be judged by ordinary academic standards, relevance, and other
legitimate pedagogical objectives.

While teaching about religious holidays is a permissible part of the educational program, celebrating religious
holidays is not allowed in the district. School-sponsored programs shall not be, nor have the effect of being,
religiously oriented or a religious celebration. School and classroom decorations may express seasonal themes that
are not religious in nature. The use of religious symbols that are part of a religious holiday is permitted as a teaching
aid or resource provided that such symbols are displayed as an example of cultural and religious heritage of the
holiday and temporary in nature.

Classroom methods in instruction about religion shall not include religious role-playing activities or simulated
religious devotional acts.

Music, art, literature or drama programs having religious themes are permitted as part of the curriculum for school-
sponsored activities and programs if presented in an objective manner and as a traditional part of cultural and
religious heritage.

District schools shall not prohibit religious activities if the same or similar non-religious activities are permitted.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 38130-38139 Civic Center Act

Ed. Code 46014 Absences for religious purposes

Ed. Code 51511 Religious matters properly included in courses of study

Ed. Code 51938 Right of parent/guardian to excuse from sexual health instruction

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1174

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51511.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51938.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 4071-4074 Equal Access Act

20 USC 6061 School prayer

20 USC 7904 School prayer

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Appendix F history social science framework for California public schools

Court Decision Florey v. Sioux Falls (1980) 619 F.2d 1311

Court Decision Fellowship of Christian Athletes v. San Jose Unified School District Board of
Education (2023) 82 F.4th 664

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision Cole v. Oroville Union High School District (2000, 9th Cir.) 228 F.3d 1092

Court Decision Lassonde v. Pleasanton Unified School District (2003, 9th Cir.) 320 F.3d 979

Court Decision Lemon v. Kurtzman (1971) 403 U.S. 602

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5127 Graduation Ceremonies And Activities

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

6111 School Calendar

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

1175

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6061 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6061)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7904 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7904)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/hs/cf/documents/hssappendixf.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n67e5kfO6UsNa403CtI0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8i6dKOPYvslshCCaS8T7F78LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8S0TFaHIdqbWyslsh1NHCTwag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dZnCOmRlLyy9x9hHhslsh9slshLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aslshBE4uBozduiWScBbgRpKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dD2SKrDRpB3slshBzQUnOHw9Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aNJziHA4pAlhMye7c43DDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vYgkvnqpQIo1plusplusOB7hB4Lg==


6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.93 Science Instruction

6142.94 History-Social Science Instruction

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6144 Controversial Issues

6144 Controversial Issues

6145.5 Student Organizations And Equal Access

6145.5 Student Organizations And Equal Access

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1176

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qHIFyG2lRgHd7ypgplusKYJhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusJYFdplusCELPa3Mz7adOEwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fhR3reftbXwlXbq7vzkwIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDxDXKdhqJDZIob4yk4sXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=90ZjelEvd1iuHoLQsxKVNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kMpBxIRplusOc4gPFo4Hm18Tw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t9slshBl67vvB3M3ZfhIHmPAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8C93wExGD9cMe16x45plusMzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=91LTrXx9lijyf0g30Q38cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And CustomsRegulation 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the following for the recognition of religious beliefs and customs in
district schools:

1. The approach to religion is academic and not devotional
 

2. The goal is for student awareness of religion in historical and contemporary societies
 

3. The students may not be pressed to accept any one religion
 

4. The school may include the study of religion as part of the history-social science curriculum, but the practice of
religions may not be sponsored
 

5. The students may be exposed to and educated about a diversity of religious views and beliefs, but a particular
view or belief may not be imposed, nor may any one religion be promoted or denigrated

Staff shall make every effort to schedule one-time events, such as examinations, school-sponsored trips, special
laboratories, picture-taking days, and class parties, to minimize conflicts with major religious holidays of all faiths
such that no one faith is disproportionately impacted.

Programs and Exhibits

When school programs and exhibits are in any way related to instruction about religion or religious holidays, the
following guidelines shall be observed:

1. The principal or designee shall ensure that school-sponsored programs are presented in an objective manner,
consistent with Board policy.
 

2. The principal or designee shall be kept informed of the program's development.
 

3. Program or exhibit planners shall take into consideration the diverse religious faiths represented in the
community, student body and staff.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 38130-38139 Civic Center Act

Ed. Code 46014 Absences for religious purposes

Ed. Code 51511 Religious matters properly included in courses of study

Ed. Code 51938 Right of parent/guardian to excuse from sexual health instruction

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 4071-4074 Equal Access Act

20 USC 6061 School prayer

20 USC 7904 School prayer

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Appendix F history social science framework for California public schools

Court Decision Florey v. Sioux Falls (1980) 619 F.2d 1311

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1177

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51511.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51938.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6061 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6061)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7904 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7904)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/hs/cf/documents/hssappendixf.pdf


Court Decision Fellowship of Christian Athletes v. San Jose Unified School District Board of
Education (2023) 82 F.4th 664

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision Cole v. Oroville Union High School District (2000, 9th Cir.) 228 F.3d 1092

Court Decision Lassonde v. Pleasanton Unified School District (2003, 9th Cir.) 320 F.3d 979

Court Decision Lemon v. Kurtzman (1971) 403 U.S. 602

U.S. Department of Education Publication Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer and Religious Expression in
Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, May 2023

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5127 Graduation Ceremonies And Activities

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

6111 School Calendar

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.93 Science Instruction

6142.94 History-Social Science Instruction

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

1178

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n67e5kfO6UsNa403CtI0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Lq88QrjInXkP7tsxslshszf2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TMzO6BUplustkKaWkyTXsOKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8i6dKOPYvslshCCaS8T7F78LQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8S0TFaHIdqbWyslsh1NHCTwag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dZnCOmRlLyy9x9hHhslsh9slshLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aslshBE4uBozduiWScBbgRpKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dD2SKrDRpB3slshBzQUnOHw9Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aNJziHA4pAlhMye7c43DDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vYgkvnqpQIo1plusplusOB7hB4Lg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pHAikfRsMNpQuh0p5Om9Qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qHIFyG2lRgHd7ypgplusKYJhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==


6144 Controversial Issues

6144 Controversial Issues

6145.5 Student Organizations And Equal Access

6145.5 Student Organizations And Equal Access

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1179

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusJYFdplusCELPa3Mz7adOEwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=fhR3reftbXwlXbq7vzkwIg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BDxDXKdhqJDZIob4yk4sXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=90ZjelEvd1iuHoLQsxKVNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=kMpBxIRplusOc4gPFo4Hm18Tw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t9slshBl67vvB3M3ZfhIHmPAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8C93wExGD9cMe16x45plusMzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=91LTrXx9lijyf0g30Q38cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==


Policy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling ServicesPolicy 6164.2: Guidance/Counseling Services Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/09/2023

The Governing Board recognizes that a structured, coherent, and comprehensive counseling program promotes
academic achievement and growth, and serves the diverse needs of district students. The district shall provide an
educational counseling program that offers students services and supports within a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support
(MTSS) framework, in accordance with law. Counseling staff shall be available to provide students with individualized
reviews of their educational progress toward academic and/or career and vocational goals and, as appropriate, may
discuss social, personal, or other issues that may impact student learning and well-being.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all persons employed to provide direct school counseling, school
psychology, school social work services, child welfare and attendance services, and/or to implement equitable school
programs and services that support students' academic and social and emotional development and college and career
readiness possess the appropriate credential from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing authorizing their
employment in such positions. Responsibilities of such positions shall be clearly defined in a job description.

Responsibilities of school counselors include, but are not limited to:

1. Engaging with, advocating for, and providing all students with direct services, such as individual counseling,
group counseling, risk assessment, crisis response, and instructional services, including mental health and
behavioral, academic, and postsecondary educational services, and indirect services, including but not limited
to, positive school climate strategies, teacher and parent/guardian consultations, and referrals to public and
private community services
 

2. Planning, implementing, and evaluating school counseling programs
 

3. Working within a MTSS that uses multiple data sources to monitor and improve student behavior, attendance,
engagement, and achievement
 

4. Developing, coordinating, and supervising comprehensive student support systems in collaboration with
teachers, administrators, other pupil personnel services professionals, families, community partners, and
community agencies, including county mental health agencies
 

5. Promoting and maintaining a safe learning environment for all students by providing restorative practices,
positive behavior interventions, and support services and by developing and responding with a variety of
intervention strategies to meet individual, group, and school community needs before, during, and after a crisis
 

6. Intervening to ameliorate school-related problems, including problems related to chronic absences and
retention
 

7. Using research-based strategies to promote mental wellness, reduce mental health stigma, and to identify
characteristics, risk factors, and warning signs of students who develop, or are at risk of developing, mental
health and behavioral disorders and who experience, or are at risk of experiencing, mistreatment, including
mistreatment related to any form of conflict or bullying
 

8. Improving school climate and student well-being by addressing the mental and behavioral health needs of
students during a period of transition, separation, heightened stress, and critical changes, accessing community
programs and services to meet those needs, and providing other appropriate services
 

9. Enhancing students' social and emotional competence, character, health, civic engagement, cultural literacy,
and commitment to lifelong learning and the pursuit of high-quality educational programs

10. Providing counseling services for unduplicated students who are classified as English learners, eligible for free
and reduced-priced meals, foster youth, and/or experiencing homelessness, including interventions and
support services that enhance equity and access to appropriate education systems and public and private
services
 

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1180



11. Engaging in continued development as a professional school counselor

Educational And Career Counseling

Beginning in grade 7, parents/guardians shall receive a general notice at least once before career counseling and
course selection so that they may participate in the counseling sessions and decisions.  (Education Code 221.5)

The educational counseling program shall include academic counseling and postsecondary services, in the following
areas  (Education Code 49600):

1. Development and implementation, with parent/guardian involvement, of the student's immediate and long-
range educational plans
 

2. Optimizing progress towards achievement of proficiency standards and competencies
 

3. Completion of the required curriculum in accordance with the student's needs, abilities, interests, and
aptitudes
 

4. Academic planning for access and success in higher education programs, including advisement on courses
needed for admission to colleges and universities, standardized admissions tests, and financial aid

5. High-quality career programs at all grade levels in which students are assisted in doing all of the following:
 

a. Planning for the future, including, but not limited to, identifying personal interests, skills, and abilities,
career planning, course selection, and career transition
 

b. Becoming aware of personal preferences and interests that influence educational and occupational
exploration, career choice, and career success
 

c. Developing work self-efficacy for the ever-changing work environment, the changing needs of the
workforce, and the effects of work on quality of life
 

d. Understanding the relationship between academic achievement and career success, and the importance
of maximizing career options
 

e. Understanding the value of participating in career technical education pathways, programs, and
certifications, including, but not limited to, those related to regional occupational programs and centers,
the federal program administered by the U. S. Department of Labor offering free education and
vocational training to students, known as "Job Corps," the California Conservation Corps, work-based
learning, industry certifications, college preparation and credit, and employment opportunities
 

f. Understanding the need to develop essential employable skills and work habits
 

g. Understanding entrance requirements to the U.S. Armed Forces, including the benefits of the Armed
Services Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB) test

The  district's educational counseling program also may include, but not be limited to, identification of students who
are at risk of not graduating with their peers, development of a list of coursework and experience necessary to assist
students to satisfy the curricular requirements for college admission and successfully transition to postsecondary
education or employment, and counseling regarding available options for students who fail to meet graduation
requirements to continue with their education.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a program of guidance, placement, and follow-up for all
high school students subject to compulsory continuation education.  (Education Code 48431)

To enhance the educational counseling program and assist students in reaching their educational and professional
goals, the district shall provide students in grades 9-12 with financial aid support; social services support; state-
funded immigration legal services; academic opportunities; and parent/guardian and family workshops.  (Education

1181



Code 54680, 54683)

As part of the district's educational counseling program, students may be offered mental and behavioral health
services under which a student may receive prevention, intervention, short-term counseling services, and mental
health related classroom instruction to reduce stigma and increase awareness of counseling support services.

No counselor shall unlawfully discriminate against any student. Guidance counseling regarding school programs and
career, vocational, or higher education opportunities shall not be differentiated on the basis of any protected
category specified in law or Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities.

Additionally, counselors shall affirmatively explore with a student the possibility of careers, or courses leading to
careers, that are nontraditional for that student's sex.  (Education Code 221.5)

For assessing or counseling students, the district shall not use testing or other materials that permit or require
impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students, unless such different materials cover the same
occupations and interest areas and the use of such materials is essential to the elimination of bias and discrimination. 
(5 CCR 4931)

OPTION 1:  (Districts with policy that permits college, employment, and military recruiters access to students)

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall have the same access to students for
recruiting purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503; 20 USC 7908)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Districts with policy that prohibits college, employment, and military recruiters access to students)

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall not have access to students for recruiting
purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with businesses, government agencies, postsecondary institutions
including universities and career technical schools, community organizations, and/or other employers to provide
students with actual or simulated work-based learning opportunities through college and/or career fairs.

When planning to hold a college or career fair, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each apprenticeship
program in the county. The notification shall include the planned date, time, and location of the college or career
fair.  (Labor Code 3074.2)

Additionally, the district shall provide the notification to any community college district that has overlapping
jurisdiction with the district and an opportunity for the community college district to participate in the college or
career fair.  (Education Code 52770)

Personal or Mental Health Counseling

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide individualized personal, mental health,
or family counseling to students in accordance with the specialization(s) authorized by their credential. Such services
may include, but are not limited to, support related to the student's social and emotional development, behavior,
substance abuse, mental health assessment, depression, or mental illness. As appropriate, students and their
parents/guardians shall be informed about community agencies, organizations, or health care providers that offer
qualified professional assistance.

1182



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Written parent/guardian consent shall be obtained before mental health counseling or treatment services are
provided to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service pursuant to Family Code
6924, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law.

Any information of a personal nature disclosed to a school counselor by a student age 12 years or older or by the
student's parent/guardian is confidential and shall not become part of the student record without the written
consent of the person who disclosed the confidential information. The information shall not be revealed, released,
discussed, or referred to except under the limited circumstances specified in Education Code 49602.  (Education
Code 49602)

A counselor shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and, as appropriate, with the district's legal counsel
whenever there is uncertainty regarding how to respond to a student's personal problem or when questions arise
regarding the possible release of confidential information regarding a student.

Crisis Counseling

The Board recognizes the need for a prompt and effective response when students are confronted with a traumatic
incident. School counselors shall assist in the development of the emergency and disaster preparedness plan and
other prevention and intervention practices designed to assist students and parents/guardians before, during, and
after a crisis.

Early identification and intervention plans shall be developed to help identify those students who may be at risk for
violence so that support may be provided before they engage in violent or disruptive behavior.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall identify crisis counseling resources to train district staff in
effective threat assessment, appropriate response techniques, and/or methods to directly help students cope with a
crisis if it occurs.

Teacher-Based Advisory Program

The Board recognizes that a supportive, ongoing relationship with a caring adult can provide a student with valuable
advice, enhance student-teacher relationships, and build the student's feelings of connectedness with the school. The
Board authorizes the development of a teacher-based advisory program in which teachers advise students in such
areas as academic planning, character development, conflict resolution, and self-esteem. Any teacher participating in
this program shall be under the supervision of a credentialed school counselor as appropriate, receive related
information and training, and be subject to law and this Board policy, including requirements pertaining to student
confidentiality and nondiscrimination.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4930-4931 Counseling

5 CCR 80049-80049.1 Pupil Personnel Services credential

5 CCR 80632-80632.5 Preparation programs for Pupil Personnel Services

Ed. Code 221.5 Equal opportunity

Ed. Code 44266 Pupil Personnel Services credential

Ed. Code 48431 Establishing and maintaining high school guidance and placement program

Ed. Code 49600-49604 Educational counseling

Ed. Code 51250-51251 Assistance to military dependents

Ed. Code 51513 Personal beliefs

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs; community college districts

Ed. Code 52770 College and career fairs

Ed. Code 54680-54685 Dream Resource Center Grant Program

1183

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I35DE97604C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I35E108634C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I75E67F804C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I77F477F34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I7D93AD704C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I760D24B0084211ED84EDA5787F010C35
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=221.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44266.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48431.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=10.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51513.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=9.&article=4.


Fam. Code 6920-6930 Consent by minor for medical treatment

Gov. Code 7927.700 Exemption for personnel records if invasion of personal privacy

H&S Code 124260 Mental health services; consent by minors age 12 and older

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Pen. Code 11166-11170 Reporting known or suspected cases of child abuse

W&I Code 5850-5883 Mental Health Services Act

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

10 USC 503 Military recruiter access to directory information

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students and student recruiting
information

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication California Results-Based School Counseling and Student Support Guidelines,
2007

U.S. Department of Education Publication Protecting Student Privacy: Frequently Asked Questions

Website California Division of Apprenticeship Standards

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Association of School Counselors

Website U.S. Department of Education, access to military recruiters

Website American School Counselor Association

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515 Campus Security

1184

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&division=11.&title=&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7927.700.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=124260.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=3074.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=WIC&division=5.&title=&part=4.&chapter=&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:10 section:503 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title10-section503)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7908 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7908)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/frequently-asked-questions
https://www.dir.ca.gov/das/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.schoolcounselor-ca.org
http://www.schoolcounselor.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfMwJytzFNKXN79UzPcGYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4IrbK3bpIi6PCowlshJokQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dtWhxCQ1apslshgQm9plustvLozA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GM7slshfOaj2ln6j8tplus1pgOVg==


3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516.2 Bomb Threats

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5136 Gangs

5136 Gangs

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.5 Mental Health

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5144 Discipline

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1185

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6EPfKlRCSwxwN9OYI7ATRg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8T5Nv1lJ4jeXENhgC57Zvg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8WeUFytgThzJDsoW7mN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VxBn5igslshHpNidLtb4T67cA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWO959Hcl5kNKlV2o2typlusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EwamCTYehspQbtVv8a4TeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TNInAkzfo2VawTIspZJUbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=W3E273Z7SJY5NTAo6ycMgg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mYkptIN7TU6Gqslsh46Nu7Z6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=k0jVpNQyElxkwTfTchUNOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IF66LY2PpkEYVWSnLKmJyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LcN9vRTlpZjVGXKPwplusUqPQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gplusrJpr446Xo0cX696xBCVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KzYevXLqrbVCsUwXl7kQmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plus3OpN7JwZhtGvrfKI7RSxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nUpUy9jBqheu6n36kZNR4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4FslshwKS842o9nZiIxwbe6Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=RXplusyfiJwFTgt9UBLmFhWfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G6iFratUyvaLTnPUgP5DXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o0h2eg7DNuDY022kDCKveQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1jVYr1cMfodNAUjLaAjdfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ShGBH9WxwwdWinE7QJqsiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FdLYfabHumbnWQXF3uSX8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zaUXngr28uMLaplusfLUmnF1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UbHWJ50zDge54do7nR4MOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zqlm8OpJl3PNcA4plusN4wRZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tEODQ5vXRKr9JdXONtcluQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshpoplusJT4mEFplusilBQogyZTLg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rJ4AczWpluss0KwafkvD91aYw==


5144 Discipline

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

5147 Dropout Prevention

6120 Response To Instruction And Intervention

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6146.2-E PDF(1) Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

6184 Continuation Education

6184 Continuation Education

6200 Adult Education

6200 Adult Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1186

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ANkiAQn1YqPZjYdqnVDPXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=DBNHdeQRoKab6eInLtP93w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=l8u9cslsh5lrwCzNNnsuWiBWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gNRT3hC5mzCeQhuAahxx8A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0EqUplus0sAfMHAvzZzIff7IA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Jor0zG1plusRpluseHmwJ4N9uSplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cZftNa6lZcWIBDbpFTTsWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WdprCtxCg1IqusTCGopFsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gpTCDTLlv4yypyMoMTDXslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=U6fLlNzFdxcINc04wplusZusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Dmw35FlqGwHW19l4nyFh0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2POP9cLgiU1RnPgeV9VGTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qtpJdLaAkn6TtcU1DmuplusrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xj7HyYcYYWt1fX9nAxy2Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eWLplusROGCAm8CQ3VOKKri5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=R4ZppFap7l9JgSUzXpjuSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qnN24plusCJDvN9OzbzpgOq6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=G9AjRHI50rf6uo44xKppiQ==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 6175: Migrant Education ProgramPolicy 6175: Migrant Education Program Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/21/2019

The Governing Board desires to provide a comprehensive program for students who are migratory that attempts to
mitigate the impact of educational disruption, cultural and language barriers, social isolation, health-related problems,
and other factors that may inhibit their ability to succeed in school. The district shall make use of available funds to
provide supplementary services for students who are migratory.

The Superintendent or designee shall cooperate with the regional migrant service center in outreach and
identification of eligible students who are migratory and in the provision of migrant education services. The
Superintendent or designee shall also coordinate migrant education services with other programs within the district
and with other public agencies that serve migrant workers and their families.

The district shall give first priority for services to students who are migratory who are failing, or are most at risk of
failing, to meet state academic standards or have dropped out of school.  (20 USC 6394)

The district shall provide services to eligible private school students residing within the district on an equitable basis
with participating public school students.  (20 USC 7881; 34 CFR 200.87)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each student who is migratory is placed at the appropriate grade
level upon enrollment and is provided services in accordance with an individual needs assessment and learning plan.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board regarding student performance on statewide
assessments of core academic subjects and English language development, as appropriate, for students enrolled in
the district's migrant education program. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the
Board regarding the alignment of district services with the needs of students as identified in student needs
assessments conducted pursuant to Education Code 54443.1. As necessary, the Board shall seek technical assistance
from the migrant education regional service center and/or make changes in the services provided by the district in
order to improve student achievement.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 3080 Applicability of uniform complaint procedures to complaints regarding
students with disabilities

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 200 Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 37220 School calendar

Ed. Code 41601.6 Extended school year program for migratory students

Ed. Code 48204.7 Enrollment

Ed. Code 51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.2 Transfer of coursework and credit

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 54440-54445 Migrant children

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1187

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I31E45F534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=37220.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41601.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48204.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=3.


Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 6391-6399 Education of migratory children

20 USC 7881 Participation of private school students

34 CFR 200.81-200.89 Migrant education program

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Child Welfare Council Publication Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Recommendations, September
2013

California Department of Education Publication 2017 State Service Delivery Plan

U.S. Department of Education Publication
Education of Migratory Children Under Title I, Part C of the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act of 1965, Non-Regulatory Guidance, rev. March
2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Migrant Education Office

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office of Migrant Education

Website West Ed, Migrant Student Information Network

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

0500 Accountability

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4131 Staff Development

4231 Staff Development

4331 Staff Development

5111.1 District Residency

5111.1 District Residency

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5125 Student Records

1188

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6311 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6311)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7881 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7881)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-C
https://www.chhs.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/Committees/California-Child-Welfare-Council/Council-Meeting-Information/Council-Meeting-Info-Archive/Partial-Credit-Model-Policy-and-Practice-Recommendations.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/me
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/ome
http://www.wested.org/project/migrant-student-information-network-msin
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfMwJytzFNKXN79UzPcGYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BRefPHplusO9QHva0w8AgyTTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eY7RdLQkMt62BzK0tVS3Yg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mYkptIN7TU6Gqslsh46Nu7Z6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==


5125 Student Records

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.26 Tuberculosis Testing

5141.26 Tuberculosis Testing

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.32 Health Screening For School Entry

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6000 Concepts And Roles

6011 Academic Standards

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6174 Education For English Learners

6174 Education For English Learners

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1189

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ocVWiaAp0EaJZfo6jyH4gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qvHUlWD6pBslshoiV98IPVmplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NrbQHGNQ6JX6a3NbBpSPWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8S0TFaHIdqbWyslsh1NHCTwag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dZnCOmRlLyy9x9hHhslsh9slshLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1XvJUtEHDZVl0dn58ucgPg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWOTgooPmBqlLMnt9wSVag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FwYEslshgJE0NDm3qZZA4Bbwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iDRaQ9RGbdLq3zOelqvd5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ytg8in4cx2bVqvvGlWUePw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aNJziHA4pAlhMye7c43DDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vYgkvnqpQIo1plusplusOB7hB4Lg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=82plus7ckd4CjHLPDQ3NpWyhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjdlRrILOQDZwoAaCHcEzQ==


6174-E PDF(1) Education For English Learners - Education For English Language Learners

6177 Summer Learning Programs

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1190

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jc3sBdcMzLxCvrGjyQjmgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yb0tAplusotzAvMSWz7HdlHHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==


Regulation 6175: Migrant Education ProgramRegulation 6175: Migrant Education Program Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/21/2019

Eligibility

Students age 3 to 21 years shall be eligible for the district's migrant education program if they, their
parents/guardians, or their spouses are migratory agricultural workers or fishers who, in the preceding 36 months,
moved into the district due to economic necessity and engaged in new temporary or seasonal employment or
personal subsistence in agriculture or fishing. If such employment was not secured soon after the move, students
may be considered students who are migratory if the student, the student's parents/guardians, or the student's
spouse actively sought such new employment and have a recent history of moves for temporary or seasonal
agricultural or fishing employment.  (20 USC 6399; 34 CFR 200.81)

A student who ceases to be a student who is migratory during a school term shall be eligible for services until the end
of the term. If comparable services are not available through other programs, a student who is no longer migratory
may continue to receive services for one additional school year. Students who were eligible for services in secondary
school may continue to be served through credit accrual programs until graduation.  (20 USC 6394)

Enrollment

A student who is migratory shall be immediately enrolled in the district even if the student:  (Education Code
48204.7)

1. Has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or monies due to the school last attended
 

2. Does not have clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms
 

3. Is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, proof of
residency, medical records, including, but not limited to, records or other proof of immunization history, or
other documentation

If a student who is migratory experiences a change in residence, the student may remain enrolled in the school of
origin for the duration of the student's status as a student who is migratory.  (Education Code 48204.7)

If a student's status as a student who is migratory changes during a school year, the Superintendent or designee shall
allow the student to continue at the school of origin through the duration of that school year or, if the student is
enrolled in a high school, through graduation.  (Education Code 48204.7)

A student who is migratory and is transitioning between school grade levels shall be allowed to continue in the
district of origin in the same attendance area to provide the student the benefit of matriculating with peers in
accordance with the established feeder patterns of school districts. A student who is migratory and is transitioning to
a middle school or high school designated for matriculation in another school district shall be allowed to enroll in that
school.  (Education Code 48204.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform a student who is migratory and the student's parent/guardian of the
impact of remaining in the school of origin on the student's eligibility to receive migrant education services pursuant
to Education Code 54440-54445.  (Education Code 48204.7)

The Superintendent or designee may, but is not required to, provide transportation to enable a student who is
migratory to attend the school of origin, unless otherwise required by federal law, or provide programs for online
instruction as a substitute for physical attendance.  (Education Code 48204.7)

Student Records

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records documenting the eligibility of students enrolled in the
district's migrant education program. However, the district shall not collect information or documents regarding the

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1191



citizenship or immigration status of students or their family members for the purpose of determining eligibility for
migrant education services.

The Superintendent or designee shall acquire education and health records from the previous school districts of a
student who is migratory, as appropriate.

When a student who is migratory transfers to another district, the student's records shall be provided to the
receiving district upon request at no cost in order to assist that district in meeting the needs of the student.  (20 USC
6398)

Program Components

The migrant education program shall include all of the following components:  (Education Code 54443.1)

1. A general needs assessment summarizing the needs of the population to be served
 

2. A comprehensive program to meet the educational, health, and related needs of participating students which
supplements the district program and includes, but is not limited to:
 

a. Instructional services, including academic, remedial and compensatory, bilingual-crosscultural, and career
technical instruction
 

b. Counseling and career education services
 

c. Preschool services in accordance with Education Code 54443
 

d. Other educational services that are not otherwise available in sufficient quantity or quality to eligible
students who are migratory
 

e. The acquisition of instructional materials and equipment necessary to adequately provide the
appropriate services
 

f. Other related services to meet the special needs of eligible students who are migratory to enable them
to participate effectively in instructional services
 

g. The coordination and teaming of existing resources serving students who are migratory, such as
bilingual-crosscultural education, health screening, and compensatory education
 

3. Individual assessment of the educational and relevant health needs of each participating student, within 30
days of enrollment, including assessments concurrently provided pursuant to compensatory education,
bilingual-crosscultural education, school improvement programs, and other programs serving the student
 

4. A brief individual learning plan listing the services to be provided to each student, which shall be given to the
parent/guardian in writing or at a parent/guardian conference, annually and when the student moves to a new
district
 

5. Staffing and staff development plans and practices to meet the needs of students and implement the program
 

6. Parent/guardian and community involvement as specified in Education Code 54444.2, including, but not
necessarily limited to, the establishment of a parent/guardian advisory council to actively involve
parents/guardians in planning, operating, and evaluating the district's migrant education program
 

7. The migrant education program shall provide for the same opportunities for parent/guardian involvement that
are provided to parents/guardians for federal Title I programs.  (20 USC 6394)
 

8. Evaluations which include annual student progress and overall program effectiveness and quality control
reports

Summer School and Extended School Year Program

1192



The district shall conduct summer school program(s) for eligible students who are migratory. The summer school
program shall respond to the individual needs of participating students and shall build on and be consistent with the
instructional programs offered to these students during the regular school year. Coursework shall be of the same
level of difficulty in each subject as that provided to students enrolled in regular classes of instruction within the
district in the preceding year.  (Education Code 54444.3)

Teachers in the summer school program shall have cultural training or background and understanding of the special
needs of students who are migratory and possess the proper credential for the subjects and grade levels to which
they are assigned.  (Education Code 54444.3)

The program shall comply with the following requirements for instructional time:  (Education Code 54444.3)

1. For kindergarten class, a minimum of 180 minutes per day, including recesses, for not less than 20 instructional
days
 

2. For grades 1-8, a minimum of 200 minutes per day, including recesses and passing time but excluding noon
intermissions, for not less than 20 instructional days
 

3. For grades 7-12, a minimum of 240 minutes per day, including passing time but excluding noon intermissions,
for not less than 30 instructional days

The number of instructional days may be less than as described above if, during the summer school program, there is
a holiday for which schools are required to be closed.  (Education Code 37220, 54444.3).

When district facilities that are suitable for the summer climate are available, the district shall make facilities
available at cost to other agencies that request facilities for the operation of migrant summer school programs,
unless just cause for denial exists. When approved by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, the district may
jointly offer facilities with a neighboring district to meet the needs of the migrant summer school program for the
entire area.  (Education Code 54444.3)

If the district receives authorization and average daily attendance funding from the California Department of
Education to provide an extended school year program to students who are migratory who, due to family movement,
enroll in transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, or any of grades 1-6, on or after March 1 of the school year and
depart on or before December 1 of the next school year,  the Superintendent or designee shall operate the program
in accordance with Education Code 41601.6.  (Education Code 41601.6)

Transfer of Coursework and Credits

When a student enrolled in a migrant education program transfers into a district school, the district will receive an
official transcript from the transferring school or district which reflects full and partial credits and grades earned by
the student and includes:  (Education Code 51225.2)

1. A determination of the days of enrollment and/or seat time, if applicable, for all full and partial credits earned
based on any measure of full or partial coursework being satisfactorily completed

Partial coursework satisfactorily completed includes any portion of an individual course, even if the student did
not complete the entire course
 

2. Separate listings for credits and grades earned at each school and local educational agency so it is clear where
credits and grades were earned
 

3. A complete record of the student's seat time, including both period attendance and days of enrollment

The district shall transfer the credits and grades from the transferring school's transcript onto an official district
transcript in the same manner as described in Item #2, above.  (Education Code 51225.2)

If the Principal or designee has knowledge that the transcript from the transferring school may not include certain
credits or grades, the Principal or designee shall contact the prior school within two business days to request that the

1193



full or partial credits be issued, which shall then be issued and provided by the prior school along with all academic
and other records within two business days of the request.  (Education Code 51225.2)

The district shall accept and issue full credit for any coursework that the student who is migratory has satisfactorily
completed while attending another public school, a juvenile court school, a charter school, a school in a country other
than the United States, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school.

If the entire course was completed, the district shall not require the student who is migratory to retake the course.
 (Education Code 51225.2)

If the entire course was not completed at the previous school, the student who is migratory shall be issued partial
credit for the coursework completed and shall be required to take the uncompleted portion of the course. However,
the district may require the student who is migratory to retake the portion of the course completed if, in consultation
with the educational rights holder for the student who is migratory, the district finds that the student who is
migratory is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial
credit is issued to a student who is migratory in any particular course, the student who is migratory shall be enrolled
in the same or equivalent course, if applicable, to enable the completion of the entire course.  (Education Code
51225.2)

Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods attended per subject. If the
school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period attended shall be equal to two regular class periods
per subject. Partial credits and grades earned by a student shall be included on the student's official transcript within
two business days of the district's notification of the student's transfer, as required under Education Code 49069.5.

In no event shall the district prevent a student who is migratory from taking or retaking a course to meet the
eligibility requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of California.  (Education
Code 51225.2)

Applicability of Graduation Requirements

To obtain a high school diploma, a student who is migratory shall complete all courses required by Education Code
51225.3 and shall generally fulfill any additional local graduation requirements prescribed by the Board.

However, when a student who is migratory has completed the second year of high school and transfers into a district
school, the student shall be exempted from all district-adopted coursework and other district-established graduation
requirements, unless the district makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the additional
requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of the student's fourth year of high school. Within 30
calendar days of the student's transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student and the student's
parent/guardian of the availability of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for it. If the Superintendent or
designee fails to provide this notification, the student shall be eligible for the exemption once notified, even if the
notification occurs after the termination of the court's jurisdiction over the student.  (Education Code 51225.1)

To determine whether a student is in the third or fourth year of high school, the district shall use either the number
of credits the student has earned as of the date of the transfer, the length of school enrollment, or, for a student with
significant gaps in school attendance, the student's age as compared to the average age of students in the third or
fourth year of high school, whichever qualifies the student  for the exemption.  (Education Code 51225.1)

If a student who is migratory was not properly notified of an exemption, declined the exemption, or was not
previously exempted, the student or the student's educational rights holder may request the exemption and the
Superintendent or designee shall exempt the student within 30 days of the request. A student may request the
exemption even if the student is no longer a student who is migratory.  (Education Code 51225.1)

When the Superintendent or designee determines that a student who transferred into a district school is reasonably
able to complete district-established graduation requirements by the end of the student's fourth year of high school,
the student shall not be exempted from those requirements. Within 30 calendar days of the following academic year,

1194



the student shall be reevaluated based on the student's course completion status at the time, to determine if the
student continues to be reasonably able to complete the district-established graduation requirements in time to
graduate by the end of the student's fourth year of high school. Written notice as to whether the student then
qualifies for exemption shall be provided to the student, the student's educational rights holder, and if applicable, to
the student's social worker or probation officer.  (Education Code 51225.1)

If, upon reevaluation, it is determined that the student who is migratory is not reasonably able to complete the
district-established graduation requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of the student's fourth
year of high school, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the student with the option to receive an
exemption from district-established graduation requirements or stay in school for a fifth year to complete the
district-established graduation requirements upon agreement with the student, or if under 18 years of age, the
student's educational rights holder, and shall provide notifications in accordance with Education Code 51225.1.
 (Education Code 51225.1)

When a student who is migratory is exempted from district-established graduation requirements, the Superintendent
or designee shall consult with the student and the student's educational rights holder about the following:
 (Education Code 51225.1)

1. Discussion of how any requirements that are waived may affect the student's postsecondary education or
vocation plans, including the ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution
 

2. Discussion and information about other options available to the student, including, but not limited to, a fifth
year of high school, possible credit recovery, and any transfer opportunities available through the California
Community Colleges
 

3. Consideration of the student's academic data and any other information relevant to making an informed
decision on whether to accept the exemption

The district shall not require or request a student who is migratory to transfer schools in order to qualify for an
exemption and shall not grant any request made by a student who is migratory or the student's parent/guardian for a
transfer solely to qualify for an exemption.  (Education Code 51225.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall not require a student who is migratory who is eligible for an exemption from
district-established graduation requirements and would otherwise be entitled to remain in attendance at the school,
to accept the exemption or be denied enrollment in, or the ability to complete, courses for which the student is
otherwise eligible, including courses necessary to attend an institution of higher education, regardless of whether
such courses are required for statewide graduation requirements.  (Education Code 51225.1)

If a student who is migratory is exempted from district-established graduation requirements, the exemption shall not
be revoked. Additionally, the exemption shall continue to apply after the student no longer meets the definition of a
student who is migratory while still enrolled in the school or if the student transfers to another school, including a
charter school, or school district.  (Education Code 51225.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall not require or request that an eligible student who is exempted from district-
established graduation requirements and who completes the statewide coursework requirements before the end of
the fourth year of high school, and would otherwise be entitled to remain in school, to graduate before the end of
the student's fourth year of high school.  (Education Code 51225.1)

Upon making a finding that a student who is migratory is reasonably able to complete district-established graduation
requirements within the fifth year of high school, the Superintendent or designee shall:  (Education Code 51225.1)

1. Consult with the student and, if under 18 years of age, the student's educational rights holder, of the option to
remain in school for a fifth year to complete the district-established graduation requirements and how that will
affect the student's ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution
 

2. Consult with and provide information to the student about transfer opportunities available through the
California Community Colleges

1195



 
3. Upon agreement with the student or with the student's educational rights holder if under 18 years of age,

permit the student to stay in school for a fifth year to complete the district-established graduation
requirements

When a student who is migratory has completed the second year of high school transfers into the district or between
high schools within the district, and the Superintendent or designee determines that the student is not reasonably
able to complete the district-established graduation requirements within the student's fifth year of high school but is
reasonably able to complete the statewide coursework requirements within the fifth year of high school, the student
shall be exempted from all district-established graduation requirements and be provided with the option to remain in
school for a fifth year to complete the statewide requirements. In such situations, the Superintendent or designee
shall consult with the student and the student's educational rights holder, regarding the following:  (Education Code
51225.1)

1. The student's option to remain in school for a fifth year to complete statewide coursework requirements
 

2. The effect of waiving the district-established requirements and remaining in school for a fifth year on the
student's postsecondary education or vocation plans, including the ability to gain admission to an institution of
higher education
 

3. Other options available to the student, including, but not limited to, possible credit recovery, and any transfer
opportunities available through the California Community Colleges
 

4. The student's academic data and any other information relevant to making an informed decision on whether to
accept the exemption and option to remain in school for a fifth year to complete the statewide coursework
requirements

Parent Advisory Council

The parent advisory council shall be comprised of members who are knowledgeable of the needs of students who
are migratory and shall be elected by the parents/guardians of students enrolled in the district's migrant education
program. The composition of the council shall be determined by the parents/guardians at a general meeting to which
all parents/guardians of participating students shall be invited. The parents/guardians shall be informed, in a language
they understand, that they have the sole authority to decide on the composition of the council.  (Education Code
54444.2)

At least two-thirds of the advisory council shall consist of parents/guardians of students who are migratory.
 (Education Code 54444.2)

All parent/guardian candidates for the council shall be nominated by parents/guardians. Nonparent candidates, such
as teachers, administrators, other school personnel, or students, shall be nominated by the groups they represent. All
other community candidates shall be nominated by the parents/guardians.  (Education Code 54444.2)

The parent/guardian advisory council shall meet at least six times during the year and shall:  (Education Code
54444.4)

1. Establish program goals, objectives, and priorities
 

2. Review annual needs assessments, program activities for each school, and individual learning plans
 

3. Advise on the selection, development, and reassignment of migrant education program staff
 

4. Participate actively in planning and negotiating program applications and service agreements
 

5. Perform all other responsibilities required under state and federal laws or regulations

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and implement a training program for advisory council members to
enable them to carry out their responsibilities. The training program shall be developed in consultation with the
council and shall include appropriate training materials in a language understandable to each member.  (Education
Code 54444.2)

1196



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the council, without charge, a copy of all applicable state and federal
migrant education statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines, audits, monitoring reports, and evaluations. Upon request,
these materials also shall be provided without charge to each member of the council.  (Education Code 54444.2)

Notification and Complaints

Information regarding the educational rights of students who are migratory, as specified in Education Code 51225.1
and 51225.2, shall be included in the annual uniform complaint procedures notification distributed to students,
parents/guardians, employees, and other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622.  (Education Code 51225.1,
51225.2)

Any complaint that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the education of students who are
migratory, as specified in Education Code 51225.1 or 51225.2, may be filed in accordance with the district's
procedures in Administrative Regulation 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 3080 Applicability of uniform complaint procedures to complaints regarding
students with disabilities

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 200 Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 37220 School calendar

Ed. Code 41601.6 Extended school year program for migratory students

Ed. Code 48204.7 Enrollment

Ed. Code 51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51225.2 Transfer of coursework and credit

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 54440-54445 Migrant children

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6311 State plan

20 USC 6391-6399 Education of migratory children

20 USC 7881 Participation of private school students

34 CFR 200.81-200.89 Migrant education program

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Child Welfare Council Publication Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Recommendations, September
2013

California Department of Education Publication 2017 State Service Delivery Plan

U.S. Department of Education Publication
Education of Migratory Children Under Title I, Part C of the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act of 1965, Non-Regulatory Guidance, rev. March
2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Migrant Education Office

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office of Migrant Education

1197

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I31E45F534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=37220.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41601.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48204.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51225.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=29.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6311 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6311)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7881 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7881)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-C
https://www.chhs.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/Committees/California-Child-Welfare-Council/Council-Meeting-Information/Council-Meeting-Info-Archive/Partial-Credit-Model-Policy-and-Practice-Recommendations.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/me
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/ome


Website West Ed, Migrant Student Information Network

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0415 Equity

0500 Accountability

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3-E PDF(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel

4131 Staff Development

4231 Staff Development

4331 Staff Development

5111.1 District Residency

5111.1 District Residency

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5132 Dress And Grooming

5132 Dress And Grooming

5141.26 Tuberculosis Testing

5141.26 Tuberculosis Testing

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.31 Immunizations

5141.32 Health Screening For School Entry

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

1198

http://www.wested.org/project/migrant-student-information-network-msin
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VfMwJytzFNKXN79UzPcGYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=MrYTHef1yA0oZaXExMPpFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vpqo5arseplusrGh9vplusSqSpwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yctlv10RXGcqpHslsh2QI14SA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jLOOPrlJdMtGsQjgnmySBw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshKxntIPSvHEXIzgTzokFLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=74FQRslshNE4ixf6LmslshAt27HQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=m7dBxWc9yEopX7kXHHbnHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8YMdOxplusfZEErz8KyPtQfVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H0wsdRoc1YSD8Xyu5Lb2Ag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0RL5j3FAoCbB4vOa01H9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=BRefPHplusO9QHva0w8AgyTTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=eY7RdLQkMt62BzK0tVS3Yg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WwuacvVz1VcIsmcLqXgvDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tINEP9YGl69yVOuMsOD8GA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mYkptIN7TU6Gqslsh46Nu7Z6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XDmSBrEj2WPZNZYhWDgqtw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OMaeC7AnAnhDfEuEnl75NA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ocVWiaAp0EaJZfo6jyH4gg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2NJNyb4cwxr8WslshvihMJkng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ylpluss1nGAiTjUeRZTtdbOjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qvHUlWD6pBslshoiV98IPVmplusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NrbQHGNQ6JX6a3NbBpSPWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8S0TFaHIdqbWyslsh1NHCTwag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dZnCOmRlLyy9x9hHhslsh9slshLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1XvJUtEHDZVl0dn58ucgPg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wWOTgooPmBqlLMnt9wSVag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=FwYEslshgJE0NDm3qZZA4Bbwg==


5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(2) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E PDF(3) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5145.6-E(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications

5148 Child Care And Development

5148 Child Care And Development

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education

6000 Concepts And Roles

6011 Academic Standards

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6174 Education For English Learners

6174 Education For English Learners

6174-E PDF(1) Education For English Learners - Education For English Language Learners

6177 Summer Learning Programs

6178 Career Technical Education

6178 Career Technical Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1199

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IxMouKhzOJ4QEWWfcKTnCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ybEpplus32X6dislshhbvIr06kFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ov6mplushnYvibchslshf6PyrNoA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xslshUzsazR3aoDGU36zCLUAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YAFDQu5ulOnGOueCyc0AOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=I9WEpeVNuc6ReyWMtNHwxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=EZUGMwfN9xFDpQezTTIZ4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HWnUM3Tfq3D1KdWslshq7aMAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IEg5CnP3JorJnzS0mZ1HcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iDRaQ9RGbdLq3zOelqvd5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ytg8in4cx2bVqvvGlWUePw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aNJziHA4pAlhMye7c43DDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vYgkvnqpQIo1plusplusOB7hB4Lg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NsvEtMCW0EinyCly29BntA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZLYZEXc7TClMI8nslshJoYYww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Uslsh1Fplus3eDQdkjUm3AJdX08g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=82plus7ckd4CjHLPDQ3NpWyhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XjdlRrILOQDZwoAaCHcEzQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jc3sBdcMzLxCvrGjyQjmgw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Yb0tAplusotzAvMSWz7HdlHHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bh2QhtyzplusKDudG7mxQ404A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0eEv73nlOzRLnlcbq9TrSw==


Policy 6177: Summer Learning ProgramsPolicy 6177: Summer Learning Programs Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

The Governing Board recognizes that an extended break from the instructional program may result in significant
learning loss, especially among disadvantaged and low-achieving students, and desires to provide opportunities
during the summer for students to practice essential skills, make academic progress, and focus on developing social,
emotional, and physical needs and interests through hands-on engaging learning experiences.

Summer programs offered by the district shall be aligned with the district's local control and accountability plan
(LCAP), other applicable district and school plans, and the educational program provided during the school year.
When feasible, summer programs shall blend high-quality academic instruction in core curricular and/or elective
subjects with recreation, nutrition programs, social and emotional development, and support services that encourage
attendance, student engagement in learning, and student wellness.

Summer School

OPTION 1 (District is not required to offer summer school)

The Superintendent or designee, with Board approval, may establish summer school day and/or evening classes.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2 (District is required to offer summer school pursuant to Education Code 46120)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish summer school classes pursuant to Education Code 46120.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

The district's summer school program may be used to provide supplemental instruction to students needing
remediation and/or enrichment in core academic subjects.

The district shall provide students with supplemental instruction and support in a tiered framework that bases
universal, targeted, and intensive supports on students' needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated
student supports through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school climate.

As appropriate, priority for enrollment in summer school programs shall be given to district students who:

1. Need course credits in order to graduate from high school before the beginning of the next school year
 

2. Have been retained or are at risk of being retained at their grade level
 

3. Demonstrate academic deficiencies in core curriculum areas

4. Are in student groups identified in the district's LCAP as needing increased or improved services to succeed in
the educational program

5. Are foster youth and/or are students experiencing homelessness

If during an intersession period the student will be moving, the student's educational rights holder or, in the
case of an American Indian child, Indian custodian, shall determine which school the student attends for the
intersession period, if applicable.  (Education Code 48850, 48853.5)

6. Are transitional kindergarten or kindergarten children, or in any of grades 1-6 and are required to be offered or
provided access to Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Programs pursuant to Education Code 46120 and
BP/AR 5184.2 - Before/After School Programs

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1200



OPTION 1: (First-come first-served)

The remaining openings shall be offered to other district students on a first-come first-served basis.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: (Lottery)

The remaining openings shall be offered to other district students on a lottery basis.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Because summer courses cover extensive instructional content in a relatively short time period, students who have
more than three excused absences or one unexcused absence may not receive credit for summer session class(es)
unless they make-up missed work in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

Sites for summer school programs may be rotated in an effort to make summer school programs more accessible to
all students, regardless of residence or regular attendance area, and to accommodate the maintenance needs of
district schools.

The district shall provide any student who attends a school that is not operating an ELO program transportation to
attend at a location that is providing an ELO program and to return to the original location or another location that is
established by the district.  (Education Code 46120)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board on summer school enrollment in the current year
and previous year for the program as a whole and disaggregated by grade level, school that the students attend
during the regular school year, and student population. In addition, the Superintendent or designee may report on the
extent to which students successfully achieved the outcomes established for the program.

Additional Summer Learning Opportunities

The Superintendent or designee may collaborate with parents/guardians, city and county agencies, community
organizations, child care providers, and/or other interested persons to develop, implement, and build awareness of
organized activities that support summer learning.

Strategies to support summer learning may include, but are not limited to:

1. Providing information to students and parents/guardians about summer reading programs scheduled to be
conducted by public libraries or community organizations
 

2. Collaborating with the local parks and recreation agency and/or community organizations to provide day
camps, sports programs, or other opportunities for physical education and activity
 

3. Collaborating with workforce development agencies, businesses, and community organizations to provide
summer job training opportunities that include an academic component
 

4. Encouraging reading in the home, such as providing lists of recommended reading to students and
parents/guardians, establishing a target number of books or pages, and providing prizes for achievement of
reading goals
 

5. Assigning summer vacation homework in core curricular subject(s) for extra credit
 

6. Conducting occasional, interactive "fun days" during the summer to provide activities related to art, music,
science, technology, mathematics, environmental science, multicultural education, debate, or other subject
 

7. Arranging opportunities for community service

1201



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 11470-11472 Summer school

5 CCR 3043 Extended school year; special education students

Ed. Code 37252-37254.1 Supplemental instruction

Ed. Code 39837 Transportation to summer employment program

Ed. Code 41422 Conditions Disqualifying School Districts from Apportionments

Ed. Code 41505-41508 Pupil Retention Block Grant

Ed. Code 41976.5 Summer school programs; substantially disabled persons or graduating high
school seniors

Ed. Code 42238.01-42238.07 Local control funding formula

Ed. Code 43520-43525 In-Person Instruction and Expanded Learning Opportunities Grants

Ed. Code 46120 Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

Ed. Code 48070-48070.5 Promotion and retention

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Students in foster care and students experiencing homelessness

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6

Ed. Code 51220 Course of study for grades 7-12

Ed. Code 51730-51732 Powers of governing boards (authorization for elementary summer school
classes); admissions of adults and minors

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 54444.3 Summer program for migrant students

Ed. Code 56345 Individualized education program contents

Ed. Code 58700-58702 Credit towards summer school apportionments for tutoring and homework
assistance

Ed. Code 58806 Summer school apportionments

Ed. Code 8482-8484.6 After School Education and Safety Program

Ed. Code 8484.7-8484.9 21st Century Community Learning Centers

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6311-6322 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students

20 USC 7171-7176 21st Century Community Learning Centers

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

CSBA Publication Supporting the Summer Learning Strategy to Boost Student Achievement,
Fact Sheet, December 2015

CSBA Publication Summer and STEAM Make an Ideal Match, Governance Brief, November
2016

CSBA Publication Summer Learning: As Easy as 1, 2, 3, January 2016

CSBA Publication Putting STEAM into Your District’s Summer: A Guide to Regional Partners
and Resources in California, February 2018

CSBA Publication Putting STEAM into Your District’s Summer: A Planning Guide for School
District Governance Teams, January 2018

1202

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I397838E04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I397AF8034C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I62C6D8B07AED11EDBAA59DE2D18897F2?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39837.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41422.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=7.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.6.&chapter=1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=46120.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=1.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=5.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52052.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=54444.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56345.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=58806.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=2.&article=22.5.&op_statues=2001&op_chapter=545)&op_section=4
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=2.&article=22.6.
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/StudentAchievement/151218_SummerLearningFactSheet.ashx?la=en&rev=4f2b449c746d4367b3d3b28c35b35d59
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201611GBSummerAndSTEAM.ashx?la=en&rev=75a780dce7d94e17b7887fc3789e8881
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/StudentAchievement/012016SummerLearningBooklet.ashx?la=en&rev=56de074d0ff44eceadf7725520f1cb74
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/StudentAchievement/201802RegionalResourceGuide.ashx?la=en&rev=668657c4c25646b68c5aabba39ad81c1
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/EducationIssues/StudentAchievement/201801_SummerLearningHowToGuide.ashx?la=en&rev=9e2165e0deac4567b1ca5ecede0ee65b


CSBA Publication School's Out, Now What? How Summer Programs Are Improving Student
Learning and Wellness, Policy Brief, April 2013

National Summer Learning Association Publication Every Summer Counts: A Longitudinal Analysis of Outcomes from the
National Summer Learning Project, December 2020

National Summer Learning Association Publication 2021 California Summer Learning Guide: Investing in Resilience and
Relationships, March 2021

Partnership for Children & Youth Publication Summer 2022: How California schools are making the most of new
increased state investments, January 2023

Rand Corporation Publication Making Summer Count: How Summer Programs Can Boost Children's
Learning, 2011

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website RAND Corporation

Website Summer Matters

Website National Summer Learning Association

Website Partnership for Children and Youth

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0200 Goals For The School District

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

3553 Free And Reduced Price Meals

5030 Student Wellness

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.2 Work Permits

5113.2 Work Permits

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5123-E PDF(1) Promotion/Acceleration/Retention

5141.6 School Health Services

5141.6 School Health Services

5147 Dropout Prevention

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6000 Concepts And Roles

1203

https://www.csba.org/ProductsAndServices/AllServices/~/media/8A0A7729B18C4BF88FCF0DE623FF629D.ashx
https://www.summerlearning.org/knowledge-center/every-summer-counts-a-longitudinal-analysis-of-outcomes-from-the-national-summer-learning-project/
https://www.summerlearning.org/knowledge-center/2021-california-summer-learning-guide/
https://www.partnerforchildren.org/resources/2023/1/13/summer-2022
https://www.csba.org/ProductsAndServices/AllServices/~/media/8A0A7729B18C4BF88FCF0DE623FF629D.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.rand.org
http://summermatters2you.net
http://www.summerlearning.org
http://www.partnerforchildren.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slsh5xp7YULIs01sXSSmNHyslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NAmFaDcckPwNslsh7TlaQQsplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VvkA2usIlhYY6Ic5Q36aMA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IpB0uzbx8CP3EKplussainshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xAapjKW1FFrvXQBQgD4Xlw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PRI0Yx7DQWBoTiCulpiJDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WVhuHYHT1ixZ9i8plusEW9p4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusOslsho76nUoQxUb1J7slsh8Ri6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=2CzKFogEplusrAujEFITslshiHBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ksiKimLz507GLmDH05co5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=i5PKcFR5HjC6zlSWROlN9g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OwX3GmZwqN90hOP71xybOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rYJyuucQ8pIPXuN6Md6InQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TSNr4BwsVV07maqnREGeCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dkOU0FBAdEEhYPCrzKRzplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0EqUplus0sAfMHAvzZzIff7IA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5STdTVjmJdCm0CIkGWScJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=aIdxS1Sslshd8HMgeTBGirm9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iDRaQ9RGbdLq3zOelqvd5Q==


6011 Academic Standards

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent Involvement

6111 School Calendar

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.7 Physical Education And Activity

6142.91 Reading/Language Arts Instruction

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title I Programs

6171 Title I Programs

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173 Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(1) Education For Homeless Children

6173-E PDF(2) Education For Homeless Children

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.4 Education For American Indian Students

6175 Migrant Education Program

6175 Migrant Education Program

6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6179 Supplemental Instruction

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1204

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ytg8in4cx2bVqvvGlWUePw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=sO6BgsDMvd1Q34slshhONVGJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OKpZT7ixrascIAVuqYOCpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tPgVimM6qPgaHr5wRFlRRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xasbr1jhtFslshCunEeJrRhZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GlBi3xslshyijgEd5FYhG4joQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UJRr0cfiiFVzmteucKXikw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cQa3c6Er9w5TfCwezpOeplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qC2kcEnIIIBBKIVXLTXCow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YH92zz3fsePCNslsh6Hslshl1LuQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nslshfkw6y40Tbj3S3tdNplus07A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t9slshBl67vvB3M3ZfhIHmPAw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8C93wExGD9cMe16x45plusMzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8vtkeydoTi99gljFXON0vA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jd8HeVcHcJfFEHHzTy7yQg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zk8MZLNbnrXJeGYyefQYFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xFUJLvS9Rx693v21XKAq4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=5HdZyn9lPTcKwa8xX6K21g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=AQWy8mK9hMvlOyjOFwEs6Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PVCVFMr2slshr8bLmod5mawTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJ9zn5W0lliYyEnltEUFkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IlaZDbJVwk1Un8e4NoCHxg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=owfslshTBGWc7Z128jV7Qslsh5jA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Xj7HyYcYYWt1fX9nAxy2Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Aslshnsbb6JONkoBznE2TIQzw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=wChrwGEgddyKdQypk0y6mw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=oRW99mY63VUOp3ykLJI1Ww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vDFXv0D7JlAplusVkU2WUJMGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ra4KvNEGvfVplussB0slshpluszvhXQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rQkfDWLkplusTvxslshb6OyOiXRg==


Policy 7214: General Obligation BondsPolicy 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017

The Governing Board recognizes that school facilities are an essential component of the educational program and
that the Board has a responsibility to ensure that the district's facilities needs are met in the most cost-effective
manner possible. The Board may direct the Superintendent to explore the possibility of a bond measure, which may
include, but is not limited to, conducting community focus groups, surveys, and Board presentations. When the
Board determines that it is in the best interest of district students, it may order an election on the question of
whether bonds shall be issued to pay for school facilities.

The Board's decision to order a bond election, as well as its determinations regarding the appropriate amount, timing,
and structure of the bond issuance, shall be consistent with law and the district's debt management policy.

Before ordering a bond election, the Board shall obtain reasonable and informed projections of assessed valuations
that take into consideration projections of assessed property valuations made by the county assessor.  (Education
Code 15100)

When any project to be funded by bonds will require state matching funds for any phase of the project, the ballot
materials for the bond measure shall include a statement as specified in Education Code 15122.5, advising voters
that, because the project is subject to approval of state matching funds, passage of the bond measure is not a
guarantee that the project will be completed.  (Education Code 15122.5)

Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters

The Board, by a two-thirds vote and subject to Education Code 15100, may adopt a resolution to incur bonded
indebtedness and order an election. Pursuant to the California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article
16, Section 18(b), a bond election authorized pursuant to Education Code 15266 requires the approval of at least a
55 percent majority of the voters voting in the election.  (Education Code 15266)

The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special election, or a regularly
scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the district are entitled to vote.  (Education Code 15266)

Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district pursuant to Education Code 15266 shall be used only for the following
purposes:  (California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A))

1. The construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and
equipping of school facilities
 

2. The acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities
 

3. The refunding of any outstanding debt issuance used for the purposes specified in Items #1-2 above

The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability requirements:  (California
Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3))

1. Certification that proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used only for the purposes specified in Items #1-
2 above, and not for any other purposes including teacher and administrative salaries and other school
operating expenses

2. A list of specific school facilities projects to be funded and certification that the Board has evaluated safety,
class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing that list

3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to ensure that the funds
have been expended only on the specific projects listed
 

4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the proceeds from the sale of

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1205



the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for the school facilities projects

If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, the Board shall appoint
an independent citizens' oversight committee to inform the public concerning the expenditure of bond revenues as
specified in Education Code 15278 and the accompanying administrative regulation. This committee shall be
appointed within 60 days of the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes pursuant to Education
Code 15274.  (Education Code 15278)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the annual, independent performance and financial audits required
pursuant to Items #3-4 above are issued in accordance with the U.S. Comptroller General's Government Auditing
Standards and submitted to the citizens' oversight committee at the same time they are submitted to the
Superintendent or designee and no later than March 31 of each year.  (Education Code 15286)

The Board shall provide the citizens' oversight committee with responses to all findings, recommendations, and
concerns addressed in the performance and financial audits within three months of receiving the audits.  (Education
Code 15280)

The Board may disband the citizens' oversight committee when the committee has completed its review of the final
performance and financial audits.

Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters

The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 66.67 percent majority of
the voters pursuant to Education Code 15100 and California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(2). If a majority
of the Board agrees to such an election, or upon a petition of the majority of the qualified electors residing in the
district, the Board shall adopt a resolution ordering an election on the question of whether to incur bonded
indebtedness if approved by a 66.67 percent majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15100)

The bond election may be ordered to occur on any Tuesday, except a Tuesday that is a state holiday or the day
before or after a state holiday, is within 45 days before or after a statewide election unless conducted at the same
time as the statewide election, or is an established election date pursuant to Elections Code 1000 or 1500. 
(Education Code 15101)

Subject to limits specified in Article 13A, Section 1 of the California Constitution, bonds shall be sold to raise money
for any of the following purposes:  (Education Code 15100)

1. Purchasing school lots
 

2. Building or purchasing school buildings
 

3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary for current maintenance,
operation, or repairs
 

4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed by fire or other public
calamity
 

5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary apparatus of a permanent
nature
 

6. Permanently improving school grounds
 

7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or state school building aid
loans
 

8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577
 

9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years
 

1206



10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another school building, whether in
the same location or in any other location

Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be united and voted upon
as a single proposition by an order of the Board entered into the minutes.  (Education Code 15100)

The Board may appoint a citizens' oversight committee to review and report to the Board and the public as to
whether the expenditure of bond revenues complies with the intended purposes of the bond.

Certificate of Results

If the certificate of election results received by the Board shows that the appropriate majority of the voters is in
favor of issuing the bonds, the Board shall record that fact in its minutes. The Board shall then certify to the County
Board of Supervisors all proceedings it had in connection with the election results.  (Education Code 15124, 15274)

Resolutions Regarding Sale of Bonds

Following passage of the bond measure by the appropriate majority of voters, the Board shall pass a resolution
directing the issuance and sale of bonds. In accordance with law, the resolution shall prescribe the total amount of
bonds to be sold and may also prescribe the maximum acceptable interest rate, not to exceed eight percent, and the
time(s) when the whole or any part of the principal of the bonds shall be payable.  (Education Code 15140;
Government Code 53508.6)

In passing the resolution, the Board shall consider each available funding instrument, including, but not limited to, the
costs associated with each and their relative suitability for the project to be financed.

Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall place an agenda item at a public meeting and adopt as part of the bond
issuance resolution, or in a separate resolution, disclosures of the available funding instruments, the costs and
sustainability of each, and all of the following information:  (Education Code 15146)

1. Express approval of the method of sale, such as competitive or negotiated sales
 

2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected
 

3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond underwriter and the financial
adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless these individuals have not been selected at the time the
resolution is adopted, in which case the Board shall disclose their identities at the public meeting occurring
after they have been selected
 

4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance, including, but not limited to, bond counsel and
financial advisor fees, printing costs, rating agency fees, underwriting fees, and other miscellaneous costs and
expenses of issuing the bonds

When the sale involves bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, such as a capital appreciation bond (CAB),
the resolution to be adopted by the Board shall include Items #1-4 above as well as the financing term and time of
maturity, repayment ratio, and the estimated change in the assessed value of taxable property within the district
over the term of the bonds. The resolution shall be publicly noticed on at least two consecutive meeting agendas,
first as an information item and second as an action item. The agendas shall identify that bonds that allow for the
compounding of interest are proposed.  (Education Code 15146)

Prior to adopting a resolution for the sale of bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, the Board shall be
presented with the following:  (Education Code 15146)

1. An analysis containing the total overall cost of the bonds that allow for the compounding of interest
 

2. A comparison to the overall cost of current interest bonds
 

3. The reason bonds that allow for the compounding of interest are being recommended

1207



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
4. A copy of the disclosure made by the underwriter in compliance with Rule G-17 adopted by the federal

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board

At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a report of the
proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC).  (Government Code 8855)

After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual issuance cost information and shall disclose that
information at the Board's next scheduled meeting. The Board shall ensure that an itemized summary of the costs of
the bond sale and all necessary information and reports regarding the sale are submitted to the CDAIC.  (Education
Code 15146; Government Code 53509.5)

Bond Anticipation Notes

Whenever the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, it may, by resolution, issue a bond
anticipation note, on a negotiated or competitive-bid basis, to raise funds that shall be used only for a purpose
authorized by a bond that has been approved by the voters of the district in accordance with law.  (Education Code
15150)

Payment of principal and interest on any bond anticipation note shall be made at note maturity, not to exceed five
years, from the proceeds derived from the sale of the bond in anticipation of which that note was originally issued or
from any other source lawfully available for that purpose, including state grants. Interest payments may also be made
from such sources. However, interest payments may be made periodically and prior to note maturity from an
increased property tax if the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 15150)

1. A resolution of the Board authorizes the property tax for that purpose
 

2. The principal amount of the bond anticipation note does not exceed the remaining principal amount of the
authorized but unissued bonds

A bond anticipation note may be issued only if the tax rate levied to pay interest on the note would not cause the
district to exceed the tax rate limitation set forth in Education Code 15268 or 15270, as applicable.

Deposit of Bond Proceeds

With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in the county treasury
pool as required by law.  (Education Code 15146)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit

Ed. Code 15100-15254 Bonds for school districts and community college districts

Ed. Code 15264-15288 Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000

Ed. Code 17577 Sewers and drains

Ed. Code 47614 Charter school facilities

Ed. Code 5322 Resolution calling election

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Elec. Code 1125-1129 Incompatible activities

1208

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SECTION 1.&article=XIII A
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 18.&article=XVI
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.&chapter=1.&article=1.&goUp=Y
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.&chapter=1.5.&article=1.&goUp=Y
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17577.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=47614.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5322.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=7054.


Elec. Code 13119 Forms of Ballots; ballot order

Elec. Code 15372 Elections official certificate

Elec. Code 324 General election

Elec. Code 328 Local election

Elec. Code 341 Primary election

Elec. Code 348 Regular election

Elec. Code 356 Special election

Elec. Code 357 Statewide election

Elec. Code 53506-53509.5 General obligation bonds

Elec. Code 53580-53595.5 Bonds

Elec. Code 54952 Definition of legislative body; Brown Act

Elec. Code 9160-9170 Ballot label; support and opposition listings

Elec. Code 9400-9405 Bond issues

Gov. Code 6500-6539.9 Joint powers agreements

Gov. Code 8855 California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 240.10b-5 Prohibition against fraud or deceit

17 CFR 240.15c2-12 Municipal securities disclosure

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004)

Attorney General Opinion 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005)

Attorney General Opinion 99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016)

Court Decision Taxpayers for Accountable School Bond Spending v. San Diego Unified
School District (2013) 215 Cal.App.4th 1013

Court Decision San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San
Lorenzo Valley Unified School District (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356

CSBA Publication California's Challenge: Adequately Funding Education in the 21st Century,
December 2015

CSBA Publication Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and
Candidates, Fact Sheet, February 2011

CSBA Publication Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, Governance Brief,
December 2012

Debt & Investment Advisory Commission
Publication California Debt Financing Guide, rev. March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Types of Legal Counsel, Best Practice, September 2018

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing the Method of Sale of Bonds, Best Practice, March
2021

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, March 2020

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Investment and Management of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice,
March 2020

1209

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13119.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=15372.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=324.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=328.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=341.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=348.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=356.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=357.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=9170.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=9.&title=&part=&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8855.
https://www.csba.org/Advocacy/EducationLegalAlliance/~/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2015_CaliforniasChallenge-FundingAdequacyReport
https://edsource.org/wp-content/uploads/old/CSBA-guidelines-on-public-resources-for-ballot-measuresv1.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201212GBBondSales.ashx?la=en&rev=35d34dfd33344def803206b31eb17af7
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac/debtpubs/financing-guide.pdf
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/types-of-legal-counsel
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/selecting-and-managing-the-method-of-sale-of-bonds
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/debt-management-policy
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/investment-and-management-of-bond-proceeds
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/selecting-and-managing-municipal-advisors
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/understanding-your-continuing-disclosure-responsibilities


Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Refunding Municipal Bonds, Best Practice, March 2019

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 3rd Ed., 2008

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Government Finance Officers Association

Website Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access
(EMMA)

Website California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

Website Department of General Services, Office of Public School Construction

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1160 Political Processes

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3470 Debt Issuance And Management

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

6151 Class Size

7110 Facilities Master Plan

7210 Facilities Financing

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E PDF(1) Conflict Of Interest

1210

https://www.gfoa.org/materials/refunding-municipal-bonds
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/elected-officials-guide-debt-issuance
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.gfoa.org
http://www.emma.msrb.org
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jOl2BVpWq3W7oCJ1mBNs1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ME4b8iaEr4slsh0ahM8YNXJmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshQjVcZ6N1e3j9qIXwUvRDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7UhHYplus1alK4VqcUSRo9HFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LBnwh6896SKjJpplusW0YEM7Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8L1X1v259Q0K546Fl8YLLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n7xYqOCC52aXx1Me4VxxBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=shY9JGdEYqwy7nkKm8lxzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YmrUJDKNHW1pRpNuUWKu9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4yySPQaS7IJqTNbbLt6fSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bMi6cDZYU1Jjszi5ldhslsh6A==


9320 Meetings And Notices

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(2) Actions By The Board

9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1211

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njS4xumUWTwAMwglWYqYRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7KRlrn5MwzPHLdsLle7xjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zu8V10QrJEzMVHchy5jqKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pldQ5Fq1wKplusLZ1B0PLOFslshw==


Regulation 7214: General Obligation BondsRegulation 7214: General Obligation Bonds Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016

Election Notice

Whenever the Governing Board orders an election on the question of whether general obligation bonds shall be
issued to pay for school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that election notice and ballot
requirements comply with Education Code 15120-15126 and 15272, as applicable, and the section "Ballot
Materials" below.

At least 88 days prior to the date of the election, the Superintendent or designee shall deliver to the officer
conducting the election the resolution calling the election, including the date and purpose of the election, the
authority for ordering the election and the specification of the election order, the signature of the officer or the clerk
of the Board authorized to make such designations, and all other applicable ballot materials.   (Education Code 5322)

Ballot Materials

The ballot question to appear on the ballot shall not exceed 75 words and shall appear in the form specified in
Elections Code 13119.  (Education Code 5322)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the ballot materials comply with applicable laws including a brief
statement of the measure setting forth the amount of the bonds to be voted upon, the maximum rate of interest, and
the purposes for which the proceeds of the sale of the bonds are to be used.  (Education Code 15122)

In addition to the 75 word ballot question, a separate statement shall be included with the sample ballot, which
includes the best estimate from official sources of all of the following:  (Elections Code 9401)

1. The average annual tax rate that would be required to be levied to fund the bond issue over the entire duration
of the bond debt service, based on assessed valuations available at the time of the election or a projection
based on experience within the same jurisdiction or other demonstrable factors

The estimate shall also identify the final fiscal year in which the tax is anticipated to be collected.
 

2. The highest tax rate that would be required to be levied to fund the bond issue, and an estimate of the year in
which that rate will apply, based on assessed valuations available at the time of the election or a projection
based on experience within the same jurisdiction or other demonstrable factors
 

3. The total debt service, including the principal and interest, that would be required to be repaid if all the bonds
are issued and sold

The estimate may include information about the assumptions used to determine the estimate.

For bond measures requiring 55 percent majority of the voters, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the
text of the ballot measure includes a statement that the Board will appoint a citizens' oversight committee and that
annual independent audits will be conducted to assure that funds are spent only on school and classroom
improvements and for no other purposes.  (Education Code 15272)

For bond funded projects that require state matching funds, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure the sample
ballot contains a statement advising the voters that the project is subject to the approval of state matching funds
and, therefore, passage of the bond measure is not a guarantee that the project will be completed.  (Education Code
15122.5)

Arguments in support or in opposition of the bond measure shall be submitted in accordance with Elections Code
9160-9170.

Citizens' Oversight Committee

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1212



If a bond is approved under the 55 percent majority threshold pursuant to Proposition 39 to the California
Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 18(b), then the district's citizens' oversight
committee shall consist of at least seven members, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 15282)

1. One member active in a business organization representing the business community located within the district
 

2. One member active in a senior citizens' organization
 

3. One member active in a bona fide taxpayers' organization
 

4. One member who is a parent/guardian of a district student
 

5. One member who is a parent/guardian of a district student and is active in a parent-teacher organization, such
as the Parent Teacher Association or school site council

Members of the citizens' oversight committee shall be subject to the conflict of interest prohibitions regarding
incompatibility of office pursuant to Government Code 1125-1129 and financial interest in contracts pursuant to
Government Code 1090-1099.  (Education Code 15282)

No employee, Board member, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the district shall be appointed to the citizens'
oversight committee.  (Education Code 15282)

Members of the citizens' oversight committee may serve for no more than three consecutive terms of two years
each. They shall serve without compensation.  (Education Code 15282)

The purpose of the citizens' oversight committee shall be to inform the public concerning the expenditure of bond
revenues. The committee shall actively review and report on the proper expenditure of taxpayers' money for school
construction and shall convene to provide oversight for, but not limited to, the following:  (Education Code 15278)

1. Ensuring that bond revenues are expended only for the purposes described in California Constitution, Article
13A, Section 1(b)(3), including the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school
facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property
for school facilities
 

2. Ensuring that, as prohibited by California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(A), no funds are used for any
teacher and administrative salaries or other school operating expenses

In furtherance of its purpose, the committee may engage in any of the following activities:  (Education Code 15278)

1. Receiving and reviewing copies of the annual, independent performance and financial audits required by
California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(C) and (D)
 

2. Inspecting school facilities and grounds to ensure that bond revenues are expended in compliance with the
requirements of California Constitution, Article 13(A), Section 1(b)(3)
 

3. Receiving and reviewing copies of any deferred maintenance proposals or plans developed by the district
 

4. Reviewing efforts by the district to maximize bond revenues by implementing cost-saving measures, including,
but not limited to, the following:
 

a. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of professional fees
 

b. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of site preparation
 

c. Recommendations regarding the joint use of core facilities
 

d. Mechanisms designed to reduce costs by incorporating efficiencies in school site design
 

e. Recommendations regarding the use of cost-effective and efficient reusable facility plans

1213



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

The district shall, without expending bond funds, provide the citizens' oversight committee with any necessary
technical assistance and shall provide administrative assistance in furtherance of the committee's purpose and
sufficient resources to publicize the committee's conclusions. The district shall also provide the citizens' oversight
committee with responses to any and all findings, recommendations, and concerns addressed in the annual
independent financial and performance audits within three months of receiving the audits.  (Education Code 15280)

All citizens' oversight committee proceedings shall be open to the public and noticed in the same manner as
proceedings of the Board. Committee meetings shall be subject to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
(Education Code 15280; Government Code 54952)

The citizens' oversight committee shall issue regular reports, at least once a year, on the results of its activities.
Minutes of the proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a matter of public record and shall
be made available on the district's website.  (Education Code 15280)

Reports

Within 30 days after the end of each fiscal year, the district shall submit to the County Superintendent of Schools a
report concerning any bond election(s) containing the following information:  (Education Code 15111)

1. The total amount of the bond issue, bonded indebtedness, or other indebtedness involved
 

2. The percentage of registered electors who voted at the election
 

3. The results of the election, with the percentage of votes cast for and against the proposition

By each January 31 following a bond issuance, the district shall submit an annual report to the California Debt
Investment and Advisory Commission in accordance with Government Code 8855 and as specified in BP 3470 -
Debt Issuance and Management.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit

Ed. Code 15100-15254 Bonds for school districts and community college districts

Ed. Code 15264-15288 Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000

Ed. Code 17577 Sewers and drains

Ed. Code 47614 Charter school facilities

Ed. Code 5322 Resolution calling election

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Elec. Code 1125-1129 Incompatible activities

Elec. Code 13119 Forms of Ballots; ballot order

Elec. Code 15372 Elections official certificate

Elec. Code 324 General election

Elec. Code 328 Local election

Elec. Code 341 Primary election

Elec. Code 348 Regular election

Elec. Code 356 Special election

1214

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SECTION 1.&article=XIII A
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 18.&article=XVI
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.&chapter=1.&article=1.&goUp=Y
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.&chapter=1.5.&article=1.&goUp=Y
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17577.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=47614.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5322.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=7054.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13119.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=15372.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=324.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=328.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=341.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=348.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=356.


Elec. Code 357 Statewide election

Elec. Code 53506-53509.5 General obligation bonds

Elec. Code 53580-53595.5 Bonds

Elec. Code 54952 Definition of legislative body; Brown Act

Elec. Code 9160-9170 Ballot label; support and opposition listings

Elec. Code 9400-9405 Bond issues

Gov. Code 6500-6539.9 Joint powers agreements

Gov. Code 8855 California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

17 CFR 240.10b-5 Prohibition against fraud or deceit

17 CFR 240.15c2-12 Municipal securities disclosure

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004)

Attorney General Opinion 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005)

Attorney General Opinion 99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016)

Court Decision Taxpayers for Accountable School Bond Spending v. San Diego Unified
School District (2013) 215 Cal.App.4th 1013

Court Decision San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San
Lorenzo Valley Unified School District (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356

CSBA Publication California's Challenge: Adequately Funding Education in the 21st Century,
December 2015

CSBA Publication Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and
Candidates, Fact Sheet, February 2011

CSBA Publication Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, Governance Brief,
December 2012

Debt & Investment Advisory Commission
Publication California Debt Financing Guide, rev. March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Types of Legal Counsel, Best Practice, September 2018

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing the Method of Sale of Bonds, Best Practice, March
2021

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, March 2020

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Investment and Management of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, March 2022

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice,
March 2020

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication Refunding Municipal Bonds, Best Practice, March 2019

Gov. Finance Officers Association Publication An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 3rd Ed., 2008

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Government Finance Officers Association

Website Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access
(EMMA)

Website California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission

1215

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=357.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=9170.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=9.&title=&part=&chapter=5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8855.
https://www.csba.org/Advocacy/EducationLegalAlliance/~/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2015_CaliforniasChallenge-FundingAdequacyReport
https://edsource.org/wp-content/uploads/old/CSBA-guidelines-on-public-resources-for-ballot-measuresv1.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/201212GBBondSales.ashx?la=en&rev=35d34dfd33344def803206b31eb17af7
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac/debtpubs/financing-guide.pdf
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/types-of-legal-counsel
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/selecting-and-managing-the-method-of-sale-of-bonds
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/debt-management-policy
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/investment-and-management-of-bond-proceeds
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/selecting-and-managing-municipal-advisors
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/understanding-your-continuing-disclosure-responsibilities
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/refunding-municipal-bonds
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/elected-officials-guide-debt-issuance
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.gfoa.org
http://www.emma.msrb.org
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac


Website Department of General Services, Office of Public School Construction

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0420 School Plans/Site Councils

0440 District Technology Plan

0440 District Technology Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1160 Political Processes

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1230 School-Connected Organizations

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3470 Debt Issuance And Management

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

6151 Class Size

7110 Facilities Master Plan

7210 Facilities Financing

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E PDF(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(2) Actions By The Board

9324 Minutes And Recordings

1216

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XR5pUIUDNEgwP4YfCd366Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ozqlwz25lxYxOCNEZFk1yw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jOl2BVpWq3W7oCJ1mBNs1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ME4b8iaEr4slsh0ahM8YNXJmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshQjVcZ6N1e3j9qIXwUvRDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TOfkfSzdMCUre0slshROgBislshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=p08SuxbRDCj5xTatrB7HRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7UhHYplus1alK4VqcUSRo9HFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LBnwh6896SKjJpplusW0YEM7Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8L1X1v259Q0K546Fl8YLLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Vif5i3MIe1bRn0MTGauWzA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=8dQieIXfOhJwUqLjMlaGww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=n7xYqOCC52aXx1Me4VxxBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=shY9JGdEYqwy7nkKm8lxzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YmrUJDKNHW1pRpNuUWKu9A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4yySPQaS7IJqTNbbLt6fSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bMi6cDZYU1Jjszi5ldhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njS4xumUWTwAMwglWYqYRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7KRlrn5MwzPHLdsLle7xjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zu8V10QrJEzMVHchy5jqKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pldQ5Fq1wKplusLZ1B0PLOFslshw==


Bylaw 9220: Governing Board ElectionsBylaw 9220: Governing Board Elections Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 08/24/2017 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/09/2023

Board Member Qualifications

Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if the person is: 18
years of age or older; a citizen of California; a resident of the school district or, if applicable, the trustee area; a
registered voter; and not legally disqualified from holding civil office.  (Education Code 35107)

A person is not eligible to be a member of the Board if they have been convicted of an offense(s) as specified in law
and the accompanying Exhibit, except when the person has been granted a pardon in accordance with law. A district
employee duly elected to the Board shall resign from district employment, or shall otherwise cease being a district
employee, before being sworn in. If a district employee duly elected to the Board is sworn in and remains a district
employee, then the employment shall automatically terminate upon being sworn into office.  (Education Code
35107)

The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board members. The
Superintendent or designee shall provide a Board candidate, upon request by the candidate, with information that
will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board member, including information
regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a
Board candidate, upon request by the candidate, the county election official's contact information and general
information about school programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities.

Recalling a Board Member

A Board member may be recalled as permitted by Elections Code 11000-11386. To commence a recall of a Board
member, proponents shall serve, file, and publish or post a notice of intention to circulate the recall petition as
specified by law and any applicable county elections official directives. Additionally, the recall petition shall be in the
format provided by the Secretary of State and include, among other things, an estimate of the cost of conducting the
special election, as determined by the county elections official, in consultation with the district.

Within 14 days after the regular meeting at which the Board receives a certificate of sufficiency of signatures on a
recall petition from a county elections official, the Board shall order an election to be held to determine whether the
Board member named in the petition shall be recalled. The election shall be held not less than 88, nor more than 125,
days after the date that the Board orders the election. However, the election may be conducted within 180 days
after the issuance of the Board's order to consolidate the election with a regularly scheduled election.  (Elections
Code 11240-11242)

A recall election of a Board member shall be conducted in accordance with Elections Code 11381-11386.

If a recall of a Board member is successful, that Board member's seat becomes vacant and shall be filled in
accordance with Education Code 5090-95 and Board Bylaw 9223 - Filling Vacancies.

Consolidation of Elections

The Board may consolidate Board elections with the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in
accordance with Elections Code 1302. Additionally, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a
statewide election date results in a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the average
local turnout for the previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take action to consolidate Board
elections with statewide elections in accordance with Elections Code 14051-14052.

In order to consolidate elections, the Board shall adopt a resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors
for approval not later than 240 days prior to the date of the currently scheduled district election.  (Elections Code
10404.5)

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1217



Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, the terms of office of
incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next applicable election.  (Elections Code 10404.5)

Elections Process and Procedures

For each election, upon certification by the County Board of Supervisors, the Board shall declare who has been
elected to the Board in accordance with law.  (Election Code 15400)

A Board member whose term has expired shall continue to discharge the duties of the office until a successor has
qualified by taking the oath of office.  (Government Code 1302, 1360)

OPTION 1:  (Election by trustee area)

Each Board member shall reside in the trustee area they represent and shall be elected by voters residing within that
trustee area. Trustee areas shall be balanced by population as required by state and federal law.

Following each decennial federal census the Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district's trustee areas in
accordance with Elections Code 21100-21180.  (Education Code 5019.5)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Election using "at-large" voting method)

Board members may reside anywhere within the district's boundaries and shall be elected by all voters in the district.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

OPTION 3:  (Election using hybrid method)

Each Board member shall reside within the trustee area that the Board member represents but shall be elected by all
voters in the district. Trustee areas shall be balanced by population as required by state and federal law.

Following each decennial federal census the Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district's trustee areas in
accordance with Elections Code 21100-21180.  (Education Code 5019.5)

OPTIONS 3 ENDS HERE

The Board may review the district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary.

If the district seeks to change its election method, the Board shall follow procedural requirements and hold public
hearings in accordance with Elections Code 10010 and 21100-21150 before adopting a resolution at an open
meeting specifying the change and obtain approval from the county committee on school district organization having
jurisdiction over the district in accordance with Education Code 5019.

The election method or trustee-area boundaries in effect at the beginning of a Board member's term shall be used
when any vacancy that occurs during that term is to be filled, even if, during the term, the district has adopted "by-
trustee area" election method or trustee area boundaries have been adjusted.

Campaign Conduct

All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by local, county, state, and
federal requirements regarding campaign contributions, funding, and expenditures.

1218



A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the purpose of seeking
elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for those seeking election to the Board,
provided that the funds are available to all candidates who are qualified pursuant to Education Code 35107 without
regard to incumbency or political preference.  (Government Code 85300)

In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's confidence in the Board and
district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign
Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440.

Statement of Qualifications

On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or designee shall deliver
a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the county elections official describing both of the
following:  (Elections Code 10509)

1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if any, are for the
balance of an unexpired term
 

2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of qualifications pursuant to
Elections Code 13307

OPTION 1:  (200 Words Limit)

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the voter's
pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 words.  (Elections Code 13307)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (400 Words Limit)

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the voter's
pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 400 words.  (Elections Code 13307)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a candidate for the Board
may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for inclusion in the mailed voter's pamphlet,
prepare and submit a candidate statement for electronic distribution.

OPTION 1:  (Candidate Statement Paid by District)

The district shall pay the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, and/or electronically distributing candidate
statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307.

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Candidate Statement Paid by Candidate)

The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or electronically distributing
candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a condition of having candidate statements
included in the voter's pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these
costs to the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections

1219



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

OPTION 1:  (Tie Decided by Lot)
Whenever the County Superintendent of Schools certifies to the Board that there is a tie vote such that it is
impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to the Board, the Board shall
immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and place where the candidates or their
representatives should appear before the Board. The Board at that time and place shall determine the winner by lot. 
(Education Code 5016)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  (Tie Decided by Runoff Election)

Whenever the County Superintendent certifies to the Board that there is a tie vote such that it is impossible to
determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to the Board, the Board shall schedule a runoff election
in accordance with law.  (Education Code 5016)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 2, Section 2 Voters; qualifications

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35177 Campaign expenditures or contributions

Ed. Code 35239 Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70
ADA

Ed. Code 5000-5033 Election of school district board members

Ed. Code 5091 Vacancies; petition for special election

Ed. Code 5220-5231 Elections

Ed. Code 5300-5304 General provisions; conduct of elections

Ed. Code 5320-5329 Order and call of elections

Ed. Code 5340-5345 Consolidation of elections

Ed. Code 5360-5363 Election notice

Ed. Code 5380 Compensation; election officer

Ed. Code 5390 Qualifications of voters

Ed. Code 5420-5426 Cost of elections

Ed. Code 5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 10010 District boundaries

Elec. Code 10400-10418 Consolidation of elections

Elec. Code 10509 Notice of election by secretary

Elec. Code 10600-10604 School district elections

Elec. Code 11000 Recall of officers

1220

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 2.&article=II
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 7.&article=VII
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 8.&article=VII
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35107.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35177.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35239.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5091.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5380.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5390.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=7054.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=10010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=10.&title=&part=3.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=10509.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=10.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=11000.


Elec. Code 1302 Local elections; school district election

Elec. Code 13307 Candidate's statement

Elec. Code 13308 Candidate's statement contents

Elec. Code 13309 Candidate's statement; indigence

Elec. Code 14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act

Elec. Code 14050-14057 California Voter Participation Rights Act

Elec. Code 15400 Announcement of election results

Elec. Code 18501 Election fraud

Elec. Code 20 Public office eligibility

Elec. Code 20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices

Elec. Code 21100-21180 FAIR MAPS Act

Elec. Code 2201 Grounds for cancellation

Elec. Code 4000-4008 Elections conducted wholly by mail

Gov. Code 1021 Conviction of crime

Gov. Code 1097 Illegal participation in public contract

Gov. Code 12940 Unlawful discriminatory employment practices

Gov. Code 1770 Vacancy of office

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

Gov. Code 9055 Committing crimes against legislative power

Gov. Code 9412 Refusing to appear

Pen. Code 165 Bribes to members of city council

Pen. Code 2772 Interfering with the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 2790 Interrupting the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 424 Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers

Pen. Code 661 Removal for neglect or violation of official duty

Pen. Code 67 Giving bribes

Pen. Code 68 Receiving bribes

Pen. Code 74 Acceptance of gratuity

Pen. Code 88 Crimes against legislative power

Pen. Code 98 Crimes against public justice

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

52 USC 10301-10508 Voting Rights Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 182 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 (1998)

Attorney General Opinion 83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000)

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002)

Court Decision Dusch v. Davis (1967) 387 U.S. 112

1221

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=1302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13307.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13308.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13309.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=14.&title=&part=&chapter=1.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=14.&title=&part=&chapter=1.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=15400.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=18501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=20.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=20440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=21.&title=&part=&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=2201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1021.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1097.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=9055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=9412.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=165.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=2772.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=2790.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=661.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=67.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=68.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=74.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=88.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=98.


Court Decision Randall v. Sorrell (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479

Court Decision Rey v. Madera Unified School District (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223

Court Decision Sanchez v. City of Modesto (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660

CSBA Publication Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections,
January 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

Website Fair Political Practices Commission

Website California Secretary of State's Office

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

9005 Governance Standards

9110 Terms Of Office

9223 Filling Vacancies

9224 Oath Or Affirmation

9230 Orientation

9240 Board Training

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E PDF(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

1222

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org
http://www.fppc.ca.gov
http://www.sos.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LOs79qVI4SzZwkbgNfYFVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KvUPzkjb3B8ytvjEAtsVQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t1lJ3p0KnHtbE3eIuPsKNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iNRgr7DyNbTargqcslshirMplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0slshuslshIxCeUslsh9NJoaNJN0Kfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nXsVltu6pH4W3zRsPlePxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4yySPQaS7IJqTNbbLt6fSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bMi6cDZYU1Jjszi5ldhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==


Exhibit 9220-E(1): Governing Board ElectionsExhibit 9220-E(1): Governing Board Elections Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 12/09/2024

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of offenses the conviction of which disqualifies a person from holding public
office, including as a Governing Board member of a school district, in the State of California.

1. California Constitution, Article VII, Section 8: Giving or offering a bribe to procure personal election or
appointment
 

2. California Constitution, Article VII, Section 8: Committing bribery, perjury, forgery, malfeasance in office, or
other high crimes
 

3. Penal Code section 67: Giving or offering a bribe to any executive officer in the state to influence any decision
made by that officer in their official capacity
 

4. Penal Code section 68: While an executive or ministerial officer, employee, or appointee of the state, a county,
a city, or another political subdivision of the state, asking for, receiving, or agreeing to receive any bribe to
influence any decision made by that person in their official capacity
 

5. Penal Code section 74: As a public officer, for gratuity or reward, appointing another person to public office, or
permitting another person to exercise or discharge the duties of their office
 

6. Penal Code section 88: While a member of the Legislature or of a legislative body of a city, county, city and
county, school district, or other special district, committing any of various crimes against the Legislative power,
including bribery and logrolling
 

7. Penal Code section 98: While an officer, committing any of various bribery and corruption crimes against the
public justice as specified in Penal Code 92-100, including bribing or threatening judges or jurors
 

8. Penal Code section 165: Giving or offering a bribe to a member of a city council or a board of supervisors to
influence any decision made by that member in their official capacity
 

9. Penal Code section 424: While an officer of the state or of any county, city, town, or district of the state, or
while otherwise charged with the receipt, safekeeping, transfer, or disbursement of public moneys,
appropriating such moneys for personal use, or refusing to pay any public moneys as required by law
 

10. Penal Code section 2772: Interfering with the work of prisoners employed at a road camp, or giving or
attempting to give such prisoners any controlled substances, intoxicating liquors, firearms, weapons, or
explosives of any kind
 

11. Penal Code section 2790: Interrupting the work of prisoners employed at a public park or camp, or giving or
attempting to give such prisoners any controlled substances, intoxicating liquors, firearms, weapons, or
explosives of any kind
 

12. Government Code section 1021: Committing designated crimes as specified in the California Constitution or
state law
 

13. Government Code section 1097: While a public official, being financially interested in a contract made in their
official capacity, or by any body or board of which he or she is a member, or aiding or abetting a public official
in committing such a violation
 

14. Government Code section 9055: While a member of the Legislature or of a legislative body of a city, county,
city and county, school district, or other special district, committing any of various crimes against the
Legislative power, including bribery and logrolling
 

15. Government Code section 9412: While a member of the Legislature, refusing to appear before the Senate,
Assembly, or any committee of the Legislature after being summoned to testify, or while appearing before the
Senate, Assembly, or any committee, refusing to be sworn or to answer any material and proper question, or
refusing to produce, upon reasonable notice, any material and proper books, papers, or documents in their
possession and under their control

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1223



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
16. Elections Code section 20: Committing a felony involving accepting or giving, or offering to give, any bribe, the

embezzlement of public money, extortion or theft of public money, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any of
those crimes
 

17. Elections Code section 18501: While a public official, aiding the illegal casting of a vote at an election or
otherwise facilitating the perpetration of election fraud

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 2, Section 2 Voters; qualifications

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35177 Campaign expenditures or contributions

Ed. Code 35239 Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70
ADA

Ed. Code 5000-5033 Election of school district board members

Ed. Code 5091 Vacancies; petition for special election

Ed. Code 5220-5231 Elections

Ed. Code 5300-5304 General provisions; conduct of elections

Ed. Code 5320-5329 Order and call of elections

Ed. Code 5340-5345 Consolidation of elections

Ed. Code 5360-5363 Election notice

Ed. Code 5380 Compensation; election officer

Ed. Code 5390 Qualifications of voters

Ed. Code 5420-5426 Cost of elections

Ed. Code 5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property; campaign purposes

Elec. Code 10010 District boundaries

Elec. Code 10400-10418 Consolidation of elections

Elec. Code 10509 Notice of election by secretary

Elec. Code 10600-10604 School district elections

Elec. Code 11000 Recall of officers

Elec. Code 1302 Local elections; school district election

Elec. Code 13307 Candidate's statement

Elec. Code 13308 Candidate's statement contents

Elec. Code 13309 Candidate's statement; indigence

Elec. Code 14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act

Elec. Code 14050-14057 California Voter Participation Rights Act

Elec. Code 15400 Announcement of election results

1224

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 2.&article=II
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 7.&article=VII
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 8.&article=VII
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35107.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35177.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35239.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5091.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5380.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=5390.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=7054.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=10010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=10.&title=&part=3.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=10509.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=10.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=11000.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=1302.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13307.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13308.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=13309.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=14.&title=&part=&chapter=1.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=14.&title=&part=&chapter=1.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=15400.


Elec. Code 18501 Election fraud

Elec. Code 20 Public office eligibility

Elec. Code 20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices

Elec. Code 21100-21180 FAIR MAPS Act

Elec. Code 2201 Grounds for cancellation

Elec. Code 4000-4008 Elections conducted wholly by mail

Gov. Code 1021 Conviction of crime

Gov. Code 1097 Illegal participation in public contract

Gov. Code 12940 Unlawful discriminatory employment practices

Gov. Code 1770 Vacancy of office

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

Gov. Code 9055 Committing crimes against legislative power

Gov. Code 9412 Refusing to appear

Pen. Code 165 Bribes to members of city council

Pen. Code 2772 Interfering with the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 2790 Interrupting the work of prisoners

Pen. Code 424 Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers

Pen. Code 661 Removal for neglect or violation of official duty

Pen. Code 67 Giving bribes

Pen. Code 68 Receiving bribes

Pen. Code 74 Acceptance of gratuity

Pen. Code 88 Crimes against legislative power

Pen. Code 98 Crimes against public justice

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

52 USC 10301-10508 Voting Rights Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 182 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 (1998)

Attorney General Opinion 83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000)

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002)

Court Decision Dusch v. Davis (1967) 387 U.S. 112

Court Decision Randall v. Sorrell (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479

Court Decision Rey v. Madera Unified School District (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223

Court Decision Sanchez v. City of Modesto (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660

CSBA Publication Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections,
January 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

1225

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=18501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=20.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=20440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=21.&title=&part=&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&sectionNum=2201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1021.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1097.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12940.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=9055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=9412.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=165.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=2772.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=2790.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=424.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=661.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=67.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=68.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=74.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=88.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=98.
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org


Website Fair Political Practices Commission

Website California Secretary of State's Office

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

9005 Governance Standards

9110 Terms Of Office

9223 Filling Vacancies

9224 Oath Or Affirmation

9230 Orientation

9240 Board Training

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E PDF(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

1226

http://www.fppc.ca.gov
http://www.sos.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LOs79qVI4SzZwkbgNfYFVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KvUPzkjb3B8ytvjEAtsVQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t1lJ3p0KnHtbE3eIuPsKNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iNRgr7DyNbTargqcslshirMplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0slshuslshIxCeUslsh9NJoaNJN0Kfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nXsVltu6pH4W3zRsPlePxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4yySPQaS7IJqTNbbLt6fSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bMi6cDZYU1Jjszi5ldhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==


Bylaw 9223: Filling VacanciesBylaw 9223: Filling Vacancies Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/09/2023 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 12/09/2024

Events Causing a Vacancy

A vacancy on the Governing Board may arise from any of the following events:

1. The death of an incumbent  (Government Code 1770)
 

2. The adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that an incumbent is physically or mentally
incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident and that there is reasonable cause to believe that the
incumbent will not be able to perform the duties of the office for the remainder of the term  (Government
Code 1770)

 
3. A Board member's resignation in accordance with Board Bylaw 9222 - Resignation  (Government Code 1770)

 
4. A Board member's removal from office by recall  (Elections Code 11000-11386; Government Code 1770)

 
5. A Board member's ceasing to be a resident of the district  (Government Code 1770)

 
6. A Board member's ceasing to inhabit the trustee area represented by the Board member   (Government Code

1770)
 

7. A Board member's absence from the state for more than 60 days, except in the following situations: 
(Government Code 1064, 1770)
 

a. Upon district business with the approval of the Board
 

b. With the consent of the Board for an additional period not to exceed a total absence of 90 days or, in
the case of illness or other urgent necessity and upon a proper showing thereof, for more than 90 days
 

c. For federal military deployment, not to exceed an absence of a total of six months, as a member of the
armed forces of the United States or the California National Guard

If the absence of the Board member for this purpose exceeds six months, the Board may approve an
additional six-month absence upon a showing that there is a reasonable expectation that the member
will return within the second six-month period, and the Board may appoint an interim member to serve
during the absence. If two or more Board members are absent by reason of these circumstances, and
those absences result in the inability to establish a quorum at a regular meeting, the Board may
immediately appoint one or more interim members as necessary to enable the Board to conduct business
and discharge its responsibilities. The term of an interim member appointed in these circumstances shall
not extend beyond the return of the absent Board member or beyond the next regularly scheduled
election for that office, whichever occurs first.
 

8. A Board member's ceasing to discharge the duties of the office for the period of three consecutive months,
except when prevented by sickness or when absent from the state with the permission required by law 
(Government Code 1770)
 

9. A Board member's conviction of a felony or any offense involving a violation of official duties or conviction of a
designated crime resulting in a forfeiture of office  (Government Code 1770, 3000-3003)
 

10. A Board member's refusal or neglect to file the required oath within the time prescribed  (Government Code
1770)
 

11. The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void a Board member's election or appointment  (Government
Code 1770)
 

12. A Board member's commitment to a hospital or sanitarium as a drug addict, dipsomaniac, inebriate, or

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1227



stimulant addict by a court of competent jurisdiction, in which case the office shall not be deemed vacant until
the order of commitment has become final  (Government Code 1770)
 

13. A "failure to elect" in which no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have filed to run for a Board
seat(s)  (Education Code 5090, 5326, 5328)

Timelines for Filling a Vacancy

When a vacancy occurs, the Board shall take the following action, as appropriate:

1. When a vacancy occurs within four months of the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall take no
action.  (Education Code 5093)
 

2. When a vacancy occurs between six months and 130 days before a regularly scheduled Board election at
which the vacant position is not scheduled to be filled, the vacancy shall be filled by a special election
consolidated with the regular election. The person so elected shall take office at the first regularly scheduled
Board meeting following the certification of the election and shall serve only until the end of the term of the
position which the person was elected to fill.  (Education Code 5093)
 

3. When a vacancy occurs any time outside of the statutory time windows identified in Items #1 and #2 above,
the Board shall either order an election or make a provisional appointment within 60 days of the date of the
vacancy or the filing of the member's deferred resignation, whichever is sooner.  (Education Code 5091, 5093)

Eligibility for Appointment

In order to be appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board, a person must meet the eligibility requirements specified in
law and Board Bylaw 9220 - Governing Board Elections.

Provisional Appointments

When, as authorized by law, the Board has opted to make a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy, the Board, by
resolution, may approve the procedures for selecting the person to be provisionally appointed to fill the vacancy.
These procedures may, but are not required to, include the following:

1. Advertising in the local media to solicit candidate applications
 

2. Establishing a committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board to ensure that applicants are eligible
for Board membership and announce the names of the eligible candidates
 

3. Interviewing the candidates at a public meeting

Within 10 days after the Board makes a provisional appointment to fill a Board vacancy, the Superintendent or
designee, on behalf of the Board, shall post a notice of the actual vacancy, or the filing of a deferred resignation, and
the provisional appointment. The Superintendent or designee shall post the notice as follows:  (Education Code
5092)

1. In three public places in the district or, if applicable, trustee area
 

2. On the district's website
 

3. In a newspaper of general circulation published in the district, if such a newspaper exists

The notice shall contain:  (Education Code 5092)

1. The fact of the vacancy or resignation
 

2. The date of the occurrence of the vacancy or the date of the filing of, and the effective date of, the resignation
 

3. The full name of the provisional appointee to the Board and the date of the provisional appointee's
appointment
 

4. A statement notifying the voters that unless a petition calling for a special election pursuant to Education Code

1228



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

5091 is filed in the office of the County Superintendent of Schools within 30 days of the provisional
appointment, the appointment shall become effective

The person appointed shall only hold office until the next regularly scheduled election for district Board members. 
(Education Code 5091)

If within 30 days of the Board's appointment, registered voters of the district or, where elections are by trustee
areas, of the trustee area, submit a petition for special election that the County Superintendent determines to be
legally sufficient, the provisional appointment is terminated, and a special election shall be held in accordance with
Education Code 5091 to fill the vacancy.

Appointment Due to Failure to Elect

When a vacancy occurs because no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have been nominated and a
district election will not be held, the Board shall appoint a qualified person to the office. This appointment shall be
made at a meeting prior to the day fixed for the election and the appointee shall be seated at the organizational
meeting as if elected at the district election.  (Education Code 5328)

When an appointment is being made because of a failure to elect, the district shall publish a notice once in a
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, in a newspaper having
general circulation within the district. This notice shall state that the Board intends to make an appointment and shall
inform persons of the procedure available for applying for the appointment.  (Education Code 5328.5)

When, as authorized by law, the Board seeks to make an appointment because of a failure to elect, the Board, by
resolution, may approve any additional the procedures for selecting the person to be appointed to fill the vacancy.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35178 Resignation with deferred effective date

Ed. Code 5000-5033 Election of school district board members

Ed. Code 5090-5095 Vacancies on the board

Ed. Code 5200-5208 Districts governed by boards of education

Ed. Code 5300-5304 General provisions; conduct of elections

Ed. Code 5320-5329 Order and call of elections

Ed. Code 5340-5345 Consolidation of elections

Ed. Code 5360-5363 Election notice

Ed. Code 5420-5426 Cost of elections

Ed. Code 5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions

Elec. Code 10600-10604 School district elections

Elec. Code 11000-11386 Candidates for recall

Gov. Code 1064 Absence from state

Gov. Code 1770 Vacancy of office

Gov. Code 3000-3003 Forfeiture of office

Gov. Code 3060-3075 Removal other than by impeachment

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 6061 Manner of notice as prescribed in designated section

1229

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35107.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35178.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=3.&article=9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=ELEC&division=10.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=ELEC&division=11.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=13
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1064.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=1770.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=7.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=7.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=6061.


Pen. Code 88 Crimes against legislative power

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

18 USC 704 Military medals or decorations

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 182 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 58 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 888 (1975)

CSBA Publication Filling a Board Vacancy, rev. 2022

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California State Attorney General's Office, Quo Warranto Applications

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

9100 Organization

9110 Terms Of Office

9130 Board Committees

9220 Governing Board Elections

9222 Resignation

9224 Oath Or Affirmation

9230 Orientation

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(2) Actions By The Board

1230

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=88.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:18 section:704 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title18-section704)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions/quo-warranto
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3o2muwa8slsh6ISCqslsh3gmpW8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KvUPzkjb3B8ytvjEAtsVQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GXuASZcixlYg8O94kUQvFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=a26vif0OXs6hc2KHWfkn4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0q3MFdU9slshb9tSQplusoixpacw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iNRgr7DyNbTargqcslshirMplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0slshuslshIxCeUslsh9NJoaNJN0Kfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njS4xumUWTwAMwglWYqYRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7KRlrn5MwzPHLdsLle7xjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zu8V10QrJEzMVHchy5jqKA==


Bylaw 9320: Meetings And NoticesBylaw 9320: Meetings And Notices Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/20/2016 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 03/10/2022

Meetings of the Governing Board are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing district business. In accordance
with applicable open meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board shall hold its meetings in public and shall conduct closed
sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law. To encourage community involvement in the schools, Board
meetings shall provide the opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Board. All meetings shall be
conducted in accordance with law and the Board's bylaws, policies, and administrative regulations.

A Board meeting exists whenever a majority of Board members gather at the same time and location, including
teleconference location as permitted by Government Code 54953, to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action upon
any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  (Government Code 54952.2)

In accordance with law and as specified in Board Bylaw 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications, a
majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of communications of any kind, directly
or through intermediaries, including social media and other electronic communications, to discuss, deliberate, or take
action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  (Government Code 54952.2)

However, the Superintendent or designee may engage in separate conversations or communications with Board
members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the subject matter jurisdiction
of the Board, as long as that employee or district official does not communicate the comments or position of any
Board members to other Board members.  (Government Code 54952.2)

In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetings, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications upon request in accordance
with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Any doubt about a request for accommodation shall be resolved in favor of
accessibility. Notice of the procedure for receiving and resolving such requests for accommodation shall be given in
each instance in which notice of the time of a meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise
posted.  (Government Code 54953, 54953.2, 54954.1, 54954.2)

Regular Meetings

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the Board shall hold 1 regular meeting(s) each month starting at 6 p.m. on
the 2nd Thursday  of the month at the Uarmony Union Assembly Hall 1935 Bohemian Hwy., Occidental, Ca 95465

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely accessible to
members of the public and on the district's website.  (Government Code 54954.2)

Consistent with Government Code 54957.5 and Board Bylaw 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials, whenever agenda
materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the
meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the materials available for public inspection at a public office or
location designated for that purpose. The records shall be posted on the district website at the time the materials are
distributed to all or a majority of the Board if distributed outside of business hours.

Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of the Board members
on any topic within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board unless otherwise prohibited by law or as specified in
BB 9323.2 - Actions by the Board.  (Government Code 54956)

At least 24 hours before the time of the meeting, written notice of special meetings shall be delivered personally or
by any other means to all Board members and the local media who have requested such notice in writing. The notice
also shall be posted on the district's website, and, at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting, in a location
freely accessible to the public. The notice shall specify the time and location of the meeting and the business to be

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1231



transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at this meeting.  (Education Code 35144; Government
Code 54956)

Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the meeting by filing a
written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being present at the meeting at the time it
convenes.  (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956)

Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the
Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or during the item's consideration.
 (Government Code 54954.3)

Emergency Meetings

In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened
disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice
and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.  (Government Code
54956.5)

The Board may meet in closed session during emergency meetings so long as two-thirds of the members present at
the meeting agree or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, by unanimous vote of the members
present.  (Government Code 54956.5)

The Board shall comply with all other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting.  (Government
Code 54956.5)

Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the emergency meeting
by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have requested notice of special meetings.
All telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent request for notification shall be exhausted. If
telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived and, as soon after the meeting
as possible, the Board shall notify those media representatives of the meeting and shall describe the purpose of the
meeting and any action taken by the Board. In the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall
give such notice at or near the time notification is given to the other members of the Board. (Government Code
54956.5)

The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the Board president or designee notified or attempted to notify, a copy
of the roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least 10 days in a public place as soon
after the meeting as possible.  (Government Code 54956.5)

An emergency means a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that severely impairs public health and/or
safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board.  (Government Code 54956.5)

A dire emergency means a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or threatened terrorist activity that poses
peril so immediate and significant that requiring the Board to provide one-hour notice before holding an emergency
meeting may endanger the public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board.
 (Government Code 54956.5)

Adjourned/Continued Meetings

The Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and location that shall be specified in
the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the Board may adjourn/continue such a meeting. If no Board
members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting adjourned/continued to a later time and
location and shall give notice in the same manner required for special meetings.  (Government Code 54955)

Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment/continuance, a copy of the order or notice of
adjournment/continuance shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the location where the meeting was
held.  (Government Code 54955)

Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings

The Board may convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more detail or to receive information

1232



from staff or feedback from members of the public. The Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to
discuss Board roles and relationships. Any such meeting, regardless of title or topic, shall be held as a regular or
special meeting, as appropriate, and shall comply with all other requirements for regular or special meetings.
 (Government Code 54956)

Other Gatherings

Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the Brown Act provided
that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district business among themselves other than as part
of the scheduled program:  (Government Code 54952.2)

1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of general
interest to the public or to school board members
 

2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district to address a topic of
local community concern
 

3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district
 

4. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency
 

5. A purely social or ceremonial occasion
 

6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board established pursuant to Board Bylaw 9130
- Board Committees, provided that the Board members who are not members of the standing committee
attend only as observers

Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person that are not part of a series of
communications prohibited by the Brown Act are permitted.  (Government Code 54952.2)

Location of Meetings

Unless the Board is holding a teleconference meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, all meetings shall be
held within district boundaries, except to do any of the following:  (Government Code 54954)

1. Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative proceeding to which the
district is a party
 

2. Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district, provided that the
topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property
 

3. Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these meetings are held within one
of the other agencies' boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice required by law
 

4. Meet in the closest meeting facility if the district has no meeting facility within its boundaries or if its principal
office is located outside the district
 

5. Meet with elected or appointed state or federal officials when a local meeting would be impractical, solely to
discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which the state or federal officials have
jurisdiction
 

6. Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided the meeting agenda is
limited to items directly related to that facility
 

7. Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation, when doing so would
reduce legal fees or costs
 

8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques
 

9. Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an applicant for
Superintendent of the district
 

1233



10. Interview a potential employee from another district

All meetings, regardless of location, shall comply with the applicable notice and open meeting requirements.
Additionally, no such meeting may be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of
ancestry or any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135, which is inaccessible to individuals with disabilities,
or where members of the public must make a payment or purchase in order to be admitted.  (Government Code
54961)

If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the posted regular or special meeting location unsafe and the
deadline for posting the location has passed, the meeting shall be held at a location designated by the Board
president or designee, who shall so inform all news media who have requested notice of meetings pursuant to
Government Code 54956 by the most rapid available means of communication.

Traditional Teleconferencing

A Board member may participate in any meeting by teleconference, which includes both audio or video/audio so
long as the following conditions are met:  (Government Code 54953)

1. All votes taken during the meeting are by rollcall
 

2. The meeting is conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the
public appearing before the legislative body of a local agency
 

3. The location of the Board member participating by teleconference is open and accessible to the public during
the meeting, except during closed session, such that members of the public may observe in person the Board
member participating by teleconference, may hear/listen to the meeting to the same extent as the Board
member participating by teleconference, and may make public comment during the same portion of the
agenda as others members of the public from the same location as the Board member participating by
teleconference
 

4. The location of the Board member participating by teleconference is noted in the agenda and the agenda is
posted at the location of the Board member participating by teleconference in advance of the meeting as
statutorily required based on the type of meeting
 

5. At least a quorum of the members is within the district boundaries.

Teleconferencing by Individual Board Member Due to Just Cause

Until January 1, 2026, when there is "just cause" preventing a Board member from attending a Board meeting in
person, that Board member may participate in that meeting by teleconference without:  (Government Code 54953)

1. Including the location of the Board member participating by teleconference in the agenda
 

2. Making the location of the Board member participating by teleconference open and accessible to the public
 

3. Posting the agenda at the location of the Board member participating by teleconference

A Board member needing to participate by teleconference for just cause shall notify the Board at the earliest
possible opportunity, including at the start of a regular meeting, of the need to do so and include a general
description of the circumstances relating to the need to appear by teleconference at the given meeting.
 (Government Code 54953)

For the Board member to participate by teleconference under this section, all of the following are required:
 (Government Code 54953)

1. All votes taken during the meeting are by rollcall
 

2. At least a quorum of the Board participates in person from a singular physical location clearly identified on the
agenda
 

3. The Board member participating by teleconference utilizes both audio and visual technology to participate in

1234



the meeting
 

4. The Board member participating by teleconference publicly discloses, before any action is taken, whether any
individual 18 years of age or older is present at the Board member's location and the general nature of the
member's relationship with each such individual
 

5. The public is able to access the meeting via a two-way audiovisual platform or a two-way audio service and a
live webcast, with real-time public comment being allowed via the platform or service, in addition to public
comment being available in person

The platform or service may require members of the public to register in order to make public comments so
long as the platform or service is not controlled by the district
 

6. The agenda for the meeting includes information describing how members of the public can access the
platform or service

If the platform or service is disrupted such that the public cannot access the meeting or give real-time public
comment, the meeting may continue but the Board may not take action on any agenda item until the disruption is
resolved.  (Government Code 54953)

A Board member shall be permitted to participate by teleconference for just cause for no more than two meetings
per calendar year.  (Government Code 54953)

For purposes of this section, "just cause" may exist for any of the following:  (Government Code 54953)

1. A childcare or caregiving need of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or domestic partner
that requires a Board member to participate remotely
 

2. A contagious illness prevents a Board member from attending in person
 

3. A Board member has a need related to a physical or mental disability not otherwise reasonably accommodated
 

4. A Board member is traveling while on official business of the Board or another state or local agency

Teleconferencing by Individual Board Member Due to Emergency Circumstances

Until January 1, 2026, when a physical or family medical emergency would prevent a Board member from attending
a Board meeting in person, that Board member may request to participate in such meeting by teleconference. The
Board member requesting to appear remotely shall submit the request as soon as possible and include a concise
general description of the emergency that necessitated the request. The Board member shall not be required to
disclose any disability, medical diagnosis, or personal medical information exempt under existing law.  (Government
Code 54953)

If the request is received timely, it shall be added to the agenda as the first item of business at the meeting, even
before any closed session items. If the request is not received timely, it shall be taken up by the Board before the
first item of business at the meeting. The request shall only be granted upon a vote by the majority of the Board.
 (Government Code 54953, 54954.2)

If the request is granted by the Board, the Board member may participate by teleconference without:  (Government
Code 54953)

1. Including the location of the Board member participating by teleconference in the agenda
 

2. Making the location of the Board member participating by teleconference open and accessible to the public
 

3. Posting the agenda at the location of the Board member participating by teleconference

For the Board member to participate by teleconference due to emergency circumstances, all of the following are
required:  (Government Code 54953)

1. All votes taken during the meeting are by rollcall

1235



 
2. At least a quorum of the Board participates in person from a singular physical location clearly identified on the

agenda
 

3. The Board member participating by teleconference utilizes both audio and visual technology to participate in
the meeting
 

4. The Board member participating by teleconference publicly discloses, before any action is taken, whether any
individual 18 years of age or older is present at the Board member's location and the general nature of the
member's relationship with each such individual
 

5. The public is able to access the meeting via a two-way audiovisual platform or a two-way audio service and a
live webcast, with real-time public comment being allowed via the platform or service, in addition to public
comment being available in person

The platform or service may require members of the public to register in order to make public comments so
long as the platform or service is not controlled by the district
 

6. The agenda for the meeting includes information describing how members of the public can access the
platform or service

If the platform or service is disrupted such that the public cannot access the meeting or give real-time public
comment, the meeting may continue but the Board shall not take action on any agenda item until the disruption is
resolved.  (Government Code 54953)

In total, a Board member may not participate by teleconference due to emergency circumstances alone, or together
with teleconference due to just cause, as specified above, for more than 20 percent of the Board's regular meetings
or for more than three consecutive months. If the Board meets less than 10 times in a calendar year, a Board
member may not appear remotely due to emergency circumstances for more than two meetings.  (Government Code
54953)

Teleconference Meetings During a Proclaimed State of Emergency

The Board may conduct a Board meeting entirely by teleconference during a proclaimed state of emergency
pursuant to Government Code 8625-8629 in any of the following circumstances:  (Government Code 54953)

1. For the purpose of determining whether meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or
safety of attendees due to the emergency
 

2. When the Board has been determined, pursuant to Item #1 above, that meeting in person would present
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees due to the emergency

The Board may hold a meeting by teleconference during a proclaimed state of emergency without:  (Government
Code 54953):

1. Including the location of Board members in the agenda
 

2. Making the locations of Board members open and accessible to the public
 

3. Posting the agenda at the locations of Board members

For the Board to hold such meeting, all of the following are required:  (Government Code 54953)

1. All votes taken during the meeting are by rollcall
 

2. The public is able to access the meeting via a call-in service or an internet-based platform or service, with real-
time public comment being allowed via the platform or service

If an internet-based platform or service is utilized, it may require members of the public to register in order to
make public comments so long as the platform or service is not controlled by the district
 

1236



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

3. The agenda for the meeting includes information describing how members of the public can access the
platform or service

If the platform or service is disrupted such that the public cannot access the meeting or give real-time public
comment, the meeting may continue but the Board may not take action on any agenda item until the disruption is
resolved.  (Government Code 54953)

For any public comment period with a time limit, the Board may not close that public comment period or the
opportunity to register until the full time for public comment has elapsed. For any other public comment period, the
Board shall allow a reasonable amount of time to allow members of the public to provide public comment and to
register to do so.  (Government Code 54953)

The Board may continue to conduct all meetings by teleconference throughout one or more 45-day periods so long
as, prior to the beginning of each 45-day period, the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of
emergency and determines that it continues to directly impact the ability of the Board to meet safely in person.
 (Government Code 54953)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 35140 Time and place of meetings

Ed. Code 35143 Annual organizational meetings; date and notice

Ed. Code 35144 Special meeting

Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 35145.5 Agenda; public participation and regulations

Ed. Code 35146 Closed sessions; student matters

Ed. Code 35147 Open meeting laws exceptions

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Gov. Code 3511.1 Local agency executives

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 54953 Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of superintendent

Gov. Code 54954 Time and place of regular meetings

Gov. Code 54954.2 Agenda posting requirements; board actions

Gov. Code 54956 Special meetings

Gov. Code 54956.5 Emergency meetings

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 8625-8629 California Emergency Services Act

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

28 CFR 35.160 Effective communications for individuals with disabilities

28 CFR 36.303 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability, public accommodations,
auxiliary aids, and services

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995)

Attorney General Opinion 79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (1996)

Attorney General Opinion 84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2001)

1237

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35140.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35143.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35144.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35146.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35147.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=11135.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3511.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54953.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54954.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54954.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54956.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54956.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=1.&title=2.&part=&chapter=7.&article=13.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-35/subpart-E/section-35.160
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-36/subpart-C/section-36.303
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter126&edition=prelim


Attorney General Opinion 84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001)

Attorney General Opinion 88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005)

Court Decision Knight First Amendment Institute at Columbia University v. Trump (2019)
928 F.3d 226

Court Decision Garnier v. Poway Unified School District (S.D. Cal. September 26, 2019) No.
17-cv-2215-W (JLB), 2019 WL 4736208

Court Decision Wolfe v. City of Fremont (2006) 144 Cal.App. 4th 533

CSBA Publication The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2023

Institute for Local Government Publication The ABCs of Open Government Laws

League of California Cities Publication Open and Public V: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2016

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA, GAMUT Meetings

Website Institute for Local Government

Website League of California Cities

Website California Attorney General's Office

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.4 Charter School Authorization

0420.43 Charter School Revocation

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1113-E(2) District And School Websites

1113-E(3) District And School Websites

1160 Political Processes

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330 Use Of School Facilities

1330-E PDF(1) Use Of School Facilities

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1431 Waivers

1238

https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.csba.org/ProductsAndServices/AllServices/GamutMeetingsPolicy
http://www.ca-ilg.org
http://www.cacities.org
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pJVl9Kgtb1VIPEzWhlcN3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=OJC2FbrIydaUcplusrjZsoUKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uAalVNd78G0EqWWaslshnxKzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=mqpluswkX5s3DzzX4o76TikSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=q2slshkfy5slsh4fYHVi0epbPrTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=yGlQXuaraShPyplusdOFFGC4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=50LH4eWAslshjcGslshg5be7fuOg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1mtf3eTfzYAWsnGK3TlPw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pxmukckt0slshulAkO9RV5d2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=e6plus5cBWTtvVRW5OdXPxrZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=CHslshHOuZo9F49plusBkjR0W3hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PiPlNuADdjsMyyplus2WkAprQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tvgKhLnJYGKslshaW6PiplusCehQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=X8bfMWJUy6ggmslshQ95tVJ2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshQjVcZ6N1e3j9qIXwUvRDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=rOrIplusmHffVkpIk8zwPhKdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H9plus7plusrAdvvad8jm50paiFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0Ktc9BpplusNv32QeHDlbhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=uiDwGYF9Nb17nohhNWEJVQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=F02CVAIHXdo5I6zkC35WNA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vKIDSqrwyq6eGLIyzzHxAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=slshmuopR2CeLYVFHLDpplusFImw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ikwhky3RnE91hYDa7IlSuA==


2000 Concepts And Roles

2111 Superintendent Governance Standards

2121 Superintendent's Contract

2210 Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3312 Contracts

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4117.14 Postretirement Employment

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4141.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4241.6 Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

4312.1 Contracts

4317.14 Postretirement Employment

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6117 Year-Round Schedules

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

6173.1 Education For Foster Youth

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7310 Naming Of Facility

9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9100 Organization

9121 President

9130 Board Committees

9140 Board Representatives

9220 Governing Board Elections

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1239

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=boKsIrLNOXSplusVZGWGTVaaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TP1Qbr0vr4CgMSptjA2V4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=KgiyCl2e9j5HAaAD8RZRJQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=XpNJjd4kO153CGxWuUngGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3ar4K8zEwt4GsWHycnvnrQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0NgXJ9XQ9s9JaAyMV1caw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plushdpuKjVtSS5IOVpZWqWww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=PgxJhplusCKKesNPYQ4aXN6sA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=o1urgCUWbS2gmIHmMLOXWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ELkbj4KEgzvfXi85PMIBCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Ui9jVpHtOGNszYAhREhSWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ovUq3NsuLjVKBz6vjslshai4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WyL6c8Gh3wLSZDxZZA3qAQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=xko5g8rPQctplusB67kqjVhjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=d7F8KbFP4w83KofRslshQpf0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Isrq468XhixZL62lsLyYfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=P1fVY301plusEwj29slshjQ9m2fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=tx1vAenJGq4qJ60dQOifslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=VJFUkwmUVbzFsCKuCWslshqXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=UwbZkiRPS6mEhtplusM4aIoiQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=NdS3ITAmXi5YJxIa2P0nnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6plus7Nja6mzT3JREEN5plusvzQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=O6lrJw23EzgslshrV9VitWdZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=cBXGPW3wT7GxsSslshUdWGpyg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iyDBTDpNQ3S0jfpoL8u0qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eqr0lSbOOeNs1pluss0y33tZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=dzh3rplNP5WsNpZac2A36Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LOs79qVI4SzZwkbgNfYFVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=3o2muwa8slsh6ISCqslsh3gmpW8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=TDxDIUpYYlpy6tE7zqplusrvw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GXuASZcixlYg8O94kUQvFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=HCG9nKCHCc5ct1S1fXbTSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=a26vif0OXs6hc2KHWfkn4g==


9230 Orientation

9240 Board Training

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E PDF(1) Conflict Of Interest

9310 Board Policies

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9323 Meeting Conduct

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(2) Actions By The Board

9324 Minutes And Recordings

9400 Board Self-Evaluation

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1240

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0slshuslshIxCeUslsh9NJoaNJN0Kfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=nXsVltu6pH4W3zRsPlePxQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4yySPQaS7IJqTNbbLt6fSw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bMi6cDZYU1Jjszi5ldhslsh6A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qJAtjM2QEYPWX875b22bTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=njS4xumUWTwAMwglWYqYRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=7KRlrn5MwzPHLdsLle7xjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Zu8V10QrJEzMVHchy5jqKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pldQ5Fq1wKplusLZ1B0PLOFslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plusshCdTsSq4HZ4oopEzLcoA==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Bylaw 9323.2: Actions By The BoardBylaw 9323.2: Actions By The Board Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/20/2019

The Governing Board shall act by a majority vote of all of the membership constituting the Board, unless otherwise
required by law.  (Education Code 35164, 35165)

An "action" by the Board means:  (Government Code 54952.6)

1. A collective decision by a majority of the Board members
 

2. A collective commitment or promise by a majority of the Board members to make a positive or negative
decision
 

3. A vote by a majority of the Board members when sitting as the Board upon a motion, proposal, resolution,
order, or ordinance

The Board shall not take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final.  (Government Code 54953)

Actions taken by the Board in open session shall be recorded in the Board minutes.  (Education Code 35145)

Action on Non-Agenda Items

The Board may take action on a subject not appearing on the posted meeting agenda only after publicly identifying
the item and if any one of the following conditions are met:  (Government Code 54954.2)

1. When a majority of the Board determines that an emergency situation exists, as defined for emergency
meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.5
 

2. When two-thirds of the members present, or if less than two-thirds of the members are present then by a
unanimous vote of all members present, determine that the need to take immediate action came to the
district's attention after the agenda was posted
 

3. When an item appeared on the agenda of, and was continued from, a meeting that occurred not more than five
days earlier

 
4. Until December 31, 2025, when a Board member requests to participate by teleconference due to emergency

circumstances pursuant to Government Code 54953 so long as the timing of the request did not allow for
sufficient time to place it on the agenda

Challenging Board Actions

Before seeking to file a civil action to stop or prevent a Brown Act violation or to invalidate a prior action taken by
the Board, the district attorney's office or interested person shall first present a demand to "cure and correct" the
alleged violation to the district. If the district receives a proper demand from the district attorney's office or any
interested person to "cure and correct" an alleged violation of the Brown Act, the Board shall consult with legal
counsel on if and how to respond as provided by law.  (Government Code 54960-54960.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240 Eminent domain vote requirements

Code of Civil Procedure 1245.245 Eminent domain; resolution adopting different use

Code of Civil Procedure 425.16 Special motion to strike in connection with a public issue

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1241

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1245.240.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1245.245.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=425.16.&lawCode=CCP


Ed. Code 15266 School construction bonds

Ed. Code 17466 Declaration of intent to sell or lease real property

Ed. Code 17481 Lease of property with residence for nondistrict purposes

Ed. Code 17510-17512 Leasing for production of gas; resolution requiring unanimous vote

Ed. Code 17546 Private sale of personal property

Ed. Code 17556-17561 Dedication of real property

Ed. Code 35140-35149 Meetings

Ed. Code 35150 Termination of superintendent

Ed. Code 35160-35178.4 Powers and duties

Ed. Code 48660-48661 Community day schools; establishment and restrictions

Gov. Code 53090-53097.5 Regulation of local agencies by counties and cities

Gov. Code 53724 Parcel tax resolution requirements

Gov. Code 53790-53792 Exceeding the budget

Gov. Code 53820-53833 Temporary borrowing

Gov. Code 53850-53858 Temporary borrowing

Gov. Code 54230.5 Disposal of surplus land and receipt of notice of violation

Gov. Code 54230.7 Disposal of surplus land and receipt of notice of violation

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 54952.6 Action taken; definition

Gov. Code 54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance

Gov. Code 54960-54960.5 Actions to prevent violations

Gov. Code 65352.2 Communicating and coordinating of school sites

Pub. Cont. Code 20110-20118.44 School district contracts

Pub. Cont. Code 20113 Emergencies; award of contracts without bids

Pub. Cont. Code 20114 Repairs, maintenance, and improvements to district facilities by day labor or
force account

Pub. Cont. Code 22034 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act informal bidding
ordinance

Pub. Cont. Code 22035 Repair or replacement of facilities in case of emergency

Pub. Cont. Code 22050 Emergency contracting procedures

Pub. Cont. Code 3400 Bid specifications

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Publication The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003

Court Decision Bell v. Vista Unified School District (2002) 82 Cal.App.4th 672

Court Decision Boyle v. City of Redondo Beach (1999) 70 Cal.App.4th 1109

Court Decision Los Angeles Times Communications LLC v. Los Angeles County Board of
Supervisors (2003) 112 Cal.App.4th 1313

Court Decision McKee v. Orange Unified School District (2003) 110 Cal.App.4th 1310

CSBA Publication The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2023

League of California Cities Publication Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act 2nd Edition, rev.
July 2010

1242

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=15266.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17466.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17481.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=4.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17546.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=4.&article=15.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=35150.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53724.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=4.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=4.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=4.&article=7.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54230.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54230.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54952.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54953.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65352.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20111.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20114.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22034.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22035.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22050.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3400.
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/media/the-brown-act.pdf


Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3311.1 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures

7131 Relations With Local Agencies

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7160 Charter School Facilities

7160 Charter School Facilities

7214 General Obligation Bonds

7214 General Obligation Bonds

9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9150 Student Board Members

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9223 Filling Vacancies

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9323 Meeting Conduct

9324 Minutes And Recordings

1243

https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hyDskyFYqRNmvmRhGw2TKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WsLNYZ3gilHtHXpSUoWhJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0NgXJ9XQ9s9JaAyMV1caw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plushdpuKjVtSS5IOVpZWqWww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iA5Ye8TN9cpV2QpTOhHe3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vIud3iAYDZIBMEN8bwYDPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iyDBTDpNQ3S0jfpoL8u0qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eqr0lSbOOeNs1pluss0y33tZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6jkkHIpA8XDbIZfVGTMw7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Of7H5QETslshVUUc37uYSDwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LOs79qVI4SzZwkbgNfYFVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ST8mFjrGQZ8Ao0faZohRYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IXNhzWv4FVPy7LGXEhqslshRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t1lJ3p0KnHtbE3eIuPsKNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qJAtjM2QEYPWX875b22bTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pldQ5Fq1wKplusLZ1B0PLOFslshw==


Exhibit 9323.2-E(1): Actions By The BoardExhibit 9323.2-E(1): Actions By The Board Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

RESTRICTIONS ON BOARD ACTIONS
 

This exhibit is a non-exhaustive list of the Governing Board actions that require more than a majority vote as well as
restrictions and prohibitions on when the Board may take certain actions.  Other such actions may exist and may be
identified in the future.

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Membership of the Board

 

1. Resolution declaring the Board's intention to sell or lease real property  (Education Code 17466)
 

2. Resolution declaring the Board's intent to convey or dedicate property to the state or any political subdivision
for the purposes specified in Education Code 17556  (Education Code 17557)
 

3. Resolution authorizing and directing the Board president, or any other presiding officer, secretary, or member,
to execute a deed of dedication or conveyance of property to the state or a political subdivision  (Education
Code 17559)
 

4. Lease, for up to three months, of school property which has a residence on it and which cannot be developed
for district purposes because funds are unavailable  (Education Code 17481)

 
5. Request for temporary borrowing of funds needed for immediate requirements of the district to pay district

obligations incurred before the receipt of district income for the fiscal year sufficient to meet the payment(s)
 (Government Code 53821)
 

6. Upon complying with Government Code 65352.2 and Public Resources Code 21151.2, action to render city or
county zoning ordinances inapplicable to a proposed use of the property by the district so long the proposed
use of property is not for nonclassroom facilities  (Government Code 53094)
 

7. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8, action to establish a community day school for any of
grades K-8  (Education Code 48660)
 

8. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8, has an average daily attendance (ADA) of 2,500 or
less, or desires to operate a community day school to serve any of grades K-6 (and no higher grades) and seeks
to situate a community day school on an existing school site, certification that satisfactory alternative facilities
are not available for a community day school  (Education Code 48661)
 

9. Decision to pursue the authorization and issuance of general obligation bonds pursuant to paragraph (3) of
subdivision (b) of Section 1 of Article XIII A of the California Constitution and subdivision (b) of Section 18 of
Article XVI of the California Constitution  (Education Code 15266)
 

10. Resolution of necessity to proceed with an eminent domain action and, if the Board subsequently desires to
use the property for a different use than stated in the resolution of necessity, a subsequent resolution so
authorizing the different use  (Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240, 1245.245)

 
11. When the district has a three-member Board and has adopted the procedures set forth in the Uniform Public

Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA), action to respond to an emergency facilities condition without
giving notice for bids to award contracts, including the repair or replacement of district facilities, the taking of
any other action that is directly related to and immediately required by that emergency, the procurement of
the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for those purposes, the delegation of authority to the
Superintendent or designee to take such action, and the determination during a regular Board meeting of the
need to continue the action  (Public Contract Code 22035, 22050)

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting

Board Policy Manual
Harmony Union Elementary School District

1244



1. Determination that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the district's
attention after the posting of the agenda. If less than two-thirds of the Board members are present at the
meeting, a unanimous vote of all members present is required.  (Government Code 54954.2)
 

2. Determination that a closed session is necessary during an emergency meeting. If less than two-thirds of the
Board members are present, a unanimous vote of all members present is required.  (Government Code
54956.5)

Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Membership of the Board

 

1. Resolution for district borrowing based on issuance of notes, tax anticipation warrants, or other evidences of
indebtedness, in an amount up to 50 percent of the district's estimated income and revenue for the fiscal year
or the portion not yet collected at the time of the borrowing  (Government Code 53822, 53824)
 

2. Resolution for district borrowing, between July 15 and August 30 of any fiscal year, of up to 25 percent of the
estimated income and revenue to be received by the district during that fiscal year from apportionments based
on ADA for the preceding school year  (Government Code 53823, 53824)
 

3. Declaration of an emergency in order to authorize the district to include a particular brand name or product in
a bid specification  (Public Contract Code 3400)

 
4. When the district has a five-member or seven-member Board and has adopted the procedures set forth in

UPCCAA, action to respond to an emergency facilities condition without giving notice for bids to award
contracts, including the repair or replacement of district facilities, the taking of any other action that is directly
related to and immediately required by that emergency, the procurement of the necessary equipment,
services, and supplies for those purposes, the delegation of authority to the Superintendent or designee to
take such action, and the determination during a regular Board meeting of the need to continue the action
 (Public Contract Code 22035, 22050)
 

5. Resolution to award a contract for a public works project at $212,500 or less to the lowest responsible bidder,
when the district is using the informal process authorized under the UPCCAA for projects of $200,000 or less,
all bids received are in excess of $200,000, and the Board determines that the district's cost estimate was
reasonable  (Public Contract Code 22034)

Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting

1. Approval of the expenditure and transfer of necessary funds and use of district property or personnel to meet
a national or local emergency created by war, military, naval, or air attack, or sabotage, or to provide for
adequate national or local defense  (Government Code 53790-53792)

Actions Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Membership of the Board

1. Resolution authorizing and prescribing the terms of a lease of district property for extraction and taking of gas
not associated with oil  (Education Code 17510, 17511)
 

2. Authorization of the use of day labor or force account, or waiver of the competitive bid process pursuant to
Public Contract Code 20111, when the Board determines that an emergency exists requiring the repair,
alteration, work, or improvement to any facility to permit the continuance of existing classes or to avoid
danger to life or property, and upon approval of the County Superintendent of Schools  (Public Contract Code
20113)

Actions Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting

1. Private sale of surplus property without advertisement in order to establish that such property is not worth
more than $2,500. Disposal of surplus property or donation to a charitable organization requires the
unanimous vote of the Board members present to establish that the value of such property would not defray
the cost of arranging its sale.  (Education Code 17546)

Actions Required to Occur During a Regular Board Meeting

1245



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

1. Termination of the Superintendent or an assistant superintendent without cause  (Education Code 35150)
 

2. Discussion or action regarding the contract, salary, salary schedule, or other compensation of the
Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in Government Code
3511.1  (Government Code 54956)

Prohibitions on Certain Board Actions

 

1. Termination of the Superintendent or an assistant superintendent without cause within 30 days after the first
convening of the Board after an election at which one or more Board members are elected or recalled
 (Education Code 35150)
 

2. When the District is disposing of surplus land and has received a notification from the Department of Housing
and Community Development pursuant to Government Code 54230.5 with regard to the surplus land, final
action to ratify or approve the proposed disposal of surplus land unless the district holds an open and public
meeting in compliance with Government Code 54230.7 to review and consider the substance of the notice

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240 Eminent domain vote requirements

Code of Civil Procedure 1245.245 Eminent domain; resolution adopting different use

Code of Civil Procedure 425.16 Special motion to strike in connection with a public issue

Ed. Code 15266 School construction bonds

Ed. Code 17466 Declaration of intent to sell or lease real property

Ed. Code 17481 Lease of property with residence for nondistrict purposes

Ed. Code 17510-17512 Leasing for production of gas; resolution requiring unanimous vote

Ed. Code 17546 Private sale of personal property

Ed. Code 17556-17561 Dedication of real property

Ed. Code 35140-35149 Meetings

Ed. Code 35150 Termination of superintendent

Ed. Code 35160-35178.4 Powers and duties

Ed. Code 48660-48661 Community day schools; establishment and restrictions

Gov. Code 53090-53097.5 Regulation of local agencies by counties and cities

Gov. Code 53724 Parcel tax resolution requirements

Gov. Code 53790-53792 Exceeding the budget

Gov. Code 53820-53833 Temporary borrowing

Gov. Code 53850-53858 Temporary borrowing

Gov. Code 54230.5 Disposal of surplus land and receipt of notice of violation

Gov. Code 54230.7 Disposal of surplus land and receipt of notice of violation

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 54952.6 Action taken; definition

Gov. Code 54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance

Gov. Code 54960-54960.5 Actions to prevent violations

Gov. Code 65352.2 Communicating and coordinating of school sites

1246

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1245.240.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1245.245.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=425.16.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=15266.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17466.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17481.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=4.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17546.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=4.&article=15.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=35150.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53724.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=4.&article=6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=4.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=4.&article=7.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54230.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54230.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54952.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54953.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65352.2.


Pub. Cont. Code 20110-20118.44 School district contracts

Pub. Cont. Code 20113 Emergencies; award of contracts without bids

Pub. Cont. Code 20114 Repairs, maintenance, and improvements to district facilities by day labor or
force account

Pub. Cont. Code 22034 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act informal bidding
ordinance

Pub. Cont. Code 22035 Repair or replacement of facilities in case of emergency

Pub. Cont. Code 22050 Emergency contracting procedures

Pub. Cont. Code 3400 Bid specifications

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Publication The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003

Court Decision Bell v. Vista Unified School District (2002) 82 Cal.App.4th 672

Court Decision Boyle v. City of Redondo Beach (1999) 70 Cal.App.4th 1109

Court Decision Los Angeles Times Communications LLC v. Los Angeles County Board of
Supervisors (2003) 112 Cal.App.4th 1313

Court Decision McKee v. Orange Unified School District (2003) 110 Cal.App.4th 1310

CSBA Publication The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2023

League of California Cities Publication Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act 2nd Edition, rev.
July 2010

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3280 Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3311.1 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures

7131 Relations With Local Agencies

7150 Site Selection And Development

7150 Site Selection And Development

7160 Charter School Facilities

7160 Charter School Facilities

7214 General Obligation Bonds

1247

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20111.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20114.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22034.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22035.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22050.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3400.
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/media/the-brown-act.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=YJ1plusei0yhOUCjkQy3Imx8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=jxO4qGiEljLQINnUHm0PkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iIOjTYrjpb0rEy4MhHJPug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=hyDskyFYqRNmvmRhGw2TKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=WsLNYZ3gilHtHXpSUoWhJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=K0NgXJ9XQ9s9JaAyMV1caw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plushdpuKjVtSS5IOVpZWqWww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=0MAs0Zd4pluszcM7sslshEplusljGnw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=x4Ua5OUI4Sd3LPOzZpv93g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iA5Ye8TN9cpV2QpTOhHe3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=vIud3iAYDZIBMEN8bwYDPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=iyDBTDpNQ3S0jfpoL8u0qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Eqr0lSbOOeNs1pluss0y33tZg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=6jkkHIpA8XDbIZfVGTMw7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=1Of7H5QETslshVUUc37uYSDwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=GvwR7O19yeiAbFRfsrzitA==


7214 General Obligation Bonds

9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9150 Student Board Members

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9223 Filling Vacancies

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9323 Meeting Conduct

9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1248

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=zZZAm9DTN135Xqyz9WYOWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=Q3hiCZq77ByLut1RPB2slsh0w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=LOs79qVI4SzZwkbgNfYFVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=bslshENfMAh476AOJDlGV6nXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ST8mFjrGQZ8Ao0faZohRYw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=IXNhzWv4FVPy7LGXEhqslshRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=t1lJ3p0KnHtbE3eIuPsKNg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=gRQdpph8ASjVJ4tFNkl5KA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=H31FsrOwxDeK8z99GdvqEQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=4xDgjQy7zslshuslshxu2ziiZjKA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=v1EpOmHaplusMGiP9kdwYYwSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=plYUtw2e3WplusHke4ZGCVLdQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=ZFovZobAZLeNtsVw3JOfJA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=qJAtjM2QEYPWX875b22bTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030644&revid=pldQ5Fq1wKplusLZ1B0PLOFslshw==


Quick Summary / Abstract

Next regular meeting is April 10, 2025.

11. Next Board Meeting

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

1249



12. Adjournment

Regular Board Meeting
03/13/2025 - 06:00 PM

Printed: 03/13/2025 03:59 PM

1250


	AGENDA
	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Approval of the Agenda
	4. Public Comment
	5. Closed Session
	5. A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code Section 54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency Negotiator: Matthew Morgan Name of organization representing employees: CSEA
	5. B. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session Gov. Code Section 54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Name of Agency Negotiator: Matthew Morgan Name of organization representing employees: HUTA
	5. C.  With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6: Update on Anticipated Litigation items
	5. D. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: Superintendent Review
	5. E. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: Student Discipline
	6. Reconvene to Open Session
	6. A. Report out on any action taken during closed session
	7. Communication
	7. A. Reports
	7. A. i. HUTA Report
	7. A. ii. Shark Report
	7. A. iii. Student Report
	7. A. iv. Board Member Reports
	7. A. v. Superintendent/Principal's Report
	7. A. vi. Pathways Director Report
	7. B. Public Comment
	7. C. Correspondence
	7. C. i. Letter to Superintendent from HUTA
	8. Consent Agenda
	8. A. Vendor Warrants
	8. B. Approve the minutes from regular meeting held 02/13/2025
	8. C. 4th Grade Field Trip: Malakoff Diggins/ California Gold Rush 04/28/-04/30 2025
	8. D. 2nd Grade Rotary Learn to Swim Program- 4/29-5/22
	8. E. 5th Grade Overnight to Chabot Space and Science Center 4/16-4/17
	8. F. Family Campout in Dragon Playground with Ms Fig and Crew (auction item)
	8. G. 8th Grade Field Trip to Tomales Bay 4/30-5/2 2025
	8. H. Approve the Consent Agenda
	9. Information / Correspondence / Discussion
	9. A. Enrollment Report
	9. B. Discussion re: District Special Education Services
	9. C. Board Member Development
	9. D. Examination of layoffs for 25-26 school year
	9. E. Legal Implications of Charter Non Renewal
	10. Action Items
	10. A. Consideration of District's 2nd Interim Report of Budget and Financial Progress for the 2024-25 school year
	10. B. Consideration and Possible Action on Resolution 2024/25-9 Regarding Certificated Reductions in Force 
	10. C. Consideration of and Possible Action on Resolution 2024/25-10  Regarding  Classified Reductions in Force 
	10. D. Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding with West Sonoma County Consortium for Classroom Space on HUSD Campus
	10. E. Board Policy Updates- First Reading
	11. Next Board Meeting
	12. Adjournment

